
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
August 24, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, August 24, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public may participate by emailing 

comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and, if desired, specifically requesting that their comments 
be read into the record.  Emailed comments must be received no later than thirty minutes before the 
meeting.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public 

record must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public 
comment at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 

teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:    Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Resolution of Commendation Honoring Jeff and Becky Boone for Their Years of Volunteer 
Service with the Friends of the Zoo Sanctuary 

2. Presentation on the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 

3. Presentation on the City's Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation Stage 

4. Historic District Parking Solutions Quarterly Update 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

5. Approval of July 13, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

6. Approval of July 27, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

7. Designation of Primary and Alternate Voting Delegates for the League of California Cities 2021 
Annual Conference Business Meeting 

8. Nomination of the Joint Representative for the Cities of Folsom, Isleton, and Galt to the 
Sacramento Environmental Commission 

9. Resolution No. 10675 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the 2018 Contract 
Between the City of Folsom and the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 
for Shelter Services and Appropriation of Funds 

10. Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles 

11. Resolution No. 10677 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase 
Agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles for Four Type I Ambulances 

12. Resolution No. 10678 – A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order DES-07-
20 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services 

13. Resolution No. 10679 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract 
Change Order with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk 
Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project No. PW180 and Appropriation of Funds 

14. Resolution No. 10680 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with TYMCO, Inc. for the Purchase of a Street Sweeper 

15. Resolution No. 10681 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design 
Consulting Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Mangini Ranch Trails 
Project in the Folsom Plan Area 

16. Resolution No. 10682 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program 
Supplement Agreement 000000X28 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288S21 for 
the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2, Project No. PW1901, State Project 
No. 5288(047) 

Page 3



4 

17. Resolution No. 10683 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program 
Supplement Agreement X30 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288S21 for the Iron 
Point Median Improvement Project, Project No. PW2102, State Project No. 5288(048) 

18. Resolution No. 10685 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Dokken Engineering, Inc. for the Green Valley Road Permanent Easement Acquisition, 
Project No.  PW0804 

19. Resolution No. 10686 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 
5 to the Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC (now known as 
Centralsquare Technologies) to Increase the Number of User Licenses, Migrate Additional 
Project Data to the New Permitting System, and Develop a Custom Land Management 
Integration 

20. Resolution No. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Master Agreement 
Administering Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded Projects, Agreement No. 03-5288S21 
and any Amendments Thereto with the California Department of Transportation 

21. Resolution No. 10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract 
Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the Capital 
Southeast Connector Segment D3(A), Project No. PW1607, Federal Project No. 5288(046) 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

22. UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment - Northwest Corner of East 
Bidwell Street and Street B (PN 21-153) 
 
i. Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment 
No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement between the City of 
Folsom and the Regents of the University of California Davis Relative to the UCD Health 
Sciences Campus Project (Introduction and First Reading)  

23. City of Folsom 2021 Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and 
Related Actions 

i.  Resolution No. 10689 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Adopting an 
Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report for the Housing 
Element Update and Amending the General Plan By Adopting Updates to the Housing Element, 
Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element and Implementation Element  

ii.  Resolution No. 10690 - A Resolution to Amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to Expand the 
Regional Commercial Center (RCC) Land Use Designation to Allow for Multifamily Residential as 
a Permitted Use in Conjunction with the Folsom Housing Element Update 

NEW BUSINESS: 

24. Resolution No. 10684 – A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an 
Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager 

25. Consideration of Expenditure of Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act and Direction to Staff 

26. Resolution No. 10691 – A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order DES-01-
21 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 4



5 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for September 14, 2021. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



Page 7

08/24/2021 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

08/24/2021 Item No.1.



ffi
nr{_}Lf$(tjrf

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 8t24t2021

AGENDA SECTION: S cheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation on the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Environmental and Water Resources Director, Marcus Yasutake, will present information
related to an upcoming Capital Improvement Project. The Water System Rehabilitation Project
No. 2 was approved for construction on July 27,2021, under Resolution No. 10663. This
project will address infrastructure improvements needed throughout the water distribution
system at 13 different locations. This work includes installing isolation valves, providing water
service redundancy at locations that only have one point of connection to the water system,
and rebuilding pressure reducing stations to meet current City standards. This presentation will
cover anticipated impacts to customers, identifr the specific locations of the work and provide
an overview of the communications and outreach program staff wiil use during construction.

Submitted,

Pt',t'*
Marcus Y Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

1

Page 9

08/24/2021 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 10

08/24/2021 Item No.2.



ffi
Ir tb L fs (|-h!.

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Environmental and Water Resources Director, Marcus Yasutake, will present information
related to the City's Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation Stage. On July 30,2021,the Bureau
of R.eclamation (USBR) and Department of Water Resources (DSIR) updated their 2021
Drought Contingency Plan. This plan included updated information regarding the current
drought conditions and actions that USBR and DWR are taking. Based on projections of
Folsom Reservoir storage at the end of December 202I reaching 145,000 acre-feet, Folsom
City Manager Elaine Andersen declared a Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation Stage, which
requires a20Yo reduction in water use from all water customers. Stage 3 will go into effect on
Monday, August 30,2021. The presentation will include the requirements of Stage 3 and a
discussion of the various actions the City will take.

Submitted,

l,.l'"t-"*
Marcus Y Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202r

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation on the City's Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation
Stage

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 11

08/24/2021 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 12

08/24/2021 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COI.INCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In March 2019, City Council established the Historic District Parking Solutions Ad Hoc
Committee for the purpose of working with stakeholders on possible solutions for Historic
District parking issues. The Committee of 11 met monthly for one year to identify issues,
evaluate and discuss potential solutions, and provide recommendations to the City Council to
address existing parking problems, Committee recommendations were presented to the City
Council on June 23,2020 in the form of a report, which includes both short- and long-term
solutions (ranked by high or low priority), as well as ongoing and existing solutions.

Since that time, the City Manager has convened a team of City department directors and other
key managers to collaborate on implementation tasks using the specific recommendations from
the Committee report. Details about the Committeeos process and report can be found on the
City's website, along with an implementation matrix linked below.

https:/ wvw.folsom.ca.us/government/communitv-development/olannine-services/historic-
disEict-resources

In order to keep the City Council, stakeholders, and general public informed, City staff will
present a quarterly report on implementation progress. This meeting will serve as the first of
those quarterly reports.

I

MEETING DATE: 8/24t2021

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Historic District Parking Solutions Quarterly Report

FROM: Community Development Department
Public Works Department

Page 13

08/24/2021 Item No.4.



ATTACHTIENT

llistoric Distict Parking Solutions Implernentation Actions

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Direetor

Dave Publle Works Director
w=

2

Page 14

08/24/2021 Item No.4.



Discussing potential pilot permit parking program Historic District residents.

Camera systems were installed as planned and connected and to and
monitored by Police dispatch (3 cameras in Plaza Area and 2 near RT area

with 15 total views). Consider funding private party for nighttime safe
chaperone to parking structures and lots.

On-street parking enforcment in the Historic District continues to be

monitored in pandemic perspective in coordination with FHDA.

Consider micro-mobility options, especially as things open up (e.g., Via, RT

last mile). Private shuttle services resumed. City is considering options to
expand funding golf carts.

City is preparing an information toolkit that can be shared with employees
City recommends FHDA create incentive program for employees to
incentivize positive parking behavior.

Conceptual design completed for Riley Street sidewalk from Sutter to East

Bidwell. Waiting to hear on grant for final design and construction.

Rideshare signs posted on 800 and 900 blocks of Sutter. Truck loading zones

marked at Sutter/Decatur and on Wool next to Chamber building. Reaching

out to rideshare companies about other opportunities in high volume areas.

Pursue funding opportunities for consultant services to prepare a parking in-
lieu fee for City Council consideration.
Approved FY21-22 budget for security enhancement in garage, expanded
parking capacity signage, wayfinding and circulation improvements.

Create special fund to ensure that revenue collected in the area goes toward
parking improvements. When we have a revenue stream identified, this will
be set up/established.

Restriping of Trader's Lane access and parking lot in nearterm (late 2021)
with signs and sensors for available space followingin 2022. Conceptual
design stage now. Staff preferred option will be presented to City Council as

part of regular update on parking solutions.

Establish designated loading zones for
ridesharing and Smart RT

Establish in-lieu fee for parking

lmprove and expand wayfinding signage to
encourage use of parking garage

Create special fund for parking

improvements

Design, implement and enforce residential
permit parking program

Enhance pedestrian safety to and from
parking structure

lncrease frequency and scope of parking

enforcement

Provide shuttle options to parking garage

and light rail

Educate HD employees about parking

options

Continue to improve bicycle and ped access

to HD

Promote ways to get in and around the HD

Short-Term

Historic District Parking Solutions lmplementation Matrix (Updated August t7,202Ll,
Timeframe Priority Objective Status

H igh

Low

n/aOngoing

Page 15

08/24/2021 Item No.4.



Worked closely with FHDA to implement parklets and road closures. Per

FHDA, continuing closure of 700 block of Sutter Street on weekends through
the calendar year.

Draft Zoning Code to incorporate these recommendations with workshops
and adoption hearings inFall2027. HCD workshop Nov 30th directed: 1) End

use of Variance for granting parking reductions in Sutter Street Entertainment
District and instead replace with Admin Permit Process including required
findings before HDC will award permit. 2) Allow payment of in-lieu fees for
parking reductions. Only in-lieu fee, shared parkign , off-ste parking nearby or
availability of parking in garage warrant parking reduction. 3) lf outdoor
seating is more than 25% of indoor seating area, parking required for outdoor
seating at same ratio for indoor.

Consider as a long term strategy for holistic approach as improvements and
solutions are implemented over time. City will continue implementing parking

solutions and pilot programs to address short term needs. Effective longer
term Parking Management Plans traditionally rely on paid parking programs

and there's not currently consensus on paid parking.

Evalutate potential incentives to consider in the moving forward plan (public
and private).

Estimated cost of second parking structure is S50M and is likely contingent on
paid parking or other consistent revenue stream.

Staff is exploring the potential to set aside seed money for coordinated-
shared valet parking.

Longer term infrastructure analysis for potential to re-route vehicles for
improved circulation when there are more significant changes in the district
moving forward.

Consider potentialto use or purchase lot at Gold Lake and Leidesdorff lot.

Work with special event organizers to
manage parking demand

Address parking standards for HD through
Zoning Code update

Adaptively manage HD parking

Offer incentives to reward beneficial
parking behavior

Build second parking structure

Establish valet parking at key locations

lmprove overall circulation design for
access to HD

Consider use of small undeveloped lots for
infill parking

Long-Term

Historic District Parking Solutions lmplementation Matrix (Updated August L7,2O2Ll
Timeframe Priority Objective Status

H igh

Low

Page 16

08/24/2021 Item No.4.



Book 76 Page 91
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021

City Council Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesdayn July 13, 2021 5:00 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code section
54956.8: Depot Building at200 Wool Street. Negotiating Parties: City Manager Elaine
Andersen on behalf of the City of Folsom, and Joseph Gagliardi on behalf of the Folsom
Chamber of Commerce. Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Lease

2. Performance Evaluation of Public Employee Pursuant to Government Code section
54957(bX1): Position Title: City Manager

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not oficial antil approued fui the Citl Council
Page 17

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 92
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:35 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued b1 the Ciry Council
Page 18

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 93
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, July 13, 2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake
Public Works Director Dave Nugen
Landscaping and Lighting District Manager Zach Perras
General Services Manager Marie McKeeth
Police Chief Rick Hillman

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that there was an update for ltem 11

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued fut the Citl Coancil
Page 19

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 94
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

CONSENT GALENDAR:

1. Approval of June 22,2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

2. Resolution No. 10659 - A Resolution Amending Resolution No, 10638 to Correct the
Yearly Not-To-Exceed Amount of the Agreement with Badger Meter, lnc. for the
Purchase of f -inch Water Meters

3, pulled for discussion

4. pulled for discussion

5. pulled for discussion

6. Resolution No. 10667 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with California Wood Recycling, lnc. dba Agromin for Organic Waste
Diversion Services

7 . Resolution No. 10668 - A Resolution Accepting Three Regional Early Action Planning
Grant Awards to Further Housing Program Goals and Appropriation of Funds

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
approve ltems 1, 2, 6 and 7 of the Gonsent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

3. Resolution No. 10662 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-031) with HydroScience
Engineers, lnc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No, 1

Councilmember Kerri Howell pulled this item for clarification of materials being used.
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake responded.

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10662.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued b1t the Ciry Coundl
Page 20

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 95
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021
Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

4. Resolution No. 10664 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Calpo, Hom and Dong Architects for Fire Station 34 Architectural
Services and Appropriation of Funds

5. Resolution No. 10665 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with FDC Consultants for Fire Station 34 Construction Management Services
and Appropriation of Funds

Councilmember Kerri Howell pulled items 4 and 5 for clarification regarding waiver of bids. City
Attorney Steve Wang responded.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10654 and 10665.

AYES: Councilmember(s): Chalamcherlan Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING:

8. Resolution No. 10666 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report, Confirming
the Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Continued Levying Of Assessments
for Maintenance and Servicing of lmprovements Within the City of Folsom Landscaping
and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-2022for American River Canyon North,
American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine
Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4,
Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge ll/Reflections ll, Folsom
Heights, Folsom Heights No, 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros,
Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prospect Ridge, The Residences at
American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon ll, Sierra Estates,
Silverbrook, Steeplechase, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2,
Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs Modifications for Transfer of
Development Rights (25 Unit Transfer) and Land Use Boundary Refinements for the
Mangini Ranch Phase 3 Project

Landscaping and Lighting Manager ZachPerras made a presentation.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public
hearing was closed.

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued bjt the Ciry Council
Page 21

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



'"':ffiiJlr'SSffiJuly 13,2021
Motion by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10666.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

9. Ordinance No. 1315 -An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control
(lntroduction and First Reading)

Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake made a presentation.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1315.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

10. Consideration of FY 2021-22 Funding Allocation for Homelessness Support and Direction
to Staff on Expenditure of Funds

City Manager Elaine Andersen made a presentation. Police Chief Rick Hillman responded to
questions from the City Council regarding homeless incentive programs.

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Jeanne and Nicole Shuman made a presentation regarding homelessness
2. Jon lngraham regarding homelessness
3. Ed Kelly regarding homelessness
4. Mary Kay Williams regarding homelessness
5. Scott Young regarding homelessness

City Manager Elaine Andersen responded to questions from the City Council. The City
Councilmembers commented regarding the expenditure of funds for homelessness support.

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
move forward with the Folsom Alliance proposal and to recommend that future funding
decisions be at the discretion of the Gity Manager.

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued fut the Cig Coancil Page 22

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 97
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021
Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

11. Presentation and Public Workshop Regarding Solid Waste Rate Studies and City Council
Direction to Staff

General Services Manager Marie McKeeth made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council, with additional clarification provided by Public Works Director Dave
Nugen.

Consensus from the City Council was support for an SB 1383 surcharge and establishing a fee
for bulky waste and household hazardous waste collection. They directed staff to return to a
future meeting with a final recommendation and resolution to proceed with a Prop. 218 noticing

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen announced a new online electronic bill pay service for utility
billing and the upcoming closure of White Rock Road and related detour. She stated that
proposals are being accepted for the leasing of City properties at 905 Leidesdorff Street and
405 Natoma Station Drive. Ms. Andersen concluded by announcing the reopening of the Senior
Center lounge and the upcoming City Council meeting to consider by-district elections,

GOUNCIL COMMENTS:

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla spoke about taking the opportunity to meet City staff. He
talked about reviewing the Lighting and Landscaping District contracts and educating residents
about them. He commented regarding water conservation programs and expressed his wish for
the City to offer rebates.

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez commended the Greater Folsom Partnership for a
successful rodeo. She shared information about the Historic District Parking work group and
their recent meeting. Ms. Rodriguez congratulated Michelle Setzer, a graduate of Folsom who is
rowing in the Olympics, She wished City Manager Elaine Andersen a happy birthday and
commented that it was nice to see unmasked faces at the meeting.

Councilmember Kerri Howell commented about the rodeo being a great event, She spoke
about the large number of illegal fireworks that she saw on the 4th of July and encouraged
everyone to drive safely.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski commented about the successful rodeo and the fireworks. He
congratulated the newly hired firefighters and the fire staff who were promoted recently. Mayor
Kozlowski shared that he attended a plaque dedication at the Folsom Powerhouse.

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fu the Ci4t Coundl
Page 23

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 98
Folsom City Council

July 13,2021
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued bjt the Ciry Council
Page 24

08/24/2021 Item No.5.



Book 76 Page 99
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021

Gity Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesdayn July 27,2021 5:30 PM

Pursuantto Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor (via teleconference)
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
Deputy City Clerk Lydia Konopka

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

L Performance Evaluation of Public Employee Pursuant to Government Code section
54957(bX1): Position Title: City Manager

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Closed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fut the Citjt Coancil
Page 25

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book76 Page 100
Folsom Ci$ Council

July 27,2021

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:35 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY:

Lydia Konopka, Deputy City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fut the Ci4t Conncil Page 26

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 101
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021

City Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, July 27,2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:36 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor (via teleconference)
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
Deputy City Clerk Lydia Konopka
Revenue Services Supervisor Elizabeth Hanna
Landscaping and Lighting District Manager Zach Perras
Utilities Section Manager Todd Eising
General Services Manager Marie McKeeth
Public Works Director Dave Nugen
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

AGENDA UPDATE

Deputy City Clerk Lydia Konopka announced that there was an update to ltem 5.

DRAFT - Not oficial antil approued fui the Ci4t Council
Page 27

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 102
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Mary Ann Salinovich regarding the SeeClickFix Ap
2. Jon lngraham regarding homelessness
3. Blanca Hurtado regarding masks in schools
4. Mike Reynolds regarding restricted parking signage
5. Adena Blair regarding parking permits for the Historic District
6. Bob Holderness regarding parking in the Historic District
7. Denise Attebery regarding litter in the community
8. Jim Snook regarding parking in the Historic District
9. Ryan Burnam regarding the Native Rights Act

SCHEDU LED PRESENTATIONS

1. New Utility Bill and Payment Portal Presentation

Revenue Supervisor Elizabeth Hanna made a presentation

CONSENT CALENDAR:

2. Ordinance No. 1315 - An Ordinance Repealing and Re-enacting Chapter 13.22 of the
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Water System Cross-Connection Control (Second
Reading and Adoption)

3. Resolution No. 10660 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with West Yost & Associates, lnc. for Construction Management, and
lnspection Services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

4. Resolution No. 10661 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Construction Administration Services
for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

5. Resolution No. 10663 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Caggiano General Engineering, lnc. for the Construction of the Water
System Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds

6. Resolution No. 10670 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Subdivision lmprovement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Toll
Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for
the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Phase 1B & 1C Subdivision

7 . Resolution No. 10671 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase Five
Solid Waste Collection Vehicles

8. pulled for discussion

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued b1 the Ciry Coancil
Page 28

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 103
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021
Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve ltems 2 -7 of the Consent Galendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

GONSENT CALENDAR ITEM PULLED FOR DISGUSSION:

8. Resolution No. 10636 - A Resolution of the City Council Approving Amendment No. 2 to
Lease Agreement with the Folsom Chamber of Commerce for the Depot Building Located
at 200 Wool Street

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino explained that she pulled this item in order to comment that she is in
support of the Chamber of Commerce continuing to lease 200 Wool Street for their office space,
but is not in support of their subletting for profit the portion of the building they are not using.

The following speaker addressed the City Council:
. Beth Kelly regarding concerns with renewal of the Depot Building lease

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10636.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): Chalamcherla, Aquino
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING:

9. Resolution No. 10672 -A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report, Confirming
the Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for Maintenance
and Servicing of lmprovements within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and
Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Landscaping and Lighting District Manager ZachPerras made a presentation and responded to
questions of the City Council.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing at7:21 p.m

The following speaker addressed the City Council
. Donald Bergst regarding the assessments

Hearing no more public comments, the public hearing was closed at7:25 p.m.

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued b1 the Ciry Coanc'il
Page 29

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 104
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021

City Attorney Steve Wang responded to questions from the City Council

The following speaker addressed the City Council
o Rahal Sriraytove regarding fees and public outreach

Landscaping and Lighting Manager Zach Perras responded to questions from the City Council

Mayor Mike Kozlowski explained the ballot process, stating that the meeting would continue
while the ballots were being counted and that the results would be read into the record later in
the meeting when completed. He called for a recess at 7:37 p.m. The meeting resumed at7:45
p.m.

OLD BUSINESS:

10. Resolution No. 10669 - A Resolution of the Folsom City Council Supporting the Regional
Water Authority's Resolution 2021-03 Regarding Extreme Drought Conditions in 2021
and Authorizing the City Manager to lmplement Any Future Reduction Requirements

Utilities Section Manager Todd Eising made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Councilwith clarification from City Manager Elaine Andersen.

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Patty Soulsby regarding incentive programs
2. Denise Attebery regarding watering grass during drought

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10669.

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

1 1. Resolution No. 10673 - A Resolution Authorizing the lssuance of Proposition 218 Notice
for Proposed Five-Year Rate Adjustment for Solid Waste

General Services Manager Marie McKeeth made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council.

The following speaker addressed the City Council:
o Muriel Brounstein asked for clarification regarding the proposed rates

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10673.

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not ffidal antil approued fut the Cig Council
Page 30

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 105
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s

):N
):N

one
one

The following speaker addressed the City Council:
. Patty Soulsby regarding solid waste rates

12. Resolution No. 10575 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Declaring
Its lntent to lnitiate Procedures to Transition from At-Large Elections to District-Based
Elections Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10010 and Authorize Related
Actions

City Attorney Steve Wang made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council.

The following speaker addressed the City Council:

1. Donald Bergst in support of district-based elections
2. Tom Rupp in opposition of district-based elections
3. Joan Normington regarding proportional ranked voting
4. Muriel Brounstein in support of district-based elections
5. Bernard Dooley in support of district-based elections
6. Mary Ann Salinovich in support of district-based elections
7. Cheryl Davis in support of district-based elections
8. Robert Dresser in support of district-based elections
9. Vijay Jonnalagadda in support of district-based elections
10. Donna McGuire in support of district-based elections
11. Paula Lee regarding proportional representation system
12. Linda Ryan in support of district-based elections
13. Dolly Sood in support of district-based elections
14, Kathryn Corbett in opposition of district-based elections
15, Scott Bailey in support of district-based elections
16. Patty Soulsby in support of district-based elections

Deputy City Clerk Lydia Konopka read written comments from the following individuals:

1. Teresa Garcia in support of district-based elections
2. Chris Yatooma in support of district-based elections
3. Eileen Chandler in support of district-based elections
4. Sharon Waddell in opposition of district-based election
5. Lois Ballard in support of district-based elections
6. John Wright in support of district-based elections

Each of the City Councilmembers shared their thoughts regarding district-based elections

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10575.

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fot the Citl Council
Page 31

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 106
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS

13. Resolution No. 10674 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Proclaiming
Existence of a Local Emergency Due To Extreme Fire Danger

Fire Chief Ken Cusano made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.
City Manager Elaine Andersen provided clarification.

The following speakers addressed the City Council:

1. Steve Brown regarding a recent fire behind his business
2. Patty Soulsby regarding fire concerns

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10674.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 9 CONTINUED:

L Resolution No. 10672 -A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report, Confirming
the Diagrams and Assessments, and Ordering the Levy of Assessments for Maintenance
and Servicing of lmprovements within Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and
Lighting District in the City of Folsom for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

City Clerk Christa Freemantle presented the results of the ballot election for the Prairie Oaks
Ranch No. 2 Landscaping and Lighting District and declared that no majority protest exists.

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10672.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued fu the Ciry Coundl
Page 32

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



Book 76 Page 107
Folsom City Council

July 27,2021
CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen thanked the Fire and Police Department personnelfor assisting
in fires throughout the state. She announced that the Annual National Night Out is coming up
and wished a Happy Birthday to Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez and Vice Mayor Sarah
Aquino.

COUNGIL GOMMENTS:

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez commented regarding fire response time goals. She
expressed interest in economic development and talked about all the summer concerts in
Folsom, commending resident Steve Heard for Jazzy Sundays. Ms. Rodriguez thanked the
Rotary Club of Folsom for their work on the Willow Springs Reservoir. She gave an update of
the Folsom Alliance for the Unhoused and thanked Jakes Journey Home for their services.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla thanked Fire Department personnel for their service. He
discussed attending an Eagle Scout Court of Honor for Andrew Grindstaff. He talked about the
Folsom Historic District Parking meeting he attended and suggested that the City speak to their
board before the agendized item comes before the City Council. He concluded by stating that
he is looking fonruard to his first National Night Out.

Councilmember Kerri Howell reported on the Regional Transit meeting and that she will be
attending the Regional Sanitation meeting and the SE Connector JPA meetings soon. She
thanked Folsom staff for overseeing the SE Connector project. Ms. Howell thanked the Fire
Department for their service and encouraged everyone to drive safely.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski thanked Folsom Fire and Police for their quick action at a recent fire in
Folsom. He talked about attending the National Night Out and an Eagle Scout Court of Honor
the same night. He finished by stating that SACOG and Sacramento Transit Authority are in
recess and will resume in August. He reminded everyone that the City Councilwill be in recess
untilAugust 24.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 10:24 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Lydia Konopka, Deputy City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial antil approued blt the Ciry Council
Page 33

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 34

08/24/2021 Item No.6.



"t."{3 Lfd t}F{.

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council designate Mayor Mike Kozlowski and Vice Mayor Sarah
Aquino as the primary and altemate voting delegates for the League of Califomi a Cities 2021
Annual Conference business meeting.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The League of California Cities 202I Annual Conference is scheduled for September 22-24 in
Sacramento. One aspect of the conference is the annual business meeting where Cal Cities
membership takes action on conference resolutions that establish Cal Cities' policy. The League
is requestingthatthe City Council designate a voting primary and alternate designated
representative who will be registered at the conference and who will be present at the annual
business meeting.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski and Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino plan to attend the Annual Conference,
and they are willing to serye as the Crty's primary and altemate designated representatives.

POLICY/ RULE
The League of Califomia Cities bylaws state that any official of a city may, with the approval of
the City Council, be named as the City's designated and alternate voting delegates to any League
meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Designation of Primary and Alternate Voting Delegates for the
League of California Cities 2021 Annual Conference Business
Meeting

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 35

08/24/2021 Item No.7.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 36

08/24/2021 Item No.7.



d. {_}l,s* {_t.sx

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council nominate Thomas Malson as the Folsom, Isleton,
and Galt (FIG) joint representative to the Sacramento Environmental Commission (SEC).
The nomination will be forwarded to the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors for
confirmation following confirmation from the cities of Galt and Isleton regarding their
support of the nomination.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Sacramento Environmental Commission (SEC) was created in 1988 in order to establish
an area-wide agency to provide analyses and advice to its member agencies for the purpose

of implementing a comprehensive environmental protection and management program for
Sacramento County.

The powers and duties of the Sacramento Environmental Commission include, in part:

To provide information and analyses and to advise the Sacramento County Board of
Supervisors and the city councils of Sacramento County for the purpose of implementing an
effective comprehensive environmental protection and management program for Sacramento
County;

To assist and advise the department in the formulation and implementation of its
programs, including, but not limited to air quality control, environmental quality control, and
hazardous and toxic material issues;

I

MEETING DATE: 81241202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Nomination of the Joint Representative for the Cities of Folsom,
Isleton, and Galt to the Sacramento Environmental Commission

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 37

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



Upon request, to aid, advise and recommend to county departments and city
departments within Sacramento County, information, programs, and measures which will
promote air quality, environmental health, andhazardous materials control; and

To assess, analyze, and recommend for approval, appropriate local measures, and
other action in accordance with federal, state, and local regulations including program
elements administered by the department in accordance with city and county policies
established by the Board of Supervisors and city councils.

Additional powers and duties of the Commission are set forth within the Sacramento County
Code and the Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.40.

POLICY/ RULE

Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 8.40 establishes that the cities of Folsom, Isleton, and Galt
(FIG) shall jointly appoint one member for a three-year term.

AIIALYSIS

Thomas Malson has served as the FIG representative under a ratified appointment since April
2019, and his term ended on June 30,2021. The vacancy was published in the Folsom
Telegraph, posted on the City of Folsom's webpage, and posted on the bulletin boards
located at Folsom City Hall. Isleton and Galt also advertised the vacancy in their regions but
did not receive any applications.

The City of Folsom received one application from Thomas Malson expressing his interest in
being reappointed to the SEC. Mr. Malson's application was forwarded to the cities of
Isleton and Galt for their respective City Council's consideration. The consideration of Mr.
Malson's reappointment will go before the Galt City Council on August 17,202I and the
Isleton City Council meeting on September 14,2021.

ATTACHMENT

1. Application from Thomas Malson

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 38

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



,

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

'lhank you for your interest in serving on a Folsom commission or committee.

F0lsnt't rllTt/ [LEf?.ii'i DEPT

10 fiti$'21suB:5ii

-r 
'l.i l, f i 'Li i) i

BdoreYouBegin:. Please read this fomr and instructions carefirlly.. Complete all pages and sign the applicrition.
. Applications remain activ.e for six months after submittal.

Return completed applicatlono to !
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, So Natorna SBeet, Folso.rrn CA 95630

Applicantlnformation: (All information is requjred)

Narne: Thomas J. Malson

ResidenceAddressl

Enailr

Phono:

Employer and Occupation:

tJmgalt@outlook.com

Retlred

Currently Sewing on a Commission/Committee? Ifyes, please specify:

Sacramento Environmental Gommisslon, FIG Representative

Folsom Resid errsy I Rcglsterei Voter Var{ficadon: Comnrission ancl Committee nembers must be
resiilents and regieteredvotere of Folsom,

Reglsteredtovote? IndicateYes / No Yes

Financial Dlsclosure / Ethicr Training:

I understand that commission antl committee membens must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committeemembers must complete ethics and
harassment training.

IadicatoYcr /No:

Yes

IndicateYes / No:

Yes

Tnuth and I certify that the info:rnation containecl on this form is true and accurete:

Signaturcl Date 09.August-Z021

Important Public Recorde Informadonr The city may receive requests from the public to rwiew documents such as

this form and the city is obligdted to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

Updatad May eozr
Page 1 of4

Page 39

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



FOI,SOM COMMISSION AI{D COMMTTTEE APPTICATTON

ApplicantName: Thomas J. Malson

Choice of Commi$ion or Commiltee :
0f you are imerested ln muldple commissions, please rank thenr numerically according to your grrefgrence)

Arts and Culture Comrnlssion

Historic District CommisFionr

Please ldentifr which seatyou qualifl for:

npreefitativewho is actirrcly tnnolrcd with hlslorlb pnorcn'adon
rqrrcaenbtive who ls a rssldent of the Hlstotls Dlsttlct
reprcscntativo who orvus a b. usiness withis the.Sutter Sbest Subarca
PlanningCommicsionen
repropotdvefto.n a Hlotori0 DisEtctbuslnggs o$tgidqthe sutto sttset sulta$d
arcltltect, laudellrape arcbltect, or other ilesign profecdoirl with eeerdse ln historic presdryation

landscaplng and Ughttng Distdct Adviso. ry Conmlteer

Pl0ase advise which L&L Dishid you livt ln:

District ofResidsncei

Librarrr Commission

Parks ard RecreaUon Commission

Planning Conmission

Traffi c Safety Comnitteer

Please identify whleb seat you guali$ for:

rqreeentative reprerenting a wide cros eection of intonests
reprrcsentative who hae demonstrated an interegt ln or a coucern'for pedestriau and bicycle oafety

UtilityCommission

X . ou,"r, Sacramento Environmental Commission (SEC)

rApplicadon Supplement Requlred:
Supplementalinformation is requiredforthe Historic DistricCommisslon,Ii4dscapeand Lighdng DistdctAdviaory
Committee, and the TrafEc Safety CommiBee. These boards have special qualification requiremeuts for certain seats.

Continueto nextpage

Page2 4

Page 40

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



FOISOM COMMISSION AI.ID COMMITTEE APPUC,ATION

ApplicantName: Thomas J. Malson

fnformational Questions: (you must answer qll fow Erestions; for sll commi$ions or committees you are applying
for)r

a. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) ficing this commiseion or commlttee:

r. Why doyou wantto ser-lre on tlris commission orcdmmittee:

I applied for thls pwltlon in November 2018 and my appolnlmgnt wae ratified by Sacramento
County Board of'Supervisoe as the Folsom, lsleton and Galt (FlG) repreeentafive in Aprll2019.
As a membor in godd standing, I am etlll e_llgiblE to ssrve and stlll have tho deslre. As you can
see, I have both ihe experlen6 and quallflcltlone to do so.

Further community involvement lncluded c,oaohlng Galt Park & Rec Girls Fast Pltch Sofiballfor
&years and I wasalso the Galt gators Swim Teant starter for horne meets, In addition, I was on the
G6ra Aquatic Center design cori'mittee, Walker Park design committee and driving C[r] Council
Member to create Galt's flrst Skate Board Park. I was also involved with the C Street overpass from
1988 until it wai finally constructed. You might also notice that my name is on the dedication plaque
on City of Galt Polie Department's Facility.

ln previous service on the Sacramento EnvironmenhlCommission, lwas Qhaiman of Saoramento
County Blue Rlbbon Panel on Weapons of Mass Destructlon efter 9/11, lt wae also during that period
that ofr County-wlde food seruloe rbstaurant lnspec-ilon program was developed.

'1. Drinkino water suoolies. studvino methodg to probct our surface water sour@e and oroundwater
basins,-lnveetigafiitg giound wa-iEr storage foi drought yeane and belng involved wltli local
groundwater batln sustainabillty plans and recharye opportunllles,

2. Climate change by reviewing dwelopmen't projects on how they include SACOG Blue Print Project
transportation goals.

3. Review and support of Sacramento County Environmental Management programs and projects.

4, To assess, anallze, and recommend for approval, appropriate local measures and other actlon in
accordance wltti federal, state and local regulatlons lncluding program elemenls admlnlstered by the
Envlronmental ManagEment Department ln accordance wlth Clty/County pollcles establlshed by the
Board of Supervisors and City Counclls.

Continueto nextpage

PageS of4

Page 41

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Thomae J. Malson

3. Briclly describe how your otperienees qualify you to servo on tle commission or comrnittee:

16-Yrs.1988-2OOZ City of Galt Plannlnq Commlsslon
Gora Aquatic Centei Design Commfiee

2-Yrs. 1987-1989 city.of GaIt No[f Eqst Area speciflc Plan commiltee (NEAsp)
1-Yrs. 1990 City of G-alt GeneralPlan Committeri Chairman
8-!rs. 1994-2902 Sacramento Environme_nlal Commissioq I$EC), Citles of Folsom, lsleton & Galt (FlG)

Chairman of Sacramento-Counly Blue Ribbon Panel on Weapdns of Mass Destniction
_ Peveloped County-Wide food srirvlce restaurant inspection program.
3-Yrs. 1994-1997 S-acramento Commission of His.toryr'and Sciende, FIG Representalive
4-Yrs. 2OO2-2OOO Elected City of Gall City Council M-ember
4-Yrs. 2002-2000 Ga lt Redev-elooment Abencrr
4-Yrs. 2OO2-200G Sacramento A'rea Goun-cilof Govemments (SACOG)
tYrs. 2002-200A CftyAnd Schools Together Gommittee (CASD
$Yrs. 2003-2006 Cily of Galt Sabty C6mmittee
2- Yrs. 2004-2005 Skate Park Committee
1- Yr. 2005-2006 Walker Community Park Deeion Commlttee
&Yrs. 2003-2006 League of Califomia Transpoftation & Communication Policy Committes
1-Yr. 2006 League of Califomia Cltiee Policy Resolution Committee Member '
2-Yrs. 2007-2009 Clty.of G.al!.Waqtq Wqlerfreatrn_gtr! Plant Upgrade Overslght Commlttee
l-Yr. 2017 -201 8 Appblnted CiW of Galt Clty Councll Member'
1 -Yr.2Q174018 Clty of Galt S-afetv Commlttee
1-Yr, 2017-2018 City of Galt, CouhcilRepresentative on FlnanclalAuditor Selection Commlttee
2-Yrs. 201912021 Sacramento Environmehtal Commlssion, (SEC), Cities of Folsom, lsteton & Galt (FlG)

+. Which commisslon or committee rreetings have you attended?

8-Yrs. 1994-2002 Saoramento EnvironmentalCommission (SEC), gities of Fqlsom, lgleton & Galt (FlG)
Representatlve & Ghairman

2-Yrs. 2019-2021Sacramento Envlronmental Commisglon, (SEC), Clties of Folsom, lsleton & Galt (FlG)
Representatlve.

Note, I have never missed one meeting.

END OFAPPUCATIONFORM

Return completed applications to :
City ClerKs Department, Folsom City llall,5o Natoma Slreet, Folsom, CA 95690

Page 4 of

Page 42

08/24/2021 Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 10675 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Amend the 2018 Contract Between the City of
Folsom and the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of
Cruelty to Animals for Shelter Services

F'ROM: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends the City Council move to adopt Resolution No. 10675 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the 2018 Contract Between the City of Folsom and
the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals for Shelter Services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SSPCA) has been providing
animal sheltering services to the City of Folsom since July I,2015. The current contract
expired on December 3 1, 2020 and has been honored in202l due to the COVID 19 pandemic.
Recently, the SSPCA asked the contract extension be memorialized in writing. Staff desires
to continue this successful contractual partnership and seeks approval to authorize the City
Manager to extend the original agreement from January 1,2021, through December 31,2021.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, professional services costing
$62,657 or greater shall be contracted for by the City Council.

ANALYSIS
The SSPCA is a non-profit organization dedicated to providing shelter for homeless, lost, or
abused pets; low-cost spay and neuter services; and public education. The organization's
mission is to "foster a loving and compassionate community for animals and people by
providing assistance, creating lifelong relationships, and saving lives."

I

Page 43

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



The city has successfully worked in partnership with the SSPCA for the city's animal
sheltering needs since July 1,2015, and desires to continue that contractual partnership.

Please note that the SSPCA contract is only for animal sheltering services. The city will
continue to provide a full-time Animal Services Officer to serve the community. The Animal
Services Officer will continue to enforce state and local laws and ordinances to protect both
the animal and human customers, respond to animal issues in the field, and provide public
education, among other duties.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The contract would extend the existing contract from January I,2021, through December 31,
2021. The city will continue to pay the rates defined in the 2018 contract. These rates would
not exceed $67,492 during the term of the agreement. The SSPCA will accept, at the city's
discretion, up to 416 antmals during the term. Excluded from this count are any animals
brought to the SSPCA for end-of-life care only and animals returned after placement or
adoption. During this extension, the city will continue to pay the SSPCA $168 per animal for
each animal above the 416 previously listed.

Any city licensing fees, impound fees, penalties, unaltered impound fees, vaccine fees and
boarding fee collected or received by the SSPCA would be remitted to the city.

This agreement is included in the FY 2021-22 General Fund (Fund 010) Budget in the Animal
Services Division.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section
15061(b)(3) (Review for Exemption) of the California Environmental Quality Act.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 10675 A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the 2018
Contract Between the City of Folsom and the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty
to Animals for Shelter Services

2. 2018 contract between the City of Folsom and the SSPCA

Submitted,

Richard D. Hillman, Chief of Police

2
Page 44

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 1.

Resolution No. 1067 5 A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to
Amend the 2018 Contract Between the City of Folsom and the

Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals for Shelter
Services

Page 45

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10675

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE 2018
CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF'FOLSOM AND THA SACRAMENTO

SOCIETY FOR THE PREVENTION OF CRUELTY TO ANIMALS F'OR SHELTER
SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SSPCA)
is a non-profit organization dedicated to providing shelter for homeless, lost, or abused pets; low-
cost spay and neuter services; and public education; and

WHEREAS, the current agreement between the City of Folsom and the SSPCA to provide
animal sheltering services for the City expired on December 31, 2020; and

WHEREAS, due to the COVID 19 pandemic, the City and SSPCA continued to perform
under the terms and conditions of the agreement during 2021; and

WHEREAS, the SSPCA and staff desires to continue this successful contractual
partnership and seeks approval to authorize the City Manager to amend the existing agreement
from January I,202I, through December 31,202I; and

WHEREAS, funds are budgeted and available inthe FY 202122 General Fund (Fund 010)
Operating Budget in the Animal Services Division.; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey;

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to amend the 2018 contract between the City of Folsom and the
Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals for Sheltering Services.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24tr day of August2l2l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski. MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10675
Page I of 1

Page 46

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Attachm erfi" 2.

2018 contract between the City of Folsom and the SSPCA

Page 47

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF'FOI-,SOM AND THE SACRAMENTO
SOCIETY FOR TI{B PRI,VtrNTION OF' CITUELTY TO ANIMAI,S FOR SFIBI,TDII

SERVICBS

THIS CONTRACT is rnade on .ianriary 1,2018, by and between the City of Folsotl, a

Murricipal Corporation (the "CITY") and the Sacramento Society for the Pt'evention of Cruelty

to Animals, a Califomia Corpolation (the "SHELTER"), collectively rel'ert'ed to as the "Patties,"

ARTICLE ONE _ DEFINITIONS

The Parties agree that the following def initions shall apply to this Contract:

Sectiol 1.01 "Contract" shall tnean the enforceable CONTRACT between the parties to

per'lblrn a service in consideration for specified conrpcnsation.

Section 1.02 "Aninlals" shall rnean dornestic atimals such as dogs, cats and domesticated

rabbits, non-indigenous reptiles and shall exclude birds, fowls and livestocl< as defined hereitt.

Section 1.03 "Annual Payment" shall rnean the arurual arnount CITY pays SHELTER lor
SHELTER's services calculated plllsuant to the telms of this Contract.

Section 1.04 "Birds" and "Fowls" shall be defined as an Animal belonging to tile class of
Aves including rnembers of the parot farnily and all game birds, including but not lirnited to

clove, quail, duck, goose, pigeon, cardinal, blue jay, robin, sparrow, blackbird and crow.

Section 1.05 {(CITY" shall mean the City of Folsom, a California Municipal Colporation,

Section 1.06 *CITY Ordinance" shall refer to Title 7 of the Folson Municipal Code as satne

may, fi'om tinre to tirne be amendeci.

Section1.07 "CITY Licensing Progrant" shall mean the CITY prograllt of licensing dogs and

cats in accordance with Folsom Municipai Code SectionT.A6 and California Foocl and

Agriculture Code Section 30501.

Section 1.08 "Contract Fees" shall mean the nronthly agreed price per Contract year for

services renderecl by SI-IELTER to CITY pursuant to this Contlact. This rate shall be calculated

by divicling the Arurual Payment by the nurtrber of rnouths (i2) r,vithin the cut:lent CONTI{AC'|
year.

Sectiol 1.09 "Facility" shall mean the facility or facilities used by SHEI-TER in providing

sheLter and other services for CITY pursuant to this Contract,

Section 1.10 "Livcstock" shall be def'ined as set lbrth in the Folsont Municipal Cocle and shall

ilclude swine, sheep, goat, horse, cattle, equiue, or bovine Arrinal.

Sectiol 1.1 I .oRetlemption Perio<I" shall mean the peliod of timc that a stray Anirlal is held at

the Facility to provide the owner tirne to reclaim arrd is defined by Folsom Municipal Clocle

Section 7.10.040(A) to be not less than seven days, ttot including tile. clay of impoutlclnrent.

lunless .sooner redeemed by the owiler.

1 folsom File No. 172-21 18-009

^' 
iliiirilffiiililfl llt nttl ttl tlt

35909
Page 48

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Section 1.12 "SHELTER" shali mean to the Sacramento Society tbr the Prevention of Cruelty
to Animals (SSPCA) and its representatives.

ARTICLE TWO - IMPOUNDMENT

Section 2.01 Facility. The SHELTER represents that its Facility shall house and process

Anirnals for CITY in a marmer for SFIELTER to meet its obligations herein as well ns meets

applicable legal requirements for Animal shelters, including all rules and regulatiotrs pursuant to

Califomia Civil Code section 1813, et sec1., including but not limited to, Civil Code sections

1834, 1834.4 and 1846.

Section 2.02 lrnpoundrnent. The SHELTER agrees that it shall accept all Anirnals brought to

its Facility by designees of the CITY, and its citizens. Such Anirnals shall be irnpounded under

the exclusive corrtrol and custody of the SHELTER for periods of time as required by law,
includirig the California Food and Agriculture Code sections 3 1 i 08 and 3 I 7 52 and Section
7.10,040 of the I,olsorn Municipal Code, and Section l.l I of this Contract, whichever provides

for a longer impoundment period. Prior to delivery to the SHELTER, the CITY shall scan for
rnicrochips or search for a CITY license and use all reasonable diligence to notify the licensed

owner, if any. CITY reserves the right to accept the surrender of any animal in the Iield. and to

impourrd, return, place or dispose of the anirnal in the CITY's sole and cornplete discretion as the

CITY deems appropriate without the consent or involvenrent of the SHEL IElt. SHEL,TER
agrees to accept the sumender of owner:ship of arr Anitral by its owner who is a resideut of the

CITY with the prior approval of the Anirnal Services Officer of tlie CITY. Any Animal not
defined in Article One shall not be delivered to the SHELTER without calling and consulting
with the SHELTER as to the feasibility of inrpoundnlent, holding, and care, or available options

for placement,

Section 2.03 Holding. Every Animal delivered to the Facility by the CITY shall beconre
property of the SHELTER to process in accordance witl, this Contract regarding iurpoundnrent
ancl redemption. The Redemption Period is defirred in Section 1.1 I above. The SHELTER
acknowledges and agrees that Chapter 7 .10 of the Folsorn Municipal Code governs the

inrpoundmerrt, disposition and adoption of all Anin-rals brought to the SHELTER by the CITY
except fbr otherwise provided in this contract. Neithel the CITY not any agency, nor agent of the

CIT'Y shall have any clairrl or right to any Anirnal not clairned aucl redeemed during the

Redemption Period. Should the CITY inform the SHELTER of its intent to continue holding an

Animal prior to 6:00 p.m. of the final day of any given hold period, the SHELTER shall cotitiuue

to hold the accepted Aninral fbr the time period requested by the CITY. l'he SHELTER shall be

solely responsible for all costs and expenses related to the accepted Animal(s) itrcuned after the

holding period.

Section 2.04 Care. The SHELTER agrees tliat it shall provicie reasonabie and appropriate care

fbr all Animais delivered to the Facility by the CITY. This includes adeciuate shelter. lbod,
water arid ali other hlttnane treatment.

Section 2,05 Veterinary Care. Unless prior author-izatiott is provided b), the CITY, the

SFIELTER's acceptance and care plovided for any injr,rred or seriously ill anitnal shall be at thc

SI-IELTER's sole cost and expense. Whenever exigent circumstances duling the "redemption
a

Page 49

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



period" (see definition at Section 1) reqr.rire tlie SI-IELTER to provide ilnrnediate emergellcy

medical care to any injured or seriously ill accepted atrirlal and sltch care is actually provided,

the CITY may, upon request and in its sole discretioir, reimburse the SHELTER for all, or pat't of
any reasonable cost and expenses associated witli the enrergency tneclical care of the anirnal. The

CITY r.urderstands that the SHELTER will not provide veterinary care to animals brought into

the Facility by the CITY. If the CITY impounds an animal that is injured or seriously ill, the

CITY will provide immediate veterinary care tll'ongh the CITY's contract provider.

ARTICLE THREE- ANIMAL DISPOSTTION

Section 3.01 Disposition Policy. The SHELTER shall have the undisputed right, consistent

with Title TooAninrals" of the Folsom Municipal Code and this Contract, to dispose of every

Anirnal given into its custody in accordance with the following policy:

The SHELTER shall have the sole and excltnive riglrt to determine the responsibility of persons

offering to become the owners of unclaimed Animals arrd the suitability of the home offered, and

shall have the sole and exclusive right to accept or re.iect such applicauts fot'unclaitrred Anirnals.

The SI{ELTER shall have the sole and exclusive right to determine if and when Animals are to

be placed or euthanized but agl'ees to rnake a good faith atternpt to place Anirnals prior to
euthanizing them.

The SHELTER shall have the right to hurnanely euthanize any Animal impounded that is found

to be physically sutTering, injured or have a comntunicable disease prior to the end of the

Redemption Period. Other treatable communicable diseases, such as Bordetella, shallbe treated

during the Redemption Period and in accordance with Section 2,05.

Section 3.02 Impoundment, Boarding and Adoption. The SI{ELTER agrees, in accot'datrce

with Section 3.01 of this Contract, that if tlie owner of an itnpounded Anirnal shall clairn the

Anirnal prior to the Redemption Period the SHELTEIT shall collect fi'om the owner the

impoundment fee(s) together with the cost of board at the cunent rate per Anirnal. Fufther, the

SHELTER shall require the owner of every impounded Anirnal to pay all applicable fees

including licensing and vaccination f-ees of an irnpounded Aninral which has not been inocnlated

and licensed, as required by Chapters 7.06 and 7.08 of tlie Folsom Municipal Code, as well as

any costs for veterinary care incurred pursuant to Section 2.05. The SHELTER shall set, in

accorclance with the law, all fees, if any, it charges to the public for an Aninial adoption.

ARTICLE FOUR.COLLECTTON OF FEES

Section 4.02 Disposition of Funds. Any CITY licensing fees, irnpottnd fees,ltnaltered fees,

boarding fees, ancl veterirrary care experlses collected or received by SHJ1LTER shall be

accorurtecl fbr sepalately and shall not be used to offset the Annual Paymeut relating thereto as

may be required irr this Coritract. Any monies paicl in owner-retirtted cases to the SHEI-TER for
imlrouldment during the Redernption Period shall be accounted fbr selrtrrately by the SHELTER,

but r,vill not be used to offset the calculation of tlie Antrual Payment, These tirnds shall be the

property of the CITY and rernitted to the CITY in accordance with this Contract.

aJ

Page 50

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Sectiorr 4.03 Waiver of Impountl F'ees. The CITY rvill allow flexibility to the SHEI",TER to

waive impourd fees fbr animals, if the owner agrees to ster:ilize their arimal.

ARTICLE FIVE- COST OF SERVICES AND FEES

Section 5.01 Fees Schedule. The CITY and SHELTER agree to the following:

(i.) During the first year of this Contract, .lanuary I,2018 to December 31 ,2018, CITY
will pay SI{ELTER an amount not to exceed sixty-four thousand eiglrt hundred
ninety-six and Zercl100s Dollars ($64,896.00) and the SHELTER shall accept, at

CITY's discretion, up to 400 Animals in this twelve (12) rnonth period. Excluded

from this count are any Alirnals brought to the SHELTER for end-o1'-lif'e care only
and Animals returned after placernent or adoption.

(ii.) During the second year of this Corrtract, January I,2019 to December 31,2019,
CITY will pay SHELTER an arnount not to exceed sixty-four thousand eight hundred

nirrety-six and Zero/100s Dollars ($64,896.00) and the SHELTER shall accept, at

CITY's discretion, up to 400 Arrimals in this twelve (12) month period. Excluded
fiom this count are any Animals brought to the SHELTER for end-of-life care only
and Anirnals retumed after placement or adoption.

(iii.) During the third year of this Contract, January 1,2020 to Decernber 31,2A20, CITY
will pay SHELTER an amount rrot to exceed sixty-seven thousand four hundred
ninety-two andZeroll00s Dollars ($67,492.00) and the SI-IELTEI{ shall accept, at

CITY's discretion, up to 416 Animals in this twelve (i2) rnonth period. Excluded
from this courlt are any Animals brought to the SI-IELTER for end-of-liI'e cate only
and Animals retumed after placement or adoption.

Section 5.02 Contract Fees. The SHELTER agrees to bill the CITY the Annual Cost of
Services and Fees in twelve equal monthly installments, City agrees to pay non-disputed
invoices, net 45, fi'onr date of receipt of invoice. The City also agrees to pay SHELTER for each

animal in excess of the yearly animal intake anrounts as established in Section 5.01 as follows:

(i.) During the first year of this Contract, Jannary 1 ,2018 to f)ecetnber 3 1, 201 8, oue

hundred sixty-two and 7.er o I I 00s Dollars ($ 1 62).

(ii.) During the second year of this Contract, January I,2019 to December 31.,2019, olte

lrundred sixty-two and Zeroll00s Dollars ($1 62).

(iii.) During the third year of this Contract, January | , 2020 to December 3 1 , 2020, one

lrundred sixty-eight and Zeroll00s Doliars ($168).

Sectiol 5.03 Livestoch. The CITY agrees that the responsibility for seizing, securiug, housing

and disposing of livestock belongs to the CITY, In the event, for any reasolt, the CI1'Y clelivers

livestock to the SI{ELTER which was seizeci iu its jurisdiction by the duly appointed agents o1'

4

Page 51

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



the CITY, the SHELTER shall be paid for actual expenses it incurs to feecl, house, tt'anspot't and

dispose of such livestock in addition to any otlter atnounts under this Conttact. SI-IELTER agrecs

to abide by all applicable law in processing livestock herertnder.

Section 5.04 Renrlering Serryices for Dead Animals. CITY shall be responsible for its own

rendering. In the event SHELTER eutharrizes any Animal clelivered by CITY residents duling its

Redernption Period, SHELTER shall appropriately store the remains for up to five (5) business

days at no cost to the CITY, during which tlie CITY shall collect the rernaius fbr disposal.

Section 5.05 Humane Investigations. Folsom Ariimal Selvices will respond to and investigate

all humane cases. Hunane investigations wlrere the anirnerl is removed flom the home due to

neglect, abuse, etc. and protective custodies where the Animal Services Officer has determined

that the animal should be inrpounded due to the absettce of a cat'etaker or the caretaker's inability
to provide for the animal shall constitute special holdings and will be charged accordingly. AII
special holdings, irrcluding rabies quarantitte, require a written release by the CITY, No anirnai

held fol humane investigation or protective custody shail have visitation by the owller unless

otherwise authorized by the Anirnal Services Officer.

Hurnane cases and bite quarantine cases that require the impoundment of an animal that reqttires

extended care or quarantine beyond the "redemption period" will be charged boai'd at thc rate of
twenty-five andZeroll00s Dollars ($25) per day per Animal. Animals held in protective custody

will be charged board at the rate of twenty and Zercll}0s Dollars ($20) per day per Animal.
Animals held for regular stay holds wiil be charged board at the rate of fifteen and Zeroll00s
Dollars ($15) per day per Animal.

The SHELTER will make every atternpt to collect irnpound fees from the animal owner at the

tirne of redemption. If collected, the CITY will only be responsible for the remaining contractual

balance, These fees will be paid to the SHELTER by the CITY in addition to the "Fees

Schedule" as outlined in Section 5.01,

Section 5.06 Software. The SHELTER shall provide the CITY with full access to shelter

software program, via internet comection or otlterwise retnotely available at the CITY offices,

ald rights to all CITY data contained therein in the event the SHELTER changes so{twat:e

vepdors. The SHELTER shall provide the CITY a minimum of two (2) users accsss to the

software program, The users shall be designated by the CITY. Sttch access shall at a nrinittrunl

allow the designatecl CITY user to vierv and print and save alJ leports arrd databases t'elatecl to

tlre Contract, inciuding, but not limited to, tlte status and disposition of all Animals deposited at

the facility. CITY's share of the costs of the software shall be fottr hundred seventy-three and

ZerollOos Doliars ($473) per month. These fees will be paid to the SHELTER by the CITY in

aclclition to the "Fees Schedule" as outlined in Section 5.01. The SFIEI-TEI{ shall provide the

City r,vith up to twenty hours trairring annually, When softrvare pl'ogram updates are to be

irlplerlented, the SHELTER shall provicie the CITY aclvance notice and support to include

trairrilg. Tlie SHELTER shall ensure that technical support is available to the CITY during this

contract lreriod. Immediately upon ternination of the contLact, or Llpon the r:equest by the CITY,

the CITY shall be entitled to all data, llles, docutnents, drau,iugs, specifications, reports,

estimates, surlrnaries, and other such material arrd propelty of the CITY as lrlay have been

prepared or accumulated to date by the SHELTER in perlbnning this corttract. SHELTER will

5

Page 52

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



be allowed to retain copies of all deliverables to the CITY. The CITY is responsible for
notifying the SHELTER of any employee changes so the SHELTER can modify access to the

software system.

Section 5,07

(a)

Report.

The SHELTER shall provide to the CITY, on or before the 20th day fbllowing
each rnonth during the term of this Contract, a report setting fbfih the following
infonnation for each Anirnal delivered by designees of the CITY, and its citizens,
to the Facility:

(i) date delivered to the SHELTER;

(iD source of delivery (rrame of Animal Services Officer, citizen, ownel'
sunender);

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(ui)

(vii)

type of Animal (cat, dog or other);

assigned identification number of Anirnal:

duration of stay at the SHELTER for each Animal delivered by the CITY;

reason for impoundment if not a stray;

total number of Animals delivered to the SHELTER for the previous
month.

(b) The SHELTER shall also provide to the CITY a report of any livestock or wildlil'e
clelivered by the de signees of the CITY, and its citizens to the Facility setting
forth:

(i) the date of delivery;

(ii) the source of delivery (nanre of Animal Services Officer, citizen, owrrel'

sunender);

(iii) the reason for delivery;

(iv) the type of livestock or rvildlife;

(u) assigned identificatiorr numbel of Anitnall

(vi) any expenses incuned to date.

Sectiori 5.08 Financial Records antl Audit. SHELTER shall ensure that all informatiou as it
lelates to nun:rber of Animals processed on behalf of the CITY, to include those impound fees or
boarding fees, unaitered fees and licerrsed fees, as well as the name of arry the person iissociated

rvith the Aninral, their address, the reason the Aninial was relinquished, and the location rvhere

the Anirnal rvas acquired or origirrated fi'om prior to being relinquish to the SHEI-TER, if known
is accurate, updated, and reviewed on a daily basis. The SFIELTER agrees to provide CITY flrll

6

Page 53

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



access to these reports. The SHELTER's financial yearly report must be accessible by the CITY
Manager of the CITY on a yearly basis. CITY reserves the rigirt to conduct its own audit of the

records of the SHELTER at any time it deems necessary for the lirnited 1llupose of verifying thc
Annual Payment and the Contract Fees relating thereto, the number of Anirnals licensed, ancl the
number and ratio of Anirnals processed on behalf of the CITY compared to the total number of
Anirnals processed by the SHELTER, the length of stay of each such Animal and the collection
of fees for various services and items.

ARTICLE STX. RABIES OBSERVATION

Section 6.01 Rabies Observation. The SHELTER agrees to accept fi'om the CiTY Anirlials for'

rabies observation and quarantine. Such Animals delivered for rabies observation shall be

isolated for a period of not less than ten (10) days frorn the date of the bite or, in the case of a
wild, stray or owrler surrendered Animal, three (3) days if the CITY, in its sole discletiorr,
decides to euthanize the Animal and send it to the Sacramerrto County Public l-iealth Services fbr
rabies testing. If such an Alimal is delivered by a CITY resident, SHELTER shall irninediately
notify the Animal Services Officer of the CITY or his/her designee of such delivery. The
SHELTER shall be responsible for the humane euthanasia, and storage. The CITY will be

responsible fbr processing, transpoft, and delivery for testing of Anirnal carcasses for suspected
rabies Animals, The SHELTER shall make available to the CITY, upon request, infbnnation
about the disposition of any rabies suspected Anirnal. The CITY shall pay the SHELTER the
appropriate fees for quarantine as identified in Section 5.05.

ARTICLE SEVEN. LEGAL HOLDS

Section 7.01 Lcgal Holds. In the event an Animal or iivestock is being held by the SHELTER
as a result of a cruelty seizure, criminal prosecution or other legal hold by the CITY, the CITY
shall reimburse the SHELTER for any veterinarian invoices and medical bills incumed by the
SHELTER until tlie Couft awards the Animal or livestock to the CITY, orders it euthanized or
orders it retumed to its owner. In no event shall SHELTER incur more tharr Two Hundred
Doliars ($200.00) in veterinarian and/or rnedical bills per Aninral under this Section without the
prior written authorization of the CITY. The CITY shall not be liable for these costs in the event
the Court orders the Anirnal or livestobk owner to pay such costs and the same are paid within
sixty (60) days of such order. If the {bes are not paid by the Animal or livestock owner, after
sixty (60) days, the CITY sliall be liable for those fees and shall remit the same upon invoice by
the SI{ELTER, In such instance, the SHELTER confers upon the CITY all rights and reme<lies

it may have by law or equity to recover such fees and costs frorn 1he owner.

ARTICLE EIGHT-CITY REPRESBNTATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS

Section 8.01 The CITY represents to the SFIELTER that, as of the date of this Contract, the

CITY requires rabies vaccination pursuant to Chapter 7,08 of the Folsonr Municipal Code. and

requires licensing of Animals pursuant to Chapter 7.06 of the Folsorn Municipal Code.

7

Page 54

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



ARTICLE NINE_ SHELTER REPRESENTATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS

Section 9.01 Hours of Operatiorr. The SHEI,TER shall keep its Facility open to the public
within the guidelines set for"th by law, under mandate or based on the operational needs of the
SHELTER in accordance with the law.

Section 9.02 Use of CITY funds. SHELTER agrees that any monies it collects on behalf of'
CITY pursuant to the terrns of this Agreement shall be handled in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Section 9.03 Residency Verification. The SHELTER shall verify the residency of citizens

depositing Animals to their facility thlough a valid CA driver's license, State issue ID, or othei'

proof of Folsom residency, evidencing a City of Folsorn address.

ARTICLE TEN.INSURANCE

Section 10.01 Evidence of Insurance Coverage. Prior to commencement of any work under
this Contract, SHELTER shall provide evidence of insurance coverages lbr gener:al Iiability, auto
and statntory worker's cornpensation set fortir in Exhibit "A" attached to this Contract, and shall
further rnaintain such insurance coverage in effect during the term of this Contract.

CITY shall provide SHELTER an additional insured endorsement that extends the CITY's
general liability insurance coverage to the SHELTER limited to coverage for the negligerit acts

of CITY employees while on SI{ELTER premises which result in actual darrage to the
SHELTER.

ARTICLE ELEVEN _ INDEMNTFICATION

Section 1 1,01 Indemnification. SHELTER shall defend, indemnify, and save and hold harmless
CITY, it's officers, agents, contractors, volurteers, elected and appointed officials, ancl

employees fi'om any claims, suits, or actiorrs of every nalne, kind, and description brought forth,
or on account of, injuries to or death of arry person (including but not limited to workers ancl the
public) or damage to property, resulting from or arising out of SFIELTER's williul niisconduct
or negligerrt act or omission while engaged in the perfonlance of obligations or exercise of
lights created by this Contract, except those matters arising f}om CITY's sole active negligence.

CITY shall defend, indernnify, and save arrd hold hamrless SHELTER. their of'ficers, agents,

contractors, volunteers, and employees f}orn any clairrs, suits, or actions of evely narne, kind,
and description brought fbrth, or on accollnt of, injuries to or death of any pelson (including but
not limited to rvorkers and the public) or danrage to property, resulting fi'orn or arising out of
CITY's willful rnisconduct or negligent act or omission while engaged in the pellblmance of
obligations or exercise of rights created by this Contract, except those mtrtters zrrising fiom
SHELTER's sole active negligence,

The Parlies intend that tliis plovision shall be broadly construed within the Iimits of state lau,,

8

Page 55

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



ARTICLE TWELVE - TERM

Section 12.01 Term. This Contract shall be for a terrn of three (3) years commencing as of the
date of approval by the goveming bodies of both parlies, Botli parties may adopt, by rvritten
agreement, an additional one year extension prior to the expiration date of this Contract. Either
party may cancel this Contract at any time without penalty upon one hundred eighty (180) days

written notice to the non-cancelling parly. In the event of termination, the CITY shall pay those
fees that accrue to the termirration date and be refunded any credits that may accme to the
termination date.

ARTTCLE THIRTEEN - DEFAULT

Section i3.01 It is expressly agreed by CITY and SHELTER that the defaults contemplated by
this section apply to the adninistrative sections of the Contract and not to any Animal care or
welfare requirements herein. Any default involving the oare and/or welfare of the Animals shall
be cured irnmediately.

Section 13.02 SHELTER Default. If SHELTER fails in any material term or condition of this
Contract, including failing to obtain or comply with applicable state Iaw requitements lbr
performing services hereunder, SFIELTER shall be in default of this Contract. Whenever CITY
determines it's ftasible, CITY will give SHELTER a reasonable amount of time to correct the
default upon written notice as to the nature of the default and the reasonable time period within
which to cure same.

if SHELTER is unable to timely cru'e a default, then CITY rnay, in its sole discretion, tenninate
this Contract and shall thereafter be excused from perfbrming any l'urther obligations under this
Contract. In addition, if SHELTER f'ails in any material term or condition of this Contract,
CITY, as its option, may temrinate this Contract, and CITY may theleafter pursue its remedies
available at law.

Section 13.03 CITY Default. If CITY fails in any material tern or condition of this Corrlract arrcl

SHELTER is not in default, SHELTER, as its option, may terminate this Contract, ancl

SHELTER may thereafter pnrsue its rernedies available at law.

hi the event the CITY fhils to remit to the SHELTER the Contract l{ate or any additional
undisputed fees and expenses due hereunder, the CITY shall be in default. The SHELTER may,
in its sole discretion, terminate this Contract for non-payrnent of undisputed fbes if the CITY has

not cured its default after sixty (60) days wriften notice.

ARTICLE FOU RTEEN-|,IOTICE.

Section 14.01 Notice. Any notice sent under this Contract except as may be otherwise explessly
required in this Contract shall be written and mailed by certified receipt requested, or serrt by
electronic or facsimile transmission confinned by mailing rvritterr confirmation at sr"rbstantially
the sarne time as such eiectronic or facsiniile transmission? ol'personally deiiverecl to an of'llcer
of the receiving pafty at the lbllorving:

9

Page 56

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



To the SHELTER:
Sacmrnento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Anirnals (SSPCA)
Attn: Chief Executive Officer
6201 Florin Perkins Road
Sacrarnento, CA 95828
Telephone: (916) 383-7387
Facsimiie: (91 6) 383-7062

To CITY:
City of Folsom Police Deparlment
Lieutenant, Neighborhood Services Bureau
46 Natoma Street
Folsorn, CA 95630
Teleplrone: (9 1 6) 35 I -3442

Section 14,02 Each parly rnay chauge its address by written notice to the other party in
accordance with this section. Any communication addressed and mailed in accordance with this
section shall be deerned to be given when so mailed, any notice so sent by electronic or facsinrile
transrnission shall be deemed to be giverr when receipt of such transrnission is acknowledged or
confirmed, and any comrnunication so delivered in person shall be deemed to be given when
receipted for by, or actually received by, the other party, as the case may be.

ARTICLE FTFTEEN.MEDIATION

Section 15.01 Mediation. Any dispute or claim in law or equity alisirrg out of this Contract or
any rcsulting transaction. including disputes or claims involving the parties to this Contract, their
officers, agents or employees, shall be submitted to neutral, non-binding mediation prior to the
contmencenent of litigation or any other proceedirrg befole a trier of fact. The parties to the

dispute or claim agree to act in good faith to participate in mediation, and to identify a mutr"rally
acceptable mediatol. Both parties to the mediation agree to share equally in its cost. If the
dispute or clairn is resolved successfully tluough the mediation, the resolution will be

documented by a written agreement executed by both palties. If the mediation does not
successfully resolve the dispute or clairn, the mediator sliall provide written notice to the parties
reflecting the same, and the parties rnay then proceed to seek an alternative lbnn of resolution of
the dispute or clainr, including tiuough a court of competent jurisdiction, in accordance rvith the
rernaining terms of this Contract and other rights and remedies affbrded to thenr by law,

ARTICLE STXTEBN-MISCELLANEOUS

Section 16.01 Licenses, Permits, :rncl Other Approvals. SHELTER represents and wararrts to
CITY that it has all licenses, pennits, qualifications and approvals of whatsoevel nature legally
required for SHELTER to perfbrn the work described herein. SFIELTER represents and

wail'arts to CITY that SHELTER shall, at its sole cost arld expense, obtairr and/or keep iri effect
at all tirnes during the term of this SHELTER any licenses, pennits, and approvals which are

legally required for SHELTER to perfbrrn the services under this Contract.

10

Page 57

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Section 16.02 Records and Inspection. SFIELTER shall rnaintain records, books, documents

and other evidence directly pertinent to the perfbrmance of rvork under this Contract in
accordance r,r'ith generally accepted accountiug principles and practices. CITY shali have the

right to access and examine such records, rvithout charge, during nonnal business hous. CITY
shali ftuther have the right to audit such records, to make transcripts there from and to inspect all
program data, documents, proceedings, and activities.

Section 16.03 Attorneys' Fees. In the event an action or proceeding is instituted by either- party
fbr the breach or enforcement of any provision of this Contract, tire ptevailing party shall be

entitled to rcasonable attorneys' fees and all litigation expenses, including, but uot lirnited to

expert's fees and disbursements.

Section 16.04 Enforceability. If any term or provision of this Conh'act is found to be void,
voidable, invalid or unenforceable by a court of cornpetent jurisdiction under the laws of the

State of California, any and all of the remaining terms and provisions of this Contract shall
remairr binding.

Section 16.05 Time. AII times stated herein, or in any other doclunent oalled for under this
Contract, are of the essence.

Section 16.06 Binding, This Contract shall bind and inure to the heirs, devisees, assignees and

successot's in interest of SHELTER and to the successors in interest of CITY in the same nlanner
as if such parties had been expressly named herein.

Section 16.07 Survivorship. Any responsibility of SHELTER for warranties, insurance,
indemnity, record-keeping or compliance with laws with respect to this Contract shall not be

invalidated due to the expiration, termination or cancellation of this Contract,

Section 16.08 Construction and Interpretation. SFIELTER and CITY agree and acknowledge
that the provisions of this Contract have been arrived at tlrough negotiation and that each party
has had a full and fair opportunity to revise the provisions of this Contract and to have such
provisions reviewed by legal counsel. Therefore, any ambiguities iri construing or interpreting
this Conh'act shall not be resolved against the drafting party. TIie titles of the various sections

are merely informational and shall not be construed as a substantive porlion of this Contract.

Section 16.09 Waiver. The waiver at any time by any party of any of its rights witli respect to a
default or other matter arising in corurection rvith this Contract shall not be deemed a wavier with
respect to any subsequent clefault ot'other matter,

Section 16.10 Severnbility. The irrvalidity, illegality or rurenforceability, of any provision o1'

this Contract shall not render the other provisions invalid, illegal or unenforceable.

Section 16.1 1 No Third Parfy Beneficiary. It is expressly rinderstood and agreed that tlie
enforceurent of these terrns and conditions shall be reserved to the CITY and SI-IELTER.
Nothing contained in the Contlact shall give or allow any claim or right of action wlratsoevet'by
ariy third party. it is the express intent of the CITY and the SHELTER that trny such person or
entity, other tlian the CITY or SHELTER, receiving benefits or services uncler tlris Conlract shall
be deerned as incidental beneficiary.

11

Page 58

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Section 16. 12 Non-Discrimination/l'{on-Preferential Treatment Statement. Irr perfbrming
this Contract, the parties shall not discriminate or grant pleferential treatmerrt on the basis of
race, sex, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, disability, ethnicity, or nationiil oligin, and shall
compiy to the fullest extent allowed by lar,v, with all applicable local, state, and fbderal laws

relating to nondiscrimination.

Section 16.13 Authority to Execute. The person or persons executing this Contract on behalf
of their respective agency warant and represent that they have the authority to execute this
Contract on behalf of their agency and further warrant and represent that they have the author:ity

to bind their agency to the performance of its obligations hereunder,

Section 16.14 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be in default by reason of any failure irr the
performance of this Contract if such failure arises out of causes beyond its reasonable control.
Such causes lnay include, but are not limited to, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of
government in either its sovereign or capacity, acts of the parly whose perfor:nance is not sought
to be excused, fir'es, flood, weather, epidemics, quarantirre restrictions, strikes, freight
ernbargoes, failue of transmission or power supply, mechanical difficulties with equiprnent
wliich could not have been reasonably forecasted or provided lbr, or other causes beyond its sole

control. The party so affected will resume perfonnance as soon as practicable after the force
majeure event terminates.

Section 16.15 Arnendment. This Contract shall not be amended, modified, or otherwisc
changed unless in writing and signed by both Parties hereto.

Section 16.16 Venue. This Contract and all matters relating to it shall be govemed by the laws

of the State of California and any action brought relating to this Coniract shall be held
exclusively in a state court in the County of Sacramento.

Section 16. i 7 Entire Agreement, This instrument and arry attachments hereto corrstitute the

entire agreement between CITY and SHELTER concerning tlie subject matter hereof and
supersedes any and all prior oral and written comrnrnications betrveen the Parlies regarding the

subject rnatter hereof.

END OF TEXT - SIGNATURE PAGE FOLI-OWS

12

Page 59

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreernent to be duly executed'

SACRAMENTO SPCA,
A California Corporation:

Date

Kr,-r At -.,..rF

(If a corporation, nrust be signed by nuo fficers of the

corporation per Corporations Code section 3 I 3')

(/ q-R/?<qz
Tax I.D. Number

Signature

Mrw6- Car
Print NarnePrint Name

Ceo c(o
Title

CITY OF'' FOLSOM, A Municipal Corporation:

Title

Evert W. P ,ci

FI"IND AV

3*/ {'"o/ {'
Date

ATTEST

NOTICE:

Manager

() '3 t'
Freemantle, City Clerk Date W- Francis, Finauce Director

OzuGINAL APPROVED AS TO CON |ENT: ORIGINAL APPROVED AS TO FO

slwlaoe l7r;,llf'
Renaud, Cirief of Police

SICNATURE(S) ON BEHALF

Date Steven City Attotney

OF SHELTER BENOTARIZED

Date

A certiticate of acknowledgtnent in accordance with tlte of California Civil Code section I I 89 must be

attached for each person executing this agt'eetnetrt on of shelter, This section provides, at part (b): I'Any

certifi cate of acknorvled gmeut taken in another place shall be sufficient in this state if it is taken in accordance with

the laws of the place rvhere the ackrrorvledgment is nrade.

13

Page 60

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



cALtFORNtA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CtVtL CODE S 1189
sd

A notary public or other officer completing ihis certilicate verifies only the identity ol the individual who slgned the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document,

State of California

County of

lr--

)

)

re me, {rsklle*On
Date

personally appeared

Here lnsert Name and Title of the Officer

lenrt*.Lh 6.A'lJlr'v- a,4
of Signe(s)

I

I

who proved to me on the basis of sati
subscribed to the within inslrument and

! Paftner - f] Limited I General
D lndividual D Attorney in Fact
I Trustee [] Guardian or Conservalor

I Padner - D Limited nGeneral
n lndividual ! Attorney in Fact
n Trustee [] Guardian or Conservator

evidence to
acknowledged to me

be the person(s)
that he/she/they

whose name(s) is/are
executed the same in

his/herltheir authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/herltheir signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I cedify under PENALW OF PERJURY under lhe laws
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and conect.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature
Signature of Notary Public

Place Notary Seal Above
OPTIONAL

Though fhl.s section is optional, completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachmeni of this form to an unintended document.

Description of Attached Document
Title or Type of Document: Document Dale:

Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity{ies) Claimed by Signer{s)
Signer's Name: Signer's Name:
n Corporate Officer - Title(s): D Corporate Officer - Title(s)

I Other: I Other:
Signer ls Representing: Signer ls Representing

@
Nolsry Publlc' ctlltorfllo

Sacramonlo
Conimlsslon t

County
2161903

@2014 National Notary Association . www.NationalNotary.org . 1 -800-US NOTARY (1 -800-876-6827) ltem #5907

Page 61

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



EXHIBIT A
INSURANCE

NOTE: The r.l,ord "Consultant" in this Exhibit refers to "Shelter" as the term is used in the

Agreement/Contract to which this Exhibit is attached.

A. During the tenn of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in fuil force and effect at

all times during the temr of the contract, at its sole cost and expense, policies of
insurance as set forth,herein:

1. General Liability:
a. General liability insurance including, but not iirnited to, plotection for claims

of bodily injury and property darnage liability, personal and adveltising injury
liability and product and completed operations liability.

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Oflice Conrmercial
General Liability coverage tbrrn CG 0001 (occurrence).

c. Claims-made coverage is rrot acceptable.

d. The lirnits of liability shall not be less than:

Each occurence: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

Products & Completed Operations: One Miilion Dollars ($ 1,000,000)

Personal & Advertising Injury: One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

e. If a genelal aggregate lirnit of liabiiity is used, the minimum general ag$egate
shall be twice the 'each occunence' limit or the policy shail contain an

endorsement stating that the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to
the project that is the subject of the contract.

f. If a products and completed operations aggregate limit of liability is used, the

mininrun prodr.rcts and comtrlleted operation aggregate shall be trvice the 'eaclt
occun'ence' lirnit or the policy shall contain an endolsenent stating that the

llroducts and completed opelations aggregate limit shall apply separately to the

project which is the subject of the contract.

g. If the Consultant inaintains highel limits than the minimutns shown above, the

City requires and shall be entitled to coverage fbr the higher limits nraintained
by the Consultant. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of tlre specified

nrinimum limits of insurance and coverage sirall be available to the City.

2. Autorrr.pbile Liability:
a, Autornobile liability insurance providing protection agairrst clairns of bodily

injury and property damage arising out of ownership, operation, rnaitttetrancc,

or use of or,vned, hired, and non-ownecl automobiles.

b. Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Serviccs Olfice Ar"rtomobile.

Liability covelage foul CA 0001, synrbol 1 (any auto).

c. The limits of liability per accidettt shall not be less thalr:

Page 62

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Cornbined Single Limit One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)

d. If Autoniobile Liability coverage, as reqllired above, is provided by the
Commercial General Liability fbnl, the General Liability policy shall include
an endorsernent providing automobile liability as required above.

3. Workers' Compensation:

a. Workers' Compensation Insurance, with coverage as required by the State o1'

Califor:ria (urrless the Consultant is a qualified self-insurer with the State ol'
Cali forni a), and Employer' s Liabil ity coverage.

b, Employer''s Liabiiity Coverage with a limit not less than $1,000,000 per:

accident for bodily injury and disease.

c. Consultant shall sign and file with the City department responsible for this
Agreement/Contract the Worker's Compensation Certificate contained in the
Project Manual.

4. Insurance Required in the Supplemplrtaty eonditiqjis: Consultant shall be required
to comply with all conditiorrs as stipuiated in the Standard Construction
Specifications, any supplemerrtary conditions and any special provisions a.s

applicable.

5. Professional Liabilitv Insurance
If required, errors and omissions, malpractice or professional liability insurance
with coverage of not less than $1,000,000 per claim.

6. Other Insurance Provisions:

a. The Consultant's General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following plovisions:

i. The City, its officials. employees, agents and volunteers shall be covered
and specifically named as additional insureds on a separate endorsement
as respects liability alising out of activities perfornred by or on behalf of
the Consultant, products and completed operations of the Consultant,
premises owned, occupied, or used by the Consultant, or automobiles
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultant in a fom acceptable
to the City Attorney.

ii, The Endorsement requirement rnay be satisfied with express provisions in
the insurance policy(ies) rvhich identifies any person or entity required to
be irrcluded as arr insured under tlie policy, A copy of the declala,rtions

page identifying the policy number, arrcl pertinent provisions in the policy
providing additional insured coverage shall be plovidecl to the City,

iii. The policy shall corrtain no special limitations on the scope of coverage

aflbrded to the City, its officials, employees, agents or t'olunteers,

b. Fol any clairns related to the project" tlie Consultant's General Liability and

Autornobile insurance coverage sliall be primary insurance in their coverage o1'

the City and its officers, ofl-rcials, employees, agents, or vollurteers, and auy

insrrance or self'-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultaut's insurance

and shall not contribute with it.

Page 63

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



c, Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies on the
part of the Consultant, including breaches of rvarranties, sliall not afl'ect
coverage provided to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents or
volunteers.

d, The Consultant's Workers Cornpensation and Employer's Liability policies
shall contain an errdorsement that waives any rights of subrogation against the
City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

e. Each insiu'ance policy shall state that covelage shall not be suspended, voided,
canceled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits, non-renewed, or
rnaterially changed except after 30 days prior rvritten notice by certified nrail
has been given to the City. Ten days prior written notice by certified mail shall
be given to the City in the event of cancellation due to nonpayrnent of
premium.

7. A*ccep-tability of lnsurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Bcsts'
rating of no less than A:VII,

8. The Consultarrt shall funrish the City with Cerlificates of Insurance aud
endorsements or insuranoe binders, signed by a person authorized by the insurer to
bind covelage on its behalf, evidencing the coverage required by this section, the
Standard Specifications, Special Provisions and/or any Supplenrentary Conditions,
The Consultant shall furnish complctc. ccrtifiecl copies of all reouirecl
insurance Dolicies, including oriqinal endorsements specificallv resuired
hereunder if req uest-ed.

9. The Corrsultant shall repofi, by telephone to the Project Manager within 24 hours,
and aiso report in writing to the City within 48 hours, after Consultant or any
Subcontractors or agents have knowledge of, any accident or occurlence involving
death of or serious injury to any person or persons, or damage in excess of Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) to property of the City or others, alising out of any
work done by or on behalf of the Consultant as part of the contract.

10, Such report shall contain:

a, the date and time of tlie occurrence,

b. the names and addresses of allpelsons involved, and

c. a description of the accident or occurrence and the nature and extent of the
injury or damage.

11. The City, at its discretion, nlay increase the amounts and types o{' insurance
coverage required hereunder at any tirne during the term of the contract by giving
30 days written notice.

12. If the Consultant fbils to procure or maintairr insurance as required by this section,
the Standard Specificatious, and any Supplementar)i Conclitions, or lails to fumish
the Citl, lvith proof of such insurance, the City, at its discretion, rnay procure any or
all such insurance. Premiunrs for such insurance procured by the City shall be
deducted and retained ti'orn arly sums due the Consultant under the contract.

13. Failure of the City to obtain such insurance shall in no wayrelieve the Consr"rltant

li'om any of its responsibilities under the contract.

14. T'he making of progress payrneilts to the Consultant shall not be construed as

Page 64

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



relieving the Consultant or its Subcoritractors o1- responsibility fol loss or direct
physical loss, damage, or destruction occurring prior to final acceptance by the
City.

15. The failure of the City to enforce in a tirnely manner any of tlre provisions o1 this
section shall not act as a waiver to enfbrcement of any of these provisions at any
time during the tenn of the contract,

16. In the event Consultant carries Excess Liability Coverage, the Excess Liability
Covemge shall apply to any and all claims related to the project on a primary aud
non-contributory basis, and the City's insurance or self-insurarlce coverage shall be
excess to the Consultant's Excess Liability Coverage.

Page 65

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 66

08/24/2021 Item No.9.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 81241202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for
the Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles

FROM: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the
Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom strives to provide police officers with mechanically sound and safe marked
patrol vehicles capable of emergency responses. The Service Delivery Plan adopted by the
City Council calls for the replacement of marked police cars at 75,000 miles. The Police
Department is currently utilizing l7 vehicles with mileage exceeding 75,000 miles; eleven of
them are marked patrol vehicles.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code requires that contracts in excess of $62,657
be awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements
for the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service or construction with one or more
public procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the
participants. Such cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited to, joint or multiparty

I

Page 67

08/24/2021 Item No.10.



contracts between public procurement units and open-ended state public procurement unit
contracts which are made available to the city.

ANALYSIS

Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs) have become an industry standard for law enforcement use since
their introduction in20l3. Ford Explorers use hybrid technology to reduce fuel consumption,
especially during idling during traffic stops and fixed post assignments where the use of
emergency lighting required constant engine use.

This purchase of six Ford Explorer police vehicles will reduce the number of marked patrol
vehicles exceeding 75,000 miles to five.

Folsom Lake Ford is offering these vehicles at the State contract price, which was obtained
through the City of Folsom Fleet Manager, Scotty Borror. This purchase represents the best
pricing and uses a source located in the City of Folsom.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The Fiscal Year202I-22Budgetincludes $500,000 for the purchase of police vehicles. These
funds are currently available inthe General Fund (Fund 010) inthe police department's budget.
The cost to purchase six Ford police vehicles is $324,614.94. Once these new vehicles are
placed in service, six police vehicles will be disposed of in accordance with City Policy.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles

Submitted,

Richard Hillman, Chief of Police

2
Page 68

08/24/2021 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. 10676

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH FOLSOM LAKE F'ORD FOR THE PURCHASE OF'SIX

F'ORD POLICE VEHICLES

WHEREAS, the City has elected to purchase six Ford police vehicles for the Folsom
Police Department; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22
General Fund (Fund 010) Budget for the purchase ofthese vehicles; and

WHEREAS' this purchase is through Folsom Lake Ford, a local vendor with pricing
from a state bid. This bid was obtained by the Fleet Manager from the City of Folsom.

WHEREAS' the agreement will be in a format acceptable to the City Attorney

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for
the purchase of six Ford police vehicles in the amount of $324,61 4.94.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this24th day of August202l, by the following roll call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers (s)

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No 10676
Page I of I

Page 69

08/24/2021 Item No.10.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 70

08/24/2021 Item No.10.



rl''{_bLe{tfl+I
(, itrrr4lrrl &i l.rtL ra

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10677
- A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with RedSky
Emergency Vehicles for four Type I ambulances.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Folsom Fire Department provides a paramedic-based level of pre-hospital emergency
ground transportation for sick and injured persons throughout all areas of the City of Folsom.
The Fire Department provides this level of service through three ground ambulances that are

staffed and deployed daily. The Department also maintains two mechanical reserve
ambulances to support community service delivery if necessary.

All ambulances currently operated by the Department have more than 100,000 road miles and
require significant maintenance to keep them in service. To maintain reliable ambulance
transport service delivery levels, the Department proposes to 'otag-on" to the ooHouston

Galveston Area Council Public Safety Project (HGACBuy)." HGACBuy is a govemment-to-
government cooperative purchasing program. Its enabling legislation allows for HGACBuy
to act nationwide on behalf of local governments, special districts, and private non-profits
providing a govemment service. This allows them to use any of HGACBUy's competitively
procured contracts for goods and services. Through this relationship, the purchaser is covered

I

MEETING DATE: 8t2412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10677 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City
Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with RedSky
Emergency Vehicles for Four Type I Ambulances

F'ROM: Fire Department

Page 71

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



by the HGACBuy procurement. HGACBuy's procurement process includes research,
preparation of specifications, pre-bid and preproposal conferences, legal notice posting and
advertising, bid/proposal review, and contract execution

The Fire Department has encountered an unexpected challenge to purchasing ambulances this
fiscal year because of chassis availability from manufacturers due to COVID. There is
currently a six to eight month waiting period to receive a chassis to begin the build process

which then is forecasted to take about five months, resulting in a Fiscal Year 2022-23 delivery
date. The Department's vehicle replacement schedule consists of purchasing two ambulances
this fiscal year (2021-22) and then two next fiscal year (2022-23) to maintain the ambulance
service delivery plan. In order to meet the replacement schedule, staff is recommending
entering into an agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles to order four Type I Ambulances
during Fiscal Year 2021-22 withpayment due on delivery in Fiscal Year 2022-23. The quote
price to purchase four ambulances is $1,280,550.

The Fire Department will be replacing three ambulances, (City vehicle #1219 a 2016 Ford
E450 with 125,531miles, #1228 a2016 Ford E450 with 125,550 miles, and#1235 a20l6Ford
E450 with 109,511 miles. Trade-in values for these vehicles have been included in the final
quote.

POLICY

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

Section 2.36.170, Cooperative Purchasing of the Folsom Municipal Code describes the
procedures to enter into a cooperative purchase agreement with another public agency for the
procurement of supplies, equipment, or service.

ANALYSIS

The primary mission of our ambulances is emergency medicine and transportation to the
regional hospital emergency departments. Fire Department staff members are firefighters who
are also licensed as paramedics. Firefighters assigned to an ambulance frequently respond to
fire, rescue, andhazardous materials incidents in both the City of Folsom and the region. The
City of Folsom's three on-duty ambulances respond to over 7,500 calls for service on an annual
basis.

The current ambulance fleet is becoming less reliable as we extend their expected service life.
Excessive maintenance issues associated with the vehicle motor, chassis, and air conditioning
systems are resulting in our frontline ambulances being unavailable for service use.

2Page 72

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



RedSky Emergency Vehicles represents ambulance manufacturers that are International

Organization for Standardization (ISO) Quality Management Standard No.9001 certified.
With this ISO certification, their minimum oostandards" exceed most of the technical
specifications submitted by the Department which will result in an increased service life,
greater fabrication standards, improved safety features, superior electrical wiring, and vehicle
paint durability. Redsky Emergency Vehicles is also a cooperative member of the HGACBuy
program.

An $ 1 1,000.00 trade-in credit is included with the RedSky Emergency Vehicles proposal. City
vehicle #I2I9, #1228, and #1235 will be used as a trade for the credit on the purchase of four
Type I ambulances.

The Fire Department consulted with the City Attorney's Office on this purchasing method.
The City Attorney's Office concurs that a cooperative purchase using the HGACBuy program
is permissible under Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code.

FISCAL IMPACT

The contract with RedSky Emergency Vehicles is $1,313,550 less atrade credit of $33,000 for
atotal of $1,280,550.

*Reflectsfour-unit order discount of 510,000 / ambulance.

The approved Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget includes $660,000 for the purchase of two
ambulances. The $660,000 will be encumbered into next Fiscal Year 2022-23, vvith an
additional appropriation of $620,550, for atotal cost incurred of $1,280,550.00. This payment
will be made during Fiscal Year 2022-23 upon delivery of the four Type I ambulances.

J

Four Braun Type I Chief XL Ambulances on2022 Dodge
Ram 5500, 4 x2, Diesel Powered Chassis

$ 303,900.00* $1,215,600.00

Trade-In Allowance, Three Type III Ambulances,
including Stryker Powerload and Stryker Gurney

o MedTec Remount 2016 chassis (109,511 miles)
o MedTec Remount 2016 chassis (125,531 miles)
o Road Rescue 2016 (125,500 miles)

$11,000.00/ea
Credit

<$33,000.00>

Loose Equipment $s,800.00
HGAC Order Fee ($1,000.00) Included
Subtotal $1,188,400.00
Sales Tax @ 7.75o/o, Sacramento County, Folsom $92,101.00
California Tire Fee, $1.75 lTire Sl2,25lea $49.00
Total Purchase $1"280"550.00

Page 73

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10677 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Purchase
Agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles for four Type I Ambulances

2. RedSky Emergency Vehicles Bid Proposal and Scope of Work

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

4
Page 74

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



Attachment 1

Resolution 10677 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase
Agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles for four Type I Ambulances

Page 75

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10677

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH REDSKY EMERGENCY VEHICLES FOR F'OUR TYPE I

AMBULANCES

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has completed extensive research and validated the need
to acquire four Type I ambulances; and

WHEREAS, staff reviewed and recommended acceptance of the proposal from RedSky
Emergency Vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the process used is consistent with the City's Cooperative Purchasing
procedures as found in FMC Section 2.36.170; and

WHEREAS, the purchase of two ambulances ($660,000) was budgeted and funds are

available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Fire Department Budget in the General Fund (Fund 010); and

WHEREAS, Fiscal Year 2021-22 Ambulance Funds will be encumbered into Fiscal Year
2022-23; and

WHEREAS, the appropriation of $620,550 will be included in Fiscal Year 2022-23 to purchase
an additional two Type I ambulances;

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement, in a form acceptable to the City
Attorney, with RedSky Emergency Vehicles to acquire four Type I ambulances for an amount not
to exceed $1,280,550.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 24th day of August 2021, by the following roll-call
vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10677
Page 1 of 1

Page 76

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



Attachment 2

RedSky Emergency Vehicles Bid Proposal and Scope of Work

Page 77

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



a
5II
uJ

oz
UJ
o
cc
u,t

[t

t24O E. Locust Street, Suite 203, Ontario CA 91761,

FOUR (4) BRAUN CHrEF XL TypE I AMBUTANCES
RAM 5500 4x2 DIESEL CHASSIS

luly 26,2O2t

Folsom Fire Department
535 Glenn Drive
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Alex & Roy:

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to provide you with a proposal for our Braun Chief XL Type I ambulances.
Attached you'll find detailed spec summaries for the proposed Type l, along with updated drawings reflecting the
changes that you requested this week. A few highlights ofthe proposed configuration that are distinctly Braun
include:

r All aluminum SolidBody'" brake-formed construction for exceptional durability and a lifetime structural
warranty

o Roof and side load testing that exceeds the required load capacity bV 3O0%
r lndustry first rollover and side-impact crash testing for the Braun module design for added assurance of

occupant safety. See videos.
o EZ Glide'" sliding door for added safety. Braun was the innovator that developed, perfected and introduced

the sliding door to the ambulance market.
o Arched roof design allows for more internal headroom, gives added strength across the top, and eliminates

water and snow pooling.
. Sprayed foam insulation on the ceiling, walls, doors, and entire underside of body provides acoustical and

thermal insulation
e VitaMax'" lighting system, with overhead LED dome lights and angled fluorescent on the streetside side

provide a bright and shadowless workspace for patient care.
. Gatorhyde protective exterior compartment coating
r Multiplex electrical system with Vista controls screens in cab and on curbside of patient module
o All Eberhard handles on module entry and compartment doors. The Braun design disengages the tie rod from

the handle when the door is locked, allowing the mechanism to 'free float" to reduce the chance of bending
or breaking the handle or tie rods, especially when pulling on a locked handle. The deep pocket and beefy
handle make it easier to grip when wearing gloves. See video.

The proposed Braun Chief XLs are configured to closely match your current fleet, including:
o Custom length - 156" to provide excellent maneuverability
c 2022 Ram 5500 4x2 diesel chassis
o Liquid Spring suspension
o Dual 710/t2V Heat / AC System with auxiliary condenser to allow cooling in station as well as while

operating
r Medvault 2,5 wifi-enabled drug locker
o Custom-sized exterior compartments for equipment storage
o Vanner inverter / battery charger, 1100 watt
o Opticom infrared traffic control system
r Ceramic temperature control coating
o EZ 02 oxygen cylinder holder / loading system
. Custom cabinets at the foot of the squad bench
o Custom angled cabinet with controls and radio mounting on curbside interior
. Custom ALS cabinet configuration
r Stryker PowerLoad cot retention system
o Stryker PowerPro XT powered cot per attached specifications

RedSky Emergency Vehicles 866,500.5948 O redskyemergency.com

Page 78

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



1,240 E. Locust Street, Suite 203, Ontario CA 9L761,

a
UJJ
aI
lu

Oz
Iu
otr
LLJ

uJ

r Paint and graphics to match current fleet
o Pre-construction trip for four (4) department representatives to Braun in Van Wert, OH
o Final inspection trip for five (5) department representatives to Braun in Van Wert, OH

We understand that keeping your ambulances on the street and productive is vital. For that reason, our focus is

ensuring fast, convenient service. ln your area, our service partner with D'Erotic Emergency Equipment in Rancho
Cordova. They have a great deal of experience in emergency vehicle repairs and have EW certified mechanics on
staff, lt's also worth noting that Braun offers excellent warranty coverage. Details are below and attached. To
arrange warranty service, you just call us and we handle everything.

Braun Standard Warranties (see attached):
r Structural: Lifetime, transferable module structural warranty
o Conversion: 3 years/35,000 miles
. Multiplex Electrical: 7 years/84,000 miles

We are pleased to extend the following prices for your consideration:

Pricing:

Description Unit Price Total Price

Four (4) Braun Chief Xt Type I Ambulances, 2022 Ram 5500 4x2
diesel chassis, per attached spec summary

Trade-ln Allowance, Three (3) Type lll ambulances, including
Stryker PowerLoad and Stryker cots:
o Vin #1FDXE458cDC33820 / MedTec Remount 2016 chassis /

Current mileage: 108,800
o Vin #1FDXE4FS3cDCt92L2 / MedTec Remount 2016 chassis /

Current mileage: 124,600
o Vin # 1FDXE4FS8GDC24437 / Road Rescue New 2016 /

Current mileage: 122,600

Loose Equipment

HGAC Order Fee

Sub-Totol

Sales Tax, 7.75%, Sacramento County, Folsom

California Tire Fee, S1.75 / Tire

Total

$303,9oo.oo"' S1,215,600,00

-s33,ooo.oo

s72.25

S5,8oo.oo

lncluded

57,188,400.00

s92,101,00

s49,00

$!,z8o,55o-oo

*Reflects four-unit order discount of $10,000 / ambulonce.

Payment Terms: Payment shall be made directly to RedSky Emergency Vehicles or as directed by RedSky

Emergency Vehicles.

150 - 180 days after receipt of chassis at Braun lndustries, Van Wert OH

The Seller shall not be liable for failure to deliver or for any delay in delivering the motor vehicles
covered by this agreement where such failure or delay is due, in whole or in part, to any cause

beyond the control or without the fault or negligence of the Seller, Delays from the chassis

manufacturer will result in extended delivery time, as will changes to this contract once the order

Delivery:

RedSky Emergency Vehicles 866.500.5948 O redskyemergency.com

Page 79

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



a
5
aI
llJ

oz
ul(,
tr
uJ

lu

1,240 E. Locust Street, Suite 203, Ontario CA9176t

has been placed with Demers Ambulance. Additions or deletions may be made if the vehicle has

not passed that point in production at the time of change.

Delivery Terms:

Sales & Use Taxes:

FOB Folsom Fire Department, Folsom, CA

The price for the motor vehicle specified in this agreement does not include Use Taxes (Federal,

State, or Local) unless expressly stated. Purchaser assumes and agrees to pay, unless prohibited by

law, and such Use, or Occupational Taxes imposed on or applicable to the transaction covered by

this agreement, regardless of which party may have primary tax liability,

Validity: August 75,202I

Thank you for this opportunity, and we look forward to future discussions about your ambulance needs. Please do
not hesitate to contact me with any questions. I can be reached at 304.839.4051 anytime.

Respectfully,

Kirsten Skyba
VP - Operations & Customer Service

RedSky Emergency Vehicles 866,500,5948 O redskyemergency.com

Page 80

08/24/2021 Item No.11.



p"rrctl.c l1 t.{YL,t,
-t ttl'$r*tj*!

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council pass and adopt the following Resolution:

ResolutionNo. 10678 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-07-20 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The rapid spread of the novel coronavirus2019 (COVID-19) throughout Califomia and the
United States caused Governor Newsom to declare a state of emergency on March 4,2020.
The Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ratified the declaration of a state of emergency
by the County Health Officer on March 10,2020, and the Folsom City Council made a
similar declaration of a local emergency on March 16,2020.

Pursuant to the declaration of a local emergency by the City Council, several Emergency
Orders were issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services (City Manager) to assist
Folsom residents and businesses through this worldwide pandemic.

POLICY / RULE

Rules and regulations issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services must be
confirmed by the City Council at the earliest practicable time. Folsom Municipal Code
S ection 2.28.0 40 (E)(I).

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10678 - A Resolution of the City Council
Confirming Emergency Order DES-07-20 Issued by the Director
of Emergency Services

FROM: City Attorney's Office

Page 81

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



ANALYSIS

On the basis of the City Council declaration of a local emergency, the City's Director of
Emergency Services is empowered to make and issue rules and regulations on matters
reasonably related to the protection of life, environment and property as affected by such
emergency, and that such emergency rules and regulations must be confirmed by the City
Council at the earliest practicable opportunity.

Emergency Order DES-01-20 issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services on March
20,2020 (confirmed by the City Council on March 27 ,2020) waived rental payments for
rental or lease of City facilities under a formal written lease agreement or concessionaire
agreement from March20,2020 to May 3I,2020. The temporary waiver was extended to
the termination of the local emergency by Emergency Order DES-04-20 dated May 1,2020
(confirmed by the City Council on May 12,2020).

As of June 15,2021, Governor Newsom terminated the executive orders that put into place
the stay home order and the Blueprint for a Safer Economy, and lifted the COVID-19
restrictions pertaining to physical distancing, capacity limits on businesses, and the County
tier system. The "re-opening" of California has resulted in an increase of business activities
from pent-up customer demand over the past year.

Accordingly, the City's Director of Emergency Services issued Emergency Order DES-07-20
on August 5 , 2021 to resume collection of payments for rental or lease of City facilities
starting September 1,2021. Notices were given to renters, lessees, and concessionaire in
advance.

Emergency Order DES-07-20 is being presented to the City Council for confirmation
consistent with Section2.28.040(Ex1) of the Folsom Municipal Code.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Costs and expenses associated with emergency response actions are budgeted in the City's
General Fund, which may be reimbursable under the State and Federal emergency
proclamations.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10678 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-07-20 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services

2

2. Emergency Order DES-07-20

Page 82

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



Respectfully submitted,

Steven W*g, City Attorney

J
Page 83

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



Attachment 1.

Resolution No. 10678 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming
Emergency Order DES-07-20 Issued by the Director of Emergency

Services

Page 84

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10678

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL CONFIRMING
EMERGENCY ORDER DES.O7.2O ISSUED BY THE

DIRECTOR OF' EMERGENCY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed on March 4,2020 a

State of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat from the rapid spread of a

respiratory illness caused by novel coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19); and

WHEREAS, Sacramento County has documented community transmission of COVID-
19, with multiple cases of diagnosed patients and fatalities, and the County Health Offrcer has

cautioned that the rapid transmission of COVID-l9 poses an ongoing risk and likelihood of
additional patients in Sacramento County; and

WHEREAS, on March 10,2020 the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ratified
the County Public Health Officer's Proclamation of Local Public Health Emergency in
Sacramento County due to the threat to public health and safety from COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10408 and
proclaimed the existence of a local emergency in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, following the City Council proclamation of a local emergency, and based

on the authority in Section 2.28.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code, the City's Director of
Emergency Services issued Emergency Orders that temporarily waived rental payments for
rental or lease of City facilities under a formal written lease agreement or concessionaire
agreement until termination of the local emergency; and

WHEREAS, as of June 15, 2021, Governor Newsom terminated the executive orders
that put into place the stay home order and the Blueprint for a Safer Economy, and lifted the
COVID-l9 restrictions pertaining to physical distancing, capacity limits on businesses, and the
County tier system, resulting in an increase of business activities; and

WHEREAS, the City's Director of Emergency Services issued Emergency Order DES-
07-20 on August 5,2021to resume collection of payments for rental or lease of City facilities
starting September 1,2021; and

WHEREAS, rules and regulations issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services
shall be confirmed by the City Council as early as practicable under the circumstances of the
emergency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that Emergency Order DES-07-20 is hereby confirmed, and all actions taken in furtherance
thereto are hereby ratified and approved.

Resolution No. 10678
Page I of2 Page 85

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this24n day of August,2\2l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10678
Page2 of2 Page 86

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



Attachment 2.

Emergency Order DES-07-20

Page 87

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



CITY OF'IIOLSOM ,r
I

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER I rO ilATOTIA STREET, FOLSOM, CA 95630 I WWWFOLSOM.CA.US F'OLsl(oll{
lltrl.rrrvr ar r.rrta

EMERGENCY ORDER
DES-07-20

Pursuant to the Proclamatlon of a State of Emergency by California Governor Gavin Newsom on
March 4, 2O2O in response to the rapid spread of the novel coronavirus (COVID-l9), the
Governo/s Executive Orders (including but not limited to N-33-20), the City's Proclamation of a
Local Emergency dated March L6,2020, and Government Code Section 8634, I hereby issue the
following Order:

L. Section 11of Emergency Order DES-04G20 dated May 1,2020 is hereby modified as follows:

Temporary waiver of rental payments for rental or lease of City facllities under a
formal written lease agreement or concessionalre agreement due and payable to the
City, as described in Emergency Order DES-01-20, shall be extended untilAugust 31,
2021. Contractualobligations to make rental and lease payments resume September
L, zozL, and the payments are due and payable on the due date specified in the
written rental, lease, or concessionaire agreement.

Failure of any person to comply with this Order and any order lssued by a law enforcement officer
pursuant to this Order constitutes an lmminent threat to public health.

This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rlghts or benefits, substantive or
procedural, enforceable at law or in equity, against the City of Folsom, its departments, officers,
employees, or any other person.

lf any provision of this Order to the application thereof to any person or circumstances is held to
be invalid, the remainder of the Order, includingthe application of such part or provision to other
persons or circumstances, shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. To this
end, the provisions of thls Order are severable.

This Order shall be filed in the City Clerk's Offlce and glven widespread publlclty and notlce.

tT ts so
DES-07-20

Elaine Andersen
Clty Manager
Dlrector of Emergency Services

By:Date: August5,2OZt

FOLSOM, CA _ INCORPORATED 1946

Page 88

08/24/2021 Item No.12.



fffi
.L'{_b;1, }+ tb,hf

'I

(, &tr.rltrra lr l{l!,rtt

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10679- A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order
with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal
Year2020-21 Project, ProjectNo. PWl801, and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In April 2021, City Council approved a contract (Contract No. 174-21 2l-028) with Siena
National Construction, Inc. to perform the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year
2020-2I Project. The project began in May 2021, and is currently 90o/o complete, with an
expected completion date of September 30, 2021. The original project is anticipated to be
completed within the original budget, however the city has requested additional items of work
to be included, as detailed below:

1. Additional ADA Ramp Replacements - The City was contacted by a resident whose
dependent family member is severely disabled and was having a difficulttime walking
around the block due to outdated and non-compliant ADA ramps. It was determined
that the installation of four updated ADA ramps at these locations would have a direct
and profound effect for this resident. Additional cost of $31,736.

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10679- A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order with Siena
National Construction, Inc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk
Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project, Project No. PWl801,
and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Public Works Department

Page 89

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



2. Lew Howard Park Walkway Replacement and Retaining Wall Construction - The
original item of work included 4,000 square feet of walkway replacement through Lew
Howard Park. Upon removal of the asphalt walkway adjacent to the playground, it was
determined that the existing wood retaining wall was not structurally sound and
replacement of the retaining wall would be required prior to the walkway replacement.
City engineering staff designed and negotiated the additional cost of this retaining wall
and metal railing. This item will include an additional 1,540 square feet of concrete
walkway to finalize all the walkway replacements adjacent to the wall and throughout
the park. Additional cost of $55,040.

3. Concrete Access Road (APN 072-0032-002) - As part of the East Bidwell Street
Widening and Sidewalk Project it was necessary for the city to acquire additional right-
of-way at the subject parcel. The acquisition of this property required the use of
Eminent Domain. As part of the executed judgement in this case (Case No 34-2019-
00254912) the City is required to construct a concrete access road to match the pre-
project slope of the property access. City staff designed and negotiated the additional
cost to construct this access road. The cost of the access road is $17,164 and will be
funded by the East Bidwell Widening and Sidewalk Project.

The total for all three projects is $103,940.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that
contracts for supplies, equipment, services and construction with an estimated value of $62,657
or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The costs for these additional items of work are in line with the existing project unit prices and
commonly expected costs for the various items of work. Staff has reviewed all project changes
and recommends the approval of this project change order. The change order would be in the
amount of $103,940.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The City Council's approval of Resolution No. 10610 authorized the execution of the original
contract with Siena National Construction, Inc. for $669,269, with the project budgeted for a
total of $736,196, which included a ten percent contingency in the amount of $66,927 for
potential change orders.

If approved, this change order request would increase the total project budget by $103,940 to
$840,136.

2
Page 90

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



Fund Project Amount

Fund 235
SB-1

Street Overlay/Pavement Management
(Project No. 008017)

$ 31,736

Fund 240
Parks & Recreation

Parks and Recreation - Park Renovation
(Project No. 009316)

$ 55,040

Fund446
Transp. Impact Fees

East Bidwell Widening and Sidewalk
(Project No. 001603)

$ 17,164

Total Contract Chanse Order Amount $ 103,940

The funding for the change order with Sierra National Construction, Inc. contract would be as

follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been deemed categorically exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENT

1. Resolution No. 10679- A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Contract Change Order with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Neighborhood
Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project, Project No. PWl801, and
Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

J
Page 91

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. 10679

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER WITH SIERRA NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION, INC.
FOR THE NEIGHBORHOOD SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2O2O.2I

PROJECT' PROJECT NO. PW1801, AND APPROPRIATTON OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a contract with SienaNational Construction, Inc.
in April 2021to perform the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to replace additional locations of ADA curb
ramps; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to construct a concrete access road at APN 072-
0032-002, as required by the executed judgement in the Eminent Domain case (Case No. 34-2019-
00254912) associated with the East Bidwell Widening and Sidewalk Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to replace the existing deteriorated wooden
retaining wall around the Lew Howard Park playground with a concrete retaining wall, metal
railing and additional areas of concrete walkways; and

WHEREAS, funds in the amount of $55,040 are budgeted and available in the Parks and
Recreation Fund, Park Renovation (Fund 240,Project 009316), for Fiscal Year 2020-21; and

WHEREAS, additional appropriations will be required in the amounts of $31,736 from
the SB-1 Fund (Fund235, Project 008017) and $17,164 from the Transportation Impact Fund
(Fund 446, Project 00 1 603) for a total proj ect budget of $840, 1 3 6; and

WHEREAS, the change order will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract change order with Sierra National Construction,
Inc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project in the amount of
$103,940, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $840,1361' and

BE IT F'URTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to appropriate
$31,736 from the SB-1 Fund (Fund 235, Project 008017) and $17,164 from the Transportation
Impact Fund (Fund 446,Project 001603) for the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year
2020-21Project, Project No. PWl801, for atotal project budget of $840,136.

Resolution No. 10679
Page I of2

Page 92

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24th day of August,2\2l,by the following roll-call vote:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10679
Page2 of2 Page 93

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 94

08/24/2021 Item No.13.



it'rt0.LS{-0tr:L

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No.
10680 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement with TYMCO,
Inc. for the Purchase a Street Sweeper.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department Street Maintenance Division operates a sheet sweeping program for
the City of Folsom and sweeps approximately 420 curb miles of curbed streets each year. Street
sweeping keeps city streets looking well-kept by collecting and removing paper, leaves, and other
debris that collect in gutters. This minimizes the risks of blocked storm water facilities that may result
in localized flooding during heavy rains and allows the City to remain in compliance with its National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System OTPDES) permit. Additionally, street sweeping reduces dust
and is an effective method of removing metal particles and other hazardous waste products left by
passing vehicles.

The Street Maintenance Division normally operates with two street sweepers, one as the main sweeper
and one as backup. Recently the backup sweeper was sold due to down time and repair costs

increasing. The purchase of a new sweeper will allow the current sweeper to be rotated to the backup
position and the new sweeper utilized as the main sweeper. During the fall season both sweepers are

utilized on most days to pick up leaves to prevent them from blocking the storm water facilities.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with TYMCO, Inc. for
the purchase of a street sweeper for the Public Works Street Maintenance Division. The cost for

I

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10680 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with TYMCO, Inc. for the
Purchase of a Street Sweeper

F'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 95

08/24/2021 Item No.14.



the purchase of the new street sweeper will not exceed $31 1,096.88. Sufficient funds to purchase

the street sweeper are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Public Works Fund (Fund
023).

POLICY / RULE

Section 236.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies, equipment,

services, and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by the City
Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for the
procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public procurement
units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

HGACBuy is a national cooperative purchasing program of which the City of Folsom is a member.
The City has purchased items through HGACBuy in the past. TYMCO, Inc. has a current contract
with HGACBuy for street sweepers at a price that has been assessed to be fair, reasonable and
competitive. HGACBuy contract number SW04-20 will be utilized for the purchase of the street
sweeper. The total price for the street sweeper, including tax and delivery, is $31 1,096.88.

FINAI\CIAL IMPACT

A total of $325,000 has been appropriated within the Fiscal Year 202I-22 Public Works Budget
for the purchase of a street sweeper. The Department is requesting that the new contract be

authorized for a not to exceed amount of $311,096.88. Sufficient funds to purchase the street

sweeper are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22Public Works Fund (Fund 023).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10680 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with TYMCO, Inc. for the Purchase of a Street Sweeper

Submitted,

1

2

Dave Nugen, Public Works Director

Page 96

08/24/2021 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10680

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH TYMCO,INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF A STREET SWEEPER

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has validated its need to purchase a street
sweeper based on an approved replacement and expansion schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase will be made through HGACBuy, which used its recognized
cooperative purchasing agreement to award a contract to TYMCO, Inc. in an amount not to exceed

$31 1,096.88; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available in the Fiscal Year202l-22Pvblic Works Fund
(Fund 023) Budget which included $325,000 for the purchase of a street sweeper; and

WHEREAS' staff iecommends the execution of a contract with TYMCO, Inc. for the
purchase of a street sweeper; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with TYMCO, Inc. to purchase a street
sweeper for the Public Works Department at a not to exceed amount of $3 1 1,096.88.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24h day of August2}2l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10680
Page I of I Page 97

08/24/2021 Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 98

08/24/2021 Item No.14.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 8/2412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No.10681 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Design Consulting Services Agreement
with Kimley-Hom and Associates for the Mangini Ranch Trails
Project in the Folsom Plan Area

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10681 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design Consulting Services Agreement with
Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Mangini Ranch Trails Project in the Folsom Plan Area.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The project is located within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) Mangini Ranch
development bounded by Alder Creek Parkway to the north, Old Placerville Road to the east,

East Bidwell Street to the west, and White Rock Road to the south. The FPASP includes over
30 miles of planned trails. With construction of both phases of the Mangini Ranch
development underway, and many phases completed, staff decided to commence the design
process for the three miles of trails within the development to connect the trails to parks,

schools, and other FPA neighborhoods. The trail alignments through this new residential
development were approved as part of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and the Mangini
Ranch development proj ect approvals.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, Public Works projects or
purchases costing $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by the City Council.

ANALYSIS
Parks and Recreation Department staff prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the
Mangini Ranch Trails project. On June 11,202I, the RFP was distributed to qualified design
consultants and on July 9, 2021, four proposals were received. A full review was performed

1

Page 99

08/24/2021 Item No.15.



by staff from both the Public Works and Parks and Recreation departments. While all of the
consultants met the minimum qualifications, three were selected for the final interview
round. Of the consultants who participated in the interview round, one was determined to be
more qualified than the others based on ranking and in-person interviews. Kimley-Horn and
Associates was selected based on their proposal and interview and due to their expertise,
understanding of the project, identification of potential issues, and cost proposal.

The four proposals received with rankings are as follows:

Firm Kimley-Horn
Dokken

Engineering
R.E.Y

RRM Design
Group

Rankine 1 2 J 4

Cost Proposal $180,239.s0 $182,540 $68,560 $109,850

Although Kimley-Hom and Associates did not submit the lowest cost proposal, their
familiarity with the Mangini Ranch development and the Folsom Plan Area scored them the
highest of all the proposals submitted.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The Mangini Ranch Trails project will be funded through the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital
Improvement Plan, which included funding in the amount of $920,000 for FPA trails design
and construction.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The City, as lead agency, previously certified an EIR/EIS for the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan (FPASP). Subsequently, the City determined that the Mangini Ranch Subdivision
project, including the trails, was entirely consistent with the FPASP. In reviewing this
project, staff has determined that none of the events specified in Public Resources Code
section 21166 has occurred. Therefore, the proposed project is exempt from CEQA as

previously determined per Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section
15182.

ATTACHMENT
1 . Resolution No. 10681 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design

Consulting Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Mangini Ranch
Trails Project in the Folsom Plan Area

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione,
Parks and Recreation Department Director

2
Page 100

08/24/2021 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. 10681

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A DESIGN
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KIMLEY.HORN AND ASSOCIATES

FOR THE MANGINI RANCH TRAILS PROJECT IN THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA

WHEREAS, on June 11,2021, staff released a Request for Proposal to qualified
consultants for design services for the Mangini Ranch Trails Project; and

WHEREAS, on July 9,2021, staff received four qualified proposals; and

WHEREAS, on August 10,2021, Kimley-Horn and Associates was selected based on
their qualifications and experience in planning and engineering design services; and

WHEREAS, the agreement shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorneyi and

WHEREAS, the trail connection projects were included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital
Improvement Plan, which included funding in the amount of $920,000 for FPA trails design and

construction utilizing impact fees generated in the Folsom Plan Area; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute a Design Consulting Services Agreement with Kimley-
Horn and Associates for planning and design services for the Mangini Ranch Trails Project for a
total not-to-exceed amount of $180,239.50.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24h day of August2}2I,by the following roll-call vote

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10681
Page 1 of 1 Page 101

08/24/2021 Item No.15.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 102

08/24/2021 Item No.15.



Folsorn City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Deparfinent recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10682 - A resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute Program Supplement
Agreement 000000X28 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the
Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2, Project No. PWl901, State Project No.
s288(047).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In early 2017, the City identified a collapsed segment of the storm drain system that flowed
adjacent to Natoma Street between Bridge Sfreet and Scott Street. The alignment of this
drainage system weaved in and out of private property with very few access points for
maintenance. In September of 2017 City Council authorized construction to realign the storm
drain system to keep it within public right of way as much as possible. Construction was
completed on that project in April 2018.

During the design phase of the initial project, field investigations identified additional pipe
offsets and corrosion issues with downstream segments of ths storm drain system between
Scott Street and Riley Sfieet. Additional deficiencies include the existing pipe alignment on
private properly and a lack of access points for necessary inspections and maintenance. The
City developed the Natoma Street Drainage Phase 2 project to continue making improvements
to the storm drain system to ensure it functions as designed. The initial scope of work

I

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10682 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement 000000X28
to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the
Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2, Project
No. PWl901, State ProjectNo. 5288(047)

F'ROM: Public Works Department

Page 103

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



authorized by City Council in May of 2020 consisted of an alternatives analysis considering
hydraulic capacity, environmental impacts, construction cost, construction duration and
impacts to the public. In January 2021, City Council authorized a contract to complete final
design and bid document preparation. Final design is expected to be complete in September
2021 and the project is anticipated to be advertised for construction in November 2021 with
construction slated to begin in the Springof 2022.

The California Transportation Commission approved SB-l funding for construction of the
Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Phase 2 Project at the June 2021 CTC meeting.

POLICY / RULE

Execution of an Administering Agency-State Agreement and or Program Supplement
Agreement requires City Council approval.

ANALYSIS

The City of Folsom is required to execute the Program Supplement Agreement with Caltrans
Local Assistance to proceed with the construction of the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement
Project Phase 2. This project is eligible for a reimbursement from Senate Bill No. I (SB-1)
Funds.

The City must invoice Caltrans in order to receive any Federal or State reimbursement. Prior
to invoicing Calhans, the City must approve a Program Supplement Agreement for the project.
This is a Caltrans standard form that has previously been approved by the City Attorney for
other projects, including:

r Folsom Boulevard Improvements
r Historic Folsom Station Phase I Project
o Street Repair and Resurfacing Project - 2005 Phase I
o Street Repair and Resurfacing Project-2004 Phase Il
o Folsom/El Dorado Transit Conidor Study
o Rainbow Bridge Rehabilitation
o US 50/East Bidwell Street Interchange
o Riley Street Extension
o Folsom/Auburn Road Widening Projects
r Green Valley Road Widening

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2 was included in the Fiscal Year
2021-22 budget for $750,000 utilizing Measure A (Fund 276) and SB-1 RMRA (Fund 235)
funds. The additional SB-l LPP funds would require a100Yo match of local funds utilizing the
Measwe A funds. The funding summary for construction is as follows:

2

Page 104

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



SB-I LPP
Local Match (Fund 276)
SB-1 RMRA (Fund 235)

$380,000
$500,000
$250,000

Total Project Funding $1,130,000

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

As part of the design phase, it was determined that construction of this project can be done
under a Categorical Exemption classification of the CEQA Guidelines, and no further
environmental analysis will be required.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10682 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Program Supplement Agreement 000000X28 to Administering Agency-State
Agreement 03-5288521 for the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2n

Project No. PW1901, State Project No. 5288(0a7)

2, Unsigned Program Supplement No. 000000X28 to Administering Agency.State
Agreement 03'5288521 for the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2,
Project No. PWl901, State Project No. 5288(047)

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUB C DIRECTOR

3

Page 105

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10682

Page 106

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 10682

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT OOOOOOX28 TO ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE

AGREEMENT 03-5288521 FOR THE NATOMA STREET DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT PHASE 2, PROJECT NO. PW1901, STATE

PROJECT NO. s288(047)

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to continue rehabilitation of the existing drainage
system in the Natomas Street area; and

WHEREAS, the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2 is included in Fiscal
Y ear 2021 -22 budget; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom is programmed to receive SB-l funding awarded at the June
2021 California Transportation Commission meeting and is eligible for state reimbursement; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will execute Master AgreementNo. 03-5288521 concurrently
with this Program Supplement Agreement for State-Funded Projects with the State of California
Department of Transportation in order to receive the funding; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will execute a Program Supplement 000000X28 to
Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for State ProjectNo. 5288(047), City ProjectNo.
PWl901; and

WHEREAS, the matching funds for SB-1 Local Partnership Program (LPP) Funding will
utilize Measure A (Fund 276) funds; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement 000000X28 to Administering
Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2,
Project No. PW190l, State Project No. 5288(047).

PASSED AftD ADOPTED this 24th day of August2l2I,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10682
Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 107

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



Attachment 2

Unsigned Program Supplement

Page 108

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT NO. OOOOOOX2S

to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE AGREEMENT
FORSTATE FUNDED PROJECTS NO 03.5288521

Adv Project lD Date: July 13,2021
0321000145 Location: O3-SAC-o-FOL

Project Number: LPPSBIL-5288(047)
E.A. Number:

Locode: 5288

This Program Supplement, effective 0612312021, hereby adopts and incorporates into the Administering Agency-State
Agreement No. 03-5288521 for State Funded Projects which was entered into between the ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and the STATE with an effective date of and is subject to all the terms and conditions thereof. This
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is executed in accordance with Article I of the aforementioned Master Agreement under
authority of Resolution No. approved by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY on (See
copy attached).

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY further stipulates that as a condition to the payment by the State of any funds derived
from sources noted below encumbered to this project, Administering Agency accepts and will comply with the Special
Covenants and remarks set forth on the following pages.

PRoJECT LoGATIoN: lAlong Natoma Street from Scott Street to Riley Street and along Riley Street from Natoma
Street to Mormon Street. Th

TYPE OF WORK: Drainage lmprovement

Estimated Cost Funds

SB1 funds $380,000.00
OTHER

$250,000.00

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Department of Transportation

By

Chief, Office of Project lmplementation
Division of Local Assistance

Date

$1,130,000.

ctw oF FoLsoM

By

Title

Date

Attest

State Funds
LOCAL

$500,000.0c

I hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance

$380.000.00Accounting Officer

Program Supplement 03-528-X28- SERIAL

oate? (za lz-t

Page 1 of3

Page 109

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



03-sAc-0-FoL
LPPSBl L-5288(047)

3.

1

2

4.

5.

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

All obligations of STATE under the terms of this Agreement are subject to the
appropriation of resources by the Legislature and the encumbrance of funds under this
Agreement. Funding and reimbursement are available only upon the passage of the State
Budget Act containing these STATE funds.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices at least once every
six months commencing after the funds are encumbered for each phase by the execution
of this Project Program Supplement Agreement, or by STATE's approval of an applicable
Finance Letter. STATE reserves the right to suspend future authorizations/obligations for
Federal aid projects, or encumberances for State funded projects, as well as to suspend
invoice payments for any on-going or future project by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if
PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month
period.

lf no costs have been invoiced for a six-month period, ADMINISTERING AGENCY
agrees to submit for each phase a written explanation of the absence of PROJECT
activity along with target billing date and target billing amount.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty (180) days of PROJECT
completion. Failure of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final Report of
Expenditures" within 180 days of PROJECT completion will result in STATE imposing
sanctions upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the current Local
Assistance Procedures Manual.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit PROJECT specific award information,
using Exhibit 23-A o'f the LAPG, to the STATE's District Local Assistance Engineer
(DLAE) immediately after award of contract, and prior to first invoice submittal. Failure to
do so will delay processing invoices for the construction contract. As a minimum, the
award information should include the following information: project number, Advantage
lD, project description, date funds allocated by the CTC, date project was advertised, bid
opening date, award date, award amount, and estimated completion date.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements in 2 CFR Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
FederalAwards (applicable to Federal and State Funded Projects).

This PROJECT is programmed to receive State Senate Bill 1, Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017
(SB1) funds from Local Partnership Program (LPP). This PROJECT will be administered
in accordance with the California Transportation Commission (CTC) approved/adopted
LPP Guidelines, and this Program Supplement Agreement.

Program Supplement 03-528-X28- SERIAL Page 2 of 3

Page 110

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



03-sAc-0-FoL
LPPSBI L-5288(047)

6

SPECIAL GOVENANTS OR REMARKS

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to use eligible matching funds of the type identified in
its project application/nomination, for the required dollar for dollar minimum local match to
the LPP funds.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit invoices for PROJECT costs in accordance
with the LocalAssistance Procedures Manual (LAPM).

To satisfy the SB1 accountability requirements, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to

1) Submit Progress Reports on the activities, expenditures and progress made towards
implementation of the PROJECT, as applicable, per CTC SBI Transparency and
Accountability Guidelines. Changes to the scope and budget from the CTC approved
project application/nomination shall also be identified in these reports. The Progress
Reports shall be submitted to the Division of Local Assistance - Office of State Programs
via the CaISMART reporting tool.

2) Submit a Completion Report after each phase using LPP funds is complete and a Final
Delivery Report to the CTC, within six months of the PROJECT construction contract
being accepted, on the scope of the completed PROJECT, its final costs as compared to
the project budget in its project application/nomination, its duration as compared to the
project schedule in its application/nomination and performance outcomes derived from the
PROJECT as compared to those described in the project application/nomination, per the
SB1 Transparency and Accountability Guidelines.

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall construct the PROJECT in accordance with the
scope of work presented in the application and approved by the California Transportation
Commission. Any changes to the approved PROJECT scope without the prior expressed
approval of the California Transportation Commission are ineligible for reimbursement
and may result in the entire PROJECT becoming ineligible for reimbursement.

Program Supplement 03*528-X28- SERIAL Page 3 of 3

Page 111

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 112

08/24/2021 Item No.16.



l\'i

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 8124t2021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10683 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement X30 to
Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the Iron
Point Median Improvement Project, Project No. PW2102, State
Project No. 5288(048)

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10683 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement
Agreement X30 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the Iron Point
Median Improvement Project, Project No. PW2102, State Project No. 5288(048).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Califomia Transportation Commission approved SB-l funding for the Iron Point Median
Project at the June 2021 CTC meeting.

The Iron Point Median Project is a small part of the Folsom Gateway and Median Project. The
Folsom Gateway and Median Project design was completed and approved in December2014.
The project was put on hold due to drought conditions and uncercainty of improvements needed
for the Plan Area South of Highway 50 that might conflict with the Gateway and Median
Project improvements.

With the pending drought issues this project will revisitthe plant list and plant only native oak
trees that are drought tolerant along with drought tolerant shrubs.

I

Page 113

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



POLICY / RULE

Execution of an Administering Agency-State Agreement and or Program Supplement
Agreement requires City Council approval.

ANALYSIS

The City of Folsom is required to execute the Program Supplement Agreement with Caltrans
Local Assistance to proceed with the construction of the Iron Point Median Improvement
Project. This project is eligible for a reimbursement from Senate Bill No. I (SB-1) Funds.

The City must invoice Caltrans in order to receive any Federal or State reimbursement. Prior
to invoicing Caltrans, the City must approve a Program Supplement Agreement for the lron
Point Median lmprovement Project. This is a Caltrans standard form that has previously been
approved by the City Attomey for other projects, including:

o Folsom Boulevard lmprovements
e Historic Folsom Station Phase I Project
r Street Repair and Resurfacing Project - 2005,Phase I
o Street Repair and Resurfacing Project -2004 Phase II
r Folsom/El Dorado Transit Conidor Study
r Rainbow Bridge Rehabilitation
r US 50/East Bidwell Street Interchange
o Riley Street Extension
r Folsom/Aubum Road Widening Projects
o Green Valley Road Widening

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Iron Point Median Project was included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22budget for $410,000
utilizing Transportation Improvement Funds (Fund 446).The SB-1 Local Partnership Program
(LPP) funds would replace some of the local funds and would require al}}%omatch of local
funds as follows:

SB-I LPP
Local Match (Fund 446)
Transportation Improvement Funds (Fund 4a6)
Total Project Funding

$123,000
$123,000
$r64.000
$410,000

Total Transportation lmprovement Funds (Fund 446) $287,000

2

Page 114

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



I

EIWIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This project has been determined to be Categorically Exempt by CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10683 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Program Supplement Agreeme'nt X30 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-
5288S21 for the hon Point Median Improveme,nt Project, Project No. PW2l02, State
Project No. 5288(048)

2. Program Supplemeirt X30 for Federal Project No. 5288(048)

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Director

3

Page 115

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10683

Page 116

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



RESOLUTION NO. 10683

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENT X3O TO ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE

AGREEMENT 03-5288521 FOR THE IRON POINT MEDIAI\ IMPROVEMENT PROJECT,
PROJECT NO. PW2102, STATE PROJECT NO.5288(048)

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to make improvements to existing medians on Iron
Point Road; and

WHEREAS, the Iron Point Median Project is included in the FY 202I-22 budget; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom is programmed to receive SB-l funding awarded at the June

2021 California Transportation Commission meeting and is eligible for state reimbursement; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will execute Master AgreementNo. 03-5288521 concurrently
with this Program Supplement Agreement for State-Funded Projects with the State of California
Department of Transportation in order to receive the funding; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will execute Program Supplement X30 to Administering
Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for State Project No. 5288(048), City Project No. PW2102; and

WHEREAS, the matching funds for SB-l Local Partnership Program (LPP) Funding will
utilize Local Transportation Improvement funds from the Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund
446); and

WHERDAS, funds received will be credited to Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446);
and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLYED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement X30 to Administering
Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for the Iron Point Median Improvement Project, Project No.
PW2l02, State Project No. 5288(048).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24th day of August2}2I,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10683
Page I ofl

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 117

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



Attachment 2

Unsigned Program Supplement

Page 118

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT NO. OOOOOOX3O

to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.STATE AGREEMENT
FORSTATE FUNDED PROJECTS NO 03-5288321

Adv Project lD Date:

0321000183 Location:
Project Number:

E.A. Number:
Locode:

July 13,2021
03-sAc-o-FoL
srPL-5288(048)

5288

This Program Supplement, effective 0612312021, hereby adopts and incorporates into the Administering Agency-State
Agreement No. 03-5288S21 for State Funded Projects which was entered into between the ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and the STATE with an effective date of and is subject to all the terms and conditions thereof. This
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is executed in accordance with Article I of the aforementioned Master Agreement under
authority of Resolution No. approved by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY on (See
copy attached).

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY further stipulates that as a condition to the payment by the State of any funds derived
from sources noted below encumbered to this project, Administering Agency accepts and will comply with the Special
Covenants and remarks set forth on the following pages.

PROJEGT LocATloN: on lron Point Road between willard Drive and the west Entrance to tntett.

TYPE OF WORK: Road Rehabilitation

Estimated

SB1 funds $123,000.00

$410,000.00

CITY OF FOLSOM

By

Title

Date

Attest

LOCAL

$287,000.

Matc Funds
OTHER

$0.00

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Department of Transportation

By

Ghief, Office of Project lmplementation
Division of Local Assistance

Date

State Funds

I hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance:

$123.000.00Accounting Officer

Program Supplement 03-528-X30- SERIAL

Dab thal>l

Page I of3

Page 119

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



03-sAc-0-FoL
sTPL-5288(048)

1

2

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

All obligations of STATE under the terms of this Agreement are subject to the
appropriation of resources by the Legislature and the encumbrance of funds under this
Agreement. Funding and reimbursement are available only upon the passage of the State
Budget Act containing these STATE funds.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices at least once every
six months commencing after the funds are encumbered for each phase by the execution
of this Project Program Supplement Agreement, or by STATE's approval of an applicable
Finance Letter. STATE reserves the right to suspend future authorizations/obligations for
Federal aid projects, or encumberances for State funded projects, as well as to suspend
invoice payments for any on-going or future project by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if
PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month
period.

lf no costs have been invoiced for a six-month period, ADMINISTERING AGENCY
agrees to submit for each phase a written explanation of the absence of PROJECT
activity along with target billing date and target billing amount.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Report of Expenditures" within one hundred eighty (180) days of PROJECT
completion. Failure of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final Report of
Expenditures" within 180 days of PROJECT completion will result in STATE imposing
sanctions upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the current Local
Assistance Procedures Manual.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit PROJECT specific award information,
using Exhibit 23-A of the LAPG, to the STATE's District Local Assistance Engineer
(DLAE) immediately after award of contract, and prior to first invoice submittal. Failure to
do so will delay processing invoices for the construction contract. As a minimum, the
award information should include the following information: project number, Advantage
lD, project description, date funds allocated by the CTC, date project was advertised, bid
opening date, award date, award amount, and estimated completion date,

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements in 2 CFR Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
FederalAwards (applicable to Federal and State Funded Projects).

This PROJECT is programmed to receive State Senate Bill 1, Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017
(SB1)funds from Local Partnership Program (LPP). This PROJECT will be administered
in accordance with the California Transportation Commission (CTC) approved/adopted
LPP Guidelines, and this Program Supplement Agreement.

3

4

5.

Program Supplement 03-528-X30- SERIAL Page 2 of 3

Page 120

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



03-sAc-0-FoL
srPL-5288(048)

6

SPECIAL COVENANTS OR REMARKS

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to use eligible matching funds of the type identified in
its project application/nomination, for the required dollar for dollar minimum local match to
the LPP funds.

ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit invoices for PROJECT costs in accordance
with the LocalAssistance Procedures Manual (LAPM).

To satisfy the SB1 accountability requirements, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to:

1) Submit Progress Reports on the activities, expenditures and progress made towards
implementation of the PROJECT, as applicable, per CTC SBI Transparency and
Accountability Guidelines, Changes to the scope and budget from the CTC approved
project application/nomination shall also be identified in these reports. The Progress
Reports shall be submitted to the Division of Local Assistance - Office of State Programs
via the CaISMART reporting tool.

2) Submit a Completion Report after each phase using LPP funds is complete and a Final
Delivery Report to the CTC, within six months of the PROJECT construction contract
being accepted, on the scope of the completed PROJECT, its final costs as compared to
the project budget in its project application/nomination, its duration as compared to the
project schedule in its application/nomination and performance outcomes derived from the
PROJECT as compared to those described in the project application/nomination, per the
SB1 Transparency and Accountability Guidelines.

The ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall construct the PROJECT in accordance with the
scope of work presented in the application and approved by the California Transportation
Commission. Any changes to the approved PROJECT scope without the prior expressed
approval of the California Transportation Commission are ineligible for reimbursement
and may result in the entire PROJECT becoming ineligible for reimbursement.

Program Supplement 03-528-X30- SERIAL Page 3 of 3

Page 121

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 122

08/24/2021 Item No.17.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 8/24/2021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10685 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Dokken Engineering, Inc.
for the Green Valley Road Permanent Easement Acquisition,
Project No. PW0804

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10685 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with
Dokken Engineering, Inc. for the Green Valley Road Permanent Easement Acquisition, Project
No. PW0804.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Utilized by approximately 25,000 vehicles daily, Green Valley Road is a regional arterial
connection between the City of Folsom and El Dorado Hills. The Green Valley Road Widening
Project construction was completed in July 2019, widening the existing road from two lanes to
four lanes from East Natoma Street in Folsom to Sophia Parkway in El Dorado Hills.

In order to complete the project before funding lapsed, the project was constructed under a
Temporary Construction Encroachment Permit and Temporary License with the Bureau of
Reclamation. The Temporary License allows the City to operate and maintain the roadway
with a S-year term that can be renewed five times for a total of 25-years.

POLICY / RULE

Road Right-of-Way shall be owned by the City in Fee Title or provided by a Permanent
Easement.

Page 123

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



ANALYSIS

Dokken Engineering, Inc. provided design selices, environmental services and construction
support for the project. Their Right-of-Way division assisted staff with acquisition of the
Construction Permit and Temporary License from the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation).

Acquisition of the Permanent Easement requires knowledge of Reclamation procedures.
According to Reclamation staff, it is anticipated that the Permanent Easement process will take
several years to complete.

T.INANCIAL IMPACT

The Green Valley Road Permanent Easement acquisition was included in the Fiscal Year 2021-
22 budget for $150,000 utilizing Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446). The cost of
the property will not be known until the appraisal phase of the acquisition process.

Budgeted Amount (Fund aa6) $150,000

Dokken Engineering, Inc. Contract $95,811

Property Cost Unknown

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

CEQA and NEPA was completion during construction.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10685 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Dokken Engineering, Inc. for the Green Valley Road Permanent
Easement Acquisition, Project No. PW0804
Scope of Services for Green Valley Road Project

Submitted,

DaveNugen, PUBLIC DIRECTOR

2

2

Page 124

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10685

Page 125

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



RESOLUTION NO. 10685

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH DOKKEN ENGINEERING,INC. FOR THE GREEN VALLEY

ROAD PERMANENT EASEMENT ACQUISITION, PROJECT NO. PW0804

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has widened Green Valley Road to four travel lanes, with a

painted median and Class 2 bicycle lanes from East Natoma Street in Folsom to Sophia Parkway in El
Dorado County (Project); and

WHEREAS, Dokken Engineering, Inc. is the Engineer of Record for the project; and

WHEREAS, Dokken Engineering, Inc. has provided preliminary right-of-way, environmental
monitoring, design support, and record survey is a component of construction engineering; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has completed the construction ofthe Green Valley Widening
Project in July 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom currently has a 5-year Temporary License from the Bureau
of Reclamation with the ability to renew four more times for 25-years total to operate and maintain
Green Valley Road; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to have a permanent easement in perpetuity to operate
and maintain Green Valley Road on Bureau of Reclamation property;and

WHEREAS, Dokken Engineering, Inc. has the ability and staff to assist the City of Folsom
in the acquisition of a permanent easement for Green Valley Road; and

WHEREAS, funds are available in the Transportation Improvement Fund (Fund 446), in the
Creen Valley Road Widening Project No. PW0804 for FY 2021-22; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORB, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Dokken Engineering, Inc. for $95,811 for
the Green Valley Road Permanent Easement Acquisition, Project No. PW0804.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24th day of August2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10685

Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 126

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



Attachment 2

Green Valley Road - Scope of Services

Page 127

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



Scope or Senuces ron
GREEN VALLEY ROAD PROJECT F (}r-S(}M

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Provided below is summary of the scope of services Dokken Engineering will provide, as required, for the
Green Valley Road Project.

TASK 3.1 APPMISAL PROCESS - The City of Folsom requires an appraisal for a permanent roadway
easement from Bureau of Reclamation. An appraisal will be completed by licensed General Real Estate

Appraisers will comply with all laws applicable to the specific appraisal and the Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice 49 CFR 2a.2G)Q). The appraisal will include a summary and a complete
analysis for all valuation conclusions. Documentation obtained during the inspection, such as pictures, will
be included in each report. Title information pertainingto ownership, drawings, and information relative
to the parcelwill be reviewed bythe appraiser.

TASK 3.2 PLAT MAPS AND LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS - UNICO will provide the following services necessary to
complete its portion of the project. UNICO willprepare plats, legaldescriptions, and closure calculations of
the lease area in each County (Sacramento and El Dorado). UNICO will prepare preliminary pdf copies of
plats and legal descriptions for agency review. Upon approval, UNICO will prepare final signed and

stamped pdf copies for final agreement process.

TASK 3.3 PRELIMINARYTITLE REPORTSfITLE RESEARCH - Dokken Engineering will obtain a title report for
Bureau of Reclamation. The Dokken Engineering right of way team will perform all necessary research for
the Bureau of Reclamation, Agents may resolve oroversee resolution of problems relatingto unusual

circumstances with regard to title or ownership and uncover any flaws, noting any exceptions pertaining to
property such as mortgage liens, restrictions, easements and rights of way.

TASK 3.4 NEGOTIATIONS- After completion of the appraisal process and just compensation determination,
Dokken Engineering will negotiate a Permanent Roadway Easement for the new area for Green Valley

Road. All "Good Faith Negotiations" will be completed by Dokken Engineering's Right of WayTeam.
Dokken Engineering will negotiate with the property owner to arrive at a mutually agreeable settlement
and prepare the necessary permanent roadway easement, Dokken Engineering's Right of Way Agents hold
California Real Estate Salesperson's Licenses and are working under the direct supervision of a California
Real Estate Licensed Broker.

TASK 3.5 ESCROW COORDINATION- Upon reaching an agreement on the terms and conditions of the
permanent roadway easement, Dokken Engineering will be available to assist the Client in the recording of
the new easement. Dokken Engineering will supply fully executed agreement along with other supporting
information to escrow in order to record the documents. Our right of way team has a California Notary
who will be available to notarize any documentation that is required.

Task 3.5 ENVIRONMENTAL COORDINATION- Dokken Engineering anticipates that the issuance of a

permanent roadway easement will require the preparation of a Natural Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

Categorical Exclusion Checklist (CEC) by the. Dokken Engineering will coordinate with Bureau of
Reclamation environmental staff to provide any surveys, mapping, or technical memorandums required to
support the NEPA CEC, Should the Bureau of Reclamation determine that a CEC is not the appropriate level

of environmental review and approval for the easement, additional scope and fee would be required.
Dokken Engineering will also assist the Client with all required California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

requirements, such as preparing and filing a Notice of Exemption.

1,lPa1tetrp*?,s,sPN

Page 128

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



E|wS

'r I .q ',-.1 ..

ir-d -- | od cc

FI
EG

Ei

I

' Jata

rii!
&t

ryl el
-fi -fni

rrel cJ yssl r5l ol e6l tullroll

i - inrfil ;1,. I

.@Ffr@j sl i.

Page 129

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 130

08/24/2021 Item No.18.



L,'{_b,l,s {_}F{

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10686 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement
(Contract No. 174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC (now known as

CentralSquare Technologies) to Increase the Number of User
Licenses, Migrate Additional Project Data to the New Permitting
System, and Develop a Custom Land Management Integration

F'ROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully requests that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10686 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement (Contract No.
174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC (now known as CentralSquare Technologies) to Increase the
Number of User Licenses, Migrate Additional Project Data to the New Permitting System, and
Develop a Custom Land Management Integration.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

This amendment to the City's existing contract with Superion LLC is critical to the successful
configuration and launch of the City's new online development processing and permitting system
called Community Development or ComDev (formerly called TRAKiT). The cost of the
amendment, including the recommended contingency, is $32,830 and all costs will be covered by
State grants. Amendment #5 includes three important items. It will:

1. Increase the number of user licenses;
2. Provide for the migration of all historical permit and project data; and
3. Create an automated process that will ensure the HTE Naviline land management system

is updated with all parcel and address changes.

Under the current agreement, there were only 25 available user licenses. With this amendment,
the number of user licenses will increase to 75, which will enable all City department staff

Page 131

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



involved in the development review process (e.g., Public Works, EWR, Parks, Fire, etc.) to use

the new ComDev software system. Second, this amendment will allow the City to move all
historical permit and project records from its current system into the new system. Under the
original agreement only active permit records would be moved into the new system. This will
ensure that all permit and project records are in one place, which will allow staff and customers
to easily look up those records. Finally, the consultant will develop a new GIS synchronization
script, which will ensure that any new changes to City address and parcel records are kept up to
date in the City's Naviline land management system. Though CDD will no longer be using
Naviline for development projects and permits, the program is still used by the City's
Environmental and Water Resources (EV[R) Department and the Finance Department customer
water meter billing. As a result, both the Naviline and the ComDev land management system
need to have the same address and parcel data.

The total cost of these amendments is $27,830 as shown below in Table 1. In addition, staff is
also requesting a $5,000 contingency to be used in the event that any critical additional services
are needed prior to the launch of the new system. Under current City rules, any monetary
increase to this agreement requires City Council approval. By approving a contingency not to
exceed $5,000, this will ensure there are no delays to the launch of the new system if minor
additions are required.

Table 1

of Additional Services

As noted earlier, all the cost of Amendment #5 including the contingency will be covered by the
two grants the City received from the State Housing and Community Development (HCD)
Department under Senate Bill2, the Planning Grant Program (PGP) and the Local Early Action
Planning (LEAP) grant program. The goal of both grant programs is to provide funding to
jurisdictions to improve their development processes and encourage the production of housing in
California given the ongoing housing crisis.

Description FeeServices
50 Additional licenses for Community
Development Suite at a unit cost of
$349.90 per license.

$17,495.001) TRAKiT9 Community
Development Suite User
License - License Fee

2a) Public Administration
Data Conversion Services -
Fixed Fee

Cost of migrating HTE Naviline
Planning & Engineering project data into
C ommunity Development.

$4,680.00

Proj ect management services associated
with the migration of HTE Naviline
Planning & Engineering project data into
Communitv Development.

$780.002b) Public Administration
Project Management
Services - Fixed Fee

GIS updating script for HTE Naviline
land manaeement system.

$4,875.003) Public Administration
GIS Services - Fixed Fee

$27,830.00Subtotal
Continsencv $5,000.00

Total Cost $32,830.00

Page 132

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



POLICY / RULE

Pursuant to Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts for services exceeding the
City Manager's contracting authority shall be awarded by the City Council. In this case, since
the overall amount of the original contract was greater that the City Manager's contracting
authority any change in the contract amoqnt must be approved by the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The three services being provided by Superion are critical to the successful operation of not only
the ComDev permitting software, but also the City's Naviline Utilities billing program.
Without these services, Community Development Department (CDD) would not have sufficient
user licenses to enable other critical departments to use the software. Furthermore, without the
amendment CDD staff would have to access two different software systems when searching for
active and historic permit and project records. This will allow all records to be in one location
that can be accessed by City staff and customers. Finally, because the City is currently using the
Naviline Utility billing software program, it is essentialthat the land data in ComDev and in
Naviline are both updated with the same information. As noted earlier, the total cost of the
amendment will be covered by State grant funds. No City funds will be used.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

This Council action will approve the amendment with Superion in the amount of $27,830 for the
implementation of three additional services for the ComDev development project and permit
tracking system, with the budget for this project to include a $5,000 contingency for a grand total
of $32,830. All these costs will be covered by State grants that the Community Development
Department received in Fiscal Year 2021. No City funds are required.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The execution of an amendment to an existing contract for additional services for the
implementation of the ComDev development project and permitting software is not considered a
project under the California Environment Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with CEQA
Guidelines Section 15061(bX3). As a result, this action is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

I Resolution No. I 0686 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
AmendmentNo. 5 to the Agreement (ContractNo. 174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC
(now known as CentralSquare Technologies) to Increase the Number of User Licenses,
Migrate Additional Project Data to the New Permitting System, and Develop a Custom
Land Management Integration.

Detailed Project Timeline and History2.

Page 133

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



Submitted,

Pam Johns, Development Director

Page 134

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10686 - A Resolution Authorizing
the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 5 to
the Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 13-052) with

Superion, LLC (now known as CentralSquare
Technologies) to Increase the Number of User

Licenses, Migrate Additional Project Data to the New
Permitting System, and Develop a Custom Land

Management Integration

Page 135

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



RESOLUTION NO. 10686

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO.5 TO THE AGREEMENT

(CONTRACT NO. 174-2113-052) WITH SUPERTON, LLC (NOW
KNOWII AS CENTRALSQUARE TECHNOLOGIES) TO INCREASE

THE NUMBER OF'USER LICENSES, MIGRATE ADDITIONAL
PROJECT DATA TO THE NEW PERMITTING SYSTEMO AND
DEVELOP A CUSTOM LAND MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Software License and Services Agreement
with SunGard Public Sector Inc. to provide a suite of software solutions for the City Finance
Department and the Community Development Department to address finance, payroll, electronic
project and permit tracking, and electronic plan check services on December 10, 2013; and

WHEREAS, on March30,20l6, the previous City Manager executed Amendment #1 to
the original Software License and Services Agreement with SunGard Public Sector Inc. to update

component systems for land management and permitting to reflect changes in software,
technology and nomenclature (ONESolution to TRAKiT) with no budgetary change; and

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Amendment #2 to the
original Software License and Services Agreement with Superion LLC (formerly SunGard
Public Sector Inc.) for $98,230 to add additional software components and services necessary to
provide enhanced customer service, including electronic payment option for customers, a citizen
portal allowing customer access to project information, advanced GIS services, integration with
the California State Licensing Board to validate contractor licenses, and the ability to schedule
building inspections by phone; and

WHEREAS, in late 2018, the City was informed by Superion LLCthat it would no
longer provide electronic plan check services due to a change in its relationship with its third-
party provider for electronic plan check services, Avolve Software; and therefore, Superion
recommended that the City contract directly with Avolve; and

WHEREAS, the City and Superion LLC (now known as Central Square Technologies)
executed Amendment #3 to the original Software License and Services Agreement that removed
electronic plan check software and services from the original agreement, removed the $80,080 in
project management fees originally to be charged for these services, and credited back to the City
atotal of $74,130.64, of which $15,360 were project management fees and $58,770.64 were
maintenance fees previously paid by the City to Superion LLC; and

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Resolution 10206 which
amended the agreement (Amendment No. 4) to add 80 additional hours of project management
services from Superion LLC to assist the City in the set up and installation of the new permitting
software; and

Resolution No. 10686
Page I of3 Page 136

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



WHEREAS, more user licenses are needed so that all City department personnel
involved in the development review process will be able to use the new software; and

WHEREAS, there is a need for all active and historical permit and project data to be in
one software system to allow for easy access for staff and customers; and

WHEREAS, a custom GIS suipt is required that will ensure that both the land
management system for ComDev and Naviline have the most up to date address and parcel
information; and

WHEREAS, on April 9,2019, in Resolution No. 10269 the Council authorized the
Community Development Department to apply for $310,000 in Senate Bill2 - Planning Grant
Program (PGP) grant funds from the State Department of Housing and Community Development
(HCD) and on February 8,2020, the City executed an agreement with HCD for the grant funds;
and

WHEREAS, on April 28,2020, in Resolution No. 10424 the Council authorized the
Community Development Department to apply for $300,000 in Local Early Action Planning
(LEAP) grant funds from HCD and on December 28,2020, the City executed an agreement with
HCD for the grant funds; and

WHEREAS, the improvements to the City's new development permitting software are

eligible expenses under the terms of the PGP and LEAP grants; and

WHEREAS, approval of the amendment to the agreement and the allocation of funding
is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom:

l. Authorizes the City Manager or her designee to execute Amendment No. 5 to the
Software License and Services Agreement with Superion LLC.

2. Authorizes the City Manager or her designee to establish a contingency of $5,000for
the project.

3. Authorizes the City Manager to use the PGP and LEAP grant funds for the costs
associated with Amendment No. 5 and the contingency.

GENERAL FINDINGS

SECTION 2.36.080, AWARD OF CONTRACTS OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL
CODE, STATES IN PART THAT CONTRACTS FOR SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT,
SERVICES, AND CONSTRUCTION WITH AN ESTIMATED VALUE OF $62,657
OR GREATER SHALL BE AWARDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.

AMENDMENT OF THE EXISTING AGREEMENT WITH SUPERION LLC TO ADD
MORE USER LICENSES, MIGRATE ALL PROJECT DATA, AND ADD A CUSTOM
LAND MANAGEMENT INTEGRATION IS CzuTICAL TO THE SUCCESSFUL

Resolution No. 10686
Page 2 of3

A.

B

Page 137

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



C.

D

CONFIGURATION AND LALINCH OF THE CITY'S NEW ONLINE
DEVELOPMENT PROCESSING AND PERMITTING SYSTEM.

A CONTINGENCY IS NEEDED TO ENSURE THAT THERE ARE NO DELAYS TO
THE LAIINCH OF THE NEW SYSTEM THIS YEAR.

CEOA FINDINGS

rN ACCORDANCE WrTH CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 1s061(b)(3),
AMENDMENT OF A CONSULTANT CONTRACT IS NOT A PROJECT UNDER
CEQA AND IS EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 24thday of August 2021, by the following roll-call vote

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

Councilmember(s)

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10686
Page 3 of3

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 138

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



ATTACHMENT 2

Detailed Project Timeline and History

Page 139

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



DETAILED PROJECT TIMELNE AND HISTORY

The Community Development Department (CDD) is currently in the final months of its
efforts to replace the 25-year-old development processing and permitting system known as HTE
Naviline. The new permitting system, now known as Community Development or ComDev,
was formerly known as TRAKiT. This new software system will work with CDD's existing
electronic plan review system, called ProjectDox, and will allow customers to complete all
activities on-line including applying for building permits and development project entitlements,
scheduling inspections, tracking the status of permits, and paying fees. CDD staff had hoped to
launch this system in early 2020 before the pandemic struck, but due to delays from the vendor
with software upgrades and frequent changes in project managers as a result of the acquisition of
Superion LLC by Central Square Technologies, staff decided to put the effort on hold until these
issues were worked out. Below is a detailed history of the project including prior amendments
and related Council actions.

In2013, the City approved a contract with Superion, LLC (formerly SunGard
Corporation) to upgrade the City's existing software system, which was comprised of
HTE Naviline and ONESolution to improve services for cash receipts, business account
management, land management, building permits, planning and engineering services, and
code compliance. The total contracted amount was $722,788.

On March 30,2016, the previous City Manager executed Amendment #l to the original
Software License and Services Agreement with SunGard Public Sector Inc. to update
component systems for land management and permitting to reflect changes in software,
technology, and nomenclature (ONESolution to TRAKiT) with no budgetary change.

a

o

On November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Amendment #2 to the original
Software License and Services Agreement with Superion LLC (formerly SunGard Public
Sector Inc.) for $98,230 to add additional software components and services necessary to
provide enhanced customer service, including electronic payment option for customers, a

citizenportal allowing customer access to project information, advanced GIS services,
integration with the California State Licensing Board to validate contractor licenses, and
the ability to schedule building inspections by phone;

Toward the end of 2018, the City was informed by Superion LLC that it would no longer
provide electronic plan check services due to a change in its relationship with its third-
party provider for electronic plan check services, Avolve Software. As a result, Superion
recommended that the City contract directly with Avolve, which the City subsequently
did.

To revise the Agreement to reflect this change, the City and Superion LLC (now known
as CentralSquare Technologies) executed Amendment #3 that removed electronic plan
check software and services from the original agreement, removed the $80,080 in project
management fees originally to be charged for these services, and credited back to the City

a

Page 140

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



$74,130.64, which was comprised of 958,770.64 in maintenance fees and $15,360 in
project management fees previously paid by the City to Superion LLC.

a Also, on November 13,2018, the City Council approved Resolution 10206, which
authorized the City Manager to execute Amendment #4. This amendment added 80

additional hours of project management services from Superion LLC to assist the City in
the set up and installation of the new permitting software.

Amendment #5, as noted earlier in this report, will increase the number of user licenses
for the software from25 to 75 so that all City department personnel involved in the
development review process will be able to use the software. In addition, all permit and
project data including historical records will be imported from HTE Naviline into the
new system. Finally, a custom GIS script will be prepared by Superion that will ensure
that both the land management system for ComDev and Naviline will have the most up
to date address data given that EWR and Finance will continue to use the Naviline
Utilities program. Q.{ote: The City had hoped to upgrade to a new utilities billing
program from Superion that would use the same land management system as ComDev,
but that program is not yet available from Superion). All the cost of this amendment will
be covered by grants received by the City's Community Development Department from
the State.

Table 2 onthe following page shows the history of the amendments as well as the budgetary
changes.

a

Page 141

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



Table 2
Contract

Notes:
*The original contract was for services beyond just those needed for the Community Development
Department. Other software services included payroll, fleet management, finance, etc.
**In Amendment #3, while the City received a total credit of $74,130.64, only $15,360 project
management fees were credited against the total contract amount. The rest ($58,770.64) were annual
maintenance fees previously paid by the City to Superion LLC and credited back to the City since no
electronic plan review services were provided by Superion.
***Contingency to be used only ifadditional services are essential for the launch ofthe software.

Date Contract
Amendment

Description Amount

t2l19l20t3 Original
Contract*

Contract for new software for CDD,
Finance, Human Resources, Public
Works, etc.

$722,788.00

3130120r6 Amend. #1 Software change from ONESolution
Plannine and Buildine to TRAKiT

$0

sl22l20t9 Amend. #2 Additional software features and
services (e.g., advanced GIS, online
payment. inspections by phone. etc.)

$98,230.00

712412019 Amend. #3 Removal of $80,080 fee for electronic
plan check

($80,080.00)

712412019 Amend. #3** Credit for removal of electronic plan
check services from contract

($ 15,360.00)

7t24t2019 Amend. #4 Additional proiect management hours $12,800.00
81241202t Amend. #5 Additional user licenses, data

migration and custom GIS services.
$27,830.00

812412021 ***Contingency Additional funding for critical services
only if needed.

$5,000.00

Grand Total $771,208.00

Page 142

08/24/2021 Item No.19.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

STJBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Master Agteement Administering Agency-
State Agreement for State-Funded Projects, Agreement No. 03-
5288521 and any Amendments Thereto with the California
Department of Transportation

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Deparhnent recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Master Agreement
Administering Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded Projects, Agreement No. 03-
5288521 and any Amendments Thereto with the Califomia Department of Transportation.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The California Departnrent of Transportation (Caltrans) recently requested an update to the
Master Agreement between the State of Califomia and the City of Folsom for state only
funding. A separate master agreement has previously been executed for federal funding with
the state.

POLICY / RULE

Execution of an Administering Agency-State Agreement and Program Supplement Agreement
requires City Council approval.

I

Page 143

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ANALYSN

In order for the City to be reimbursed for transportation projects funded by state only funding
sourccs, the City must approve the Administering Agency-State Only Master Agreement. No
invoices for reimbursement can be processed by Caltans until the Agreement is fully executed.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no immediate financial impact to the City: however, future projects that utilize state
only funding programs will be restricted without execution of this agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

There is no environmental review required for execution of the Administering Agency-State
Master Agreement. Future individual projects will address environmental concerns on a per-
project basis.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded
Projects, Agreement No. 03-5288521 and any Amendments Thereto with Calkans

2. Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded Projects

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Director
&

2

Page 144

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10687

Page 145

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



RESOLUTION NO. 10687

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MAI{AGER TO EXECUTE MASTER
AGREEMENT ADMISTERING AGENCY.STATE AGREEMENT FOR STATE FUNDED

PROJECTS, AGREEMENT NO. 03-5288521 AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO WITH
THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, On September 27,2000, the City of Folsom and the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans) entered into the Administering Agency-State Agreement No. 000287 Master
Agreement for State Only funded projects; and

WHEREAS, On June 2, 2015, the City of Folsom and the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans) entered into the updated Administering Agency-State Agreement No.
000461S Master Agreement for State Only funded projects; and

WHEREAS, Caltrans has requested that an updated Master Agreement for State Only Funded
Transportation Projects to be executed; and

WHEREAS, Caltrans will not reimburse the City for eligible state only transportation project
expenses until the updated Master Agreement is fully executed; and

WHEREAS, the City may receive state only funding from Caltrans now or sometime in the
future for transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, the City, the fund recipient, agrees to comply with all conditions and

requirements set forth in this Master Agreement and the applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines

for state only funded transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement
for State Funded Projects, Agreement No. 03-5288521 and any Amendments Thereto with the
California Department of Transportation.

PASSED AllD ADOPTED this24rh day of August,2\2l, by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10687

Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 146

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



Attachment 2

Master Agreement Administering Agency-
State Agreement for State-Funded Projects

Page 147

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



MASTER AGREEMENT
ADMIN ISTERI NG AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT FOR

STATE-FUNDED PROJECTS

City of Folsom

District Administering Agency

Agreement No. 03-5288521

This AGREEMENT, is entered into effective this day of 20-, by and
between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as 'ADMINISTERING AGENCY," and the
State of California, acting by and through its Department of Transportation (Caltrans),
hereinafter referred to as "STATE", and together referred to as "PARTIES' or individually as a
,PARTY.'

RECITALS:

1. WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of California has enacted legislation by which certain
State funds are made available for use on local transportation related projects of public entities
qualified to act as recipients of these state funds; and

2. WHEREAS, ADMINISTERING AGENCY has applied to the California Transportation
Commission (CTC) and/or STATE for funding from a State-funded program (herein referred to
as STATE FUNDS), as defined in the Local Assistance Program Guidelines (LAPG) and/or in

the respective CTC Guidelines, for use on local authorized transportation related projects as a
local administered project(s), hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"; and

3. WHEREAS, said PROJECT will not receive any federal funds; and

4. WHEREAS, before STATE FUNDS will be made available for PROJECT, ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and STATE are required to enter into an agreement to establish terms and conditions
applicable to the ADMINISTERING AGENCY when receiving STATE FUNDS for a designated
PROJECT facility and to the subsequent operation and maintenance of that completed facility,

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES agree as follows:

03

Page 1 of '16Page 148

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE I - PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

1. This AGREEMENT shall have no force or effect with respect to any program project unless
and until a project- specific Program Supplement to this AGREEMENT for state funded projects,
hereinafter referred to as "PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT", has been fully executed by both STATE
and ADM INISTERING AGENCY.

2. The State approved project-specific allocation notification letter and approved CTC allocation
documentation designate the party responsible for implementing PROJECT, type of work, and
location of PROJECT for projects requiring CTC allocation by PROJECT component of work.

3. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT sets out special covenants as a condition for the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY to receive STATE FUNDS from/through STATE for designated
PROJECT. The PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall also show these STATE FUNDS that have
been initially encumbered for PROJECT along with the matching funds to be provided by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and/or others. Execution of PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT by the
PARTIES shall cause ADMINISTERING AGENCY to adopt all the terms of this AGREEMENT
as though fully set forth therein in the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. Unless otherwise expressly
delegated in a resolution by the governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, and with written
concurrence by STATE, the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall be approved and managed by the
governing body of ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to execute and return each project-specific PROGRAM
SUPPLEMENT. The PARTIES agree that STATE may suspend future allocations,
encumbrances and invoice payments for any on- going or future STATE FUNDED PROJECT
performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if any project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is
not returned, unless otherwise agreed by STATE in writing.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY further agrees, as a condition to the release and payment of
STATE FUNDS encumbered for the PROJECT described in each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT,
to comply with the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and all the agreed-upon Special
Covenants or Remarks incorporated within the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, and
Cooperative/Contribution Agreement where appropriate, defining and identifying the nature of
the specific PROJECT.

6. STATE FUNDS will not participate in any portion of PROJECT work performed in advance of
the effective date of allocation by CTC, or by STATE for allocations delegated to STATE by
CTC, for said PROJECT.

7. Projects allocated with STATE FUNDS will be administered in accordance with the current
CTC STIP Guidelines, applicable chapter(s) of the LAPG, LAPM and/or any other instructions
published by STATE.

8. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to ensure compliance with all relevant State laws and
requirements for work related to PROJECT, including the California Environmental Quality Act
(cEoA).

9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY's eligible costs for preliminary engineering work includes all
preliminary work directly related to PROJECT up to contract award for construction, including,
but not limited to, environmental studies and permits (E&P),

Page 2 of 16Page 149

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



preliminary surveys and reports, laboratory work, soil investigations, the preparation of plans,
specifications and estimates (PS&E), advertising for bids, awarding of a contract and project
development contract administration.

10. ADMINISTERING AGENCY's eligible costs for construction engineering include actual
inspection and supervision of PROJECT construction work; construction staking; laboratory and
field testing; and the preparation and processing of field reports, records, estimates, final
reports, and allowable expenses of employees/consultants engaged in such activities.

11. Unless the PARTIES agree otherwise in writing, ADMINISTERING AGENCY's employees
or its contracted engineering consultant shall be responsible for all PROJECT engineering work.

12. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not proceed with final design of PROJECT until final
environmental approval of PROJECT. Final design entails the design work necessary to
complete the PS&E and other work necessary for a construction contract but not required
earlier for environmental clearance of that PROJECT.

13. lf PROJECT is not on STATE-owned right-of-way, PROJECT shall be constructed in
accordance with Chapter 11 o'f the LAPM that describes minimum statewide design standards
for local agency streets and roads. The design standards for projects off the National Highway
System (NHS) allow STATE to accept either the current Caltrans Highway Design Manual
standards, the current FHWA-adopted American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets
standards, or the approved geometric design standards of ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
Additionally, for projects off the NHS, STATE will accept ADMINISTERING AGENCY-approved
standard specifications, standard plans, materials sampling and testing quality assurance
programs that meet the conditions described in the then current Local Assistance Procedures
Manual.

14. lf PROJECT involves work within or partially within STATE-owned right-of-way, that
PROJECT shall also be subject to compliance with the policies, procedures and standards of
the STATE Project Development Procedures Manual and Highway Design Manual and where
appropriate, an executed cooperative agreement between STATE and ADMINISTERING
AGENCY that outlines the PROJECT responsibilities and respective obligations of the
PARTIES. ADMINISTERING AGENCY and its contractors shall each obtain an encroachment
permit through STATE prior to commencing any work within STATE rights-of-way or work which
affects STATE facilities.

15. When PROJECT is not on the State Highway System (SHS) but includes work to be
performed by a railroad, the contract for such work shall be prepared by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY or by STATE, as the PARTIES may hereafter agree. ln either event,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall enter into an agreement with the railroad providing for future
maintenance of protective devices or other facilities installed under the contract.

16. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with the provisions of sections 4450 and 4454 of
the California Government Code, as well as other Department of General Services guidance, if
applicable, for the contract PS&E for the construction of buildings, structures, sidewalks, curbs
and related facilities for accessibility and

Page 3 of 16Page 150

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



usability. Further requirements and guidance are provided in Title 24 of the California Code of
Regulations.

17. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide a full-time public employee to be in responsible
charge of each PROJECT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall provide or arrange for adequate
supervision and inspection of each PROJECT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY may utilize
consultants to perform supervision and inspection work for PROJECT with a fully qualified and
licensed engineer. Utilization of consultants does not relieve ADMINISTERING AGENCY of its
obligation to provide a fulltime public employee to be in responsible charge of each PROJECT.

18. Unless othenvise provided in the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY
shall advertise, award, and administer the PROJECT construction contract or contracts.

19. The cost of maintenance, security, or protection performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
or contractor forces during any temporary suspension of PROJECT or at any other time may not
be charged to the PROJECT.

20. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit PROJECT-specific award information to STATE's
District Local Assistance Engineer, within sixty (60) days after contract award.

21. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall submit the final report documents that collectively
constitute a "Final Project Expenditure Report", LAPM Exhibit 17-M, within one hundred eighty
(1S0) days of PROJECT completion. Failure by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to submit a "Final
Project Expenditure Report", within 180 days of project completion will result in STATE
imposing sanctions upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY in accordance with the Local Assistance
Procedures Manual.

22. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of
1990 that prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability and all applicable regulations and
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.

23. The Governor and the Legislature of the State of California, each within their respective
jurisdictions, have prescribed certain nondiscrimination requirements with respect to contract
and other work financed with public funds. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with
the requirements of the FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ADDENDUM, attached hereto as
Exhibit A and further agrees that any agreement entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
with a third party for performance of work connected with PROJECT shall incorporate Exhibit A
(with third party's name replacing ADMINISTERING AGENCY) as parts of such agreement.

24. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include in all contracts and subcontracts awarded when
applicable, a clause that requires each subcontractor to comply with California Labor Code
requirements that all workers employed on public works aspects of any project (as defined in
California Labor Code sections 1720-1815) be paid not less than the general prevailing wage
rates predetermined by the Department of lndustrial Relations as effective at the date of
contract award by the ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

Page 4 of '16Page 151

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE II - RIGHTS.OF.WAY

1. No contract for the construction of a STATE FUNDED PROJECT shall be awarded until all
necessary rights of way have been secured. Prior to the advertising for construction of
PROJECT, ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall certify and, upon request, shall furnish STATE
with evidence that all necessary rights-of-way are available for construction purposes or will be
available by the time of award of the construction contract.

2. The furnishing of rights of way by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as provided for herein
includes, and is limited to, the following, unless the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT provides
othenrvise.

(a) Expenditures of capital and support to purchase all real property required for PROJECT free
and clear of liens, conflicting easements, obstructions and encumbrances, after crediting
PROJECT with the fair market value of any excess property retained and not disposed of by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

(b) The cost of furnishing of right-of-way as provided for herein includes, in addition to real
property required for the PROJECT, title free and clear of obstructions and encumbrances
affecting PROJECT and the payment, as required by applicable law, of damages to owners of
remainder real property not actually taken but injuriously affected by PROJECT.

(c) The cost of relocation payments and services provided to owners and occupants pursuant to
Government Code sections 7260-7277 when PROJECT displaces an individual, family,
business, farm operation or nonprofit organization.

(d) The cost of demolition and/or the sale of all improvements on the right-of-way after credit is
recorded for sale proceeds used to offset PROJECT costs.

(e) The cost of all unavoidable utility relocation, protection or removal

(f) The cost of all necessary hazardous material and hazardous waste treatment, encapsulation
or removal and protective storage for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY accepts responsibility
and where the actual generator cannot be identified, and recovery made.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to indemnify and hold STATE harmless from any liability
that may result in the event the right-of-way for a PROJECT is not clear as certified by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY, including, but not limited to, if said right-of-way is found to contain
hazardous materials requiring treatment or removal to remediate in accordance with Federal
and State laws. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall pay, from its own non- matching funds, any
costs which arise out of delays to the construction of PROJECT because utility facilities have
not been timely removed or relocated, or because rights-of-way were not available to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the orderly prosecution of PROJECT work.

Page 5 of 16Page 152

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE III . MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT

1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will maintain and operate the property acquired, developed,
constructed, rehabilitated, or restored by PROJECT for its intended public use until such time as
the parties might amend this AGREEMENT to otherwise provide. With the approval of STATE,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its successors in interest in the PROJECT property may transfer
this obligation and responsibility to maintain and operate PROJECT property for that intended
public purpose to another public entity.

2. Upon ADMINISTERING AGENCY's acceptance of the completed construction contract or
upon contractor being relieved of the responsibility for maintaining and protecting PROJECT,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for the maintenance, ownership, liability, and
the expense thereof, for PROJECT in a manner satisfactory to the authorized representatives of
STATE and if PROJECT falls within the jurisdictional limits of another Agency or Agencies, it is
the duty of ADMINISTERING AGENCY to facilitate a separate maintenance agreement(s)
between itself and the other jurisdictional Agency or Agencies providing for the operation,
maintenance, ownership and liability of PROJECT. Until those agreements are executed,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be responsible for all PROJECT operations, maintenance,
ownership and liability in a manner satisfactory to the authorized representatives of STATE. lf,
within ninety (90) days after receipt of notice from STATE that a PROJECT, or any portion

thereof, is not being properly operated and maintained and ADMINISTERING AGENCY has not
satisfactorily remedied the conditions complained of, the approval of future STATE FUNDED
PROJECTS of ADMINISTERING AGENCY will be withheld until the PROJECT shall have been
put in a condition of operation and maintenance satisfactory to STATE. The provisions of this
section shall not apply to a PROJECT that has been vacated through due process of law with
STATE's concurrence.

3. PROJECT and its facilities shall be maintained by an adequate and welltrained staff of
engineers andior such other professionals and technicians as PROJECT reasonably requires.
Said operations and maintenance staff may be employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
another unit of government, or a contractor under agreement with ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
All maintenance will be performed at regular intervals or as required for efficient operation of the
complete PROJECT improvements.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with all applicable law, including but not limited to,
all applicable legal authority regarding construction standards.

Page 6 of 16Page 153

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE IV - FISCAL PROVISIONS

1. All contractual obligations of STATE are subject to the appropriation of resources by the
Legislature and the allocation of resources by the CTC.

2. STATE'S financial commitment of STATE FUNDS will occur only upon the execution of this
AGREEMENT, the execution of each project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or
STATE's approved finance letter.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, as a minimum, to submit invoices in arrears for
reimbursement of allowable PROJECT costs at least once every six months commencing after
the STATE FUNDS are encumbered on either the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
or through a project-specific finance letter approved by STATE. STATE reserves the right to
suspend future allocations and invoice payments for any on-going or future STATE FUNDED
project performed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY if PROJECT costs have not been invoiced by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY for a six-month period

4. lnvoices shall be submitted on a standardized billing summary template, in accordance with
Chapter 5 of the LAPM to claim reimbursement by ADMINISTERING AGENCY. For
construction invoices, pay estimates must be included.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY must retain at least one copy of supporting backup
documentation for allowable costs incurred and claimed for reimbursement by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to submit supporting backup
documentation with invoices if requested by State. Acceptable backup documentation includes,
but is not limited to, agency's progress payment to the contractors, copies of cancelled checks
showing amounts made payable to vendors and contractors, and/or a computerized summary of
PROJECT costs.

6. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY can only be released by STATE as
reimbursements of actual allowable PROJECT costs already incurred and paid for by the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

7. lndirect Cost Allocation Plans/lndirect Cost Rate Proposals (ICAPiICRP), Central Service
Cost Allocation Plans and related documentation are to be prepared and provided to the
lnspector General - lndependent Office of Audits and lnvestigations for review and approval
prior to ADMINISTERING AGENCY seeking reimbursement of indirect cost incurred within each
fiscal year being claimed for reimbursement. ICAPs/|CRPs must be prepared in accordance
with the requirements set forth in 2 CFR, Part 200, Chapter 5 of the LAPM, and the ICAP/ICRP
approval procedures established by STATE,

8. STATE will withhold the greater of either two (2) percent of the total of all STATE FUNDS
encumbered for each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT or $40,000 until ADMINISTERING AGENCY
submits the Final Report of Expenditures for each completed PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
PROJECT.

9. The estimated total cost of PROJECT, the amount of STATE FUNDS obligated, and the
required matching funds may be adjusted by mutual consent of the PARTIES with a finance
letter, and an allocation notification letter when applicable. STATE FUNDING may be increased
to cover PROJECT cost increases only if such additional funds are available and the CTC
and/or STATE concurs with that increase in the

Page 7 of '16Page 154

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



form of an allocation and finance letter

10. When such additional STATE FUNDS are not available, ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees
that any increases in PROJECT costs must be defrayed with ADMINISTERING AGENCY's own
funds.

1 1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall use its own non-STATE FUNDS to finance the local share
of eligible costs and all PROJECT expenditures or contract items ruled ineligible for financing
with STATE FUNDS. STATE shall make the final determination of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's
cost eligibility for STATE FUNDED financing with respect to claimed PROJECT costs.

12. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will reimburse STATE for STATE's share of costs for work
performed by STATE at the request of ADMINISTERING AGENCY. STATE's costs shall include
overhead assessments in accordance with section 8755.1 of the State Administrative Manual.

13. STATE FUNDS allocated by the CTC and/or STATE are subject to the timely use of funds
provisions approved in CTC Guidelines and State procedures approved by the CTC and
STATE.

14. STATE FUNDS encumbered for PROJECT are available for liquidation only for a limited
period from the beginning of the State fiscal year when those funds were appropriated in the
State Budget. STATE FUNDS not liquidated within these periods will be reverted unless a

Cooperative Work Agreement (CWA) is submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY and
approved by the California Department of Finance in accordance with Section 16304 of the
Government Code. The exact date of fund reversion will be reflected in the STATE signed
PROJECT finance letter.

15. Payments to ADMINISTERING AGENCY for PROJECT-related travel and subsistence (per
diem) expenses of ADMINISTERING AGENCY forces and its contractors and subcontractors
claimed for reimbursement or as local match credit shall not exceed rates authorized to be paid
to rank and file STATE employees under current California Department of Human Resources
(CalHR) rules unless a Cooperative Work Agreement (CWA) is submitted by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY and approved by the California Department of Finance in accordance with
Government Code section 16304. lf the rates invoiced by ADMINISTERING AGENCY are in
excess of CaIHR rates, ADMINISTERING AGENCY is responsible for the cost difference, and
any overpayments inadvertently paid by STATE shall be reimbursed to STATE by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY on demand.

16. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to comply with California Government Code 4525-
4529.14. Administering Agency shall undertake the procedures described in California
Government Code a527(a) and 4528(a). Administering Agency shall also comply with 2 CFR
Part 2O0 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for
Federal Awards, excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326.

17. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors
will be obligated to agree that Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to determine the
allowability of individual PROJECT cost items.

Page 8 of 16Page 155

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



Every recipient and sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall
comply with Federal administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards,
excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326Governments. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to
comply with the provisions set forth in 23 CFR Parts 140, 645 and 646 when contracting with
railroad and utility companies.

18. Every recipient and sub-recipient receiving PROJECT funds under this AGREEMENT shall
comply with 2 CFR 200 excluding 2 CFR Part 200.318-200.326,48 CFR Chapter 1, Part 31,
LAPM, Public Contract Code (PCC) 10300- 10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381
(non-A&E services), California Government Code 4525-4529.5 including a527(a) and 4528(a),
and other applicable STATE regulations.

19. Any PROJECT costs for which ADMINISTERING AGENCY has received payment or credit
that are determined by subsequent audit to be questioned, disallowed, or unallowable under 2

CFR, Part 200,48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31,23 CFR Parts 140,645 and 646, LAPM, Public
Contract Code (PCC) 10300-10334 (procurement of goods), PCC 10335-10381 (non-A&E
services), California Government Code 4525-4529.5 including 4527(a) and 4528(a), and other
applicable STATE regulations are subject to repayment by ADMINISTERING AGENCY to
STATE and may result in STATE imposing sanctions on ADMINISTERING AGENCY as
described in Chapter 20 of the Local Assistance Procedures Manual.

20. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY fail to refund any moneys due upon written demand by
STATE as provided herein or should ADMINISTERING AGENCY breach this AGREEMENT by
failing to complete PROJECT without adequate justification and approval by STATE, then,
within thirty (30) days of demand, or within such other period as may be agreed to in writing
between the PARTIES hereto, STATE, acting through the State Controller, the State Treasurer,
the CTC or any other public entity or agency, may intercept, withhold and demand the transfer
of an amount equal to the amount paid by or owed to STATE for each PROJECT, from future
apportionments, or any other funds due ADMINISTERING AGENCY from the Highway Users
Tax Fund or any other sources of funds, and/or may also withhold approval of future STATE
FUNDED projects proposed by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

21. Should ADMINISTERING AGENCY be declared to be in breach of this AGREEMENT or
otherwise in default thereof by STATE, and if ADMINISTERING AGENCY is constituted as a
joint powers authority, special district, or any other public entity not directly receiving funds
through the State Controller, STATE is authorized to obtain reimbursement from whatever
sources of funding are available, including the withholding or transfer of funds, 2Ofrom those
constituent entities comprising a joint powers authority or by bringing of an action against
ADMINISTERING AGENCY or its constituent member entities, to recover all funds provided by
STATE hereunder.

22. ADMINISTERING AGENCY acknowledges that the signatory party represents the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and further warrants that there is nothing within a Joint Powers
Agreement, by which ADMINISTERING AGENCY was created, if any exists, that would restrict
or othenruise limit STATE's ability to recover STATE FUNDS improperly spent by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY in contravention of the terms of this AGREEMENT.

Page 9 of 16Page 156

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE V

AUDITS, THIRD PARTY CONTRACTING, RECORDS RETENTION AND REPORTS

1. STATE reseryes the right to conduct technical and financial audits of PROJECT work and
records and ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees, and shall require its contractors and
subcontractors to agree, to cooperate with STATE by making all appropriate and relevant
PROJECT records available for audit and copying as required by paragraph three (3) of Article
V.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and maintain
a financial management system and records that properly accumulate and segregate
reasonable, allowable, and allocable incurred PROJECT costs and matching funds by line item
for the PROJECT. The financial management system of ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its
contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of completion, and provide support
for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices sent to or paid by STATE.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, ADMINISTERING AGENCY's contractors and subcontractors,
and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection and audit by STATE, the
California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States,
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the
performance of such contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those
various contracts, and ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall furnish copies thereof if requested. All
of the above-referenced parties shall make such AGREEMENT and PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
materials available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the entire PROJECT
period and for three (3) years, or 35 years for Prop 1B funds, from the date of final payment to
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall not award a construction contract over $25,000 on the
basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be performed under this AGREEMENT without
the prior written approval of STATE. All contracts awarded by ADMINISTERING AGENCY
intended or used as local match credit must meet the requirements set forth in this
AGREEMENT regarding local match funds.

5. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 4525)
Division 5 of Title 1 of the Government Code and shall undertake the procedures described in

California Government Code 4527(a) and 4528(a). Administering Agency shall comply with
Chapter 10 of the LAPM for A&E Consultant Contracts.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall comply with Government Code Division 5 Title 1 sections
4525-4529.5 and shall undertake the procedures described in California Government Code
a527(a) and 4528(a) for procurement of professional service contracts. Administering Agency
shall follow Public Contract Code Section 10335-10381 for other professional service contracts.

7. Any subcontract entered into by ADMINISTERING AGENCY as a result of this AGREEMENI
shall contain all of the provisions of Article lV, FISCAL PROVISIONS, and this ARTICLE V,
AUDITS, THIRD-PARTY CONTRACTING, RECORDS RETENTION AND REPORTS and sha|I
mandate that travel and per diem reimbursements and third-

Page 10 of 16Page 157

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



party contract reimbursements to subcontractors will be allowable as PROJECT costs only after
those costs are incurred and paid for by the subcontractors.

8. To be eligible for local match credit, ADMINISTERING AGENCY must ensure that local
match funds used for a PROJECT meet the fiscal provisions requirements outlined in ARTICLE
lV in the same manner that is required of all other PROJECT expenditures.

9. Except as provided in this Article, this AGREEMENT is solely between and for the benefit of
the PARTIES and there are no third-party beneficiaries.

Page 11 of 16Page 158

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



ARTICLE VI - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
1. ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees to use all PROJECT funds reimbursed hereunder only
for transportation purposes that are in conformance with Article XIX of the California State
Constitution and other California laws.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall conform to all applicable State and Federal statutes and
regulations, and the Local Assistance Program Guidelines and Local Assistance Procedures
Manual as published by STATE and incorporated herein, including all subsequent approved
revisions thereto applicable to PROJECT unless othenvise designated in the project-specific
executed PROJECT SUPPLEMENT.

3. This AGREEMENT is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, conditions, or any
statute enacted by the State Legislature or adopted by the CTC that may affect the provisions,
terms, or funding of this AGREEMENT in any manner.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY and the officers and employees of ADMINISTERING AGENCY,
when engaged in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall act in an independent capacity
and not as officers, employees or agents of STATE.

5. Each project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT shall separately establish the terms and
funding limits for each described PROJECT funded under this AGREEMENT and that
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. No STATE FUNDS are obligated against this AGREEMENT.

6. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies that neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor its
principals are suspended or debarred at the time of the execution of this AGREEMENT, and
ADMINISTERING AGENCY agrees that it will notify STATE immediately in the event a
suspension or a debarment occurs after the execution of this AGREEMENT.

7. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies, by execution of this AGREEMENT, that no person or
selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this AGREEMENT upon an
agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee,
excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies
maintained by ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the purpose of securing business. For breach or
violation of this warranty, STATE has the right to annul this AGREEMENT without liability, pay
only for the value of the PROJECT work actually performed, or in STATE's discretion, to deduct
from the price of PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT consideration, or othenryise recover, the full
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

8. ln accordance with Public Contract Code section 10296, ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby
certifies under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt
of court by a federal court has been issued against ADMINISTERING AGENCY within the
immediate preceding two (2) year period because of ADMINISTERING AGENCY's failure to
comply with an order of a federal court that orders ADMINISTERING AGENCY to comply with
an order of the National Labor Relations Board.
9. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall disclose any financial, business, or other relationship with
STATE that may have an impact upon the outcome of this AGREEMENT or any individual
PROJECT encompassed within a PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT. ADMINISTERING AGENCY
shall also list current contractors who may have a financial interest in the outcome of a
PROJECT undertaken pursuant to this

Page 12 of 16Page 159

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



AGREEMENT. These disclosures shall be delivered to STATE in a form deemed acceptable by
the STATE prior to execution of this AGREEMENT.

10. ADMINISTERING AGENCY hereby certifies that it does not have, nor shall it acquire, any
financial or business interest that would conflict with the performance of any PROJECT initiated
under this AGREEMENT.

11. ADMINISTERING AGENCY certifies that this AGREEMENT was not obtained or secured
through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration either promised or paid to any
STATE employee. For breach or violation of this warranty, STATE shall have the right, in its
sole discretion, to terminate this AGREEMENT without liability, to pay only for PROJECT work
actually performed, or to deduct from a PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT price or othenvise recover
the full amount of such rebate, kickback, or other unlaMul consideration,

12. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this AGREEMENT that is not
disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the STATE's Contract Manager, who shall be
identified to ADMINISTERING AGENCY at the time of execution of this AGREEMENT and, as
applicable , any time that Contract Manager changes during the duration of this AGREEMENT
who may consider any written or verbal evidence submitted by ADMINISTERING AGENCY.
The decision of the Contract Manager, issued in writing, shall be conclusive and binding on the
PARTIES on all questions of fact considered and determined by the Contract Manager.

13. Neitherthe pending of a dispute nor its consideration bythe Contract Managerwill excuse
the ADMINISTERING AGENCY from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms
of this AGREEMENT and each PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT.

14. Neither STATE nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by ADMINISTERING
AGENCY under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction of ADMINISTERING
AGENCY arising under this AGREEMENT. lt is understood and agreed that ADMINISTERING
AGENCY shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless STATE and all of its officers and
employees from all claims and suits or actions of every name, kind and description brought forth
under, including but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation or other theories
or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY under this AGREEMENT.

15. Neither ADMINISTERING AGENCY nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for
any injury, damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by,
under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction arising under this AGREEMENT. lt
is understood and agreed that STATE shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless the
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and all of its officers and employees from all claims, suits or
actions of every name, kind and description brought forth under, including but not limited to,
tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation and other theories or assertions of liability
occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE under this
AGREEMENT.

16. ln the event of (a) ADMINISTERING AGENCY failing to timely proceed with effective
PROJECT work in accordance with the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT; (b) failing
to maintain any applicable bonding requirements; and (c)

Page 13 of 16Page 160

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



othenrvise materially violating the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT and/or any
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT, STATE reserves the right to terminate funding for that PROJECT
upon thirty (30) days'written notice to ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

17. No termination notice shall become effective if, within thirty (30) days after
receipt of a Notice of Termination, ADMINISTERING AGENCY either cures the default
involved of, if the default is not reasonably susceptible of cure within said thirty (30)
day period the ADMINISTERING AGENCY proceeds thereafter to complete that cure
in a manner and time line acceptable to STATE.

18. Any such termination shall be accomplished by delivery to ADMINISTERING
AGENCY of a Notice of Termination, which notice shall become effective not less
than thirty (30) days after receipt, specifying the reason for the termination, the
extent to which funding of work under this AGREEMENT and the applicable
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT is terminated and the date upon which such termination
becomes effective, if beyond thirty (30) days after receipt. During the period before
the effective termination date, ADMINISTERING AGENCY and STATE shall meet to
attempt to resolve any dispute, ln the event of such termination, STATE may
proceed with the PROJECT work in a manner deemed proper by STATE. lf STATE
terminates funding for PROJECT with ADMINISTERING AGENCY for the reasons
stated in paragraph sixteen (16) of ARTICLE Vl, STATE shall pay ADMINISTERING
AGENCY the sum due ADMINISTERING AGENCY under the PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT
and/or STATE-approved finance letter prior to termination, provided, however,
ADMINISTERING AGENCY is not in default of the terms and conditions of this
AGREEMENT or the project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and that the cost of any
PROJECT completion to STATE shall first be deducted from any sum due
ADMINISTERING AGENCY.

19. ln the case of inconsistency or conflicts with the terms of this AGREEMENT and
that of a project-specific PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or Cooperative Agreement,
the terms stated in that PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT and/or Cooperative Agreement
shall prevail over those in this AGREEMENT.

20. Without the written consent of STATE, this AGREEMENT is not assignable by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY either in whole or in part.

21. No alteration or variation of the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be valid unless
made in writing and signed by the PARTIES, and no oral understanding or
agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the PARTIES.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT by their
duly authorized officer.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTM ENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Chief, Office of Project lmplementation
Division of Local Assistance

City of Folsom

City of Folsom
Representative Name & Title
(Authorized Governing Body Representative)
DateDate

Page 14 of 16Page 161

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



EXHIBIT A - FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES ADDENDUM

1. ln the performance of this Agreement, ADMINISTERING AGENCY will not discriminate
against any employee for employment on account of race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital
status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and
veteran status. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will take affirmative action to ensure that employees
are treated during employment without regard to their race, religious creed, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information,
marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, oge, sexual orientation, or
military and veteran status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
employment; upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall post in conspicuous places, available to
employees for employment, notices to be provided by STATE setting forth the provisions of this
Fair Employment section.

2. ADMINISTERING AGENCY, its contracto(s) and all subcontractors shall comply with the
provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, 1290-0 et seq.), and the
applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code Regs., Title 2, 11000, et seq.). The
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing
Government Code section 12900(a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the
California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this AGREEMENT by reference and made
a part hereof as if set forth in full. Each of the ADMINISTERING AGENCY'S contractors and all
subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor
organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreements, as appropriate.

3. ADMINISTERING AGENCY shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of
this clause in all contracts and subcontracts to perform work under this AGREEMENT.

4. ADMINISTERING AGENCY will permit access to the records of employment, employment
advertisements, application forms, and other pertinent data and records by STATE, the State
Fair Employment and Housing Commission, or any other agency of the State of California
designated by STATE, for the purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the Fair
Employment section of this Agreement.

5. Remedies for Willful Violation

(a) STATE may determine a willful violation of the Fair Employment provision to have occurred
upon receipt of a final judgment to that effect from a court in an action to which
ADMINISTERING AGENCY was a party, or upon receipt of a written notice from the Fair
Employment and Housing Commission that it has investigated and determined that
ADMINISTERING AGENCY has violated the Fair Employment Practices Act.

(b) For willful violation of this Fair Employment Provision, STATE shall have the right

Page 15 of 16Page 162

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



to terminate this Agreement either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by
STATE in securing the goods or services thereunder shall be borne and paid for by
ADMINISTERING AGENCY and by the surety under the performance bond, if any, and STATE
may deduct from any moneys due or thereafter may become due to ADMINISTERING
AGENCY, the difference between the price named in the Agreement and the actual cost thereof
to STATE to cure ADMINISTERING AGENCY's breach of this Agreement.

Page 16 of 16Page 163

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 164

08/24/2021 Item No.20.



Folsom City Council
Staff

MEETING DATE: 8/241202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: ResolutionNo. 10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute a Contact Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers,
LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the Capital Southeast
Connector Segment D3(A), Project No. PW1607, Federal Project
No. s288(046)

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No.
10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contact Change Order with
Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the Capital Southeast Connector
Segment D3(A), ProjectNo. PWl607, Federal ProjectNo. 5288(046).

BACKGROUND / ISSUN

The planned Capital Southeast Connector is a 34-mile limited access roadway spanning from U.S.
50 at Silva Valley Parkway interchange in El Dorado County to Interstate 5 at the Hood-Franklin
Interchange in Elk Grove. The Connector is planned to be constructed in segments as funding and
priorities allow. Segment D3 includes the length of the Connector that borders the City of Folsom
and Sacramento County from Prairie City Road to the El Dorado County Line. Segment El is the
El Dorado County Segment that Segment D3 ties into.

Segment D3 has been further segmented into two additional segments: D3(A) and D3(B). Segment
D3(A) will upgrade existing White Rock Road to a fourJane expressway beginning near the
intersection of Prairie City Road and continuing tluough the intersection of East Bidwell Steet.
The project involves constructing four lanes between these two major intersections, including a
bridge over Alder Creek. The bridge also serves as a "wildlife crossingn" as contemplated in the
South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan.

I

Page 165

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



The project is a complete reconstruction that will create a new alignment of White Rock Road
adjacent and immediately south of the existing White Rock Road. The existing White Rock Road
will remain open to traffic during construction. The project was initially designed to include a
Class 1 Bike Trail and interconnection between haffic signals. These two items of work had been
removed from the project due to funding constraints.

The City of Folsom is leading the construction of this project on behalf of the Capital Southeast
Connector Joint Powers Authority (JPA) and in collaboration with Sacramento County.

The City has secured State Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) and SBI funding from
Sacramento Area Council of Govemments (SACOG) in partnership with the Capital Southeast
Connector JPA. A request for authorization to proceed with construction was submitted to Caltrans
on May t5,2020. The Authorization to Proceed (E-76) was received on June 25,2020 and the
subsequent Supplemental Agreement was received on August 8,2020.

The existing White Rock Road has been in need of repair and overlay for many years. Knowing
that the Connector would be replacing White Rock Road, major repair and overlay projects have
been postponed by both the City of Folsom and Sacramento County, with spot repairs having been
made by both agencies on a regular basis. With the amount of truck traffic hauling fill material to
both the Connector Segment D3(A) and the Folsom Plan Area projects, White Rock Road needed
repairs to make it safe for public use. As the City is managing the Southeast Connector D3(A) in
the vicinity of the needed repairs, staff authorized a field order to make the necessary repairs to
maintain a safe road for public use. The contractor has offered to credit back the profit margin of
the Force Account work in the amount of $ 12 I ,884 to assist the City in maintaining a safe road for
the public.

It is anticipated that traffic will be switched to the new alignment in early September 2021 and
fully open to traffic with two lanes in each direction by December 2022.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.080, Award of Contracts of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts
for supplies, equipment, senrices and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater
shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

This project was publicly advertised on July 13,2020 and bids were opened publicly on September
9,2020 at2:00 p.m. in the City Council Chamber.

Six bids were received with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC being the lowest responsive responsible
bid as follows:

2

Page 166

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



Contractor Rankine Bid Amount
Goodfellow Brothers, LLC Lowest Responsive

Responsible Bid
$22,369,765.00

The Lowest Responsive Responsible Bid Proposal provided by Goodfellow Brothers, LLC was
reviewed by staff and found to be in good order.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A) is eligible to receive funds from FAST Act
funding based on a SACOG Regional Surface Transportation Program Grant and SB-l Funding.
Funding for construction and conskuction engineering is shown below:

Fund Fund Tvpe Amount
FAST Act Surface Transportation Block Grant

to match SB-l Funding I to I at
$10,000,000

$15,000,000

SBI Competitive $10,000,000

Local
Transportation
Fund (446)

To match Surface Transportation
Block Grant of $15,000,000 at
tI.47%

$1,720,500

Local
Transportation
Fund (446)

To Cover Balance of Project
Funding

$1,195,147

Project Budget for Construction $27,915,396

The FAST Act funding requires a local match of ll.47o/o. The Transportation Fund (Fund 446)
will be utilized to meet the required match of $1,720,500. The SBl funding requires a $100%
match, of which $10,000,000 of the FAST Act funding will be utilized as the match.

The agreement with Goodfellow previously approved is in the amount of S22,368,765 with a
budgeted contingency of $2,236,876.50 (10%) for a total contract budget amount of
$24,605,641,50.

3

Page 167

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



The contract costs for construction and construction management have been previously approved
by City Council in separate resolutions as follows:

Comnanv Description Cost
Goodfellow Brothers, LLC Construction $22,368,765.00

10% Contingency for
Construction

$2,236,876.50

Salaber Associates, Inc. Construction Engineering,
Inspection and Materials Testing

$2,992,848.00

Dokken Engineering, Inc. Design Support and
Environmental Services

$317,157.28

Project Budget for Construction $27,915,647.78

Contract Change Order No. 8 will utiliz.e the existing Contingency in the amount of $116,969.
No adjustments to the project budget will be required.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

In2016 the Capital Southeast Connector JPA approved a California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Tiered Initial Study with Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Capital Southeast
Connector Segment D3/El.

Caltrans approved the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Categorical Exclusion for
Segment D3/E1.

The project is not located in an environmentally sensitive area and would not result in potential
impacts to the environment, including traffic, noise, air quality and water quality.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the
Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A), Project No. PWl607, Federal Project No.
s288(046)

Submitted,

4

Dave Nugen, C DIRECTOR

Page 168

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



RESOLUTION NO. 10688

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER WITH GOODF'ELLOW BROTHERS, LLC

(CONTRACT NO. 174-2120-060) FOR THE CAPTTAL SOUTHEAST CONNECTOR
SEGMENT D3(A), PROJECT NO. PW1607, FEDERAL PROJECT NO. 5288(046)

WHEREAS, the Capital Southeast Connector Project is the Sacramento region's largest
single transportation project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom is a Member Jurisdiction of the Capital Southeast
Connector Joint Powers Authority and will implement the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Capital Southeast Connector Project has, to date, been funded primarily
through a Sacramento County sales-tax measure approved in2004by 75 percent of voters; and

WHEREAS, the Capital Southeast Connector Project has established a program
development budget that requires the use of Federal and State funds to advance the project towards
timely construction; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to construct the Capital Southeast Connector
Project Segment D3(A) along the City's border to four lanes with two eight foot shoulders; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom received Surface Transportation Block Grant Program
funding, and is eligible for federal reimbursement, up to $15,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom received SB-1 funding, and is eligible for state

reimbursement up to $10,000,000; and

WHEREAS, this project was publicly advertised on July 13,2020 with six bids received
on September 9, 2020 with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC being the lowest responsive responsible
bidder; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom entered into a contract with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC
for construction of the Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A); and

WHEREAS, Contract Change Order #8 will be utilized to make repairs to the existing
White Rock Road to make it safe for public use; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREF'ORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers,
LLC (Contract No. 174-2120-060) for the Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A), Project
No. PWl607, Federal Project No. 5288(046),inthe amount of $116,969.

Resolution No. 10688
Page I of2

Page 169

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24h day of August2}2l,by the following roll-call vote:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10688
Page2 of2

Page 170

08/24/2021 Item No.21.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified
Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and

Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the
University of California relative to the UCD Health Sciences Campus Project (Introduction
and First Reading)

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City and Landowner's predecessor (Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC) previously entered

into the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement By and Between the City
of Folsom and Landowner Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan on July 15, 20L4.

Section 1.5 of the Restated Development Agreement allows the Restated Development

Agreement to be amended from time to time by mutual written consent of the parties. On

November 12,2015, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC and the City entered into Amendment
No. I to First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom

South Specific Plan.

I

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement
Amendment - Northwest corner of East Bidwell Street and
Street B (PN 2l-153)

Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City
of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the
University of California relative to the UCD Health
Sciences Campus Project (Introduction and First Reading)

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 171

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



The applicant is proposing Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Development

Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of Califomia
relative to the UCD Health Sciences Campus project.

On June 16, 2021, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map, Planned

Development Permit, and Commercial Design Guidelines for Parcels 61 and 71 located within
the Folsom Plan Area. The Tentative Parcel Map subdivided a 123-acre property located at

the northwest corner of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway into four individual
parcels and a remainder lot, for future sale, lease, and financing. The Planned Development

Permit established unique development standards relative to minimum lot size for the subject
parcels. Lastly, the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines were established to guide

design and development of future commercial development on the subject parcels. The UCD
Health Sciences Campus project will be located on a 34.5-acre parcel (Lot/Parcel 1) that was

created by the aforementioned Tentative Parcel Map that was approved by the Planning

Commission in June of this year. The approved Tentative Parcel Map is shown in Figure 1

below.

FIGURE I: PARCEL 61 AND 77 TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP

lpw[s.s

1!:9flS!-

l

:l
:" 1

',t tli, .;.

TOrMM.A

AIDTR CREIX ftWY

: - ill li
t')hfl; ffi

T*"1 ,,l,tltull

2

'ioi 
I

tc

Raminder

F

Page 172

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Physical Setting
The UCD Health Sciences Campus project site is a rectangular-shaped 34.5-acre parcel located

near the northwest corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway

within the Folsom Plan Area. A Conceptual Site Plan for the Health Sciences Campus is shown
in Figure 2 below.

FIGURE 2: CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

ErelffiIEFilEMffiIffi

bI.r5ffi!Fh

t r DAVIS
HEATTH

UC Dcvir Hoohh I ldom Crnrr
Conoepluol Plonning ond Progrum

The applicant, the University of California, Davis, is requesting approval of a Development
Agreement Amendment (Attachment 2) associated with future development of a 400,000-
square-foothealth sciences campus (UCD Health Sciences Campus) ona34.5-acre site located
near the northwest corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway
within the Folsom Plan Area. Specifically, the proposed project includes Amendment No. 2
to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between the City
of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California relative to the UCD Health Sciences
Campus project. The duration of the Development Agreement Amendment follows the
existing term of the Restated Development Agreement with an expiration date of June 30,
2044.

The Development Agreement Amendment is intended to incorporate in the definition of
ooentitlements" the previous approvals by the City for the project including a Parcel Map, a
Planned Development Permit, and the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines, as well
as the proposed Development Agreement Amendment once approved by the City Council.
The Development Agreement Amendment is also intended to recognize and memorialize that

J
Page 173

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



as a State agency, the applicant is permitted to exercise its land use authority as a lead agency
for development of the subject property under the California Constitution, subject to the
applicant's promise and commitment to subject itself to the City's Zoning Code and the Folsom
Plan Area Specific Plan, except as otherwise specified in the Development Agreement
Amendment. In addition, the Development Agreement Amendment requires the applicant to
pay all development impact fees, connection fees, and mitigation fees for development of the
subject property as required by Section 2.2.4 of the Restated Development Agreement.

As mentioned previously, the applicant is a State agency and has its own land use authority,
and it intends to exercise its own public review and approval processes for development of the
subject property, including environmental review and analysis under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Notwithstanding its land use authority, the applicant has

agreed to subject itself to the City's Zoning Code and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan,
except as specified in the Development Agreement Amendment. The development standards

specified in the Development Agreement Amendment are consistent with recently approved
standards for the Dignity Medical Center project:

(1) Setback (Building) - 10 feet between buildings for every story.
(2) Height (Building) - Height limits of (i) 80 feet for Office uses, (ii) 100 feet for

Lodging uses and (iiD 120 feet for Medical Services/Hospital uses. The

foregoing height limits shall include all architectural features, mechanical

equipment, parapets, etc.

(3) Floor to Area Ratio (FAR) - maximum 0.55.

(4) Parking - Subject to Specific Plan requirements (including bicycle parking) or a
City-approved altemate or City-approved shared use parking plan and

implementing agreements.
(5) Traffic Circulation - No vehicular exit to or from E. Bidwell Street between

US50 and Alder Creek Parkway without the approval and consent of both the
California Department of Transportation and the City.

(6)Signage_Anyfreestanding,freeway-orientedsign@
will be subject to City approval.

(7) Landscaping - Provide City-approved landscaping and ongoing maintenance
within the 25-foot-wide landscape corridor easement once Class 1 Bicycle Path

is constructed by the City.
(8) Heliport - Requires approval by the City and other applicable Authorities

Having Jurisdiction.
(9) Landscaping - Minimum of 20 percent of Property must be landscaped;

minimum may include Class I Bicycle Path landscaping
(10) Water use shall not exceed amount contemplated for the Property in the Specific

Plan.
(11) Building Code - University of California Facilities Manual, Volume 3, Chapter

4 shall apply https : //www. ucop. edu/construction-service s/facilitie s-

manual/volume-3 /vo l- 3 -chapter-4.html#intro
(12) The Property is part of Parcel 61, which has approved302,48l square feet of

Regional Commercial,270,072 square feet of General Commercial, and

4
Page 174

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



196,745 square feet of Industrial/Office Park. Owner/Applicant shall coordinate
with owner(s) of the rest of Parcel 61 so that the aforementioned limitation for
the entire Parcel 61 shall not be exceeded with the Development of the Property.

As noted previously, the Development Agreement Amendment also requires the applicant to
pay all existing development impact fees, connection fees, and mitigation fees for
development of the subject property as required by the original Restated Development
Agreement. However, the Development Agreement Amendment does specifu that, as long
as the property is developed consistent with the aforementioned development standards and

operated to fulfill its health, educational, research, and public service mission, the subject
property shall not be subject to: (1) City development processing fees except for matters the
applicant requests the City to process, review or approve; and (2) any new citywide
regulatory or non-impact fees for a period of 15 years from the effective date of the
Amendment.

On August 4,202I, the Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider the UCD
Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment project. Planning
Commission discussion and comments were focused primarily on the City's role and

involvement in future approvals and public participation in the review process for the UCD
Health Sciences Campus project. With respect to future approvals, the Commission was

particularly interested in whether the City should have a more active role in reviewing the
architecture and design of a potential hotel on the project site given that this use may not be

perceived as a health or medical-related use. The applicant indicated that the hotel, which is
integral to the medical campus, is intended to serve patients as well as family and friends
who are visiting/asssisting patients in the health science campus facilities on a short or long-
term basis (similar to hotels that currently serve the UCD campuses in Davis and in
Sacramento). The applicant also stated that the State has a robust design review process and

that they are committed to adhering to existing design guidelines established for the Folsom
Plan Area with respect to the hotel design.

In relation to future approvals, the Commission also expressed concern regarding proposed

language in the Development Agreement Amendment relative to future freeway-oriented
signs on the project site. The Development Agreement Amendment states that any

freestanding, freeway-oriented sign within 75 feet of the freeway will be subject to City
approval. The applicant's intent in including this language in the Amendment was to
accommodate potential future signage for the current landowner within a 75-foot-wide
signage easement areaadlacent to U.S. Highway 50. The Commission did not believe that it
was appropriate to limit City review of future freestanding freeway-oriented signs to a
distance of 75 feet from U.S. Highway 50, and that the City should have review authority for
all proposed freestanding freeway-oriented signs on the entire project site. As a result, the
Commission recommended that the language in the Development Agreement Amendment
relative to signage be modified as follows:

(6)Signage_Anyfreestanding,freeway-orientedsign@will
be subject to City approval.

5
Page 175

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



The applicant is agreeable to this modification.

The Commission also expressed an interest in knowing what type of opportunities would be

available for public participation in the CEQA review process. In addition, the Commission

wanted to verifu that the public would have the opportunity to review and comment on the

overall design of the UCD Health Sciences Campus project. In response to these comments,

the applicant indicated that both the City and the public would be provided the opportunity to
provide comments and feedback on both the CEQA review process and the overall project
design through public meetings under the applicant's land use authority. Ultimately, the
Commission voted 5-1-l to recommend to the City Council approval of the Development
Agreement Amendment.

POLICY / RULE

As set forth in the State Planning andZoning Law, approval of, or amendments to, a
Development Agreement is a legislative act which requires approval by the City Council
following review and recommendation by the Planning Commission.

ANALYSIS

The applicant has submitted a project narrative (Attachment 6) in which they describe the

goals and objectives associated with development of a health sciences campus on the subject
property and the rationale for entering into a Development Agreement Amendment with the
City. In terms of goals and objectives the applicant indicates that development of a health
sciences campus on the subject property would serve a number of purposes including
expanding the UCD health services and patient access in Folsom, replacing existing UCD
health care services in existing facilities in Folsom where leases are set to expire, and

securing a prime location in Folsom that exudes wellness, community, convenience, and

excellence.

In reviewing the original Restated Development Agreement, the applicant noted that the

Agreement appears to overlap with respect to the typical land use entitlement authority
granted to the University of Califomia. The applicant states that the Development
Agreement, as a recorded deed encumbrance, extends beyond typical master developer
obligations and includes design and plan review provisions and would remain enforceable
even during ownership by the University of California. The applicant comments that carrying
these development agreement requirements forward would essentially duplicate the public
agency review and entitlement processes by requiring duplicative review and consideration
by both the City of Folsom and by the University of California. Thus, the applicant is

requesting to amend the Development Agreement to allow it to exercise its own land use

review and entitlement authority with respect to the subject property. The following is a list
of Development Agreement Amendment benefits provided by the applicant:

6
Page 176

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



a

a

a

Remove Duplicate Entitlement Process: The proposed action would remove

duplication in the entitlement process for the property helping to avoid development

delays and inefficiencies.

Standard University of California Ownership: The proposed action would ensure

the land ownership and entitlement process would be standard for the Board of
Regents of the University of California. The University commits to comply with the

City's ZoningCode and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and intends to work
collaboratively with the City of Folsom to maintain consistency of planning goals,

infrastructure construction and maintenance and pursuit of overall community goals

for the City of Folsom.

Avoid Contradictory/Overlapping Requirements : The amendment would provide
long-term certainty to the Regents while still maintaining a strong public engagement

process for the local and University communities. The University planning process is

robust, thorough and complete with extensive consideration of serving the public
need, exceptional design details and high-quality architecture, advanced sustainability
measures, and careful compliance with public contracting and labor agreements.

Establish Public Clarity: The amendment would ensure that the University is
identified as the responsible public agency for entitlements, design review and other
matters.

Demonstrate Public Efficiency: The amendment would demonstrate two public
agencies working collaboratively and efficiently in furtherance of public service goals

and kickstarting the construction that has been planned at the parcel.

The California Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development ("OSHPD")
is required to approve the medical office building, the micro hospital building, and

the ambulatory surgery center designs which may result in required changes to the

design of the Medical Center buildings and related structures.

The UCD Heath Sciences Campus will generate significant employment and other
economic benefits to the City.

a

In evaluating the proposed Development Agreement Amendment, staff determined that there

are significant benefits to the City and the region associated with development of the new

Health Science Campus within the Folsom Plan Area. In addition, staff determined that there

are a number of unique characteristics associated with buildout of the UCD Health Science

Campus. Listed below are the public benefits and unique characteristics associated the UCD
Health Campus project:

Development of the UCD Health Science Campus will occur over a long period of
time, with a phased timeline for construction and potential adjustments to physical
structures as medical delivery systems change over time.

a

a

7

o

Page 177

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



The UCD Health Science Campus will provide needed expansion of access to health
care services for the City and other jurisdictions in the region.

A significant capital investment is required for the UCD Health Sciences Campus

buildings and related structures; and

The status of applicant as a not-for-profit public benefit corporation.

City staff is supportive of the Development Agreement Amendment as modified by the

Planning Commission at its August 4,2021meeting.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact is anticipated with approval of the Development Agreement Amendment

associated with the UCD Health Sciences Campus Project as the project will not result in any

change in the total amount of commercial square footage or residential unit count within the
Folsom Plan Area.

AL REVIEW

The City, as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act, previously

approved an Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS for the subject property. The City has

determined that the adoption of this Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated

Development Agreement Amendment relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan involves no

new impacts not considered in the FPASP EIR/EIS and the Parcels 61 and 77 Addendum to

the FPASP EIR/EIS. Since the Addendum was approved, none of the events described in
Public Resources Code section2ll66 or CEQA Guidelines section 15162 (e.g. substantial

changes to the project) have occurred. Further environmental review is not required.

ATTACHMENTS

l. Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving
Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of Califomia relative to the
UCD Health Sciences Campus Project (Introduction and First Reading)

2. Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by
and between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California relative
to the UCD Health Sciences Campus Project

3. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated August 4,202I

a

a

a

8
Page 178

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

9
Page 179

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Attachment 1

Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City
of Folsom Approving Amendment No. 2 to the First

Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University

of California relative to the
UCD Health Sciences Campus Project

(Introduction and First Reading)

Page 180

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ORDINANCE NO. 1316

AN UNCODIFIED ORDINANCB OF THB CITY OF FOLSOM APPROVING
AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND THE
REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA RELATIVE TO THE UCD

HEALTH SCIENCES CAMPUS PROJECT

WHEREAS, a Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement for
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan was prepared and certified by the City Council on June 11,

2011, and the Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission approved the City's annexation
of the Folsom Plan Area on January 18,2012; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority in Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of the
Government Code, the City Council, following a duly notified public hearing on June 28,20II,
approved the Tier 1 Development Agreement relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan (Tier 1

DA) for the development of the Folsom Plan Area by adopting Ordinance No. 1149 on July 12,
201 l; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, following a duly noticed public hearing on May 27,2014,
approved a request to amend the Tier 1 DA to the development of the Westland/Eagle Project by
approving a First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement (ARDA) between the
City and the developer of the Westland/Eagle Project, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC, by
adopting Ordinance No. 1204 on June 10,2014; and

WHEREAS, the City Council, following a duly noticed public hearing on September 22,

2015, approved a request to amend the ARDA to the development of the Westland/Eagle Project
by approving Amendment No. 1 to ARDA between the City and the developer of the
Westland/Eagle Project, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC, by adopting Ordinance No. 1237 on

October 13,2015; and

WHEREAS, the proposed UCD Health Sciences Campus Project consists of the

development of an approximately 400,0O0-square-foot medical campus on a34.5-acre site
located at the northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Street B within the
Folsom Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the City and the landowner/developer of the UCD Health Sciences Campus

Project desire to further amend the ARDA in order to provide greater certainty and clarity to
matters that are common, necessary and essential for the development of the project; and

Ordinance No. l3l6
Page I of4

Page 181

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, at its regular meeting on August 4,2021,
considered Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development

Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California
relative to the UCD Health Sciences Campus project at a duly noticed public hearing as

prescribed by law, and recommended that the City Council approve said Amendment No. 2;

and

WHEREAS, all notices have been given at the time and in the manner required by
State Law and the Folsom Municipal Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Folsom hereby does

ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 FINDINGS

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference.

B. The Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development

Agreement by and between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California
is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses and programs specified in the

City's General Plan and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan.

C. The Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development
Agreement is in conformity with public convenience, general welfare, and good land use

practices.

D. The Amendment No. 2 will not be detrimental to the health, safety, and general

welfare of persons residing in the immediate area, nor be detrimental or injurious to
property or persons in the general neighborhood or to the general welfare of the residents

of the City as a whole.

E. The Amendment No. 2 will not adversely affect the orderly development of
property or the preservation of property values.

F. The Amendment No. 2 has been prepared in accordance with, and is consistent
with, Government Code Sections 65864 through 65869.5, and City Council ResolutionNo
2370.

G. All notices have been given at the tirne and in the manner required by State Law
and the Folsom Municipal Code.

Ordinance No. | 316
Page 2 of 4

Page 182

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



H. The Amendment No. 2 is consistent with the Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan certified by the

City Council on June 17,2011 and the 2027 Parcels 61 and 77 Addendum, which are

incorporated herein by reference. None of the events in Sections 15162 and 15163 of the CEQA
Guidelines exists which wanant the preparation of a subsequent EIR or supplemental EIR.

SECTION 2 APPROVAL OF MENT TO DEVBLOPMENT
AGREEMENT

The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Amendment No. 2 to
the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement by and between the

City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California on behalf of the City after the

effective date of this Ordinance.

SECTION 3 RARII,ITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part

thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the

remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would
have passed each section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection,

sentence, clause, or phrase be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 4 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the

City Council on August24,2021 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the

City Council on September 14, 2021.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member'
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of

the City of Folsom, State of California, this 14th day of September 2021, by the following roll-
call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councihnember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmernber(s):
Councilmember(s):

Ordinance No. l3 l6
Page 3 of4

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 183

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

C)rdinance No. l3 l6
Page 4 ol4

Page 184

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Attachmerfi.2

Amendment No . 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement between the Cify of Folsom and the
Regents of the University of California relative to the

UCD Health Sciences Campus Project

Page 185

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
PURSUANTTO GOVERNMENT CODE S6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY CITY CLERK

WHEN RECORDED MAILTO:

City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT

RELATIVE TO FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

(uNtvERslTY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS)

Page 186

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ATUIENDMENT NO. 2 TO
FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RELATIVE TO FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN
(uNlvERslw oF cALlFoRNlA, DAVIS)

This Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Development Agreement
("Amendment No. 2") is entered into this 

- 
day of 2021, by and between

the City of Folsom ('City") and The Regents of the University of California, a Califomia
corporation on behalf of its Davis Campus ("Landowner") pursuant to the authority of
Seclions 658M through 65869.5 of the Government Code of California. All capitalized
terms used herein and nof otherwise defined herein shall rnean and refer to those terms
as defined in Section 1.3 of the Restated Development Agreement and Amendment No,

1 to the Restated Development Agreement, described below between the Predecessor
in lnterest to Landowner and the City.

RECITALS

A. Restrated DevelopmentAoreement and Amendments Thereto. The City

and Landowner's predecessor in interest Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC (referred to
herein as the "Predecessor in lnterest") previously entered into that certain First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement By and Between the City of
Folsom and Landowner Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan, recorded on July
15,2014, in the Official Records of the County Recorder of Sacramento County in Book

20'140715, Page 0517 (the "Restated Development Agreement"). Section 1.5 of the
Restated Development Agreement allows the Restated Development Agreement to be

amended from time to time by mutual written consent of the parties. On November 12,
2015, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC and the City entered into Amendment No. 1 to
First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom

South Specific Plan, recorded on January 29,2016, in the Official Records of the
County Recorder of Sacramento County in Book 0160129, Page No. 0385
("Amendment No. 1"). The Restated Development Agreement and Amendment No. 1

are collectively referred to herein as the 'Development Agreement."

B. Pendinq Convevance of Propertv to Landowner and Assiqnment of
Development Agreement. Predecessor in lnterest is in the process of conveying the
properti identified by legal description on Exhibit A-1 and depicted on Ef[ihit A,'2
("Property") to its affiliate, Enclave at Folsom Ranch, LLC ("Predecessor Affiliate"), who
will in turn convey the Property to Landowner in or around [September l, 2021.
Predecessor in lnterest will enter into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement
Relative to The Folsom South Specific Plan Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement with Predecessor Affiliate, pursuant to a form approved and

required by the City ("Assignment and Assumption Agreement"). Concurrent with its
anticipated conveyance of the Property to Landowner, Predecessor Affiliate will enter
into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement with Landowner to transfer all rights,

title, interest, burdens and obligations of the Predecessor in lnterest under the
Development Agreement with respect to the Property to Landowner. Said Assignment

48?4-37r4-L234.7

L

Page 187

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



and Assumption Agreement will be recorded in the Official Records of the County
Recorder of Sacramento CountY.

C. Effect of Amendment No, 2 Subiect to Convevance of Propertv to
Landowner and Assionment of DevelopmentAsreement. This Amendment No. 2 is
subjeci to, and will take effect only upon, the transfer and conveyance of legal title to

Property from Predecessor Affiliate to Landowner. Notwithstanding any provision to the

contrary, this Amendment No. 2 will automatically terminate without further action by

City or Landowner if Landowner does not obtain legal title to Property on or prior to
December 31,2021 as evidenced by a deed signed by Predecessor Affiliate on or prior

to that date.

D. Prior Citv Approvals Relative to the ProperW. The Property is identified as

"Lot 1" of "Parcel 61" on a Parcel Map approved by the City Planning Commission on

June 16, 2021 (PN 21-043). Lot 1 is one of four parcels created by the subdivision of
the property identified as Parcel6l in the Specific Plan. The Final Parcel Map including

Lot i was filed for record on . 2021 in Book 

-, 
Page of Parcel

Maps, Sacramento County. Concurrent with the approval of the subdivision of Parcel
61 on June 16, 2Q21, the Planning Commission also approved an Addendum to the
Final EIR for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, a Planned Development Permit that
reduced the minimum parcel size for Regional Commercialfrom 60-acres to 0.25 acre,

and the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines to guide commercial and office

design and development.

E. Purpose of Amendment Findings Related to Health Sciences Campus.
Landowner is processing Subsequent Entitlements for the Development of the Property

for comprehensive health, educational, research and public service uses (as further

defined in Section 1.3 of this Amendment No. 2 and hereafter the "Health Sciences
Campus"). Landowner has requested that the Prior City Approvals of the Parcel Map,

Planned Development Permit, and Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines be

included in the definition of Entitlements in the Development Agreement. As a public

trust corporation known as The Regents of the University of Califomia, Landowner
further requests to be permitted to exercise its land use authority as lead ag_ency for
Development of the Property under Section 9 of Article lX of the California Constitution,

subjectto Landowner's promise and commitment to subject itself to the City's land use

and zoning ordinances, including the City's Building and Zoning Codes, except as
otherwiselpecified in this Amendment No. 2. The City Council has determined that the

development of the Health Sciences Campus on the Property presents significant
benefits to the City and the region.

F, Property. The subject of this Amendment No. 2 is the Development of the

Property, as defined in Section 1.3. Landowner has an equitable interest in the

Propertlr and intends to become legal owner of the Proper$ and shall be bound by this

Amendment No. 2 and the DevelopmentAgreement.

4834-37L4-7234.7

2

--. 
E 

-,^, 
,^. Page 188

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



G. Hearinos. On August 4,2021, the City Planning Commission, designated

as the planning agency for purposes of development agreement review pursuant to

Government C;de section 65867, in a duly noticed and conducted public hearing,

considered this Amendment No. 2 and recommended that the City Council approve this

Amendment No. 2 to the DevelopmentAgreement. On August 24,2021, the City

Council, in a duly noticed and conducted public hearing, conducted the first reading of

Ordinance No. and approved this Amendment No. 2, and thereafter
conductedtnesecondreadingofordinanceNo.-atadulynoticed
regular meeting of the City Council on [September 14,2021 and adopted the Ordinance

approving this Amendment No. 2'

H. Environme0tal Review. On June 16,2A21, the Planning Commission

considered the Environmental Checklist and Addendum (the "Addendum") to the

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS for the Property. All applicable mitigation

measures to reduce environmental impacts to less than signiflcant have been

incorporated into the Parcel Map, the Planned Development Permit, and the Folsom

Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines as reflected by the findings adopted by the
planning Commission in bonnection with the aforementioned approvals, including the

C1y Council's consideration, adoption of findings, and approval of this Amendment No.

2.

l. No New lmpacts Associated with Approval of Amendment. The City

Council has determined that the adoption of this Amendment No. 2 involves no new

impacts not considered in the Specific Plan ElR, the Previous EnvironmentalAnalyses
lisied in Section l, "lntroduction and Background" of the Addendum, and the Addendum;

therefore, no further environmental documents relating to the adoption of this

Amendment No, 2are required.

J. Consistencv with General Plan and Specific Plan, Having duly examined

and considered this Arnendment No. 2, the City finds and declares that this Amendment

No. 2 is consistent with the General Plan and the specific Plan.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual

covenants, promises, and agreements herein contained, and for other good and

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and

agreed, the parties agree to hereby amend the Development Agreement as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. lncorporation of Recltale. The Recitals above are true and correct and

constitute enforceable provisions of this Amendment No. 2.

Z. Definition and Section 1.5.3 - Subseqgqnt FntitlemenF._ The term
',subsequent fntitlernents" in the Definitions Section of the Development Agreement

and also referenced in Section 1.5.3 of the Development Agreement is amended to

include the following:

3

4834-3714-1234.7

Page 189

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



a. The Parcel Map approved by the Planning Commission on June 16,2A21

b. The Planned Development Permit approved by the Planning Commission on

June 16,2021.

c. The Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines approved by the Planning

Commission on June 16,2021,

d. This Amendment No. 2 approved by the Folsom City Council on [September
14,2021.

3. Section 1.3 - Definitions. The following Definitions are added:

"Adopting Ordinance" means Ordinance No.-, dated [September 14,2021,
approving this Amendment No.2.

"Addendum' means the Environmental Checklist and Addendum dated May 28,

2021.

"Design Guidelines" means the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines
approved by the City Planning Commission.

"Effective Date" means the date which is the later of (i) thirty (30) calendar days
after the date of the Ordinance approving this Amendment No. 2, or (ii) the date title to
the Property vests in Landowner.

"EnvironmentalAnalysis" means the Addendum and the Previous Environmental
Analyses listed in Section l, "lntroduction and Background" of the Addendum.

"Landowner" means The Regents of the University of California, a California
corporation on behalf of its Davis Campus.

"Planned Development Permit" means the Planned Development Permit
approved by the Planning Commission in connection with its approval of the Parcel
Map.

"Health Sciences Campus" means the buildings and related structures,
improvements and facilities developed on the Property to support the health, education,
research and public service missions of Landowner.

"Predecessor in lnterest" shall mean the prior owner of the Property and party to
the Restated Development Agreement and Amendment No. 1, i.e., Eagle Commercial
Partners, LLC.

4834-37t4-t234.7

4

--.- {r^- r-. Page 190

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



"Predecessor Affiliate" shall mean the affiliate of Predecessor in lnterest, Enclave

at Folsom Ranch, LLC.

"Project" means development of the Property consistent with the Development

Agreement and the Subsequent Entitlements'

,,Property" means the land identified by legal description on Elb!.b,i!-&Land
depicted on Exhibit A-2.

"subsequent Entitlements" shall have the amended definition set forth in
paragraph 2, subsections (a)-(d), inclusive, of this Amendment No. 2.

"Vested Rights" means the rights to Develop the Property consistent with the

terms and provisions of the Restated Development Agreement, Amendment No. 1, this

Amendment No. 2 and the provisions of the Subsequent Entitlements.

4. Section 1.4.1 - Commencement Exbnsion. Exoiqtion. This

Amendment ruo. Z shall become operative on the Effective Date and continue through

the Term of the Development Agreement. Landowner may request an additional

extension pursuant to Section 1.4.1 ol the Development Agreement.

S. Section 1.6 -Chanoes to the Citv's lncluslonarv Housino.Ordinance.
Section 1.6 of the Development Agreement is hereby revised to read as follows: "The

City has amended the lnclusionary Housing Ordinance, (i.e., Folsom Municipal Code

Chlpter iT.1O4l by Ordinance No. 1243, to eliminate Second Dwelling Units (also

refeired to as "granny flats") as an alternative means of meeting the City's inclusionary

housing requirements. Landowner hereby acknowledges and agrees that there is no

vested right to use Second Dwelling Units as an altemative means for meeting the

City's inc'iusionary housing requirements and that this alternative shall not be available

to Landowner from and after the date of Ordinance No. 1243. Landowner further
acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to Section 65850 of the California

Government CoOe (specifically Section 65850(9)), effective January 1,2018, to allow for

the implementation of inclusionary housing requirements in residential rental units, upon

adoption of an ordinance by the City. The Landowner is not cunently contemplating any

residential rental projects within the Property; however, in the event the City amends its

lnclusionary Housing Ordinance with respect to rental housing pursuant to Section

6b850(g), Landowner (or a successor in interest) agrees that the Property shall be

subject to said City Ordinance, as amended, should any residential rental project be

proposed within the Property. Other than the elimination of the "granny flat" option and

ihe'possible future application of an inclusionary housing requirement on residential

rental properties (upon the conditions stated herein), the Parties agree that all other

alternatives for meeting the City's inclusionary housing requirements remain vested to

the full extent provided for in the Development Agreement'"

6. Section 2.{ - Permitted Usee. The permitted uses of the Property, the

density anU intensity of use, the maximum height and size of proposed buildings and

5

4834-37L4-r234.7

Page 191

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



related structures and setbacks shall be consistent with the Specific Plan and the City's

Zoning Code, as applicable, except as specifically provided for in this Amendment No.

2,

7. Secfion 2.2 - Vested Riohts. The City agrees that, except as otherwise
provided in and as may be amended in accordance with the Exceptions to Vested

ifignts set forth in Section 2.2.3 of the Development Agreement the City is granting, and
grints herewith, Vested Rights to Development for the Term of this Amendment No. 2 in

iccordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. The City acknowledges that

the rights vested by the Development Agreement include the land uses and

approximate acreages for the Property as shown and described in Exhibits A.1 andA'
!'attached hereto, or as such land uses and approximate acreages may be amended by

those Specific Plan Amendments referenced in Section 1.5.3 of the Development

Agreement. Nothing in this Amendment No. 2 shall impair or affect the rights of
Lindowner under a vesting tentative map or the City's rights to condition such maps.

(Govt. Code Sec. 66498.1, et seq.)

Such uses shall be developed in accordance with the Subsequent Entitlements,

as the Subsequent Entitlements are described in Section 1.5.3 of this Amendment No. 2

and as approved by the City on the Effective Date'

Section 2.2.1 - 2.2.8. No changes, except for the modification of two

items in Section 2.2.4 and the addition of Section2.2.9 as an Exception to Vested

Rights, as follows:

Section 2.2.4 - Citv Fees and New Plan Area Fees. lncludino
Cost lncreases. Notwithstanding any other provision in the Development Agreement,

as arnenOea frereby, Landowner and the City agree that, so long as the Property is

developed consistent with the standards in Section 3.9.3 and operated by the

Landowner to fulfill its health, educational, research and public service mission

consistent with Section 9 of Article lX of the California Constitution, (a) the fees included

in Subparagraph (6) of Section 2.2.4 shall not apply to the Property except for matters

Landowneirequests the City to process, review, or approve; and (b) the fees included

in Subparagraph (S) of Section 2.2.4 shall not apply to the Property for a period of
fifteen'(15) yeirs iollowing the Effective Date. Except as otherwise expressly provided

in this Amendment, Landowner acknowledges and agrees to pay the fees enumerated

in Section 2.2.4.

Section 2.2.9 - Class 1 Bicvcle Path. Landowner acknowledges

that it is responsible for rough grading and installation of any necessary retaining wall at

its sole cost and expense to accommodate the Class 1 Bicycle Path on the northern

portion of the Property as shown in Figure 7.32 of the Specific Plan. Grading for the

proposed Class 1 Bicycle Path and the construction of any necessary retaining walls

shall commence at the time of the initial construction of the first building on the Property.

6
4834-3714-1234.7

Page 192

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



8. Secfon 3.5 - EIR Mifiqa$on Meagures. Notwithstanding any other
provision in the Deveioiment Agreement, as amended hereby, as and when Landowner

elects to Develop the Property, or any portion of the Property, Landowner shall be
perform necessary environmental review and analysis under CEQA. Where consistent
with the CEQA Guidelines, the Landowner shall incorporate applicable mitigation
measures or their equivalent from the currently certified City CEQA document for the

Folsom Plan Area. Landowner shall provide to City a summary document
demonstrating compliance with this requirement.

g. Additions to DevelopmentAoreement. The following Sections are also

added to the Development Agreement as follows:

a. Section 3.9.3 - Landowner Land Use Authoritv. Landowner has land

use authority and exercises discretionary approval for Development of the Property
pursuant to Section 9 of Article lX of the California Constitution, however, Landowner
promises and commits that the Development of the Property will be consistent with the
City's Zoning Code and the Specific Plan, and further reaffirms Landowner's obligation
and commitment to pay the applicable development, connection, and mitigation fees for
development of the Property as required by Sections 2.2.4 and 3.1 of the Development
Agreement, as amended. Based on the foregoing and notwithstanding any conflicting
requirements of the Development Agreement, the Specific Plan or the City's Zoning

Code, C1y agrees that, as long as the development standards for Development of the
Property do not exceed the standards specified below, Landowner shall not be required

to seek City discretionary approval for Development of the Property:

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

Setback - 10 feet between buildings for every story.
Height - Height limits of (i) 80 feet for Office uses, (ii) 100 feet for
Lodging uses and (iii) 120 feet for Medical Services/Hospital uses. The
foregoing height limits shall include allarchitecturalfeatures, mechanical
equipment, parapets, etc.
Floorto Area Ratio (FAR) - maximum 0.55.
Parking - Subject to Specific Plan requirements (including bicycle
parking) or a City-approved alternate or City-approved shared use
parking plan and implementing agreements.l

l Landowner may provide City with a shared use parking agreement
committing two or more nearby parcels to provide sufficient parking to meet

expected needs for weekend and weekday peak uses. Any available street
parking would not be included in the calculation. The shared use agreement
would require approvalfrom the City of Folsom Community Development
Director prior to implementation. The Landowner expects to have substantial
excess parking during weekends and could potentially assist with overall
parking needs within the planned development. Any shared use agreement
must include a reversionary clause to meet City of Folsom parking standards
upon terrnination of the agreement.

7

4834-37t4-1234,7

Page 193

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



(5) Traffic Circulation - No vehicular exit to or from E. Bidwell Street
between US50 and Alder Creek Parkway without the approval and
consent of both the California Department of Transportation and the City.

(6) Signage - Any freestanding, freeway oriented sign within:I5Jeetof{|rc
fr€€way will be subject to City approval.

(7) Landscaping - Provide City-approved landscaping and ongoing
maintenance within the 2S-foot wide landscape corridor easement once
Class 1 Bicycle Path is constructed by the City.

(B) Heliport - Requires approval by the City and other applicable Authorities
Having Jurisdiction.

(g) Landscaping - Minimum of 20 percent of Property must be landscaped;

minimum may include Class 1 Bicycle Path landscaping
(10) Water use shall not exceed amount contemplated for the Property in the

Specific Plan.
(11) Building Code - University of California Facilities Manual, Volume 3,

Chapter 4 shall apply https :/lwww. ucop.ed ulconstruction-
services/fasi lities-ma nua l/volume-3/vo l-3-chapter-4. html#intro

(12) The Property is part of Parcel 61, which has approved 302,481 square
feet of Regional Commercial,270,072 square feet of General
Commercial, and 196,745 square feet of lndustrial/Office Park.
Landowner shall coordinate with owne(s) of the rest of Parcel 61 so that
the aforementioned limitation for the entire Parcel 61 shall not be

exceeded with the Development of the Property.

Further review and approval by the City Planning Commission prior to construction of
any permanent building shall be required should Landowner need to deviate from the

aforementioned development standards. Excluding those associated with infrastructure

to be dedicated to the City, all permits and inspections for Landowne/s buildings,
improvements and facilities shall be provided by Landowner as the Authority Having

JuiisdiAion (AHJ) or other applicable State authority including, without limitation, the

Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.

10. Section 4.{0 - Gommencement of Construction and Term of PlanlPd
Development Peimit. ln light of the extended Term of this Amendment No. 2, the City

agrees that the provisions of Folsom Municipal Code section 17.38.110 related to
eipiration, revocation or abandonment of a Planned Development Permit shall have no

effbct, and that the term of the Planned Development Permit is equal to the Term of this

Amendment No. 2.

11. Effect of Amendment. This Amendment No. 2 amends, but does not

replace or supersede, the Development Agreement. ln the event of any conflict, the
language of this Amendment No. 2 shall be controlling in all events or circumstanoes.
Except as modified hereby, all other terms and provisions of the Development
Agreement and shall remain in fullforce and effect.

4834-37L4-L234.7

8

-*.- -r^tr^. Page 194

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



12. Secflon 7.8 - Notlces. All notices required by the Development
Agreement or this Amendment No. 2 as such requirements relate to the Property or the

Subsequent Entitlements, or the enabling legislation or the procedure adopted pursuant

to Government Code section 65865 shall be as provided for in Section 7.5 of the
Development Agreement, with the substitution for Landowner as follows:

The Regents of the University of California -
University of California, Davis
225 Cousteau Place
Davis, CA 95618
Attention: Executive Director, Real Estate Services

\Mth copies to:

The Regents of the University of California
1111 Franklin Street, 6ttr Floor
Oakland, California 94607
Attention: Director, Real Estate

13. Form of Amendment-Execution in Gounterpafts. ThisAmendment
No. 2 is executed in duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and

may be executed in counterParts.

9
4834-37t4-L234.7

--.- rr--a^. Page 195

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom has authorized the execution of this
Amendment No. 2 in duplicate by its Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk under the
authori$ of Ordinance No. t I adopted by the City Council on the 

- 
day of 

-,
2021.

CITY LANDOWNER:

CITY OF FOLSOM
a municipal corporation

Michael Kozlowski, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang, City Attorney

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

[Notary Pages to be Added]

4834-3714-7234.7

The Regents of the University
of Galifornia, a California corporation

UC LEGAL APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Its:

--.- -a--r^.

10

Page 196

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



A.l
A-2
B

EXHIBIT LIST

Legal Description of the PropertY
Depiction of Parcel 1 on Map
Conceptual Site Plan

4834-37L4-L234.7

11

Page 197

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBITA.l
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERW

THE FOLLOWNG LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS FOR PROFORMA PURPOSES ONLY, AND IS
NOT TO BE UTILIZED IN A RECORDED DOCUMENT UNTIL THE PARCEL MAP
CONFIRMING SAID DESCRIPTION HAS BEEN RECORDED:

The land described herein is situated in the State of Califomia, County of Sacramento, City of
Folsom, described as follows:

Lot 1 as shown on that certain map entitled "Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Parcels 61 & 77"
filed for record in the office of the Recorder of the County of Sacramento, City of Folsom, State
of California on TBD, in Book TBD of Parcel Maps, at Page TBD, Sacramento County Records.

APN: 072-31 90-030-0000 (a portion)

4834-3714-t234.7

--.F -r^-,^.

t2

Page 198

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT A-2
DEPICTION OF PARCEL 1 ON RECORDED PARCEL MAP

i: iii !i
i,;,' ,,1

,,i'c

ll iE
:,;' t
, ;r' ::rr;'r ?
..:. n

li:t I
;,1 '{\ I.:

ilj
lri

-,1- -

{l
{l

r!l I',.[ I

I
I

I

f!t

,!l

t

.!l
I

li
I

3
''iF

0
,l[

f

fi

!\
t'
I

r!l
r!l

4l

#
r!t

{

f

:ffiHI

{*

t\
:
1,

tfiitliH: Hr
I -:.. ,_ |

,lTl
l*l+

ilrrll

lrl;

.-''

t
t
q

r
,

:i

I

iii
:l

li
I

:l
{l

I
I
I

I
r't

]ll
l:t
rl
iti
ri1
til
t.
t,
!rlr
it
'.t

ll

ili
li
ri
Ir
ri

I

{i{lf{{

iiiiriir
,,,',".'.il

It

I

;
n

,l,l f
:i', t
I r ll "
'r:;O

I

Page 199

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT B
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

t
T

cfr
E'
o

I
o
o-J
;g
o
3

o5
o

()
o5oo-1)
eo
T
6-
f

=.f(o
ofat
T5(J(o
a
3

B

ffi

H

E

m

!::littl

'li,rlil
J

irriitil
l:ite;..r

,2"t t It

,::!r?ll

I
B
3
:tI
I

I
a

t
It

---trt> t:tF -fr)
1'"-

Page 200

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Attachment 3

Planning Commission Staff Report
Dated August 4,2021

Page 201

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



AGENDA ITEM NO.2
Type: Public Hearing
Date: August 4,2021

F()LS(}Nd
crt! oF

!l!l,lCTlVt il hAlUie

Project:

File #:

Requesb:

Location:

Statr Gontact:

Property Owner
Name: Enclave at Folsom Ranch, LLC
Address: 't00 Pine Street,2gth Floor
San Francisco, CA 94111

Planning Commission Staff Report
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers

Folsom, CA 95630

UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement
Amendment

PN-21-153

Development Agreement Amendment

The UCD Health Sciences Campus project is located near the
northwest comer of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and
Alder Creek Parkway within the Folsom Plan Area

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916.461-6207
sbanks@folsom,ca.us

Applicant
Name: University of California, Davis
Address: 255 Cousteau Place
Davis, CA 95618

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend that the
City Council approve a Development Agreement Amendment for the UCD Health
Sciences Campus project, subject to the findings (Findings A-L) attached to this report.

Project Summary: The proposed project includes Amendment No. 2 to the First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by and between the City of
Folsom and the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of its Davis Campus,
relative to the UCD Health Sciences Campus project. The purpose of the Development
Agreement Amendment is to incorporate in the definition of "entitlements" that are vested
the entitlements previously approved by the City for the project site including a Parcel
Map, a Planned Development Permit, and the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design
Guidelines, as well as the proposed Development Agreement Amendment once
approved by the City Council. The purpose of the Development Agreement Amendment
is also to recognize and memorialize that as a State agency (The Regents of the
University of California), the applicant is requesting to be permitted to exercise its land

use authority as a lead agency for development of the subject property. ln addition, the
Development Agreement Amendment memorializes the applicant's commitment that the
subject property will be subject to the City's Zoning Code and the Folsom Plan Area

1

Page 202

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



m AGENDA ITEM NO.2
Type: Public Hearing
Date: August 4,2021

F(}LS(}IvT
crtY of

or!ttffcttva tY x^tura

Speciflc Plan, except as othenrise specified in the Development Agreement
Amendment. Lastly, the applicant acknowledges and agrees in the Development
Agreement Amendment that it will pay all existing development impact fees, connection
fees, and mitigation fees applicable to the development of the subject property.

Table of Contents:

Attachment 1 - Background and Setting

Attachment 2 - Project Description

Attachment 3 - Analysis

Attachment 4 - Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Development
Agreement Relative to Folsom South Specific Plan (UCD Medical Center)

Attachment 5 - Conceptual Site Plan

Attachment 6 - Project Narrative

Aftachment 7 - First Amended and Restated Development Agreement Relative to the
Folsom South SPecific Plan

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

2

Page 203

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendnent
August 4,2021

ATTACHMENT T

BACKGROUND AND SETTING
Background:
The City and Landowner's predecessor (Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC) previously

entered into the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement By and

Between the City of Folsom and Landowner Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan

on July 15,2A14. Section 1.5 of the Restated Development Agreement allows the
Restated Development Agreement to be amended from time to time by mutual written

consent of the parties. On November 12,2015, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC and the
City entered into Amendment No. 1 to First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development
Agreement Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan. The applicant is proposing

Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Development Agreement by and

between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of Califomia relative to the

UCD Health Sciences Campus proiect.

On June 16,2021, the Planning Commission approved a Tentative Parcel Map, Planned

Development Permit, and Commercial Design Guidelines for Parcels 61 and 71 located

within the Folsom Plan Area. The Tentative Parcel Map subdivided a 123-acre property

located at the northwest corner of East Bidwell Street and Alder Creek Parkway into four
individual parcels and a remainder lot, for future sale, lease, and financing. The Planned

Development Permit established unique development standards relative to minimum lot

size for the subject parcels. Lastly, the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines
were established to guide design and development of future commercial development on

the subject parcels. The UCD Health Sciences Campus project will be located on a 34.5-

acre parcel (LoUParcel 1) that was created by the aforementioned Tentative Parcel Map

that was approved by the Planning Commission in June of this year. The approved
Tentative Parcel Map is shown in Figure 1 on the following page.

Page 204

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

FIGURE 1: PARCEL 61 AND 77 TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP

sMud@

I

I

I

i

l.
i

'ti
;l

.!! ;

;l.l

,!'!:

rl. lr
--J!+.---.

o
^q 

CE6 fifrr.

t6lsgs

Eil
ri

ll_

PhysicalSetting
The UCD Health Sciences Campus project site is a rectangular-shaped 34.5-acre parcel

located near the northwest corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder

Creek Parkway within the Folsom Plan Area. A Preliminary Site Plan for the Health

Sciences Campus is shown in Figure 2 on the following page.

[ot 4c

Page 205

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commlsslon
UCD Health Sciences Campus Developrnent Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

FIGURE 2: CONCEPTUAL SITE P|.AN

UGDlrrblLclh IfdnrGrtr
Conceptuol Phnning ond Progrom

EI
h-hEit tlts

TJCDIY1S
HIATT}I

Page 206

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement AmendmEnt
August4,2021

ATTACHMENT 2
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL
The applicant, the University of California, Davis, is requesting approvalof a Development
Agreement Amendment (Attachment 4) associated with future development of a 400,000-
square-foot health sciences campus (UCD Heatth Sciences Campus) on a 34.5-acre site
located near the northwest corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Alder
Creek Parkway within the Folsom Plan Area. Specifically, the proposed project includes
Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement by
and between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of Galifornia relative to
the UCD Health Sciences Campus project. The term of the Development Agreement
Amendment follows the existing term of the Restated Development Agreement with an
expiration date of June 30, 2044.

The Development Agreement Amendment is intended to incorporate in the definition of
"entitlements" that are vested the entitlements previously approved by the City for the
project including a Parcel Map, a Planned Development Permit, and the Folsom Ranch
Commercial Design Guidelines, as well as the proposed Development Agreement
Amendment once approved by the City Council. The Development Agreement
Amendment is also intended to recognize and memorialize that as a State agency, the
applicant is requesting to be permitted to exercise its land use authority as a lead agency
for development of the subject property under the California Constitution, subject to the
applicant's promise and commitment to subject itself to the City's Zoning Code and the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, except as otherwise specified in the Development
Agreement Amendment. ln addition, the Development Agreement Amendment requires
the applicant to pay all development impact fees, connection fees, and mitigation fees for
development of the subject property as required by Section 2.2.4 of the Restated
Development Agreement.

As mentioned previously, the applicant has land use authority and intends to exercise its
own discretionary review and approval processes for development of the subject proper$.
However, through the DevelopmentAgreementAmendment, the applicant has committed
to subject itself to the City's Zoning Code and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, except
as specified in the Development Agreement Amendment. The specific exceptions to the
City's Zoning Code and the Speclfic Plan, which were crafied to be consistent with
recently approved standards for the Dignity Medical Center project, include the following:

(1) Setback (Building) - 10 feet between buildings for every story.
(2) Height (Building) - Height limits of (i) 80 feet for ffice uses, (ii) 100 feet for

Lodging uses and (iii) 120 feet for Medical Services/Hospital uses. The
foregoing height limits shall include all architecturalfeatures, mechanical
equipment, parapets, etc.

(3) Floor to Area Ratio (FAR) - maximum 0.55.

Page 207

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Gampus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

(4) Parking - Subject to Specific Plan requirements (including bicycle parking)

or a City-approved alternate or City-approved shared use parking plan and
implementing agreements.

(5) Traffic Circulation - No vehicular exit to or from E. Bidwell Street between
USSO and Alder Creek Parkway without the approval and consent of both

the California Department of Transportation and the City.
(6) Signage - Any freestanding, freeway-oriented sign within 75 feet of the

freeway will be subject to City approval.
(7) Landscaping - Provide Gity-approved landscaping and ongoing

maintenance within the 25-foot-wide landscape conidor easement once
Class 1 Bicycle Path is constructed by the City,

(8) Heliport - Requires approval by the City and other applicable Authorities
Having Jurisdiction.

(9) Landscaping - Minimum of 20 percent of Property must be landscaped;
minimum may include Class 1 Bicycle Path landscaping

(10) Water use shall not exceed amount contemplated for the Proper$ in the
Specific Plan.

(11) Building Code - University of Califomia Facilities Manual, Volume 3,

Chapter 4 shall apply Nps://vrnruw.ucop.edu/construction-services/facilities-
man ual/volume'3/vol-&chaoter4.hfrn l#intro

(12) The Property is part of Parcel 61, which has approved 302,481 square feet
of Regional Commercial,270,072 square feet of General Commercial, and
196,745 square feet of lndustrial/Office Park. Owner/Applicant shall
coordinate with owne(s) of the rest of Parcel 61 so that the aforementioned
limitation for the entire Parcel 61 shall not be exceeded with the
Development of the ProPertY.

As noted previously, the Development AgreementAmendment also requires the applicant
to pay all existing development impact fees, connection fees, and mitigation fees for
development of the subject property as required by the original Restated Development
Agreement. However, the Development Agreement Amendment does specifo that, as

long as the property is developed by the applicant consistent with the aforementioned
dev-elopment standards and operated to fulfill its health, educational, research, and public

service mission, the subject property shall not be subject to: (1) City development
processing fees except for matters the applicant requests the City to process, review or
approve; and (2) any new citywide regulatory or non-impact fees for a period of 15 years

from the effective date of the Amendment.

Page 208

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

ATTACHMENT 3
ANALYSIS

The applicant has submitted a projecf narative (Attachment 6) in which they describe the
goals and objectives associated with development of a health sciences campus on the
subject property and the rationale for entering into a Development Agreement
Amendment with the City. ln terms of goals and objectives the applicant indicates that
development of a health sciences campus on the subject property would serve a number
of purposes including expanding UCD health services and patient access in Folsom,
replacing existing UCD health care services in existing facilities in Folsom where leases
are set to expire, and securing a prime location in Folsom that exudes wellness,
community, convenience, and excellence.

ln reviewing the original Restated Development Agreement, the applicant noted that the
Agreement appears to overlap with respect to the typical land use entitlement authority
granted to the University of California. The applicant states that the Development
Agreement, as a recorded deed encumbrance, extends beyond fipical master developer
obligations and includes design and plan review provisions and would remain enforceable
even during ownership by the University of California. The applicant comments that
carrying these development agreement requirements forward would essentially duplicate
the public agency review and entitlement processes by requiring duplicative review and
consideration by both the City of Folsom and by the University of California. Thus, the
applicant is requesting to amend the Development Agreement to allow it to exercise its
own land use review and entitlement authority with respect to the subject property. The
following is a list of Development Agreement Amendment benefits provided by the
applicant:

r Remove Duplicate Entitlement Process: The proposed action would remove
duplication in the entitlement process for the property helping to avoid
development delays and inefficiencies.

r Standard Univercity of California Ownership: The proposed action would
ensure the land ownership and entitlement process would be standard for the
Board of Regents of the University of California. The University commits to comply
with the City's Zoning Code and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, and intends
to work collaboratively with the City of Folsom to maintain consistency of planning
goals, infrastructure construction and maintenance and pursuit of overall
community goals for the Gity of Folsom.

. Avoid ContradictorytOverlapping Requircmente: The amendment would
provide long-term certainty to the Regents while still maintaining a strong public
engagement process for the local and University communities. The University
planning process is robust, thorough and complete with extensive consideration of
serving the public need, exceptional design details and high-quality architecture,
advanced sustainability measures, and careful compliance with public contracting

Page 209

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

and labor agreements.

Establish Public Glarity: The amendment would ensure that the University is
identified as the responsible public agency for entitlements, design review and
other matters.

o Demonstrate Public Efficiency: The amendment would demonstrate two public

agencies worfting collaboratively and efiiciently in furtherance of public service
goals and kickstarting the construction that has been planned at the parcel.

ln evaluating the proposed Development Agreement Amendment, staff determined that
there are significant benefits to the City and the region associated with development of
the new Health Science Campus within the Folsom Plan Area. ln addition, staff
determined that there are a number of unique characteristics as3ociated with buildout of
the UCD Health Science Campus. Listed below are the public benefits and unique
characteristics associated the UCD Health Campus project:

. Development of the UCD Health Science Campus will occur over a long period

of time, with a phased timeline for construction and potential adjustments to
physical structures as medical delivery systems change over time.

. The California Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development ('OSHPD')
is required to approve the medical office building, the micro hospital building, and
the ambulatory surgery center designs which may result in required changes to
the design of the Medical Center buildings and related structures.

. The UCD Heath Sciences Campus will generate significant employment and
other economic benefits to the City.

. The UCD Health Science Campus will provide needed expansion of access to
health care services for the City and other jurisdictions in the region.

. A significant capital investment is required for the UCD Health Sciences Campus
buildings and related structures; and

. The status of applicant as a not-for-profit public benefit corporation.

City staff is supportive of the Development Agreement Amendment as proposed. The
Planning Commission will be making a recommendation regarding the Development
Agreem-ent Amendment to the City Council as Development Agreements require City
Council review and approval.

Page 210

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The City, as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA),
previously approved an Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS for the subject property. The
City has determined that the adoption of this Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and
Restated Devetopment Agreement Amendment relative to the Folsom South Specific
Plan involves no new impacts not considered in the FPASP EIR/EIS and the Parcels 61

and77 Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS. Since the Addendum was approved, none of
the events described in Public Resources Code section 21166 or CEQA Guidelines
secfion 15'162 (e.g. substantial changes to the project) have occurred, Therefore further
environmental review is not required.

RECOMMENDATON
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review and make a recommendation

to the City Council to approve the proposed Development Agreement Amendment for
the UC Davis Health Sciences Campus.

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION
Move to recommend to the City Council approval of Amendment No. 2 to the First

Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom South

Specific Plan for the UCD Health Sciences Campus project. This approval is subject to
the proposed findings below (Findings A-L).

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND ]N THE
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAWAND CITY CODE.

THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE GENEML PLAN AND THE
FOLSOM P1AN AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVI RON M E NTAL IMPACT RE PO RT/ENVI RON M ENTAL I M PACT
STATEMENT FOR THE FOLSOM PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN.

AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM PI.AN AREA SPECIFIC PI.AN F]NAL
ENVI RO N ME NTAL I M PACT REPORT/ENVI RON M E NTAL I M PACT
STATEMENT WAS CERTIFIED BY THE CITY IN 2021 FOR PARCELS 61 AND
77 PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA.

A.

B.

c.

D.

Page 211

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



F

Planning Commission
UGD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August 4,2021

E.

G. NO FURTHER ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW IS REQUIRED.

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

H

K.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE UCD HEALTH
SCIENCES CAMPUS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT PROJECT
ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PIAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND THE
ADDENDUM FOR THE PARCELS 61 AND 77 PROJECT.

NONE OF THE EVENTS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 21166 OF THE PUBLIC
RESOURCES CODE OR SECTION 15162 OF THE CEQA GUIDELINES HAVE
OCCURRED.

t.

J

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND
RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WTH
THE OBJECTIVES, POLICIES, GENERAL LAND USES AND PROGRAMS
SPECIFIED IN THE CITY GENERAL PLAN AND THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA
SPECTFTC PLAN).

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND
RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS IN CONFORMITY WITH
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE, GENEML WELFARE, AND GOOD LAND USE
PRACTICES.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND
RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE
DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF
PERSONS RESIDING IN THE IMMEDIATE AREA, NOR BE DETRIMENTAL OR
INJURIOUS TO PROPERTY OR PERSONS IN THE GENERAL
NEIGHBORHOOD OR TO THE GENERAL WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF
THE CITY AS A WHOLE.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND
RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WLL NOT ADVERSELY
AFFECT THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY OR THE
PRESERVATION OF PROPERW VALUES.

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE FIRST AMENDED AND
RESTATED TIER DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IS CONSISTENT WTH THE
PROVISIONS OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 65864 THROUGH
65869.5.

L

Page 212

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UCD Heelth Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August4,2021

Attachment 4

Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and
Restated Development Agreement Relative to

Folsom South Specific Plan
(UCD Medical Genter)

Page 213

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE S6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY CITY CLERK

IA/I.IEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Clty Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER { DEVELOPMENT

AGREEIIIENT

RELATIVE TO FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

(uNtvERslTY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVISI

Page 214

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO
FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER I DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

RELATIVE TO FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN
(uNlvERSlTY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS)

This Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Development Agreement
("Amendment No. 2") is entered into this 

- 
day of 2021, by and between

the City of Folsom ("Ctty") and The Regents of the University of California, a California
corporation on behalf of its Davis Campus ("Landowner") pursuant to the authority of
Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of the Government Code of California. All capitalized
terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall mean and refer to those terms
as defined in Section 1.3 of the Restated Development Agreement and Amendment No.

1 to the Restated Development Agreement, described below between the Predecessor
in lnterest to Landowner and the City.

RECITALS

A. Restated Development Aoreement and Amendments Thereto. The City
and Landowne/s predecessor in interest Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC (refened to
herein as the "Predecessor in lnterest") previously entered into that certain First
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement By and Between the City of
Folsom and Landowner Relative to the Folsom South Specific Plan, recorded on July
15, 2014, in the Official Records of the County Recorder of Sacramento County in Book
20140711 Page 0517 (the "Restated Development Agreement"). Section 1.5 of the
Restated Development Agreement allows the Restated Development Agreement to be

amended from time to time by mutual written consent of the parties. On November 12,
2015, Eagle Commercial Partners, LLC and the Ci$ entered into Amendment No. 1 to
First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement Relative to the Folsom
South Specific Plan, recorded on January 29,2016, in the Official Records of the
County Recorder of Sacramento Coun$ in Book 0160129, Page No. 0385
('Amendment No. 1"). The Restated DevelopmentAgreement and Amendment No. 1

are collectively referred to herein as the "Development Agreement."

B. Pendino Conveyance of Propertv to Landowner and Assionment of
Develonment Aoreement. Predecessor in lnterest is in the prooess of conveying the
Property identified by legal description on Exhibit A-{ and depicted on Exhibit &2
("Property") to its affiliate, Enclave at Folsom Ranch, LLC ("Predecessor Affiliate"), who
will in turn convey the Property to Landowner in or around [September .- l, 2021.
Predecessor in lnterest will enter into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement
Relative to The Folsom South Specific Plan Amended and Restated Tier 1

Developrnent Agreement with Predecessor Affiliate, pursuant to a form approved and

required by the City ('Assignment and Assumption Agreement"). Concurrent with its
anticipated conveyan@ of the Property to Landowner, Predecessor Affiliate will enter
into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement with Landowner to transfer all rights,

title, interest, burdens and obligations of the Predecessor in lnterest under the
Development Agreement with respect to the Property to Landowner. Said Assignment

1

Page 215

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



and Assumption Agreement will be recorded in the Official Records of the County
Recorder of Sacramento Gounty.

C. Effest of Amendment No. 2 Subject to Convevance of Propertfto
Landowner and Assisnment of DevelopmentAqreement. This Amendment No. 2 is

subject to, and willtrake effect only upon, the transfer and conveyance of legal title to
Proferty from Predecessor Affiliate to Landowner. Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary, this Amendment No. 2 will automatically terminate without further action by
City or Landowner if Landowner does not obtrain legal title to Property on or prior to

Debember 31,2021as evidenced by a deed signed by Predecessor Affiliate on or prior

to that date.

D. Prior City Aoorovals Relative to the Propertv. The Property is identified as
"Lot 1" of "Parcel 61'on a Parcel Map approved by the City Planning Commission on

June 16, 2021 (PN 21-043'). Lot 1 is one of four parcels created by the subdivision of
the property identified as Parcel6l in the Specific Plan. The Final ParoEl Map including
Lot i nrae ned fr recgd on 

-, 

2021 in Book 

-, 
Page of Parcel

Maps, Sacramento County. Concurrent with the approval of the subdivision of Parcel

61 on June 16, 2021, the Planning Commission also approved an Addendum to the
Final EIR for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, a Planned Development Permit that
reduced the minimum parcel size for Regional Commercialfrom 60-acres to 0.25 acre,

and the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines to guide commercial and office
design and development.

E. Pumose of Amendment Findings Related to Health Sciences Campus.
Landowner is processing Subsequent Entitlements for the Development of the Property
for comprehensive health, educational, research and public service uses (as further
defined in Section 1.3 of this Amendment No. 2 and hereafter the "Health Sciences
Campus"). Landowner has requested that the Prior City Approvals of the Parcel Map,

Planned Development Permit, and Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines be

included in the definition of Entitlements in the Development Agreement. As a public

trust corporation known as The Regents of the University of California, Landowner
further requests to be permitted to exercise its land use authority as lead agency for
Development of the Property under Section 9 of Article lX of the Galifornia Constitution,
subjectto Landowner's promise and commitment to subject itself to the Ci$'s land use

and zoning ordinances, including the City's Building and Zoning Codes, except as
otherwise specified in this Amendment No. 2. The City Council has determined that the
development of the Health Sciences Campus on the Property presents significant
benefits to the City and the region.

F. Propertv. The subject of this Amendment No. 2 is the Development of the
Property, as defined in Section 1.3. Landowner has an equitable interest in the
Property and intends to become legal owner of the Property and shall be bound by this
Amendment No. 2 and the Development Agreement.

2

Page 216

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



G. Hearings. On August 4,2A21, the Gity Planning Commission, designated
as the planning agency for purposes of development agreement review pursuant to
Government Code section 65867, in a duly noticed and conducted public hearing,
considered this Amendment No. 2 and recommended that the City Council approve this
Amendment No. 2 to the Development Agreement. On August 24,2021, the Gity
Council, in a duly noticed and conducted public hearing, conducted the first reading of
Ordinance No. and approved this Amendment No. 2, and thereafter
conducted the second reading of Ordinance No, at a duly noticed
regular meeting of the City Council on [September '14,2021 and adopted the Ordinance
approving this Amendment No. 2.

H. Environmental Review. On June 16,2021, the Planning Commission
considered the Environmental Checklist and Addendum (the "Addendum") to the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS for the Property. All applicable mitigation
measures to reduce environmental impacts to less than significant have been
incorporated into the Parcel Map, the Planned Development Permit, and the Folsom
Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines as reflected by the findings adopted by the
Planning Commission in connection with the aforementioned approvals, including the
City Council's consideration, adoption of findings, and approval of this Amendment No.
2.

l. No New lmpacts Associated with Approval of Amendment. The City
Council has determined that the adoption of this Amendment No. 2 involves no new
impacts not considered in the Specific Plan ElR, the Previous EnvironmentalAnalyses
listed in Section l, "lntroduction and Background" of the Addendum, and the Addendum;
therefore, no further environmental documents relating to the adoption of this
Amendment No. 2are required.

J. ConsistencLwith General Plan and Specific Plan. Having duly examined
and considered this Amendment No. 2, the Ci$ finds and declares that this Amendment
No. 2 is consistent with the General Plan and the Specific Plan.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual
covenants, promises, and agreements herein contained, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and
agreed, the parties agree to hereby amend the Development Agreement as follows:

AMENDMENTS

1. lncorporation ol Beeilalg. The Recitals above are true and correct and
constitute enforceable provisions of this Amendment No. 2.

2. Definition and Section 1.5.3 - Subseougnt Entitlements. The term
"Subsequent Entitlements" in the Definitions Sec'tion of the Development Agreement
and also referenced in Section 1.5.3 of the Development Agreement is amended to
include the following:

3

Page 217

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



a. The Parcel Map approved by the Planning Commission on June 16,2021

b. The Planned Development Permit approved by the Planning Commission on
June 16,2021.

c. The Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines approved by the Planning
Commission on June 16,2021.

d. This Amendment No. 2 approved by the Folsom City Council on [September
14,2021.

3. Section 1.3 - Definitions. The following Definitions are added:

'Adopting Ordinance" means Ordinance No.-, dated [September 14,202'1,
approving this Amendment No.2.

"Addendum" means the Environmental Checklist and Addendum dated May 28,
202',1.

"Design Guidelines" means the Folsom Ranch Commercial Design Guidelines
approved by the City Planning Commission.

"Effective Date" means the date which is the later of (i) thirty (30) calendar days
after the date of the Ordinance approving this Amendment No. 2, or (ii) the date title to
the Property vests in Landowner.

"EnvironmentalAnalysis" means the Addendum and the Previous Environmental
Analyses listed in Section l, "lntroduction and Background" of the Addendum.

"Landowne/' means The Regents of the University of California, a California
corporation on behalf of its Davis Campus.

"Planned Development Permit" means the Planned Development Permit
approved by the Planning Commission in connection with its approval of the Parcel
Map.

"Health Sciences Campus" means the buildings and related structures,
improvements and facilities developed on the Property to support the health, education,
research and public service missions of Landowner.

"Predecessor in lnterest" shall mean the prior owner of the Property and party to
the Restated Development Agreement and Amendment No. 1, i.e., Eagle Commercial
Partners, LLC.

4

Page 218

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



"Predecessor Affiliate" shall mean the affiliate of Predecessor in lnterest, Enclave

at Folsom Ranch, LLC.

"Project" means development of the Property consistent with the Development
Agreement and the Subsequent Entitlements.

"Property" means the land identified by legal description on ExhibitA-1 and

depicted on Exhlblt A-2.

"subsequent Entitlements" shall have the amended definition set forth in
paragraph 2, subsections (a)-(d), inclusive, of this Amendment No. 2.

"Vested Rights" means the rights to Develop the Property consistent with the

terms and provisions of the Restated Development Agreement, Amendment No. 1, this
Amendment No. 2 and the provisions of the Subsequent Entitlements.

4. Section {.4.1 - Gommencement. Extension. Exoiration. This
Amendment No. 2 shall become operative on the Effective Date and continue through
the Term of the Development Agreement. Landowner may request an additional
extension pursuant to Section 1.4.1 ol the Development Agreement.

S. Section ,|.6 
-Chanaeg to the Cltv's lnclusionarv Housin,o Ordinance.

Section 1.6 offie Development Agreement is hereby revised to read as follows: "The

Gity has amended the lnclusionary Housing Ordinance (i.e., Folsom MunicipalCode
Chbpter 17.104) by Ordinance No. 1243,to eliminate Second Dwelling Units (also

referred to as "granny flats") as an alternative means of meeting the City's inclusionary
housing requirements. Landowner hereby acknowledges and agrees that there is no

vested right to use Second Dwelling Units as an altemative means for meeting the

City's inciusionary housing requirements and that this altemative shall not be available

to Landowner from and after the date of Ordinance No. 1243. Landowner further
acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to Section 65850 of the California
Government CoOe (specifically Section 65850(g)), effective January 1,2A18, to allow for
the implementation of inclusionary housing requirements in residential rental units, upon

adoption of an ordinance by the City. The Landowner is not currently contemplating any

residential rental projects within the Property; however, in the event the City amends its

lnclusionary Housing Ordinance with respect to rental housing pursuant to Section
65850(g), Landowner (or a successor in interest) agrees that the Property shall be

subject tb said City Ordinance, as amended, should any residential rental project be

proposed within the Property. Other than the elimination of the "granny flat" option and

ihe'possible future application of an inclusionary housing requirement on residential
rental properties (upon the conditions stated herein), the Parties agree that all other
alternatives for meeting the City's inclusionary housing requirements remain vested to

the full extent provided for in the Development Agreement."

6. Section 2.1 - Permltled Uses. The permitted uses of the Property, the
density and intensity of use, the maximum height and size of proposed buildings and

5

Page 219

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



related structures and setbacks shall be consistent with the Specific Plan and the City's
Zoning Code, as applicable, except as specifically provided for in this Amendment No.

2.

7. Section 2.2 . Vested Riohtr. The City agrees that, except as otherwise
provided in and as may be amended in accordance with the Exceptions to Vested
Rights set forth in Section 2.2.3 of the Development Agreement the City is granting, and
grints herewith, Vested Rights to Development for the Term of this Amendment No. 2 in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. The City acknowledges that
the rights vested by the Development Agreement include the land uses and
approximate acreages for the Property as shown and described in Exhibits A-{ and A-
! attached hereto, or as such land uses and approximate acreages may be amended by
those Specific Plan Amendments referenced in Section 1.5.3 of the Development
Agreement. Nothing in this Amendment No. 2 shall impair or affect the rights of
Landowner under a vesting tentative map or the City's rights to condition such maps.
(Govt. Code Sec. 66498.1, et seq.)

Such uses shall be developed in accordance with the Subsequent Entitlements,
as the Subsequent Entitlements are described in Section 1.5.3 of this Amendment No. 2

and as approved by the City on the Effective Date.

Section 2.2.1 - 2.2.8. No changes, except for the modification of two
items in Section 2.2.4 and the addition of Sec{ion 2.2.9 as an Exception to Vested
Rights, as follows:

Sectlon 2.2.4- Citv Fees and New Plan Arca Fess. lncludins
Cost lncruases. Notwithstanding any other provision in the Development Agreement,
as arnended hereby, Landowner and the City agree that, so long as the Property is

developed consistent with the standards in Section 3.9.3 and operated by the
Landowner to fulfill its health, educational, research and public service mission
consistent with Section 9 of Article lX of the California Constitution, (a) the fees included
in Subparagraph (6) of Section 2.2.4 shall not apply to the Property except for matters
Landowneirequests the Cig to process, review, or approve; and (b) the fees included
in Subparagraph (S) of Section 2.2.4 shall not apply to the Property for a period of
fifteen (15) years following the Effective Date. Except as otherwise expressly provided

in this Amendment, Landowner acknowledges and agrees to pay the fees enumerated
in Section 2.2.4.

Section 2.2.9 - Glass I Bicvcle Path. Landowner acknowledges

that it is responsible for rough grading and installation of any necessary retraining wall at

its sole cost and expense to accommodate the Class 1 Bicycle Path on the northern
portion of the Property as shown in Figure 7.32 ol the Specific Plan. Grading for the
proposed Class 1 Bicycle Path and the construction of any necessary retaining walls

shallcommence at the time of the initial construction of the first building on the Property

6

Page 220

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



8. Section 3.5 - EIR Mltinatlon Measures. Notwithstanding any other
provision in ttre Oevelopmeni Agreement, as amended hereby, as and when Landowner

elects to Develop the Property, or any portion of the Property, Landowner shall be

perform necessary environmental review and analysis under CEQA. Where consistent

with the CEQA Guidelines, the Landowner shall incorporate applicable mitigation

measures or their equivalent from the currently certified City CEOA document for the

Folsom Plan Area. Landowner shall provide to City a summary document

demonstrating compl iance with this req u i rement'

g. Additions to Devetopment Agrsement. The following Sections are also

added to the Development Agreement as follows:

a. Section 3.9.3 - Landowner Land Use Authoritv. Landowner has land

use authority and exercises discretionary approval for Development of the Property
pursuant to 

-Section 
9 of Article lX of the California Constitution, however, Landowner

promises and commits that the Development of the Property will be consistent with the

bity's Zoning Code and the Specific Plan, and further reaffirms Landowner's obligation

and commitment to pay the applicable development, connection, and mitigation fees for

development of the Property as required by Section s 2.2,4 and 3,1 of the Development

Agreement, as amended. Based on the foregoing and notwithstanding any conflicting

requirements of the Development Agreement, the Specific Plan or the City's Zoning

Code, City agrees that, as long as the development standards for Development of the
property io iot exceed the stindards specified below, Landowner shall not be required

to seek City discretionary approval for Development of the Property:

(1) Setback - 10 feet between buildings for every story.
(2) Height - Height limits of (i) 80 feet for Office uses, (ii) 100 feet for

Lodging usei and (iii) 120 feet for Medical Services/Hospital uses. The
foregoing height limits shall include all architecturalfeatures, mechanical
equipment, ParaPets, etc.

(3) Floor to Area Ratio (FAR) - maximum 0.55.
(4) Parking - Subject to Specific Plan requirements (including bicycle

parking) or a City-approved alternate or City-approved shared use
parking-plan and implementing agreements.l

l Landowner may provide City with a shared use parking agreement

committing two or more nearby parcels to provide sufiicient parking to mee!

expected needs for weekend and weekday peak uses. Any available street
paiking would not be included in the calculation. The shared use agreement

would require approvalfrom the City of Folsom Community Development 
.

Director prior to implementation. The Landowner expects to have substantial

exoess parking during weekends and could potentially assist with overall
parking'needJwithin the planned development. Any shared use agreement
must include a reversionary clause to meet City of Folsom parking standards

upon termination of the agreement.

7

Page 221

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



(5) Traffic Circulation - No vehicular exit to or from E. Bidwell Street
between US50 and Alder Creek Parkway without the approval and
consent of both the California Department of Transportation and the Ci$

(6) Signage - Any freestanding, freeway oriented sign within 75 feet of the
freeway will be subjec't to Ci$ approval.

(7\ Landscaping - Provide City-approved landscaping and ongoing
maintenance within the 2S-foot wide landscape corridor easement once
Class 1 Bicycle Path is constructed by the City.

(8) Heliport - Requires approval by the City and other applicable Authorities
Having Jurisdiction.

(g) Landscaping - Minimum of 20 percent of Property must be landscaped;
minimum may include Class 1 Bicycle Path landscaping

(10) Water use shall not exceed amount contemplated for the Property in the
Specific Plan.

(11) Building Code - University of California Facilities Manual, Volume 3,

Chapter 4 shall apply https ://'www' ucop.ed u/construction-
serviceslfacil ities-ma n u a l/vol u me-3/vol-3-chapter-4. htm l#intro

(12) The Property is part of Parcel 61, which has approved 302,481 square
feet of Regional Commercial,27A,072 square feet of General
Commercial, and 196,745 square feet of lndustrial/Office Park.
Landowner shall coordinate with owne(s) of the rest of Parcel 61 so that
the aforementioned limitation for the entire Parcel 61 shall not be
exceeded with the Development of the Property'

Further review and approval by the City Planning Commission prior to construction of
any permanent building shall be required should Landowner need to deviate from the
aforementioned development standards. Excluding those associated with infrastructure
to be dedicated to the City, all permits and inspections for Landowner's buildings,
improvements and facilities shall be provided by Landowner as the Authority Having

Jurisdiction (AHJ) or other applicable State authority including, without limitation, the
Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.

10. Seotion 4.10 - Gommencement of Gonatrucfion and Term of PlanBPd
Develooment Permlt ln light of the extended Term of this Amendment No. 2, the City

agrees that the provisions of Folsom Municipal Code section 17.38.110 related to
eipiration, revocation or abandonment of a Planned Development Permit shall have no

effect, and that the term of the Planned Development Permit is equal to the Term of this
Amendment No. 2.

11. Efbct of Amendment. This Amendment No. 2 amends, but does not
replace or supersede, the Development Agreement. ln the event of any conflict, the
language of this Amendment No. 2 shall be controlling in all events or circumstances.
Except as modified hereby, all other terms and provisions of the Development
Agreement and shall remain in fullforce and effect.

I

Page 222

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



12. Section 7.8 - Notices. All notices required by the Developrnent
Agreement or this Arnendment lto. 2 as such requirements relate to the Property or the
Subsequent Entitlements, or the enabling legislation or the procgdule ado_pted pursuant

to Government Code section 65865 shall be as provided for in Section 7.5 of the
Development Agreement, with the substitution for Landowner as follows:

The Regents of the University of California
University of Califomia, Davis
225 Cousteau Place
Davis, CA 95618
Attention: Executive Director, Real Estate Services

Wth copies to:

The Regents of the University of California
1111Franklin Street, 6tt' Floor
Oakland, California 94607
Attention: Director, Real Estate

13. Form of Amendment - Execution in Countsrparts. This Amendment
No. 2 is executed in duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original, and

may be executed in counterParts.

9

Page 223

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom has authorized the execution of this

Amendment No. 2 in duplicate by its Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk under the

authority of Ordinance No. t I adopted by the City Gouncil on the 

- 
day of 

-,
2021.

CITY: LANDOWNER:

crw oF FoLSOM
a municipal corporation

Michael Kozlowski, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang, City AttorneY

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, Crty Clerk
[Notary Pages to be Added]

The Regents of the UniversitY
of California, a California corporation

UC LEGAL APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Its:

10

Page 224

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT LIST

A-l Legal Description of the Property
A-2 Depiction of Parcel 1 on MaP
B Preliminary Site Plan

11

Page 225

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT A.1
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

THE FOLLOWNG LEGAL DESCRIPTION IS FOR PROFORMA PURPOSES ONLY, AND IS
NOT TO BE UTILIZED IN A RECORDED DOCUMENT UNTIL THE PARCEL MAP
CONFIRMING SAID DESCRIPTION HAS BEEN RECORDED:

The land described herein is situated in the State of California, County of Sacramento, City of
Folsom, described as follows:

Lot 1 as shown on that certain map entitled "Vesting Tentative Parcel Map, Parcels 61 & 77"
liled for record in the office of the Recorder of the County of Sacramento, City of Folsom, State

of California on TBD, in Book TBD of Parcel Maps, at Page TBD, Sacramento County Records.

APN: 072-3190-030-0000 (a portion)

4834-37L4-L234.1

L2

Page 226

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT A.2
DEPICTION OF PARCEL 1 ON RECORDED PARCEL MAP

lllill
iiiiifi

'' i;rQ,
rlt''r; ,

,:iQ

I

{.
l; :'

'lil
i

rq

E

I

i

I

I

i

I

ll..:it

ir'
\

f;

I
tl

g

lr

*+

I

I

dJ

s

t

I

It

fi
-- 

. -.!,-, ;. .-.,:.L -.,

':-l " - -'

,
I
i
tI

r!|

j" I.rI
' '.1|

rI

I
I

ls

tll

t$

TE

f*

{

iillr
f6l:
lO\lr

FlI
-.rl':tl

I

I
I

AI
1

r
I
I
t'ilili

'fitlliiiiilli!

l,,,liiliii

,
I

I
I
I

I

!
I
t
Iii

iliii

il

lr

I

!
5

Ii
]
I

t

t

tt
a,t
lt

t i:

a.al.t

I
0

I
t

Page 227

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT B
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

gI

fr
Ir
d
d
3

'fi'! 

ilt
r1,fl,fl,fl

r*,i,l,t
t'$'t.*,&
F: il ri {i

,f;li-r..t
,.ll,l.i,itr,l

Page 228

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commission
UGD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August4,2021

Attachmont 5

Conceptual Site Plan

Page 229

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



elO&.!d84.
trbqtuEqh(roq
b bgbl FEld{

6d{lor4l

tuproboSF

ul

h2&
8@
9p6

lo,@

35r@

taa,nt

E6'
No"

NT

&
HA

t{orc All fuw pcgmnhg L ryocubin

UG Dovis Heohh I Folsom Center

Conceptuol Plonning ond Progrom HEATTH

Page 230

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Commisaion
UCD Health Sciencee Campus Development Agreement AmendmEnt
August 4, 2021

Attachment 6

Project Narratlve

Page 231

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



trc Dwtf
HEALTH

UC Davis Health I Folsom Center
Development Narrative
July2,2O2l

Backgrourd

UC Davis prwides extensive healthcare resources forthe Sacramento region and contlnually evaluates

long-term healthcarefacilityneeds. With expectedpopulatlon growth in the Folsom area and a need for

new facilities, UC Davis has entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement for 34.547 net acres of
property at Folsom Ranch. The parcelis a key component of the Folsom Specific Plan and is located at

the southwest corner of the Highway 50 and East BidwellStreet interchange. UC Davis evaluated

property acquisitions beginning in 2018 and identified potential key properties within the City of Folsom

and further selectedthe proposed property based on the location and the existing Cityof Folsom long-

term planning vision for the Folsom Specific Plan area.

Purchase of the property by the Universitywould serve severalgoals which include the following:

o Expanding UC Davis Health servlces and patient access in Folsom to its residents and to the
surrounding communities.

r Replacing existing facilities currently housed in leased spaces in Folsom set to explre in Sept

2023.

r Securing a prime spot in Folsom that that exudes wellness, community, convenience, and

excellence.

The Universityintends to phasethe full sitedevelopment over manyyears. Thefirst phaseof

development is expected to include a medical office building, associated sidewalk, plazas, landscaping,

surface parking, and outdoor space for patient and staffwellness and healing. While details are not

certainatthis point, the medicaloffice building is targetedatapproximately100,000to 120,000square

feet and threeto four stories in helght, Planning for subsequent project phases and thosetimeframes

have not been determined at this time but will be in support of the goals of the site to expand patient

care and access.

As a constitutionally created entitywith "full powers of organization and government" pursuant to
Article l& Section 9 of the Callfornla Constitution, UC is not subject to regulation by local jurisdictions

(except when exerclsing lts police po,ver) on property UC owns or controls and uses in furtherance of lts

academic and research mission. l This exemption allows UC to grant itself authority to construct and

renovate buildings without complying wlth otherwise applicable land use and zoning requirements. 2

With this authority comes the responslbllity to comply with the California Environmental Quallty Act

(CEQA), a statute designed to facilitate informed decision-making by public entities through the

1 California Constitution, art. lX $9 ("... (a) The Universlty of Califomia shallconstitute a public trust to be

administeredbythe exbting corporation knovn as "The Regents of the Unlvenity of Califomia," with fullpowers
of organizatlon and government.., (f)The Regenb of the Univenity of Californb shallbe vested with the legaltitle
andthemanagementanddispositionofthepropertyoftheunirarsityandof propertyheldforitsbenefit...". Son

F ra n ci sco La b o r Co un ci l v. Reg e nts ol U n iversity of Cd l ifomrq ( 1 980) 2 5 Ca l. 3 d 7 81 7 88).
2 See,e.g., Hollv. City of Toft (1956) 47Cal.2d ITT,tSSlconstruction of schoolfacility not subject to local

regulation); Segents of lJnivercity ol Collfomlav. City of Santa Montcall9TS) 77 Cal.App.3d 130, 136 (construction

by University of California ln a rented commercial buildlng of facllitles for Universitypurposes was notsubjedto
local land use authority).

Page 232

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



tJ(,DAVIS
HEALTH

disclosureof the potentialenvironmental impactsof the projectstheyapprove. The CEQAProcessalso

requires the University to certirythat it has mitigatedtothe extent feasible the significant impacts

associated with project lmplementation and operation. Development proposals aretypically revlewed

and considered by the University with carefullocal cityand/or county coordination.

Requested Actlon

UC Davis carefully reviewed the existing Cityof Folsom Development Agreementfor the FPASAP which

appearstooverlapthetypicalland useentitlementauthorityof the Universityof California. The

development agreement, as a recorded deed encumbrance, extends beyond typical master developer

obllgations and lncludes design and plan review provisions and would remain enforceable even durlng

ownershipbytheUniversityofCalifornia. Carryingthesedevelopmentagreementrequirements

forward would essentlallyduplicatethe public agencyreview and entitlement processes by requiring

development reviewconsideration by both the Cityof Folsom and by the Universityof California. The

University of California has collaborated with the existing property owner and with City of Folsom staff

to carefully consider this issue.

At this time, UC Davis is requesting that the Cityof Folsom amend the development agreement to

remove City of Folsom land use entitlement requirements from the 34.547 acre parcel. The remainder

of the provisions included in the development agreement will remain unaltered by the proposed

amendment. The requested action would keep all impact fee requirements (including property owned

by the University) as full obligations for the property. The proposed action would apply only to the land

owned by the Universityof California.

Benefits of the requested action include the following:

Remove Duplicate Entfttement Process. The proposed action would remove duplication in the

entitlement process for the property helping to avoid development delays and inefficiencies.

Standard Unlvercityof Cafibrnla Ownerchlp. The proposed actlon would ensure the land ownership

and entitlement process would be standard for the Board of Regents of the Universlty of Callfornia. ln

addition, thisactionwould ensurethatCityof Folsom would beoutsideof anylegalchallengeorpublic

controversies relatedto the University entitlements. The University intends to work collaboratively with

the Cltyof Folsom to maintain consistencyof plannlng goals, infrastructure construdion and

maintenance and pursuit of overall community goals for the City of Folsom.

Avoid fontradlctory/OrrcrlappingRequirements: Theamendmentwould provide long-term certainty

to the Regents while still maintaining a strong public engagement process for the local and University

communities. The University process is robust, thorough and complete with extensive consideration of

serving the public need, exceptional design details and high-quality architecture, advanced sustainability

measures, and carefulcompliance with public contracting and labor agreements.

Establash public Clarlty. The amendment would ensure that the University is identified as the

responsible public agency for entitlements, design review and other matters.

Demonstrate Public Efficiency. The amendment would demonstrate two public agencies working

collaboratively and efficiently in furtherance of public service goals and kicktarting the constructlon

that has been planned at the parcel.

Page 233

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



L'( DAVTS
HEALTH

Proposed Development Concepts

The action to amend the development agreement would establish the University of California as the

public entity responsible for final entitlements. The following narrative provides an overview of the

development concepts a nd processes that the U niversity is expecting to consider for the property. The

overall concept for the stte envisions the medical office building and future projects that could

potentially include an ambulatory surgerycenterand micro-hospital pinwheeling around a shared

central landscaped spacethat will create an anchor for the planned future Main Street (currently

designated as Street'Cldirectly to the south.

The architecturalcharacterof bulldings and landscape characterofthe sitewill reflectthe vision and

mission of UC Davis and share many of the design principles and high-level of building finishes that are

in place for theSacramentoand Davis campuses. Amasterplanfor UC Davis Health Folsom Centerwill

be consldered to ensure efficient and coheslve planning for the bulldlng densltyfloor area ratio,

setbacks,landscapecwerage, buildingseparation, building height and parking needs. Development of

the site rnasterplan will be informed by the planning intent and objectives contained in the Folsom

RanchSpecific Plan.

The Universitywlll implement proposed projects wlthln the Universityof Californla Sustalnable Practices

Policy ensuring that strong levels of energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction,

transportation efficiency, and procurement measures wlll be applied to the site planning and

operations. While the overall Universityof California site development details are not available at this

time, the Universityexpects that site planning will reflect the types of intent and details contained in the

Folsom Ranch Specific Plan. One example of a potential divergence from the Folsom Ranch Specific Plan

istheapparentbuilding heightrestrictionforthepropertyof 50feet. UCDaviswillconsiderbuilding

heights of 3 to 4 stories which will likely exceed 50 feet. The consideration of taller buildings than

currently allowed in the Specific Plan would alloru flexibility for patient care efficiencies within each

building and for improved land utilizatlon efficiency across the entire parcel.

Ultimately, the University development will seekto reinforce the vision of UC Davis Health of creating a

healthier world through bold innovation and the mission of improving lives and transforming health care

by providing excellent patlent care, conducting groundbreaklng research, fosterlng lnnwatlve,

interprofessionaleducation, and creating dynamic, productive partnerships with the community'

Page 234

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Planning Gommission
UCD HCalth Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment
August4,2021

Attachment 7

First Amended and Restated Development
Agreement Relative to the Folsom South Specific

Plan

Page 235

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ilrilllllr r r ilrlllilrlllrrr I lfllll IIlllllllll lll
Saeramento Countv Recorder

David Villanueva, Clerk/Recorder
BooK 2Ol4O7t5 PRGE 0344-FOR THE BBNEFIT OF TfIE CITY OF FOISOM

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENTCODE $6103

RECORDING REQUE9TED BY CITY CLERK

WFIEN RECORDEDMAILTO:

City Clerk
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Sbeet
Folsom, CA 95630

Tucaday,
TtI Pd

JUL 15, 2014 9:26:17 f,l'l
$0,06 Rcpt $ oo0$zT7825

Tt'lL/8$11-92

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF FOLSOM AND

WEST SCOTT ROAD, LLC

RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

Folsom File No, 174-21 'l+029

052Z4Ammded and Rertated Tter 1 DA

rilllllllllllllllllllllilllllllllil
33002

Page 236

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

TABLE OF INDEX

RECITALS

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS ......
1,1 lncorporation of Recitals
1,2 Property Description and Binding Covenants.
1.3 Definitions
1.4 Term..

1.4.1 Commencement; Extension; Expiration
1.4,2 Tolling and Extension During Judicial Legal Challenge or Moratoria ... 10

1.5 Amendment of Restated Agreement .................,..... 10

1.5.1 Required Provisions in Subsequent Tier 2 Development Agreements and
Amendments to lncorporate Subsequent Entitlements .......'.'............'.'......... 10

1.5.2 No Amendment Required for MinorAdministrative Modifications ..,..... 12

1.5,3 Amendments to Restated Agreement after Approval of Subsequent
Entitlements ....,... 12

1.5.3.1 Specific Plan Amendment Cut-Off Date.......... ......,.... 13

1.5.4 Recordation Upon Amendment or Termination'..,....',.. ....., 13

ARTICLE 2 - DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 14
2.1 Permitted Uses....... 14

2.2 Vested Rights
2.2.1 Vested Provisions of the PFFP 14

Z.2.2Yested Provisions of the Specific Plan ....15

1

4
4
4
4
I
I

................ 14

2.2.3 Exceptions to Vested Rights .,.

2,2.3.1 Affordable Housing
2.2.3.2 Area 40 - Community Park West
2,2.3.3 Quarry Traffic... ..
2,2.3,4 Corporation Yard

15
.....16

16
19
20

2.2,3.4.1 Purchase of Corporation Yard 20
2.2.3.5 PFFP and SPIF 21

2,2.3.6 Adjustmentto SPIF AfterJuly 1,2016 .-...-..22
2.2.4 Clly Fees and New Plan Area Fees, lncluding Cost lncreases ... ...,..23

2.2.4.1Re-Openeron New Plan Area Fees for City Facilities ............ 25
2.2.5 Police Powers and Citywide Ordinances......... ...25
2,2.6 Application of Changes Due to State and Federal Laws ...................... 26
2.2.7 Uniform Codes and Standard Construction Specifications ...................26
2.2.8 Conflict Between Existing Rules, Entitlements and Restated Agreement

.,'.,,26
2.3 Density Transfer

ll052714.Amended arrd Restated Tler 1 DA

27

Page 237

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



2.4 Subsequent Entitlements """"""""""'27
2.S Ordinance, Resolution and OfficiallyAdopted Rules """"""""'27

2,5.1ConflictingOrdinancesorMoratoria,.'...,'..."'. """"""""""'27
2.5.2 Authority of City ...."',... """""""""" 27

2.5.3 Requirements lor Subsequent Plans, Guidelines, Funding Mechanisms'

Community Facilities Districts and Land Dedications """""""""27
2.5.4 Satisfaction of TAFCO Conditions """""""""" 30

2.5.5 Mather Noise Easements """""""" 30

lmplementation Fees
""""""""""' 30
................,.,.. 30

ARTICLE 3 - LANDOWNER OBLIGATIONS ...." 31

3.1 Development, Connection and Mitigation Fees 31
31

to Gity Discretion 31

3.3 Alternative Financing Mechanisms ..,32
3.4 Disclosure of Subsequent Purchasers "."'...' 32

3.5 EIR Mitigation Measures .... 32

3.6 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program., 32

3.7 Backbone lnfrastructure . 32

3,7.1 White Rock Road lmProvements 33

3.8 Dedications of Backbone Lands.'... .....,,...,...,..... 34

3.8. 1 Temporary Construction Easements 34

3,8.2 Manner of Dedication
3.8.3 Adjustments to Dedications 35

3.8,4 Release of Excess Offers of Dedication/No Compensation ..'.....".,...... 35

3.8.5 Dedication of Public Parcels ...35

3.8.5.1 Maintenance of Open Space/Pu blic Property/Fuel Modification Area
............ 36
,........... 36
Conditions

2.5.6 School lmPact Mitigation
2.6 Application, Development and Project

3,2 lnfrastructure CFDs
3.2,1 ParticiPation bY Landowne
3.2.2Formation of CFD Subject

3.9 Phasing of DeveloPment.'..
3.9.1 Phasing of NecessarY Backbone lnfrastruc{ure Through M;;

3.9.2 Phasing of ln-Tract lmprovements
.37
.38
.38
.39

3.10 Park lmprovement and Trail Funding and Construction

3.11 Timing of Access lmProvements for Fire Stations

3.12 Reimbursement of Pro Rata Share of City Cogts for Compliance with
39Requ lrements of this Restated Ag reement....'..

3.1i Sales Tax Point of Sale in Gity of Folsom'

4.2.1 Specific Plan Reimbursement Fee
4.2.i.1No SPRF Reimbursernents or Credits

....,..39

ARTTCLE 4 - CITY OBLIGATIONS ..,..'....,.

4.1 City CooPeration
4.2 New Plan Area Fees .'.'....,

40
40
40
41
42
42
43

on Default

4.2.2 Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee
4.2.2.1No SPIF Reimbursement for Required Park Dedication

052714.Arnen<led and Restated Tier 1 DA ul

Page 238

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



4.2.2.2 No SPIF Reimbursements or Credits on Default,
4.3 Reimbursements/Credits Personal to Dedicating and Constructing Owner
4.4 Collection and Administration of New Plan Area Fees

4.5 Applications for Permits and Entitlements
4.5,1 Plan Check
4.5.2 Compliance with Government Code Section 66473.7

4.6 Water Supply

43
43
44
45
46
46
46
48
46
47

48
48
49
49
49
50
50
51
51
52
52

53
53
53
53
53
54
5,4

55
55
55
55
56
56

4.7 City Acceptance of Conservation Easement(s) on Open Space ..

4,8 City/County SCDTF AgreemenUHighway 50 Coalition Fee ...-....'
4.9 Assistance with Acquisition of Necessary Real Property lnterests

ARTICLE 5 _ DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION ..

5.1 General Provisions
5.2 Annual Review

5.2.1 Permitted Delay, Extension of Times of Performance ....'......
5.2.2 Permitted Extensions bY CitY

5.3 LegalAction; No Obligation to Develop; Specific Enforcement .......,.'..'...'..
5.4 Automatic Terminatlon Upon Completion and Sale of Residential Unit ......
5.5 Termination Upon Landowner Request ..".,.
5.6 Effect of Termination ............
5.7 No Protest or Challenge to Fees
5,8 Applicable Law

ARTICLE 6 - HOLD HARMLESS AND GOOPERATION...........
6.1 Hold Harmless
6,2 Cooperation and Defense in the Event of Legal Challenge

ARTICLE 7 - GENERAL......,...
7.1 Enforceability
7.2 Cily Finding .

7.3 Third Party Beneficiaries
7.4 Project as a Private Undertaking
7.5 Notices
7.6 Severabllity .,.,

52
52
53

58

7.7 Construction .,........
7.8 Other Necessary Acts
7.9 Estoppel Certificate
7.10 Mortgagee Protection
T.ll Assignment
7.l2Enlire Agreement

stcNATURES......,............

LIST OF EXHIBITS

.....57

052n4.Amcnded arld Restated Tler 1 DA lv

Page 239

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED TIER 1 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
RELATIVE TO THE FOLSOM SOUTH SPECIFIC PLAN

This First Amended and Restated Tier 1 DevelopmentAgreement (the "Restated

Agreement") is entered into this day of 2014, by and between the

City of Folsom ('City') and West Scott Road, a Delaware Llmited Liability

Company ("Landowne/') pursuant to the authority of Sections 65864 through 65869.5 of

the Government Code of California. All capita lized terms used herein and not otherwise

defined herein shall mean and refer to those terms as
1 Development Agreement between the parties hereto

RECITALS

defined in Section 1,3 of the Tier

A. Tier 1 Development Aorsement. The City ald Landowner (or

Landowner's predecessoi-in-interest, as reflected in the definition of "Landowned' in the

Tier 1 Development Agreement), previously enteled into that certain Tier 1

Development Agreement By and Between the City of Folsom and Michele M. Carr and

Melissd A. Barr6n, Et. Al., Relative to the Folsom South Spectfic Plan, dated August 2,

2011 and recorded on August 3, 2011, in the Official Records of the County Recorder of

Sacramento County in Book 201 10803, Page 0422 (the 'Agreement"). Section 1'5 of

the Agreement allows the Agreement to be amended from time to time by mutualwritten

consent of the parties,

B. Pumose of Restated Agreement. The City and Landowner desire to
provide greater certainty ind clarity to matters that are common, necessary and

bssentiaifor the developinent of the Property in the Plan Area, including but not limited

to dedication of open space and land for publlc facilities, environmental mitigation and

monitorlng, as well as ihe contribution and reimbursement of the facilities' costs and

services 
'by and amongst Landowner and lts successors-in-interest. Additionally,

Landownei desiree to proceed with Development consistent with the Entitlements or

any Subsequent Entitlemente that may be included within the scope of this Restated

Agreement as those terms are described herein. As contemplaled and required by the

Tier 1 Development Agreement, prior to any Development being approved for or

occurring withiir the Property (including any approval of tentative residential small-lot

subdivision maps or grading or constructlon of any improvements within or serving the
property), Landowner must obtain approval from the City of a Tier 2 Development

Agrbemtnt (as defined herein). This Restated Agreement is intended to replace the

Tiir 1 Deveiopment Agreement for the Property, implement the requigmenls of the

Entiilements and the Speclfic Plan EIR as applied to Development of the Property,

satisff the condition for a Tier 2 Development. Agreement prior to Development of the
propdrty, and establish a process for evaluating the inclueion of future Speclflc Plan

Rmlndments within the scope of this Restated Agreement ln the event such

amendments are approved by the Clty Council.

0527l4.Amended and Restated Tler 1 DA Pg.r

Page 240

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



C. Effeot of Restated Aoreement. The Tier 1 Development Agreement

requirestnea@atier2DevelopmentAgreementinconjunction
witfu subsequJnt projeclspeciflc approvals, and prior to physlcal development of the

Froperty. inis ies["ted Agreement shall be deemed to lmplernenl and satisfy this

r"qrir",ii"nt. Accordingly, upon the recordatlon of this Restated Agreement in the

Officiat Records of Sacrimenio County, the Tier 1 Development Agreement, as applied

to tf.t* Croperty, shall be deemed amended and replaced in its entirety by thls Restated

Agreement. ffre replacement of the Tier 1 Development Agreement by this Restated

Afireement as to the Property shall not affect or impair the continuing validity of.the Tier

l bevelopment Agreembnt and encumbrance thereof on other properties within the
plan Area that do not have an approved, executed and recorded Tier 2 Development

Agreement or this Restated Agreement.

D. property. The subject of this Restated Agreement is the development of

the property and the Plan Arei. Landowner owns or has the right to acquire the
property and represents that all persons holding legal or equitable interests in the

Property shall be bound by this Restated Agreement.

E. Snecific plan and Public Facilities.. Fln?ncino Plan. The City Council

adopted tfre Specific eUn wttich Plan is applicable to the Property pursuant to

Resolution No. 8863 on June 28, 2011. The City Council also approved the Public

Facilities Financing Plan pursuant to Resolution No, 9298 on January 28,2014 related

tothe planned Aevitopment of the Specific Plan, consistent with the requirements of the

Tier 1 Development Agreement.

F. Hearings. On May 7,2014, the Gity Planning Comrnission, designated as

the planning agtsncy for purposes of development agreement review pursuant to

Governmenf CoOe Section 65887, in a duly noticed and conducted public hearing,

considered this Restated Agreement and recommended that the City Council approve

this Regtated Agreement.

G. Mitioation Measures, Mitigation measures were recommended in the

Specificpun@ntalEnvironmenta]Revlew(s),ifany,relatedtothe
City'" 

"pproval 
of ne Speilflc Plan,.the Agreement, and.this Restated Agreement, and

nave O6dn incorporated in the Specific Plan and the Entitlements and in the terrns and

conditions of thii Restated Agreement, as reflected by the findings adopted by the City

Co uncil con cu rrently with this Restated Ag reement'

H, Entitlements. Following consideration, and certification of the

aforementioneO Specific Plan ElR, any Supplemental Environmental Review(s), and

CEOA rehted findings, the City Council has adopted applicable statement(s) of

o*riiOing consideratidns and has approved the following Entitlements that are cunently

appficaUfl to the Property, which Entitlements are the subiect of this Restated

Agreement:

1, The General Plan;

052714.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg'2

Page 241

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



2. The SPecific Plan;

3. This Restated Agreement;

4. The Public Facilities Financing Plan (the "PFFP"); and

S. The City and Landowner acknowlodge that Design Guidelines for
the Plan Area will be presented to the City by Landowners and

other Participating Landowners for review and approval by the City.

Upon approval of the Design Guidelines by the City, such Design

Guidelines shall be an Entitlement without the necessity of further
amendment to this Restated Agreement.

l. General and Specitic Plans. Development of the Property in accordance

with the gntitlernents anO tnis Restated Agreement will provide orderly groMh and

development of the area in accordance with the policies set forth in the General Plan

and the Specific Plan.

J. Substantial CosJs to Landowner. Landowner has incuned and will incur

substantial costs in orOer to implement the Specific Plan and to assure Development in

accordance with the Entitlements and the terms of this Restated Agreement.

K. Need for Services and F?cilities. Development of the Property will result

in a need for ur5an .servlces and facilities, which servlces and facilities will be provided

by City and other public agencies to such Development subject to the porformance of

tindowner's obligations hereunder, including but not limited to Landowne/s obllgation

to fund such facilities and services.

L. ContriFgtion to Costs of Faoilities and Services. Landowner agrees as

provided nerein to prwiOe for the costs of such public facilities, servioes and

infrashucture, lncluding but not limited to the Backbone lnfrastructure required for the

Development of the Property and/or required by the Entitlements, and to mitigate

impacti on the City of the Development. City agrees to provide municipal services

sufiect to Landowner's payment of such costs and compliance with the terms and

conditions in this Restated Agreement. Landowner, through the development of its
property in accordance with the Entitlements and this Restated Agreement, will

coniriOdte as part of the Specific Plan towards providing a mix of housing and

commercial uses meeting a range of needs for the City, dedication of land for, and

funding of, public facilities, open space, parkland and related park amenities, and other

servicds and amenities that will be of benefit to the future residents of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual

covenanfs, promises, and agreements herein contained, and for other good and

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and

agreed, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

052714.Amended antl Restated Tier 1 DA Pg'3

Page 242

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ARTICLE 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 lncorporatlon of Recltalg. The Recitals above are true and correct and

constitute enforceable provisions of this Restated Agreement.

1.2 propertv Deecrlptlon and Blfr4lnq C,ovemntc. Upon recordatior of this

Restated ngr@ctlon 1.4.1 belor, the provisions of !hi9 Restated

ngrgement inaU consiltute covenants whlch shall run with the Property and the beneftts

aiO burdens hereof shall bind and lnure to all successorg-in-interest to and assigns of the

parties hereto. Accordingly, all references hereln to "Landowner" shallinclude each and

br"ry subsequent purchider or transferee of the Property, or any portlon thereol from

Landowner, ,i,netn6r or not such purchaser or traneferee executes an assumption of thls

Restated Agreement with respect thereto.

1.3 Deflnlflons.

,'Adopting ordinance" means ordinance No. 1195, dated June 10, 2014,

approving this Restated Agreement.

,,Advancing Owners" means the landowners within the Plan Area

described in Section 42.1 and listed as Advancing Owners in Exhlbit 4,2.'l of this

Restated Agreement.

"AerojeyEaston Property" means the real propgrty located within the

Specific Plan owned by Aerojet Rocketdyne, lnc.. and Easton Development Company,

LLC, as of the Effectivb Date, as more particularly shown on Exhlblt 2.?.3.2 attached

hereto and made a Part hereof.

,Agreemenf' means the Tier I Development Agreement dated August 2,

2011,
,Area 40" means that portion of the Aero.ietlEaston Property adjacent to

pralrie Gity Road in the Specific Plan area as delineated by the EPA in the Superfund

cleanup sffort as depicted on EXh!b!!33.3,3

"Backbone lnfrastruc,ture" means the infrastructure described on EIhib!!
zu.,attached hereto and made part hereof.

,,Backbone Lands" means the land aneas within the Specific Plan as

shown on.EIh!b!$€,.

"CEqA" means the California Environmental Quality Act, Public

Resources Code Sedion 21000 et seq., and all regulations and guidelines promulgated

thereunder.

05271{.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.4

Page 243

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



"City" means the City of Folsom, a municipal corporation'

"City Council" means the City Council of the City'

,,City Zoning Ordinance" means the provisions of the City Municipal Code,

Title 17 et seq.

"CFD' means a Community Facilities District established pursuant to the

CFD Act.

"CFD Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

(Government Code Section 53311 et seq,), 1nd ^!he City of Folsom Community

Financing Law (Folsom Munieipal Code Chapter 3.110) as amended from time to time.

"Community Development Departmenf' means the Community

Development Department of the City.

,,Community Development Director" means the Community Development

Director of the CitY.

,,Constructing Owne/' means either Landowner or any other Participating

Landowner who elects to construct any PFFP Facilities.

"Constructing Owner's Property" means the property within which_any fee

credits associated with the Constructing Owner's construction of any PFFP Facilities

may be applied, aE more particularly described in section 4.3 below.

,,Day(s)" means business day(s), except as expressly stated herein.

,'Design Guidelines' means the design guidelines for the FPA approved by

the City, and there-after to be applied by the City to guide and evaluate the design of

certain improvements within the Plan Area.

',Develop" or "Developmenf' means any development,_construction and

use of the property pursuant to a lawfully issued peryl by the. City of .Folsom in

furth"r"n"" of tire Spbcific Plan and the Entitlements, including without limitation, the

processing and apprival of any tentative or final Large-Lot or Small-Lot Maps.

,,Development Agreement Statute" means Government Code Section

65864, et seq.

"Development Phase" Or "Phase" means a DeVelOpment PhaSe aS

described in Section 3.9 anO subsections to Section 3.9 of this Restated Agreement.

"Effective Date" means the date which is thirty (30) calendar days after the

date of the Adopting Ordinance approving this Restated Agreement.

"Entiflements" means the entitlements described in items 1 through 5,

inclusive, of Recital I above, and those Specific Plan Amendments referenced in

Section 1.5.3 of this Restated Agreement'

052714,Arrencled ald Reetatecl Tior 1 DA Pg. 5

Page 244

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



"Existing Fees" means the development impact and mitlgation fees
existing in the City as of the Effective Date of the Agreement set forth in Exhibit 2.2.4
attached hereto,

"Existing Rulss", unless otherwise expressly provided in this Restated
Agreement or the Entitlements, means City's ordinances, and resolutions in foroe and

effect on the Effective Date of the Agreement.

"FPAU means the Folgom Plan Area annexed by the City of Folsom on or
aboutJanuary 18,2012.

"General Plan" means the Folsom General Plan, as amended by
Resolution No, 8861.

"tnfrastruc,ture CFD" means a CFD formed to finance (i) the acquisition
and/or construction of any Backbone lnfrastruc'ture or other public facilities or
improvements serving development of the Plan Area and/or (ii) the payment of the
SPIF.

"lnfragtrusture CFD lmprovements" means the public

improvernents authorized for acquisition or construction by the applicable
CFD.

"Landowner'means West Scott Road, LLC, a Delaware Llmited Liability
Company, and its heirs, successors and assigns.

"Land Use Plan" m€ans the Specific Plan Land Use Plan for the Property,

as set forth on Figure 4.1 of the Specific Plan, adopted by the City Council pursuant to
Resolution No. 8863 and made a part hereof.

"Large-Lot Map" means a subdlvision or parcel map processed and

approved pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act that, upon recordation hereof, will create
Large Lot Parcels.

*Large Lot Parcel" means a parcel created by the recordation of a parcel

map, subdivision map consistrent with the Subdivision Map Ast that is either planned for
non-resldential or multi-family use, or is planned for slngle-family residentlaluse

"Mitigation Fee Act" means the Mitigation Fee Act, as delined and

implemented pursuant to Section 66000 et seq. of the California Government Code, or
any succegsor gtatute thereto.

"Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program" means the mitigation

monitoring and reporting program approved by the City in connection with its appr_oval

of the Speoific Plan EIR pursuant to Resolution Number 8860, as may be reviged from
time to ilme tn connection with the City's approval of any Supplemental Environmental

Review(s) applicable to Development of the Property.

facilities or
lnfrastructure

05fi4.Amended and Regtat€d Tter 1 DA Pg,6

Page 245

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



,,Mortgagee" means any lender or other entity that obtains a mortgage or

deed of trustagainstthe Property'

,,New Rules" means any new or modified resolution, rule, and/or ordinance

adopted by the City or by initiative (whether initiated by the City Council or by a voter

p"tiiion, *'rri.n initiitive ihanges, alters or amends the rules, regulations and policies

lpplicaOl" to the rate, timing or sequencing and density and intenslty.. of use or

n'"uttopr.nt of the Property) after the Effective Date which is not part of the. Existing

Rules. "N'ew Rules" does n6i include a referendum that specifically overturns the City's

approval of any of the Entitlements.

,'New plan Area Fees" mean$ the new development impact and mitigation

fees, including the SPRF, SPIF and New Plan Area Fees for QltV Facilities, to be

aOopteA and iinposed in connection with the Development of the Plan Area consistent

*itn tn" terms bi tne PFFP and this Restated Agreement, as specifically listed and

fO"ntmeO in Exhlblt 2.2,4 attached hereto under the Fee categories entitled 'New

FpASp phnAreaEe-r City Facilities," "New FPASP Plan Area Fee for Specific

Plan lnfrastructure (SPIF),'and'iNew FPASP Planning and Land Fees."

.New plan Area Fees for City Facilities' means the new development

impact fees to be adopted and imposed in connection with the Development of the Plan

Arba to finance certain City facilities consistent with the terms of the PFFP and this

Restated Agreement, as listed and identified jn Hhlblt 2.2.4 under the Fee category

entitled "Neil FPASP Plan Area Fees for City Facilities"'

,'participating Landowners" means Landowner and any and all other

landowners of other'propErti"" within the Plan Area who have then obtained approval

"nd 
hau" executed ind recorded, and are not in breach, of a Tier 2 Development

Ajreement or thls Restated Agreement for such other properties.

',permit Streamlining Act" means the provisions of Government Code

Section 65920 et seq,

'pFFp' ("public Facilities Financing Pl_an) means the Public Facilities

Financing plan preparLa ny Economic and Planning Syetems and the Folsom office of

M"n"g#"nt ariA Budget ipproved by the City on January 28,2014 by Resolution No.

9298.

"pFFp Facilities" means the public improvements and facilities seruing

the plan Area that are to be financed, in whole or in part, by the Plan Area pursuant to

the terms and provisions of the PFFP.

,,plan Area" means the entire Specific Plan area shown on Exhibit B

hereto.

,,planning Commission" means the Planning Commission of the City'

052714.Anrmdcd and RestatedTier 1 DA Pg.7

Page 246

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



,,project" means Development consistent with the Entitlements, lncluding

this Restated Agreement.

',property" means those certain parcel(s) of land described in FffTbit]Fl
and shown on fflb]l$ attached hereto and made a part hereof within the Plan

Area.

,'public Parcels" means the parcels within the Plan Area planned for open

space and public uses described and shown on s[i!!!-E hereto'

"Restated Agreement" means this First Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Ag reement.

"Small-Lot Map" means a subdivision map processed and approved

pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act that, upon recordation lhereof, will create either

individual lots or parcels upon which building permits may be issued for the construction

of commercht niritdings or single-family residential units within a parcel planned for

commercial or single-flmiV use, or for construction and sale of individual condominium

units withln a parcel planned for commercial or multifamily residential use, consistent

with the underlying zoning in the Entitlements.

"specific Plan" means the Folsom Specific Plan adopted by the City

Council by Resolution No. 8863 on June 28, 2011-

.specific plan Amendment" means an amendment to the Specific Plan

approved by the CitY Gouncil.

,'specific Plan ElR" means the Final EIR for the Specific Plan certified as

adequate and complete by the City Council by Resolution No. 8860 on June 14,2011
(State Clearinghouse No. 2008092051 ).

usplF" means the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee to be adopted and

imposed in connection with the Development of the Plan Area consistent with the terms

of ihe PFFP and Section 4.2.2 of this Restated Agreement.

"SpRF' rneans the Specific Plan Relmbursement Fee to be adopted and

imposed in connection with the Development of property within the Plan Area consistent

wiin the terms of the PFFP and Section 4.2.1of this Restated Agreement.

,,standard Deslgn and Construction Specifications" means the standard

specifications approved by the City Council and published and maintained by the City'

as amended from time to time'

,,subdivision Map Acf' means the provisions of Government Code Section

6641 0 et seq.

,,subseguent Entillements" means those projeot specific approvals which,

in addition to the Entitlements, are required in order for Development to occur on a
Landowner's Property. Subsequent Entitlements include, but are not limited to,

052714.Amendcd and llestatcd Tier 1 DA Pg.8

Page 247

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



tentative and final Large and Small-Lot Maps, parcel maps, use permits, design review,

grading plans and building permits, and all of the conditions of approval associated with

such project specific aPProvals.

,,supplemental Environmental Review(s)" means any supplemental or

additional environmental review and analysis approved or certified by the City, in

addition to the review and analysis certified by the City Council in the Specific Plan ElR,

associated with and/or required by the City's review and approval of the Entitlements,

including without limitatibn, any addenda, amendments, or mitigated negative

declarations that may be approved or certified by the City in connection with any and all

amendments to the SPecific Plan'

',Term" means the term of this Restated Agreement as defined in Section

1.4.1 hereof.

"Tier 1 Development Agreement" means the Tier 1 Development

Agreement described in RecitalA.

"Tiet Z Development Agreement" means a development agreement

required by the Tier 1 Development Agreement.

,Vested Rights" means the rights to Develop the Property consistent with

the terms and provisions of this Restated Agreement'

,'Water Supply Agreement" means that certain Water Supply and Facilities

Financing plan and Rgieeinent Between the City of Folsom and Certain Landowners in

the FobJm Plan Area, entered into by and between the Gity and Folsom Real Estate

South, LLC, et al,, dated December 11,2012, and recorded in the Official Records of

Sacramento County, Book 20130'124, Page 1382, on January 24,2013, as amended.

1.4 Term.

1.4,1 Commencement: ExtensioQ:, Exoiration' The T9- shall

commence upon the EffectG Date. This Restated Agreement shall be recorded against

the property witnin ten (10) calendar days after City enters into this Restated Agreement,

is required by Californii dovernment Code Section 65868.5. The Term of this Restated

Agreement sliallextend from the Effectfue Date thror.rgh June 30,20M, unless said Term

is-earlier terminated, modified or extended by circumstances set forth in this Restated

Agreement or by mutual consent of the p.artieg- hereto. Nothing herein prevents the City

trim exercising its sole and complete discretlon in determining whether this Restatd
Agreement sfril be extended at the end of the Term, and whether any of the terms

cdntained herein should be amended as part of the extension.

Following the expiration of the Term, or if terminated earlier in accordance

with the terms of this Restated Agreement, this Restated Agreement shall be deemed

terminated and of no further force and effect, except for the implementing ordinances for

the SPRF and the SPIF, which shall survive unless and until amended or revoked by

052714.Anrended arxl Restahed'fier I DA Pg.9

Page 248

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



the City Council, and the indemnification obligations in this Restrated Agreement, which

shall survive termination of this Restated Agreement.

1.4.2 Tolllno and Extonslon Durins Judiclal ChallsFog or lt[oratq_4a'

ln the event tnat tfris RestateO Agreement is subjected to a judicial challenge by a third

party other than Landowner, and Landowne.r gives written notice to City that it is_electing

hot io proceed with the Project until such litigation is resolved, the Term of this Restated

Agreer.irent and timing for obligations imposed pursuant !o lhls Restated Agreement shall,

ufon written request-of Landowner, be extended and tolled during such litigatio.n untilthe

entry of a final order or judgment upholding thls Restated Agreement, 9r, the litigation is

dismissed by stipulation of the parties. Similarly, if Landowner is unable to undertake

Development due to the imposition by the City or other public agency of a development

moratoiia for imminent health or safety reasons unrelated to the performance of

Landowner's obligations hereunder, then the Term of this Restated Agreement and timing

for obligations imposed pursuant to this Restrated Agreement shall, upon written request

of Landbwner, be extended and tolled for the period of time that such moratoria prevents

development of the Property. ln no event shall any extension of the term of this Restated

Agreement under this section exceed lwenty four (24) months from the date of filing of

any judicial challenge without further action and approval of the City Council.

Notwithstanding any extension or tolling of the Term of this Restated

Agreement as provided above in this Section 1.4.2, the City may, at Landowner's sole

cJst and expense, process any preliminary plans submitted by a Landowner, including,

without limitation, any applications for tentative parcel map or tentative subdivision map

approval, during such tolling period, provided, however, that Landowner waives the tirne

limits set forth in the Subdivision Map Act or Permit Streamlining Act for any action by

City during the tolling period to approve such tentative parcel map or tentative

sutiOivision map or other development permit approval. ln the event of a moratorium or
judicial challenge as provided in this section City shall not be obligated to hold any
'hearings, publii meeiings or to approve such tentative map or development permit

during-the moratorium, but may proceed with processing of preliminary plans at

Landowner's exPense.

i.S Amendment of Restated Aqreement. When the City Council finds it in
the best interests of tre City to do so, this Restrated Agreement may be amended from

time to time by mutual written consent of City and Landowner with respect to the Property

in accordance with the provisions of the Development {greement Statute and City

ordinances. Except as provided in Section 1.5.1, if the proposed amendment affects less

than the entirety 6t tne Property, then such amendment need only be approved by the

owner(s) in fee of the portion(s) of the Property that ls subject to or affected by such

amendment.

1.5.1
ln llght of

the necessitY for and ongolng fundlng of the FFA as tn Restated

Agreement and the Entitlements, including the PFFP, the Parties agr€e that the terms

and provisions of this Restated Agreement identified ln thls sectlon must be lncluded in

O52714.Amended and Restated Ticr 1 DA Pg. t0

Page 249

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



any other Tier 2 Development Agreement or subsequent Amended and Restated
Development Agreement for other properties within the Plan Area. The Parties further
agree that the terms and provisions enumerated herein may not be modified or amended
as to any property within the Plan Area without the written consent of all of the then
existing Participating Landowners, ln addition, unless othennrise agreed to in writing by a
Constructing Owner, the rights of a Constructing Owner who is no longer a Participating
Landowner to any outstanding fee reimbursements and/or fee credits under a Fee
Reimbursement Agreement wlth the City (as defined in Section 4.3 below) shall be
protected from the effects of any proposed amendment to Sections 2.2.1, 4.2.1, 4.2.2 and
4.3 of this Restated Agreement through the Constructing Owner's contractual rlghts
related thereto under such Fee Reimbursement Agreement, The following terms and
provisions fallwithin the scope of this section:

A. Portions of the PFFP. SPRF and SPIF: Credits and Reimbursements
(Segtions 2.2.1. {..2,1. 4.2.3 and 4.3): The provisions of the PFFP as set
forth in Section 2.2.1 (subject to the re-opener provisions of Section
2.2,4.1), the Specific Plan Reimbursernent Fee as set forth in Section 4,2.1,
the Specific Plan lnftastructure Fee as set forth in Section 4.2.2, and lhe
Fee Credit and Reimbursement rights as set forth ln Section 4.3;

B, Portions of the Financins ProqrarEs-outlined in the PFFP (Sections 2.2,3.6.
2.5.3 and 3.2): Landowner's and City's commltments under Recital L,

Section 2.2.3.5 related to adoption and implementation of the PFFP and the
SPIF, Section 2.5.3 to support the formation and implementatlon of all
finance prclgrams and CFDs described therein, including the Aquatic Center
CFD for purposes of financing as outlined in the PFFP, and Sec,tion 3.2
related to the formation and implementation of any infrastructure CFDs;

C. New Plan Area Fees (Secdon 2.2.4 and 2.2.4.1): Landowner's commitment
in this Restated Agreement to support and pay the New Plan Area Fees,
and all other fees adopted by the City consistent with this Restated
Agreement, as and when required by the PFFP and the adopting
ordinances;

D, Deeign Gpidelinee (Recital H): The Design Guidelines for the Project upon
approval by the City;

E. Dedioations of Backbone and Lands Public Parcels (Sec'tions 3,8 - 3.8.5,11:
Landowner's commltment to dedicate and/or grant the Backbone Lands and
Public Parcels required for development of the Plan Area at no cost to the
City; and

O52Z4.Anrended arxl Reutated Titn 1 DA Pg.11

Page 250

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



F. Phaeing of Backbone lnfrastu.ettlre €e4ienl 3.9 - 3.9.2): Subject to the

@in this Restated Agreement, to determine the

phising and timing for construction of nocessary Backbone lnfrastructure

as mi'ps are pricessed, Landowner's commitment to maintain the

underlying requirement to construct the portion of the Backbone

lnfrastruclure as determined for each Development Phase pursuant to

Section 3.9 of this Restated Agreement'

Nothing stated herein is intended to modify the exceptions to vested rights

set forth in Sectioni.2.3, the re-opener provisions of $ection 2,2'4.1, the provisions

"ffo*ing 
for cost of living adjustmenis in Section 2.2.4(71, or the rights of the City under

Sectiois Z.Z.g, z.Z.A and z.i.l to enact new laws or regulations as provlded for in those

sections.

1.S.2 No Amendment Requlrcd fgt mhor ASmlqistrativq Mgdifiqafions.

Thepartiesackno@specificP]an,theCommunityDevelopment
olrecior of the Cny naJthe discretion to approve m!ryf modifications to approved land

use entitlements without the requirement for a public hearing or approval by the City

Coun"ii Accordingly, the approval by the Community Dev-elopment Department of any

Minor AdministrativsModifications (aC defined in the Specific Plan on the Effective Date

of this Restated Agreement) to thd Entitlements that are consistent with this Restated

agreement shall nit constitute nor require an amendment to thls Restated Agreement to

bJ effecqve. Notwithstranding the procedure for mlnor amendments, nothing in the

Entiflements or this Restated Agreement would preclude the Community Development

Director or the City Managei from bringing such amendments to the Planning

Commission and/or city coun'"il for action iiheTsne believes it is in the best interests of

the City to do so,

1.5.3 Amendments to ResEted, Aoreemenf. after Apotoval of
sunssouent gnti!|@ Landowner may file a.1 application for a

s@ndSubsequentEntitlementsassociatedwiththeSpecificPlan
Amendment after the approval, execution and rocordation of this Restated Agreement.

n. p"rt of such appiiiations, the Participatlng Landowner must also obtain an

Amendment to this iestated Agreement to allow for the application of the terms of this

Restated Agreement to the Speiitic Plan Amendment and the Subsequent Entitlements it

seeks. SuCh amendments shall be referenced as Amendment No.[ lto the Landowne/s

Restated Agreement, and shall be considered and processed by the City in accordance

ritn tfre terlrs of Government Code Section 65864 through 65869.5, inclusive, and any

.nJ "i "ppllcable 
provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code and the City Charter and City

Council Rbsofution No. 2370. The Cily Council retains sole and absolute discretion to

;;il;t" the Specific Plan Amendmeni and related Subsequent Entitlements, including

A*poring condiiions of development and to conduc-t any and all necessary Supplemental

Environirental Revlew prior to consideration of the approval of the Specific Plan

nmenAment and the Subsequent Entitlements. lf the City, in its sole and absolute

discretion, approves the Specific Plan Amendment and the Subsequent Entitlements and

pr*iO"J iftdt'Landowner bbo reaffirms its agreement to abide by the provisions of this

052Zl4,Amcncted and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.72

Page 251

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Restated Agreement and any modlfieations to the Restated A,greementand the $pecific
plan or conditions imposed on the project, then the Speciflc Plan Amendment and

Sunsequent Entitlements shall be inciuded within the definition of EntiUements as that

term is used throughout this Restated Agreement'

1,5.3.1 Soecific Plan Amendmgnt,,gut-Off Dqte' The terms set

forth in this Restated ngreefrffihatt appty to Speclfic Plan Amendments approved by

in" citv Council prior to-that date that is two (!) vears^trom the date of publication in the

F"O"rjf negistei of the Record of Decision for the Section 404 Permit issued by the

United Stat6s Army Corps of Engineers relative to Backbone lnfrastructure, or July 1,

iOiO, whichever isiater (the "specitic Plan Amendment Cutoff Date"). For Specific Plan

Amendments approved dy the City Council on or after the Specific Plan Amendrnent Cut-

o* D"t", tne City retalns the righi to modifi7 this Restated Agreement 1s applied to the

tanOs covereO Uy the proposed Speciflc Plan Amendment, to impose additionalconditions

oi iequirementi of Sre Project that are not project specific or "nexus" based, including

imposing additional costo, conditions .or requirements to: (1) fqnd and/or construct

ra;ititieJother than pFFp Facilities, and (2) fund services or amenities other than those

described in the PFFP, in conjunction with the approval of an amendment to the Specific
plan or to accelerate the tunOlng of proiects in the PFFP. Nothing in this section is

intended to prevent devetopmenl of the Property for the. uses and to the density or

intensity of development oi the rate and timing of development as set forth in this

Restated Agreement and the Entitlements, or permit modifications of other existing rights

oiappticati6n of New Rules, except 1s explesslV ngryiqeg in this Restated Agreement

in"l,jiing, as provlded in Government Code Section 65S65.2. Landowner retains its right

to objejt'to tfie cost of additional conditions or requirements, but expressly waives any

rrgffiLnt that the imposition of such conditions or requirements violate the terms of this

Rjstated Agreemeni and agrees to comply with such conditions or requirements,

including an-y cost associateJ therewith, should such be imposed by the CitV a9 part 9f
an ame-ndment to this Restated Agreement following consideration of Landowner's

oUi""tion. Regardless of the date of approval.of a Specific Plan Amendment, nothing

stateO herein iJ intended to modify, alter or limit in any way the City's right to impose new

conditions or terms which derive irom environmental review and are required to mitigate

environmental impacts, or are otherwise directly project related or "nexus" based.

1.5.4 Recordation Unon Amendmpnt gr. Termlnatlon. Except in the

eventthatthisRest@maticallyterminatedduetotheexpirationof
tn" i"*, the C1y shalt ciuse any amendment hereto, including any extension of the

i"i*, and any other termination hereof to be recorded, with the County Recorder within

t"n tiOl calehdar days after City executes such amendment or terminatlon. Any

amenOment or termination of this Restated Agreement to be recorded that affects less

than all the property shall describe the portion thereof that is the subjec't of such

amendment or termination.

052714.A[rended aild Restated Tiet 1 DA ?g.13

Page 252

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ARTICLE 2

DEVELOPMENT OF THE.PROPERTY

2.1 permitted Uses. The permltted uses of the Property, the density and

lntenstty ot u6dlifr6Tixinrum height and size of proposed buildings, provisions for

i"r"tu"tion or dedication of land foi publlc purposes and location of public utilities and

public improvements shall be those set forth in the Entitlements and this Restated

Agreement.

2.2 Vepted Rlqhte. City agreee that, except as othenruise provided in and as

may be ameiftffif,ccordance with the Exceptions to Vested Rights set forth in
Se|tion 2.2.3 below, City is granting, and grants herewith, vested rights to Development

for the Term of this Reitated Agreement in accordanoe with the terms and conditions

set forth herein. City acknowledlges that the rights vested by this Restaled Agreement

include the land uses and approximate acreages for the Property as shown and

O"."iin"O in Exhiblt A-1 and E![!!]!g.l!? attached heretg, or as such land uses and

approximate acreage, may be amended by those Specific Plan Amendments

retbrenced in Secti6n 1,5.5 of this Restated Agreement. Nothing in this Restated

Agreement shall impalr or affect the rights of Landowner under a vesting tentative map

oitne City's rights to condition such maps. (Golrt. Code Sec' 66498'1' et seq.)

Such uses shall be developed in accordance with the Entitlements, as the

Entilements described in Recital H provide on the Effective Date of this Restated

Agreement and/or as any Subseguent Entitlement incorporated therein provides on the

date of approval thereof bY CitY.

2.2.1 Veeted Provielons of the PFFP. The parties agree that the PFFP

is not a vested docdrnent in iG entirety. They further agree that only those portions of
the following Chapters and Appendices in the PFFP specifically referenced below will

vest for the term of this Restated Agreement:

A. The list of PFFP Facilities to be constructed in and/or financed by

the Plan Area, as set forth in Appendices B through G and I through

O of the PFFP, as may be revised in accordance with the
provisions of Section 2.2.3.5 hereln and subject to the re-opener
provisions set forth in Section 2.2.4.1 herein. The initial list of
PFFP Facilities is attached hereto as EIhIE!!-22Li

B. The development impact fee provisions, as set forth in the
Executive Summary, Chapters 5 and 8 and Table 13 of the PFFP'
including payment of such fees at building permit or occupancy and

establishment of fee reimbursement and credit provisions for
adva nce-funded imProvements;

C. The SPIF lmplementation provisions, as set forth in Appendix S of
the PFFP, including the SPIF Set-Aside for certain Phase 1 and

Os27l4.Amendad and Restated Tler 1 DA P9.74

Page 253

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Phase 2 sewer and water infrastructure and the SPIF fee

reimbursement and fee credit implementation and prioritization;

D, The Sewer and Offsite Water CFD and Extended Terrn CFD
provisions, as set forth in Chapters 5 and 6 and Appendix U of the

PFFP; and

E. The Clg Loan for Water/Sewer Finanqing provisions, a9 se! forth in

Chapteis 5 and 6 and Appendix U of the PFFP, including City loan

repayment from Sewer and Offsite Water CFD revenues and

esia6lishment of SPIF Set-Aside with applicable credits for eligible

improvements.

As to the provisions of the SPIF, including the Set-Aside described in

2.2.1(C), the Parties agiee that additional details for implementation of the SPIF Set-

ASO.; *itt U" subject tJreflnement and substantiation as part of and in connection with

the City's adoption of the SPIF ordinance consistent with the parameters and. purposes

identifi6d in tlie above referenced sections of the PFFP. The City also shall have the

authority to adopt the ordinance for the New Plan Area Fees to accomplish the purpose

ouflined in the PFFP conslstent with the parameters and purposes ldentified in the

above referenced sections of the PFFP.

2.2.2 Veet€d Provisions of the Speclflq Pla4. The.parties lecognize
the need to vest cert?ii portions of tne Specific Plan and also recognize that during the

term of this Restated Agreement that there may be a need for changes in the plan to

iu"p p".", for example, with new regulatory requirements, new technology, changing

tren'ds and a need foi flexibility to address changes and needs and goals of the City as

expressed by the City Council over time. The parties recognize that the Specific Plan is

noi vested in its entiiety and agree that the following sections of the Specific Plan are

vested and will not be altered by New Rules:

A. Development Standards set forth in Appendix A of the Specific
Plan;

B. Land Use and Zoning set forth in Section 4 of the Specific Plan;

and

C. The street widths and roadway section provisions of Section 7.7,2

of the Specific Plan as depicted in Figures 7.24, 7.25, 7.26 and
7.27 relaled to Local Streets for a period of ten (10) years from the
Effective Date of this Restated Agreement

2.2.J Exceptions to Vegted RiohE. The parties specifically agree that

no vested rights exist and/or the term of such vesting under this Restated Agreement

may be limitLd and subject to modificatlon and the parties recognize that provisions in

the Entilements relateil to these issues may differ from the existing code and the

Specific plan and that the terms of this Restated Agreement shall control with respect to

the following issues:

052Zl4,Anrended and Reetated Tier 1 DA P9.15

Page 254

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



2.2.3,1 Affordable HousiEq, The existing Housing Element and

Folsom Municipal Code contain provisions associated with affordable housing and

these provisions are vested untilJanuary 1,2020 (i,e., the date that is 12 months before

the expiration of the current Housing Element), Until January 1,2Q2Q, the City agrees it

shall not amend provisions of the Housing Element associated with affordable housing,

except for such amendments that do not alter land uses, result in additional financial

burdens on development in the Plan Area, amend the Land Use Plan, rezone any

portion of the Property without the Landowner's written consent or to comply with state

iaw or court ordei. Ndtfring herein shall prohibit Landowner from proposing or agreeing

to any changes to the Land Use Plan or zoning for the Property. ln any subsequent

Housing Elehent the City may adopt a Housing Element in its discretion and will look

citywide to meet its Staie-imposed Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) and

reiains all rights to modify the Land Use Plan and rezone any portion of the Property,

add, modify or delete programs, policies and goals, excluding however any portion(s) of

the properiy forwhich a vesting map has been approved and remains valid, Nothing in
this Restated Agreement is intended to limit the Landowner's ability to obtain vested

maps as allowed by law or City ordinance.

The City agrees that when examining land to address future RHNA

requirements, it will, to the extent feasible in the FPA, maintain rough proportiorality of

the mix of residential and commercial as exists in the Specific Plan on the Effective

Date of this Restated Agreement. For purposes of this section, "rough proportionality"

shall mean plus or minus 10olo. The City agrees that when it examines the RHNA

requirementi it witt endeavor to maintain the rough proportionality of commercially

zoned land to residentially zoned land. Notwithstanding the objective to maintain rough

proportionality, the City may consider among other information available at the time it is

i"ev'iewing its Housing Element, including the number of an-d type of financially feasible

and avaiiable sites, iriteria used for evaluating financing of affordable housing projects

(including but not limited to qualification for tax credits), the extent to which vested maps

or other iested rights exist on commercial and residential property, the extent to which

other lands have been rezoned to a different zoning designation since the Effective

Date of this Restated Agreement, avoiding overconcentration of affordable housing and

the policies of the Housing Element and may, in its discretion, rezone lands necessary

to meet the City's RHNA obligations.

2.2.3.2 Area 40 - GomTnunitv Fark West. The term "Community
park West" refers to that portion of the AerojeUEaston Property designated as the site

for Community Park West, as depicted in Exhibit 2,2.3.2. At the time of adoption of this

Restated Agreement, the land uses have been identified in and approved as part of the

Specific Plan, and the Parties believe such uses are consistent with the uses permitted

by state and federal regulatory agencles in that portion of the AerojeUEaston Property

referred to as Area 40 that has Superfund status. The City and Easton Development

and Aerojet Rocketdyne ("AeroJet/Easton") have met to address the current provision

related to Area 40 in the Tier 1 Development Agreement. The parties have agreed to

replace the Tier 1 provision with the provisions contained in this section and to provide

foi an alternate site if Community Park West has not received regulatory clearance for

057t4.Arnended and Restated Tler'1 tJA Pg,1'6

Page 255

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



the park uses called for in the Specific Plan during the timeframe outline in this section.

This Agreement grants to Easton and Aerojet, as owners of the AerojeUEaston
propert!, and th6ir successors-in-interest, the right to develop portions of the

RorleUeaston Property, other than properties designated as Community Park West

and lhe Alternate dite (Aefned below), consistent with the Specific Plan subject to the

provisions of this section.

No later than the issuance of the 600th residential building permit within the

AerojeyEaston Property and lhose parcels designated for residential use within the

community park service area depicted in Figure 9.1 in lhe Specific Plan ("the Service

Area,,), njr{eVeaston shall create, record and lrrevocably offer to dedicate to City the
purcei'for the neighborhood park depicted in the Specific Plan as a 10.0 acre park. ln
addition, AerojeVEaston shail demonstrate to the City's satisfiaction, at the time of the

offer of 
'dedicition, 

that infrastructure (e.g., access streets, curb, gutter and sidewalk,

water and power services) are available to serve the nelghborhood park parcel' The

Clty and AirojeyEaston have met and agreed upon an altemate site for Community
park West in ifre event that all regulatory clearances for the uses in Community Park

West are not achieved as set forth herein. The alternate site for Community Park West

is depicted in Exhibit 2.2.8.2 ("Alternate Site") which has been agreed to by

nerojdyEaston, the City, and the landowners who are party to a Restated Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, agreement of landowners who are a party to a

Restated Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver on the part of such landowners

of the right to request mitigation measures as part of the park project approvalprocess

to reducl impacts of Community Park West on properties adjacent to or in the vicinity of
the Alternate Site. The parties agree that the Alternate Site shall not exceed the size

(approximately 47.8 acres) of Community Park West as reflected in the Specific Plan

icidpted in Zbll. AerojeUEaston shall process parce! maps with its first land use

appiication or submittial of a Specific Plan Amendment in the Service Area separately
dbiineating the Alternate Site and Community Park West. When the parcel map is

created tor ttre Alternate Site, AerojeUEaston shall grant, execute and provide to the

C1y an irrevocable offer of dedication of the Alternate Site for a communily park use

conditioned as set fofih in this section.

Upon issuance of the 1,000th residential building permit within the Service Area,

AerojeUEaston and City shall meet to discuss the progress of regulatory clearance for
use 6f Community Pari West, as well as timing and prooess for use of the A[emate Site

snou6 Communiiy Park West not be availablb upon issuance of the 1200th residential

building permit in the Service Area. ln the event that Gommunity Park West is not

"u"if"Oj"' 
for park use when the 1,200th residential building permit is issued in the

Service Area or if a final determination (including applicable appeals) is made by the

EpA that Community Park West cannot be used for the intended park purposes,

whichever occurs firsi, the City may accept the offer of dedication of the Alternate Site

as a permanent replacement for Community Park W""t City agrees to accept and
process an appllcation frorn AeroieUEaston for a Specific Plan Amendment, which

application shail include, unless sep_arately s_ubmitted in advance, the creation of the
pii.cet maps and the lrrevocable Offer of Dedloation referred to above. Any such

052714,Ar[endod and Restatsd Tler 1 DA P9.77

Page 256

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Specific Plan Amendment by Aerojet/Easton shall be processed by City following the

City's typical review and approval process, which shall include CEOA review'

AelojeULaston may proceed through the entitlement process on all AerojeUEaston

Prop'erty in the Plan Area, except Community Park West and the Alternate Site, and for

thoie sites the entitlement process shall not proceed beyond a parcel map and zoning

until the use of the Community Park West site has been resolved.

A deed restriction for park use only shall be recorded against the Community
park West and Alternate Site parcels, attaching a copy of this section which shall run

w1h the land, until final approval of either site for a community park. Any entitlements

for the AeroJeUEaston Pioperty shall plan for and be consistent with the use of the

Alternate Sit6 for community park purposes and to assure access and circulation for the

surrounding propertles, acknowledging that doing so may necessitate or be hcilitated
by minor idjustinents to the parcel map creatlng. the Alternate Site. AerojeUEaston

shall be r.esponslble for all the costs assoclated with the processing of any Speolfic Plan

Amendmenis and environmental documents related to Specific Plan Amendment

applications, including use of the Alternate Site for park purposes. Any cost

abjustments required io construct park facilities at the Alternate Site shall be included in

apjrlicable New Plan Area Fees as set forth in Section 2,2.4(1) herein.

Disclosures shall be required and included as map conditions for the sale of all

residentlal property sold in the Service Area of both Community Park West and the

Altemate dite'advising potential purchasers of the potential uses of these sites,

including but not limited to future residential development or park and recreation use

involvin! lighted playing fields, When the roadways adjacent to Community Park West

and thj Aiternatb Sits have been constructed and opened for use, signage, to the

satisfaction of the City, that is easily read by passing traffic shall be erected announcing

residential development or the potential for park facilities on these sites. Unless

otheruvise approved by the City Council, Community Park West and the Alternate Site

shalt remain'in owneiship by AerojeUEaston until final approval of either site for the

community park. Any transfer approved by the City Council shall be subjoct to
conditions ii imposed and shall be accompanied by an Assignment and Assumption

Agreement outlining the terms contained herein or as othenryise approved by the City

Council.

Upon final approval of either site as a community park or when an irrevocable

offer of dedication for the approved site is accepted by the City, the restrictions and

limitations set forth herein for the site not used as a community park shall be removed.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the vested rights conveyed by this
Restated Agreement shall not prevent City from initiating or approving amendments to
the approv|d Specific Plan, or adopting ordinances to. achieve the purposes of this

section. The Parties also acknowledge and agree that, the Gity's interests having been

protected by the disclosures and restrictions noted above, AeroieUEaston shall be

irermitted to submit and process for approval large and- small lot tentative and final

lnaps throughout the AerojeUEaston Property, except the Alternate Site and Community

O52Z4,Amendecl arrd Restated Tier'l DA Pg, 18

Page 257

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Park West, subject to City's regular review and approval process; however no

entitlements shall be approved if such entitlements or components thereof would

impede or limit the use of either site for a community park. The Parties and landowners

further acknowledge and agree that llmitations set forth herein on the use of lhe
Alternate Site maynot be resolved until after the deadline for the revision of the PFFP

and adjustment to the SPIF described in Section 2.2.3.6 herein and therefore agree

AerojeUEaston or the City may initiate a revision to the PFFP and SPIF to address this
issue up to ninety (90) days after the authorization to proceed with development on the
Alternaie Site. Upon approval of the Alternate Site for residential purposes, SPIF may
be reallocated over the AerojeVEaston Property for any such property that has not

received a building permit.

The PFFP provides for a number of community facilities districts in the Plan Area

and unit allocations for SPIF purposes. The parties and landowners agree and the
district formation documents shall provide that neither the Alternate Site nor Community
park West will be subject to any community facilities distric{ tax until such time the
Alternate Site is used for residential purposes. The district formation documents shall
provide that the taxable allocation from the Alternate Site shall be allocated to the
iemaining Aerojet/Easton Property and upon approvalfor residential purposes it may be

reallocated, annexed to the district or the tax imposed.

Failure of AerojeUEaston to comply with the terms set forth in this section shall

be grounds to cease the appllcation process for any entitlements in the AerojeUEaston
property, including waiver of any permit streamlining provisions, as well as other
remedi6s contained in this Restated Agreement. Provided, however, the effect of any

such non-compliance and enforcement of any such remedies shall be limited to the
AerojeVEaston Property and shall not apply against or affect Development within any

other Participating Landowner's property in the Plan Area.

2.2.3.3 Quarrv Trafflc. Section 7 of the $pecific Plan addresses

circulation in the Plan Area. Landowner acknowledges that, as provided in Section

2.2.2 abave, this Restated Agreernent does not vest any rights with respect to changes

to the Circulation Chapter to assure compliance with the Quarry Truck Management
plan (TMP) approved by the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors on December

14,2011 (Resolution No. 2011-0938). The City retains all rights and authority to make

changes tb the circulation provisions of the SpecificPlan based on final implementration

of tfre fnnp. With respect to any portion of the Property impacted by the roadway

alignments required by the TMP (the "TMP Alignments'), Landowner agrees to offer
irrevocably for dedication or grant (at the City's discretion) easements and rights-of-way

required for traffic and circulation under or in connection with the TMP at no cost to the
City prior to the approval of the first tentative Small Lot Map for any portion of the
nr|pbrty impacted by the TMP Alignments, or any portion or phase thereof. Landowner

may toon to entities other than the City of Folsom for compensation assoclated wlth the
TMF requirements, but any dispute related to compensation shall not delay or lmpede

the ability of the City to obtain necessary easements or right of way. Any necessary

O52Z4.Amended and Realated Tler 1 DA Pg.19

Page 258

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



adjustments to dedications shall be governed by the provisions of Sections 3.8.3 and

3,8.4 of this Restated Agreement.

Landowner acknowledges and agrees that Development of the
property shall comply with the requirements of the Quarry Traffic Management Plan

Funding Mechanism Program adopted by the County of Sacramento on December 14,

2011, is Resolution Number 2011-0938, as well as requirements in the Agreement
Between the County of Sacramento, the Sacramento County Water Agency, and the
City of Folsom, Relating to Transportation and Water Supply lssues lnvolving the South

of Highway 50 Folsom Plan Area Annexation dated December 21,2011.

2.2,3.4 Corporatlon Yard. The parties understand and agree that
a new corporation yard equivalent to approximately 30 acres will be located in the

vicin1y ol but not within, the Plan Area. Such property has been tentatively identified,

with d final purchase and sale agreement pending, pertalnlng to the location of the

corporation yard. Landowners will be responsible for one hundred (100%) percent of
the cost of iand acquisition for such corporation yard as provided in the PFFP and

Section 2.2.3.4.1 below. The Plan Area will fund its fair share of capital costs for all

improvements and facilities required for the corporation yard. Such financing for capital

costs shall be provided in accordance with the terms of the PFFP.

The City and certain landowners have identified a potential site for
the corporation yard outside the Plan Area. The location is part of a Williamson Act
contraci and entjtlements must be obtained through the County. Should the proposed

use of the identified site as a corporation yard not be approved by the County, the
participating Landowners and the City will meet jointly to identify another suitable

alternate s1e within sixty (60) calendar days following a final determlnation of
disapproval by the County. The City may proceed with an alternate site should the
landowners and City not mutually identify an alternate site. Additional land acquisition

cost for an alternate site may be included in the PFFP'

2.2.3.4.1 Purchase of Corporation Yard. The

Corporation Yard Purchase Price shall include the following arnounts: (1) appraised

vatrie of the land ($820,000.00); (2) interest at the rate of 3 percent, compounded

annually, and (3) City costs as enumerated in the Purchase Agreement in an amount

not to exceed g36,000.00. The obligation for the Corporation Yard Purchase Price is an

obligation of the Partieipatlng Landowners wlthin the Folsom South Specific Plan Area,

as set forth in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement, Section 2.2.3.4 and

to be shared thereby consistent with the cost allocation method therefor under the
public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP"). To facilitate the financing of the Corporation
yard purchase Price, this amount shallbe identified as an eliglble and authorized facility
in the lnfiastructure CFD or CFDs to be formed pursuant to the PFFP, including any

extended term CFD.

The City and Aerojet shall enter into promissory note for the
purchase Price, which shall include only the appraised value of the land and any

lnterest accruing thereon, and shall provide that the City will make annual

052714,Arnendecl and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg,2o

Page 259

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



payments to Aerojet from the "Note Payment Sources'' (which are comprised of

itigOy. of Corpoiation Yard permit fees paid to the City, to the extent the City

has received suoh amounts as of the applicable payment due date, and (2) a
credit to Easton of 90% of the value of the Corporation Yard permit fees that
would be owed by Easton on any building permit pulled by Easton in the Plan

Ar.ea). The promissory note shall further provide that all outstanding amounts are

due ind payable to AeroJet on the 7m Annlversary of the closing.

ln the event there is a balance owed to Aeroiet on the 7rh

Anniversary of the Closing, any remaining balance shall come from the

Participating Landowners, in accordance wlth their relative fair shares for such

obligaiion, provided each Participating Landowner's fair share shall be offset by

the share of any Corporation Yard permit fees previously paid by such

Participating Landowner and applied to the Note payments. At the discretion of
each Farticipating Landowner, a Participating Landowner's outstanding share

may be paid from any funds available from any bond _proceeds or PAYGO

revinues ('CFD Revenues' as delined in the PFFP) generated by an

lnfrastructure CFD that includes the Participating Landowner's property, This

obligation of the Participating Landowners shall be ioint and several, with right of
equftable indemnity as between themselves. lf any Participating Landowner fails
to pay its share of the outstandlng amount due on the Note, such defaulting

earticipating Landowner shall be deemed to be in breach of this Restated

Agreement-and the other Participating Landowners shall be obligated to advance

the share of such defaulting Participating Landowner in proportion to their relative

fair share obligations (witlr a right to reimbursement thereof, plus interest, from

the detinquent Participating Landowner).

For each Participating Landowner who advances its share of such
payment or directs CFD Revenues from such Participating Landowner's property

io 
-Oe 

used to pay all or any portion of its share of the balanced owed on the Note

on the 7h Anniversary of the Closing, the City wlll lmplement a corresponding fee

credit against the Corporation Yard impact fee for each Participating Landowner
that conlributes to the Corporation Yard Purchase Price through such payment or
tax on its ProPertY.

The Landowners and the City will evaluate whether an amendment
to the PFFP (including Appendix U) is necessary to provide that the Corporation
yard Purchase Price is an eligible and authorized facility as set forth herein, and

that the fee credits specified herein shall be incorporated into the Corporation

Yard impact fee.

2.2.3.5 PFFP and SPIF. The PFFP has been approved by the City

Council and is agreed to by Landowner. The PFFP sets forth the finance plan for

funding the costJ to construct the PFFP Facllltles and to maintain and provlde the

municiial services requirod to serve the development of the Plan Area conslstent with

the Eniilements, Landowner agrees to support the adoption and irnplementation of all

052714,Am€r1ded and Rastated Ticr 1 DA Pg.21

Page 260

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



financial programs described in the PFFP for the Development. of the.. Property

consistent witn tne terms of the PFFP, including the adoption and implementation of the

SPIF described therein and the New Plan Area Fees'

As provided in section2.2.1above, certain provisions of the PFFP

are vested; however, as provided herein, the City may otherwise modify the PFFP over

iiru. An impact fees and increases in impacl fees, other than inflationary adjustments,

shall be adopted and implemented by the City in accordance with the Mitigation Fee

Act, Landowner acknowlbOge" that, as set forth in the PFFP, the Exlsting Fees and the

New plan Area Fees may b6 increased by the City from time to time based on a cost of

construction inflation factbr and/or based on changes in the actual or estimated costs of

construction of the facilities or improvements to be financed thereby.

As each Development Phase within the Plan Area is processed for

approval by the City, the specific, defqlleO cumponents and tlmlng. of.the l.fFP Faeilities

rdquireO to serve surn O"velopmelt Phase shall be determined by the City, consistent

with tne pFFp and the Speciflc Plan EIR and this Restated Agreement. As PFFP

Facilities are developed over time, the generaldescription of PFFP Facilities addressed

bt ih; pFFp may 
'ne updated ?nd{gi amended as deemed necessary by the City'

piouia.O the overall cost for the Facilities does not increase, except as provided in the

ir.p"n"r provisions of Sec,tion 2.2.4.L Nothing shall limit the abillty of the City to

mod'ify the'gpes of facilities within tha overall cost structure provided in the PFFP.

upoji"" 
"ndlor 

amendments to the PFFP shall not require an amendment of this

RbstateO Agreement or the Specific Plan.

The parties understand and agree that best efforts have been made

to calculate costs of development of the infrastructure and facilities in the Plan Area

based on availab6 information and current laws and regulations. Further, the PFFP

identifies various methods to pay for the costs articulated and necessary for the Plan

A;jj. The responsibility for payment of the costs in the PFFP shall not be, in any case,

ir.," i"rponsibithy of the"city.' rb tne extent the estimated costs of the PFFP Facilities in

the plan Area are highei than expected, Landovrners shall be responshle for the

increasea costs of .rin prrp Facilities allocable to the Plan Area, either through

aOirsir"nts of the Existing City Fees or New Plan Area Fees or other methods of

n"L""irs 
"" 

pr*iu"o in thJ pFFp, but not through reductions in serviees or facilities in

the Plan Area.

To the extent the costs to develop the Plan Area are less than

expected, the City ffiay, but is not required to examine and assess whether

m6oitications to fees are appropriate. Landowner acknowledges that certain

landowners believe that the fee burden on commercial is higher than residential and

G CitV may, but is not required to examine the fee burdens on comrnercial and

resioentiat in'ihe future, ln no case is the City required to reduce services or facilities

should the cost of improvements be less than anticlpated'

2.2.9.6 Adiustme[! to SPIF After Julv '!,=29{-6. Landowners

acknowledge that the costs to tund the Property's share of the PFFP Facilities under the

05714.Amended antl Restated Tier 1 DA P9,22

Page 261

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



pFFP, including the amount of the SPIF, will be based on the land uses allocable to lhe
property, The Landowners acknowledge that early changes in the Specific Plan can

attei- Sitf payments, but there must be a time in which the SPIF would not be adjusted

merely due to changes ln land uses or facilities. Therefore, in the event of any

ameniments to the lind uses for the Property requested by Landowner and approved

by the City on or before July 1, 2016, the Clty shall be authorized to revisethe PFFP

and, uponthe request of any Participating Landowner to update the SPIF during such

period, the City shall use good faith, diligent efforts to thereafter update the PFFP, the

iist of PFFP Facilities, and the New Plan Area Fees related thereto, including the SPIF,

as needed, to revise the allocation of such costs to the Property under the PFFP

consistent with the methodology of the PFFP and based on the revised land uses for

the property (and any other such land uses changes within the Plan Area), After July 1,

2016, changes in land uses shall not trigger a revision or an update to the SPIF in the

manner desiribed above. Provided, however, on and after the Cut-off Date for Specific
Plan Amendments set forth in Section 1.5.3.1 of this Restated Agreement, nothing

herein shall limit the Gity, when a land use change is requested for any portion of the
property, from reviewing and modifying the SPIF as applicable solely to the portion of
the Property that is the subject of the proposed Specific Plan amendment or imposing a

condition oi requirement on and only on such portion of the Property that is the subject

of the proposed Specific Plan amendment to: (1) fund and/or construct facilities other

than PFFP Facilities, or (2) fund services or amenities other than those described in the

PFFP in conjunction with the approval of such amendment to the Specific Plan.

2.2.4 Citv Feee and New Plan Area Fees. lncludinq Cost lncreases.
As described ln the PFFP, the City and Landowners have agreed to a financing plan for

development of the Plan Area. Among the financing mechanisms are application of the

Existing Fees and adoption of New Plan Area Fees. The Existing Fees and New Plan

Area Fles are set forth in Exhlblt 2.2.4 hereto. Subject to the limitations in Section

2.2.4.1 (5000 units or ten (10) years) regarding City rwisions to the list of PFFP

Facilities and modification to the New Plan Area Fees for City Facilities to provide

additional funding for development of the Plan Area, the Clty agrees not to adopt or to

increase any fees or to apply other fees to Landowner except as follows:

1. Any fees described in the PFFP and/or Exhibit 2.2.4, including New Plan

Area Fees and Exlsting Fees. Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary, Existing Fees adopted City-wide that are not replaced by New

Plan Area Fees may be increased from tirne to time by resolution of the
Clty Council, provided with respect to any such Existing Fees subject to
the Mitigation Fee Act, the increase will be made in accordance with the
Act.

2. Any mitigation fees required under the Specific Plan EIR and any
Supplemental Environment Review(s)

3. Storm Drainage Funding - At the time of this Restated Agreement, the
complete Storm Drainage plan and costs for the Folsom Plan Area have

not been determined. Landowners are responsible for funding and fees

052714.Amerrded and Restated ner 1 DA Pg'a

Page 262

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



associated with implementation of the Stormwater Drainage Plan. 
-No

vesting is applicable to drainage required by state or regional, non-Gity

local laws/regulations.

4, Non-potable Water System - At the tlme of thlg Restated Agreement' a

non-potable water sufp[ for the Folsom Plan Area has not been idenlified

and ihe off-site transmiision for and storage of any such eupply for the

Folsom plan Area have not been included for the funding of the Plan Area.

lf the City identifies a non-potable water supply source as available for the

Plan Area, Landowner acknowledges that Development may become

responsible for and will not be vested against any fees 3dopte{ by.the CiW

icJiisittent with the Mltigation Fe_e Act) associated with tunding th€

installation of the additional otf-site transmission, on-slte storage

infrastructure and other necessary infrastructure, for any such non-potable_

water system, Landowner shall not be responsible for the cosb of

acquirinf the identified nonaotable water supply. The requirements in

this subJection may be funded in whole or in part by fees or other sources,

including rates, grants or other funding'

5. Light Rail Fee - The City may adopt or modify a Light Rail Fee to be

applicable to the Folsom Plan Area.

6. Development Processing Fees, including but not limited to fees for project- 
application, plan check, perml! inspection, and related fees in conJunction

with any development applications.

7. Adjustnrents for Costs of Living or Cost of Consbuctlon: Existing and New
pdn Area fees, inoluding SPIF, may be adJusted by the City at any time

based on cost of living or other such inflationary adiustments (including

iniationary adjustment! based on the Engineering New Record Cost of

Con.tru"tion index, a Consumer Price lndex or other method in
accordance with the ordinances adopting the Existing Fees and New Plan

Area Fees. Similarly, the City may adjust New Plan Area Fees on the

basis of revised cost estimates or experience and the ordinances adopting

such fees.

8, Any regulatory or other non-lmpact fee adopted Citywide'

g. Any fees or increases ln such fees for unforeseen or unaccounted for

corts for the PFFP Facilities arising out of a mutual mistake by the parties

including inadvertent failure to include all or a portion of the costs or to

compty 
-witn tne requirements imposed by state law. or court decisions

associated with the constructlon and installation of the PFFP Facilities,

any of which have the effect of imposing an additionalflnancial burden on

tfrd CitV in connection with the construction and installation of the PFFP

Facilities may be added or modified so there is no additional cost to the

City in connection therewith.

052n4,Amended arrd Restatetl Tier 1 DA P9.24

Page 263

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



All fees and adjustments to fees described above shall be adopted by the City by

ordinance or fearesolution and any impact fees are to be adopted and implemented by

the C1y in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act,

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Landowner is solaly responsible for the

payment, as aid w'tr6n due upon the recordation oJ any Large Lot Maps or Small Lot

ivfdpi or'upon the issuance of any grading. penlill building. permlt or other such permit

for'develoilment or occupancy of any unit or building within the Property, of all fees

imposed and/or assessed by non-City public agencies, entities, and dlstricts,

2.2.4.1Re-Opener oqNew Plan Aroa Fees for Citv Facilities' ln
addition to and separate *orn 'any innationary or cost of construction adjustments to the

New plan Area Fdes consistent initn tnis Restated Agreement and the PFFP, after the

issuance of building permits for the construction of 5000 residential units or ten (10)

G;r* from the ftfeEtive Date of this Restated Agre-ement, whichever comes first, within

[h" p6n Area, the City may revise the list of facilities to be funded by th6 New Plan

Area Fees for c1y naiifitiei and rnodify the New Plan Area Fees for City Facilities in

tJlrtion thereto, sunlect to the following conditions: (i) New Plan Area Fees for City

Facilities shall not be increased by more than five percent (5%) per year or twenty five

p"tr"nt tZgyo) every five (5) yeari as a result of such changes to the list of facilities to

iie tunOeO by the r6mainin! development within the Plan Arga lslplate-.f-roT and in

"ooition 
to c6st of construc{lon adjuitnents for the prior list of PFFP Facilities); (ii) the

inclusion of the additional facilities for financing by the remaining development within the
plan Area must comply with the nexus requirements of the Mitigation Fee Act; (iii) any-

inciease to the New'pian Area Fees for City Facilities associated with the inclusion of

it " "OOitional 
facilities shall not be applied to any portions of the Property zoned for

non-residential development until fivi'(5) years have pqssed after the issuance of

S000th building permit for the construction of residential units, or fifteen (15) years from

the Effective bite of this Restated Agreement, whichever comes first, and (iv) th.e

uaiurtr-untr to frl.w Flan Area Fees foi0tty Facilitie.s shall not be applied retroactiv,ely

t" 
"rV 

p"rtlon of the Property that has th-en p_ald the Now Plan Area Fees for City

r"riiru"i wlth lespect to dbveiopment thereof. For purposes of thls soction, residential

unitr r"uns any dwelling (single, multi-family, mixed use) for fulltime habftation.

2.2,5 Police Porfere and Glqwlde- O!{inalces. Nothing. in this

RestatedAgreemenffidtolimittheCrtyfromexercisingitspolice
po*"r" and"aOopting New Rules when the _Clty Council-finds that such New Rules are

necessary to prdmole the publlc health, safety and welfare, provided such New Rules

J"-n"ifip"ii the financiai provisions of this Restated Agreement, do not lmpair the

urtteO iight of Landownei under this Restated Agroement, and do not adversely

impjut t[" hnd uso designations in the Speeific Plan and any Specific Plan

nm"nar"nt, the density and intensity of use, the rate and tirning of developrnent, the

,"ii*ur height and size of proposed buildlngs, and the -provisions 
for ressrvatlon or

J"oiiition of tand for publii purposes and location of public utilities and public

improvements.

052714,Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.25

Page 264

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Further, nothing in this Restated Agreement limits or is intended to limit

the City from adopting New Rules that are applicable citywide, provided such New

Rules do not impair thL financial provisions of this Restated Agreement, do not impair

the vested righti of Landowner under this Restated Agreement, and do not adversely

impact the iand use designations in the Specific Plan and any Specific Plan

Amendment, the density and intensity of use, the rate and timing of development, the

maximum height and size of proposed buildings, and the provisions for reseryation or

dedication oiland for public purposes and locatlon of public utilities and public

improvements.

2.2.6 Application of Chanoes Due,.to Etate qrd F,ederal!-a,vu9. Nothing

inthisRestatedngr@theapplicationtoDevelopmentofchangesln
City laws, regulations, plans, pollcies, or fees mandated by State or Federal law or a
court order islued by a court oi competent jurisdiction, in order to comply with mandates

or requirements due to changes in State sr Federal laws or regulations or an order

issued by a court of competeht jurisdiction. To the extent that such changes in City

laws, regulations, plans, iolicles, or fees mandated by State or Federal law prevent,

delay oipreclude compliance with one or more provisions of this Restated Agreement,

C1y'may modify or suspend such provislons of this Restated-Agreement.as may be

nebssary to comply with such State or Federal laws or regulations or csurt order, and

C1y and lanaownbi shall take such action aB may be required pursuant to this Restated

Agreement to comPlY therewith.

2.2.7 Uniform codes and standard ponstructon speciffgqtiong.
Nothing herein snalllreciuOe City trom applying to !.he Property standards contained in

unifoni building, construction, electrical, plumbing, fire or other uniform codes and Title

24 of the Calfbrnia Code of Regulations or City rnodifications thereto and City's

Standard Construction Specifications relating to building standards in effect at the time

of approval of the approprlate permits which may include, but not be limited to, building,

gradihg orother cohitruction permits qpprovals for.the.Property, as lhe saqe may be

iOoptJO or amended ftom time to time by City, provided that the provlslons of any such

Apply on a City-wide basis; and

With respecl to those portions of any such uniform code that have

been adopted by City wlthout amendment, be lnterpreted and

applied in a manner oonsistent with the general application of such
code in the City.

modifications shall:

A.

B.

2.2.8 Confllct Between Existinq Rulos, EntitlementB gnd , Reqta!€d

Aqroernent ln tne event of any conflict or inconsistency between the Existing Rules,

iffi mtnents, and this Restated Agreement the following applies:

A, ln the event of any confllct or inconsistency between the Existing

Rules and this Restated Agreement, the provisions of this Restated

Agreement shall prevail and control-

052714.Amendod and Restatcd Tier 1 DA P9.26

Page 265

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



B. ln the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the

Entitlements, the Existing Rules and this Restated Agreement, the
provisions of this Restated Agreement shall prevail and control.

2.3 Donsltv Transfer. Density transfers shall be permitted as set forth in the

Speclfic plan in effect as of ihe Effective Date of this Restated Agreement.

2.4 $ubeequent Entitlements. Each Landowner's Vested Rights to proceed

withDevelopm@[provalofSubsequentEntit|ementswhichshallbe
obtained in conjunction with any necessary project-specific approvals and required

grading, building and other such permits as required by the Existing Rules.

2.5 Ordlnance. Regoluffon and Officiallv Adopted Ruleq'

2,8.1 Confllcfns Ordiqances or Moratorla. Except as prov,ided in this

Restated AgreemeilFTng as this Restated Agreement remains in full force and

effect, no fulure resolution, City Council adopted rule, ordinance adopted by the City or

by iniiiative (whether initiated by the Clty C^ouncil or by a voter petltion, olher than a

referendum ihat specifically overturns the City's approval of ?ly 9f th.e Entitlements)

shall directly or indirectly limit the rate, timing or sequencing and/or density and intensity

of use or of the Developrnent in accordance with and as permitted by the Entitlements

and this Restated Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, the partles hereto acknowledge

the powers reserved to the City's electors in the City Charter.

2.S.2 Authorltv of Cltv. This Restated Agreement shall not be construed

to limit the authority or obligation of City to hold necessary public hearings, or to limit

discretion of Clty 6r any ol its officers or officials with regard to rules, regulations,

ordinences, lawgand entitlements of use which require the exercise of discretion by City

or any of its officers or officials,

plans, guidelines and mechanisms must be completed for the

Landowner and aPProved by the Gity and land dedications of'fered to the City

approval of the flrst tentative Small Lot Map for the Propefty, or any portion

prior to approval of the
may occur without anY
thereof, as follows:

first final Small Lot MaP (or first building permit, if Development
subdivision) for any portion of the Property, or applicable portion

Prior to Approval of First Tentative Small Lot Map:

(1) Public Right-of-Way and Land Dedication Plan;

(2') Open Space Management and Financing Plan;

(3) Drainage Facilities Maintenance and Financing Plan; and

(4) Design Guidelines.

2.5.3

A.

The following
Plan Area by

prior to
thereof,

052714,Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg./7

Page 266

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



B Prior to Approvql of First Final Small l-oj Map.in the FFA (or First
guitOing Permit if Development May Occur Without Any
Subdivision):

(1) Formation of the Sewer and Off-Site Water CFD as provided

in the PFFP to fund a portion of the Plan Area sewer and
water infrastructure, provided, however, Landowner may
elect to exclude the Property, or any portion thereof, from

such GFD, subject to Landowner consenting to a map
condition and City and Landowner executing an agreement
specifying how the Property, or excluded portion thereol will
pay its share of the sewer and water infrastructure, on a
buitding permit by buildlng permit basls(or other payment
methodology mutually agreed to by Landowner and the City)
that would otherwise be funded by inclusion thereof in the
CFD, consistent with the PFFP;

Formation of the Aquatic Center CFD related to the
recreational facilities that may include an aquatic center,
sports complex and/or community center, provided,

however, Landowner may elect to exclude the Property, or
any poftion thereof, from such CFD, subject to Landowner
consenting to a map condition and City and Landowner
executing an agreement specifying how the Property, or
excluded portion thereof, will pay its share of the recreational
facilities, on a building permit by building permit basis, (or

other payment methodology mutually agreed to between
Landowner and the City), that would otherwise be funded by

inclusion thereof in the CFD, consistent wlth the PFFP;

Formation of the Parks, Trails, Landscape Corridors,
Medians and Open Space Maintenance CFD (the.Services
CFD'), the Storm Drainage Maintenance CFD (unless such
drainage maintenance is included in the Services CFD), and
the Street Maintenance DistricUlighting Maintenance District
CFD (unless such street maintenance is lncluded in the
Services CFD), as provlded in the PFFP;

Adoption of the New Plan Area Fees, including the New Plan
Area Fees for City Facilities, the SPIF, and the SPRF, as
provided in the PFFP and listed on EIX!hl!3'&{ attached
hereto;

Dedication or grant of the rights of way and easements for all
Backbone Lands for roadways and utilities within the
Property as provided herein; and

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

os?I4.Amended and Reshted Tier 1 DA P9,28

Page 267

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



(6) For each final Small Lot Map, offers of dedication of the
Public Parcel(s) described in Section 3.8.5 below located

within the portion of the Property affected by the final Small
Lot Map, or within sixty (60) days of Landowner's receipt of a
written request for dedication thereof from the City,

whichever occurs first.

c. Prior to First Building Permlt withln the Propertv (or portion thereof
io be included within an lnfrastructure CFD desired to be formed by
Landowner):

(1) Formation of one or more lnfrastructure CFDs, which do not
need to include the entire Plan Area or the entire Property, to
fund a portion of required Backbone lnfrastruc'ture or other
public facilities as desired by Landowner, and will also fund
the Property's share of the improvements and facilities to be
funded through the extended-term of the lnfrastructure CFDs
(the "Extended Tenn lnfrastructure CFD Facilities")
consistent with the PFFP and Section 3.2 of this Restated
Agreement, provided, however, Landowner may elect to
exclude the Property, or any portion thereof, from such
lnfrastructure CFDs, subject to Landowner and City
executing an agreement specifying how the Property, or
excluded portion thereof, will pay its share of the Backbone
lnfrastructure, other public facilities, or the Extended Term
lnfrastrusture CFD Facilities on a building permit by building
permit basis (or other payment methodology mutually agreed
to between Landowner and the City) consistent with the
PFFP.

D Compliance with Sr,rbmittal Reouirements. Specific projects
proposed under the tentative Small Lot Map shall comply with all
submittal and review requirements ln effect at the time of submittal'

E. No Llmitiation on Timlng for Cornmencement of $qecial Tax. The
parties agree that, except with respect to the Aquatic Center CFD,

and the Sewer and Off-Site Water CFD, and the Extended Term
CFD (as defined in the PFFP), which will levy specialtaxes on the
Property only after issuance of building permits thereon unless
othenruise agreed to by Landowner, nothing in this Restated
Agreement limits the timing for commencement of annual CFD tax
paYments

F. Landowner Consent. Landowner has agreed to the financing
provlslons set forth in this Section 2.5.3 and the PFFP and to perform

ihe obligations hereunder in exchange for the consideration and
benefits provided to Landovrrner by City under this Restated

052714.Anrended and Restated'f ier 1 DA P9.29

Page 268

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Agreement. Accordingly, Landowner does herby irrevocably consent

to: 1) the formation of a cFD, the issuance of cFD Bonds, the

imposition of taxes against the Property with respect thereto, and the

apportionment of the costs and expenses of the proposed Backbone

lnfrastructure, Facilities, Malntenance and other CFD purposes as set

forth in the PFFP, and waives any and all right of protest or objection

with respect thereto or 2) the execution of an agreement with the City

to pay its share of the improvements that othenrise would be required

consistent with the terms set forth in this section.

G. CFD Districts. CFDs may be formed as stand-alone districts or

comffieO, at the discretion of the City and in consultation with the

landowners.

2.5.4 Satisfaction of LAFCO Gpnditigns. The Parties acknowledge

thatDevelopmentcffimsandconditionsoftheEntitlementsandthis
Restated Agreement complies with and satisfies all conditions for development imposed

in the anndxation process by the LAFCO Commission under LAFCO Resolutlon No.

1 196.

2.5.S Mather Nolee Easements. Landowner ehall, prior to or concunent

withtheexecutionffiRestatedAgreement,recordanoise
easement over the Property in the form attached hereto as Eh!b!!-XI;[ relating to

noise caused by aircraft arriving or departing from Mather Airport.

2,5.6 School lmpact Mitlqatlon. Landowner shall comply with Measure

WandSection16.3munblpalcodeandmitigateallimpactsonthe
demand for school facilities associated with Development pursuant to the Entitlements

and this Restated Agreement through the payment of school impact.fees adopted by the

Folsom Cordova UnTfieO School Dislrict in accordance with applicable statutory authority

anJ requirements (the "Statutory School lmpact Fees"). The Statutory School lmpact

Fees strall be paid as and when building permits are issued for development within the
property iequlied to pay the Statutory SChool lmpact Fee, except as the timlng for such

p"Vinurit mdy Oe OefbrreO by agreement between Landovrlner and the Folsom Cordova

iiiii"d Sifroot Distrlct. Thi revenues to be generated by the Property's payment of

"ult 
st"tutory School lmpact Fees, in combination with the general obligalion bonding

""p"",ty 
and itate fundln! avallable to the Folsom Cordova Unified School District, are

;;-ti;''dt"d Io futty mitigite all impacts on the demand for school facilltles associated

wigr fievetopmeni in coirptiance witn the requireqrgnts of the school mitigation provision

set forth in Measure W (Folsom Charter Provision Section 7.08D) and of TAFCO

Resolution No, 1196, Section 13 (requiring incorporation of feasible school impact

ritig;ii".t Nothing in this Restated Agreement.is lntended to address funding of

sch[og und"r appliCable laws or subsequent amendments to such laws.

2,6 Application. Developmsnt and. Proiect lmplsmentatlon fees.
Landownerffi.developmentprocessing,inspectionandplan
"nJJfing 

fees and in6rgei as may be requlred by City under the regulations existing at

the time of submittal.

Os2n4.Aurencled flnd Restated Tier 1 DA Pg' 30

Page 269

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ARTICLE 3

LANDOWNER OBLIGATIONS

3.i Develooment Connection Fnd.Mifloaffgn Fee8.. Except as olherwise

providedint@andall.requlredpaymentsofdevelopment,
tonnection or mitigation fe6s by Landowner shall be made at the time and in the

amount specified by then appllcable City ordinances'

g.2 lnfrastructure CFDq. Except as mqY othenruise be agree{ to by

Landownera@formationofanlnfrastructureCFDfortheProperty
"" ftouiU"d in Section 2.S.3, 

-the following speciflc provislons shall be included within

ne'appticable terms and conditions of an lnfrastructure CFD related to the Properly.

fne CFO.shall be consistent with any City adopted Finance Pollcles relating to such

financing, the current policy is provided in Resolution No. 9282 and the City's Financlal

FolicieslOopted on M'ay zb, Zdal or as hereafter amended, The ter'm of the special tax

i" U" f"rt"O by any lnfrastructure CFD against the Property. shall be sufficient to support

*rftipfl nona sabs and Pay-Go revenues as described in the PFFP' Available CFD

UonO pt*eds and/or spectdl tax proceeds may also be used to fund reimbursement of

pi.ui.iu"ly paid SplFs but such prbceeds may not be used for any other fees, including

impact Fi,d". tn no event shatl CFD proceeds be used to pay SP|F-obligations arising

oui of dedication of land, including but not limited to dedlcations for roads, schools,

;;k;, 
"no 

GiU. payment of SPliobligations,_fee_reimbursements from the SPIF, and

bplf t"" credits converted from outstinding SPIF reimbursements, shall be allowed

and available to Landowner for lnfrastructure CFD lmprovements financed by CFD

pro"""O* generated by and allocable to the Property. When the CFD's are created the

bity will inlude provisions that permit the use of excess capacity for eligible facilities as

oufrinJo in the c'FD formation documents. For purposes of this section, excess capacity

is defined as capacity over and above full payment loj_the primary eligible facilities

iJ"ntiti"o in the CFD iormation documents. Where a CFD is used for eligible facilities

funJo*n"r shall not be entitled to any fee credits, except for SPIF fee credit or

reimbursement from the SPIF program for that portion paid for with CFD funds-

g.2.1 participation bv Landowner. Wilh respect to the formation of any

lnfrastructure cfpslilning in Section 3.2 or Section 2.5.3 shall be construed to

i"q"ir" Landswner io form-an lnfrastructure CFD provlded Landowner pays ib fair

shire or enters into an agreement with the City to pay ite fair share contrlbutlon for Plan

ArJ" wide CFD facilitieJat the time the CFD is formed and when the epecial tax is

tevieO. Further, if a CFD is formed, nothing precludes the payment by an_owner of any

p"r""Urt within the Property to be, included within the lnfrastructure CFD of a cash

fiou,it equlvalent to its proportionate share of costs to be flnanced for the

infrastructui'e CFD improvemenis, or any portion thereof, prlor to the iesuance of any

CFD bonds by such lnfrastructure CFD.

3.2.2 Formation of GFD Subiect t9 cltv-Plscrg{qn _Nothing in this

Restated Agreement shall be construed to require City to form a CFD if City determines,

052714.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.31

Page 270

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



in its reasonable discretion, that formation would not be consistent with adopted City

policies and prudent public fiscal practice.

3.3 Alternatlve Flnancina Mechanisms. Nothing herein shall be construed

tolimittanoowprovementsthroughtheuseoftraditional
assessment districts oi private financing or other financing mechanisms as permitted by

law and authorized by tire City. Landowner is solely responsible for all costs related to

the congtruction anO installation of all infrastructure improvements required for

b"r"ioptn"nt of the Property as set forth in the PFFP, and understands and agrees that

fn" Citi shall not be reiponsible for any o! su_ch costs, .To the extent the costs of the

lnfrastrlAure improvements and public facilities required for Development of the

iiop"rty exceeOs the proceeds irom the lnfrastructure CFDs or othor financing

.neiharii"m of the Landowner, Landowner shall be solely responsible for such shortfall

*iif,,'ort reducing levels of service or facitities identified in the Public Facilities Financing

Plan.

g.4 Dlgctosure to Subseouent PgrchagqnB. This Restated Agreement shall

constitutenotiffiLandownerhereunder,andtoallsubsequent
prt"n"""r" of any lots, parcels and/or residential units withln the Property, of all of lhe

inatters set forth irerein,'provided, however, the effect of this notice and disclosure shall

auiJmatically terminate dnd be of no further force or efiec.l upon any termination of thls

Restated Agreement with respect to any such lols, parcels and/or residential units,

in.frJing wiihout limitation, any termination of this Restated Agreement pursuant to the

terrns of this Restated Agreement.

A.S EIR Mitioation Measures. Notwithstanding any other provision in this

RestatedngrmsandwhenLandownerelectstoDevelopthe
property, oi any portion or phase^ th_e.reof, Landowner shall be bound by, and shall

prriorm,'or cagie to be performed, all mitigatlon measures contained in the Specific

Fi"^ ffn and any Supplemental Envlronmental Revlew(s) related ts Development of the
property which ire aciopted by City and are identified in the Mltlgation and Monitorlng

anO n"botting Program'as being a responsibility of Landowner for Development of the

Property.

3.6 Mitiqation Monltorins and Eqpg4ns. ?rqolam. Separate from and in

additiontotne@ion3.5ofthisRestatedAgreement'.Landownershall
Ur ierponslble for all of the costs and exp_ens€s.associated with the Mitigation

ttltonitoiing and Reporting Program under the California Environmental Quality Act as

6rt ;i thJ Speciflc Ptan gtn anU any Supplemental Environrnental Review(s) related to

ihe Devetopment. ln furtherance of this provision, Landowner shall pay all costs

required by the City associated wlth the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program as

seiforth inthe conditions of approvalon the Entitlements'

g.T Backbone lnfrastructurc. Based on the Specific Plan and the PFFP,

theBackbon@iredtosupportdevelopmentofthePlanArea
consistent with applicable City development standards consists of the improvements

that are required io provide access and public utilities to any part of the Plan Area, as

0527l4.Anrended and Restatect fier 1 DA Pg.32

Page 271

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



more particularly described and listed as the Backbone lnfrastructure in Exhlbit 2.2.1

attached hereto. Landowner's obllgation to install any of the Backbone lnfrastructure, or

"nV 
J"r"nts thereof, in connectlon with lts Development shall be determined by the

CitV fn accordance wi{n tne development phasing p.rwisions of Section 3'9 below. The

p"ftni i"Logntr that the definition of Backbone infrastructure in the PFFP excludes

sound walls and lanascape corridors and Landowner agrees that such costs are the

Landowner's responsibility on a project basis.

The City will use reasonable efforts to seek other funding to assist Landowner

with the costs of the Backbone lnfrastructure such as supporting the (a) formation of

CFd and adoption of fees described in the PFFP and this Restated Agreement; (b)

collection of rbimbursements by other benefitted properties under SPIF, and (c)

application such as applying for available regional, statewide and federal funding for

Backbone lnfrastructure.

g.7,1 White Rock Rqad lmprpvpqne,nF. As part of sacramento

County's transportaiiffinffi for ihe area that includes the Plan Area, the Gounty

approved a plah and ceiifieO an Etn for the Southeast Capltal Connection that lncludes

rdiO improvemonts to White Rock Road along the southern boundary of lhe Plan Area.

ln connection therewith, the County prepared a study, a copy of which is attached to the
pFFp, that allocates g15.2 rnillion to the Plan Area as its fair share for the Southeast

Capitit Connection improvements and intends to include such costs within its pending

Salramento County Development Transportation Fee (t!9 "SCDTF") to finance such

road improvements, The Landowners shall pay_the.SCDTF as the Plan Area's fair

rn"i" of funOing for improvements to Whlte Rook Road as part of the Southeast Capital

Connection. lne Ciiy agrees that the Plan Area's obligation to construct any

irpro""."nts to \ /hite nock Road shall be limlted to dedlcation of easements and

rig[t"-"t-*"y required for lmprovernertts to White Rock Road and payme_nt of its fair

16". obligation iet forth in the SCDTF adopted or to.be. adopted by the County. The

onfy roaO-improvements to White Rock Road to be included in the list of Bac{<bone

intrlstiuctura shall be the intersection improvements within the Plan Area required to

connect the plan Area roadway network to White Rock Road, including without

limitation, the intersection improvements planned at Oak Avenue, Scott Road (east)'
placerville Road and Empire itanch Road; no other improvements to White Rock Road

sn;it ne required to be iunded by the Plan Area (except through the payment of the

SCOffl or included within the list of Backbone lnfrastruc'ture, including without

limitation, any potentialgrade separations along White Rock Road.

lf the Connector alignment changes or the alignment requires right of way

from Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area, Landowner(s) will sellthe land necessary to

facilitate the connector project at no cost to the City, but upon compensation acceptable

to lanOowner(s) to be paii by other entities, such as the Capital Southeast Connector

Joint powers Authority'(the "Connector JPA'). Nothing herein shall limit compensation

paiO OV otfrer enttties, 
- 
No compensatio.n from the Cily wjll be required for conneotions to

[r," C.inntctor project as ideniified in the Backbone lnfrastructure. city will eooperate

;iih-th; Parti;ip;ting Landowners, including Landowner, to support' as may be

0522!4.Amended and Restated Tist 1 DA P9.33

Page 272

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



necessary, the desired alignment for the Connector as shown in the Specific Plan with

the Connector JPA.

3.g Dedicatlons of Backbone Land!;. lf. and to the extent not previously

granteduvr-@Tier1DevelopmentAgreement,rightsofway
ind easements for all Backbone Lands will be granted to allthe Landowners in a format

acceptrable to the City for purposes of access and constructlon of publlc improv_ements,

"nO 
io the City in a form dcceptable to the City, prior to the recordation of tho first final

paicef or subdivision Map for dhe Property, but in. ry eyg_nJ later than 180 days after the

Lff"aiu" Date for purposes of access and public utilities. Such dedications and/or

grants shall be at no expense to the City. As nece-ssary, the easements shall also

6enefit the City. These rights of way and easernents will be recorded at the Sacramento

Coung Recoider's Offiie and shall be for the benefit of each Landowner. The

Backbbne Lands on which Backbone lnfrastructure are to be constructed are depicted

on LihiUit f.g attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Backbone Lands"). The

eas?ffifrITiEih for Backbone Lands shall be to the width of the road right-of-way plus

25, or the back of the landscape corridor, whichever is less and include a temporary

constructioR easement of a width adequate to allow the necessary grading to construct

the improvement and to facilitate construction access, including increasing the width

when iequired by site conditions. ln the case of an easement outside a road right-of-

way, the width ;hall be consistent with the requirements of the City and include a

temporary construction eagement. A survey rnap exhibit of the easements will

""company 
the descriptions and plats and shall be recorded as a supplemental

exhibit(s).

3.8.1 Temporarv Gonstruction Easemenls. The construction

obligation of each pnase or sub-phase of development of the Plan Area may require

conitruction of certain portions of Baokbone lnfrastructure on the property of other

Specific plan Landowner(s). This will.require access for the purpose of construction on,

over and aorose the Baiibone Lands. To assure that all owners of land within the

Speclfic plan have confidence that they can aoc€ss, oonstruct, and offer to the City

punnc improvements requlred of the phase or sub-phase of develop_ment, Landowner

irereby alrees to provide all other Landowners, without cost, rlghts of way, easements,

and tempiorary construction and access easements to those Backbone Lands on which

Backbone lnfiastructure is to be constructed a$ depicted on Exhiblt 3.8 or as later

modified for the Backbone lnfrastructure in the Plan Area, provided any such

modifications shall not affect the location of the Backbone lnfrastructure within the
property without the Landowner's consent. Such temporary construction easements

shait intlude the ability to access open space parcels to construct improvements

requlred by conditions of applicable Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit(s). Subjeot to

indemnlfication of the otlier Landowner(s) and the City, when applicable, by the

Constructing Owner, such access temporary easement rights shall not be withheld, nor

shall the Cdnstructing Owner be required to pay any compensation to any underlying

Landowner(s) for such access easement, during the term of this Restated Agreement.

Temporary' construction easements shall automatically terminate gPon formal

"cceptan"e 
of the fully-completed public improvements by City in writing. Nothing shall

limit ihe terms of temporary access easements related to insurance, indemnification,

052714.Amended and Reslated Tier 1 DA P5.34

Page 273

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



restoring premises to pre-easement condltion and non-interference with uses of the

burdenJO property and other reasonably neceesary terms relating to such easements.

i.g.Z Manner of Dedlcation. The easements described in this Section

3,g may be granted oiildifirteO, as tfre case may be, by separate legal instruments' or

UV reteren"E ttrereto on tn" face of a pargel. map or subdivision map for the sole

pi,rpor" of right of way ana utility easemeht dedication, which shall be recorded with the

iieioroers office of t{re county of Sacramento. City shall use its best efforts, to the

greatest extent permltted by law, to lflFose the obligations described in this Section 3.8

ipon every owner of land within the Plan Area'

3.8,3 Adiustments to D9dlgatlona.. cily and . Landowners

acknowledgethat,as@elotandsmalllotsubdivisionmapsfor
ttr. pi"p.rty and as the Connector or other public projects envlsioned in the Plan fuea

progress, or any portion or phase thereof, minor adjustme-nts to the boundaries of the

;;;;taeAicateJ pursuant tb tne terms of the Restated Agreement.maV^.!e required

Ou="a on the final engineering for such maps and Landowner and the City may also

piop*" to relocate 
-certaln -roadways, utilities or other City facilities. .City and

Landowner agree to cooperate with iny such proposed adjustments or relocations,

provided the ipproval of iuch adjustm_ents or relocations shall be subject to the City's

!oi" oi*"t"tion, 
'Upon 

such approval, city and Landowner will cooperate to.effect such

"Oiu"tr"nti 
or reiocations, subjeot to Landowner offering to dedicate to the City any

r"ii"*r"nt area that may be required by such adjustment or relooation so long as

ariy iu"n replacement area has not then been developed by Landowner'

3,8.4
addition to adjustmeffi oeoicateo-property pursuant to Section 3.8.3 above, City

ma' J"t"rrine, in its sole discretion, that certain property offered for dedication may

noi'6" necessary for public purposes associated with the Specific Plan. Because the

off"r" of dedlcation pieviously made pursuant to this Restated Agreement have been

oi Jt" belng made early in the planning process to ass.yg the availabllity of the areas

pi"nn"A foitne Backbone lnfrastructure, City agrees: 1) that unnecessary easements

br loD,s will be abandoned or quitolalmed to tho original grantor or its successor'in-

int"r""t; and 2) that subsequent quitclaims or releases of areas approved by the City

it "t *"r" prwiously offered for dedication by Landowner shall not require any

compensatibn to be paid by Landowner or its successor-in-interest for the property

released unless Landowner or successors have been paid for the land through the

SplF or other program, notwithstanding any existing City ordinances or policies to the

"ontr"w. 
ine hmilg and condilions for release of excess dedication ls solely ln the

city. i6u"onable discretion. Landowner's early dedication hereunder, together wlth its

corienant to dedicate any replacement area that may be required by an.adjustment or

iJo""iion, provides aO6quite compensation to the City for any such subsequent

abandonment by the City of these dedicated areas'

3.g.5 Dedlcafion of Public Parcels. Portions of the Property, if any,

described ano oesigffircels as shown on Fxhillt=F -and further

Jescribed in Appen-<lices I through M and Appendix O of the PFFP (the "Public

0527t4.Amended arlcl Restated Tlet t DA Pg.35

Page 274

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



parcels"), shall be offered irrevocably for dedication or granted to the City, at the City's

discretion and in a form acceptable to the City, free and clear of any encumbrances

(inctu6ing but not limlted to any ass_essment or special tax previously impcsed on the

pr"p"rtdtl, when requested bythe City, whiohever is sooner. The Public Parcels shall

be btferea for dedicaiion or grinted to the Crty by Landowner wlthin either: (i) 60 days

of the Landowner's receipt 
-of a written request from the Clty therefore,. or (ii) upon

recordation of a Final Smitt Lot Map that includes the Public Parcels, whichever occurs

first.

Dedications and/or grants provided herein shall be at no expense to the

City. The timing of acceptance of the Public Parcels is subjeot to the reasonable

Jislretion of the bity. fn"-irrevocable offers of dedication or grants may be granted by

separate legal instiuments, or by reference thereto on the face of a parcel map or

"rbJiui.ion 
?rap, which shall be iecorded with the Recorder's Office of the County of

Sacramento. Eiedicatlon of Public Parcels shall be subJect to approval by the City of (i)
G physical condition of the planned opon space and other public property wlthin the

Ftofi.riy and (ii) the formation of a financlng mechanlsm acceptable !9 qilv to fund the

cosi* of owneiship and maintenance responslbility areas as appllcable wlthin the

Fiop"rty. As provided in Section 3.8.3, in the event minor adjustrnents to the

bounds-ries of a Public Parcel dedicated or conveyed to the City for open space or

public facilities may be required based on the final engineering of the development in

[n" 
"i"r, 

City or L'andownbr may propose to relocate and/or revise the boundaries of

the public parcel at the Landowner's sole cost and expense, subject to City approval at

its reasonable discretion.

3.8.5.1 Malntenancs of Open Sqace8ublig ProqertYlFqe!

Modlficafion Area. Landowier shall inclttde the Property.in a ffnancing rnechanism(s)

fffirfihg-the m"intenance of open epace and..other public prope_rty wlthin the Plan

Area. Laridowner will be required io create a funding mechanism satlsfactory to the City

to create a fuel modification area of between 30 and 100 feet from the Landowner's

piop"rty line into any City-owned property or other.publicly-owned open space and

b"iiifani adjacent t6 tnd Proper$_ or a9 providgd I the adopted Open Space

[A"n"g"m"ni ptan or the City Fire b_ode. lt is the intent of the parties tf,3t.u funding

mJJtrinism wlll be created bir each Development Proiect or Plan Area wide to pay for

in" cfeiring of brush, grasies and other debris along and withln adJacent public

pi"p"rti"J titnin the Plin Area on an annual basis to reduce fire danger. . The fuel

mobitication may be accomplished by a CFD, private homeowners associatlon, other

privJte *ntity, City resouroes paid for by the aforementioned funding mechanism or as

otherwise agreed to by the parties.

3,9 Phasinq of Developmen$ Until December 31, 2015, the City agrees to

provideapr@'expense,forno1ificationtootherParticipating
Landown"ir when Landowner has submitted an appllcation for development of the

Property, or any portion thereof (each, a "Development Phase"). The purpose of the

notiiicaiion process is to permit coordinating of phasing and construction of

infrastructure with other property owners. Each Development Phase application shall

O" 
"onrirt"nt 

with the provisions of FMC Chapter 16.20 and is lntended to inforrn the

0s2n4.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.36

Page 275

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



City, as well as other Participating Landowners, of Landowner's intended phasing of
development for its Propedy, including the intended phasing for any Backbone
lnfrastiucture. To the extent practicable, a Developmbnt Phase application shall
identify anticipated phases beyond Landowner's next, immediate phase of
development, in furtherance of this disclosure objective, with more specific and refined

phasing information to be included with information available at the time of submittal of
improvement plans.

3.9.1 Phaelna of Necessanr Backbone lnfrastructure Throuoh Map
Conditions. Each tentative subdivision map or tentative parcel map approved by the
e;1yfoilhe Property, or any portion thereof, shall include a condition that'requires, for
purposes of determining the necessary set of Backbone lnfrastructure to be installed in
connection with the final subdivision map(s) related thereto, preparation and staff
approval of technical engineering studies identifying the Backbone lnfrastructure
required to meet the then current City's Standard Design and Construction
Specifications for such proposed final map. The technical studies are subject to City
approval prior to approval of any related final subdivision map or final parcel map, and
shall determine the Backbone lnfrastructure required to meet the then current City's
Standard Design and Construction Specifications and the City's desire to have the Plan

Area built in an efficient, cost effective, orderly and cohesive manner consistent with
and as required by the Entillements, based on development of the proposed final map
and all other approved and reasonably foreseeable maps within the Plan Area. The
technical studies, as approved by the City, will provide the basie for determining the
Backbone lnfrastructure required to satisfy the condition of the tentative subdivision
map and to establish the list of Backbone lnfrastructure, if any, required to be installed
as part of the subdivision improvement agreement for the proposed final subdivision
map or parcel map.

The intent of this technical review is to allow the City to confirm that the
portion of the Backbone lnfrastructure proposed to be constructed by Landowner in

connection with its proposed Development Phase wlll satisfy the then current City's
Standard Design and Construction Specifications and further to determine the extent of
Backbone lnfrastructure that the City will require Landowner to construct and at the
same time allow Landowner to build the Backbone lnfrastructure required to satisfy
such standards to facilitate development and evaluate the amount of and timing of
advance funding and oversizing of improvements related thereto. With respect to
roadway improvements specifically, where the technical study requires the installation of
all roadway Backbone lnfrastructure located adjacent to or within the Development
Fhase to their full planned right-of-way dimensions, the City shall allow development of
the Development Phase consistent with the mitigation measures in the Speclfic Plan
EIR (e.g., Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1d). The calculation of the Level of Service
thresholds shall be determined consistent with the methodology employed by the Ci$
for evaluating such levels of service for purposes of its General Plan and Circulation
Element thereof in effect on the Effective Date of this Restated Agreement,

The scope of the technical studies shall be determlnod by the Gity and
may identify overlapping facilities required for development of other reasonably

052714.Amended and Rertated Tier 1 DA P9.37

Page 276

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



foreseeable projects and potential development in _the Plan Area that may be

"nticipatJo "na 
ieqrir"o for the orderly development of tfre Plan Area, as well as any

"iiirtifig 
o"n"iencte's in service levols ihat may exist at the time of preparation of the

ircr,nic"at studies. Wtrere disagreement arises between the Landowner and the city as

io tne extent of Backbone lnJrastructure and roadway improvements, the-city and

Landowner will work cooperatively and in good faith to,determine the extent of roadway

backbone infrastructure io Ue construc'ted by the Landownsr consldering a reasonable

timeframe for future projects in lhe vicinity, reasonably anticipated needs-of the^City, its

iesioents and businessls, existing servite level deficiencies, financial feasibility, and

avoiding impacting areas with phased construction projects.

3.g.2 Phasinq of ln-Tract lnprovgmentg. Landowner.. shall be

allowedtophaseaev@!+iu3subdivisionmapwithmultiple
final Small-Lot Maps as provided and ionsistent with Folsom Municipal Code Chapter

rc.24.

3.10 Park lmprovement and Tf.all,Frln4llg 1lC Conqtlugtlo!' The timing ol

part< ano trail h public^need in the Plan Area, cash

itow, and annual City Council budget authorlzation. The City agrees to use good faith

"no'oiligu"t 
efforts to complete par[, construction in a timely manner with respect to Plan

ArJ.p|prbtion and ne.d, as'well as other necessary publlc facilities included in the
pFFp. As rscreation trends change and evolve, the city reserves the right to modify,

add, and delete p"rf 
"nO 

recreatioi facilities as it deems appropriab 1o serve the needs

of future plan Area residents consistent with the re-opener provisions set forth in

Section 2.2.4.1.

At the City,s sole discretion and subject to a separate agreement between City

and Landowner, tum-key park improvements may be constructed by the Landowner

"nJ 
r"r"ive pait< Fee cieoits therefore, provided however_the parties_agree that park

fee credits are not permitteO for park improvements paid for with CFD proceeds' The

p"it .onrtruction lgreement witt speclff the location of the park, specific park

i.p,oo"r"nts to be cln*trrot"a, ne timing for commencement and completion thereof,

and the Park Fee credits assigned to Landowner'

The costs of construction of park and trail improvements within the Plan Area

shall be funded as part of the New Plan Area Fees for City Facilities to be established

by the City pursuani to and consistent with the PFFP'

Consistent with the requirements of the Folsom Municipal Codq. _parkland
propo""J-ioioeoication must hive a general grade of less than five percent (5%). lf a

FioboseO site exceeds 57o, Landowner shall rough grad_e the site to plus or minus one

iooi if 'l of estirnated rough grade_ as approved by the, Parks and Recreation Director.

Landbwner shall noi reoiivi"r"dits or'relmbursement for rough grading of proposed

oark sites where grades exceed 5%, except to the extent that the Park Fee has

;il;#y in"iuOlO-funding for rough grading !o plus or minus one foot (1'). ln

"oiin".ti6n 
with Landowriers installation of improved access to the park site,

Landowner snail receive credits against the Park Fee for rough grading of each park

052714.Amended trnd Restated Tier 1 DA Pg,38

Page 277

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



site associated with overall grading of the mapped portion of the property if the grading

pi"n fr"r received prior approvalfrom the Parks and Recreation Director.

Landowner shall be responsible for installing improved access to each park.

tmprov-O iccesr aenneo in the city of Folsom standard Street lmprovements (typical

iriiS"t-pJvement *10L, t*tioo and grade, curb, gutter and sidewalk) together with

"O.qi,it"fy 
sizeO ttiiity extenslonJ (wate1, sewer,.. storm drain, power, and

*ri^uni"ation) to 
"Og" 

of rlght of way on the park site as provided in the project

conditions of aPProval.

3.11
approval of tentative subdivision or
lmproved access (roads and utilities)
based on bu

3.12

lldlng permite issued with in the overall Plan Area.

This Restated

Conditions of
rnaps within the Property shall identifY when

must be made available to each Fire Station Site,

O.{3 Salee Tax Polnt of Snle ln Gity of .FoJeom,. Landowner and the City

share,totnelgoalofmaximizingsalestaxrevenueln
in. citv of Folsom and supporting Folsom-based businesses. Landowner agrees that

;"; ;"i Baclcbone lnfrasiructurs construction project or public facility construstion

nroiect flnanced hv the New Plan Area Fees that meet the requirements of the Board of

E;,1;d;iln-neJuntion 1800, Landoruner shall include in its bid specifications and

constructisn contracts for such proiect that the City of Folsom shall be the point of sale

i"i 
"-V "pplicable 

sales tax anO ifiat Contractor shall take such actions as may be

oquir.iO ,nder the goarU of Equalization Compliance Policy and Procedures.Manual

{cppm in order to establish nb City of Folsom as such point of sale. To further the

int"nt 
"lf 

inis provision, Landowners igree to bundle comparable and similar Backbone

inrrastructure construction projects an? public facility conshuction projects financed by

the New plan Area fees (sucn as similar road or utility projects that are required t'o

,"r" the Landowner's development) where feasible in order to meet the monetary

ihreshold in cppM section ioo.oeb ($b million as of the effestive date of this

Agreement), as amended from time to time'

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landowner's bid specifications or construction

contraas miy includJ tn"t a Contractor shall be exempt from having to comply with

"r"n 
poirt oi sale provisions if such compliance will cause Conhactor to violate any

0527l4.Amended and Restatecl Tier 1 DA P9.39

Page 278

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



legal or contractual requirement such Contractor may have at the time of its bid or

exbcution of such construction contract.

Landowner also agrees to include provisions in its bid specification and

construction contracts for iny Backbone lnfrastructure or public facilities construction

p.i"rt financed by the New Plan Area Fees that, to the fullest extent economically

ie"iinb, where the Contractor receives "comparable" bids for materials, considering

noi onfy price, but also the quality, seryic€ and experlence of the suppliers, the

Congactor will accept the comphrable bid that maximizes the acquisition of

construction materials from supplieis ln Folsom or where the point of sales for sales tax

ilrp$; ls Folsom. For any Backbone lnfrastructure construotion project or public

iacifity construction proiect iinanced Uy- tL" New.Plan Area Fees in the FPA,

Land6wner shall include in its bid specifications and c,onstruction oontracts that the

c"nir""toi demonstrate to the City that it has rnade a good faith effort to utilize and

enter subcontracts with suppliers of goods which have a point of sale in the City of

fotsom taking into accouni ilt sucn factors, City acknowledges the potentia.l adverse

irpl"tt of a-delay in the contrac{ing process and therefore ag.req.that it will not

unieasonably delai its evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with thls provision.

Landowner's obligations hereunder shall extend only to the requlrements to

include such provisioni in such bid speclfications 
_ 
and construction contracts.

Contractor's faiiure to comply with such contractual provisions shall nqt be deemed for

any reason to constitute a default by Landowner under this Restated Agreement.

ARTICLE 4

CITY OBLIGATIONS

4.1 Cltv Cooperatlon. City agrees to workin good faith with Landowner as it

appties to citi$|ffitifiE?lmay-oe requlred by City and, to the extent applicable,

oldrer puUlic, 
-state 

and federal agencles. ln the event state or federal laws or

i"grl"tidJ enaeted after this Restaled Agreement has been executed or action of any

d;*r"ntal jurlsdiction other than the City prevents or-precludes compliance with one

6i ror" provisions of thls Restated Agreement, or requires material modification of the

Eniitr"r.intt, Landowner shall notrs bity in writing of the anticipated duration of any

;"1';t;il;;l in"t"Uy, and, provided.any such de.lay is-nol.the fault of Landowner, the

p"rtitt 
"g*e 

Land6wner may seek an extension of this Restated Agreement as

ild;"d by the City Council ai may be reasonably necessary to comply with such new

sldi" 
"na 

federal lbws or regulations or the regulations of the other governmental

jurisdictions.

4.2 New plan Area Fees. ln addition to Existing City Fees applicable to the

Properllr,tne@ntimpactfees(collectively,the..N"y.PlanArea
;;;;i'witibe adopteci'ana imposed py the City to. mitigate the impacts of .development
,itnin'the Speoifti ptan and equitabiy spread the burden of such mitigatlon to all

u"n"rittto properties within the Sirecific Plan as conternplated or required by the PFFP

and this Restated Agreement:

052714.Amencled and Restated Tier 1 DA P9.40

Page 279

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



4.2.1 Specific Plan .Reimburse.men! Fee, Certain landowners within the
Plan Area thereto (the "Advancing Owners") have paid the costs for the preparation of
the City feasibility studies, other technical studies, the Specific Plan, including design
guidelines, development standards, financing plan(s), and infrastructure plans, and the
EIR and other environmental studies. Such preparation has benefited other non-
participating owners of property within the Plan Area (the "Reimbursing Owners"). A list
of the Advancing Owners and Reimbursing Owners, and the properties within the
Specific Plan owned or controlled thereby, is attached hereto as Exhiblt 1.2.1. To
provide the Advancing Owners with reimbursement for the planning and environmental
costs described above, the parties agree that the City shall require the Reimbursing
Owners to pay to City a specific plan fee, on terms and conditions acceptable to City
(the "Specffic Plan Reimbursement Fee" or "SPRF"). The SPRF shall be proposed to
the City Council pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 65456.
Adoption of the SPRF and the amount of its fees shall be at the discretion of the City
Council, and nothing herein prohibits subsequent modification or repeal of any fee,
except that the SPRF, if adopted by the City Council, shall not be repealed during the
Term of this Restated Agreement and shall not be modified in a manner to signtficantly
alter the ability of a Landowner to be reimbursed for advances. Subject to the
foregoing, Clty shall make a good faith, diligent effort to establish the SPRF within one
(1) year of submittal of all of the eligible costs for reimbursement by the Advancing
Owners for Cig's review, which shall be submitted within six (6) months of the approval
of the later of the Effective Date.

The costs eligible for reimbursement shall be submitted to the City by the
Advancing Owners for Gity's review and approval. Except as may othenryise be
provided by the ordinance adopting the SPRF, the SPRF shall become payable by a
Reimbursing Owner after such Reimbursing Owner applies for any land use
entitlements for Development of the Reimbursing Owner's property within the Plan
Area, or any portion thereof, and shall be due within ten (10) days after written notice
from the City that such application for entitlements is complete or deemed complete by
the City pursuant to California Government Gode Section 65943. ln the event of a
dispute between the Advancing Owners and any Reimbursing Owner or pertaining to
submittals by Advancing Owners to the City related to repayment of SPRF costs,
amount of allowable reimbursement or other matters related to the SPRF program, the
City shall examine the facts and shall make a determination on the dispute, which may
be reviewed upon request by the City Manager and subject to appeal to the City
Council, which decision shall be final and binding, subject only to review by writ of
mandate.

Since the SPRF is for the benefit of the Landowner as a member or
successor of the Advancing Owners, the Participating Landowners, including
Landowner and Advancing Landowners, shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the City and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and/or
causes of action, whether at law or in equity, for any loss or damage relating to the
SPRF reimbursement, excluding any claims or causes related thereto solely caused by
willful misconduct of such indemnitees. ln no case shall the repayment of SPRF be an
obligation or a liability of the City, beyond payment of moneys received.

052714.Amended and Restated Tler'1 DA Pg, at

Page 280

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



4.2.1.1 No SPRF Relmburgennents ot. Creditg On Default' No

LandownershallbeJrrtitreaffiorcredits'norrnayanycreditsbe
used if Landowner is in default of any of its obligation to the City whether arising out of

this Restated Agreement or other project specific obligations.

4.2.2 Specific Plan lnfragtructure Fep. . To provide for an equitable

fundingmechanismfficturetobeinstalledtoservedevelopment
of the plan Area, to pay for certain City costs or the City loan and to provide a funding

mechanism as oesciib'ed below to pdy City for Plan Area wide costs not otherwise

;;;ft ht a feo or agreement, City and Landowner, together with other Participating

Landowners, agree toTmplement a Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee ('SPIF"). The basic

Grr" ano proriisionr to be incorporaied into and used to establish and implement the

sPlF are included in the PFFP, as more particularly described in Appendix s of the
pFFp, and City "g*" to establish the SPIF materially consistent with the terms and

br*irionr of the irrp and Appendix s, provided nothing.herein is lntended to limit the

city" 
"oiritv 

to adopt a sptF'ordinance or New Plan Area fees to accomplish the

puipo*"r oi tn" SpfF anO the PFFP, As more particularly described in the PFFP and

App"rOii S, the SplF yr.,,ilt be collested by the City and the proceeds thereof used to

n,iria tn" cost of dedication of the Backbone Lands and Public Parcels and of the

conitruction of the g".fbon" lnfrastructure, paying certain City costs and repa.ying the

CitV io"n, or as the case may-be, equ1ably .reimbulse.or credit the Specific Plan

Landowners who dedicate such Backbone Lands and Public Parcels and construct the

Backbone lnfrastructur". t" SPIF shall further inctude a component to.reimburse the

City for staff, consultant and other expenditures required for actions to implement the
pfFp on a plan area wide basis where such costs are not otherwise included in

reimbursement agreements or other funding mechanisms. (Examples of such work may

inctude but is no. limited to ordinances, agreements, fee and other studies and plans,

guid.tin"., and area wide Re_rmits). Tne sPlF shall provide the specific Plan

lanoowne'rs wno oeJicate the Backbone Lands and Public Parcels andlor install the

Backbone lnfrastructure with reimbursemenls from the SPIF (that are also convertible to

"r"Oitr 
against tne SFlrl as provided.in the PFFP and as will be detailed in the SPIF

ordinance.

Adoption of the SPIF shall be by ordinance approved by the City Council.

The ellgible SplF'costs for reimbursement shall be submitted to the City by Landowners

ioi-citit revlew and approval.- Nothing [erejn prohibits subsequent modification or

repeaiot any fee, 
"i"Jbi 

tha! tqe SPJF, if adopted by the City Council, shall not be

;;Gbd Uuring ttr'e reruir of this Restated Agreement, except by unanimous agreement

ot'tn" F"ttiripiting Landowners, which may involve an- agteement upon an alternative

funding sourie acleptane to the parties, CiE thalt m{9 a good faith, diligent effort to

estabfi"sn the SplF wmin one (1) year of the Effeotive Date, As described in the PFFP'

the splF sha[ thereafter ne a]luited from time to time upon request oJ a.Participating

|."J"*"ei or the CitV, nut not l".r than annually, based on updates to tlre dedicated

LnO vatues ana costs of construction (pursuant to an index or other cost of construction

;,il$''"ni. fne tming for p_qyment 6f the SPIF shall be as provided by the PFFP and

the ordinance adopting the SPIF'

052714,Ameuded and Reetatcd Tiar 1 DA P9.42

Page 281

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Since the SPIF is for the benefit of the Landowner as a member or

successor of the Advancing Owners, Landowner, shall protect, defend, indemnify and

hold harmless the City and its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims

and/or causes of action, whether at law or in equity, for any loss or damage relating to

the SPIF reimbursement, excluding any claims or causes related thereto solely caused

by willful misconduct of such indemnitees.

4.2.2.1 No SPIF. Relmbursement for, Requlred Park Dedlc,atlon. ln

no case shall SPIF reimbursement apply for required dedications of parkland pursuant

to the City's Quimby ordinance. ln other words, SPIF reimbursement is applicable only

when the Landowner has dedicated over and above the dedication requlrements
provided in City ordinances.

4.2.2,2 No SPIF ReimbursementB or Credite On Defaqft'
Landowner shall not be entitteO to SPIF reimbursement or credits, nor may any credits

be used if Landowner is in default of any of its obligation to the City whether arising out

of thls Restated Agreement or other project specific obligations. ln the event of a
default, the City may pay any SPIF fees received to the next Constructing Owner with

the highest pridfty f6r'SPIF reimbursement until such time as Landowner has cured the

defauit, at 
'which point Landowner then shall regain its priority status for future

reimbursement.

4.9 ReimbursementgrCredlF Peponal to.D€dlcatlnq -and Conetructbq
owner.RnyffiLandownerasaConstructingowner(and.anyfee
credits converted from such reimbursements by Landowner) as provided in the
Restated Agreement and pursuant to the terms of the PFFP and the adopting

ordinances fir the SPIF shall be the personal property of Landowner and shall not be

afflxed to or run with the land. Any such fee reimbursements and converted credits shall

be subject to and contingent upon Landowner as a Constructing Owner entering into a

fee reimbursement agreement with the City to document Landowner's rights to such

reimbursements and provide for the City's administration thereof (a "Fee

Reimbursement Agreement"). The Fee Reimbursement Agreement shall provide that

the rights of a Coristructing Owner shall be Protgcleg frgm the effects of any proposed

amenlment to Sections2.2,1,4.2.1, 4.2.2 and 4.3 of this Restated Agreement,

Except as may othenrvise be limited by the applicable fee program, Landowner

may sell, assign, transfer or hypothecate any such reimbursement or converted credits

in a manner cbnsistent with this section and with the adopted SPIF ordinance at any

time upon written notice to City, provided the transferring Landowner owes no monetary

obligaiion to the City at the time of such proposed transfer. lf Landowner owes City any

moietary obligationwithin the Plan Area at the time of such proposed transfer the City

may, in its Ois[retion, either require the monetary obligatlon to be met before transfer of
the'credit or apply any reimbursement or converted credit then owned by Landowner

against the obligation owed by Landowner.

Credits against the SPIF, converted from reimbursements or transferred as

provided in this Jection and consistent with the PFFP, may only be used in conjunction

05714,Arnerrded and Reetated Tler 1 DA Pg.43

Page 282

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



with Development of the Property (with respect to credits associated with Landowner's

dedication of Backbone Lands oi Public Parcels) or Development of the Constructing

Owner's property (as described below, with respect to credits associated with

Landowner's construction of improvements financed by the SPIF), and may only be

ur"O to satisfy SPIF obligations. For purposes Jtereof, where Landowner is the

Constructing Owner, the 
-"Constructing Owner's PrgPgrtv" within which any such

converted clredits may be applied against the SPIF shall refer to the area within the

Specific plan, including the Pioperty, outlined on Exhiblt 4.3 attached hereto, together

*ith 
"ny 

addiiional property contiguous thereto, not exceeding five percent (57o) in area'

that miy hereafter tie iAOeO to the description thereof by lot line adjustment'

subdivisibn or other such lawful land division and requested by Landowner as the owner

of such converted credits to be eligible for application in conjunction with Development

thereof; as part of each Fee Reimbursement Agreement, a map of the Constructing

O*nuii property shall be attached to and maintained for purposes of administering and

tracking the ipplication of any such converted credits.

4.4 Gotlectlon and Admlnlstratlqn 9f NeW PlaF Area Feee' Whel the City

adoptstneffiwillbeadministrativecostsassociatedwith
administration of the fee programs and such fees will include a percentage or other

component to ensure that ihebity does not have any unreimbursed expenses related to

tne idmlntstration of such fees. The fee shall be in an amount required to reimburse

the City for the actual, direct costs of administration of such fee program. The fees may

frovid6 an adjustment for inflation as determined by lhe Ci$ Council. ln no case shall

ih" City, in any manner be subject to any liability for failing.to eollect any fees specified

herein otfrer lian paying to ths Landowner any fees collected and ln no case shall any

SFIF r"p"yment be in oUtigation of the City beyond payment of moneys received, less

adminisirative costs. The parties agree that the City has no obligation to pay any fees or

mafe any reimbursemeni for cosi incuned except to the extent that such fees have

been collected from the Landowner. The parties agree and acknowledge that the

oOtigations in Article 6 of this Restated Agreement relating to Defense, lndemnification

and Hold Harmless are applicable to any Challenges, claims or suib assooiated with the

fees referenced herein prbvided any such costs to successfully defend such fees shall

be included for reimbursement to Landowner and other Participating Landowners as a

cost of such fees),

Upon receipt of any proceeds from the SPRF or SPIF (or from any other

development impact fee for facilities with respect to which Landowner has advanced

funds and is entitteO to reimbursement therefore pursuant to a fee reimbursement

"jr"tr"nt 
with the City), City shall, to the extent permttted by law, pay the applicable,

,6utu thereof, if any, i6.t-aiCowner or its assignee, without regard to the status of

Landowner's development activlties on the Property and consistent with the terms of the

affficaUfe fee progrbm ordinances. ln the event of a disputre between the Participating

tahdowners oi Uetween the Advancing Owner and the City relating to payment of SPIF

fees allowable reimbursement or credits or other matters related to the SPIF program'

the G1y shall examine the facts make a determination on the dispute, which may b_e

reviewed upon request by the City Manager and subject to appeal to the City Council'

052714.Amended and Restated Tier I DA Pg,44

Page 283

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



which decision shall be final and binding, subject only to review by writ of mandate. The
process and timing shall be set forth in the SPIF ordinance.

The City will use its good faith efforts to collect the fees in the manner described

herein, however is not required to take legal action or other legal remedies. lf despite

its good faith efforts or if it elects not to pursue recovery of fees owed, then City shall,

upon request by Landowner assign its rights to Landowner so that it can pursue

cillection of the applicable fee fiom the benefltting, non-paying owner. However, City

may continue to coilect such fees from other persons seeking governmental approvals

and, if it collects such fees, City shall, to the extent reimbursements are owed, pay the
applicable shares of such proceeds to Landowner or Landowne/s assignee to the
elient permitted by law and to the extent such proceeds are actually received by the
City.

Nothing in this section or this Restated Agreement obligates the City to take any

legal action to collect any SPIF or SPRF obligation. ln the event any such action is

talen by the City upon the written request of Landowner or with the written consent of
Landowner, then Landowner shall be responsible for all attorney's fees and expenses

associated with the collection efforts of the City, if and to the extent such costs are not

otherwise funded by the administration component of the SPIF or through any
administrative or legal action taken by the City against the non-paying owner.

The City shall, to the extent legally permissible, condition final approval of an

entitlement for any development within the Plan Area on payment of lawfully owed SPIF

or SPRF obligations.

4.S Aopllcatlons for Permlta and Entl0emg.nts.. -City agrees. that it will

accept, in gooU t*tfrJor processing review and action, all applications for {evelopment
permits or other entltlements for use of the Property in accordance with the Entitlements

ind this Restated Agreement, and shall exercise its best efforts to act upon such

applications consistent wlth department policy and practic.e- Accordingly, to the extent

tdat tne applications and submittals are in conformity with the Entitlements and this

Restated Alreement and adequate funding by Landowner exists therefore, Ci$ agrees

to diligenly-and promptly accept, review and take action on all subsequent applications

anO si.rUmittats made to City by Landowner ln furtherance of the Proiect. Similarly, City

shall promptly and diligently review and acl upon improvement plans, conduct

constructiori inspections and accept completed facilities constructed in accordance with

the approved improvement plans therefore, as determined by the City to the City's

satisfiction, Nothing in this sestion is intended to shorten any statutory review periods.

Cig may utilize, consistent with City policy, outside consultants for inspection and plan

review purposes at the sole expense of Landowner, Landowner acknowledges that,

notwithitaiding the ability to hire such outside consultants, City may need to retain

adequate stafito supervise the worft of the consultants, which may require additional
lead time and expense in order for the City to effectively and efficiently use the
consultants to assist in this work'

os?l4.Amendect arrrl Reetatocl Tier I DA Pg.45

Page 284

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



4.5.1 plan Check. City shall use good.faith, diligent efforts to promptly

review and process ifrFrw-em-ents plans submitted by Landowner and return comments

as soon as practicable in the ordinary course of business'

4.5.2 Comoliance with ,Goyer$m,?nt igglp=.Se'ctipn '6.8473'7 4
subdivision,asdefi473,7,shallnotbeapproved
unf"r" rny'tentative rnap piepareO for the subdivision complies with the provisions of

,"io seaiirn 66478.7; ttrts'pr6vision is included in this Restated Agreement to comply

with Section 65867,5 of the Government Code'

4.6 water supptv. A Judgment Validating water supply Agreement) was

entered ny safim-ento connty supelrior Gourt Judge Raymond cadei on october 16,

2013 (Sairamento County Superior^court Case No. 34-2013-00138798. Subjeot. to

Landowner, as a p"rty io if,Jfiat"t Supply {greement or suc@ssor thereto, complying

ritn itr obligations undrr the Water Su-piU Agreement,.!he Clty shallrnake the FPA

Wrt"i Suppiy (as OetineO in ine Water S,ipbV AOpgme4) available to Development of

in" Fropertv, in accorOance with the terms bf tne Water Supply fOpgmelL .Notfiing in

ini. n"itat6a ngreeme;i or the Water Supply Agreement.shall limit the City's ability to

"Jcr"r, 
water Strottag"" on a citywide basis, including but not limited to cut backs,

limitations on water ui" 
"* 

provid6d in the Folsom Municipal code or by City Council

action and other steps to assure an adequate supply exists for all residents and

businesses.

4.7 citv Acceetance of ,colge.tvagon EraFs4nent(9l on- gRPn $pa.c€.

Subjectto apnable discretion. of (i) the physical

.oniition of lne prannlo open .pac" within the Plan Area, (ii) the form, restriction and

limitation on any areas proposeb or intended to be open for general public access or

use associated with the lonservation easement(s) over such open space areqqt and (iii)

the formation of a nnancing mechanism acceptabie to Clty to fund the costs of the citfs
o*n"of,ip and maintenari"" responsibility_.for the..open space areas as the grantee

under the conservation easement6;, the City shall accept, as grantee, the rights and

"oriJ"ti.rr-rno"r 
tne conservatioh'easements for the open space are_as .withln the

5p&fu plan for welands permitting and mitigation purposes pursuant to Section 4A4 of

the Clean WaterAct.

Subject to project conditlons deemed necessary by the City, including payment of

mitigation lolis, bid may authorize- mitigatio,n measures.to be implemented on open

;;;;; 
"ih*iinA 

ir be dedioated for a public useln.its discretion provided such does

nbi lirnit the city's intended and anticipaled use of the property, adequate funding is

orovided and eoinpJnsation for any mitigation bank ls paid. Prior to the use of any open

lril; 
"ili,til"rio 

to b. d"di""teo to i public use for mitigation purposes ownsr must

receive CitY Council aPProval.

4.8
proviOei OV t toJtrnd, among other thlngs, its falr

ln"r" of thi cost to.widen Highway 50. Within one (1) year from the Effectlve Date of

this Restated Agreement, thJCity shall use good faith, diligent efforts to enter into an

052714.Amended and Raetat€d Tier 1 DA Pg.46

Page 285

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



agreement with Sacramento County to grant Plan Area landowners, including

L[nOowner, credit against the Sacramento Gounty Development Transportation Fee

C SCOif'f ior duplica*te funding of any Backbone lnfrastructure that is also included for

iundlng in'the proposed Highwiy 50 ioalition Fee, as, if and when the same is adopted

by Sairamento Cbunty, unless no duplicate funding of alY Backbone lnfrastructure was

i*fuO"J in the Highwiy 50 Coalition Fee. City and Landowner will use good faith

efforts to cause adoptiolr and implementiation of said Highway 50 Coalitlon Fee in the

amount and as desiribed in that certain report entitled "Fair Share Cost Allocation -
Sacramento County and City of Folsom," prepared by-DKS' dated November 9,2012.
in" pirti". anticipite that tire Coalition Fee will satisfu, among other things, the Plan

Areals obtigation io fund its fair share of the Hlghway S0_-widening, lf such Highway 50

Coalition Fee is not adopted within one (1) year of the Effective Date, the Glty shall use

gorJ f"ith, diligent efforts to enter into an alternative agreement with the California

[epartment of lransportation or appropriate agencies to create an alternative financing

mechanism acceptabb to the Participating Landowners whereby, !h". Plan Area's

oniigation to fund its fair share of the Highway 50 widening can be satisfied.

4.g Assistance wlth Acquisltlon ofl$ec-eesjrrv Real Propertv lntereste. ln
any instance ilnereTanOowner is required by this Restated Agreement to construct any

puUti" improvement on land not owned by Landowner or other Participating

Landowners, Landowner at lts sole cost and expense shall, in a timely fiashion.to allow it

to construct the required improvements, acquire or cause to be acquired the real

property interests necessary for the construction of such public improvements.

Subject to City's concurrence, in the event Landowner is unable after exercising

all reasonable efforis, including but not limited to the rights under Sections 1001 and

1002 of the Califomia Civil Code, to acquire the real property interests necessary for the

construction of such public improvements as to property within the Gi$ of Folsom,

Landowner shall request the City to assist in the acqulsition of the necessary real

property interests, Landowner shall provlde adequate security for a.ll costs the City may

i""ionlOry lncur (including the costs of eminent domain proceedings, legal.fees and

ro*i", ind tn" vdlue of tie real property). Upon receipt of the securi$ in a form

acceptable to the City Attorney, City shall commence negotiations to purchase the

n"""r.rry real propbrty inteiests to allow Landowner to construct the public

improvements as iequireil by this Restated Agreement an4 if n€c€ssary, in accordance

widn tne procedures bstabfished and to the extent allowed by law, may use. its power of

eminent domain to acquire such required real property interests. Any such. acquisition

nV CitV shal be subject to the City's discretion, which is expressly reserved by City, to

make all necessary tinUlngs to acquire such interest, including a finding of public

necessity.

ln those circumstances where the City owns property in fee on or over which

development of the Property requires permanent ?nd temporary construction

easements, road rights-of-way and/or sites for public facilities, City shall grant, at

Landowneris sole cJst and expense, such permanent easement, temporary easements,

riJntoof-*.y, or sites as reasonably needed for the timely and efficient development of

thi Property, subject to conditions acceptable to the Gity'

05271{,Anrended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.M

Page 286

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



This section is not intended by the parties to impose upon the Landowner an

enforceable duty to acquire land or construct any public improvements on land not

owned by Land6wner, except to the extent that the Landowner elects to proceed with

the development of the ProPertY.

ARTICLE 5

DEFAU LT. RElulEDlES. TERMINATION

5.1 General Provieions. Subject to extensions of time by mutual consent in
writing, failure or unreasonable delay by either party to perform any term or provisions

of this Restated Agreement shall constitute a default. ln the event of alleged default or
breach of any term or condition of this Restated Agreement, the party alleging such

default or breich shall give the other party not less than thirty (30) calendar days' notice
in writing specifying the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said

default may be satisfactorily cured. Durlng any such thirty (30) day period, the party

charyed shall not be considered in default for purposes of termination or institution of
legal proceedings.

After notlce and expiration of the thirty-day period, the other party to this
Restated Agreement at its option may institute legal proceedings pursuant to this

Restated Agreement or give notice of intent to terminate this Restated Agreement
pursuant to Galifornia Government Code Section 65868 and regulations of City

implementing said Government Code Section. Following notice of intent to terminate,
the matter shall be scheduled for consideration and review by the City Council within

thirly (30) calendar days in the manner set forth in Govemment Code Sections 65865,

65867 and 65868 and City regulations implementing such Sections.

Following consideration of the evidence presented in said review before the City

Councit, either party alleging the default by the other party may give written notice of
termination of this Restated Agreement to the other party.

Evidence of default may also arise in the course of a regularly scheduled periodic

review of this Restated Agreement pursuant to Govemment Code Section 65865.1. lf
either party determines that the other party is in default following the completion of the
normaily stheduled periodic review, said party may give_ written notice of default of this
Restated Agreement as set forth in this section, speciffing in sald notice the alleged

nature of the default, and potential actions to cure said default and shall specify a
reasonable period of time in which such default is to be cured. lf the alleged default is

not cured within thirty (30) calendar days or within such longer period specified in the
notice, or if the defaulting party waives its right to cure such alleged default, the other
party may terminate this Restated Agreement.

Notwithstanding the above, a default by an individual or entity within the definition
of Landowner shall not constitute a default by other individuals or entities within

definition of Landowner,

052714,Arnencled and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.48

Page 287

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



5.2 Annual Review. City shall, at least every twelve (12) months during the

Term of this RestE'iilgpeement, review the extent of good faith substantial

compliance by Landowner with the terms of this Restated Agreement. Such_perlodlc

review shail be limited in scope to compliance with the terms of this Restated

Agreement pursuant to Section 65865.1 of the Government Code and the monitoring of
mTtigation in accordance with Section 2108'1.6 of the Public Resources Code of the

Staie of California. Notice of such annual review shall include the statement that any

review of obligations of Landowner as set forth in this Restated Agreement may-result in

termination oftnis Restated Agreement with rospect to Landowner's Property. A finding

UV CitV of good faith compliance by Landowner with the terms of thls Restated

A'greement siall be conclusive with respect to the performance of Landowner during the
pirioO preceding the review. Each Landowner shall be responsible for the cost

i""rondUty and 
-directly incurred by the City !o conduct.such annual review of such

Landorryner,s complianie, the payment of which shall be due wilhin Stirty (30) calendar

days after conclusion of the review and receipl from the Ci$ of the bill for such costs.

ln the event that a twelve month review is not completed, is not completed in a

timely manner or inadvertently a finding of good faith compliance is not made, such

shall'not constitute a walver of the Ci$'s right to review and make any necessary

determinations that would be made if the review had been condusted and shall not be

construed that Landowner is othenryise in fullcompliance.

Upon not less than thirty (30) calendar days written notice by the City,

Landowner shall provide such information as may be reasonably requested and

OtemeO to be required by the Planning director in order to ascertain complianoe wlth

this Restated Agreement.

Upon written request by the Landowner(s) the City shall deposit in the mail to the

requesting Landowner(s; a iopy of atl staff reports and related exhibits concerning

contract plrformance and, to the extent practical, at least ten (10) calendar days prior to

rny ru"tr periodic review. lf the City has not performed an annual review, Landowne(s)
may request, in writing, that it be performed

5.2.1 Permifrod Delav. Extenslon of TltEge= of Perfqqm?nce. ln

addition to specific provisions of this Restated Agreement, performange by either party

hereunder shall not'be deemed to be in default where delays or default are due to war,

insurrestion, strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, drought, earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts

of God, and terrorist acts, new or supplementary environmental regulatlon, changes due

to state or federal laws as described ln Section 2.2.6 hereof, litigation, or similar bases

for excused performance. lf written notice of such delay is given to City within thirty (3O)

calendar days of the commencement of such delay, a reasonable extension of time for

such cause 
-shalt 

Ue granted in writing for the period of such delay, or longer as may be

mutually agreed upon. Nothing in this section is intended to apply to an extenslon of the

term ofiniJ Restated Agreement, which requires City Council approval,

5.2.2 Permitted ExtenElons bv. GitY. ln addition to any extensions to

the time for performance of any obligation due to a delay under Section 5.2.1 above, the

052714.Arnendcd and Restated Tier 1 DA P9.49

Page 288

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



City, in its sole discretion (acting through the City Manager or dosignee) may extend the
time for performance by any Landowner of any obligation hereunder. Any such
extension shall not require an amendment to this Restated Agreement, so long as such
extension only involves the time for performance thereof and does not change the
obligations to be performed by such Landowner as a condition of such extension.
Nothing in this section is intended to apply to an extension of the term of this Restated
Agreement, which requires City Council approval.

S.3 Lesal Action: No Oblloatlgn to Develop: Speclfic Enforcement. ln
addition to any other rights or remedies, either party may institute legal action to cure,

correct or remedy any defauft, to enforce any covenant or agreement herein, or to
enjoin any threatened or attempted violation. Venue for all legal actions shall be in the
Superior Court of the Gounty of Sacramento, State of California. Notwithstanding
anything in this Restated Agreement to the contrary, the parties acknowledge that the
City woutd not have entered into this Restated Agreement had it been exposed to
liability for damages from Landowner, and that therefore each Landowner hereby
waives all claims for damages against the City and its officers, agents and employees
for breach of this Restated Agreement. The parties further acknowledge that damages
are not a remedy under this Restated Agreement and therefore Landowner waives all
claims for damages against the City and its officers, agents and employees in the event
that this Restated Agreement or any other Entitlement is: (1) not approved by the Gity

Council or (2) is approved by the City Council, but with new changes, amendments,
conditions or deletions to which Landowner is opposed. Either Party may, without any
claim for damages of any kind, in addition to any other rights or remedies, institute an
action to cure, correct or remedy any default, enforce any covenant or agreement in this
Restated Agreement, enjoin or restrain any threatened or attempted violation of this
Restated Agreement or enforce by specific performance the obligations and rights of the
parties to this Restated Agreement, or to obtain any other remedy. Landowner further
acknowledges that under the Development Agreement Statute, land use approvals
(including development agreements) must be approved by the City Council and that
under [aw, the City Council's discretion to vote in any particular way may not be
constrained by contract, except as permitted in the Development Agreement Statute.
Landowner further acknowledges that as an instrument which must be approved by
ordinance, a development agreement is subject to referendum; and that under law, the
City Council's discretion to avoid a referendum by rescinding its approval of the
underlying ordinance may not be constrained by contract, and each Landowner waives
all claims for damages against the City and its officers, agents and employees in this
regard.

By entering into this Restated Agreement, Landowner shall not be obligated to
Develop the Propefi and Landowner shall not be obligated to install or pay for the
costs to install any improvements or facilities except as otherwise provided herein.
Nothing in this section shall be construed to excuse Landowner from making lawfully
approved CFD tax payments.

5.4 Automaflc Termina$on Upon Gompletlon and S,Sle of Resldgnjll Unlt.
This Restated Agreernent shall automatically be terminated, without any further action by

052714.Arnended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.50

Page 289

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



either party or need to record any additional document, with respect to any single-family
residential lot within a parcel designated by the Specific Plan for residential use, upon

completion of construction and issuance by the City of a final inspection for a dwelling unit

upon such residential lot and conveyance of such improved residential lot by Landowner
to a bona-fide good faith purchaser thereof, ln connection with its issuance of a final

inspection for such improved lot, City shall confirm that (i) all improvements which are
required to serve the lot, as determined by City, have been completed and formally
accepted by City in writing; and (ii) all other conditions of approval applicable to said lot

have been complied with to the City's satisfaction as evidenced by the City's issuance of
a certificate of occupancy or final inspection permitting occupancy of the improved lot.

Termination of this Restated Agreement for any such residential lot as provided for in this
Section 5.4 shall not in any way be construed to terminate or modifit any CFD tax lien or
other such lien, assessment, fee or charge affecting such lot at the time of termination.

S.S Terminatlon Uoon Landowner Request, This Restated Agreement may
also be terminated, at the election of the then Landowner, with respect to any legally

subdivided parcel designated by the Speclfic Plan for residential or non-residential use

(other than parcels designated for public use), when recording a final map for such parcel,

or receiving a certificate of occupancy or final inspection, whichever is applicable, for a
multi-family residential or non-residential building within such parcel, by giving written

notice to City of its election to terminate this Restated Agreement for such parcel,

provlded thati (i) all improvements which are required to serve the parcel, as determined
by City, have been completed and formally accepted by City in writing; and (ii) all other
cirnditions of approval applicable to said parcel have been complied with to the Gity's

satisfaction as evidenced by the City's issuance of a certificate of occupancy or flnal
inspection permltting occupancy of the improved parcel. Landowner shall cause any

wriften notice of terrnination approved pursuant to this subsection to be recorded with the

Sacramento County Recorder against the applicable parcel at Landowner's expense.
Termination of this Restated Agreement for any such parcel as provided for in this section
shall not in any way be construed to terminate or modify any CFD tax lien or other such

lien, assessment, fee or charge affecting such parcelat the time of termination.

5.0 Eftct of Terminaffon. lf this Restated Agreement is terminated, in whole

or part, following any event of default of any Landowner or for any other reason, such

termination shall not affect the validity of this Restated Agreement with respect to any

other Landowne/s Property or any of the EntiUements, other than this Restated
Agreement, for the defaulting Landowner's Property, nor shall such termination affect any

nuiUing or improvement within the defaulting Landowne/s Property which is completed

as of ihe date of termination, provided that such building or improvement has been

constructed puruant to a building permit issued by the City. Furthermore, no termination

of this Restated Agreement with respect to a defaulting Landownefs Property shall
prevent such Landowner from completing and occupying any building or other

improvement authorized pursuant to a valld building permit previously issued by the City
ttrit is under construction at the time of termlnation, provided that any such building or
improvernent is completed in accordance with said buildlng permit in effect at the time of
such termination and receives a certificate of occupancy or certificate of completion from

052714.Anrended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.51

Page 290

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



the City. Termination of this Restated Agreement by either shall not in any way be

construld to terminate or modify any CFD tax lien or other such lien, assessment, fee or

charge affecting such parcel at the time of termination or terminate any outstanding

oOlig-a1ons of Llndowner owed to the City (whether a one-time obligation or continuing

obligations) pursuant to this Restated Agreement or any Entitlements.

S.T No Proteet or Challenoe To Feeq. Landowner hereby walves any and

all rights to ctrallenge or piotest flre imposition or payment of, and agrees to pay, and

not to protest or challenge, or pay under protest, any fees contained or articulated in the

PFFP or this Restated Agreement, whether adopted at the time of execution of this

Restated Agreement or later adopted, including any inflationary or cost of construction

adjustment to such fees. Those fees subject to the Mitigation Fee Act shall be reviewed

by the parties in good faith and nothing is intended to limit a Landowne/s right as

p6rmitted by law to challenge or protest such rnitigation fue based solely on any alleged

iailure to c6mpg with the Mitigation Fee Act, as opposed to the City's right to impose

the fee in general.

E.B Applicable LaW. This Restated Agreement shall be construed and

enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

ARTICLE 6

HOLD HARMLESS AND COOPERATION

6.{ Hotd Hqrmteeg, Landowner and its successors-in-interest and assigns,

hereby agrees to, and ihall protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its elective and

appointive boards, commissions, officors, agents, and employees harmless from any

costs, expenses, damages, liability for damages or claims of damage for personal

injury, or bodily injury including death, as well as from claims for property damage which

may- arise from the operations of Landowner, or of Landowner's contractors,

subcontractors, agents, or employees under this Restated Agreement, whether such

operations be by Landowner, or by any of Landowne/s contractors or subcontractors, or
by any one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for,

tindowner or Landownefs contractors or subcontractors, unless such damage or claim

arises from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of City. The foregoing indemnity

obligation of Landowner shall survive the termination or expiration of this Restated

Agreement; however, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, it shall not apply to

aiy liability for damage or claims for damage with respect to any damage to or use of
any public'improvements after the completion and acceptance thereof by City.

ln addition to the foregoing indemnity obligation, Landowner agrees to and shall
protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its elective, and appointive boards,

commissions, officers, agents and employees harmless from any and all lawsuits,

claims, challenges, damages, expenses, costs, including attorneys' fees that may be

awarded by a court, or in any actions at law or in equity arising out of or related to the
processing, approval, execution, adoption or im.plementation of the Project, the
Entitlements, the Tier 1 Development Agreement, the Public Facilities Financing Plan,

052714.Anrended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.52

Page 291

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



this Restated Agreement, or the environmental documentation and process associated

with the same, exclusive of any such actions brought by Landowner, its

successors-in-interest or assigns. The City shall retain the right to appear in and defend

any such action or lawsuit on its own behalf regardless of any tender under this

provision.

6.2 Cooperatlon and Defenee ln the Event of Leqal Ghqllenge. ln the

event of any legal action instituted by a third party or other governmental entity or official

challengingthe validity of any provision of this Restated Agreement, the parties hereby

agree t6 cooperate in defending said action. lf any person or entity not a party to this

Rlstated Agieement initiates an action at law or in equity to challenge the validity of any
provision of this Restated Agreement or the Entitlements, the parties shall cooperate
and appear in defending such action. Landowner shall bear its own costs of defense as

a reai party in interest in any such action, and Landowner shall pay the City for all

reasonabls court costs and attorneys' fees expended by City in defense of any such

action or other proceeding, provided that City reasonably cooperates with Landowner in

the defense of such action. The City, in its sole discretion, and at the Landowner's
expense may retain separate counsel and may defgnd, settle or cornpromise the astion

as.it deems appropriate and ln the best interests of lhe City. Prior to any settlement or
other resolution of any matter covered by this paragraph, the City agrees that it willfirst
consult with Landowner.

ARTICLE 7

GENERAL

T.l Enforceabilitv. The City agrees that unless this Restated Agreement is

amended or 
-canceled 

pursuant to the provisions of this Restated Agreement, this

Restated Agreement shall be enforceable according to its terms !V anV party hereto
notwithstanding any change hereafter in any applicable General Plan, Specific Plan,

zoning ordinance, subdivision ordinance or building regulation adopted by City, or by

initiative, which changes, alters or amends the rules, regulations and policies applicable
to the rate, timing or sequencing and density and intensfi of use or Development of the
property at the time of approval of this Restated Agreement, as provided by
Government Gode Section 65866.

T,Z Gitv Findlng. The Ci$ hereby finds and determines that execution of this
Restated Agreement is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general

welfare and is consistent with the General Plan and Specific Plan.

?.3 Thlrd Party Bengficlarlee. This Restrated Agreement is made and

entered into for the sole protection and benefit of Landowner and City and their
successors and assigns. No other person shall have any right of action based upon any
provision in this Restated Agreement.

7.4 Prolect as a.Prlvate UndertaklnE. lt is specifically understood and

agreed by and between the parties hereto that the subject project is a private

development, and that the City has no interest therein except as authorized in the

052714.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.53

Page 292

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ex€rcise of lts govemmental functions. No partnership, Joint venture or other
associatlon of any kind is formed by this Restated Agreement.

7,5 Notlces. All notioes required by this Restated Agreement, the enabling
legislation, or the procedure adopted pursuant to Government Code Section 65865,
shall be in writing and delivered in person or sent by certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notice required to be given to the Clty shall be addressed as follows:

Commu n lty Development Dlrector
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

With a copy to:

City Manager
City of Folsorn
50 Natoma Street
Foleom, CA 95630

CityAttorney
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Notice required to be given to Landowner shall be addressed to the Landowner
as follows: West Scoft Road, LLC

c/o HBT Mangini, LLC
3907 Park Drive, Suite 235
ElDorado Hills, CA 95762
Attn: Bill Bunce

With a copy to:
West Scott Road, LLC
c/o John Telischak
45 Koch Road, Suite A
Corte Madera, CA 94925
Attn: John Telischak

Any party or addressee may change the address stated herein by glving
notice in writing to the other parties, and, thereafter, notices shall be addressed and
delivered to tfre new address.

7,6 Severabllltv. lf any term, oovenant or condition of thls Restated
Agreement or the application thereof to any person, entity or circumstiance shall, to any
extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Restated Agreernent, or the

05?l4.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.54

Page 293

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



application of such term, covenant or condition to persons, entities or circumstances

oiher than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected

thereby and each term, covenant or condition of this Restated Agreement shall be valid

and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law; provided, however, if any
provision of this Restated Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable and

ihe effect thereof is to deprive a party hereto of an essential benefit of its bargain
hereunder, then such party so deprived shall have the option to terminate this enlire
Restated Agreement from and after such determination.

T.Z Constructlon. All parties have been represented by counsel in the
preparation of this Restated Agreement and no presumption or rule that ambiguity shall
be construed against a drafting party shall apply to interpretation or enforcement of this
Restated Agreement. Captions on sections and subsections are provided for
convenience only and shall not be deemed to limit, amend or affect the meaning of the
provision to which they pertain.

7,8 Other Necessarv ActB. Each party shall execute and deliver to the other
all such other further instruments and documents as may be reasonably necessary to
carry out this Restated Agreement in order to provide and secure to the other party the
full and complete enjoyment of its rights and privileges hereunder.

T.g Estoppel Gerfrficate. Either party may, at any time, and from time to
time, deliver written notice to the other party requesting such party to certify in writing
that, to the knowledge of the certiffing party, (i) this Restated Agreement is in full force
and effect and a binding obligation of the parties, (ii) this Restated Agreement has not
been amended or modified either orally or in writing, or if so amended, identifying the
amendments, and (iii) the requesting party is not in default in the performance of its
obligations under this Restated Agreement, or if in default, to describe therein the
nature of such default. The party receiving a request hereunder shall execute and

return such certificate within thirty (30) calendar days following the receipt thereof.

T,1O Mortsaoee Prctectioq, The parties hereto agree that this Restated
Agreement shall not prevent or limit Landowner, in any manner, at Landowner's sole
discretion, from encumbering the Property or any portion thereof or any improvement
thereon by any mortgage, deed of trust or other security device securing financing with
respect to the Property, except as llmited by the provisions of this section. City

acknowledges that the lenders providing such financing may require certain agreement
interpretations and modifications and agrees upon request, from time to tlme, to meet
with Landowner and representatives of such lenders to negotiate in good faith any such

request for interpretation or modification. City will not unreasonably withhold its consent

to any such requested interpretation or modification provided such interpretation or
modification is consistent with the intent and purposes of this Restated Agreement. Any
Mortgagee shall be entitled to the following rights and privileges:

(a) Neither entering into this Restated Agreement nor a breach of this
Restated Agreement shall defeat, render invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any

O52Z4.Arnended arrd Restated Tler 1 DA Pg.55

Page 294

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



mortgage on the Property made in good faith and for value, unless otherwise required

by law.

(b) The Mortgagee of any mortgage or deed of trust encumbering the
property, or any part thereof, which Mortgagee has submitted a request in writing to City

in the mannei specified herein for giving notices, may request to receive. written

noti1cation from City of any default by Landowner in the performance of Landowner's
obligations under this Restated Agreement.

(c) lf Clty receives a timely request from a Mortgagee requesting a
copy of any n6tice of default given to Landowner under the terrns of this Restated

ngreement, City shall provide a copy of that notice to the Mortgagee within ten (10)

bJsiness days 6t sending the notice of default to Landowner, The Mortgagee shall have

the right, brit not the obligation, to cure the default during the remaining cure period

allowed to Landowner underthis Restated Agreement.

(d) Any Mortgagee who comes into possession of the Property, or any
part thereof, by any means, whether pursuant to foreclosure of the mortgage deed of
lrust, or deed in lieu of such foreclosure or otherwise, shall take the Property, or part

thereof, subject to the terms of this Restated Agreement, including payment of any

outstanding iees or charges. Should such Mortgagee or successonl or assigns of such

Mortgagee choose to develop the Property, the development shall be subject to all of
tne [erms and conditions of this Restated Agreement. Nothing in this Restated
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to permit or authorize the Mortgagee or
successors or assigns of such Mortgagee to devote the Property, or any portion thereof,
to any uses or to construct any improvements thereon other than those uses and

improvements provided for or authorized by this Restated Agreement.

7.11 Aselqnment From and after recordation of this Restated Agreement
against the ProFerty, Landowner, or any individual person or enti$, shall have the full

rigfrt to assign this Restated Agreement, with prior notification to the City, as to the
pioperty, or any portion thereof, in connection with any sale, transfer or conveyance
theieof,- and upon the express written assignment by a Landowner and assumption by

the assignee of such assignment in the form attached hereto as Elhlbll7.ll, and the

conveyance of Landowner's interest in the Property related thereto, Landowner shall be

released from any further liability or obligation hereunder related to the portion of the
property so conveyed and the assignee shall be deemed to be the "Landowner," with all

rights dnd obligations related thereto, with respect to such conveyed property. No

aisignment shall be permitted and any attempt to assign shall be voidable by the City if
the lssigning Landowner has any outstanding payment or performance obligations to

the City under this Restated Agreement or the PFFP as implemented by the Gity until

suoh delinquency is satisfied or the parties enter into a payment or performance

agreement in a form approved by the City Attorney'

T.,IZ Entire Aoroement This Restated Agreement is executed in two

duplicate originals, each of which is deemed to be an original. This Restated

Agieement, inclusive of its Recitals and Exhibits, constitutes the entire understanding

052714.Amended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg.56

Page 295

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



and agreement of the parties. This Restated Agreement may fe signed in idenilcal

couni&parts and ihe 
' signature pages and conggnts, together wtth. approprlale

""t 
nowieOgments, may OE Fmoved irom the counterparts and attaohed to a slngle

.ounterpa,i, which shait all be considered a fully-execubd origlnal for all persons and

for purposes of recordation hereof.

tN WTNESS WHEREOF, the Clty of Folsom hae authorized the execution of thls

Reetated Agrement ln Oudilete Uyits MqVor, and atbstred to,Py the City€lerk under the

;irtfirily of-Ordlnance trlo. ttgS idopted by the City Council on the 10In day of June,

2014.

ctw oF FoLsoM,
a municipal corPoration

APPROVED AS TO

Evert W , City Manager

AS TO

7 I

I c/t t+
Bruce C. Cline, CltY AttorneY

ATTEST:

Christa Saunders, City Clerk

LANDOWNER SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES

Date

'1

052714.Amended and Restated Tler 1 DA P9.57

Page 296

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



CALIFORNIA ALL.PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of California
County of Sacramento )

On July 7,2}l4,before me, C.L. Glass. Notary Fublic. personally appeared

M. Howell

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(e) whose namo(s) isla*e

subscribed to the within instument and acknowledged to me that h€AheAhey executed the same

in hisiherftheb authorized capacity(ies); and that by hislherffieir signatwe(s) on the instrument

the person(s)6 or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the insfument.

I certify un{er PENALTY OF PERruRY under the laws of State of Califomia that the foregoing

paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

PLACENOTARY SEALABOVE

Commirtlon , l9'l7llt
ilotery Publlc . 0rlllonlr

Sacrumsnto

Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove

and oould prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment
valuable to persons relying on the document
of this form to another document.

Description of attached document

Title or type of document: _ First Amended and Restated Tier I DeveloBmontArcement

Document Date: Number of Pages: ../
Signer(s) Other than Named

Page 297

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



IN WITNESS WIIEREOf,', the partios below have caus€d this Amended and Rostated Tier I

Development Agreemont to be duly exeouted:

LAI\DOWNER:

APN(;): 07211060-078 wr^sT scoTT RoAD, LLC,
a Delrware Limitcd Ltabtlity Company

By: HBTlvlanginiLL0,
a Delawa,re Limitod Liability Company
Its

This Amended and Restated Tior I Development Agreement must be duly Nohrized.

it t

Amqrded and Regtated Tier I DA Landowner Signature Page - DA(4)

Dg.57t

Page 298

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ALL.PURPOS E ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of c"l;-fl
County of EI Ao"oJo

-C-.tfll9,

I

Wro provod to me on the basls of satisfactory
evldence lo be the person(e) whose name(e) ls/ere
eubscribed to the wlthln lnstrument and
acknodedged to ms that heehc{hqpexecuted the
same ln hlsfire*hcir authorized capacity$ce), and
that by hle/hc#$clr slgnatureG) on the lnsfument
the pgrson(.), or the ontlty upon behalf of whlch the
person(Q acted, executed the lnstrument.

I certlfy under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
lawe of the Shte of Cslifomia hat the foregoing
paragnaph is true and con€ct.

my

Phco Nolary Scal Alovo

OPNONAL

mough lhe tnfont ellon bdow ls nat reqdrod W kw, tt nry p'oto valuabb-lo petsons EWg @ lha do$meni
and @utd p?venlf'r,uduffi nmoval aad rgalladtnnnto'l/',lsform to ano/ll,qdocument,

Ilescrlptlon of Athched Document

Title orType of Document:

DocumentDate: .NumberofPages:-
Signer(e) Other Than Named Above:

Capaclty(les) Clalmed by Slgner(s)

Signefs Name: 

-

I lndMduat
Corporate Ofrcer - Ti$e(s): 

-

Partner- El Llmlted I Gensal
Attorney-infact
Trustee
Guardlan or Conesrvator
Othen

ETruEtee
I Guardian or Gongervator
E Other:

tr
tr
n
tr
tr
D

lll0llI Tlltrl,l8Plilhi
ol.sl6lltR

Signer is Representing: 

-

Signer ls Representing:

Po 57h

Page 299

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Exhibit A-1

Exhlblt A-2

Exhibit B

Exhiblt 2.2.1

Exhibit 2.2.3.2

Exhibit2.2.4

Exhibit 2.5.5

Exhibit 3.8

Exhibit 4.2.1

Exhibit 4.3

Exhibit 7.11

LIST OF EXHIBITS

Legal Description of ProPertY

Map of Property

Map of Specific Plan Land Use Plan

List of PFFP Facilities

Map of AerojeUEaston Property, lncluding Map of
Community Park West and Alternate Site

Existing and New Plan Area Fees Summary Sheet

Form of Mather Avigation Easement

Map of Backbone Lands

List of Advancing Owners and Reimbursing Owners
for Advance Planning Costs

Map of Gonstruc'ting Owner's Property

Form of Assignment of DevelopmentAgreement

0527l4.Arnended and Restated Tier 1 DA Pg. 58

Page 300

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXtllBlT A-1
WEST SCOTT ROAD, LLC PARCEL

All fiatobrlaln real property 0.lhrated ln the Clty of FoLeom, Oounty.of
Stati bt Cdf6mhand belng more partlcularly deacrlbed ae lollows:

Belng Parcel 3, as shown on ttit cdtqh :qgcol Mapo, re@rded Octobsr 11,

aoial h eook eia ot Parcel Maps atP'sgo 0017

APN 072-0060-078

Pg. 59

Page 301

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



WEST SCOTT ROAD, LLC

CITY OF FOI.SOM, COUNTY OF g\CRAMTNTO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

APN: O72-0060-078

mrffiff&s0w8ilr{0ll{Hr ?ratlilHt tunvEronE
t6tc frrdl. Ra4 B{tq. 100, R!d*r, CA ggaal pr6, ??3.tr$

f.8(td 0.1$tm1 079lg.lRrRUP

Joa ilo.
'tRAf,N 

FY *tfE uaff

I

I

I

I

I

| ---r'
c:
ct
EE

J

I

I
I

I

I

I

I

LEGE\ID

@ oWNERSHTPAREA

OOO.{IOOO.OOO ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER

N

EXHIBITA.2

Pg.60

Page 302

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



rro

P

,i

l!3

tftE

5IfD
SF

T'

s

lf

LEGEND
tand tlse

SF ShehFzrrl,: t{dy..
SFIO Sirgb F.Fit }f€h DeGS)4 47 lrrbc
ilLD llultiFanly Lorodl.-lt: ?.r2 dlk
lglrD ildFFerr iled6 D€nivr 1a2O drtac
UHD ilulFarrtt t{gh DodlX 2SOO dubc
MU MbdC U*: $tO tu/e

INDTOP lnrtdridloiiE Plrt
CC Cofinsity Oo(mcirl
GC Cffitchffil{
RC R€fbBlcoDd.dd

Public Parcets

e bdc!c Parts )OS OFnS.-e
PaP tubfdor6i+Lblic

*
db
E

Fft!.&r{sie$|c l€tool
Pot€ Srlbsbtoo (srpud bet6t
UriiC SaiE Cail.r.d tib€d(milldbe[onl
BetffbnS2fuo

EXFIIBIT B
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan
Approrred Land Use Plerl-68712011

City of Folscm, Califomia
llusw&somPs
eqxgs PllxnERa sRoRtffish*4hs*e aqffii

ga

o.

Page 303

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Exhlbit 2.2.1

PFFP Facllities to be Constructed in and/or Financed b,v the FPASP Arcq

Backbone lnfrastructure:

- Roadway lmprovements, as described in Appendix B of the PFFP

- On-Site Water System lmprovements, as described in Appendix C of the PFFP

- Off-Site Water System lmprovements, as described in Appendlx D of the PFFP

- Recycled Water System lmprovements, as described in Appendlx E of the PFFP

- Sanitary Sewer System lmprovements, as described in Appendix F of the PFFP

- Storm Drainage System lmprovements, as described in Appendix G of the PFFP

- Habitat Mitigation, as described in the Executive Summary, Page ES-9, and in
' Appendlx H of the PFFP

- lnterchanges, as deecribed in Appendlx N of the PFFP

Other Publlc Faclllties

- Fire Facilities and Equipment, as described in Appendix I of the PFFP

- Police.Facillties and Eguipment, as described ln Appendix I of the PFFP

- Munlcipal SeMces Center, as described in Appendix I of the PFFP

- Branch Library, as described in Appendix I of the PFFP

- Corporation Yard, as described in Appendix J of the PFFP

- Transit System, as descrlbed in Appendix K of the PFFP

- Parks, as described in Appendix L of the PFFP

- Trails, as described in Appendix M of the PFFP

- Aquatlc and Community Genter, as described in Appendix O of the PFFP

- Solid Waste Facilities, as described in the Executive Summary, Pages ES-l8 to
ES-19, of the PFFP

- GeneralCapltal Facilities, as described in Chapter4, Page 19, of the PFFP

P9,62

Page 304

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



MACKAY & SllMPS
E..Crr:!rg

f

AREA.40

'072 0060 ozs

Not to Scale

E'
o
o
d

o
.E

o

qq

o\(*)

Exhibit 2.2.3.2
City of Folsom, California - April 7,2014

lli
1552E.lt

Page 305

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



/
-- /

PRAIRIE CTTY

\
\

\

\
\

\

l8r

t8

t

\
\

\
\

\
\

\

o

\

trj
X
l.lr

EU

Fl

tJ
i"
1..r)

i.J

oo
EF
-Fl
H LTJZF
)4
<P
EFi

td frl
Xca

fiF
U)
-l

tEx

t= 5i
TEEE
:{a-li

H* *t

Fc
xd
s9*Fl
Bs
Hs

oo
E
z
Fl
,4
3
x
h
{
lrt
altrt
2
t!

le
rfr
l- Srf,FT

l;.
I
1
1
1tt

c,dt

I
rrErtErtrdl tl)

!
I

I
1

ga

;A
Page 306

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Exhibit 2.2.4
Exlstlng and New Plan Area Fees

l1l

Exlstlng CIW Fees [11

Transportation Management Fee

Solid Waste Capital lmprovement Fee

Capltal lmprovement Fee - Park Equipment

Houslng Trust Fund

Water Buy-in and Connection Fee

Water Usage fee [2]

FPASP Plan Area Fees

New Plan Area Fees for Clty Facllitles (Combinedl

General Capital Facilities
Llbrary
Municipal Servlces Center
Pollce Faclllties
Fire Facilities
Parks

Trails
New Stand4lone Plan Area Fees

Corporatlon Yard

Transit
lnterchanges/HWY 50 I mprovements

FPASP Speclflc Plan lnfrastructure Fee (SPIF)

On-Slte RoadwaY

0ff-Slte Roads withln Folsom

On-Slte Water
Off-Site Water
Recycled Water
Dralnage
Sewer
Habltat Mitlgatlon
Adminlstratlon

FPASP Plannlng and land Fees

Speclflc Plan Relmbursement
Farkland Dedication (QulmbY)

This list of Exlsting City Fees ls intended to reflect allCity development impact or mitlgation fees

exlsting on the Effectfue Date of the Restated Agreement which are not being replaced by new

ppASp plan Area Fees; however, to the extent such fees are inadvertently omitted from this list,

those fees existing at the tlme of the Effectlve Date of thls Restated Agreement and not

replaced by the new FPASP Plan Area Fees shall apply. This list does not address, and ls not

intended to limit, the City's existlng or future permit application, development processing,

inspection and plan check and other such related fees imposed by the City in conjunction with

development aPPlications.

Fee for volumetric water usage during construction'l2l

Pg, 65

Page 307

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT2'5.5

FORM OF MATHERAVIGATION EASEMENT

Fon THE BENEFIT oF rHE CnY or Folsou
PuRsulxr to GovBrutvteNr Conn $6103

RscoRDtNc RsQuBsruP sY CtrY Clen'r

WHeu RpcoRosP Meu, To:

CtT v Clrnr
CITv oI'Folsotvt
50Nntonaa Srnret
FoLsoM, CeltnoRNle 95630

GRA}IT OF AVIGATION EASEMENT

The Gtant of Avigation Easement (herein collectively referred to as "Avigation

Easement"), is made on 20l4,by and between

(harein referred tro as "Grantor"), the County of Sacramento, a Politlcal Subdivision of the State

of Califomia" acting bY and through it$ Boad of Supervisors and the City of Folsom, a municipal

corporation, acting by and through its CitY Council (herein collectively refeued to as "Grantees")

with referenco to the following facts:

A. Gr.antor owns real property in the City of Folsom, Sacraurento County, California

(',Gnntor's Property"), The tegal descciptionfor Grantor's Property is attached as Exhibit "A",
tirantor's Property includes the air space abovc it,

B. The County of Sacramento owns and operates Saoramento lvlathcr Airport in
Sacramento County, Califomia (the "Airport").

C. The Airport is a General Aviation airport for the region and also has various other

aviation and related activity. Grantors aud Grantees recognize and understand that the Airport

will grow and traffic will increase over time.

D, Grantor has requested and received certain land use approvals including a Speoific
plap (theo,Folsom Specifio Plan') and a Tier I Development Agreement. The land use approval

requircs Grantor to record an Avigation Easement on lts property prior to or ooncunently with

the oxecutisn of its pending Amended and Rsstded Tier I Development Agreement (the
.,Restated Development Agreemenf') to address rigbts and obligations for future developrnent of
Grantor,s Property. This Avigation Easement is a negotiated term of Grantor's Restated

Development Agreement and the Tier 1 Development Agreement between the City of Folsom

and alliandownets in the Folsom Specific Plan.

I

Pe,66

Page 308

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



E. Grantor has requested and in consideration for the land use approval, Orantor has

agreed to grant the County of Saoramento and the City of Folsom the Avigation Easement

described below.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agreo as follows:

Section l. Grant of Avisatlon Ef,oement

A. For valuabte consideration, Grantor grants to the County of Saoramento and the City

of Folsom a perpetual, nonexclusive, assignablo Avigation Easement in and over

Grantor's fropeity fornoise and other negativg impaots lesulting fum aircraft flying to

*C torn, and other operations at the'Airport ("Airport Operations") and a right-of-way

for the free and o*sttri"t"d passage of aircraft of any and atl kinds now or hereafter

known in, through, across and aboutthe airspace beqrnning at an altitude of one_thousand

iiOOOl f.it rfo* it 
" 

top of thetrighest obstaele on Grarfot's Froperty (heroinaftsr
.?ennitted Airspace'). 'ittis Auigation Easement speoiflcally Pennlq ttrc imposition of

ligSg smoke, uiicurrents, oleetronic or other emissions, vibrations, discomfort,

in--convenience, and interferonce with use and enjoyment resulting from Airport

Operations producing noise. This Avigation Easement is fully effeotive as of the date set

forth above.

B. Such Avigation Easement and right-of-way includes, but is not limited to:

t. The Avigation Easement and right-of-way is for the use and benefit of the

public andlncludes the continuing right t9 fl_lt 9r gause or permit the flight by

any and all persons, of aircraft, of any and all kinds now or hereafter known, in,

through, u"toss or about any portion of ths Permitted Airspace; and

2. The right to cause or create, perrrit or allowto be caused ot created within all

space ab6ve the existing surface of said Glantor's Prope*y and any_and.all

uirspu"" laterally adjacent to said Grantor's Property, such noise, vibration,

current and other effe,cts of air, illumination and fuel consumption as may be

inherent in, or may arise or occur from Airport Operations, or during the

operation of aircraft of any and all kinda, trow or hereafter known or used, fol
oe"igutiott of or flight in air within the Pemitt€d Airspace; and

3. Nothing in this easement is intended to or shall it be interpreted to alter noise

standards ind methods of measurements or permit noise or vibration in excess of
the standafds utilized by the Federal Aviation Administration.

4. A continuing right to clear, and keep clear the Permitted Airspace and

extending ,rpwardr thereafter (as necessary for air transportation or air operation

purporer) of any portions of building, sbuctures, ol improvements of any and all

iinir, and of trees or other objeots, ineluding the riglrt to remove or demolish

those portions of such buildings, shuctures, improvements, trees or other things

2

P9.67

Page 309

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



which extend into or above said Airspace and the right to cut to those portions of

any trees which extend into or above the Airspace; and

5. The right to mark and light, or cause or require to be marked ol lighted, as

obstruotions to air navigation, any and all buildings, stluctures or other

improvcments, and free-s or other objects, which extend into or above the

Perniued AirsPace; and

6. T[e right to ingress to, passago within" and egress from the hereinabove

desoribed Grantois Property foi the purposes desoribed in subparagraphs "4" and

t'5tt above.

c. Grantor, on behalf of itsel{, its successors and assigns, hereby covenants with the

County of bacramento aod the City of Folsgm and for the dir'est benefit of the real

ptop"rty constituting Sacramento Mather Airport as follows:

1. That Grantor, its successors and assigns will not construct, install, permit or

Jto* *y build|U, structure, improvement, bee, orother object onthe Crantor's

property described herein" to sxtend into or above the Pennitted Aimpace, or to

oUsiruci or interfere with the use of the Avigation Easement and right-of-way

herein granted.

2. Nothing in the Avigation Easement is intended to nor shall it affect Grantor's

lund ur" ri-gtrts o. r"qoit" any additional land use review beyond that ordinarily

required in the land use entitlementprocess'

D. The Avigation Easement and rightof-1ay granted herein shall be deemed both

"pp"td;t 
to ancl for the direct bCnefit of that real property which oonstitutes the

dui**"oto Mather Airport, and shall furttrer be deemed in gross, being conveyed to the

Grantees for the benefif of the Grantees and any and all members of thc general pub]ic

*1" i"V ugc said Avigetion Easement or right-of-way 9r d{ve benefit from the taklng

off from, landing opot or operating such ailcraft in or about tbe said Sacramento Mather

Airport, or in otfierwise flying through said Permitted Airspace.

E. This Avigation Easement shall not oper&te to deprive tho Grarrtor, its successors or

*rig*, of aiy rights, which it may from-time to-time-have against any air ca*ier or

oriv-ate operator for negligent or unlawful operation of aircraft, of any other rights, claims

li.uur# of action that arl not inconsistent with the Avigation Easement granted herein.

F. These covenants and agreement run with the land and are binding upon the heirs,

administators, executorr,-r*""rrots and assigns of the Grantor, and for the purpose of

this instrumeni, th" Grantor's Property as described in Exhibit "A" is the servient

tenement and said Sacramento Mather Airport is the dominant tenement'

Section 2. Relclse-

)

Pg.68

Page 310

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Orantor releases the City of Folsom, the County of Sacramento and Airport operators

and aircraft operagors using the Airport from any claims, losses, liabilities or expenses

(collectively,-,'Loss€s") arising from the impositions permitted by this Avigation Easement, as

wsll as from noise andothsr negative impacts rosulting from Airport Operations prior to the date

of this Avigation Easement. This Release covers all past, presen! and future Losses, whether

known o, ,irk ro*rr. This Release includes damages for physical or emotional injuries, nuisance

or -y taking of Orantor's Property. Grantor specifically waives application of California Civil

Code, Section 1542, whichprovides as follows:

,'A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know ot stlspcct

to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which if hown by him must have

materially affected his settlement with the debtor'"

Grantor shall not sue for damages in connection with Losses released by this Avigation

Basement, nor seek to er{oin the impositions pennitted bythis Avigntion Easement. The County

of Saorameirto will not have to set aside buffer lands, re-route air fraffio, ereot sound or other

barriers, establish curfews, relocate Airport Operations or take other mea.sutos to eliminate or

lessen tire irnpositions permitted by this Avigation Easement. Flights paths may be altered or

modified from time to time by the Federal Aviation Administration or the County of Sacramento

to fly ovor Grantor's ProPertY.

Section 3. Condnuous Benoflh and Burdens

This Avigation Easement burdens the Grantors'Pmperty for the benefit of the Airport. It
runs with the tand under California Civil Code Section 1468. The benefits and burdens created

by this inshument apply to and bind the parties' srrccossolt' heirs and assigns'

Grantor agxees that in any markcting material regarding transfers, in whole or in parl of
the Grantor's Proplrty, this Avigation Easement and tho terms thereof shall be disclosed. In

addition, Grantoiagrees that it will inform all interested parties iacluding, but not limited to,

those holding liens or encumbrances on all or a portion of the Property, about this Avigation

Easement anO stratt provide a copy of this Avigation Easement if they so request.

Section 4. Rscordation

The County of Sacramento shall record this document in the Official Records of
Sacramento CountY.

GRANTOR:

4

Dated: By:

Pg.69

Page 311

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



CALIFORNIA ALL.PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of California
County of Sacmmento )
On before mg Notary Public,

Personally appeared

who proved to rno on tha baeis of satisfactory w-id9ne9 to be thep-erson(s) whosc namds) idate

suUscrifd to the within instrument and aoknowledged to me thrt he/slre/they e?rcoutcd the same

in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument

tho person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the inshument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERILJRY under ths laws of Stats of California that the forgoing

paragraph is true and corecL

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

SIGNATURE
PLACB NOrr{RY SEAL ABOVE

Tlrough law, it rnay prove valuabls to persons relying on the dooment
and ncattachrnont ofthis form to another dooumont

Description of attached document

Title or type of document: -

Document Date: Number of

5

Pg.69a

Page 312

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Signe(s) Other than Named Above: - None -

CERTTFICATE OT' ACCDPTANCE

This is io certify that the interest in real property colygVed by the.within decd, the provisions of
whioh are incorporated by this reforonco as though fully set lotttt i" this Certification, to the

County of Sacrimento, a-political subdivision of the State of Califomie is hereby accepted by

the uniersigned officer pusuant to authotity conferred by Resolution No. 2011-001 I of the

Board of Supervisors of said County adopted on January I 1, 2011, and the Grantee consents to

recordation theraof by its duly authorized officer.

Director of General Services Date

6

Pg, 69b

Page 313

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



CITY O['FOLSOM
CERTII'ICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

This is to certify that the interest in the real property conveyed by the within Deed, the provisions

of which are incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth in this Certification, to the

City of Folsom, a political subdivision of the State of Califomia, is hereby accepted by the

undersigned officer pursuant to authority conferred by Resolution No. 2435 of the City Council

ofsaid City adopted on July 18, 1988, and the grantee consents to recordation thereofby its duly

authorized officer.

Signature & Date:

Bvert W. Palmer
City of Folsom
City Manager

CALIFORMA ALL.PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of Califomia
County of Sacramento )

On before me, Notary

Public, personally appeared Evq4 W. Palmer

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory ovidence to be the person(s) whoss name(s) isfure

subsorlbed to the within instnrment and acknowledged to me that he/slreHmy exeouted the same

in hisftslssi+ authorized capacity(ies), and that by his'herffieir signature(s) on ths instrument
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(e) acted, executed the instrument,

I certify under PENALTY OF PERIURY under the laws of State of California that the forgoing
pamgraph is truo and correct.

WITNESSmy hand and official seal.

PLACBNOTANY SBAL ABOVE

Pg. 69c

7

Page 314

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT "A'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

I

Pg 69d

Page 315

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT 3.8
INOEX SHEET

BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURE
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNW CALIFORNIA

mlcKff&s0mPs
EflOINEERE FI.ANIIERS SURVEYORE
15t2 Eucr. Rord, &,tb i00, R6n'ilr, CA gsdol (0101 ??9r t09

ou23/2011 79 t9-000RTIP Nts
DRAWN BY SCALE T}ATE ,roB tl(),

HtEr
!
I

I
I

EETSH 4+-
I

_..L

f
I
I

T
tl.ii

SHEET I OF 7

t-Or-lot. ,etalg @ord P: lrt r t \an r u s\a wtjr\$ril t l0l,' n t a W *lsr.r.t
l,I e. \nrgbM;tglr.tDfttlcot rl.tlt rr-Adtd'.t

Pg.7o

Page 316

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



7

I5,PU€

r
oo

(rr

n
PUE

o
20

(Ji-

0a'

5'

BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURE
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CATIFORNIA

EXHIBIT 3.8

mAsK[Y&$0mP$
ENG|NEERS PLANilER9 $UF|TTEYORS
l5t2 Euab ned. Srie t00, Rorvft, CA Ct66l Ol0) 7&l lot

l'= l00(l' o4.n'fntl 79r9-000Rup
SCILE OAI L J{E NO.ERAITN EV

l2 7 US 50 E

Easton

ln l5' 15,PU€

-1- 78' +

I
t

ftt
aIt

a,,,
I

t

t5
, PUE

a

+ - -i3+, 
ROW

t5'
15'PUE

a
d'
F:

c
ila.

78'ROW,
I SHEET 2 OF 7

I
Ot
or.

1
P09,e'

5-02-lOll t&tr:26 6ttdt e irt gls.tFrslJi#rtclar'Dilt\a'2truw A*,6rt
l r, e \A, 9\Nanht\c.t#t\Cd lr..\nti - b.dq

Pg. 7l

Page 317

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



15'PUE
UIq

1

I

i
;

I

BACKBONE INFMSTRUCTURE
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT 3.8

MABKIY&$OMP$
ENOITIEER8 PI.AI{ITGR8 SURVEYORS
1652 Rrr& Roed, atrro 100, Fbiito, CA e6{9! pt6) t?t.tl€o

RMP l'e 1000' 04/2J/20t4 79r9-000
T'T(AWN HY sclrE UAI L JOB ITO.

I IB

78,ROW
t5'

\ts
\

15, PUE

*
R:

.$

t

78,ROW

;

78,ROW

(,r
q'.

bo\a t5'

I

I

I

l
-f

SHEET 3 OF 7

t-

I

s-or-2|ta taJLN 4t6, R lrrtrlDrEdsldq''i t\.Ndr\Ot- tu . \A0 a*.bg
l, I k \rgrgbbnnhr\e'!'''iltl6d /d't\n, c'goad',

Pg.72

Page 318

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



20' PUE 20' PUE

,ROW

(rr
Ot 8-

?

20, PIJE

*$
t00'Rowq

7g'

:
I

ROW

u
or.

I
=

SHEET 4 OF 7
t5'

I

--t
I

BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURI
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNW CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT 3.8

msKff&$0mp$
EIiIOINEERS PLANIIERS €URVEIC'ES
l5{tir Eufir. Rod, ${! t00, R6rfl.. CA gSOl 

{9t0} rf1.t 180

RMP l'- l0fll' 01n'not. 79r9-000
ORAWN 8Y SCALE OAIE JOB NO.

(Jl

co-

+
20' PUE

t00

uq
\er\

8+
1.7*
20 $

t5'
15,PUE
78,ROW

15, PUE

o
no
=

5-o2-frt4 tQJ rC @tdt cl79t9laflor,l5\dr,',h'\.rttiltl0a-,'.t.\l@ u*'et
I tI P: lrgtgvrd-htldaitrlrd tu\r'lrtg-tunn g

Pe.73

Page 319

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



8,ROW

i, PU€

(,
Or-

bo
E

({o
(n
or-

20 PUE

il
Rot|q

t5'
I

1.

I

I

78,ROW

BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURE
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CALTFORN]A

EXHIBIT 3.8

ml0ilhY&s0mP$
Et{slt{EERn pt.ANilERs SURVEVOf,S
tSgA E!cl. Ro.d, gdb ldt, Ro$*lo, CASl00l (gl0) ?':'.r 16g

RMP l'r 100{l' unu20t4 79r9-000
DRAWN BY SCALE DAIE JOE N(,.

20 PUE

00
2(

C{o
;c.r"|

- -t3+13- g

t5'

5, PUE

()

SHEET 5 OF 7

t-0r-2aa torrrlt '@tr P! lnp\ebrui\a',,hIv'n ilr\U'tot \o0 8,.gd.ag

l,] t: \n,gt4,/Ft hc\cirht\coc t al€E-e.n ei

Pg.74

Page 320

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



I
'16

20'

78'ROW
F
L

\cr\

OO | 2.5'
ROW

2,

Strcst B

os
-s
=

Nq

({s
;
F

Ot
Or-

I
=

(xs

20' PUE

(do

BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURE
AND BACKBONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CALIFORNIA

EXHIBIT 3.8

mACKIY&$omP$
EilCI'{CERS PIANNERS SURVEYOR8
1562 ar6&. R6d, Sdlr 100, Ro!ril., CA &tGfl (9t0l'''llto

RMP ti- t000' 94125/?st. 79 r 0-000
on tfi EY scttr DAIE J(E M).

(JS HighwarS0

gJ

6 54

20'PUE

ROW

s

20,PUE

o
(^lo
;er\

c

(^o I:
I

6 -lJ
errl SHEET 6 OF 7

20' PUE
20,PUE

100

*
ROlv&

5-0a-2ot1 tCw.28 d9ts*t h
Iil e \,9|9\pt@aht\.'r'bn.lcd n tl'4,9-0ed,t

0 St.t r

Pg.75

Page 321

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



50

us

R00d
RO\jv I

20'

I

6 1 5 too,

7a l
-t

I

20 'PUE t-

I

\

n-

SHEET 7 OF 7

EXHIBIT 3.8

J 15 BACKBONE INFRASTRUCTURE
AND BACI(BONE LANDS

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CALIFORNIA

o

mACmY&$0mP$
ENGII{EER8 PLANNERS gURI'EYORS
165A Eut l. R..d,Sulr. t00, Rotir[., o\0t801 ot6)7D,t$0

RUP t"o 1000' l4 79r9-000

',s',rr9

Pg.76

Page 322

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



.081

072-31

lnc.
&

&072-0070-023072-O27A-OO1

Exhlblt 4,2.1

List of Advancing Owners and Relmburslng Owners for Advance
Plannlng Cost

Advancing ownet€:

Relmburelng Ownelgi

Mellssa A. Banon
2

P:Vg10\701o€O\YRSV919 Llst of Attusnclng Owners 20140415 REVISEO 20140423'xls

Pg.77

Page 323

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



qe

--l6

q2{o8c$2
Fobom Real Es{ab Sqjt\ LLC

n

0724060-084
Fdsom Real Estate Sodll' LLC

Manghi l,lortrt Holfiig6. LlC
dlz{06G0E[t

vln'rE Rod( lsrd kre8b.r, LLC
m2{06e085

072{060{81
Folsom Real Estate Soulh, tLC

Cse€nbrEast LLC
trt2319G009

da{fiil}-o78
l,tbstScot
&d, LLC

072{t08(H180
FoFom Real

EstateSoutl LLC

072{06G070
fusom R€lE€ilab

South, ttG

072€190-0tN
Easbnlalay
rbkfln$, LLC

Fobon Red Estate s(lJth, LLc
072{06&077

0z{ro0o.ct€

Souh, tLC
Real$ta!e

\6lby llddlns"

Map of Constructing Owner's Properfy
Exhibit 4.3

City of Folsom, Galifomia - April 15,2014

0z€190{t05
Erbn \Idley
Ho6ms, tIC072-31S{LOOZ

lr\tsst Ptaitie
Estales, LLC

E

N

"#
s

t
1t

1

tnncKnv & SomPs

Page 324

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



EXHIBIT 7.11

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT

RECORDING REQUESTED TO:

ls
THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT (hereinafter, the "Agreement')

entored into this day of 2O-, by and between

RECITALS

A, On 

-,2A11 

, the Clty of Folsom and Landowner enlemd lnto

that cortaln agreemenl enfltled "Flrst Amended and Restated Tler 1 DeveloTmentAgreementBy

and Betveeri The Ctty of Folsom and [teIggSEEt-NgOgl Relative to Folsom Speoiflc Plan

herelnafrer the 'Development Agrsemenf). Pursuant to the Dovelopment Agrcement,

Landowner agreed to develop certain property more particularly descrlbed ln tho Delelopmenl

Agreement (hirelnafter, lho "Subiect Property"),_subJea to cerlaln condltlons and obllgatlons as

sjt forttr ln ihe Devel@ment Agreefiient. The Development Agreement was rscorded agalnst

a (herelnafrer "Landownel"),
and a (hereinaftet

the SubJect PropertY
2014 finstrument No.

B, Landowner lntends to convoy a portlon of the Subject Property to Asslgnee,

commonly refened to as ParcEl ..-, an_d more-partlcularly identiffed_and descdbed in Exhibit A,

attached'hereto and incorporated herein by this refurence (horeinafter the "Assigned Parcel"),

or all of the Subject Property, as deflned ln the Development Agreement.

C. Landowner deslres to assign and Asslgnee desiros to assume all of Landowne/s

rlght, fltle, interest, burdens and obligations under the Development Agreement with respect to

and ae related to the Asslgned Parcel.

ln the Official Records of Sacramento Qounty or 

-'

l.

Ps.79

Page 325

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



ASSIGNMENT AN D ASSUMPTION

NOW, THERFORE, Landowner and Asslgnee hereby agree as follows:

f. Landowner hereby assigns, effective as of Landowner conveyance of lhe
Assigned Parcel to Asslgnee, all of the rights, tltle, Interest, burdens and obllgations of
Land-owner under the Development Agraement wlth respect to the Asslgned Parcel. Landowner
retains atl the rights, title, interest, burdens and obligatlons under the Development Agreement
with respect to all other property within the Subject Property owned by Landowner.

Z. Assignee hereby asaumes all of the rlghls, tftle, lnterest, burdens and obligallons
of Landowner undor lhe Dovelopment Agreement with respect to lhe Assigned Parce[ and
agrees to observe and fully perbrm all of the dutles and obllgations of Landowner under the
Davelopment Agresment with resped to the Asslgn€d Parcol, and to be subject to all the tenns
and cohditione thereof wlth respec't to the Asslgned Parcel. The parlles lntend hereby that,
upon the executlon of this Agrcernent and conveyance of the Asaigned Parcel lo Asgignee,
A'eslgnee shall beccme substltuted for Landowner as lhe "Landowno/' under lhe Development
Agreement with respecl to the Assigned Parcel, Asdgnee acknowledgee and agrees ftat the
assurnpdon of Landowne/e rights and obligatlone-undor the Development Agreoment lncludes,
wlthoui llmltaflon, the walver by Asslgneo under Secllon 5.3 of the Developrnent Agreement of
all claims for damages agalnst the Clty for breach of the Development Agreement.

Ail of the covenantrs, terrns and condilions set forth herein shall be blndlng upon and shall insure
to the benefit of the parties hereto and thelr respective heirs, successors and assigns.

3. Notificatlon to the CIV of Folsom ls required by the Development Agreemenl
Transfiering Landowner shall provide notice, prior to lhe hansfier to:

CitY of Folsom
CitY Manager
50 Natoma Street
Folsom. Callfornia 95630

4, The Notice Address described in Artlcle 7 of the Devolopment Agreement for the
landownerwith respoct to the Asslgned Parcel shall be:

Attn: 

-

S. No asslgnment shall be permltted lf there are any outstandlng payment
obllgatlons to the City by the Landowner until such delinquency is satislied or the parties enter
into'a payment or performanoe agreement in a form approved by the City Attomey.

2

Pg ll0

Page 326

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



lN WTNESS HEREOF, the partles hereto have executed thls Agreernant as of the day

and year firet above wrltten. This Agreement may be slgned ln ldentlcal counterparls.

LANDOIA/NER:

ASSIGNEE:

C.n

PrlntName-

3

Pp 8l
Page 327

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 328

08/24/2021 Item No.22.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council:

1. Move to approve Resolution No.10689 to adopt an Addendum to the Folsom 2035
General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for the City of Folsom2}2l
Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related
Actions.

The same Resolution approves the proposed amendments to the City of Folsom 2035
General Plan by adopting the 202I Housing Element, Land Use Element Update
(including revisions to the Land Use Diagram), Safety and Noise Element Update, and

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202t

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: City of Folsom2l2l Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch
Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions

1. Resolution No. 10689 - A Resolution of the City Council
of the City of Folsom Adopting an Addendum to the
Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental Impact
Report for the Housing Element Update and Amending
the General Plan By Adopting Updates to the Housing
Element, Land Use Element, Safety And Noise Element
And Implementation Element

2. Resolution No. 10690 - A Resolution to Amend the
Empire Ranch Specific Plan to Expand the Regional
Commercial Center (RCC) Land Use Designation to
Allow for Multifamily Residential as a Permitted Use in
Conjunction with the Folsom Housing Element Update

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 329

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Implementation Element Update.

2. Move to approve Resolution No. 10690 to amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to
allow multifamily residential development as a permitted use under the regional
commercial land use designation and commerciallcentral business district zoning.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Periodically, all cities and counties in California must update their Housing Element, one of
the seven mandated elements in the General Plan. The City of Folsom last updated its Housing
Element in20l3. The City is currently finalizinga comprehensive update of the 2013 Housing
Element. Upon adoption, the 2021 Housing Element will become part of the City of Folsom
General Plan. In accordance with State law, this sixth cycle Housing Element update will also
require updates to the Safety and Noise Element of the General Plan.

Even though the Housing Element is one of seven required elements of the General Plan, it has

several unique requirements that set it apart from the other six required General Plan elements
(Land Use, Circulation, Conservation, Noise, Open Space and Safety). State law (Government
Code Section 65580 et seq.) specifies in detail the topics that the Housing Element must
address and sets a schedule for regular updates (cunently every eight years). The Housing
Element is also the only General Plan element that is subject to review and approval by the
State for compliance with State law. The California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) is the State department responsible for this certification. Additionally,
the State has enacted significant new guidance and legislation regarding the Housing Element.

The City's current Housing Element was adopted in August 2013. The sixth cycle Housing
Element will cover the May 15,2021through May 15, 2029 planrting period and will reassess

the community's housing-related goals and objectives, while addressing issues and
establishing objectives with respect to a wide range of possible housing related programs. The
sixth cycle also presents several new challenges for the City in terms of meeting an increased
Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) and navigating new state laws pertaining to
housing, including, but not limited to the SB 166 (2017) "no-net-1oss" law that requires land
inventory and site identification programs in a Housing Element to always include sufficient
sites to accommodate the unmet RHNA, as well as AB 686 (2018) which requires affrrmatively
furthering fair housing as a part of a jurisdiction's Housing Element planning process and
guiding documents for community development.

Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RIINA)

The RHNA is part of a statewide mandate that addresses housing issues related to future
growth. State law requires HCD to provide regional determination of projected housing needs.

The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) is responsible for developing a

RHNA Methodology and approving a RHNA and Regional Housing Needs Plan (RHNP) for
the SACOG six-county region. The SACOG Board adopted the sixth cycle202l-2029 RHNA
Methodology in Novenber 2019, and the RHNP on February 20,2020.

2Page 330

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The RHNA allocates to both cities and counties each jurisdiction's "fair share" of the region's
projected housing needs, broken down into four income categories: very low-, low-, moderate-
and above moderate-income. See below for a breakdown of how these categories are defined
in terms of median income:

Source: Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) FY 2021 Income Limits Summary

These allocations are intended to be used by jurisdictions when updating their Housing
Element as the basis for assuring that adequate sites and zoning are available to accommodate
the expected growth in housing during the eight-year planning period.

Note: * Based on 8-year planning period
Source: SACOG Regional Housing Needs Plan Cycle 6 (2021-2029) February 2020

As shown in table above, SACOG allocated Folsom a total of 6,363 housing units for the eight-
year housing cycle. The allocation is equivalent to approximately 795 housing units annually
fortheeight-yearplanningperiod. Ofthe6,363housingunits,3,56Tunitsaretobeaffordable
to very low-income and low-income households. This represents a significant increase in the
lower-income RHNA (2,072 units) from the previous allocation for the 2013 Housing Element.

A core assumption of the RHNA requirements is that the higher the allowed density in the
zoning, the more likely it is to accommodate affordable housing. Thus, the lower income

3

Household Income Bucket
(Based on Area Median)

Annual Household Income
(Based on Four Person

Household)
Income Category

Above $109,320Above Moderate Income 120+Yo

Moderate Income 80-120% $72,501-$109,320

s0-80% $43,301-$72,500Low Income

Very Low Income <5004 Less than $43,300

Average Income by Income Category

*Average

Yearlv Need
RHNA Very Low Low Moderate

Above
Moderate

Total

Housing
Units

2,226 1 1,34 829 r,967 6 a
J 63) 795

2r% r3% 3r% r00%Percent of
Total

35%

Folsom's Regional Housing Needs Unit Allocation by Incotrre

Page 331

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



categories (very low- and low-income) can only be accommodated on sites zoned for higher
densities (allowing at least 30 units per acre). If a jurisdiction does not have enough zoning
capacity to accommodate all income categories of its RHNA, it is required to identifu
additional sites and rezone them by 2024.

In addition to identif ing adequate lower income sites, the other significant challenge the City
faces pertains to the new "no-net-loss" tequirement. Pursuant to Government Code Section
65863, the City must maintain adequate sites for lower-income housing throughout the entire
eight-year planning period. As such, if the City approves a development for a site identified
in the Housing Element as suitable for lower-income housing but the development consists of
fewer units or a different income category (such as market rate housing on a potential lower-
income site zoned for 30 units per acre), the City must either make "no net loss" findings that
the other (remaining) Housing Element sites are adequate to meet the RHNA for lower-income
housing, or identiff and rezone a replacement lower income housing site within 180 days. In
the event rezone is necessary in order to meet the no-net-loss requirement, the task to find and

rezone a replacement site is the City's responsibility, not the developers. Thus, in addition to
identiffing adequate sites to meet the RHNA obligation, the City also needs to develop
strategies to build in extra capacity in the Housing Element to address the no-net-loss
requirement (assuming that the City will likely receive and potentially approve market rate

apartment projects on multifamily high-density land during the eight-year period).

The table below summarizes the current estimated residential capacity compared to RHNA by
income level:

Source: City of Folsom 2021 Draft Housing Element Update

City Council Study Sessions

At the March I0,2020 City Council meeting, the City's Housing Element consultant, Ascent
Environmental, Inc. (Consultant), provided the City Council with an overview of the City's
202I Housing Element update process, summarized the challenges and opportunities
pertaining to the required accommodation of Folsom's share of the lower-income RHNA

4

Very Low-
lncome
Units

Lotrv-
lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome
Units

Abwe
Moderate-

lncorne
Units

Total
Units

1,3412,226
RHNA

3,567
829 1,907 6,363

4,016 6,354 14,42SResidential
Capacity

4,057

Surplus +490 +3,189 +4,387

Estrmated Residential Capacitv Compared to RHl'lA by ltrcome

Page 332

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



determined by SACOG, and outlined the requirements of newly enacted State Housing
Element Law.

At the July 28, 2020 City Council meeting, the Consultant presented City Council with a
potential RHNA shortfall analysis and requested input on three proposed Housing Element

RHNA strategies/questions to build in extra capacity:

1. Does the City Council support increasing allowable densities within key areas

of the City including the transit priority areas, East Bidwell Mixed Use
Corridor, and the Regional Town Center site in the Folsom Plan Area?

2. Does the City Council support increasing the maximum allowed dwelling unit
count in the Folsom Plan Area in order to meet the RHNA?

3. Does the City Council want to entertain an expansion to the existing
inclusionary requirement to expand applicability beyond for sale housing to
include rental housing?

The City Council considered each of the three proposed RHNA strategies/questions and

supported strategies to increase allowable densities within key areas (Question 1) and

increasing the overall dwelling unit count in the Folsom Plan Area (Question 2), but the

Council was not in favor of applying inclusionary requirements to rental housing (Question 3).

The feedback received from the City Council and the Housing Element public engagement

process, along with new state mandates, was used to prepare new proposed policies and

programs in the 2021Housing Element Update Public Review Draft, which was released on
December 2I,2020.

2021-2029 Housing Element Public Review Process

The Housing Element is a critical part of the City's efforts to preserve, improve, and encourage

development of housing accessible to everyone in the community, hence public engagement
and input are important to ensure successful housing policies and programs. Furthermore, as

set forth in Section 65583 of the Government Code, local governments are required to make a
diligent effort to achieve public participation of all economic segments of the community in
developing the Housing Element. During this Housing Element update process, as a result of
the COVID-I9 pandemic, new outreach approaches were utilized to ensure community and

stakeholder participation. As part of the community engagement effort, City staff and the
consultant team hosted three virtual focus group sessions to gather input from various
stakeholders on key housing issues. The virtual focus group sessions were held on the
following topics: Affordable Housing Strategies (June 2, 2020); Missing Middle and Multi-
Generational Housing Strategies (June 3,2020); and Homelessness and Special Needs Housing
(June 9, 2020). The feedback received from each focus group was incorporated into the
Housing Element update and used to guide new policies and programs. Attachment C.3 of the
Housing Element Background Report contains a swnmary of feedback received.

5
Page 333

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



In addition to the virtual focus group study sessions, the consultant team, in coordination with
City staff, hosted an online community workshop to introduce the Housing Element update

process to the community. The online community workshop and video presentation was

accompanied with an online survey for community members to provide feedback on housing
issues, goals, and strategies to meet the City's housing needs. The online community workshop
was widely advertised, and the City received 420 responses to the survey. Attachment C.3 of
the Housing Element Background Report contains a summary of the survey responses gathered

and utilized in formulating the programs and policies identified in the Draft Housing Element
Policy Document.

Planning Commission and City Council Draft Housing Element Hearings

On January 20,2021, following release of the Public Review Draft Housing Element, City
staff and the consultant team presented the Draft Housing Element to the Planning Commission
at a public hearing in the form of a study session to engage the Planning Commission,
stakeholders, and the public in the Housing Element review process. On February 9, 2021, the
City Council conducted a public hearing study session to review the Draft Housing Element.
At the public hearing, the City Council was presented with the Planning Commission
recommendations as well as the public comments received on the Draft Housing Element. The
City Council recommended minor changes to the Draft Housing Element and authorized staff
to submit the Draft Housing Element to HCD for the State-mandated compliance review.

California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) Review

The Draft Housing Element (Draft) was submitted for a formal 60-day review to HCD on
February 11,2021. On March 25,2021, staff and consultants participated in a conference call
with HCD to discuss comments to the Draft based on HCD's preliminary review. The primary
focus of HCD's comments pertained to expanding the analysis of Affirmatively Furthering
Fair Housing (AFFH), clariffing some of the details contained in the Background Report and

Policy Document, and adding additional programs to comply with State Law. Based on HCD's
comments during the conference call, the City submitted revisions to the Draft on March 30,

2021. On April 6,2021, the City received further comments from HCD to address five items
(AFFH; requirement of fee schedules on the City's website; quantified objectives for housing
conservation; additions and/or revisions to housing programs; and establishment of written
procedures to grant priority water and sewer service to developments with low-income
households). HCD's comment letter is attached hereto in Attachment.4. The City responded

by submitting additional revisions to HCD on May 4, 202I, and HCD advised additional
information was needed to address AFFH issues raised in Sacramento Housing Alliance
comment letter dated May 24,2021. The City submitted a third revision to HCD on June 9,

2021 and requested an expedited 30-day review of the Draft in order to meet the City's
adoption deadline. On July 2,2021, HCD requested two additional items be added related to
fair housing outreach (Program H-32) and a definitive timeframe for coordination related to
homeless services (Program H-31). The City quickly turned around a fourth set of revisions
to address these final remaining items and requested a conditional approval letter.

6Page 334

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



On July 16,2021, the City received a conditional approval letter from HCD stating that the

City's Draft Housing Element, incorporating the revisions submitted, meets the statutory
requirements of State Housing Element Law (Article 10.6 of Gov. Code), and that the 2021

Housing Element will comply with State Housing Element Law when it is adopted by the City
Council and approved by HCD. The letter also included a reminder that the City's sixth cycle
housing element was due on May 15,2021and as such, the City's fifth cycle housing element
no longer satisfies the statutory requirements. As a result, the City is encouraged to adopt and

submit the Housing Element within the 120-day grace period to regain Housing Element
compliance. HCD's conditional approval letter is attached hereto in Attachment 4.

Comment Letters from Sacramento Housing Alliance

On January 20,2021, the City received a comment letter from Sacramento Housing Alliance
(SHA) regarding the City's Draft Housing Element. On March2,202l, the City's consultant

and staff participated in a conference call with SHA to discuss SHA's comments and concerns

raised in the comment letter. As a result of this meeting, City staff and the Consultants made

several SHA recommended revisions to the Draft Housing Element which were incorporated
in the Draft submitted to HCD on March 30, 2021 . On April 7 , 2021 , SHA provided the City
with a second comment letter expressing concerns that the Draft Housing Element submitted
to HCD on March 30,2021did not address several of the issues raised by SHA. On May, 4,

2021the City sent a response letter to SHA regarding SHA recommended revisions to the Draft
Housing Element. On May 24,2021, SHA provided a follow-up comment letter outlining
several outstanding concerns. These SHA comments were discussed with HCD during the
May 2,2021 follow-up meeting, and as described above, revisions were made to the Draft to
address SHA's comments related to AFFH. Copies of SHA's comment letters and the City
responses to these letters are attached hereto in Attachment 5. Even with the SHA comments,

HCD is satisfied with the City's Draft Housing Element and issued a conditional approval
letter, paving the way for the City to move forward with a recommendation that the City
Council adopt the new 2021 Housing Element.

Summary of Housing Element Revisions

In addition to revisions requested/suggested by HCD and SHA and clean-up revisions initiated
by staff and the consultant team, the updated draft includes a revision to Policy H3.4 based on
a public comment received on June 25,2021(attached hereto in Attachment 6) regarding the
potential opportunity to utilize State surplus land for affordable housing development.

A table summarizing all substantive Draft Housing Element revisions based on Planning

Commission and City Council direction, HCD comments, SHA comments and other public
comments is included as Attachment 3.

7Page 335

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Proiect Schedule

The exhibit below provides an overview of this sixth cycle Draft Housing Element review
process and timeline and where we are currently in the process.

oz
F

o

e
ts3
o

og
o
cg

=Eo

riiiilu rirllrii

c
ffi:*#l'Sffiso

@ sw;;m

2021

:1::.t':, +"rl.f6 i.ilr']fii

cmmnliy lngsgmil
Vld@ + OnlkF SuNry

; rfflllE ,, ' *94ffi.--ffi1".i4ffi1ffi#i1iffi

lrJJ
fa
IJJ
I(J
ul
FrJ
UJ

dt
o-

Offi&*,

@mroll, WEARE
HERE

@'ffs:$.
nonnlng

emml.ibn oH{ring

Clty GouNI
H@riflg o

@
Publlc R$rofl
DEltxsrhg

llamsl

Ravlr*, Flnql
)routlng
lldmnt

Houilng
Ele'Mt

addendrm

Adopdonupdoring the ncD

Related General Plan Amendments

In conjunction with the Housing Element Update, the City proposes to amend the Land Use
Element of the General Plan by amending the land use diagram to correct the East Bidwell
Mixed Use Overlay and to revise Policy LU 9.1.10 (Renewable and Alternative Energy
Generation Systems). In compliance with State law, the City is also updating the Safety and
Noise Element of the General Plan to address climate adaptation and resilience strategies. The
update adds new emergency preparedness and evacuation route policies, new climate change
policies to address floodhazards, wildfires and wildfire smoke and a new Extreme Heat section
that includes a new goal statement policies. The update also includes a Climate Adaptation and
Resilience Report, which serves as a climate change wlnerability assessment and will be

included in the General Plan as Appendix D. Finally, the City proposes to update the
Implementation Element to reflect the Safety and Noise Element Update. Revisions to the
Implementation Element include new implementation programs to address evacuation routes,
stormwater and flood management, wildfire and wildfire smoke protection, and extreme heat.

In addition, there are several clean-up revisions included in the Implementation Element.

On July 2,202I, the City received a comment letter (Attachment 7) from the Sacramento Metro
Air District which recommended minor clean-up revisions to the Public Review Draft Safety
and Noise Element and Public Review Draft Implementation Element as summarized below:

1. Asbestos: Replace the word "mitigate" with ooreduce" in Safety and Noise Element
Policy SN2.1.3 regarding natural occurring asbestos.

8Page 336

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



2. Implementation Programs: Correct Implementation programs in Chapter 10 related
to extreme heat that incorrectly reference policies related to Noise.

These recommended revisions have been incorporated in the Draft Safety and Noise Element
and Draft Implementation Element.

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment

In conjunction with the Housing Element Update, the City also proposes to amend the Empire
Ranch Specific Plan to modifu allowed uses in the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) land
use designation and applicable zoning district to allow multifamily residential as a permitted

use. This proposed amendment will provide additional housing capacity to meet the City's
lower-income RHNA for the sixth cycle planning period.

Planning Commission Public Hearins

On July 2021, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing, considered an

Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report prepared for
the City of Folsom 2021 Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment
and Related Actions in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA),
reviewed the proposed project and received public comments.

Two comment letters were received by the Commission. Sacramento Housing Alliance
submitted a public comment letter to be read into the record regarding accommodating the

Lower Income RHNA. An organization called 350 Sacramento submitted a public comment

letter on the Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Checklist and

Addendum regarding the transportation analysis related to vehicle miles traveled (VMT).
These comment letters are included in Attachments 5 and 8, respectively. No members of the

public spoke at the meeting.

At this meeting, the Commissioners shared comments regarding the proposed Housing
Element update and discussed the concerns presented in the comment letters provide by 350

Sacramento and SHA, with the primary focus on several key topics as follows:

o Vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and level of service (LOS)
o Support for accessory dwelling units and multi-generational units as a strategy to help

the City meet its RHNA
o Desire for future opportunities to discuss green roofs, and other environmental

programs, policy revisions, and implementation plans in the General Plan
o Need to adopt objective design standards as soon as possible
o Recommended minor modifications to Housing Element Programs H-10 and H-16
o Rewording (rather than deleting) LU 9.1.10 to ensure that the City encourages rooftop

solar, battery storage and SMUD's Solar Share Program

9
Page 337

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The Commission modified Housing Element Programs H-10 and H-16 as follows

H-10 Provide Information on Affordable Housing - The City shall create and distribute
educational materials, including a page on the City website, social media posts, and/or
brochures, to provide information on the needs and benefits of affordable housing and available
resources in the city. The City shall collaborate with local homeless service providers to raise
€ommlniqrarirareness provide information on homeless needs in the city.

H-16 Facilitate Affordable Housing Development on City-Owned Land - The City shall
facilitate the construction of affordable housing, including possible accessory dwelling units,
on the City-owned sites located at 300 Persifer Street (APN 070-0172-048) and on Riley Street

near Comstock Drive (APN 071-0190-076). The City shall collaborate with an interested

affordable housing developer to sell or lease surnlus Citv land for the construction of deed-
restricted affordable housing consistent with the Surnlus Land Act eens+n*et-dee&
ffiing.TheCityshal1targetproductionof16affordableunitsonCity-
owned sites by 2029."

Regarding Land Use Element Policy LU 9.1.10 (Renewable and Alternative Energy
Generation Systems), two commissioners expressed concerns with deleting the Policy and

recommended that the Commission not support staff s recommendation, especially given the
environmental concerns outlined in the climate resiliency report accompanying the Safety

and Nosie Element Update. Instead, they proposed a revision to the Policy to make solar and

other renewable energy generation systems a "recommendation" for projects where
renewable is not required by the California Building Code. The two commissioners also

expressed support for allowing projects to consider programs like SMUD's Solar Share

Program in place of on-site generation. Since the Commission was not unanimous in its
support to reword the Policy, the Commission directed staff to further review the Policy and
present the matter to City Council for their consideration. A review of LU 9.1.10 is
presented later is this Staff Report under the Analysis/Land Use Element Update section.

The Planning Commission adopted a motion (6-0-0-1) to recommend that the City Council
approve the Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental lmpact Report
prepared for the City of Folsom 2021 Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan
Amendment and Related Action; adopt the General Plan Amendments to update the Housing
Element, Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element, and Implementation Element; and

adopt the Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment.

POLICY / RULE

The City is required to have a Housing Element as part of its General Plan. Government Code

Section 65583(c)(3) states that the Housing Element must examine constraints on housing.
The City must provide programs, policies, goals, and quantified objectives (Government Code

Section 65533). Amendments to the General Plan, including amendments to the Housing
Element, must be adopted by the City Council (Gov Code section 65300 and 65301).

10
Page 338

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The City is required to updates the City's Safety and Noise Element to address climate

adaptation and resiliency strategies (Gov. Code section 65302).

A Specific Plan must be amended in the same manner as a general plan, and it must be

consistent with the General Plan (Gov. Code sections 65453 and 65454).

ANALYSIS

State law requires cities and counties to update both the Housing and Safety Elements of their
General Plan at the same time. The City is now in the process of adopting the 202I-2029
Housing Element Update to accommodate the sixth RHNA cycle. The sixth cycle Housing
Element target adoption date is May 15, 2021, with a 120-day grace period ending September

12,2021. The project proposes to amend the Folsom 2035 General Plan (General Plan) to
update the Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element, and

Implementation Element. In addition, the project proposes to amend the Empire Ranch

Specific Plan, as described in further detail below.

Housing Element Update

The purpose of the Housing Element is to identiff the community's housing needs, to state the
community's goals and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and

conservation to meet those needs, and to define the policies and programs that the community
will implement to achieve the stated goals and objectives. As such, this sixth cycle Draft
Housing Element is the culmination of a 1S-month process in which the City, in concert with
the City's consultant, developed the Housing Element Background Report and Policy
Document. The Background Report is designed to meet Housing Element requirements and

to provide the background information and analysis to support the goals, policies, programs,

and quantified objectives contained in the Policy Document.

The Housing Element update builds on the policies and programs of the 2013 Housing Element
and the City's success in implementing these policies and programs. Additionally, the City
proposes to implement a number of new innovative programs to encourage and support the

development of affordable housing and to respond to new State requirements. Furthermore,

the Housing Element Update addresses potential constraints to housing production and

recommends actions for removing or reducing the identified constraints.

The most significant updates to the 2013 Housing Element, as reflected in the proposed 2021

Housing Element update, include the following:

1. Increased Capacitv for Housing

East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay - One of the most significant changes since the 2013

Housing Element was the City's General Plan Update adopted in 2018. This update

included the creation of the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay which increased housing
development opportunities along East Bidwell Street between Coloma Street and U.S.

11
Page 339

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Highway 50. As a result, this Draft Housing Element includes approximately 52.9 acres

of vacant land with realistic capacity for about l,236lower-income housing units.

In addition, Draft Housing Element Program H-2 would increase residential capacity
densities along the East Bidwell corridor to further accommodate the City's RHNA.

Accessory Dwelling Units - An accessory dwelling unit (ADU) is an additional self-

contained living unit, either attached to or detached from the primary residential unit on a
single lot. It has cooking, eating, sleeping, and fulI sanitation facilities. ADUs can be an

important source of affordable housing since they can be constructed less expensively and

have no associated land costs. During the last few years, ADU construction in the City of
Folsom has steadily increased. The City Council adopted an update to the City's Accessory
Dwelling Unit ordinance in July 2020 to comply with recent changes in State law which
encourage ADU development. Based on these changes and previous ADU production
trends, it is anticipatedthatthe production of ADUs will increase significantly resulting in
an average production of 24 ADUs per year during the six-cycle Housing Element planning
period. This is equal to 194 ADUs during the planning period.

Multi-Generational Housing in the FPASP - Multi-generational houses are single-family
homes that have a second separate living space, or suite, that is complete with, at minimum,
a private entrance (in addition to a shared door with the main house), a bedroom, and a

kitchen or kitchenette. Several home builders in the Folsom Plan Area have produced

multi-generational houses in recent developments. These products provide an alternative
to traditional ADUs and allow secondary units to be constructed on small lots. Based on
stakeholder input and current market trends, it is anticipated that the production of multi-
generational housing will increase significantly during the sixth cycle planning period. As
such, it is assumed that 387 multigenerational housing units would serve lower-income
individuals during the planning period.

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment- In conjunction with the Housing Element
update, staff proposes a concise amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to include
multifamily housing as a permitted use in the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) land use

designation This amendment will allow multifamily development on the only RCC site

located within the Specific Plan: a 19.25-acre site (APN 072-1170-113-0000) located at

the southeast corner of the Empire Ranch Road and Iron Point Road intersection.

l2
Page 340

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The proposed amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan provides increased capacity
to help meet the City's lower income RHNA.

Based on property owner input, the Draft Housing Element assumes that70 percent of the
11.5 developable acres on the l9.25-aqe site would be developed as multifamily
residential. As such, housing capacity for this site assumes 217 dwelling units during this
planning period. Additional information regarding the specific plan amendment is
contained later in this report.

2. Affirmativelv Furtherins Fair Housine

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 686 (2018), the Background Report includes an assessment of
fair housing within the Housing Needs Section. This assessment examines the existing
conditions and demographics in Folsom including integration and segregation,
concentrated areas of poverty, areas of low and high opportunity, and disproportionate
housing needs. The analysis is provided at both a local and regional level, describing
settlement patterns across the region, as well as local data and knowledge, and other
relevant factors. This analysis is used to identifu and prioritize contributing factors that
could inhibit fair housing in Folsom. In addition, a number of the Housing Element
programs in the Policy Document identifu milestones and metrics related to affirmatively
furthering fair housing.

3. Hieh Densitv Residentisl Site Capacitv Profiles

Attachment C.2 of the Background Report includes site profiles for each vacant or
underutilized site identified in the inventory that is designated for multifamily high-density
development or mixed-use development allowing residential densities up to 30 units per
acre. A profile is provided for each site indicating the assessor parcel number (APN),
address, general plan land use designation, zoning, allowed density, floor-area-ratio (FAR),
size, applicable height limit, and existing use. The profile indicates whether the site was
identified in previous housing elements and includes a site description, access to utilities
or infrastructure, environmental constraints, and an analysis of realistic unit capacity. In
addition, vacant sites north of Highway 50 also include an evaluation of the site based on
the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) funding criteria. Note: An
evaluation of TCAC funding criteria is not yet provided for vacant sites south of Highway
50 because the TCAC funding criteria is largely dependent on proximity to existing
amenities and services.

4. New Housins Element Programs

Included within the Draft Housing Element are34 implementation programs to address the
existing and projected housing needs of all economic segments of the Folsom community.
Of these 34 implementation programs there are 19 new programs which are summarized
(refer to the Housing Element Policy Document for expanded program descriptions) below:

l3Page 341

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Create Additional Lower-Income Housing Capacity (Program H-2) - The City shall create

additional opportunities to ensure the City maintains adequate capacity to meet the lower-
income RHNA throughout the planning period. The City shall increase maximum
allowable densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG Transit Priority Areas
outside the Historic District, and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center.

Accessory Dwelling Unit Tools and Resources (Program H-4) - The City shall develop an

ADU Design Workbook that provides illustrated examples of the design standards and

styles, as well as other design ideas to assist property owners, developers, and architects.

Accessory Dwelling Unit Incentives (Program H-5) - The City shall incentivize and

encourage the construction of accessory dwelling units through development fee reductions
and/or waivers.

Track and Monitor Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-Generational Units (Program H-

Q - The City shall track new accessory dwelling units and multi-generational housing units
and shall conduct a survey every two years to collect information on the use and

affordability of these units.

Objective Design Standards for Multifamily Housing (Program H-8) - The City shall
rescind the Design Guidelines for Multifamily Development upon adoption of the Housing
Element and adopt objective design standards for multifamily development as part of the
comprehensive zoning code update.

Conduct Inclusionar.v Housing Fee Study (Program H-9) - The City shall prepare a fee

study on the City's inclusionary housing in-lieu fee. Depending on the findings of the
study, the City may consider revising the Ordinance to update the methodology for
calculating the inclusionary housing in-lieu fee.

Incentives for Affordable Housing Development (Program H-12) --The City shall provide
incentives for affordable housing development, including density bonuses, fee deferrals or
reductions, and reduced fees for studio units.

Update Densitv Bonus Ordinance (Program H-13) - The City shall update the City's
density bonus ordinance, as part of the comprehensive zoning code update, to reflect recent
changes in State law.

Affordahle Develonment at the Glenn/Ro G Holdemess Station l'Prosram T{-15) - The
City shall pursue opportunities to work with an affordable housing developer to construct
affordable housing at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station parking lot site.

Facilitate Affordable Housine Development on Citv-Owned Land (Program H-l6) - The
City shall facilitate the construction of affordable housing, including possible accessory

dwelling units, on the City-owned sites.

t4
Page 342

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Study the Purchase of Land for Affordable Housing (Program H-17) - The City shall
explore the feasibility and appropriateness to establish a program to use housing trust fund
money or other sources to purchase land to support the development of affordable housing
dispersed throughout the city.

Prioritize Infrastructure for Affordable Housing (Program H-18) - The City shall establish
procedures for granting priority water and sewer service to developments with lower-
income units in compliance with State Law.

Expand Existing Affordable Housing Developments (Program H-23) - The City shall
initiate conversations with owners of existing affordable housing complexes to identify
potential opportunities to increase the number of affordable units.

Housing Conditions Survey (Program H-26) - The City shall seek funding through the
Community Development Block Grant, or other funding sources, to conduct a survey of
housing conditions.

Habitat for Humanitv Home Repair (Program H-28) - The City shall work with Habitat for
Humanity to promote the Home Repair Program by Habitat which responds to health,
accessibility and safety concerns in homes owned by low-income households.

Zonine Code Amendments for Special Needs Housing (Program H-30) - As part of the
City's comprehensive Zoning Code Update, the City shall amend the zoning code to ensure

compliance with State housing law related to the following:
. Low barrier navigation center
. Supportive housing
. Parking standards for residential care homes and emergency shelters
. Farmworker housing
. Group homes of more than6
. Reasonableaccommodations
. Mobile home zoning district
. SB 35 procedures

Homelessness Services (Prosram H-3lL- The City shall work with Sacramento County
and local community-based organizations to explore opportunities and form partnerships

to bring satellites service for individuals experiencing homelessness.

Affrrmative Marketing Plan (Program H-33) - The City shall require affordable developers

to prepare an afftmative marketing plan, as a condition of receiving public funding and

shall encourage private developers to prepare an affirmative marketing plan. The
affirmative marketing plan shall ensure marketing materials for new developments are

designed to attract renters and buyers of diverse demographics, including persons of any
race, ethnicity, sex, handicap, and familial status.

l5
Page 343

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Green Means Go (Proeram H-34) - The City shall support the SACOG Green Means Go

program by accelerating infill development that reduces vehicle trips.

Land Use Element Update

Along with the Housing Element Update, the City proposes two clean up items associated with
the Folsom General Plan Land Use Element (Attachment 1C) as follows:

1. The City proposes to amend the General Plan land use diagram to correct the East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay shown on the land use diagram to remove residences that
were inadvertently included within the overlay boundary. This area to be removed
from the boundary is located south of Riley Street, between Lembi Drive and Glenn
Drive as shown in the exhibit below.

2. The Folsom 2035 General Plan, adopted in20l8, includes the following policy
to promote the use of renewable and alternative energy in the city:

LU 9.1.10 Renewuble and Alternative Energy Generation Systems.
Require the use of solar, wind, or other on-site renewable energy generation systems

as part of the design of new planned developments.

This policy was intended to require renewable and alternative energy generation

systems in new master planned communities and was not intended to apply to
individual projects processed through a planned development permit. However, due to
the vague language, City staff has had difficulty appropriately implementing this
policy. Additionally, the greenhouse gas analysis in the General Plan did not rely on
any specific reduction in connection with this policy. As such, City staff reviewed the

policy and found that given advances in energy efficiency in California, this policy is
outdated. The 2019 update to the California Building Code included a requirement for
rooftop solar on all residential developments and for major home renovations. In
addition, the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) continues to increase its

EBMU Overlay
endrnent fuea

I6Page 344

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



renewable energy portfolio and provides opportunities for housing projects to meet
their solar requirement by participating in SMUD'S Solar Share program, thereby
reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated with the electrical grid.

Based on the recent advances in energy efficiency described above, City staff
recommended that the General Plan Land Use Element be amended to delete Policy
LU 9.1.10 Renewable and Alternative Energy Generation Systems; however, during
the Planning Commission July 24,202I meeting two commissioners expressed
concerns with deleting the Policy entirely. Furthermore, they recommended that the
Commission not support staff recommendation, especially given the environmental
concerns outlined in the Project's climate resiliency report accompanying the Safety
and Nosie Element Update. Instead, the two commissioners proposed a revision to
the Policy to make solar and other renewable energy generation systems a

"recommendation" for projects where renewable is not required by the California
Building Code. They also expressed support for allowing projects to consider
programs like SMUD Solar Shares in place of on-site generation. Since, the
Commission was not unanimous in their support to reword the Policy, the
Commission directed staff to further review the Policy and present the matter to City
Council for Council's consideration. As such, based on Planning Commission input,
staff prepared the following language to be considered by the City Council to revise
LU Policy 9.1.10:

LU 9.1.10 Renewable and Alternutive Energy Generation Systems.
Encourage Reqaire the use of solar, wind, or other en-site renewable energy
generation systems as part of the design of new planned developments.

The revised language ooencourages", rather than oorequires" renewable energy. In
addition, the revision eliminates the on-site provision to allow projects greater

flexibility to take advantage of other renewable programs, such as SMUD's community
solar program. Finally, the proposed revision removes the word "planned" to eliminate
ambiguity associated with planned development permits. Staff is respectfully seeking
City Council direction with respect to this revision to the Housing Element update.

Safetv and Noise Element Update

Per Senate Bill 1035 (2018), the State now requires that a community's General Plan Safety
Element be reviewed and revised concurrent with each revision to the Housing Element. In
addition, in accordance with SB 379 (2015), General Plan Safety Elements must address

climate change vulnerability, adaptation strategies, and emergency response strategy. Thus, in
conjunction with the Housing Element Update, the City's Consultant was tasked to review and
revise the Folsom General Plan Safety and Noise Element to include new information,
analyses, and policies related to flood, fre hazards, and climate adaptation and resiliency
strategies. The Consultant prepared a Climate Adaptation and Resilience Report (included as

Appendix D in Attachment 1D), which is intended to be included as an appendix to the General
Plan and is considered a background report for the Safety and Noise Element. The report

t7
Page 345

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



serves as a climate change vulnerability assessment, which is intended to inform the
development of adaptation strategies by analyzing the City's exposure to existing hazards,
sensitivity to these hazards, potential climate-related impacts from these hazards, and the
City's existing capacity to prepare and adapt for these impacts. The report is accompanied by
a set of adaptation strategies which are incorporated into the Draft Safety and Noise Element
Update attached hereto in Attachment lD.

The Safety and Noise Element Update includes goals, policies, and implementation programs

to address climate adaptation and resilience and evacuation. Proposed policies and goals are

listed below.

Emergency Preparedness Policy

SN 1.1.5 Climate Change Capacity Assessment - Maintain the City's capacity to
respond to hazards affected by climate change by assessing future increases in the
severity and frequency ofthese events and increase capacity as needed to adequately

respond to future hazard impacts.

Flood Hazards Policy

SN 3.1.6 Climate Change Informed Flood Standards - In coordination with Sacramento

County, update and maintain the City's flood management and development design
standards based on the best available data regarding the increased intensity, duration,
and frequency of future flood events due to climate change.

Wildfire Hazards Policy

SN 4.1.5 Wildfire Smoke Protection - Protect the City's population from the impacts
on indoor and outdoor air quality from wildfire smoke through education and outreach

and updated development standards, focusing on protection of vulnerable populations
including youth and seniors.

Extreme Heat (New Section) Goal

Goal SN7.1: Protect the Citv's critical and citizens from the most severe

effects of extreme heat events with an increased focus on protecting vulnerable
and individuals with

conditions.

Extreme Heat (lr{ew Section) Policies

SN 7.1.1 Upsradine Sensitive Infrastructure - Upgrade existing heat-sensitive
infrastructure in the city to withstand the future intensity and frequency of extreme heat

events and update relevant design standards to ensure future infrastructure can

withstand future extreme heat events.

18
Page 346

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SN 7.1.2 Comprehensive Cool Citv Strategv - Develop and implement a Cool City
Strategy, in coordination with the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District, to reduce the impacts of the Urban Heat Island effect through various measures

including increasing the urban tree canopy and use of cool roofs and cool pavements

as well as increasing green space in the city.

1.3 Heat Sensitive - Implement an education and outreach program
to relevant businesses and institutions such as elderly care facilities and schools to help
protect vulnerable populations from the increasing intensity of extreme heat events.

SN 7.1.4 Climate-Smart Electricity Grid - Work with the Sacramento Municipal Utility
District (SMUD) to promote and help educate residents about SMUD's time-of-day
energy rates and the cost benefits of reducing electricity use during peak demand
periods.

Implementation Element Update

The City is proposing to update the Implementation Element of the General Plan to reflect the
Safety and Noise Element Update (Attachment 1E). Revisions to the Implementation Element
include new implementation programs to address evacuation routes, stormwater and flood
management, wildfire and wildfire smoke protection, and extreme heat. Proposed additional
Safety and Noise Implementation Programs are listed below:

SN-8. Review Evacuation Plan and Routes - Analyzethe capacity, safety, and viability
of the City's evacuation routes under a range of emergency scenarios annually, as part
of the annual review of the City's Emergency Operations Plan.

SN-9. Update Stormwater and Flood Standards - Review and update, as needed, the
City's Design and Procedures Manuals and Improvement Standards to address the
increased intensity, duration, and frequency of future flood events.

SN-10. Conduct Outreach on Wildfire Smoke Protection - Conduct outreach to educate
all residents including wlnerable populations (e.g., youth and seniors) with strategies
to protect themselves and their homes from the increased impacts from wildfire smoke.

SN-11. Upgrade Existing Heat Sensitive Infrastructure - Upgrade existing heat-
sensitive infrastructure (e.g., roadways, bridges) in the city to withstand the future
intensity and frequency of extreme heat events.

SN-12. Update Design Standards - Review and update, as needed, relevant climate-
related design standards (e.g., heating and cooling) and building code requirements to
ensure development can withstand future extreme heat events.

SN-13. Coordinate with Regional Agencies - Coordinate with regional service
providers including Sacramento Municipal Utility District and Sacramento Regional

T9
Page 347

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Transit District to implement infrastructure updates for systems outside the City's
jurisdiction to prepare for climate change impacts (e.g., extreme heat, larger storm
events).

SN-14. Implement a Cool Citv Strategy - Develop and implement a Cool City Strategy,
in coordination with the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, to
reduce the impacts of the Urban Heat Island effect. The strategy shall include various
measures including increasing the urban tree canopy and use of cool roofs and cool
pavements as well as increasing green space in the city.

SN-15. Conduct Educational Outreach on Extreme Heat Events - Implement an
education and outreach program to relevant businesses and institutions such as

residential care facilities and schools to help protect vulnerable populations from the
increasing intensity of extreme heat events.

SN-16. Promote CostBenefits of Reducing Electricitv Use - Workwiththe Sacramento
Municipal Utility District (SMUD) to promote and help educate residents about
SMUD's time-of-day energy rates and the cost benefits of reducing electricity use

during peak demand periods.

In addition, there are several clean-up revisions included in the Implementation Element.
These clean-up items expand the list of Master Plans, Strategies and Programs and include
corrections to the responsible department(s) listed under individual implementation programs
to better reflect City department procedures.

Emnire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment

The City proposes to amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to expand the Regional
Commercial Center (RCC) land use designation to allow for multifamily residential as a
permitted use. This amendment will allow multifamily development on the only RCC site
located within the Specific Plan: a 19.25-acre site (APN 072-1170-113-0000), located at the
southeast corner of the Empire Ranch Road and Iron Point Road intersection. This proposed
amendment to the Specific Plan would be consistent with the City's General Plan and is
proposed in conjunction with the sixth cycle update to the Folsom Housing Element provide
capacity to help meet the Crty's lower income RHNA.

Specific Plan Land Use Designation Amendment

The adopted Specific Plan designates two sites for commercial uses. One site, located in the
northern portion of the plan at the Golf Links and Empire Ranch Road intersection, is
designated for neighborhood-serving commercial and was previously approved for a

conditional use permit to allow multifamily residential development and has been developed
with single-family housing.

20
Page 348

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The second site, located at the southeast corner of the Empire Ranch Road and Iron Point Road

intersection (APN 072-1170-113-0000), is designated for region-serving commercial and

remains vacant. The site totals 19.25 acres; however, a portion of the site is proposed for the

future Empire Ranch Road and U.S. Highway 50 interchange and only approximately 60

percent of the site would be available for development. This is the only site within the Empire

Ranch Specific Plan area that has a Regional Commercial Center designation.

SpeciJic Plan Amendment Site (APN 072-1170-I I3-0000)

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This project does not have an impact on the General Fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Environmental
Impact Report for the Housing Element Update and Related Actions was prepared pursuant to

the Califomia Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code (PRC) $ 21000,

et seq.) and in accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.

As part of its approval of the Comprehensive General Plan Update on August 28, 2018, the

City Council in Resolution No. L0147 certified the Environmental Impact Report (EIR),

adopted Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, and further adopted a

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. The Folsom General Plan EIR is available as

part of the General Plan documents page of the Planning Services webpage at

https://www.folsom.ca.us/government/community-development/planning-services/general-
plas.

As described in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section
15164(a), "the lead agency...shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if some

changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162

2l
Page 349

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred."
Further, Section 15164(d) states, "the decision-making body shall consider the addendum with
the final EIR or adopted negative declaration prior to making a decision on the project."

The City, as the lead agency under CEQA, has determined that, in accordance with Section
15164 of the CEQA Guidelines, the proposed General Plan Amendments and the Empire
Ranch Specific Plan Amendment do not result in significant new or substantially more severe

environmental impacts than those described in the General Plan EIR. An Addendum is

appropriate where a previously certified EIR has been prepared and some changes or revisions

to the project are proposed, or the circumstances surrounding the project have changed, but
none of the changes or revisions would result in significant new or substantially more severe

environmental impacts, consistent with Public Resources Code Section 21166 and CEQA
Guidelines Sections 15162,15164, and 15168.

An Environmental Checklist and Addendum was prepared in accordance with CEQA

Guidelines Section 15164 to evaluate whether the proposed project's effects were adequately

examined in the previous environmental analysis in the General Plan EIR. The Environmental

Checklist and Addendum concluded that no changes associated with the proposed project and

no changed circumstances trigger subsequent or supplemental environmental review. The

Environmental Checklist and Addendum are included hereto in Attachment 1A to this staff
report. In addition, the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, which is applicable to

this project, is available as part of the General Plan documents page of the Planning Services

webpage at:

https://www.folsom.ca.us/government/communitv-development/plannine-services/general-
pbn.

On July 2I,2021, the Planning Commission received a comment letter from 350 Sacramento

on the Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Checklist and Addendum

regarding the transportation analysis related to vehicle miles traveled (VMT). In the letter, 350

Sacramento asserted that the City's proposed CEQA strategy is inappropriate because the

Project is subject to CEQA VMT requirements. 350 Sacramento also maintained that the

City's failure to adopt VMT thresholds confer no legal exemption to address VMT. On July

27, 2021, Ascent Environmental, Inc. prepared a memorandum responding to 350

Sacramento's comment letter. In short, Ascent's memorandum re-asserts that under State

CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, an addendum to the General Plan EIR is appropriate since

updates to the Housing and Safety and Noise Element would not constitute a new project under

CEQA. Furthermore, Ascent points out that while VMT requirements of CEQA were not in
effect at the time of the preparation of the General Plan EIR, the General Plan EIR did disclose

anticipated increases (45.6 percent increase) in VMT from buildout in 2035 of the General

Plan. Ascent further points out that the transportation analysis in the Addendum does evaluate

whether the updates to the Housing Element and Safety and Noise Element would result in a
substantial increase in VMT and concludes that no land use changes through rezoning or

entitlement would create land use changes in land use conditions resulting in a substantial

22
Page 350

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



increase in projected city-wide VMT at buildout. Furthermore, regarding the proposed

amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan, the potential inclusion of residential

development in combination with commercial uses could provide VMT benefits through the

reduction of vehicle miles traveled. In addition to providing justification on the

appropriateness of the Housing Element Update and Related Actions Checklist and

Addendum, the memorandum includes a few recommended minor text revisions to the

Addendum to clarifu the VMT analysis. These recommended revisions have been incorporated

into the Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan

Environmental Impact Report for the Housing Element Update and Related Actions. 350

Sacramento's comment letter and Ascent response memorandum are attached hereto in
Attachment 8.

It is important to note that a separate environmental analysis will be performed when the City
implements Housing Element Program H-2: Create Additional Lower-Income Housing

Capacity. Environmental impacts from future implementation of this program cannot be

determined at this time pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section I5I45. Thus, once the

extent of additional housing is determined, this action will undergo a separate environmental

review process to determine if there are environmental impacts pursuant to CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - ResolutionNo. 10689- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Adopting an Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental
Impact Report for the Housing Element Update and Amending the General

Plan by Adopting Updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety

and Noise Element and Implementation Element
A. Environmental Checklist and Addendum
B. Housing Element Update
C. Land Use Element Update
D. Safety and Noise Element Update and Appendix D: Climate

Adaptation and Resilience Report
E. Implementation Element Update

Attachment 2 - Resolution No. 10690 - A Resolution to Amend the Empire Ranch Specific
Plan to Expand the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) Land Use Designation
to Allow for Multifamily Residential as a Permitted Use in Conjunction with
the Folsom Housing Element Update

Attachment 3 - Summary of Revisions made to the Housing Element after February 9,2021
Attachment 4 - HCD Housing Element Comment Letter and Conditional Approval Letter
Attachment 5 - SHA Housing Element Comment Letters and Responses

Attachment 6 - Compilation of Additional Written Comments on the Draft Housing Element
Attachment 7 - Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District Comment Letter

on the Draft Safety and Noise Element Update
Attachment 8 - 350 Sacramento Comment Letter on the General Plan Environmental Checklist

and Addendum and Ascent Environmental Inc.'s Response Memorandum

23
Page 351

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

24
Page 352

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 1

Resolution No. 10689 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Adopting an Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental

Impact Report for the Housing Element Update and Amending the General Plan by
Adopting Updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety and Noise

Element and Implementation Element

Page 353

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



RESOLUTION NO. 10689

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
ADOPTING AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN FINAL

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE
AND AMENDING THE GENERAL PLAN BY ADOPTING UPDATES TO THE

HOUSING ELEMENT, LAND USB ELEMENT, SAFETY AND NOISE ELEMENT
AND IMPLEMENTATION ELEMENT

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 65300 requires the City adopt a
comprehensive, long-term General Plan for the physical development in the City, and

WHEREAS, the City is updating the2035 General Plan to incorporate a mandatory
Housing Element update for the sixth cycle planning period (May 15, 2021 to May 15, 2029), as

well as related updates to the Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element, and Implementation
Element; and

WHEREAS, the 2021 Housing Element update has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions set forth in Section 65583 of the Government Code regarding the contents of a
Housing Element; and

WHEREAS, an assessment of housing needs and an inventory of resources and constraints
relevant to the meeting of these needs was prepared; and

WHEREAS, a statement of the City's goals, quantified objectives, and policies relative to
the maintenance, preservation, improvement, and development of housing was prepared; and

WHEREAS, a program which sets forth an eight-year schedule of actions that the City is
undertaking or intends to undertake to implement the policies and achieve the goals and
objectives of the Housing Element through the administration of land use and development
controls, provision of regulatory concessions and incentives, and the utilization of appropriate
federal and state financing and subsidy programs was prepared; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the Housing Element update is consistent with the provision of
Government Code Section 65350 et seq. regarding the adoption of a general plan and its
associated elements; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Fiousing Element update has been prepared and processed in
accordance with the provisions of Section 65585 of the Government Code with regards to State
review of the Housing Element update; and

WHEREAS, the City implemented the State's public participation requirements in housing
element law to achieve participation of all economic segments of the community through
extensive and widespread community outreach efforts prior to releasing the draft 2021 Housing
Element update, including stakeholder meetings, community survey, City email blasts, social
media, and a dedicated project webpage; and

Resolution No. 10689
Page 1 of6

Page 354

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



WHEREAS, on December 21 ,2020, the City released the Public Review Draft202l
Housing Element Update for public review and comment: and

WHEREAS, the City held public hearings in the form of study sessions in early 2021 to
solicit feedback on the Draft.2}2l Housing Element Update, and

WHEREAS, on February 11 ,2021, the City submitted the Draft 2021 Housing Element
Update to the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for a 60-
day review period; and

WHEREAS, staff reviewed all written comments submitted by members of the public and
public agencies after the release of the Public Review Draft2}2l Housing Element Update, and
based on comments received, as well as comments from the Planning Commission and City
Council, made appropriate revisions to the Draft2l2l Housing Element Update; and

WHEREAS, HCD provided the City with recommended revisions to the Draft2021
Housing Element Update, and the City staff worked closely with HCD to address all of HCD's
comments and incorporate all of HCD's recommended revisions; and

WHEREAS, on July 16,2021, HCD sent a letter confirming that the proposed update to the
City's Housing Element, as revised, will comply with the State Housing Element law when
adopted by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, once adopted by the City Council, the proposed update to the City's Housing
Element must be submitted to HCD for final approval; and

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the proposed Housing Element update to the Folsom
General Plan, the City is also proposing to amend the Land Use Element of the General Plan and
the Land Use Diagram to corect the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay in the General Plan; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with State law, the City is also updating the Safety and Noise
Element of the General Plan to address climate adaptation and resilience strategies, as well as the
Implementation Element to include new implementation measures to cany out new policies in
the Safety and Noise Element; and

WHEREAS, notice of hearing has been given at the time and in the manner required by
State Law and City Code; and,

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General
Plan Final Environmental Impact Report has been prepared for the Housing Element Update,
Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHERBAS, the Planning Commission on July 24,2021, held a public hearing on the
proposed amendments to the General Plan Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety and
Noise Element, and Implementation Element, considered public comments, and based on the

Resolution No. 10689
Page 2 of 6

Page 355

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



information and analysis plovided recommended that the City Council adopt an Addendum to
the Folsom 2035 General Plan Environmental Impact Report for the 2021 Housing Element
Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission further recommended that the City Council
approve the proposed amendments to the Folsom General Plan including the 2021 Housing
Element update, Land Use Element update, Safety and Noise Element update and
Implementation Element update; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General
Plan Final Environmental Impact Report for the Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch
Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions prior to taking action on the proposed 2021

Housing Element update, Land Use Element Update, Safety and Noise Element Update and
Implementation Element Update.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby approve and adopt the Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental
Impact Reporl for the Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and
Related Actions, as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following updates to the Folsom General Plan
including the 2021 Housing Element update as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto, Land Use
Element update as shown in Exhibit C attached hereto, Safety and Noise Element update as

shown in Exhibit D attached hereto, and Implementation Element update as shown in Exhibit E
attached hereto, are hereby approved with the following findings:

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

THE PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE HOUSING ELEMENT, THE LAND USE
ELEMENT, AND THE SAFETY AND NOISE ELEMENT ARE CONSISTENT WITH
THE FOLSOM GENERAL PLAN, AS AMENDED.

CEOA FINDINGS

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN
ON AUGUST 28, 2018.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT NONE OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES
DESCRIBED IN PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21166 OR CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 15162 GENERALLY REQUIRING THE PREPARATION
OF A SUBSEQUENT EIR EXIST IN THIS CASE.

E. THE CITY HAS PREPARED AN ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL

Resolution No. 10689
Page 3 of 6

A.

B

C

D

Page 356

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F

G

IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN AND HAS
DETERMINED THAT THE PROJECT CREATES NO NEW IMPACTS AND DOES
NOT REQUIRE ANY NEW MITIGATION MEASURES IN ADDITION TO THOSE
IN THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
UPDATES TO THEHOUSING ELEMENT, THE LAND USE ELEMENT, AND THE
SAFETY AND NOISE ELEMENT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL
PLAN, THE ASSOCIATED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING
PROGRAM, AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE PROJECT.

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS CONSIDERED THE ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN
BEFORE MAKING A DECISION ON THE PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE
HOUSING ELEMENT, THE LAND USE ELEMENT, AND THE SAFETY AND
NOISE ELEMENT OF THE FOLSOM GENERAL PLAN.

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS

THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE HAS BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PROVISIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 65583 OF THE GOVERNMENT
CODE REGARDING THE CONTENTS OF A HOUSING ELEMENT:

o AN ASSESSMENT OF HOUSING NEEDS AND AN INVENTORY OF RESOURCES
AND CONSTRAINTS RELEVANT TO THE MEETING OF THESE NEEDS WAS
PREPARED.

o A STATEMENT OF THE CITY'S GOALS, QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES RELATIVE TO THE MAINTENANCE, PRESERVATION,
IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING WAS PREPARED.

tr A PROGRAM WHICH SETS FORTH AN EIGHT-YEAR SCHEDULE OF ACTIONS
THAT THE CITY IS UNDERTAKING OR INTENDS TO UNDERTAKE TO
IMPLEMENT THE POLICIES AND ACHIEVE TFIE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF
THE HOUSING ELEMENT THROUGH THE ADMINISTRATION OF LAND USE
AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROLS, PROVISION OF REGULATORY
CONCESSIONS AND INCENTIVES, AND THE UTILIZATION OF APPROPRIATE
FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCING AND SUBSIDY PROGRAMS WAS
PREPARED.

THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE IDENTIFIES ADEQUATE SITES FOR
HOUSING AND MAKES ADEQUATE PROVISION FOR THE EXISTING AND
PROJECTED NEEDS OF ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE COMMIINITY.

THE PROPOSED HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE
GOALS, POLICIES, AND OB.IECTIVES OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT OF THE

Resolution No. 10689
Page 4 of6

H.

I

J

Page 357

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



L

K

M.

o

Resolution No. '10689

Page 5 of 6

CITY'S GENERAL PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES

ADOPTION OF THE HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE
PROVTSTON OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTTONS 65300 ET SEQ REGARDTNG
THE ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF A GENERAL PLAN AND ITS
ASSOCIATED ELEMENTS.

THE PROPOSED HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE HAS BEEN PREPARED AND
PROCESSED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 65585 OF
THE GOVERNMENT CODE WITH REGARDS TO STATE REVIEW OF THE
HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65585, THE GUIDELINES
ADOPTED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT WERE CONSIDERED WHEN PREPARING THE
2O2I HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE.

THE PROPOSED LAND USE ELEMENT AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH
THE GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF
THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES.

THE PROPOSED SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE HAS BEEN PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 6s302(g) OF
THE GOVERNMENT CODE AND WILL ADDRESS POTENTIAL AND EXISTING
HAZARDS IN THE CITY RELATING TO FLOOD HAZARDS, FIRE HAZARDS,
AND CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCY STRATEGIES.

THE PROPOSED SAFETY ELEMENT UPDATE IS CONSISTENT WITH THE
GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN AND
DEVELOPMENT POLICIES.

THE PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION ELEMENT UPDATE IS CONSISTENT WITH
THE GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN.

THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENTS ARE IN THE PUBLIC
INTEREST.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65352.3, THE CITY
CONTACTED ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES ON THE
CONTACT LIST MAINTAINED BY THE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE
COMMISSION IN ASSOCIATION WITH TFIIS PROJECT. THE CITY DID NOT
RECEIVE ANY REQUESTS FOR CONSULTATION FROM ANY OF TFIE NATIVE
AMERICAN TRIBES DURING THE 9O-DAY RESPONSE WINDOW.

N

P

a

N

o

Page 358

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 24tt' day of August 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Council Members:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10689
Page 6 of 6

Page 359

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT A

Environmental Checklist and Addendum

Page 360

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



W lf () L, lii ()NrICITY OF

OISTINCTIVE BY NATURE

Environmental Checklist and Addendum

Housing Element Update
and Related Actions

Mt

lI
t

202r - 2029

!.

I
It

Updated August 2021

Page 361

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Housing Etement Update and Related Actions

Environmental Checklist and Addendum

Prepared for:

City of Folsom

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Contact:
Scott Johnson, Ptanning Manager

(e16) 461-6206

Prepared by:

Ascent Environmentat, Inc.
455 Capitol Matt, Suite 300

Sacramento, California 9581 4

Contact:
Marianne Lowenthal

916.764.0108

19010177.01

Updated August 2021

Page 362

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Section

1.1 Background and Action Triggering the Addendum..................... .....................1-1

1.2 PreviousEnvironmentalAnalyses... 1-1

1.3 California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Regarding an Addendum to an

Environmental lmpact Report 1-2

2.3 Proposed Housing Element Update... 2-1

2.4 Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment............ .......................2-5

2.7 lmplementation Element Update

3 ENVIRONMENTALCHECKLISTFORSUPPLEMENTALENVIRONMENTALREVIEW.....

3.1 Explanation of Checklist Evaluation Categories.... 3-1

3-23.2 Discussion and Mitigation Sections.

4 ENVIRONMENTAL C 4-1

4.1 Aesthetics 4-1

1

4.3 Air Quality
4.4 Biological Resources

4.7 Geology and Soils

4.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials..

6 REFERENCES

4-5
4-7

...4-13

...4-15

...4-17

...4-19

...4-21

..4-23

..4-28

..4-30

4.11 Land Use and Planning

4.12 Mineral Resources.

4.20 Wildfire.........

4.16 Recreation

4.19 Utilities and Service Systems 4-37

4-39

5 Ltsr oF PREPARERS AND PERSONS CONSU1TED..................... ..............5{

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review
Page 363

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Table of Contents Ascent Environmental

Figures
Figure 2-1

Figure 2-2

Figure 2-3

Tabtes
Table 2-1

Table 2-2

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Site Location .........2-6

Aerial View of Empire Ranch Specific Plan Site..... ...................2-7

City of Folsom Regional Housing Needs A11ocation................. .......................2-4

Estimated Residential Capacity Compared to RHNA by lncome, City of Folsom, June 30, 2021

il

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review
Page 364

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental List of Abbreviations

CEQA

cEc

City

Final EIR

General Plan EIR

LOS

MMRP

OPR

PRC

RHNA

SACOG

SB

SEIR

SMUD

SSHCP

TAC

TDM

US 50

VMT

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

California Environmental Quality Act

California Energy Commission

City of Folsom

Final Environmental lmpact Report

Folsom 2035 General Plan Environmental lmpact Report

level of service

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

Governor's Office of Planning and Research

Public Resources Code

regional housing needs allocation

Sacramento Council of Governments

Senate Bill

subsequent environmental impact report

Sacramento Municipal Utility District

South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan

toxic air contaminants

Transportation Demand Management

US Highway 50

vehicle miles travelled

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review ilt
Page 365

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



List of Abbreviations Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

IV

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review
Page 366

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 BACKGROUND AND ACTION TRIGGERING THE ADDENDUM

The City of Folsom (City) is updating the Folsom 2035 General Plan to incorporate the Housing Element Update for
the sixth cycle planning period (June 30, 2021 through August 31,2029) as well as related updates to the Safety and

Noise Element and Land Use Element. ln addition, the City is amending the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to modify

allowed uses for the land use designation and zoning district related to regional-serving commercial land uses. These

actions are hereinafter referred to as the "project". The Housing Element identifies community housing needs and

goals, policies, and programs to address those housing needs. ln addition, the Housing Element inventories housing

sites suitable to meet the City's regional housing needs allocation (RHNA) identified by the Sacramento Council of
Governments (SACOG) in the SACOG Regional Housing Needs Plan Cycle 6 (2021-2029). To meet the RHNA

identified for lower-income households, the City is proposing to amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow for
residential uses as a permitted use rather than subject to a conditional use permit. ln addition, the Housing Element

includes implementation programs to consider increasing densities in key locations near transit stations, along the
East Bidwell Mixed Use Corridor, and within the Folsom Plan Area Town Center. No specific land use changes to these

locations are being proposed for adoption at this time. ln compliance with State law, updates to the Safety and Noise

Element address climate adaptation and resilience. The City is also proposing updates to the lmplementation Element

to include new implementation programs associated with the proposed updates, and provide corrections to the
responsible department(s) listed within the lmplementation Element to better reflect City department procedures.

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code (PRC) 5 21000, et seq.), the City

certified the Final Environmental lmpact Report (Final EIR) (State Clearinghouse No.2017082054)for the Folsom 2035

General Plan (General Plan EIR) on August 28,2018. The Cityalso adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program (MMRP) and Statement of Overriding Considerations.

As the lead agency under CEQA, the City has prepared this Environmental Checklist/Addendum in accordance with

State CEQA Guidelines Section 15164 to evaluate whether the proposed project's effects were adequately examined in

the previous environmental analysis in the General Plan EIR or whether any changes trigger supplemental or
subsequent review under State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 or'15163. This Environmental Checklist/Addendum

considers whether the environmental conditions that exist today have changed such that new or substantially more

severe environmental impacts would occur compared to that evaluated in the General Plan ElR. As described below,
no changes associated with the proposed project, and no changes in circumstances, trigger subsequent or
supplemental review.

1.2 PREVIOUS ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSES

The environmental process for the General Plan involved the preparation of the following documents that are

relevant to the consideration of the proposed project.

> Draft EIR for the Folsom 2035 General Plan, March 2018;

> Final EIR for the Folsom 2035 General Plan, May 2018;

> CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the Folsom 2035 General Plan, May 2018; and,

> Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Folsom 2035 General Plan, May 2018.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 1-1

Page 367

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lntroduction Ascent Environmental

1.3 CALTFORNTA ENVTRONMENTAL QUALTTY ACT GUTDELTNES

REGARDING AN ADDENDUM TO AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
REPORT

Altered conditions, changes, or additions to the description of a project that occur after certification of an EIR may

require additional analysis under CEQA. The legal principles that guide decisions regarding whether additional
environmental documentation is required are provided in the State CEQA Guidelines, which establish three
mechanisms to address these changes: 1) a subsequent environmental impact report (SEIR), 2) a Supplement to an

ElR, or 3) an Addendum to an ElR.

Section 15162 of the State CEQA Guidelines describes the conditions under which a SEIR would be prepared. ln

summary, when an EIR has been certified for a project, no Subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the
lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in light of the whole record, one or more of the following:

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous EIR due to
the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously
identified significant effects;

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken which will
require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known with the
exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete, shows any of the following:

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR;

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the previous EIR;

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible, and
would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline
to adopt the mitigation measures or alternatives; or

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the previous
EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.

Section 15'163 of the State CEQA Guidelines states that a lead agency may choose to prepare a supplement to an EIR

rather than a Subsequent EIR if:

(1) any of the conditions described above for Section '15'162 would require the preparation of a SEIR; and

(2) only minor additions or changes would be necessary to make the previous EIR adequately apply to the project
in the changed situation.

Under Section15164, an addendum is appropriate where a previously certified EIR has been prepared and some

changes or revisions to the project are proposed, or the circumstances surrounding the project have changed, but
none of the changes or revisions would result in significant new or substantially more severe environmental impacts,

consistent with CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162,15163,15164, and 15168.

Based on the criteria above, the City has determined that an addendum is the appropriate document.

This addendum is intended to evaluate and confirm CEQA compliance for proposed amendments to the Folsom

2035 General Plan, which would be a change relative to what is described and evaluated in the General Plan Final ElR.

This addendum is organized as an environmental checklist and is intended to evaluate all environmental topic areas

for any changes in circumstances or the project description, as compared to the adopted General Plan, and

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review1-2
Page 368

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental lntroduction

determine whether such changes were or were not adequately covered in the certified ElR. This checklist is not the
traditional CEQA Environmental Checklist, per Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines. As explained below, the purpose

of this checklist is to evaluate the checklist categories in terms of any "changed condition" (i.e., changed
circumstances, project changes, or new information of substantial importance) that may result in a different
environmental impact significance conclusion from the General Plan ElR. The column titles of the checklist have been

modified from the Appendix G presentation to help answer the questions to be addressed pursuant to CEQA Section

21166 and CEQA Guidelines Section 15162,15163,15164 and 15168.

A comprehensive update to the CEQA Guidelines has been completed since certification of the General Plan ElR. The

checklist categories follow the updated Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December

28,2018. Some additional questions have been included for potential impacts related to the project.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 1-3
Page 369

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lntroduction Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review1-4
Page 370

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

2.1 PROJECT OVERVIEW

The project proposes to amend the Folsom 2035 General Plan (General Plan) to update the Housing Element, Land

Use Element, and Safety and Noise Element, the lmplementation Element, and amend the Empire Ranch Specific

Plan, as described in further detail below.

2.2 PROJECT LOCATION

The City of Folsom is located in northeastern Sacramento County in California's Sacramento Valley (Figure 2-'l). The

city limits are largely defined by county borders, physical features, and major roads and highways (US Highway 50

(US 50)). Folsom immediately borders the Sacramento/Placer and Sacramento/El Dorado county lines on its northern

and eastern edges. The major natural physical features of the city are Folsom Lake, Folsom Dam, the American River,

and Lake Natoma. Folsom Lake forms most of the northern edge of the city, although the city limits extend into it.
The lake was formed by the damming of the American River, which flows through the city in a scenic canyon and

then, as Lake Natoma, forms part of its western border.

2.3 PROPOSED HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE

The purpose of the Housing Element Update is to update the current Housing Element to plan for future residential

development to meet regional growth objectives and State law (including new State laws passed since adoption of
the current Housing Element). The proposed Housing Element Update would be compliant with Government Code

Section 65583, which identifies the requirements for General Plan Housing Elements. ln summary, Government Code

Section 65583 requires that the Housing Element identify and analyze existing and projected housing needs, as well

as establish goals, policies, and actions to address these housing needs, including adequate provisioning of
affordable and special-needs housing (e.9., housing for agricultural workers, homeless people, seniors, single-parent
households, large families, and persons with disabilities).

The Housing Element Update would address changes that have occurred since adoption of the current Housing

Element. These changes include, among others, updated demographic information, housing needs data, and analysis

of the availability of housing sites. The proposed Housing Element Update identifies available housing sites that could

accommodate the City's RHNA for the 2021-2029 planning period. See Section 2.3.2, Housing Element Resource

lnventory, for a description of the RHNA allocation for the City of Folsom.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 2-1
Page 371

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Description Ascent Environmental

PLACER COUNTY

Auburn
n

ALIFORNI

Loomis

Rocklin

IEDAREA
t.

i,t

) I

i
I
I

t {
,i.tI

.l

I
.{
{:I

,'P' 
*'

i

I

Rosevillej

SUTTER

COUNTY

EL DORADO COUNTY

El Dorado Hills
Folsom

r\o
SIS

Y^...u
jn

t
I

/

-,I.
gi9

s
anre't'td

q

(

"Folsom
Lake

SACRAMENTO COUNTY

Rancho

t
r,J' r\'

I

!

Plac.erville

,'ii

i

ir,'

ESRI Ocean Base
19010177.01 GtS 029

0 5 6
Miles @

)

AMADOR COUNTYElk Grove

Sacramento

lone

6
^+.F

^+@.$1''
co"

sAN JOAQUIN
COUNTY

Jackson

Source: adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020

Figure 2{ Regional Location

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review2-2
Page 372

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Project Description

The Housing Element includes the following components, consistent with the requirement of Government Code
Section 65583:

> A review of the previous element's goals, policies, programs, and objectives to ascertain the effectiveness of each

of these components, as well as the overall effectiveness of the Housing Element.

> An assessment of housing needs, an inventory of resources, and an analysis of constraints related to meeting
these needs.

> An analysis of "at-risk" assisted housing developments that are eligible to change from low-income housing uses

during the next 10 years.

> A statement of community goals, quantified objectives, and policies relative to the preservation, improvement,
and development of housing.

> lmplementation programs which set forth a schedule of actions that the City is undertaking or intends to
undertake, in implementing the policies set forth in the Housing Element to identify and maintain adequate sites

to accommodate the housing needs of all economic segments of the community.

2.3.1 Housing Element Poticy Document
The Housing Element identifies goals and policies to assist the City in meeting its housing needs. The following goals

are included in the Housing Element:

> GOAL H{: Adequate Land Supply for Housing. To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the
development of a range of housing types to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population.

> GOAL H-2: Removing Barriers to the Production of Housing. To minimize governmental constraints on the
development of housing for households of all income levels.

> GOAL H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing. To facilitate affordable housing opportunities to serve the needs of
people at all income levels who live and work in the community.

> GOAL H-4: Neighborhood Preservation and Housing Rehabilitation. To encourage the conservation and
maintenance of the existing housing stock, neighborhoods, and historic homes in Folsom.

> GOAL H-5: Housing for Special Needs Groups. To provide a range of housing services for Folsom residents with
special needs, including seniors, persons with disabilities, single parents, large families, the homeless, and
residents with extremely low incomes.

> GOAL H-5: Equal Opportunity and Fair Housing. To ensure equal housing opportunities for all Folsom residents

regardless race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, familial status,

disability, or source of income.

> GOAL H-7: Residential Energy Conservation and Sustainable Development. To reduce greenhouse gas emissions

and promote energy conservation in residential development.

> GOAL H-8: Administration and lmplementation. To ensure that Housing Element programs are implemented on
a timely basis and progress of each program is monitored and evaluated annually.

The Housing Element Policy Document establishes the City's housing program, which includes goals, policies, and

implementation programs. The City's housing goals are described above. The policies support achievement of the
housing goals. The implementation programs established in the Policy Document are specific steps that the City will

take to address its housing needs. The majority of implementations in the Housing Element commit the City to
continuing to encourage the provision of affordable housing and housing appropriate for special needs groups and to
encourage the maintenance of existing housing. lmplementation programs that would ensure that the City continues to
meet its RHNA are listed below. Additional programs are available for review in the Housing Element. The extent of
potential future density changes under lmplementation Program H-2 would be determined once this program is

initiated and would be evaluated under subsequent environmental review under State CEQA Guidelines Section'15162.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 2-3
Page 373

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Description Ascent Environmental

H-1: Adequate Sites Monitoring. The City shall annually update the vacant and underutilized sites inventory and make

the updated inventory available on the City website. The City shall make findings related to the potential impact on
the City's ability to meet its share of the regional housing need when approving applications to rezone residentially
designated properties or develop a residential site with fewer units or at a higher income than what is assumed for
the site in the Housing Element sites inventory, consistent with "no-net-loss" zoning requirements in Government
Code Section 65863.

H-2: Create Additional Lower-lncome Housing Capacity. The City shall create additional opportunities for high-
density housing to ensure the City maintains adequate capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout the
planning period. The City shall increase maximum allowable densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG

Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District, and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center. The City shall

coordinate with property owners along the East Bidwell Street corridor and within the Transit Priority Areas to identify
and pursue residential development opportunities. The City shall review and revise Policy 4.7 of the Folsom Plan Area

Specific Plan to increase the total number of dwelling units allowed in the Plan Area in order to satisfy the RHNA, as

long as infrastructure needs are met. ln addition, the City shall coordinate with property owners in the Folsom Plan

Area to mitigate for the loss of lower-income housing sites to market rate housing.

After the 2021 Housing Element Update adoption, the City would evaluate specific housing development proposals

based on their compliance with the General Plan, development standards (e.9., zoning), and other City Code
requirements. Adoption of the 2021 Housing Element Update and associated proposed Program HE-2 would be a

policy-level action to allow the City initiate to work on this program but does not commit the City to rezoning of
specific parcels or changes in allowed residential density increases. Thus, environmental impacts from future
implementation of this program cannot be determined at this time pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15145.

Subsequent implementation of proposed Program H-2 would consist of planning activities and coordination with
property owners in determining what parcels are appropriate for rezonin g and/or increases in allowed residential

densities. Once the extent of additional housing is determined, this action would undergo a separate environmental
review process to determine if it would cause environmental impacts pursuant to CEQA.

2.3.2 Housing Etement Resource lnventory
The RHNA quantifies the need for housing in each region statewide and is determined by the California Department
of Housing and Community Development. SACOG is responsible for allocating the RHNA to each city and county in

its region, which includes the City of Folsom. The SACOG Regional Housing Needs Plan for the 2021-2029 planning
period was adopted in March 2020 and provides the RHNA methodology that applies to the project. Folsom's total
RHNA for the 2021-2029 planning period is 6,363 units, allocated to specific income groups as shown in Table 2-'1.

Table 2-1 City of Folsom Regional Housing Needs Allocation

TOTAI RHNA

lrrcome Level

2021-2029 RHNA 6,363

Source: SACOG 2020:ES-3

California Government Code Sections 65583 and 65583.2 require a parcel-specific inventory of appropriately zoned,
available, and suitable sites to provide opportunities for the provision of housing to all income segments within the
community. The sites inventory addresses how the City can meet projected housing needs. While the inventory
analyzes sites available for the construction of new housing at all income levels, particular focus and analysis is done
to identify sites available at the lower income categories. The City's evaluation of adequate sites began with a listing

of individual sites by General Plan designation and zoning. The suitability analysis demonstrated these sites are

currently available and unconstrained to provide development opportunities during the planning period (2021-2029)

To demonstrate the development viability of the sites, the analysis addressed the following:

> vacant sites with zoning that allows for residential development; and

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review

VeryLow
lrrcomelorel

Low

lncome Lerrel

Moderate

lncome Lerrel

Abore Moderate

lrrcome Larel

2,226 1,341 829 1,967

2-4
Page 374

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Project Description

nonvacant, underutilized sites with zoning that allows for residential development and are capable of being

developed at a higher density or with greater intensity.

The sites inventory also includes a projection of the number of accessory dwelling units and multi-generational

housing units expected to be built during the projection period,

f able 2-2 below provides a summary of the current residential holding capacity in the City of Folsom compared to its
share of the regional housing need as assigned in the RHNA. Folsom has a total residentialcapacity (14,430) in excess

of its RHNA for all units (6,363), including the residential capacity to meet the RHNA for each income category. The

City has a surplus capacity of 4,387 units for above moderate-income households and a surplus capacity of 3,189

units for moderate-income households. Folsom also has a surplus capacity of 491 units for lower-income households
(i.e., low- and very low-). This surplus accounts for one parcel within the Empire Ranch Specific Plan discussed below

in Section 2.4. Proposed amendments to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan would allow for the development of 217

units, which are included in the row "Additional Housing Site," shown in Table 2-2.

Table 2-2 Estimated Residential Capacity Compared to RHNA by lncome, City of Folsom, June 30, 2O21to
August 31,2029

TotalUnit

6,363

Planned and Approved Projects 5,429

Estimated Residential Capacity on Vacant and

Underutilized Land
8,420

East Bidwell Mixed Use Corridor Sites 1,236

Transit Priority Area Sites 199

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Sites 6,149

Additional Housing Sites 836

Estimated Residential Capacity of Accessory

Dwelling Units and Multi- Generational Units
581

Residential Capacity 14,430

Surplus

Source: City of Folsom, and Ascent, 2020.

2.4 EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT

The City is proposing to amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow multifamily dwellings at 15-30 units per acre as a

permitted use under the regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and Commercial/ Central Business District (C-

2) zoning. The specific plan currently allows apartment multifamily dwellings with approval of a conditional use permit

under the regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and Commercial/ Central Business District (C-2) zoning.

The regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and Commercial/ Central Business District (C-2) zoning is only

applicable to one parcel (APN 072-1170-113-0000) within the specific plan area (see Figure 2-2 and Figure 2-3). This

parcel encompasses a gross area of 19.25 acres. However, only 60 percent of the parcel is developable resulting in a

net area of 11.5 acres available for development. The specific plan amendment to allow for multifamily housing on the
parcel as a permitted use would provide housing capacity to meet the City's lower-income RHNA for the sixth cycle

planning period. Based on site characteristics and property owner input, the Housing Element Update assumes that
approximately 8 acres of the parcel would be developed as multifami! residential providing housing capacity for 217

dwelling units. The remaining 3.5 developable acres of the parcel are anticipated for commercial development.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review

Very Lo,tr-

lncome Unils

Low- lncome

Unib
Moderate.

lncorne Unib
Above Moderate-

lncome Unib

2,226 1,341

3,567
829 1,967

129 216 1,269 3,815

3,217 2,666 2,537

1,236 0 0

44 10145

1,344 2,615 2,190

492 7 337

496 2

4,018 6,3544,058

491 3,189 4,387

2-5
Page 375

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Proiect Description Ascent Environmental

,j.

I
... \--r. .-J

I

1-*

I

i

\,.
I'i'.

t

19010177.01 GrS 010

'.\:

o 2.eoo 5800 R\F-

I APN:072-1170-113

l-.. j Folsom City Limits

r r r Countyline

Source: data downloaded from City of Folsom in 2020 and Sacramento County in 2018

Figure2-2 Empire Ranch Specific Plan Site Location

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review2-6
Page 376

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Project Descriptlon

I

lpt,rcea

.i

\

l-J APN: 072-1170-113

EjjI: Folsom City Limits

I I County Line

@0
Feet

200 400

ESRI world lmagery
r9010177.01 Gr5 0',11

Source: data downloaded from City of Folsom in 2020 and Sacramento County in 2018

Figure 2-3 AerialView of Empire Ranch Specific Plan Site

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 2-7
Page 377

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Description Ascent Environmental

2.5 LAND USE ELEMENT UPDATE

The City proposes to amend the General Plan land use diagram to correct the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay shown

on the land use diagram to remove residences located south of Riley Street, between Lembi Drive and Glenn Drive,

from the overlay boundary. ln addition, the City also proposes to remove Policy LU 9.1.10 Renewable and Alternative
Energy Generation Systems of the Land Use Element. The policy is considered to be outdated, given advances in

energy efficiency in California including the 2019 California Building Code requirements and local utility district
increases in its renewable energy portfolio.

2.6 SAFETY AND NOISE ELEMENT UPDATE

ln conjunction with the Housing Element Update, and in compliance with State law, the City is also updating the Safety

and Noise Element of the General Plan to address climate adaptation and resilience strategies. This update includes

changes to the noise standard table. ln addition, the City has conducted a climate vulnerability assessment to identify

the effects of climate change in Folsom and assess how these effects impact infrastructure, natural systems, agriculture,

and public health. The Safety and Noise Element Update includes goals, policies, and implementation programs to
address climate adaptation and resilience and evacuation. Proposed policies are listed below.

Emergency Preparedness

> SN 1.'1.5 Climate Change Capacity Assessment

Maintain the City's capacity to respond to hazards affected by climate change by assessing future increases in the

severity and frequency of these events and increase capacity as needed to adequately respond to future hazard

impacts.

Flood Hazards

> SN 3.1.6 Climate Change lnformed Flood Standards

ln coordination with Sacramento County, update and maintain the City's flood management and development
design standards based on the best available data regarding the increased intensity, duration, and frequency of
future flood events due to climate change.

Wildfire Hazards

> SN 4.1.5 Wildfire Smoke Protection

Protect the City's population from the impacts on indoor and outdoor air quality from wildfire smoke through
education and outreach and updated development standards, focusing on protection of vulnerable populations

including youth and seniors.

Extreme Heat

The Safety and Noise Element Update would include a new section and goal, Extreme Heat. One new goal would be

established for Extreme Heat Goal SN7.1, Protect the City's critical infrastructure and citizens from the most severe

effects of extreme heat events with an increased focus on protecting vulnerable populations including youth, seniors,

and individuals with underlying health conditions. Policies proposed for this goal are provided below.

> SN 6.1.1 Upgrading Heat Sensitive lnfrastructure

Upgrade existing heat-sensitive infrastructure in the city to withstand the future intensity and frequency of
extreme heat events and update relevant design standards to ensure future infrastructure can withstand future
extreme heat events.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review2-B
Page 378

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Project Description

> SN 6.1.2 Comprehensive Cool City Strategy

Develop and implement a Cool City Strategy, in coordination with the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District, to reduce the impacts of the Urban Heat lsland effect through various measures including

increasing the urban tree canopy and use of cool roofs and cool pavements as well as increasing green space in

the city.

> SN 6.1.3 Heat Sensitive Populations

lmplement an education and outreach program to relevant businesses and institutions such as elderly care

facilities and schools to help protect vulnerable populations from the increasing intensity of extreme heat events

> SN 6.1.4 Climate-Smart Electricity Grid

Work with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) to promote and help educate residents about

SMUD's time-of-day energy rates and the cost benefits of reducing electricity use during peak demand periods.

2.7 IMPLEMENTATION ELEMENT UPDATE

The City is proposing to update the lmplementation Element of the General Plan to reflect the Safety and Noise

Element Update, discussed above under Section 2.6. The lmplementation Element would be revised to include new

implementation programs to address evacuation routes, stormwater and flood management, wildfire and wildfire

smoke protection, and extreme heat. ln addition, the City would make corrections to the responsible department(s)

listed under the lmplementation Programs to better reflect City department procedures.

2.8 PROJECT APPROVALS

lf approved, the Project would:

> Amend the City's General Plan to update the Housing Element, Safety and Noise Element, and Land Use Element,

including revisions to the General Plan Land Use Diagram;

> Amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow multifamily residential development as a permitted use under the

regional commercial land use designation and commercial/central business district zoning.

After adoption, the updated Housing Element would be submitted to HCD for certification.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 2-9
Page 379

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Description Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review2-10
Page 380

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FOR

SU PPLEMENTAL ENVI RONMENTAL REVI EW

3.1 EXPI-ANATION OF CHECKLIST EVALUATION CATEGORIES

The purpose of this checklist is to evaluate the categories in terms of any "changed condition" (i.e., changed
circumstances, project changes, or new information of substantial importance) that may result in environmental
impact significance conclusions different from those found in the General Plan ElR. The row titles of the checklist

include the full range of environmental topics, as presented in Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines, as updated
December 28, 2018. The column titles of the checklist have been modified from the Appendix G presentation to help

answer the questions to be addressed pursuant to CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162. A
"no" answer does not necessarily mean that there are no potential impacts relative to the environmental category,

but rather that there is no change in the condition or status of the impact because it was previously analyzed and

adequately addressed with mitigation measures in the General Plan ElR. For instance, the environmental categories

might be answered with a "no" in the checklist because the impacts associated with the proposed project were

adequately addressed in the General Plan ElR, and the environmental impact significance conclusions of the General

Plan EIR remain applicable. The purpose of each column of the checklist is described below.

3.1 .1 Where lmpact was Anatyzed
This column provides a cross-reference to the pages of the General Plan EIR where information and analysis may be

found relative to the environmental issue listed under each topic. Unless otherwise specified, all references point to
the General Plan Draft EIR document. Changes to the Draft EIR included in the Final EIR does not affect any

information provided in this document.

3.1 .2 Do Proposed Changes lnvotve New Significant lmpacts?
The significance of the changes proposed by the Housing Element Update and Safety and Noise Element Update, as

it is described in the certified General Plan EIR is indicated in the columns to the right of the environmental issues.

3.1.3 Any New Circumstances lnvotving New or Substantialty More
Severe Significant I mpacts?

Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether there have been changes to
the project site or the vicinity (circumstances under which the project is undertaken) that have occurred subsequent
to the prior environmental documents, which would result in the current project having new significant environmental
impacts that were not considered in the prior environmental documents or having substantial increases in the
severity of previously identified significant impacts.

3.1 .4 Any New lnformation Requiring New Analysis or Verification?
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(3XA-D) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether new information of
substantial importance which was not known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable

diligence at the time the previous environmental documents were certified as complete is available, requiring an

update to the analysis of the previous environmental documents to verify that the environmental conclusions and

mitigation measures remain valid. lf the new information shows that (A) the project will have one or more significant
effects not discussed in the prior environmental documents; or (B) that significant effects previously examined will be

substantially more severe than shown in the prior environmental documents; or (C) that mitigation measures or
alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 3-1
Page 381

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist for Supplemental Environmental Review Ascent Environmental

significant effects or the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the Mitigation Measure or alternative;

or (D) that mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the prior

environmental documents would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the
project proponents decline to adopt the Mitigation Measure or alternative, the question would be answered 'Yes'

requiring the preparation of a subsequent EIR or supplement to the ElR. However, if the additional analysis

completed as part of this Environmental Checklist Review finds that the conclusions of the prior environmental
documents remain the same and no new significant impacts are identified, or identified significant environmental
impacts are not found to be substantially more severe, the question would be answered 'No' and no additional EIR

documentation (supplement to the EIR or subsequent EIR) would be required.

Notably, where the only basis for preparing a subsequent EIR or a supplement to an EIR is a new significant impact or
a substantial increase in the severity of a previously identified impact, the need for the new EIR can be avoided if the
project applicant agrees to one or more mitigation measures that can reduce the significant effect(s) at issue to less

than significant levels.

3.1.5 Do Prior Environmental Documents and Mitigation
Address/ Resotve I mpacts?

This column indicates whether the prior environmental documents and adopted CEQA Findings provide mitigation
measures to address effects in the related impact category. ln some cases, the mitigation measures have already

been implemented. A "yes" response will be provided in either instance. lf "NA" is indicated, this Environmental

Checklist Review concludes that there was no impact, or the impact was less-than-significant and, therefore, no

mitigation measures are needed.

3.2 DISCUSSION AND MITIGATION SECTIONS

3.2.1 Discussion
A discussion of the elements of the checklist is provided under each environmental category to clarifu the answers.

The discussion provides information about the particular environmental issue, how the project relates to the issue,

and the status of any mitigation that may be required or that has already been implemented.

3.2.2 Mitigation Measures
Applicable mitigation measures from the prior environmental review that would apply to the proposed amendment
are listed under each environmental category. New mitigation measures are included, if needed.

3.2.3 Conctusions
A discussion of the conclusion relating to the need for additional environmental documentation is contained in each section

3.2.4 Acronyms Used in Checklist Tabtes
Acronyms used in the Environmental Checklist tables and discussions include:

EIR

EIS

FEI R

MM
NA

Environmental lmpact Report

Environmental I mpact Statement
Final Environmental lmpact Report
Mitigation Measure

not applicable

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review3-2
Page 382

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

4.1 AESTHETICS

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the
General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Neror Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Nar
Analysis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

Address,/Resolve

lmpacf, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Na,'/ or Substrnti,lY
More Severe?

1. Aestretics Would the Project

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic

vista?

b. Substantially damage scenic resources,

including but not limited to, trees, rock

outcroppings, and historic buildings, within a

state scenic highway?

c. ln nonurbanized areas, substantially degrade

the existing visual character or quality of
public views of the site and its sunoundings?

(Public views are those that are experienced

from publicly accessible vantage points.) lf
the project is in an urbanized area, would

the project conflict with applicable zoning

and other regulations governing scenic

quality?

d. Create a new source of substantial light or

glare which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area?

Setting pp. 6-1 to
6-4;

lmpact AES-1

Setting pp. 6-'l and

6'2;

lmpact AES-2

Setting pp. 6-1 to
6-4;

lmpact AES-1

Setting p. 6-4;

lmpact AES-3

No

No

No

No

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

NoNo

No No

4.1.1 Discussion
Since certification of the General Plan ElR, construction of planned development of the Folsom Area Plan Specific Plan

area (south of US 50) has commenced that has altered the visual character of this area. No other new circumstances

or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be significant impacts related to adverse effects on a scenic vista or
scenic charactel damage to scenic resources within a scenic corridor, and new sources of light or glare that would
adversely affect day or nighttime views. The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR

analysis and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure AES-3a: Add New Policy NCR 2.'1.3: Light Pollution Reduction.

> Mitigation Measure AES-3b: Add New lmplementation Program NCR-6: Lighting Design Standards.

The General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035 General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable
impacts on existing scenic vistas and visual character, damage to a scenic corridor, and new skyglow effects.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-1
Page 383

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

The project includes updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element, and
lmplementation Element including revisions to policies and programs, which would not result in physical changes

affecting scenic vistas, visual character, scenic highways, or light and glare. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project

Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to scenic quality, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current
zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards (e.9., Municipal
Code and design review process), entitlement process and the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all relevant
federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to aesthetic resources.

No new significant effect related to aesthetic resources would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than
the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on aesthetic resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-2
Page 384

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.2 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

Environmental lssue Area
Where lmpactWas

Anatyzed in the EIR

Any Nanr Circumstances

lnvoMng Nevtr

Significant lmpacts or
Substantially More

Sarere lmpacts?

Any Na,v

lnformation

Requiring Neur

Analysis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in $e EIR

Address/Resolve

Irpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Ssvere?

2. Agdculture and Forestry Resources. Would the project

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, Setting pp. 7-1 and

or Farmland of Statewide lmportance 7-2;

(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared impact discussed on

pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and pp.7-4 andT-5
Monitoring Program of the California

Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

No No

No

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

No mitigation

measures are available

b. Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural

use, or a Williamson Act contract?

c. Conflict with existing zoning fo1 or cause

rezoning ol forest land (as defined in Public

Resources Code section 12220(g)),

timberland (as defined by Public Resources

Code section 4526), or timberland zoned

Timberland Production (as defined by

Government Code section 5110a(g))?

d. Result in the loss of forest land or

conversion of forest land to non{orest
land?

e. lnvolve other changes in the existing

environment which, due to their location or
nature, could result in conversion of
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or
conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

Setting p.7-2;

impact discussed on

p. 7-5

Setting pp.7-1 and

7-2;

impact discussed on

page 7-5

Setting page 7-5;

impact discussed on

page 7-5

Setting p.7-1;

lmpact AG-1

No

No No

No

No

No

No

4.2.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be no impact related to a conflict with zoning of forest land or the
loss or conversion of forest land; a less-than-significant impact related to the conversion of Farmland and a conflict
with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract; and a significant impact involving other changes

in the environment that, because of their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to nonagricultural
use. No mitigation measures are available to address this significant impact. The General Plan EIR concluded that
buildout of the 2035 General Plan would result in a significant and unavoidable impact involving other changes in the
environmentthat, because of their location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to nonagricultural use.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-3
Page 385

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

The General Flan EIR indicated that there would be less-than-significant impacts related to conversion of Farmland to
other uses, conflicts with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act Contract, and forest land or

timberland.

The project includes revisions to housing policies and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes affecting

agriculture or forestry resources. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy

and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to agricultural and forest resources, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur

under the current zoning district and land use designation.

No new significant effect related to agriculture or forestry resources would occur, and the impact would not be more

severe than the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or

substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on agriculture and forestry resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-4
Page 386

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.3 ArR QUALTTY

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in $e
General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any Neur

lnformation

Requiring Na,v

Analpis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in $e EIR

Addresg/Resofue

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpactsThatWould Be

Nar or Substantially

More Swere?

3. AirQuali$.Wouldtheprcject

a. Conflict with or obstruct Setting p. 8-10 to 8-14;

implementation of the applicable air lmpact AQ-3, p. 8-31 to 8-

quality plan? 32;

b. Result in a cumulatively considerable Setting p. 8-2 to 8-8;

net increase of any criteria pollutant lmpact AQ-1 and AQ-2, p.

for which the project region is non- 8-21 to 8-30; lmpact AQ-4

attainment under an applicable federal p.8-33 to 8-34

or state ambient air quality standard?

c. Expose sensitive receptors to Setting p. 8-5 to 8-8;

substantial pollutant concentrations? lmpact AQ-5, p. 8-34 to 8-

d. Result in other emissions (e.g. those s.ui.gatp. ,-g'
leading to odors) adversely affecting a lmpact AQ-6, p. 8-38 to 8-

substantial number of people? 41

No

No

No

No

Not Applicable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes, impact remains

significant and

unavoidable

Yes, impact remains

significant and

unavoidable

No

No

No

No

4.3.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification that would change the impact conclusions of the General Plan ElR.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less than significant impacts related to consistenry with air quality

plans and increased mobile-source emissions of carbon monoxide. Potentially significant impacts were identified related

to increased operational emissions, increase health risks associated with toxic air contaminants OACs), and increased

exposure to odor emissions.

The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to
subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure AQ-2a: Modify Policy NCR 3.1.5: Emission Reduction Threshold for New Development.

> Mitigation Measure AQ-2b: lmplement Mitigation Measures GHG-l through GHG-17.

> Mitigation Measure AQ-6: Modify Policy NCR 3.1.6: Sensitive Uses.

lmplementation of identified mitigation measures in the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035

General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable impacts related to increased operational emissions, increased

health risks associated with toxic air contaminants, and increased exposure to odor emissions.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting implementation of air quality plans, increases in criteria air pollutants, exposure to pollutant concentrations,

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-5
Page 387

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

or result in in exposure of other emissions, such as odors. Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the
types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to air quality, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current
zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process, compliance with
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District rules and guidance, and the CEQA process to ensure

consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies

related to air quality.

No new significant effect related to air quality would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the
impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to air quality included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-6
Page 388

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpact Was

Analyzed in fie
General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any Now

lnformation

Requiring Na,v

Analysis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nel'r or Substantially

More Severe?

4. Biological Resources. Would the project

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either Setting p.9-5

directly or through habitat modifications, on to 9-20; lmpact BIO-1, p.

any species identified as a candidate, 9-27 to9-34
sensitive, or special status species in local or

regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by

the California Department of Fish and

Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any Setting p. 9-2to9-4.
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural lmpact BIO-2, p. 9-34 to

community identified in local or regional 9-39

plans, policies, and regulations or by the

California Department of Fish and Game or

US Fish and Wildlife Service?

c. Have a substantial adverse effect on state or Setting p. 9-4

federally protected wetlands (including, but lmpact BIO-3, p. 9-39 to
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 9-43

etc.) through direct removal, filling,

hydrological interruption, or other means?

d. lnterfere substantially with the movement of Setting p. 9-3 to 9-4 and

any native resident or migratory fish and 9-11 to 9-19

wildlife species or with established native lmpact BIO-4, p. 9-44 to
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 9-46

impede the use of native wildlife nursery

sites?

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances Setting p. 9-21 to 9-24
protecting biological resources, such as a lmpact p.9-26

tree preservation policy or ordinance.

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted lmpact p. 4-6 and 9-26

Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural

Community Conservation Plan, or other

approved local, regional, or state habitat

conservation plan?

No

No

No

No

No

No

No Not Applicable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

No

No

No Not Applicable

No Not Applicable

No Not Applicable

4.4.1 Discussion

No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-7
Page 389

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less than significant impacts related riparian habitat and natural

communities as well as migratory fish and wildlife. Potentially significant impacts were identified for adverse effects to
special-status species and wetlands.

The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to
subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure BIO-'1: Modify Policy NCR'1.1.'l: Habitat Preservation.

> Mitigation Measure BIO-3: lmplement Mitigation Measure BIO-1.

The General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035 General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable
impacts related to adverse effects to special-status species and wetlands.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting special-status species, riparian or natural communities' habitat, wetlands, migratory fish and wildlife, and

local policies, ordinances, or habitat conservation plans. Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the types

of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to biological resources, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the

current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and the CEQA process

to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan

policies related to biological resources.

No new significant effect related to biological resources would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than

the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to biological resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-B
Page 390

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the

General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Subshntially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any Nev.,

lnformation

Requking Neur

Analpis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacb That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Ssvere?

5. CulturalResources. Would the ptoject

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the Setting p. 10-1 to'10-

significance of a historical resource 2 and p. 10-8 to 10-

pursuant to 515064.5? 16; lmpact CULI, p.

10-19 to 10-22

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the Setting p. 10-7 to

significance of an archaeological resource 10-16; lmpacts CUL-

pursuant to 515064.5? 2, p.10-23 to 10-26

c. Disturb any human remains, including those lmpact CUL-4, p. 10-

intened outside of formal cemeteries? 30 to 10-32

NoNo

No

No mitigation

measures are available

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Not Applicable

No

No No

4.5 .1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less than significant impacts related to disturbance of human

remains. Potentially significant impacts were identified in the General Plan EIR related to adverse changes in the

significance of historical resources and archaeological resources. The following mitigation measures were included in

the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure CUL-2: Add new lmplementation Program NCR 7: Management of lnadvertently Discovered

Cultural Resources

Even after implementation of identified mitigation measures, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035

General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable impacts to historical resources and archaeological resources.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting historical or archaeological resources, or human remains. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project Description,"

which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to cultural resources, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the

current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies

related to cultural resources.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-9
Page 391

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

No new significant effect related to cultural resources would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than

the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on cultural resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-10
Page 392

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.6 ENERGY

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpact Was

Analped in $e
General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any Neur

lnformation

Requiring Ne,v

Anal;sis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in $e EIR

Address,/Resolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nav or Substantially

More Severe?

6. Energy. Would the project

a. Result in potentially significant

environmental impact due to wasteful,

inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of

energy resources, during project

construction or operation?

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local

plan for renewable energy or energy

efficiency?

Setting p. 21-12to12-

15; lmpact ENR{, p.

21-16 to 12-19

Setting p. 12-7 to 12-

8; lmpact GHG-1, p.

12-21 Io 12-34

No

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

4.6.1 Discussion
A comprehensive update to the CEQA Guidelines has been completed since certification of the General Plan ElR.

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December 28,2018, was revised to include Energy

as a category of analysis. At the time of the 2035 General Plan ElR, energy was included in Appendix F of the CEQA

Guidelines and energy-related impacts were addressed under Section 21, "Required CEQA Analyses." This analysis

has been added into the checklist, in response to the 2018 update to the CEQA Guidelines. Because energy was

previously addressed in the ElR, this analysis does not constitute new information of substantial importance under

CEQA Guidelines section 15162.

The 2019 Tille 24 Part 6 Building Energy Efficiency Standards were adopted by the California Energy Commission

(CEC) on May 9, 2018 and took effect on January 1,2020. The standards are designed to move the State closer to its
zero net energy goals for new residential development. lt does so by requiring all new residences to install enough

renewable energy to offset all the site electricity needs of each residential unit (CCR, Title 24, Paft 6, Section

150.1(c)14). CEC estimates that the combination of mandatory on-site renewable energy and prescriptively-required

energy efficiency features will result in new residential construction that uses 53 percent less energy than the 2016

standards. Nonresidential buildings are anticipated to reduce energy consumption by 30 percent compared to the

2016 standards primarily through prescriptive requirements for high-efficacy lighting. The building efficiency

standards are enforced through the local plan check and building permit process. Local government agencies may

adopt and enforce additional energy standards for new buildings as reasonably necessary in response to local

climatologic, geologic, or topographic conditions, provided that these standards are demonstrated to be cost

effective and exceed the energy performance required by Title 24 Part 6.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be potentially significant impacts related to consumption of energy

and conflicts with applicable plans. The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis

and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure ENR-1: lmplement Mitigation Measures GHG-1 through GHG-'17

> Mitigation Measure GHG-1:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-22: Renewable Energy in City-Operated Facilities

> Mitigation Measure GHG-2:Add new Policy PFS 8.1.9 Water Heater Replacement

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-11
Page 393

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

> Mitigation Measure GHG-3: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-23 High-Efficiency or Alternatively-Powered
Water Heater Replacement Program

> Mitigation Measure GHG-4: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-24 Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy

Retrofits and Programs

> Mitigation Measure GHG-5: Modify Policy LU 1.'1.13 Sustainable Building Practices

> Mitigation Measure GHG-6:Add new lmplementation Program LU-6 Encourage Green Building

> Mitigation Measure GHG-7:Add new lmplementation Program LU-7 Encourage Zero Net Energy

> Mitigation Measure GHG-8:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-25 Zero Net Energy Development

> Mitigation Measure GHG-9:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-26 Renewable Diesel

> Mitigation Measure GHG-10:Amend lmplementation Program M-1 Transportation Demand Management

> Mitigation Measure GHG-1'1:Amend lmplementation Program PFS-14 Energy Efficient Fleet

> Mitigation Measure GHG-12: Amend Policy M 1.1.4 Existing Streets Retrofits

> Mitigation Measure GHG-13:Amend lmplementation Program M-8 Bicycle and Pedestrian Funding

> Mitigation Measure GHG-'14:Amend Policy PFS 9.1.3 Recycling Target

> Mitigation Measure GHG-15: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-27 Reduce Water Consumption in New

Development

> Mitigation Measure GHG-16: Add new Policy NCR 3.2.8 GHG Analysis Streamlining for Projects Consistent with
the General Plan

Through implementation of the identified mitigation measures, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the

2035 General Plan would result in less-than-significant impacts related to energy.

The project includes revisions to housing poliry and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element,

Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes affecting energy

resources or conflicts with energy-related plans. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Projecl Description," which summarizes the
types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to energy, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current zoning

district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies

related to energy.

No new significant effect related to energy would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the impact
identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on energy included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Houslng Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-12
Page 394

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.7 GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the
General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvofue

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any No,'r

lnformation

Requiring Ner
Anal;,sis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Na,r or Substantially

More Ssyere?

7. Geology and Soils. Would the project

a. Directly or indirectly cause potential Setting pp. 11-1 to
substantial adverse effects, including the 11-4',

risk of loss, injury, or death involving: lmpact GEO-1

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault,

as delineated on the most recent

Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning

Map issued by the State Geologist for

the area or based on other substantial

evidence of a known fault? (Refer to
California Geological Survey Special

Publication 42.)

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

iii. Seismic-related groundfailure,

including liquefaction?

iv. Landslides?

No

No

No

No

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Yes

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss

of topsoil?

c. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is

unstable, or that would become unstable as

a result of the project, and potentially result

in on-or off-site landslide, lateral spreading,

subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in

Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code

(1994, as updated), creating substantial

direct or indirect risks to life or property?

e. Have soils incapable of adequately

supporting the use of septic tanks or

alternative wastewater disposal systems

where sewers are not available for the

disposal of wastewater?

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique

paleontological resource or site or unique

geologic feature?

Setting pp.11-5 and

11-6;

lmpact GEO-2

Setting pp.11-4 and

11-5;

lmpact GEO-3

Setting p.11-4;

lmpact GEO-3

lmpact discussed on

p.11-11

Setting pp. 10-7 and

10-12;

lmpact CUL-3

No

No

No

No

NoNo

NoNo

4.7.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-13
Page 395

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less-than-significant impacts related to risk of loss, injury, or death
involving rupture of a known earthquake fault, strong seismic around shaking, seismic-related ground failure, or
landslide; substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil; hazards related to unstable or expansive soils; and soils incapable

of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not
available for the disposal of wastewater. The General Plan EIR also indicated that there would be a significant impact
related to damage to or destruction of previously unknown unique paleontological resources during construction-
related activities. The following mitigation measure was included in the General Plan EIR analysis to address the
significant impact on paleontological resources and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure CUL-3:Add new lmplementation Program NCR 8: Management of Paleontological
Resources.

The General Plan EIR concluded that the impact on paleontological resources under the 2035 General Plan would be

reduced to less than significant with implementation of Mitigation Measure CUL-3.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element,

Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes affecting geology

or soils. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Projecl Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes

contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to geology and soils, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the
current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards under the
Municipal Code (e.9., grading requirements and City Standard Construction Specifications), entitlement process and

the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant

City General Plan policies related to geology and soils.

No new significant effect related to geology or soils would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the
impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on geology and soils included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-14
Page 396

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.8 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpact Was

Analyzed in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Narv or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Nav
Analysis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in fte EIR

Address,/Resolve

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Se/ere?

8.

a.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions. Would the project

Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either

directly or indirectly, that may have a

significant impact on the environment?

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or

regulation adopted for the purpose of
reducing the emissions of greenhouse

gases?

Setting p. 12-2 to
12-4;

lmpact GHG-1, p. 12-

21 to 12-33; lmpact

GHG-2, p. 12-33 to
12-38.

Setting p. 12-6 to
'12-10; lmpact GHG-

1, p.12-21 to 12-33.

No

No

No

No

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Yes

4.8.1 Discussion
Senate Bill (SB) 743 changes the way that public agencies evaluate the transportation impacts of projects under CEQA.

The proposed revisions to the State CEQA Guidelines would establish new criteria for determining the significance of a

project's transportation impacts that will more appropriately balance the needs of congestion management with
statewide goals related to infill development, promotion of public health through active transportation, and reduction of
GHGs. ln 2018, the State CEQA Guidelines were updated to reflect analysis of vehicle miles travelled (VMT) rather than
congestion when considering transportation impacts. The Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR) provided

updated guidance for how to consider VMT impacts in December 2018. Section 4.lT,Transportation, below, provides

more information related to this guidance.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be potentially significant impacts related to conflicts with an

applicable plan, policy or regulation governing greenhouse gas emissions, as well as generation of greenhouse gas.

The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to
subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure GHG-1: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-22: Renewable Energy in City-Operated
Facilities

> Mitigation Measure GHG-2:Add new Policy PFS 8.1.9 Water Heater Replacement

> Mitigation Measure GHG-3: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-23 High-Efficiency or Alternatively-Powered
Water Heater Replacement Program

> Mitigation Measure GHG-4: Add new lmplementation Program PFS-24 Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy

Retrofits and Programs

> Mitigation Measure GHG-5: Modify Policy LU 1.1.'13 Sustainable Building Practices

> Mitigation Measure GHG-6:Add new lmplementation Program LU-6 Encourage Green Building

> Mitigation Measure GHG-7: Add new lmplementation Program LU-7 Encourage Zero Net Energy

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-15
Page 397

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

> Mitigation Measure GHG-8:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-25 Zero Net Energy Development

> Mitigation Measure GHG-9:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-26 Renewable Diesel

> Mitigation Measure GHG-10: Amend lmplementation Program M-'1 Transportation Demand Management

> Mitigation Measure GHG-11:Amend lmplementation Program PFS-'I4 Energy Efficient Fleet

> Mitigation Measure GHG-12:Amend Policy M 1.'1.4 Existing Streets Retrofits

> Mitigation Measure GHG-13: Amend lmplementation Program M-8 Bicycle and Pedestrian Funding

> Mitigation Measure GHG-14: Amend Policy PFS 9.1.3 Recycling Target

> Mitigation Measure GHG-15:Add new lmplementation Program PFS-27 Reduce Water Consumption in New

Development

> Mitigation Measure GHG-16: Add new Policy NCR 3.2.8 GHG Analysis Streamlining for Projects Consistent with

the General Plan

> Mitigation Measure GHG-'17: Modify Policy NCR 3.2.5 Climate Change Assessment and Monitoring.

Even after implementation of the identified mitigation measures, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the
2035 General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable impacts related to greenhouse gasses.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting GHG generation or conflicts with applicable plan, policy or regulations related to reducing GHG emissions.

Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes

contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to greenhouse gas emissions, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under
the current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to GHGs

that would include the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Strategy (Appendix A of the General Plan).

No new significant effect related to GHGs would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the impact
identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on GHGs included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-16
Page 398

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.9 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
'\^ATERIALS

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analped in fte
General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any Narr

lnformation

Requiring Ner
Analysis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

Address/Resolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Ser,rcre?

9. Hazards and Hazardous Materials. Would the project

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or
the environment through the routine

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous

materials?

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or
the environment through reasonably

foreseeable upset and accident conditions

involving the release of hazardous materials

into the environment?

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle

hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,

substances, or waste within one-quarter

mile of an existing or proposed school?

d. Be located on a site which is included on a

list of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section

65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a

significant hazard to the public or the

environment?

e. For a project located within an airport land

use plan or, where such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a public

airport or public use airport, would the
project result in a safety hazard or excessive

noise for people residing or working in the
project area?

f. lmpair implementation of or physically

interfere with an adopted emergency

response plan or emergency evacuation

plan?

S. Expose people or structures, either directly

or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss,

injury or death involving wildland fires?

lmpacts HZ-1 and

HZ-z

Setting p.13-1 to 13-5;

lmpacts HZ-1 and

H7-2

Setting p.13-1 to 13-5;

lmpact HZ-4

Setting pp. 13-1 to
13-4;

lmpact HZ-3

Setting p.13-9;

lmpacts discussed on

page 13-17

lmpacts discussed on

page17-47

Setting pp.13-5,13-7

to 13-9;

lmpact HZ-5

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

No Not applicable

Not applicable

No

No

No

No

No

4.9.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

Yes

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-17
Page 399

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be no impact related to airports and less-than-significant impacts

related to creating a significant hazard through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials;

creating a significant hazard through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of
hazardous materials into the environment; emitting hazardous emissions or handling hazardous or acutely hazardous

materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school; and being located on a site

included on a list of hazardous materials sites and, as a result, creating a significant hazard to the public or the
environment. The General Plan EIR also indicated that there would be a significant impact related to exposing people

or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires. ln addition, the 2035 General Plan

contains policies that will avoid impacts to emergency access. The following mitigation measure was included in the
General Plan EIR analysis to address the significant impact related to wildland fires and would continue to apply to
su bsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure HZ-5: Add new Policy SN 4.1.4: Wildland Fire Risk Reduction.

The General Plan EIR concluded that the impact related to wildland fires under the 2035 General Plan would be reduced
to less than significant with implementation of Mitigation Measure HZ-5.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use Element,

Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes affecting hazards to
the public or the environment related to exposure to hazardous materials or sites; location of a project near an airport
or exposure to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Prolecl

Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional-serving commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning,
rather than under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site

would occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to hazards and hazardous materials, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could
occur under the current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and the CEQA process

to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan

policies related to hazards and hazardous materials.

No new significant effect related to hazards and hazardous materials would occur, and the impact would not be more
severe than the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials included in the General Plan EIR

remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-18
Page 400

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.10 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALIW

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in he
General Plan ElR.

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacls?

Any Norr

lnformation

Requiring Netr
Anal;,sis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Noar or Substantially

More Serere?

10. l-lydrology and Water Quality. Would the Project

a. Violate any water quality standards or waste Setting pp. 14-4 and

discharge requirements or otherwise 14-5;

substantially degrade surface or lmpacts HWQ-1

groundwater quality?

b. Substantially decrease groundwater Setting pp. 14-4 to
supplies or interfere substantially with 14-5;

groundwater recharge such that the project impact discussed on
may impede sustainable groundwater pagel4-14
management of the basin?

c. Substantially alter the existing drainage Setting pp. 14-1 to
pattern ofthe site or area, including through 14-3;

the alteration of the course of a stream or lmpacts HWQ-2,
river or through the addition of impervious HWe-3, HWe-4 and
surfaces, in a manner which would: HWe-5
i. Result in substantial erosion or siltation

on- or off-site;

ii. Substantially increase the rate or

amount of surface runoff in a manner

which would result in flooding on- or

off-site;
iii. Create or contribute runoff water which

would exceed the capacity of existing

or planned storm water drainage

systems or provide substantial

additional sources of polluted runoff; or
iv. impede or redirect flood flows?

d. ln flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones,

risk release of pollutants due to project

inundation?

No

NoNo

No

No

No

No

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable for
lmpact HWQ-2

Yes for lmpacts

HWQ-3, HWQ-4, and

HWQ-5

Not applicable

e.

Setting pp.14-6 and

14-7;

impact discussed on

page 14-14

Not addressed, no

impact

NA

No

No

No

Conflict with or obstruct implementation of
a water quality control plan or sustainable

groundwater management plan?

4.10.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new
analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less-than-significant impacts related to violations of water quality

standards or waste discharge requirements or other substantial degradation of surface water or groundwater quality;

substantial decreases in groundwater supplies or substantial interference with groundwater recharge such that

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-19
Page 401

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

sustainable groundwater management of the basin would be impeded; substantial alteration of the drainage pattern

of the site or area in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; and in flood hazard,
tsunami, or seiche zones, risk of release of pollutants related to project inundation.

The General Plan EIR also indicated that there would be significant impacts related to substantial alteration of the
drainage pattern of the site or area in a manner that would result in a substantial increase in the rate or amount of
surface runoff in a manner that would result in flooding on- or off-site, create or contribute runoff water that would

exceed the capacity of existing or planned storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of
polluted runoff, and impede or redirect flood flows. The following mitigation measures were included in the General

Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure HWQ-3a: Modify Policy SN 3.1.1: 100-Year Floodway.

> Mitigation Measure HWQ-3b: Modifi Policy SN 3.1.4: Flood Control Costs.

> Mitigation Measure HWQ-3c: Modify City of Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 14.32.

> Mitigation Measure HWQ-4: lmplement Mitigation Measure HWQ-3a, HWQ-3b, and HWQ 3c.

> Mitigation Measure HWQ-5: lmplement Mitigation Measure HWQ-3a, HWQ-3b, and HWQ 3c.

The General Plan EIR concluded that all three of these significant hydrology and water quality impacts under the 2035

General Plan would be reduced to less than significant with implementation of Mitigation Measures HWQ-3a, HWQ-

3b, HWQ-3c, HWQ-4, and HWQ-5.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes that
would lead to violations of any water quality standard or waste discharge requirements or other degradation of water
quality; a substantial decrease in groundwater supplies or substantial interference with groundwater recharge; a

substantial alteration in the drainage pattern of the site or area in a manner that would result in substantial erosion or
siltation on- or off-site, a substantial increase in the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner that would result in

flooding on- or off-site, creation or contribution of runoff water that would exceed the capacity of existing or planned

storm water drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff, or the impeding or
redirecting of flood flows; or, in flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, the risk that pollutants would be released

because of project inundation. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy

and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to hydrology and water quality, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur
under the current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards (Municipal Code

and Standard Construction Specifications), entitlement process, and the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all

relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to hydrology
and water quality.

No new significant effect related to hydrology and water quality would occur, and the impact would not be more
severe than the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on hydrology and water quality included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-20
Page 402

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.11 LAND USE AND PLANNING

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the

General Plan ElR.

Do Any Nevr

Circumstances lnvolve

Neur or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any Neur

lnformation

Requiring No,v

Analpis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

Address/Resolve

Irpacb, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Se/ere?

No

No

a.

11.

b. Create a significant environmental impact

due to a conflict with any land use plan,

policy, or regulation adopted for the

purpose of avoiding or mitigating an

environmental effect?

land Use and Planning. Would the project

Physically divide an established community? Setting p. 4-1lo 4-4;

lmpact discussion p.

4-5

No Not Applicable

Not Applicable

4.11.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR states that the 2035 General Plan has been designed as a cohesive plan that builds upon
existing neighborhoods and previously approved development. Because the majority of new development in existing
neighborhoods would occur within existing subdivisions or other approved project areas, or within the existing vacant
area south of Highway 50, implementation of the 2035 General Plan would not physically divide an existing

established community. Additionally, the City of Folsom is not a participating party in the South Sacramento Habitat
Conservation Plan (SSHCP), and all areas of the city are outside of the SSHCP coverage boundaries. Except for
Planning Areas'1 (Easton/Glenborough) and 2 (south of White Rock Road), which both remain in Sacramento County
and would be subject to the SSHCP, no other Habitat Conservation Plans or Natural Community Conservation Plans

have been adopted or are in process within the area covered by the 2035 General Plan.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting division of an established community or conflicts with any land use plans. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project

Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to land use and planning, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the
current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards (Municipal Code),

entitlement process, and CEQA to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with
all relevant City General Plan policies related to land use.

Setting p. 4-2Io 4-4;

lmpact discussion p.

4-6

No

City of Folsom

Houslng Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-21
Page 403

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

No new significant effect related to land use would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the impact
identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on land use included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-22
Page 404

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.12 MINERAL RESOURCES

Environmental lsue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any Nevtt

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Se/ere

Significant lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Neur

Analysis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation Measures in

the El R Address/Resolve

lmpacts, lncluding lmpacts

That Would Be New or

Substantially More Severe?

12. Mineral Resources. Would the Project

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known

mineral resource that would be of value to
the region and the residents of the state?

b. Result in the loss of availability of a locally-

important mineral resource recovery site

delineated on a local general plan, specific

plan or other land use plan?

Setting p.11-6;

lmpact GEO-4

Setting p.11-6;

lmpact GEO-4

No

No

No No mitigation measures

are available

No mitigation measures

are available

No

4.12.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new
analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be a significant impact related to the loss of availability of a locally
important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan. No
mitigation measures are available to address this impact. Therefore, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of
the 2035 General Plan would result in a significant and unavoidable impact related to the loss of availability of a

locally important mineral resource recovery site.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use
Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not
result in physical changes affecting the availability of mineral resources. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project
Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional-serving commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning,
rather than under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site
would occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to mineral resources, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the
current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards (Municipal Code),
entitlement process and the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and
consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to mineral resources.

No new significant effect related to mineral resources would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than
the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been
identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,
the conclusions regarding impacts on mineral resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-23
Page 405

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

4.13 NO|SE

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpact Was

Analyzed in fte
General Plan ElR.

Do Any Neur

Circumstances lnvolve

New or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any Na,v

lnformation

Requiring Narr

Analpis or
Verifiotion?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

Address/Resolve

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Newor Substantially

More Serere?

13. Noise. Would the project resuft in:

a. Generation of a substantial temporary or
permanent increase in ambient noise levels

in the vicinity of the project in excess of
standards established in the local general

plan or noise ordinance, or applicable

standards of other agencies?

b. Generation of excessive groundborne

vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Setting p.15-1 to
15-19, p. 15-21 to

15-25

lmpacts N-1 and N-

2, p. 15-37 to 15-43

No

No

No

No

No

No

Yes, but impact

remains significant and

unavoidable

Not applicable

Yesc.

Setting p.15-1 to
1s-19

lmpact discussion

lmpact N-4, p. 15-

46to 15-47

For a project located within the vicinity of a Setting p. 15-11 to
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or 15-13; lmpact

where such a plan has not been adopted, discussion p.15-36

within two miles of a public airport or public and lmpact N-3, p.

use airport, would the project expose 15-Mto15-45
people residing or working in the project

area to excessive noise levels?

4.13.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new
analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less than significant impacts related to temporary increases in
ambient noise levels, as well as noise and vibration. Potentially significant impacts were identified in the General Plan

EIR related to permanent increases in ambient noise levels and exposure to adverse levels of aircraft noise. The

following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to apply to
subseq uent development:

> Mitigation Measure N-'l:Add lmplementation Program SN-1:Adopt a Noise Reduction Program

> Mitigation Measure N-3: lssue disclosure statements

Even after implementation of identified mitigation measures, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035
General Plan would result in significant and unavoidable impacts related to permanent increases in ambient noise
levels. lmpacts related to vibration would be less than significant.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes
affecting ambient noise levels, adverse levels of aircraft noise, or noise and vibration. Please refer to Chapter 2,

"Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-24
Page 406

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to noise, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current zoning
district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's noise standards, entitlement process, and

CEQA to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General

Plan policies related to noise and vibration.

No new significant effect related to noise and vibration would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than
the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to noise and vibration included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-25
Page 407

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

4.14 POPULATION AND HOUSING

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analped in the
General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Nalr or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring New

Anal;,sis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Se/ere?

14. Population and Housing. Would the Prcject

a. lnduce substantial unplanned population Setting p. 4-6 to 4-8

growth in an area, either directly (for example, lmpact discussion p. 4-

by proposing new homes and businesses) or 14lo 4-17

indirectly (for example, through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)?

b. Displace substantial numbers of existing Setting p. 4-8lo 4-11;

people or housing, necessitating the lmpact discussion p. 4-

construction of replacement housing 17

elsewhere?

No

No

No

No

NA

NA

4.14.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that implementation of the 2035 General Plan would not result in the displacement of
substantial numbers of persons or housing. The General Plan EIR also indicated there would be no growth-inducing

impacts related to the 2035 General Plan.

The purpose of the Housing Element Update is to identify and analyze existing and projected housing needs, as well as

establish goals, policies, and actions to address these housing needs, including adequate provisioning of affordable and

special-needs (e.g., agricultural workers, homeless people, seniors, single-parent households, large families, and persons

with disabilities) housing. lt would not remove housing or otherwise displace substantial numbers of people or homes.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development would occur beyond

what was addressed in the General Plan ElR.

SACOG produces housing projections for the cities and counties in the Sacramento region, including the city of Folsom.

Based on SACOG's most recent projections, released in 2019, the number of housing units in the City is projected to
grow from 27,550 in 2016 to 38,010 in 2040 (with a 1.35 percent annual growth rate). The population increase and

development potential associated with the project would be included within the relevant estimates and SACOG

projections and thus generally consistent with City and regional growth assumptions. Because the project would not

propose new homes or businesses, or extend roads or other infrastructure, it would not induce substantial growth. ln

addition, no people or housing would be displaced due to the project, and thus no replacement housing necessary.

No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified

EIR/ElS remain valid and no further analysis is required.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-26
Page 408

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial

importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the General Plan EIR

remain valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to
population and housing.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-27
Page 409

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

4.15 PUBLIC SERVICES

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Newor Substantially

More Ss/ere Significant

lmpacts?

AnyNew
lnformation

Requiring Nar
Analy,sis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in he EIR

Address/Resolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Ss/ere?

15.

a.

Public Services.

Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered

governmental facilities, need for new or physicallyaltered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant

environmental impacts, to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for any public services:

L Fire protection? Setting pp. 16-1 to No No Not applicable
.16_3;

lmpact PSR-1

ii. Police protection? Setting pp. 16-2 to No No Not applicable

16-4;

lmpact PSR-1

iii. Schools? Setting pp. 16-4 to No No Not applicable

16-7;

lmpact PSR{

Not addressed, no

impact

See below in Section 4.16, "Recreation"

No No Not applicable

4.15.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be a less-than-significant impact related to providing new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other performance objectives for fire protection, police

protection, and schools. No mitigation is required for these impacts.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project

Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to public services, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current

zoning district and land use designation.

iv. Parks?

ii. Other Government Facility?

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-28
Page 410

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's development standards, entitlement
process, and the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with

all relevant County General Plan policies related to public services.

No new significant effect related to public services would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the

impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on public services included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-29
Page 411

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

4.16 RECREATION

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analped in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Neur or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Now

Analysis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in fte EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpactsThatWould Be

Neur or SuHantially
More Swere?

15. Recreation.

a. Would the project increase the use of
existing neighborhood or regional parks or

other recreational facilities such that

substantial physical deterioration of the

facility would occur or be accelerated?

b. Does the project include recreational

facilities or require the construction or
expansion of recreational facilities which

might have an adverse physical effect on

the environment?

Setting pp, 16-7 to
16-17;

lmpact PSR-2

Setting pp. 16-7 to
16-17;

lmpacts PSR-'1,

PSR-3, and PSR-4

No No Not applicable

Not applicable for
lmpacts P5R-1 and

PSR-3

No No

Yes for lmpact P5R-4

4.16.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less-than-significant impacts related to the physical deterioration
of neighborhood or regional parks or other recreational facilities as a result of increased use and related to possible

adverse physical effects on the environment associated with constructing or expanding City of Folsom recreational

facilities. The General Plan EIR also indicated that there would be a significant impact related to possible adverse
physical effects on the environment associated with constructing or expanding State and regional recreational

facilities. The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and would continue to
apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4a: Modify Policy LU 1.1.10: Network of Open Space.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4b: Modify Goal LU 5.'1.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4c: Modify Policy LU 5.1.1: River District Overlay.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4d: Modify Policy LU 5.1.2: Vision for the River District.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4e: Modify Policy LU 5.1.3: River District Master Plan.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4f: Modify Policy LU 5.1.4: Enhance Lake Natoma with Compatible Recreation Uses.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-49 Modify Policy PR 4.1.1: Coordination with State and County Parks.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4h: Modify Policy PR 4.1.3: County, State, and Federal Cooperation.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4i: Modiff Policy PR 4.'1.5: Waterway Recreation and Access.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4j: Modify the 2035 General Plan Land Use Diagram - Transit Priority Areas.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4k: Modifr7 the 2035 General Plan Land Use Diagram - River District.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4,30
Page 412

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

> Mitigation Measure PSR-41: Modify the General Plan Land Use Diagram - Planning Area 1.

> Mitigation Measure PSR-4m: Modify the 2035 General Plan Land Use Diagram - Planning Area 2.

The General Plan EIR concluded that the impact related to possible adverse physical effects on the environment

associated with constructing or expanding State and regional recreational facilities under the 2035 General Plan would

be reduced to less than significant with implementation of these mitigation measures.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes related

to the use, construction, or expansion of neighborhood or regional parks or other recreational facilities. Please refer

to Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this

update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to recreation, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current

zoning district and land use designation, where residential development is currently allowed with the Conditional Use

Permit.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's park dedication requirements and

associated fees, entitlement process, and the CEQA process to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State

policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to recreation.

No new significant effect related to recreation would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the
impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or

substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts on recreation included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-31
Page 413

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

4.17 TRANSPORTATION

Environmental lsue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the
General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Nar or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any Neur

lnformation

Requiring Nal
Analpis or

Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

Address/Resolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nerar or Substantially

More Sea/ere?

17. Transportatiory'Iraffic Would the project

a. Conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or lmpact discussed on p.

policy addressing the circulation system, 17-47 lo17-48

including transit, roadway, bicycle and

pedestrian facilities?

b. Would the project conflict or be Setting p, 17-311o17-

inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 28 - 8-29. VMT

15064.3, subdivision (b)? estimates p. 17-38

c. Substantially increase hazards due to a lmpact discussed on p.

geometric design feature (e.9., sharp cuwes 17-47 to17-48

or dangerous intersections) or incompatible

uses (e.9., farm equipment)?

d. Result in inadequate emergency access? lmpact discussed on p.

17-47 to17-48

No Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

4.17.1 Discussion

The General Plan EIR used automobile delay or level of service (LOS) as the primary metric to evaluate the project's

CEQA transportation impacts, consistent with industry standards and the City General Plan goals and policies at

the time.

On September27,2013, GovernorJerry Brown signed Senate Bill (SB)743 (Steinberg)into lawand started a process

to change transportation impact analysis as part of CEQA compliance. SB 743 directed the California Office of
Planning and Research (OPR") to revise the CEQA Guidelines to modify the criteria for determining the significance

of transportation impacts to promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the development of multimodal

transportation newvorks, and a diversity of land uses. Section 15064.3 of the State CEQA Guidelines, adopted in

December 2018, provides that vehicle miles traveled UMT) is the "most appropriate measure of transportation

impacts" and mandates analysis of VMT impacts effective luly 1,2020. LOS, or other measures of automobile delay,

are no longer considered significant environmental impacts under CEQA. (Pub. Res. Code, 5 21099(bX2).)

As provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15007, "amendments to the guidelines apply prospectively only," and CEQA

documents must meet the "content requirements in effect when the document was set out for public review," and

"shall not need to be revised to conform to any new content requirements in guideline amendments taking effect

before the document is finally approved." (CEQA Guidelines, Section 15007(c)). An assessment of the change in VMT

under existing and 2035 conditions was disclosed as part of the General Plan ElR. This assessment determined that

implementation of the General Plan would result in a net increase in total VMT of approximately 45.6 percent as

compared to existing conditions (from 2,001,884 miles to 2,915,651 miles - General Plan Draft EIR Table 17-14).

However, a VMT impact analysis consistent with the requirements of PRC Section 2'1099, and State CEQA Guidelines

Section 15064.3 was not conducted because it was not required under CEQA at the time; and thus, no significance

conclusion related to VMT was provided in the General Plan ElR.

The use of VMT as the primary metric for analyzing transportation impacts was not common in CEQA documents at

the time of certification of the General Plan ElR. However, the effects of VMT on the environment as it relates to GHG

emissions, multimodal transportati on netrrvorks, and land use development patterns were known at the time the

No

No

No

No

No

NoNo

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-32
Page 414

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

General Plan EIR was prepared; and thus, could have been evaluated in the transportation chapter of the EIR at that

time. Therefore, the evaluation provided below does not constitute "new information" as defined in State CEQA

Guidelines Section 15162. The analysis provided below does consider whether the project could result in a substantial

increase in severity of city-wide total VMT anticipated under the General Plan at buildout (2,915,651 miles).

As directed by Section 15007, the General Plan EIR does not need to be revised to conform to the new VMT

requirements. ln addition, the change in law (replacement of the LOS standard with VMT) does not constitute new

significant information under CEQA (PRC 2'1166 or CEQA Guidelines 15162) as it does not constitute a new impact

caused by the changes proposed in the project.

For these reasons, this section provides the environmental and regulatory setting related to VMT, as well as new

analysis of the VMT generated by the project. LOS may be reviewed by the City as part of development review and

mitigation measures identified in the General Plan EIR related to LOS may be required by the City as a condition of
approval. However, because LOS is no longer considered an appropriate metric for analyzing transportation impacts

on the environment, analysis and mitigation measures related to LOS are not included in this discussion. Additionally,

as part of the 2018 updates to the CEQA Guidelines the analysis of safety as it relates air traffic patterns and facilities

was removed from Section XVll. Transportation in Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines. Therefore,

transportation impacts related to a change in air traffic patterns or facilities are not included in this discussion.

The General Plan EIR includes lmplementation Program M-14. Vehicle Miles Travelled Thresholds to be addressed in

the updated Mobility Element of the 2035 General Plan., The City of Folsom will do the following as set forth in 2035

General Plan:

> Anticipate the need to establish VMT thresholds for CEQA analysis within two years after OPR's guidelines are

fully adopted

> Retain an LOS policy in the General Plan and continue to conduct an LOS analysis as part of its review of
development projects

> Conduct an LOS analysis of its roadway system and a general analysis of changes in VMT as part of the

environmental documents prepared to assess the effects of a future Mobility Element Update

At the time of preparation of this document, the City of Folsom has not developed VMT thresholds.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less-than-significant impacts related to hazards due to a design

feature or incompatible uses; the provision of emergency access; and conflicts with adopted policies, plans, or
programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, and the performance or safety of such facilities.

As discussed above, the General Plan EIR provided an analysis of LOS to evaluate transportation and circulation

impacts. The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be a significant impact related to traffic LOS on local

intersections and on US 50. The following mitigation measures were included in the General Plan EIR analysis and

would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure T-1: lmplement all feasible improvements identified in Table 17-20 al impacted intersections.

> Mitigation Measure T-2: lmplement Mitigation Measures GHG-'10, GHG-12, and GHG-13.

> Mitigation Measure T-3: lmplement the new interchanges and improvements along US Highway 50.

The General Plan EIR concluded that the impacts related to traffic LOS on local intersection and on US 50 would

remain significant and unavoidable with implementation of these mitigation measures.

As noted above, the CEQA Guidelines did not include a VMT threshold at the time that the General Plan EIR was

prepared. Regardless, the General Plan EIR does address the implications of SB 743 and OPR's recommendation to
consider VMT as the preferred metric for transportation impact analysis. ln addition, the General Plan EIR notes that

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-33
Page 415

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

the Mobility Element of the 2035 General Plan requires the City of Folsom to establish VMT thresholds for CEQA

analysis within two years after OPR's guidelines are fully adopted (lmplementation Program M-14).

The General Plan EIR indicated that total VMT within the City would increase through implementation of the General

Plan but did not attempt to discuss the significance of an impact in terms of VMT. However, the General Plan EIR

states that Mitigation Measure T-2: lmplement Mitigation Measures GHG-10, GHG-12, and GHG-I3 would result in

new policies and regulations for reducing VMT and encourage non-automobile modes of travel. Specifically,

Mitigation Measure GHG-l0 requires adoption of a citywide Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program

designed to achieve an overall 15 percent VMT reduction over 2014 levels and a 20 percent reduction in City-

employee commute VMT; Mitigation Measures GHG-12 supports bicycle and pedestrian facility improvements within

existing streets and intersection; and, Mitigation Measure GHG-13 requires bicycle and pedestrian improvements as

conditions of approval for new development on roadways and intersections with the City of Folsom.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in changes affecting

transportation such that hazards due to a design feature or incompatible use, inadequate emergency access, or
conflicts with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system would occur. Please refer to
Chapter 2, "Prolect Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this

update.

The proposed updates to the Housing Element and Safety and Noise Element would not include land use changes

through rezoning or entitle development that would create changes in land use conditions resulting in a substantial

increase in projected city-wide total VMT at buildout identified in the General Plan ElR. The project would amend the

Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the regional commercial land use

designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than under a conditional use permit

(see Figure 2-2). No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would occur beyond what

was addressed in the General Plan EIR that would substantially alter city-wide VMT anticipated under the General

Plan at buildout (2,915,651miles). The potential inclusion of residential development in combination with commercial

uses could provide VMT benefits on this site through the reduction of vehicle trip lengths between residential and

retail uses. Development would be consistent with regulations pertaining to transportation, and impacts would be of
similar type and severity as what could occur under the current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies

related to transportation.

No new significant effect related to transportation would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the

impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or

substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to transportation included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-34
Page 416

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.18 TRIBAL CULTUML RESOURCES

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the
General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Na,rr or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Neur

Analysis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in fie EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Noar or Substantially

More Swere?

18. Tribal Cultural Resources.

a. Would the project cause a substantial Setting p.181 to 18-4

adverse change in the significance of a lmpact TCR-1, p. 18-6

tribal cultural resource, defined in Public to 18-8

Resources Code section 21074 as either a

site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is

geographically defined in terms of the size

and scope of the landscape, sacred place,

or object with cultural vali.re to a California

Native American tribe, and that is:

(i) Listed or eligible for listing in the California

Register of Historical Resources, or in the local

register of historical resources as defined in

Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k), or

(ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in

its discretion and supported by substantial

evidence, to be significant pursuant to

criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public

Resources Code Section 5024.1. ln applying

the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of
Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the

lead agency shall consider the significance

of the resource to a California Native

American tribe.

No No Yes, but impaci

remains significant

and unavoidable

4.18.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

Potentially significant impacts were identified in the General Plan EIR related to tribal cultural resources. No available

mitigation measures were identified to reduce potentially significant impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Therefore, the General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 2035 General Plan would result in significant and

unavoidable impacts related to tribal cultural resources.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting tribal cultural resources. Please refer to the Project Description, which summarizes the types of policy and

program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-35
Page 417

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to tribal cultural resources, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under

the current zoning district and land use designation. No additional consultation under AB 52 is required for an

addendum to an ElR.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies related to tribal

cultural resources.

No new significant effect related to transportation would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the

impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to tribal cultural resources included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-36
Page 418

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.19 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpact Was

Analyzed in $e
General Plan ElR.

Do Any Nortr

Circumstances lnvolve

Nar or Substantially

More Swere Significant

lmpacts?

Any Neur

lnformation

Requiring Na,v

Anal;ais or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacts, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Nar or Substantially

More Swere?

18.

a.

tttilities and SeMce Systems. Would the Project

Require or result in the relocation or

construction of new or expanded water,

wastewater treatment or storm water

drainage, electric power, natural gas, or

telecommunications facilities, the

construction or relocation of which could

cause significant environmental effects?

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to
serve the project and reasonably

foreseeable future development during

normal, dry and multiple dry years?

Setting p.19-1 to 19-

25

lmpact USS-2, p.19-35

to'19-37; lmpact USS-

3, p. 19-37 to19-39;

lmpact USS-4, p.19-40

to19-42; lmpact USS-

6, p. 19-45 to 19-46

Setting p. 19-10 to'19-

23; lmpact USS{ p.

19-33 to 19-34;

lmpact USS-4, p. 19-

40 to 19-42

No

No

No

No

No Not Applicable

No Not Applicable

No Not Applicable

No Not Applicable

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater

treatment provider which serves or may

serve the project that it has adequate

capacity to serve the project's projected

demand in addition to the provider's

existing commitments?

d. Generate solid waste in excess of State or

local standards, or in excess ofthe capacity

of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair

the attainment of solid waste reduction

goals?

e. Comply with federal, state, and local

statutes and regulations related to solid

waste?

Setting p. 19-3 to 19-

10; lmpact USS-3 p,

'19-37 to 19-39

Setting p. 19-23 to19-
25;

lmpact USS-S, p. 19-

43to19-44

Setting p.19-27

lmpact USS-S, p.19-

43to19-M

No No Not Applicable

4.19.1 Discussion

No new circumstances or project changes have occurred nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR indicated that there would be less than significant impacts related to wastewater treatment, new

or expanded utility infrastructure, wastewater generation, water supply, solid waste generation, and demand for utility
services.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting construction of new utility infrastructure, water supply, wastewater treatment capacity, generation of solid

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-37
Page 419

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

waste, or compliance with solid waste regulations. Please refer to Chapter 2, "Project Description," which summarizes

the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the

regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than

under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations
pertaining to utilities and service systems, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur

under the current zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects will continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and CEQA to ensure

consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan policies

related to utilities.

There is no new significant effect, and the impact is not more severe than the impact identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial

importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the General Plan EIR

remain valid and approval of project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to
utilities and services systems.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-38
Page 420

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.20 WILDFIRE

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Analyzed in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Na,v or Substantially

More Severe Significant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Near

Anal;ris or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Meazures in the EIR

Address/Resolve

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpacts That Would Be

Neur or Substantially

More Ss/ere?

19. Wildfire. lf located in or near state rcsponsibilig areas or lands dassified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the
project

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency Not addressed/No No No Not applicable

response plan or emergency evacuation lmpact

plan?

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other Not addressed/No No No Not applicable

factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and lmpact

thereby expose project occupants to,

pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or

the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

c. Require the installation or maintenance of Not addressed/No No No Not applicable

associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel lmpact

breaks, emergency water sources, power

lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate

fire risk or that may result in temporary or
ongoing impacts to the environment?

4.20.1 Discussion
No new circumstances or project changes have occurred, nor has any new information been found requiring new

analysis or verification.

IMPACT DISCUSSION

The General Plan EIR discusses wildfire in the "Hazards and Hazardous Materials" section. lt does not specifically

address the criteria listed in the table above; however, it does indicate that there would be a significant impact related

to exposing people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires. The following
mitigation measure was included in the General Plan EIR analysis to address the significant impact related to wildland

fires and would continue to apply to subsequent development:

> Mitigation Measure HZ-5:Add new Policy SN 4.1.4:Wildland Fire Risk Reduction.

The General Plan EIR concluded that the impact related to wildland fires under the 2035 General Plan would be reduced

to less than significant with implementation of Mitigation Measure HZ-5.

The project includes revisions to housing policy and programs and updates to the Housing Element, Land Use

Element, Safety and Noise Element, and lmplementation Element, which would not result in physical changes

affecting exposure to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving wildland fires. Please refer to Chapter 2,

'Project Description," which summarizes the types of policy and program changes contemplated in this update.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow residential development as a permitted use in the
regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than
under a conditional use permit. No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would

occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan ElR. Development would be consistent with regulations

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-39
Page 421

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental

pertaining to wildfire, and impacts would be of similar type and severity as what could occur under the current

zoning district and land use designation.

Future housing projects would continue to be reviewed through the City's entitlement process and the CEQA process

to ensure consistency with all relevant federal and State policies and consistency with all relevant City General Plan

policies related to wildfire.

No new significant effect related to wildfire would occur, and the impact would not be more severe than the impact

identified in the General Plan ElR.

CONCLUSION

No substantial changes in circumstances have occurred, nor has any new information of substantial importance been

identified requiring new analysis or verification. ln addition, approval of the project would not result in new or
substantially more severe environmental impacts, compared to those discussed in the General Plan ElR. Therefore,

the conclusions regarding impacts related to wildfire included in the General Plan EIR remain valid.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-40
Page 422

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist

4.21 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Environmental lssue Area

Where lmpactWas

Anallzed in the

General Plan EIR

Do Any New

Circumstances lnvolve

Neur or SuHantially
More Se/ere Signifcant

lmpacts?

Any New

lnformation

Requiring Nenr

Analpis or
Verification?

Do Mitigation

Measures in the EIR

AddresVResolve

lmpacb, lncluding

lmpacts lhat Would Be

Nerr or Suhantially
More Sg,lere?

20. Mandatory Findings of Significance.

a. Does the project have the potential to
substantially degrade the quality of the

environment, substantially reduce the

habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a

fish or wildlife population to drop below

self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate

a plant or animal community, substantially

reduce the number or restrict the range of

an endangered, rare or threatened species

or eliminate important examples of the

major periods of California history or

prehistory?

b. Does the project have impacts that are

individually limited, but cumulatively

considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable"

means that the incremental effects of a

project are considerable when view in

connection with the effects of past projects,

the effects of other cunent projects, and

the effects of probable future projects)?

c. Does the project have environmental effects

which will cause substantial adverse effects

on human beings, either directly or

indirectly?

Chapter 9, Chapter 10,

and Chapter 18

Page 21-1 to 21-11

Chapter 6 through

Chapter 19

No

No

No

Yes, discussed

throughout

environmental

checklist

No

Yes, discussed

throughout

environmental

checklist

Yes

Yes

Yes

CONCLUSION

All approved mitigation in the EIR would continue to be implemented with the proposed project. Therefore, no new

significant impacts would occur with implementation of the project.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 4-41
Page 423

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental Checklist Asceni Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review4-42
Page 424

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



5 LIST OF PREPARERS AND PERSONS CONSULTED

5.1 LIST OF PREPARERS

Ascent EnvironmentaI

Kirsten Burrows

Cori Resha

Jim Merk...

Environmental Planner

Environmental Planner

Environmental Planner

Environmental PlannerZachary Miller

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review
Page 425

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



List of Preparers and Persons Consulted Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review5-2 Page 426

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



6 REFERENCES

City of Folsom. 2018 (March).2035 General Plan Updote Draft Environmentol lmpact Report. Available:

https://www.folsom.ca.us/government/community-development/planning-services/general-plan. Accessed:

April2021.

Sacramento Area Council of Governments. 2020 (March). SACOG Regional Housing Needs PIon Cycle 6 (2021-2029).

SACOG. See Sacramento Area Council of Governments,

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review 6-1
Page 427

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



References Ascent Environmental

This page intentionally left blank.

City of Folsom

Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Review6-2
Page 428

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT B

Housing Element Update

Page 429

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



HOUSTNG I s

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-1Page 430

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
203 5

GENERAL PLAN Em=ru
This poge is intentionally left blonk.

5-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 431

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Introduction

HOUSTNG I s

The Housing Element is a mandated element of the General Plan and must address the

existing and projected housing needs of all economic segments of the community. The

purpose of the housing element is to identiry the community's housing needs; state the

community's goals and objectives with regard to housing production, rehabilitation, and

conservation to meet those needs; and define the policies and programs that the City

will implement to achieve the stated goals and objectives. The element consists of two

documents: the Background Report and the Policy Document. The Background Report

(see Appendix C of the Folsom 2035 General Plan) is designed to meet housing element

requirements and to provide the background information and analysis to support the

goals, policies, programs, and quantified objectives in the Policy Document.

This Housing Element Policy Document includes eight goal statements. Under each goal

statement, the element sets out policies that amplify the goal statement.

lmplementation programs are listed at the end and briefly describe the proposed

action, the City agencies or departments with primary responsibility for carrying out the

program, and the time frame for accomplishing the program. Several of the

implementation programs also have quantified objectives listed.

The following definitions describe the nature of the statements of goals, policies,

implementation programs, and quantified objectives as they are used in the Housing

Element Policy Document:

o Goal: Ultimate purpose of an effort stated in a way that is general in nature and

immeasurable.
o Policy: Specific statement guiding action and implying clear commitment.
o lmplementation Program: An action, procedure, program, or technique that

carries out policy. lmplementation programs also specify primary responsibility for

carrying out the action and an estimated timeframe for its accomplishment. The

timeframe indicates the calendar year in which the activity is scheduled to be

completed. These timeframes are estimates, and not mandatory deadlines, except

as expressly required by law. They provide general guidelines and may be adjusted

based on City staffing and budgetary considerations.
o Quantified Objective: The number of housing units that the City expects to be

constructed, conserved, or rehabilitated or the number of households the City

expects will be assisted through Housing Element programs and based on

anticipated market conditions during the eight-year timeframe of the Housing

Element (May 15, 2O2t,to May 15, 2029).

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-3Page 432

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



]ti.(O) jI, s (0N4t
" 2Q35'

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Goals and Policies
Goal H-t: A.dequate Land Supply for
Housing

God H-l
To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the development of a range of
housing types to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population. [Source:

City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-71

Policy H-1.1 Sufficient Land for Housing

The City shall ensure that sufficient land is designated and zoned

in a range of residential densities to accommodate the City's

regional share of housing, [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, Goal H-1, Policy H-1.11

Policy H-1.2 Location of Higher-Density Housing Sites

The City shall endeavor to designate future sites for higher-density

housing near transit stops, commercial services, employment

centers, and schools, where appropriate and feasible. [Source: City

of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-1, Policy H-1.2 (modified)l

Policy H-1.3 Multi-family Housing Densities

The City shall encourage home builders to develop their projects

on multi-family-designated land at the high end of the applicable

density range. fSource: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element,

GoolH-7, Policy H-1.31

Policy H-1.4 Lower-lncome Housing Replacement Sites

The City shall mitigate the loss of lower-income housing sites within

the Folsom Plan Area by securing voluntary agreements with the

landowners to find replacement sites as market-rate housing is

developed on sites identified in the lower-income sites inventory.

[Source: New policy]

Policy H-1.5 Accessory Dwelling Units

The City shall encourage the development of accessory dwelling

units on single-family parcels. [Source: City of Folsom 2073

Housing Element, Goql H-1, Policy H-1.4 /modified//

Policy H-l.6 Planned Development Permit

The City shall use the planned development permit process to

allow and encourage the development of small and irregular

shaped parcels for residential development. [Source: City of
Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-7, Policy H-7.51

5-4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 433

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Policy H-1.7 Small Lot Development

The City shall revise its zoning code to establish a new zone for
small lot development with standards allowing higher density,

greater lot coverage, reduced setbacks, and tandem parking, in

order to encourage a variety of housing types and to promote more

affordable home ownership opportunities. fSource: City of Folsom

2013 Housing Element, GoalH-1, Policy H-1.7 (modified)l

Policy H-1.8 Large Lot Subdivisions

The City shall work with property owners to help facilitate and

expedite lot splits to subdivide large parcels into developable

sites, consistent with allowed densities. [Source: New policy]

Policy H-1.9 Mixed-Use and Transit-Oriented Development

The City shall create additional opportunities for mixed-use and

transit-oriented development. /Source; City of Folsom 2013

Housing Element, Gool H-7, Policy H-1.8 (modified)l

Goal H-2: Removing Barriers to the
Production of Housing

GoaI H-z
To minimize governmental constraints on the development of housing for households

of all income levels. /Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-21

Policy H-2.1 Permit Processing and Review Times

The City shall continually strive to shorten permit processing and

review times to the greatest extent possible and will consider

allowing concurrent processing for affordable housing projects.

[Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Elemenl GoalH-2, Policy H-2.7]

Policy H-2.2 lmpact Fees

The City shall strive to ensure that its current development

impact fee structure does not unnecessarily constrain production

of residential development. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Gool H-2, Policy H-2.21

Policy H-2.3 Fee Deferrals/Waivers for Affordable Housing

The City shall continue to provide fee deferrals and consider fee

waivers of City-controlled residential impact fees to developers of
qualified affordable housing projects consistent with the provisions

of Chapter 16.60 of the Folsom Municipal Code. fSource: City of
Folsom 2013 Housing Element, Gool H-2, Policy H-2.3 (modified)I

HOUSTNG I s

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-5Page 434

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}r-sONlt
2A3s

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Policy H-2.4 Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-Generational Housing

The City shall provide incentives to encourage the construction of

accessory dwelling units and multi-generational housing units.

[Source: New policy]

Policy H-2.5 Objective Standards

The City shall endeavor through its development and design

standards and decision making to provide consistent and

predictable policy direction based on objective standards for

multi-family residential project applicants. [Source: City of Folsom

2073 Housing Element, Goal H-2, Policy H-2.4 (modified)l

Policy H-2.5 lncrease Community Awareness about Affordable Housing

The City shall raise community awareness on the needs for and

benefits of affordable housing. [Source: City of Folsom 207j
Housing Element, Gool H-2, Policy H-2.7 (modified)l

Goal H-3: facilitating Affordable
Housing

GoaIH€
To facilitate affordable housing opportunities to serve the needs of people at all

income levels who live and work in the community. [Source: City of Folsom 2073

Housing Element, Goal H-jl

Policy H-3.1 Funding for Affordable Housing

The City shall continue to use Federal and State subsidies, as well

as inclusionary housing in-lieu fees, affordable housing impact

fees on non-residential development, and other fees collected

into the City's Housing Fund in a cost-efficient manner to meet

the needs of lower-income households, including extremely low-

income households. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, Gool H-3, Policy H-3.21

Policy H-3.2 lnclusionary Housing

The City shall continue to require inclusionary housing on all new

for-sale units. The City may also consider inclusionary housing as

a community benefit for non-City-initiated General Plan and/or

Specific Plan amendments that result in rental housing. [Source:

New policyl

Non-Residential Affordable Housing lmpact Fee

The City shall continue to adjust the non-residential affordable

housing impact fee for inflation. The funds generated shall

continue to be used for the development of affordable

multifamily rental housing. [Source: New policy]

5-6

Policy H-3.3

Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 435

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Policy H-3.4

Policy H-3.5

Policy H-3.6 Density Bonus

Surplus Public Land

The City shall facilitate the development of affordable housing on

City-owned surplus land if the property is determined to be

appropriate for residential development by providing first right

of refusal to affordable housing developers in accordance with

Government Code Section 54222. As appropriate, the City will

explore opportunities to coordinate with the State in identifying

state-owned surplus land sites within the City that would be

suitable for future affordable housing development. [Source:

New policyl

Repurpose Non-Residential Buildings

The City shall consider the repurposing of existing lodging,

commercial, and industrial buildings appropriate for affordable

housing. [Source: New policy]

HOUSTNG I s

The City shall continue to make density bonuses available to

affordable and senior housing projects, consistent with State law

and Title 17 of the Folsom Municipal Code. [Source: City of Folsom

2073 Housing Element, Goal H-3, Policy H-3.31

The City shall allow housing developments with at least 20 percent

affordable housing by-right, consistent with objective design

standards, on lower-income housing sites that have been counted

in previous housing element cycles, consistent with AB 1397.

[Source: New policy]

PolicyH-3.8 DevelopmentAgreements

Where appropriate, the City shall use development agreements

to assist housing developers in complying with City affordable

housing goals. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element,

GoolH-3, Policy H-3.41

Policy H-3.9 lncentives for Affordable Housing

The City shall make incentives available to property owners with

existing development agreements to encourage the development

of affordable housing. fSource: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Goal H-3, Policy H-3.51

Policy H-3.10 Housing Choice Vouchers

The City shall support SHRA efforts to maintain at least the

existing level of HUD Housing Choice Vouchers assistance

available to extremely low-, very low-, and low-income residents

of the City of Folsom. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Goal H-3, Policy H-3.61

Policy H-3.7 By-right Housing on Previously ldentified Housing Sites

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 s-7Page 436

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ilr()il,FJ(}N4t
2035

GENERAL PLAN ETM=ru
Goal H-4: Neighborhood Preservation
and Housing Rehabilitation

GodH4
To encourage the conservation and maintenance ofthe existing housing stock,

neighborhoods, and historic homes in Folsom. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Godl H4l

Policy H-4.1 Rehabilitation through Code Enforcement

The City shall seek, through code enforcement, the private

rehabilitation of substandard dwelling units and provide financial

assistance when available to owners of dwelling units occupied by

low-income households. ln applying this policy, the City shall seek

to avoid the displacement of low-income households. [Source: City

of Folsom 2013 Housing Element, Gool H-4, Policy H-4.21

Policy H-4.2 Preserve Residences of Historic or Architectural Value

The City shall encourage the preservation of residential buildings

with historic or architectural value. [Source: City of Folsom 2013

Housing Element,6oal H-4, Policy H-4.31

Policy H-4.3 CDBG Funding for Rehabilitation

The City shall assign housing rehabilitation and maintenance

efforts of higher priority in the use of Community Development

Block Grant (CDBG) funds or other housing funds for the purpose

of rehabilitating the City's existing housing stock. fSource: City of
Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-4, Policy H-4.41

Policy H-4.4 Housing Conditions Survey

The City shall periodically survey housing conditions to maintain

a current database on housing repair needs. [Source: City of
Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-4, Policy H-4.81

Policy H-4.5 Non-Conforming Units

The City shall allow non-conforming dwelling units to be

rehabilitated as long as the rehabilitated dwelling unit meets the

Zoning Code requirements for non-conforming structures with no

expansion or increase in the non-conformity, except as granted

with approval of a variance. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, Gool H-4, Policy H-4.9 (modified)l

Policy H-4.6 Notice of Market Rate Conversion

The City shall require at least three years notice prior to the

conversion of any deed-restricted affordable rental units to

market rate in any of the following circumstances:

5-8 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 437

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The units were constructed with the aid of government

funding; and/or

The project was granted a density bonus.

Such notice will be given, at a minimum, to the City, the California

Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), and

the residents of at-risk units. lSource: City of Folsom 2073

Housing Element, Goal H-4, Policy H-4.101

Goal H-sr Housing for Special Needs
Groups

GodH-s
To provide a range of housing services for Folsom residents with special needs,

including seniors, persons with disabilities, single parents, large families, the homeless,

and residents with extremely low incomes. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Gool H-51

Policy H-5.1 Affordable Housing for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities

The City shall strive to ensure adequate and affordable housing

for seniors and persons with disabilities, particularly in areas near

public transportation, shopping, medical, and other essential

services and facilities. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, Goal H-5, Policy H-5.1 (modified)I

Policy H-5.2 Support Service for Seniors

The City shall encourage community service and support

activities that increase the ability of seniors to remain in their
homes. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-5,

Policy H-5.31

Policy H-5.3 Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities

The City shall encourage private efforts to remove physical

barriers and improve accessibility for housing units and

residential neighborhoods to meet the needs of persons with

disabilities. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal

H-5, Policy H-5.41

PolicyH-5.4 ReasonableAccommodation

The City shall continue to implement a reasonable

accommodation process to address, on a case-by-case basis, the

retrofitting of existing housing to make it accessible to persons

with disabilities. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing Element,

GoolH-5, Policy H-5.51

a

a

HOUSTNG I s

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 5-9Page 438

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOI,S()M
203 5

GENERAL PLAN ffim=ru
Policy H-5.5 Efforts to Address Homelessness

The City shall work with private organizations and other public

agencies, such as Sacramento Steps Forward, HART of Folsom,

and Powerhouse Ministries to coordinate regional efforts to

address homelessness. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Goal H-5, Policy H-5.61

Policy H-5.5 Zoning for Emergency Shelters

The City shall continue to provide zoning to accommodate

facilities to serve City residents in need of emergency shelter.

[Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Elemenl Gool H-5, Policy H-

5.7 (modified)l

Policy H-5.7 Programs for Homelessness

The City shall work to increase access to programs that address

long-term solutions to homelessness, including drug addiction

and mental health services, health clinics, career centers, and

permanent housing, as funds are made available from local, State

and Federal sources. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, Gool H-5, Policy H-5.8 (modified)l

Policy H-5.8 Rental Housing for Large Families

The City shall encourage the development of three- and four-

bedroom units in multi-family rental housing to encourage the

provision of adequate rental housing for large families. [Source:

City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-5, Policy H-5.9

(modified)I

Policy H-5.9 Permanent Supportive Housing

The City shall encourage the development of permanent supportive

housing for extremely low-income residents and persons with

disabilities. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Elemenl Gool H-5,

Policy H-5.72 (modified)I

s-10 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 439

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Goal H-6: Equal Opportunity and Fair
Housing

GoaI II-6
To ensure equal housing opportunities for all Folsom residents regardless race, color,

religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, ancestry, familial

status, disability, or source of income. ISource: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element,

GoalH-61

Policy H-6.1 Fair Housing Choice

The City shall promote housing opportunities for all persons

regardless of race, color, ancestry, religion, national origin, sex,

sexual orientation, age, disability/medical condition, familial

status, marital status, source of income, or other barriers that
prevent housing choice. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Goal H-6, Policy H-6.1 (modified)l

Policy H-6.2 Enforcement of Fair Housing Laws

The City shall assist in the enforcement of fair housing laws by

providing information and referrals to organizations that can

receive and investigate fair housing allegations, monitor

compliance with fair housing laws, and refer possible violations to

enforcing agencies. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element,

GoalH-6, Policy H-6.21

Policy H-6.3 Balance of Housing Types

The City shall encourage residential projects affordable to a mix of

household incomes and disperse affordable housing projects

throughout the city, including the Folsom Plan Area, to achieve a

balance of housing in all neighborhoods and communities. [Source:

City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-3, Policy H-3.71

Policy H-6.4 lnfill Opportunities in Single-family neighborhoods

The City shall increase access to opportunity for lower-income

households by encouraging infill of smaller units in single-family

neighborhoods (e.9., ADUs, multigenerational housing units).

[Source: New policy]

HOUSTNG I s

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 5-11Page 440

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



tr"OlLgOnfl
2035

GENERAL PLAN mm=6
Goal H-Z: Residential Energy
Gonservation and Sustainable
Development

GodH-?
To reduce greenhouse gas emissions and promote energy conservation in residential

development. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-7]

Policy H-7.1 lncrease Energy Efficiency

The City shall promote an increase in the energy efficiency of new

and existing housing beyond minimum state requirements. /Sourcel

City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-7, Policy H-7.41

Policy H-7.2 Smart Growth

The City shall encourage "smart growth" that accommodates higher-

density residential uses neartransit, bicycle-, and pedestrian-friendly

areas of the city that encourage and facilitate the conservation of

resources by reducing the need for automobile use. [Source: City of
Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-7, Policy H-7.61

Goal H-8: Administration and
fmplementation

GoaIH-8
To ensure that Housing Element programs are implemented on a timely basis and

progress of each program is monitored and evaluated annually. [Source: City of Folsom

2073 Housing Element, GoolH-81

Policy H-8.1 lmplementation

The City shall work to improve the implementation of Housing

Element programs by designating staff to coordinate housing-

related programs and to conduct annual monitoring of housing

programs and producing the Housing Element Annual Progress

Report to the California Department of Housing and Community

Development (HCD). fSource: City of Folsom 2073 Housing

Element, Gool H-8, Policy H-8.7 (modified to include previous

Housing Element Progrom H-8.8.)l

5-12 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 441

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Implementation Programs and Quantified Objectives

lmplementation Program
lmplements
Policy(ies)

H-1.1 Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG I s

Timeframe

Annually

lncrease

maximum
allowable

densities by 2O22;

reach out to
property owners
at least annually

Potential
Fundingl

H- | Adequate Sites Monitoring

The City shall annually update the vacant and underutilized sites inventory and make the
updated inventory available on the City website. The City shall maintain adequate sites to
accommodate 2,226very low-income units, 1,341 low-income units, and 829 moderate-
income units within the planning period. The City shall make findings related to the
potential impact on the City's ability to meet its share of the regional housing need when
approving applications to rezone residentially designated properties or develop a

residential site with fewer units or at a higher income than what is assumed for the site in
the Housing Element sites inventory consistent with "no-net-loss" zoning requirements in
Government Code Section 65853. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing Element, Gool H-7,
Prog rom H-l.A. (modified)l

H-2 Create Additional Lower-lncome Housing Capacity

The City shall create additional opportunities for high-density housing to ensure the City

maintains adequate capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout the planning
period. The City shall increase maximum allowable densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use

Overlay, SACOG Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District, and Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan Town Center. ln implementing this program, the City shall strive to disperse
affordable housing opportunities and avoid fair housing issues related to
overconcentration. The City shall coordinate with property owners along the East Bidwell
Street corridor and within the Transit Priority Areas to identiry and pursue residential
development opportunities. The City shall review and revise Policy 4.7 of the Folsom Plan

Area Specific Plan to increase the total number of dwelling units allowed in the Plan Area in
order to satisfy the RHNA, as long as infrastructure needs are met. ln addition, the City shall
coordinate with property owners in the Folsom Plan Area to mitigate for the loss of lower-
income housing sites to market rate housing. [Source: New progrom]

H-1.2 and H-

L.4
Staff Time

lieu of staff time.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-13Page 442

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFlOM HAIEffi2055
GENERAL PLAN

lmplementation Program

H-3 Standards for Transit Oriented Development

The City shall establish development standards for transit-oriented development located
within SACOG Transit Priority Areas as part of the comprehensive zoning code update.
Development standards should promote sustainable land use practices that reduce vehicle
trips and should allow for mixed-use developments as well as stand-alone residential. ln

addition, the City shall provide for CEQA streamlining consistent with the provisions of SB

375. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, 6ool H-7, Program H-7.D. (modified)]

H-4 Accessory Dwelling Unit Tools and Resources

The City shall develop an ADU Design Workbook that provides illustrated examples of the
design standards and styles, as well as other design ideas to assist property owners,
developers, and architects and to encourage thoughtful, context-sensitive design. The City
shall promote ADU tools and resources to homeowners throughout the city to promote
mixed-income neighborhoods. The City shall target the production of 194 ADUs bV 2O29.

[Source: New progrom]

H-5 Accessory Dwelling Unit Incentives

The City shall incentivize and encourage the construction of accessory dwelling units
through development fee reductions and/or waivers. The City shall pursue the
development of pre-approved plans dependent on available grant funding or opportunities
for regional coordination through SACOG. ln addition, the City shall reach out to local
lenders to encourage them to provide funding for accessory dwelling units. The City shall
target the production of 194 ADUs bV 2O29. [Source: New program]

lmplements
Policy(iesf

H-1.2 and H-

1.9

H-1.5 and H-

2.4

H-1.5 and H-

2.4

Potential
Fundingr

StaffTime

Staff Time

Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Timeframe

2O2!and ongoing

2022

2024

5-t4 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 443

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lmplementation Program

H-6 Track and Monitor Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-Generational Units

The City shall track new accessory dwelling units and multi-generational housing units and
shall conduct a survey every two years to collect information on the use and affordability of
these units. Halfway through the projection period (2025) if determined these units are not
meeting a lower-income housing need, the City shall ensure other housing sites are
available to accommodate the unmet portion of the lower-income RHNA. The City shall
target the production of 194 ADUs and 387 multi-generational housing units by 2029.

[Source: New progrom]

H-7 Development lmpact and Permit Fees

The City shall undertake a review of its development impact and permit fees to reconfirm
the relationship between required services and fees paid. As part of this study, the City shall
review the financial needs of affordable housing projects, determine whether or not City
fees can be reduced to facilitate affordable housing development, and identify options for
the City to offset the foregone revenues from other sources. [Source: City of Folsom 2073
Housing Element, Gool H-2, Program H-2.A. (modified)l

H-8 Objective Design Standards for Multifamily Housing

The City shall rescind the Design Guidelines for Multifamily Development upon adoption of
the Housing Element and shall adopt objective design standards for multifamily
development, as part of the comprehensive zoning code update. [Source: New Program]

H-9 Condust lnclusionary Housing Fee Study

The City shall prepare a fee study on the City's inclusionary housing in-lieu fee to determine
the financing gap or subsidy required to produce affordable units and the appropriate fee
that may be charged to new housing developments if the developer chooses to satisry its
inclusionary requirement through in-lieu fees. Depending on the findings from the study,
the City may consider revising the Ordinance to update the methodology for calculating the
inclusionary housing in-lieu fee. [Source: New program]

lmplements
Policy(ies)

H-1.5

H-2.2

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

Staff Time;
Local Early

Action
Planning

Grant; and
Regional

Early Action
Planning

Grant

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department;
Public Works
Department;

Fire Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG | 5

Timeframe

Monitor on an
ongoing basis and

determine
affordability by

2025

2022

202L

December 2021

H-2.5 Staff Time

H-3.2 General Fund

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 5-15Page 444

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LFlOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN HME6
lmplementation Program

H- | 0 Provide lnformation on Affordable Housing

The City shall create and distribute educational materials, including a page on the City
website, social media posts, and/or brochures, to provide information on the needs and
benefits of affordable housing and available resources in the city. The City shall collaborate
with local homeless service providers to provide information on homeless needs in the city
[Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Gool H-2, Progrom H-2.F. (modified)]

H- l I Local Funding for Affordable Housing Development

As available, the City shall allocate funds from the City's Housing Fund toward the
development of affordable housing units for low-, very low-, and extremely low-income
households. The City shall explore the possibility of establishing priorities for the
distribution of funds, which may include criteria such as income targeting, housing for
special needs including seniors and persons with disabilities, number of bedrooms,
amenities, support services, and target geographies that serve to affirmatively further fair
housing. The City shall provide funding to support approximately 580 affordable units by
2O29. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Elemenl Gool H-3, Progrom H-3.A.]

H- 12 lncentives for Affordable Housing Development

The City shall provide incentives for affordable housing development, including density
bonus, fee deferrals or reductions, and reduced fees for studio units (e.9., two-for-one
studio fee rate program described in Chapter 16.70 of the Folsom Municipal Code). The City
shall also provide outreach to attract and support affordable housing developers in the city,
including developers of senior housing, extremely low-income units, and permanent
supportive housing for persons with disabilities and developmental disabilities. The City
shall target production of 2,15O affordable units by 2029. This will serve to affirmatively
further fair housing within the region by providing affordable housing within places of high
opportunity. [Source: New program]

H- l3 Update Density Bonus Ordinance

The City shall update the City's density bonus ordinance, as part of the comprehensive
zoning code update, to reflect recent changes in State law. [Source: New program]

lmplements
Policy{ies)

H-2.6

H-3.1

H-3.1

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

Housing
Trust Fund

Housing
Trust Fund;
Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Timeframe

Create
educational
materials by

September 2022

Establish
priorities by 2O24

Provide outreach
annually; ongoing

2021,

5-16

H-3.6 Staff Time

Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 445

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lmplementation Program

H- 14 Facilitate Affordable Housing on large Sites

The City shall encourage property owners and affordable housing developers to target and
market the availability of sites with the best potential for development by facilitating
meetings between willing property owners of large sites and willing affordable housing
developers, when sufficient housing subsidy resources are available. To assist the
development of housing for lower income households on larger sites (e.g., more than 10

acres), the City shall strive to streamline the approval process for land divisions, lot line
adjustments, andlor specific plans or master plans resulting in parcel sizes that enable
affordable housing development, and process fee deferrals related to the subdivision for
projects affordable to lower income households. The City shall target production of 535
lower-income units through this program by 2O29. [Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing
Elemenl Gool H-1, Progrom H-1.8.1

H- l5 Affordable Development at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station

The City shall pursue opportunities to work with an affordable housing developer to
construct affordable housing at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station parking lot site. The
City shall target production of 74 lower-income units on the site bV 2O29. The City shall
coordinate with Sacramento Regional Transit to ensure the site continues to meet the
parking demands for the light rail station. [Source: New progrom]

H- 16 Facilitate Affordable Housing Development on City-Owned tand

The City shall facilitate the construction of affordable housing, including possible accessory
dwelling units, on the City-owned sites located at 300 Persifer Street (APN 070-0172-048)
and on Riley Street near Comstock Drive (APN 071-0190-075). The City shall collaborate
with interested affordable housing developers to sell or lease surplus City land for the
construction of deed-restricted affordable housing, consistent with the Surplus Land Act.
The City shall target production of 15 affordable units on City-owned sites by 2O29. [Source:
New progroml

lmplements
Policy(ies)

H-1.1

H-L.L;H-L.2;
H-1.9; and H-

3.4

H-1.1, H-3.4
and H-6.4

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

Housing
Trust Fund

Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG I s

Timeframe

Ongoing

lnitiate process

by2O26

2022

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-77Page 446

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLslOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFTE6
lmplementation Program

H- l7 Study the Purchase of Land for Affordable Housing

The City shall explore the feasibility and appropriateness to establish a program to use
housing trust fund money or other sources to purchase land to support the development of
affordable housing dispersed throughout the city. lf the City finds the purchase of land to
be infeasible, the City shall continue to use funds to provide gap financing for affordable
housing development. [Source: New progrom]

H- 18 Prioritize lnfrastructure for Affordable Housing

The City shall establish procedures for granting priority water and sewer service to
developments with lower-income units in compliance with California Government Code
Section 55589.7.

H- 19 Participate in Sacramento County CDBG Program

The City shall continue to coordinate with the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment
Agenry (SHRA) to receive Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to support the
Rente/s Helpline and housing rehabilitation programs, including the Seniors Helping
Seniors Program. The City shall target 550 units for housing rehabilitation assistance by
2O29. [Source: City of Folsom 207j Housing Element, Goal H-3, Progrom H-3.G. (modified)]

H-20 Housing Choice Vouchers

The City shall continue to participate in the Housing Choice Voucher Program, administered
by the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), with a goal of providing
rental assistance to lower-income residents. The City shall work with SHRA to promote the
Housing Choice Voucher Landlord lncentive Program offered by the SHRA to encourage new
landlords to accept housing choice vouchers, with the goal of distributing affordable
housing throughout the city. The City shall target 120 housing choice voucher recipients per
year. The City shall post information on the City website, through social media, and in
letters to landlords. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-3, Program H-
3.H. (modified)l

lmplements
Policy(iesI

H-3.1and H-

3.4

H-3.1and H-

3.4

H-4.3

H-3.10 and
H-6.1

Potential
Fundingl

Housing
Trust Fund

Staff Time

Staff Time

Housing

Choice
Voucher
Program

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Timeframe

2026

2022

Ongoing

2022 | Ongoing

5-18 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 447

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lmplementation Program

H-21 Mortgage Credit Certificate Program

The City shall continue to participate in the Mortgage Credit Certificate Program,
administered by the Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), to assist low-
income first-time homebuyers purchase a home. The City shall target assistance for
approximately 20 households by 2029, subject to availability of Program funds. The City
shall publicize the program on the City website and prepare written materials. [Source: City
of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-3, Program H-3.1.1

H-22 Additional State, Federal, and Regional Funding

The City shall work to secure additional funding from State, Federal, and regional sources
that can be used to help increase the supply of affordable housing in Folsom. The City shall
pursue funding from various grant programs with a goal of obtaining 55 million dollars for
affordable housing through 2029. Such programs may include, but are not limited to:

o The HOME program that has local funds distributed by the Sacramento Housing
and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA);

o The state Multifamily Housing Program (MHP), sponsored by the Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD);

o The Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA) fund, sponsored by HCD;

o The Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Housing Program, sponsored by HCD;

and

o The Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program (AHSC) which funds
transit-oriented development.

[Source: City of Folsom 2013 Housing Elemenl Gool H-3, Progrom H-3.J. (modified)]

H-23 Expand Existing Affordable Housing Developments

The City shall initiate conversations with owners of existing affordable housing complexes
to identifo potential opportunities and available funding andlor incentives available to
expand existing facilities to increase the number of affordable units. The City shall target
production of 30 affordable units through the expansion of facilities by 2O29. [source: New
programl

lmplements
Policy(ies)

Potential
Fundingl

H-3.1

Mortgage
Credit

Certificate
Program

H-3.1 Staff time

H-1.1 Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG I s

Timeframe

Ongoing

Annually

lnitiate
conversations in

2023

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-19Page 448

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFl()nf,
2035

GENERAL PLAN HMEru
lmplementation Program

H-24 Mobile Home Repair and Replacement Loan Forgiveness Program

The City shall continue to provide forgiveness on Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) loans for improvements to manufactured housing units experiencing economic
hardship, as defined by, and subject to, HUD guidelines. [Source: City of Folsom 2073
Housing Elemenl Gool H-4, Progrom H4.C.I

H-25 Housing Conditions Survey

The City shall seek funding through the Community Development Block Grant, or other
funding sources, to conduct a survey of housing conditions in the city. The survey shall
identify housing units in need of rehabilitation or replacement and be used to seek funding
to support housing rehabilitation programs [Source: New program]

H-26 Code Enforcement

The City shall continue to encourage the rehabilitation of substandard residential properties
by homeowners and landlords, using the Code Enforcement program, when necessary, to
improve overall housing quality and conditions in the city. [Source: City of Folsom 207i
Housing Element, Gool H4, Program H-4.G.1

H-27 Seniors Helping Seniors Program

The City shall continue to provide financial assistance for health, safety, emergency and
accessibility home repairs to low-income seniors and low-income mobile homeowners
through the Seniors Helping Seniors Program, subject to availability of Program funds. The
City shall target financial assistance for 550 households by 2029. [source: City of Folsom
2073 Housing Element, Gool H-5, Progrom H-5.8. (modified)l

lmplements
Policy{ies)

H-4.3

H-4.4

H-4.L

H-4.1 and H-

4.3

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

CDBG / staff
Time

Staff Time

CDBG/
Housing

Trust Fund

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Timeframe

Ongoing

2025

Ongoing

Ongoing

s-20 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 449

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lmplementation Program

H-28 Habitat for Humanity Home Repair Program

The City shall work with Habitat for Humanity to promote the Home Repair Program
offered by Habitat which responds to health, accessibility and safety concerns in homes
owned by low-income families, veterans, and elderly residents on limited incomes. By fixing
the long-deferred maintenance projects, critical repairs and code violations, this program
helps families stay in their already affordable homes and avoid displacement. The City shall
target home repairs for 3 units per year. fSource: New progrom]

H-29 Emergency Shelter Facility Development

The City shall continue to encourage and provide technical assistance to local organizations
and community groups to help develop emergency shelter facilities in Folsom. The City shall
encourage the removal of any neighborhood barriers for any applications for an emergency
shelter and shall target development of emergency shelter facilities sufficient to provide, at
minimum, 47 emergency shelter beds. fSource: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Godl
H-5, Progrom H-5.C.1

lmplements
Policy(ies)

Potential
Fundingl

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG I s

Timeframe

Ongoing

Ongoing

H4.L Staff Time

H-5.6 Staff Time

Public Draft I Revised August 2021- 5-27Page 450

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOL€lOnf,
2055

GENERAL PLAN HFTE6
lmplementation Program

H-30 Zoning Code Amendments for Special Needs Housing

As part of the City's comprehensive Zoning Code Update, the City shall amend the zoning
code to ensure compliance with State law as follows:

r Allow "low barrier navigation cente/' developments by right in mixed-use zones
and nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses, consistent with Government
Code Section 65662.

r Allow for the approval of 100 percent affordable developments that include a

percentage of supportive housing units, either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is
greater, to be allowed without a conditional use permit or other discretionary
review in all zoning districts where multifamily and mixed-use development is
permitted, consistent with Government Code Section 55551(a).

r Establish appropriate parking standards for residential care homes and remove
parking requirements for occupants of emergency shelters consistent with
Government Code 65583.

o Allow housing for farmworkers in the Agricultural-Reserve District (A-1-A) or shall
amend the zoning code to remove the Agricultural-Reserve District (A-1-A).

. Review and amend the zoning code, as necessary, to ensure requirements for
group homes of more than six persons are consistent with State law and fair
housing requirements.

r Review and amend the zoning code to revise findings for reasonable
accommodations to remove constraints to housing for persons with disabilities and
to reduce the burden of the applicant to determine other reasonable
accommodations that provide an equivalent level of benefit.

. Establish a mobile home zoning district and amend the zoning map to apply the
mobile home zoning district to all existing mobile home parks.

. Amend the zoning code to establish a written procedure to implement streamlined
ministerial approval in compliance with Senate Bill 35.

[Source: New progrom]

lmplements
Policy(iesl

H-5.6

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Timeframe

202L

s-22 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 451

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lmplementation Program

H-3 I Homeless Services

The City shall work with Sacramento County and local community-based organizations to
explore opportunities and form partnerships to bring satellite service for individuals
experiencing or at risk of experiencing homelessness (e.g., drug addiction and mental health
services, health clinics, career centers) to Folsom. [Source: New progrom]

H-32 Fair Housing Information

The City shall also continue to use CDBG funds to support telephone counseling and
mediation services provided through the Renters Helpline. The City shall continue to make
information regarding State and Federal fair housing requirements as well as the Renters
Helpline available at a designated office in City Hall, on the City's website, and at the Folsom
Public Library. The City will also assist individuals with complaints in contacting the
appropriate agency. The City shall also conduct annual targeted outreach (education
campaigns, workshops, etc.) to multifamily rentals to distribute information regarding fair
housing and the Renters Helpline. [Source: City of Folsom 2073 Housing Element, Goal H-6,
Progrom H-6.A.1

H-33 Affirmative Marketing Plan

The City shall require affordable developers to prepare an affirmative marketing plan, as a

condition of receiving public funding, and shall encourage private developers to prepare an

affirmative marketing plan. The affirmative marketing plan shall ensure marketing materials
for new developments are designed to attract renters and buyers of diverse demographics,
including persons of any race, ethnicity, sex, handicap, and familial status. fSource: New
progrqml

H-34 Green Means Go Program

The City shall support the SACOG Green Means Go program by accelerating infill
development that reduces vehicle trips. ln addition to the East Bidwell Corridor and the
Transit Priority Areas, the City shall consider identifoing the area on Greenback Lane near
River Rock Drive as a Green Zone targeted for infill and compact development. [Source:
New progroml

lmplements
Policy(ies)

H-5.5 and H-

5.7

Who is
Responsible

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

Community
Development
Department

HOUSTNG I s

Timeframe

lnitiate in2022
and coordinate at

least annually

Review and

update fair
housing

information
annually (as

appropriate);
Dedicate CDBG

funds annually

2024

2021

Potential
Fundingl

Staff Time

H-6.2 Staff Time

H-6.4 Staff Time

H-7.2 StaffTime

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 5-23Page 452

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLFI()M
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
Quantified Objectives
State law (California Government Code Section 65583[b]) requires that the Housing

Element contain quantified objectives for the maintenance, preservation, and

construction of housing. The quantified objectives set a target goal for Folsom to strive

for based on needs, resources, and constraints. State law recognizes that the total

housing needs identified by a community may exceed available resources and the

community's ability to satisfy this need. Under these circumstances, the quantified

objectives need not be, and are not intended to be, identical to the regional housing

needs assessment.

The quantified objectives shown in Table 1 represent targets. They are estimates based

on past experience, anticipated funding levels, and anticipated housing market

conditions. The quantified objectives are not designed to be minimum requirements.

The quantified objectives are based largely upon implementation programs that have

measurable outcomes, However, the Housing Element contains several policies and

implementation programs that reduce barriers and create opportunities for affordable

housing. These policies and programs are essential to meeting the City's housing needs

but are more qualitative and difficult to quantify.

Notes:
(L) Estimoted units based on land available for housing and progroms to promote multigenerational housing ond accessory dwelling

units. Affordable units generated by the market bosed on locol (e.9., Housing Trust Fund), Stote, Federol, ond regionol funds to assist

affordoble housing production by privote developers; inclusionary housing obligotions dependent on anticipated morket rote housing

development; and other progrums to remove borriers ond facilitote the development of offordable housing.
(2) Estimoted bosed on participation in the Housing Choice Vouchers program and Mortgage Credit Certificate Program odministered

by the Socromento Housing ond Redevelopment Agency (SHRA). Homeowner assistonce for extremely low- and very low-income

households provided through the Mobile Home Repoir ond Replocement Loan Forgiveness Program.
(3) 550 units bosed on pdst trends ond avsilable funding for the Seniors Helping Seniors Progrom (Program H-27), which assists

households with rehabilitation through funding provided through the Community Development Block Grant Program; ond 24 units

based on Progrom H-28 Hobitot for Humonity Home Repoir Program.
(4) lncludes 757 assisted affordoble units identified in Toble C-43 of the Housing Element Background Report and 15 units based on the
Program H-26 Code Enforcement.
Source: City ol Folsom ond Ascent Environmental, 2020.

Iow-
lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome
Units

Above
Moderate-

lncome Units

Total
UnitsActivlty

Extremely
Low-lncome

Units

Very [ow-
lncome
Units

150 800 L,200 1,600 4,800 8,550New Construction (1)

Assistance (2) 50 50 7t 27 0 t32

0 0 574Rehabilitation (3) 200 200 174

328 344 0 0 767Preservation/Conservation (a) 95

495 L,378 7.,4O1 t,627. 4,800 9,272Total

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF QUANTIFIED OBJECTIVES FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSlNG,202!-2029

s-24 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 453

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Appendix C
2021-2029 Housing Element

Background Report

Public Draft
Released December 2020

@
ne+ise+Xme-ggg+

nevise+Ju$ae++

RevisedAugust 2021

Page 454

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Housing Element Credits

CITY OF FOLSOM

City Council

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
Kerri Howell
YK Chalamcherla

Rosario Rodriguez

Planning Commission

Justin Raithel, Chair
Eileen Reynolds, Vice Chair
BillMiklos
Daniel West
Ralph Pefra

Kevin Duewel

Barbara Leary

City Staff

Elaine Andersen, City Manager
Pam Johns, Community Development Director
Scott A. Johnson, AICP, Planning Manager
Stephanie Traylor Henry, Senior Planner/Housing Coordinator
Mankin Law, GIS lntern

Steven Wang, City Attorney

CONSTLTAI\mS

Ascent

Chelsey Payne, AICP, Project Director
Kim Untermoser, Project Manager
Heidi Gen Kuong, AICP, Planner

Rebecca Pope, Research Analyst

Page 455

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Table of Contents

L INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview of State Requirements

2.4 RegionalHousingNeedsAllocation.................

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

1-1

..1-1

1.2 General Plan and Housing Element Consistency

1.3 General Plan and Housing Element Differences...

7.4 DocumentOrganization.........

1.5 Public Participation

2 HOUSING N EEDS ASSESSMENT

2.L Housing Stock and Demographic Profile

2.2 Special Housing Needs.

2.3 Fair Housing..

1-3

1-3

1-3

7-4

2-t
2-r

2-24

2-34

2-69

3 RESOURCE INVENTORY 3-1

3.1 Residential Sites 1nventory................... .........,.....,.....3-1

3.2 Adequacy of Public Facilities and 1nfrastructure...........................3-37

3.3 Land Available for a Variety of Housing Types .....3-4r

3.4 lnventory of Local, State, and Federal Housing and Financing

Programs .....................3-49

3.5 Energy Conservation Opportunities ........................3-59

4 POTENTIAT HOUSING CONSTRAINTS

4.L PotentialGovernmentalConstraints.........

4.2 PotentialNon-GovernmentalConstraints.

4-'-

4-t

5-1

5-1

5-3

6-1

6-r

6-2

6-2

5 EVALUATION

5.1 2OL3-2O2THousingAccomplishments

5.2 Review of Existing (2013) Housing Element

6

5.1 Agencies, Organizations, and Persons Contacted

6.2 Websites.......

6.3 Reports/Documents ..............

Attachments
Attachment C.1

Attachment C.2

Attachment C.3

Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnventory
High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles
Public Outreach

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page iPage 456

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"OLS(}M
203s

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Figures
Figure C-1: Household Characteristics, City of Folsom, 2018.......................................2-5
Figure C-2: Owner-Occupied and Renter-Occupied Housing Units, City of Folsom,

2-6
Figure C-3: Place of employment for Folsom Residents who work outside of

Folsom, City of Folsom ,2021............ .......2-IO
Figure C-4: Place of residence for non-Folsom Residents who work in Folsom, City

of Folsom, 2O2t............. ....2-t0
Figure C-5: wage earnings of folsom residents employed outside of Folsom, City

of Folsom, 2021 ............. ....2-lt
Figure C-6: wage earnings of non-folsom residents employed in Folsom, City of

Folsom,2O2I ............. ........2-7I
Figure C-7: Median Sales Price, City of Folsom, March 2010 - Februa ry 2020 ...........2-22
Figure C-8: Sacramento Racial and Ethnic Distribution............. ...........2-37
Figure C-9: Racial Demographics, City of Folsom, 2010 and 2018 .............................2-39
Figure C-10: Population with a Disability by Census Tract, City of Folsom, 2015-

2019........,..... .....................2-42
Figure C-11: Percent of Children in Married-Couple Households, Sacramento

Region, 20t5-29t9..... ........2-43
Figure C-12: Percent of Children in Single-Female Headed Households,

Sacra me nto Region, 2OL5-2O19

Figure C-13: Distribution of Median lncome, City of Folsom,2OL5-2019
Figure C-14: R/ECAPs in the Sacramento Region

Figure C-15: TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Map, Sacramento Region, 2020..............2-49
Figure C-16: TCAC Opportunity Areas - Education Score, City of Fo|som..................2-50
Figure C-17: TCAC OPPORTUNITY AREAS - EConomic SCORE, CITY OF FOLSOM.......2-51

Figure C-18: Jobs Proximity lndex, City of Folsom ..........2-52
Figure C-19: TCAC Opportunity Areas - Environmental Score, city of FOlsom ..........2-53
Figure C-20: Overpayment by Renters, City of Folsom,2O15-20L9
Figure C-21: Overpayment by Homeowners, City of Folsom, 20L5-2O19

Figure C-22:

Figure C-23:

Figure C-24:
Figure C-25:

Figure C-26:

Figure C-27:
Figure C-28:

Figure C-29:
Figure C-30:

Figure C-31:
Figure C-32:
Figure C-33:

Figure C-34:
Figure C-35:

2-44
2-45
2-46

2-56
2-57

Overcrowded Households, City of Folsom .......................2-58
Location Affordability lndex, City of Folsom ....................2-60
Regional Denial Rates by Census Tract,2OtT.... ...............2-6t
Existing and Proposed Affordable Housing Locations Relative to THe

Percent of Low to Moderiate lncome Households Per Census Tract ..2-53
Affordable and market rate Apartment Locations, City of FOlsom........2-65
Map of East Bidwell Corridor Sites.............. .....................3-12
Map of East Bidwell Corridor- Central Commercial District.................3-15
Map of East Bidwell Corridor- Creekside District ...........3-17
Map of East Bidwell Corridor - College District ...............3-18
Map of East Bidwell Corridor - Broadstone District ........3-21
MapofSACOGTransitPriorityAreas............ ...................3-27
Map of Folsom Plan Area Specific P1an............... .............3-30
Map of Folsom Wastewater System ..........3-40
Development lmpact Fees by Jurisdiction in the Sacramento Region ...4-15

Tables
Table C-1: Historical Population Change, City of Folsom, 1950 to 2020

Table C-2: Population and Household Trends, 2010-2018
Table C-3: Age Characteristics, 2010 and 2018

Table C-4: Population by Race and Ethnicity, 2018.............
Table C-5: Family and Non-Family Households, 2010 and 2018

2-2
2-2
2-3
2-4
2-5

Page ii Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 457

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Table C-6: Growth in Enrollment of Folsom students in the Folsom-Cordova

Unified School District, 2O1O-20L9.

Table C-7: Household lncome Distribution, 2018.
Table C-8: Employment by lndustry, 2010 and 2018

Table C-9: Housing Unit and Employment Projections, City of Folsom,20t5-2O4O ...2-9
Table C-10: Employment Projections by Fastest Growing lndustries, Sacramento-

Arden Arcade-Roseville Metropolitan Statistical Area, 2016-2026 .... 2-t2
Table C-11: Housing Stock by Type and Vacancy, City of Folsom, 2010 and 2Ot9 ....2-L3
Table C-12: Age of Housing Stock & Housing Stock Conditions, 2018....................... 2-14
Table C-13: Overcrowding, 2018............ ........2-L5
Table C-14: Household Size byTenure,2018 2-76
Table C-15: Number of Bedrooms by Tenure, 2018 ............. ...............2-17
Table C-16: Housing Cost Burden by Household lncome Classification,2075...........2-79
Table C-17: State and Federal lncome Limits for Sacramento County, 2O2O............2-20

Table C-18: Ability to Pay for Housing based on HUD lncome Limits, Sacramento
PMSA,2020

Table C-19: Typical Sales Prices for New Homes, City of Folsom, 2020
Table C-20: Typical Rental Rates For Market Rate Apartments, City of Folsom,

2020
Table C-21: Affordable Rents and Housing Prices by lncome and Occupation,

Sacramento PMSA, 2020,,,...
Table C-22: Senior Populations and Households, 2018
Table C-23: Population over 55 Below Poverty Rate, 2018

Table C-24: Disability Status & Types of Disabilities for Civilian

Noninstitutionalized Population Age 18 to 64 years, 2018.................2-27
Table C-25: Employment Status of Noninstitutionalized Population with

Disabilities, Age 18 to 64 years, 2018.......

Table C-26: Large Households,2018
Table C-27: Single-Parent Households, 2018 .............

Table C-28: Housing Cost Burden of Extremely Low-lncome Households, 2016.......2-34
Table C-29: FOLSOM Population by Race and Ethnicity, 2OLO-2OL9 ...2-38
Table C-30: Regional Housing Needs Allocation, City of Folsom, June 30, 202tto

August 31,2029 2-69
Table C-31: Relation of Density to lnventoried lncome Levels, City of Folsom,

2020 3-2
Table C-32: Densities of Recent Multifamily Residential Projects, City of Folsom,

2020 3-3

Table C-33: Planned and Approved Projects, City of Folsom, October 2020............... 3-9

Table C-34: East Bidwell Corridor Housing Sites, City of Folsom, October 2O2O .......3-22
Table C-35: Transit Priority Area Lower-lncome Housing Sites, City of Folsom,

October 2O2O ................... 3-26
Table C-36: Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Vacant Housing Sites, City of Folsom,

October 2O2O ...................... 3-31

Table C-37: Additional Lower-lncome Housing Sites, City of Folsom, October 2020 3-33

Table C-38: Summary of Vacant and Underutilized Sites, October 2O2O................... 3-34
Table C-39: Affordability of Accessory Dwelling Units in Sacramento, Placer, and

El Dorado Counites........

2-6
2-7
2-8

..................... 2-23

2-27
2-22

2-24
2-2s
2-26

2-29
2-30

...............2-27

3-3s
3-36Table C-40: Accessory Dwelling Units and Multi-generational Units

Table C-41: Estimated Residential Capacity Compared to RHNA by lncome, City of
Folsom, June 30,202Lto August 3L,2029........ ...........3-37

Table C-42: Mobile Home Parks, City of Folsom, 2020 ..3-43
..3-46Table C-43: Sites Zoned for Emergency Shelters......

Table C-44: Financial Resources for Housing, 2020 3-52
Table C-45: Projects Receiving Government Assistance, City of Folsom,2O2O .........3-56
Table C-46: Qualified Entities, 2019

Public Draft | Revised August 2021

3-58

Page iiiPage 458

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F{}r-sOhd
2A3s

GENERAL PLAN ffiM
Table C-47: Residential and Mixed Use General Plan Land Use Designations, City

of Folsom, 2O2O............. ......4-2
Table C-48: Residential and Mixed Use Zoning Districts, City of Folsom ,2020............4-3
Table C-49: Folsom Area Specific Plan Residential and Mixed Use Zoning Districts,

City of Folsom, 2020 4-4
Table C-50: Setback, Lot Coverage, and Height Requirements in Residential and

Mixed Use Zones, City of Folsom, 2O2O.............. .............4-5
Table C-51: Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Setback, Lot Coverage, and Height

Requirements in Residential and Mixed Use Zones, 2020 4-6
Table C-52: Timelines for Permit Procedures... ..............4-10
Table C-53: Typical Processing Procedures by Project Type.......................................4-11
Table C-54: Typical Development Fees, City of Folsom...... ..................4-13
Table C-55: FPASP Development lmpact Fees, City of Folsom -2O2O.......................4-14
Table C-56: Other Planning Fees, City of Folsom, Effective July 1,2O20....................4-15
Table C-57: Parking Standards, City of Folsom - North of Highway 50,2020...........4-L7
Table C-58: Parking Standards, City of Folsom - South of Highway 50.....................4-17
Table C-59: Statewide Parking Standards for Affordable Housing, California, 2020..4-19
Table C-60: Comparison of lnclusionary Housing Requirements for Jurisdictions in

the Sacramento Region, 2020 4-22
4-25Table C-61: Estimated Housing Development Costs, City of Folsom, 2020................

Table C-52: Length of Time between Project Approval and Building Permit
Application Submittal, City of Folsom ,2020............ ......4-26

Table C-63: Building Permits lssued for New Units by lncome Category, City of
Folsom, 2073-2019 5-2

Table C-54: Evaluation of Existing (2013) Housing Element Programs.........................5-4

Page iv Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 459

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



I Introduction
State housing element law (Government Code Section 65580 (et seq.)) mandates that
local governments must adequately plan to meet the existing and projected housing

needs of all economic segments of the community. The Background Report of the

Housing Element provides a community profile and identifies the nature and extent of

the city's housing needs, which in turn provides the basis for the City's response to those

needs in the Policy Document. This Housing Element Background Report provides

current information, as of December 2O2O, on household characteristics, housing needs,

housing supply, land inventory for new development, housing programs, constraints,

and incentives for new housing development in the city of Folsom, lt also evaluates

progress made since the last housing element was adopted in 2013.

The 2021 Housing Element is a comprehensive update of the 2013 Housing Element.

The 8-year planning period is from May 15, 2O2t to May t5, 2029. Upon its adoption,

this element will become part of the City of Folsom General Plan. The adoption of this

housing element necessitates revisions to some of the other City of Folsom General Plan

Elements (i.e., Land Use and Safety and Noise) to maintain internal consistency with

those elements as mandated by State law.

l.l Overview of State Requirements
State law recognizes the vital role local governments play in the supply and affordability

of housing. Each local government in California is required to adopt a comprehensive,

long-term general plan for the physical development of their city or county. The housing

element is one of the seven mandated elements of the general plan. State law requires

local government plans to address the existing and projected housing needs of all

economic segments of the community through their housing elements. ln addition, local

governments are required to prepare an annual progress report on the status and

progress in implementing its housing element. The law acknowledges that in order for

the private market to adequately address housing needs and demand, local

governments must adopt land use plans and regulatory systems that provide

opportunities for, and do not unduly constrain, housing development. As a result,

housing policy in the state rests largely upon the effective implementation of local

general plans, and local housing elements in particular.

The purpose of the housing element is to identify the community's housing needs, to

state the community's goals and objectives with regard to housing production,

rehabilitation, and conservation to meet those needs, and to define the policies and

programs that the community will implement to achieve the stated goals and

objectives.

State law requires cities and counties to address the needs of all income groups in their

housing elements. Beyond these income-based housing needs, the housing element

must also address special needs groups such as persons with disabilities and persons

experiencing homelessness.

APPENDIX C HOUSIN6 ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 1-1Page 460

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'OLS(}M
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
As required by State housing element law (Government Code Section 65583(a)) the

assessment and inventory for this element includes the following:

o An analysis of population and employment trends and projections, and a

quantification of the city's existing and projected housing needs for all income

levels. This analysis of existing and projected needs includes the City of Folsom's

share ofthe regional housing need.

. An analysis and documentation of household characteristics, including level of
payment compared to ability to pay; housing characteristics, including

overcrowding; and housing stock condition.
. An assessment of fair housingthat provides a summary of fair housing issues and

fair housing enforcement and outreach. This assessment analyzes integration and

segregation patterns, disparities in access to opportunity, and disproportionate

housing needs.

. An inventory of land suitable for residential development, including vacant sites

and sites having realistic and demonstrated potential for redevelopment, and an

analysis of the relationship of zoning, public facilities, and services to these sites.

o The identification of a zone or zones where emergency shelters are allowed as a

permitted use without a conditional use or other discretionary permit.

. An analysis of potential and actual governmental constraints upon the

maintenance, improvement, or development of housing for all income levels and

for persons with disabilities, including land use controls, building codes and their
enforcement, site improvements, fees and other exactions required of developers,

and local processing and permit procedures. An analysis of local efforts to remove

governmental constraints.
. An analysis of potential and actual non-governmental constraints upon the

maintenance, improvement, or development of housing for all income levels,

including the availability of financing, the price of land, the cost of construction, the

request to develop housing at lower densities, and the length of time between

receiving approval for a housing development and submittal of an application for
building permits,

. An analysis of any special housing needs for the elderly; persons with disabilities,

including developmental disabilities; large families; farmworkers; families with

female heads of households; and families and persons in need of emergency shelter,

. An analysis of opportunities for residential energy conservation.

. An analysis of "at-risk" assisted housing developments that are eligible to change

from low-income housing uses during the next 10 years.

The Background Report satisfies State requirements and provides the foundation for

the goals, policies, implementation programs, and quantified objectives. The

Background Report sections draw on a broad range of sources. lnformation on

population, housing stock, and economics comes primarily from the 2010 U.S. Census,

2014-2018 American Community Survey, the California Department of Finance (DOF),

the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), and City of Folsom records.

lnformation on available sites and services for housing comes from numerous public

agencies. lnformation on constraints on housing production and past and current

housing efforts in the City of Folsom comes from City staff, other public agencies, and a

number of private sources.

Page L-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 461

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1.2 General Plan and Housing Element
Consistency

Upon adoption, this housing element will become part of the City of Folsom General

Plan. The City adopted a comprehensive update of its General Plan in 2018. The housing

element will be included as a chapter in the City's adopted General Plan and will

maintain internal consistency as required by State Law. Adoption of the housing

element triggers updates to other elements of the General Plan. Senate Bill (SB) 1035

requires the safety element to be revised and revised upon update of the housing

element to include new information on fire hazards, flood hazards, and climate

adaptation and resilience strategies. The City is amending the Safety and Noise Element

concurrent with this Housing Element update to address SB 1035. SB 1000 also requires

the City to address environmental justice when updating two or more elements after

January t,2OL8. The City of Folsom analyzed the requirements of SB 1000 when the

2035 General Plan was adopted in 2018 and determined that there were no

disadvantaged communities that met the definition of SB 1000.

1.3 General Plan and Housing Element
Differences

The housing element is one of seven State-mandated elements that every general plan

must contain. Although the housing element must follow all the requirements of the
general plan, the housing element has several State-mandated requirements that
distinguish it from other general plan elements. Whereas the State allows local

government the ability to decide when to update their general plan, State law sets the

schedule for periodic update (eight-year timeframe) of the housing element. Local

governments are also required to submit draft and adopted housing elements to the

California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for State law

compliance review. This review ensures that the housing element meets the various

State mandates. When the City satisfies these requirements, the State will "certify" that
the element is legally adequate. Failing to comply with State law could result in
potentially serious consequences such as reduced access to infrastructure,

transportation, and housing funding and vulnerability to lawsuits.

1.4 DocumentOrganization
The following sections are included in the Housing Element Background Report:

| 3.1 lntroduction
. 3.2 Housing Needs Assessment

. 3.3 Resource lnventory
o 3.4 Potential Housing Constraints
. 3.5 Evaluation

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 Page 1-3Page 462

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS(}M
2035

GENERAL PLAN ErFt=6
1.5 Public Participation
As part of the housing element update process, the City implemented the State's public

participation requirements in housing element law, set forth in Government Code

Section 65583(c)(9), that jurisdictions shall make "...a diligent effort to achieve

participation of all economic segments of the community in the development of the

housing element."

The City implemented a number of engagement tools to connect with community

members and receive input on the City's housing needs and strategies to ensure housing

for all residents. Tools included a project website, social media, newsletters, public

workshop, community survey, and public hearings.

1.5.1 PROJECT WEBSITE

At the start of the housing element update process the consultant team created a

project website (www.folsomhousingelement.com), in coordination with City Staff, to
provide the community information on the housing element update process and

schedule, key requirements of the housing element, and related documents. The

website also provided the community an opportunity to provide feedback and to sign

up to receive project updates via email. The project website was updated regularly to
include survey links, an informational video, notices of upcoming meetings, and

presentations and materials from past meetings. Translation services of the project

website was available within internet browsers.

1.5.2 MARCH 10,2O2O: CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION

The consultant team presented an overview introducing the City Council to the housing

element update process and providing a summary of the City's Regional Housing Needs

Allocation (RHNA) obligation. The presentation included potential strategies to meet

the City's RHNA obligation including creating a buffer to address no net loss, rezoning

sites to increase densities, and exploring changes to the inclusionary housing ordinance.

The presentation also provided an overview of recent changes to State housing law,

including no net loss.

1.5.3 MARCH - JULY 2O2O: PROPERTY OWNER OUTREACH

City staff and the consultant team mailed letters to property owners along the East

Bidwell corridor to identify opportunities for housing development. City staff and the

consultants held interviews with several property owners of sites in the East Bidwell

corridor, transit priority areas, and the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) to identify

potential for multifamily housing development. Several property owners indicated

interest in multifamily housing developments. The City worked with property owners to

rezone sites in conjunction with the Housing Element Update to create additional

capacity for high density housing. These sites are identified and described in Section 3.3,

"Resource lnventory." Coordination with property owners is ongoing and will continue

following adoption of the Housing Element as the City works to maintain adequate sites

throughout the 8-year planning period.

Page 1-4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 463

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1.5.4 JUNE 2020: FOCUS GROUP DISCUSSIONS

The consultant team hosted three virtual focus group sessions to gather input from

various stakeholders, including developers, home builders, non-profit organizations,

advocacy groups, and public agencies on key housing issues. The virtual focus group

sessions were held on the following topics:

o Affordable Housing Strategies -June2,2020;
. Missing Middle and Multi-Generational Housing Strategies -June 3, 2020; and

. Homelessness and Special Needs Housing*June 9,2O2O.

Each focus group session began with a brief presentation providing background on the

housing element process and housing-related information for Folsom. The consultant

team then facilitated a discussion asking participants for input on each discussion topic.

As follow up to each focus group discussion, a questionnaire was sent to all invitees

asking for any additional input or comments related to each topic. The feedback

received from each focus group was incorporated into the Housing Element Update and

used to guide new policies and programs. Attachment C.3 contains a summary of the

focus grou p discussions.

1.5.5 JUNE - JULY 2O2O: VIRTUAL COMMUNITY WORKSHOP

The consultant team, in coordination with City Staff, hosted an online community workshop

introducing the housing element update process to the community. The presentation was

provided through a recorded video, posted on the project website, which included an

overview of the requirements of the housing element the City's RHNA obligation,

population and housing demographics in the City, and housing programs within the City. The

video presentation was accompanied with an online survey for community members to

provide feedback on housing issues, goals, and strategies to meet the City's housing needs.

This video presentation and survey were posted online on the project website from June 1,

2020 through July 31, 2020. The community was notified of the online workshop through

the Citry's Facebook page, City website, City newsletters (email and USPS mail), and through

approximately 200 postcards distributed by the Twin Lakes Foodbank and the Folsom Public

Library. The City received 420 survey responses. The input provided at the workshop was

used to shape the Housing Element policies and programs. Attachment C.3 contains a

summary of responses received.

1.5.6 JULY 28, 202Q2 CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION

The consultant team gave a presentation to the City Council to report on community

outreach, give an update on progress toward identifying adequate housing sites, and

receive preliminary direction on key policy issues involving increasing maximum density

in key areas of the city, increasing the unit count of the FPASP, and the applicability of

inclusionary requirements on rental housing. The City Council was generally agreeable

to exploring increasing densities and potentially increasing the unit count in the FPASP.

The City Council advised that they did not intend to revise the inclusionary housing

ordinance to apply to rental housing. The PowerPoint presentation was made available

to the public via the project website and the recorded City Council session was posted

on the City website.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page l--5Page 464

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSOI\{
203 5

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
1.5.7 DECEMBER 21, 2O2O: DRAFT HOUSING ELEMENT

The Draft Housing Element was posted on the project website on December 21,2020,

and an email announcing the availability of the Draft Housing Element and the

upcoming public meetings was sent to stakeholders and community members who had

signed up to receive notifications. ln addition, the Draft Housing Element was advertised

in the City newsletter (email and USPS mail). The City mailed 22,200 flyer notifications

of the Draft Housing Element with utility bills to City residents. ln addition, 500 postcard

notifications of the Draft Housing Element were distributed to residents of affordable

multifamily units via mail and 150 were distributed by the Twin Lakes Foodbank. Hard

copies of the Draft Housing Element were also made available at the Community

Development Department. The City received several comment letters and emails from

community members and regional stakeholders, including the Sacramento Housing

Alliance, Sacramento Municipal Utility District, Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality

Management District, and students from the Folsom Cordova Unified School District.

City staff and the consultants considered all public comments submitted on the Draft

Housing Element and made revisions to the Draft Housing Element during the HCD

Review process, Revisions included reviewing and revising the sites inventory

methodology, clarifying language or adding additional information to address

questions, and modifying policies and programs. All changes were shown in track

changes in the Public Hearing Draft Housing Element presented at the adoption

hearings with the Planning Commission and City Council.

1.5.8 JANUARY 20,2021: PLANNING COMMISSION DRAFT HOUSING
ELEMENT HEARING

Following release of the Draft Housing Element, City staffand the consultants presented

the document to the Planning Commission at a public hearing on January 20,2O2L An

email notice was sent to stakeholder and community members that had signed up to

receive notifications, informing them of the hearing and methods for providing public

comment. ln addition, the public hearing was advertised in the City newsletter (email

and USPS mail) and local newspaper. The Planning Commission recommended changes

that were presented to the City Council for consideration.

1.5.9 FEBRUARY 9,2021: CITY COUNCIL DMFT HOUSING ELEMENT
HEARING

The City Council reviewed and provided feedback on the Draft Housing Element at a

public hearing on February 9,2O2!. The City Council was presented with the Planning

Commission recommendations as well as the public comments received on the Draft

Housing Element. An email notice was sent to stakeholder and community members

that had signed up to receive notifications, informing them of the hearing and methods

for providing public comment. ln addition, the public hearing was advertised in the City

newsletter (email and USPS mail) and local newspaper. The City Council recommended

minor changes to the Draft Housing Element and authorized staff to submit the Housing

Element to HCD for the State-mandated compliance review.

Page 1-6 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 465

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



2 Housing Needs Assessment
This section begins with a description of housing and demographic characteristics of the city

of Folsom. The section then discusses the existing housing needs of Folsom based on housing

and demographic characteristics. The section also discusses the housing needs of "special"

population groups as defined in State law. Finally, the section discusses the city's future
housing needs based on the regional "fair share" allocation in the RHNA prepared by SACOG.

2.1 Housing Stock and Demographic Profile
The purpose of this section is to establish "baseline" population, employment and housing

characteristics for the city of Folsom. The main sources of information in this section are the

2000 and 2010 U.S. Census, 2014-2018 American Community Survey, the DOF, and SACOG.

Other sources of information include: the California Employment Development Department

(EDD); the U,S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and local economic

data (e.9., home sales prices, rents, wages, etc.).

Data for Folsom is presented wherever possible for comparison alongside comparable

data for Sacramento County and California. This facilitates an u nderstanding of the city's

characteristics by illustrating how the city is similar to, or differs from, the county and

state in various aspects related to demographic, employment, and housing

characteristics and needs.

2.1.1 DEMOGMPHIC AND EMPLOYMENT CHARACTERISTICS AND
TRENDS

Population Growth and Change
Table C-1 shows the long-term historic population trends for the city of Folsom. Since

the 1950s, Folsom has been a rapidly growing city. The city experienced its largest

average annual growth rates (AAGR) from 1950 to 1950 (8.8 percent) and from 1980 to
1990 (10.5 percent). However, in recent decades the average annual growth rates have

been decreasing (5.7 percent in 2000,3.4 percent in 2010, and 1.2 percent in 2020),

As shown in Table C-2, Folsom's population growth rate between 2010 and 2018 (0.8

percent) was the same as the rate of growth experienced by Sacramento County and

slightly higher than the rate of growth experienced by California for this time period

(0.6 percent).

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEe2-LPage 466

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSOn4
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

Sources: U.S. Census Bureou, 2010 U.S. Census and 2074-2078 American Community Survey Toble 811002, 826001 ond 51101.

Source: Colifornia Deportment of Finance, Toble 2o Historical Census Populotions of California
State, Counties, Cities, Ploces, ond Towns; 2070 Census.

A household is defined as a person or group of persons living in a housing unit, as

opposed to persons living in group quarters, such as Folsom Prison (figures for
households and group quarters are shown separately in Table C-2). Folsom's household

growth rate of 1.1 percent was the slightly higher than its population growth rate from

2010 to 2018.

Average household size is determined by the number of people living in households

divided by the number of occupied housing units in a given area. ln Folsom, the 2010

average household size was 2.51 persons, slightly lower than the county average of 2.7L

persons and the statewide average of 2.9O persons. ln 2018, average household size in

Folsom increased slightly 1o2.62. The average household sizes in the county and state

also increased slightly (2.77 and 2.95 persons per household, respectively).

Year Population Change AAGR

1950 1,590

1950 3,925 2,235 8.8%

7970 5,810 1,88s 4,0%

1980 11,003 5,193 6.6%

1990 29,802 L8,799 I0.5o/o

2000 51,884 22,O82 s.7%

2010 72,203 20,3L9 3.4%

2020 81,610 9,407 7.2o/o

TABLE C-1: HISTORICAL POPULATION CHANGE,

ctTY oF FOISOM, 1950 TO 2020

City of Folsom Sacramento County California

201820to 2018
AAGR
(2010-

20181

2010
AAGR
(2010-

20181

2010 2018
AAGR
(2010-

2018)

Population 72,203 77,OO7 o8% 1,418,788 L,s10,023 o.8% 37,253,956 39,557,045 O.60/o

Households 24,9s7 27,28s T.I% s13,94s s36,029 o5% L2,577,498 t2,965,435 o.4%

Household
Population

65,243 7L,4t9 l-.Lo/o 1,395,001 1,485,602 O.8o/o 36,434,140 38,329,281 0.6%

Group Quarters
Population

6,960 5,588 -2.7% 23,787 24,42L O.3o/o 819,816 8L9,479 o.o%

Persons Per

Household
2.7L 2.772.61 2.62 2.90 2.96

TABLE C-2: POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLD TRENDS, 2OtO-2018

Page2-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 467

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

According to the 2010 U.S. Census and 2OL4-20L8 American Community Survey, the

total group quarters population in the city was 6,960 in 2010 and decreased to 5,588 in

2018. The group quarters population consists mainly of the Folsom Prison population

and residents of other group quarter facilities such as nursing care facilities. Data from

the California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation shows that the population

at Folsom Prison and California State Prison (CSP Sacramento, located adjacent to the

Folsom Prison) has decreased from 6,666 inmates on March 3I,2OtO to 5,545 inmates

in December 2019.

Age
Table C-3 shows the distribution of Folsom's population by age in 2010 and 2018. As

shown in the table, Folsom's population is aging, The population within most age groups

44 years of age and younger declined from 2010 to 2018, while the population within

all age groups older than 44 years of age and increased. The median age in Folsom (41.2)

in 2018 was considerably older than the countywide median age of 35. Mirroring

countywide trends, seniors 65 and older in Folsom made up about 13 percent of the

population in 2018 compared to just under 10 percent in 2010. Senior housing needs

are discussed in detail in the next section, Special Housing Needs.

Note: These figures include Folsom Prison populotion figures.
Source: 2070 U.S. Census ond U.S. Census Bureou, 2014-2078 Anerican Community Survey s-Yeor Estimotes Toble 50101.

Folsom Sacramento County

2010 2018 20LO 2018

Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Age Group

Number

5.6% 101,063 7.t% 99,356 6.6%Under 5 4,437 6.L% 4,309

98,L12 6.9/o L07,293 6.7%5to9 5,258 7.3% 5,101 6.6%

10 to 14 4,988 6.9% 5,687 7.4% 99,820 7.O% 102,000 6.8%

15 to 19 4,305 6.O% 4,863 6.3o/o 105,680 7.4% 94,932 63%

3,409 4.4% 101,908 7.2% 100,159 6.6%2oto 24 3,932 5.4%

206,646 L4.6Yo 234,363 $.5%25to 34 10,163 74.t% 8,455 tt.o%

35 to 44 12,859 77.8% r1,746 15.3Y" 190,835 L3.5To L97,732 L3.7%

45 to 54 77,972 t6.6% 13,999 18.2% 200,536 t4.lo/o t95,044 t2.9%

5.8% 5,138 6.7% 85,332 6.0% 95,111 6.3%55 to 59 4,L59

s.6% 70,305 5.O% 87,826 5.8o/o60 to 54 3,227 4.5o/o 4,327

83,295 5.9% 117,908 7,8%65to74 3,669 5.L% 5,933 7.7%

75 to 84 2,L78 3.0% 2,874 3.7% 52,L93 3.7Vo 57,619 3.a%

7.5% 1,165 t.5% 23,063 7.6% 26,680 7.8%85 and Over r,062

1,418,788 100.0% 1,510,023 100.0%Total 72,2O3 100.0% 77,OO7 100.0%

36.0Median Age 37.6 41.2 34.8

TABIE C-3: AGE CHARACTERISTICS, 2010 AND 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-3Page 468

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F{}F-S@e{
2035

GENERAL PLAN mffi=6

Notes: llncludes "other" rocial category and "two or more races"

Source: IJ.S. Census Bureau, 2074-2018 Americon Community Survey S-Yeor Estimotes, Tables 8110028 - 8110021, and DP05.

Race and Ethnicity
Table C-4 summarizes U.S. Census data related to the race and ethnicity of residents of

Folsom, Sacramento County, and California in 2018. Compared to the county and state,

Folsom's population is less diverse. As shown in the table, 62.1 percent of Folsom's total

population (including persons in correctional facilities) in 2018 was White, Non-

Hispanic. lt should be noted that the racial and ethnic characteristics of the Folsom

Prison population affect the statistics for the city as a whole since the Prison has a more

racially and ethnically diverse population. Excluding persons in group homes (i.e.,

assisted living, dormitories, and correctionalfacilities), Folsom's 2018 population is even

less diverse with 56.9 percent consisting of Non-Hispanic White persons, 9.2 percent

Hispanic, and only 0.8 percent Black persons.

Household Composition
The U.S. Census divides households into two different categories, depending on their
composition. Family households are those consisting of two or more related persons

living together. Non-family households include persons who live alone or in groups

composed of unrelated individuals.

As shown in Table C-5, Folsom had a slightly larger proportion of family households

compared to Sacramento County and California. ln 2010, 70.5 percent of Folsom

households were family households compared to 66 percent in the county and 68.7

percent in the state. From 2010 to 2018, the number of families in Folsom increased

from 17,500 families in 2010 to 19,501 families in 2018, resulting in a slight increase (1

percent) in the proportion of family households in Folsom.

As shown in Figure C-L,25 percent of Folsom households were married with children in

2018, and 13 percent were single parent households. Married couples without children

made up 34 percent of all households in Folsom, non-family households with more than

one person made up 4 percent, and householders living alone made up 24 percent.

Folsom Total
Population

Folsom (Not lncluding
Persons in Group Homes)

Sacramento County
Total Population

California Total
Population

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Racial/Ethnic
Category

682,500 45.2% 14,695,836 37.5%White (non-Hispanic) 47,840 62.L% 48,738 66.9o/o

O.8o/o t44,OO3 9.5% 2,t64,5r9 5.SYoBlack 2,568 33% 555

o.4% 313 o.4% 5,469 o.4% r38,427 0.4%
American lndian and
Alaska Native

342

Asian 12,973 76.8% t2,642 173% 231-,740 753% 5,525,439 L4.I%

16,33s 1.L% 138,911 o.4%
Native Hawaiian and
Other Pacific lslander

276 o.4% 153 o.2%

3,798 5.2% 82,95r 5.2% 1,264,O5r 3.2%Otherl 3,901 4.8%

Hispanic (of any race) 9,LO7 TL,8% 6,691 9,2% 347,O25 23.Oo/o !5,227,577 38.9Yo

39,148,750 too.o%Total 77,007 100.0% 72,890 LOO.O% 1,510,023 100.0%

TABLE C-4: POPULATION BY RACE AND ETHNICITY, 2018

PaEe2-4 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 469

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

2010

17,600 705% 338,982 66.O% 8,642,473 68.7%Family Households

Non-Family Households 7,35t 29.5% 774,963 34.0% 3,935,02s 3t.3%

Total Households 24,95L LOO.O% 513,945 IOO.O% 72,s77,498 100.o%

2018

19,501 77.5% 355,363 66.3% 8,915,228 68.76%Family Households

33.7% 4,O50,207 31.24%Non-Family Households 7,784 28.5% 180,665

Total Households 27,285 too.o% 536,O29 100.0% 12,965,435 100.00%

TABLE C-5: FAMILY AND NON-FAMILY HOUSEHOLDS, 2010 AND 2018

Source: U.S, Census Burcou, 2074-2018 American Community Survey S-Yeor Estimates, Toble 51101

FIGURE C-l: HOUSEHOLD CHARACTERISTICS, CITY OF FOLSOM,2018

Non Family
Households, More
than One Person,

4%

Source: U.S. census Bureau, 2014-2018 American Community Survey s-Year Estimates, Table 52501.

The increase in the number of families in Folsom is reflected in the increasing school

enrollment figures shown in Table C-6. From 2010 to 2019, the enrollment of students

in the Folsom-Cordova Unified School District increased by 9.1 percent. Although,

student enrollment numbers have steadily increased since 2012, the growth rate is

slower than the previous decade where enrollment numbers increased by

approximately 42 percent from 2000 to 2010.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-5Page 470

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLS()N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFT=ru

Source: Colifornia Department of Education 2079.

Tenure
Folsom is known as a family-oriented community and has a high rate of homeownership.

As shown in Figure C-2, Folsom had a homeownership rate of 70 percent in 2018,

compared to 56 percent in Sacramento County and 54.8 percent in California. ln addition,

Folsom's homeownership rate has remained steady since 2010 (69.9 percent owner-

occupied units), whereas the county and statewide have seen a decrease in

homeownership since 2010. Sacramento County had a homeownership rate of 57.5

percent in 2010 and California had a homeownership rate of 55.9 percent in 2010.

FIGURE C-2: OWNER-OCCUPIED AND RENTER-OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS,

ctrY oF FoLsoM,2018

80.0%

70.0o/o

60.0%

50.a%

40.00/o

30.0%

20.0o/o

70.o%

o.0%
Owner-Occupied

70.0%

56.0%

54.8o/o

(!

oF
o

(t,
U
o
o-

I Folsom

I Sacramento County

r california

Renter-Occupied

30.Oo/o

44.0o/o

45.2%

source: U.s. Census Bureau, 2014-2018 American Community Survey s-Year Estimates Table 825003.

Year TotalEnrollment Percent Change Since 2010

2010-11 18,893

20t1-12 19,754 7,404

79,1L7 1.2%20L2-13

2013-r4 19,356 2.5%

20L4-t5 19,s27 3.4%

2015-15 19,865 s.t%

20t6-77 20,3r2 7s%

2017-78 20,353 7.7%

2018-19 20,605 9.r%

TABLE C-6: GROWTH lN ENROLLMENT OF FOTSOM STUDENTS lN THE FOLSOM-

CORDOVA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 2OTO-2019

Page 2-6 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 471

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Household lncome
Table C-7 shows the distribution of households according to their 2018 incomes for
Folsom, Sacramento County, and California. While 19 percent of households in

Sacramento County and 17.5 percent of households in the state earned less than 525,000

in 2018, only 9.2 percent of households in Folsom earned under 525,000. On the other

end of the income spectrum, 54.5 percent of Folsom households earned more than

5100,000 in 2018, compared to 30.1 percent of households in the county and 35.5

percent of households in the state.

ln 2018, Folsom's median household income of 5109,762 was higher than that of

Sacramento County by more than 545,000 and higher than that of the California by

more than 535,000.

Source: tJ.S. Census Bureou, 2074-2018 American Community Survey S-Year Estimates, Toble 51901.

Employment Growth: 2010 to 2018
Table C-8 shows employment by industry in Folsom and Sacramento County in 2010 and

2018. The number of employed persons 16 years of age and older in Folsom grew from

30,535 in 2010 to 34,974 in 2018. The educational services, health care, and social

assistance industry employed the highest number of Folsom residents (7,6661 in 2018

and experienced the highest increase in employment from 15.6 percent of totaljobs in

2010 to 21.9 percent in 2018. Other major industries in Folsom include professional,

scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services (14.2

percent); manufacturing (13.1 percent); finance and insurance, and real estate and

rental and leasing (10.4 percent); and public administration (10.2 percent).

Since 1984, the lntel Corporation has played a major role in the employment of Folsom

residents, as well as residents from surrounding communities in the Sacramento region.

lntel is the largest private industry employer in Folsom, As of 2019, the company

employed almost 6,000 employees at its Folsom branch. lntel has influenced much of

Folsom's technology growth that has attracted businesses from afar. Today Folsom

includes many high-tech firms ranging from small companies to large international

corporations. The city boasts a growing technology employment cluster that includes

over 15 companies in the Technology lntegrator, Clean Technology, Technology, and

Medical Technology sectors.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Sacramento County CaliforniaFolsom

Households Percent Households Percent
lncome Group

Households Percent

77.5%Under S24,999 2,51r 9.2% 70r,923 19.ooa 2,268,951

s2s,ooo-s4s,ses 3,387 L2.4% 109,336 20.4% 2,437,502 18.8%

3,460 12.7Yo 93,94r 17.5% 2,061.,504 t5.9%sso,ooo-s74,ses

LI,2% 69,723 13.0% r,594,749 123%sTs,ooo-sss,sss 3,O47

30.1% 4,602,729 35.5/oSloo,ooo or more 14,880 54.5o/o 161,106

Total Households 27,285 100.0% 536,029 100.0% 12,965,435 r00.0%

Median Household lncome 5709,762 s63,so2 57t,228

TABLE C-7: HOUSEHOLD INCOME DISTRIBUTION, 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-7Page 472

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@n-s@s{
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Folsom Sacramento County

2010 2018 20to 20L8lndustry

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Civilian employed population 16 years

and over
30,535 700.o% 34,974 L00.o% 62s,894 tOO.0o/o 586,019 L00.o%

L62 O.5o/o 3,77t o.6% 5,918 0,9%Agriculture, forestry, fishing and
hunting, and mining:

34 0.7%

Construction 1,800 ss% L,45I 4.t% 46,938 7.5o/o 43,737 6.4%

Manufacturing 3,513 LL5% 4,582 73.7% 36,492 5.8/o 38,148 s.6%

690 23% 757 2.2% 18,389 2.9% L7,066 2s%Wholesale trade

Retail trade 2,756 9.O% 3,204 9.2% 69,779 lL.Lo/o 75,105 70.9%

Transportation and warehousing, and

utilities
1,1 10 3.6% 998 2s% 30,330 4.8% 37,705 5s%

lnformation 695 23% 501 1,.4% 15,996 2.6/o T2,4I5 I.8%

3,820 12.5o/o 3,620 10.4% 49,506 7.9/o 48,305 7.O%Finance and insurance, and real estate
and rental and leasing

4,467 t4.6% 4,953 14.2% 72,752 11,.6% 8r.,011 TL.8%Professional, scientific, and

management, and administrative and

waste management services

t5.6/o 7,666 21.9% 128,735 20.6% 153,42s 22.4%Educational services, and health care
and social assistance

4,755

Arts, entertainment, and recreation,
and accommodation and food services

2,144 7.Oo/o 2,328 6.7% 52,713 8.4% 55,531 9.6%

Other services, except public

administration
t,348 4.4% L,792 3.4% 30,891 4.9% 34,990 5.Lo/o

Public administration 3,403 LL.!o/o 3,s60 to.2% 69,602 LL.L% 72,663 to.6%

TABLE C-8: EMPTOYMENT BY INDUSTRY, 2010 AND 2018

Source: U.S. Census Bureou, 2006-2010 American Community Survey S-yeor Estimotes and 2014-2018 American Community Survey 5-

Year Estimates, Toble 52405.

Employment and Housing Projections
SACOG produces housing and jobs projections for the cities and counties in the

Sacramento region, including the city of Folsom. SACOG's most recent projections,

released in 2019, project housing units and number of jobs to 2040. The number of

housing units in Folsom is projected to grow from 27,55O in 2015 to 38,010 in 2040 (with

a 1.35 percent annual growth rate). The number ofjobs is projected to increase from

45,430 jobs in 2016 to 51,730 in 2040 (with a 0.54 percent annual growth rate).

The SACOG projections were used to calculate the jobs/housing ratio for Folsom. As

shown in Table C-9, the number of households was determined by applying a 5 percent

vacancy rate to the number of housing units projected by SACOG. The number of jobs

was divided by the number of households to determine the jobs/housing ratio. This

jobs/housing ratio can be compared to the worker-to-household ratio. The worker-to-

household ratio is based on the 2018 Folsom population in the civilian labor force and

the number of households in Folsom. The worker-to-household ratio for Folsom is 1.33.

Page 2-8 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 473

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



As shown in Table C-9, the number of jobs is projected to grow at a slower rate than the

number of housing units. While the jobs/housing ratio is projected to decrease to 1.43

in 2O4O, this is still above the worker/household ratio of 1.33 indicating there would

theoretically still be adequate jobs in the City to meet the demands of the local

workforce.

lNumber of Households was calculated by multiplying the number of projected housing units
by a 95% occuponcy rote,
2Workers per household ratio was colculoted by dividing the population in the civilian labor

force in 2018 (36,311) by the number of households in 2078 (27,285).
3tobs/Household Rotio was calculated by dividing the number of jobs by the number of
households,
Source: SACOG,2016; U.S. Census Bureau 2074-2078 American Community Survey S-Year

Estimotes, Toble DP03 ond 52301.

However, according to 2018 U.S. Census Bureau data, 80 percent of Folsom residents

commute out of the city for work and 83 percent of persons employed in the city

commute from areas outside of the city, only 20 percent of Folsom residents live and

work in the city. As shown in Figure C-3, the majority of Folsom residents who commute

out of the city for work are employed in the city of Sacramento, Rancho Cordova,

Roseville, El Dorado Hills, or unincorporated Sacramento County (e.g., Arden-Arcade,

Carmichael, Gold River). As shown in Figure C-4, the majority of employees who

commute into the city for work live in the city of Sacramento, El Dorado Hills, Roseville,

Rancho Cordova, Citrus Heights, or unincorporated Sacramento County (e.g.,

Orangevale, Arden-Arcade, Ca rmichael).

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

20L6 2035 204,0
AAGR

(2015-2040)

38,010 7.35%Housing Units 27,550 36,7s0

Householdsl 26,773 34,913 36,110 7.35%

Worker/Household Ratio2 1.33 1.33 1.33

Number of Jobs 45,430 50,230 51,730 o.s4%

L.44 L.43Jobs/Household Ratio3 7.74

TABLE C-9: HOUSING UNIT AND EMPLOYMENT PROJECTIONS,

clTY oF FOLSOM, 2016-2040

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-9Page 474

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



I.OLSOT{
203s

GENERAL PLAN HFT=ffi
FIGURE C-3: PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR FOLSOM RESIDENTS WHO WORK

OUTSIDE OF FOLSOM, CITY OF FOLSOM,2021

Place of Em Resides in Folsom

Heights, 1%

El Dorado Hills,

3o/o

Folsom,20%

Rancho Cordova,
7%

Unincorporated Sacramento
Counly,TYo

sacramento, 16%

FIGURE C-4: PLACE OF RESIDENCE FOR NON-FOLSOM RESIDENTS WHO

WORK IN FOLSOM, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2021

Place of Residence, Employed in Folsom

Other,4%
Rocklin,2o/o

Citrus Heights,

4% Folsom,lTYo

ElkGrove,2%

El Dorado Hills,

5%

Roseville, 5%

corporated Sacramento
County, L2o/o

I

Page 2-10 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 475

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lncome levels vary slightly between Folsom residents who work outside of the city and

Folsom employees who live outside of the city, with a higher proportion of Folsom

residents who work outside of the city earning higher wages and more low- to middle-

wage earners commuting into Folsom (see Figure C-5 and Figure C-6). This indicates a need

to provide affordable housing for lower-wage earners commuting into Folsom for work.

FIGURE C-5: WAGE EARNINGS OF FOLSOM RESIDENTS EMPLOYED OUTSIDE

OF FOLSOM, CITY OF FOLSOM,2021

Folsom Resident Employed Outside of the City

r Earning St,2s0 per month or less r Earning 51,250 to $3,333 per month

r Earning 53,333 per month or more

FIGURE C-5: WAGE EARNINGS OF NON-FOLSOM RESIDENTS EMPLOYED lN
FOLSOM, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2021

Folsom Employee Residing Outside of City

r Earning $1,250 per month or less r Earning 51,250 to $3,333 per month

r Earning 53,333 per month or more

Table C-10 provides more detailed projections for employment by the fastest growing

industries from EDD. EDD only provides projections by metropolitan statistical area

(MSA). The greatest projected employment growth for the Sacramento-Arden Arcade-

Roseville MSA occurs in the education services, health care, and social assistance

industry, which is also projected to have the greatest share of jobs. This sector is

projected to increase by 26.4 percent (38,400 jobs) from 2016 to 2026. The other fastest

growing industries include construction; transportation, warehousing and utilities;

accommodation and food services; leisure and hospitality; arts, entertainment, and

recreation; real estate and rental and leasing; and wholesale trade.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

22o/o

17%

5t%

28%

t9%

54%

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-LtPage 476

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F 0F-SOSA
2Q3s

GENERAL PLAN MEru

Percent Change
(2Ot6-20261Employment lndustry 2016 2026

Change in Number of
Jobs (2016-2026)

26.4%Educational Services (Private), Health Care, and
Social Assistance

145,600 184,000 38,400

54,900 67,800 L2,900 235%Construction

26,000 3L,700 5,700 2t.9%Transportation, Warehousing, and Utilities

L7.4o/oAccommodation and Food Services 84,300 99,000 14,700

99,800 116,600 15,800 t6.8%Leisure and Hospitality

15,500 L7,600 2,700 13.s%Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation

16,400 1,900 L3,I%Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 14,500

12.8%Wholesale Trade 25,700 29,000 3,300

62,000 69,900 7,900 L2.7%Administrative and Support and Waste
Management and Remediation Services

37,700 35,600 3,900 L2.3%Other Services (excludes 814-Private Household
Workers)

128,000 143,500 15,500 12.Io/oProfessional and Business Services

6,300 Lt.SYoProfessional, Scientific, and Technical Services 54,600 60,900

8o/olnformation 13,800 L4,900 1,L00

234,700 246,800 t2,ro0 5.2%Government

37,200 39,000 1,800 4.A%Finance and lnsurance

104,900 4,500 4s%Retail Trade 100,400

0 o%Manufacturing 36,200 36,200

300 -100 -2s%Mining and Logging 400

TABLE C-10: EMPLOYMENT PROJECTIONS BY FASTEST GROWING INDUSTRIES, SACRAMENTO-ARDEN ARCADE-

ROSEVI LLE M ETROPOLITAN STATISTI CAL AREA, 20L6.2026

1 Employment projections ore for the Sacramento-Arden Arcode-Roseville Metropolitan Stotisticol Areo which includes Sacramento,

Plocer, Yolo, ond El Dorado Counties.

Source: Employment Development Deportment 2076-2026 lndustry Employment Projections,2079.

Potential Population Change and Job Growth lmpacts on Housing
Need
The employment base in Folsom is heavily dependent on several major employers and

subject to the fluctuations of the high-tech sector. Key employers in Folsom include

lntel, Verizon, Cal-lSO, Maximus, Kikkoman, Mercy Hospital, Kaiser Permanente, and

the State of California. With employment growth rates projected to be lower than

housing growth rates, Folsom is projected to slightly decrease its ratio of total jobs to

total employed residents in the near future. Maintaining a balance between jobs and

housing can help to reduce commutes, alleviate traffic congestion and the associated

environmental and social impacts.

2.1.2 HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS AND TRENDS

Housing lnventory and Supply
Table C-11shows comparative data on the housing stock in Folsom, Sacramento County,

and California in 2010 and 2019. The table shows the total housing stock in each area

according to the type of structures in which units are located, total occupied units, and

vacancy rate.

PaEe2-L2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021-Page 477

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



As shown in Table C-11, single family detached housing units account for the majority

of housing in Folsom (71.7 percent). This is much higher than in the county and state

overall, where only 64.8 and 57.5 percent of all units are single family detached,

respectively.

Multifamily housing with five or more units makes up the next largest segment of

Folsom's housing stock, comprising approximately 17.6 percent of the total in 2019. The

proportion of multifamily units in this category decreased slightly from 17.8 percent in

2010. Folsom has a smaller percentage of multifamily housing (including both the "2 to

4 units" and "5 plus" categories) than Sacramento County and California.

Folsom has a significantly lower proportion of attached single family and small

multifamily housing (2 Lo 4 units) than the county and the state. Since 2010, the
proportion of these housing types have fallen to 2.9 percent and 4.5 percent,

respectively, approximately one half of the proportion seen in the county.

Table C-11 also shows the number and percentage of occupied units and the vacancy

rate. Both Folsom and Sacramento County have seen a slight increase in vacancy rates

since 2010 while the statewide vacancy rate has remained steady. Folsom had a 5.1

percent vacancy rate in 2019, which was much lower than that of Sacramento County

(8.3 percent) and California (8.1 percent).

Source: Californio Department of Finance, Demogrophic Reseorch Unit E-5 Tobles 2019.

Housing Conditions
Since housing stock age and condition are generally correlated, one Census variable that

provides an indication of housing conditions is the age of a community's housing stock. As

shown in Table C-12, nearly 35 percent of Folsom's housing stock was 20 or less years old

in 2020. Another 31 percent of the housing stock was between 20 and 30 years old.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

MultifamilySingle Family
Occupied

Vacancy
Rate

Year
Total
Units Detached Attached 2to 4 5 plus

Mobile
Homes

CITY OF FOI.SOM

26,IO9 18,s16 80s L,25L 4,636 901 24,95t 4.4%Number

3.Lo/o 4.8% 778% 3.s% 9s.6%
2010

Percent 100.o% 70.9%

Number 28,053 20,ro7 815 L,275 4,951 905 26,6L4 5.r%
20L9

Percent \oo.o% 7L.7% 2.9% 4.5% 17.6% 3.2% 94.9%

SACRAMENTO COUNTY

34,749 44,929 LOA,226 L4,780 513,945 7.6%Number 555,932 357,248

8.7% t8.8% 2.7% 92.5%
2010

Percent LOO.O% 64.3o/o 6.3%

Number 574,449 372,2L1 34,797 45,r98 LOl,337 14,906 526,804 8.3%
20t9

Percent LOo.0% 64.8% 6.L% 7.9% L8.7o/o 2.60/o 9t.7o/o

CATIFORNIA

7,LL0,623 3,076,511 557,674 12,568,167 8.lo/oNumber L3,670,304 7,959,059 966,437
2010

Percent 700.0% 58.2o/o 7.t% 8.L% 225% 4.1% 9L.9%

Number 14,235,093 8,190,950 994,7r0 1,L32,562 3,357,051 559,820 13,085,036 8.r%
2079

Percent roo.o% 57.5% 7.O% 8.O% 23.6% 3.9% 9L9%

TABIE C-11: HOUSING STOCK BY WPE AND VACANCY, CITY OF FOISOM, 2010 AND 2019

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-13Page 478

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN nmE6

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2074-2018 Americon Community Survey S-Yeor Estimates, Toble DP04.

Because over 60 percent of the housing units in Folsom were 30 years old or less in 202O,

Folsom's housing stock is likely still in relatively good condition compared to communities

with larger shares of older homes. Since 2010, there has been a net increase of t,326
housing units in Folsom, almost all of which are likely in sound condition.

As partof the 202L-2O29 Folsom Housing ElementCommunitySurvey, participantswere

asked to describe the physical condition of their home. The responses indicated that 54

percent would describe their homes as having excellent condition, 25 percent of homes

show signs of minor deferred maintenance (i.e., peeling paint, chipping stucco), 17

percent stated their home needs one or more modest rehabilitation improvements (i.e.,

roof, wood siding, paint, window repairs), and 4 percent stated their home needs one

or more major upgrades (i.e., new foundation, plumbing, electrical).

According to the City Code Enforcement Division, less than one fourth of code violations

in the city are residential housing cases. While these cases are generally spread

throughout the city, many occur in the areas with the oldest homes. A majority of the

cases are for property maintenance complaints. Only a very small percentage are in

need of major repair. Cases where housing repairs are needed primarily occur in rental

homes and are often related to tenant landlord issues. According to the City Code

Enforcement Officer, substandard housing is a minor issue for Folsom, and the condition

of the City's housing stock has not deteriorated since the previous analysis conducted

for the 1992 Housing Element, which was conducted in 1991 and found 88 dwelling

units in need of repair. Of the 88 units in need of repair, 58 units needed minor repairs

and 30 needed moderate repairs.

Folsom Sacramento County California

Housing
Units

Percent
Housing

Units
Percent

Housing
Units

Percent

595 2.L% 4,638 o.8% 752,L62 L1%Built 2014 or later

Built 2010 to 2013 731, 2.6% 7,605 L3% 230,279 1.6%

Built 2000 to 2009 8,324 29.6% 88,019 L5.5% 1,598,759 7L.4%

Built 1990 to 1999 8,907 31,.7% 76,493 735% 1,536,758 70.9%

Built 1980 to 1989 5,395 79.2% 95,479 76.8% 2,135,838 L5.2%

Built 1970 to 1979 2,LLL 7s% 706,25r 78.7% 2,488,536 L7.7%

2,4% 57,908 12.o% t,892,s86 L3.4%Built 1950 to 1969 563

855 3.O% 70,3!2 t2.4o/o !,900,467 735%Built 1950 to 1959

267 L.O% 23,73! 4.2% 849,660 6.0%Built 1940 to 1949

Built 1939 or earlier 249 0.9% 26,784 4.7% L,299,679 9.2%

Total 28,098 100.0% 567,22O 100.0% 14,0lM.,824 100.0%

80 o.3% 1,651 o.3% 57,397 o.4%
Units Lacking Complete
Plumbing Facilities

L.2%
Units Lacking Complete
Kitchen Facilities

263 L,O% 4,479 0.8% t49,476

TABLE C-12: AGE OF HOUSING STOCK & HOUSING STOCK CONDITIONS, 2018

PaEe2-L4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 479

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The City operates the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair Program using CDBG and

Housing Trust Funds, which provides grants to lower-income homeowners for mobile

home and single family home repairs. These programs are described in Section 3.4 of

this report (lnventory of Local, State, and Federal Housing and Financing Programs).

Overcrowding
U.S. Census Bureau defines a housing unit as overcrowded when the total number of

occupants is greater than one person per room, excluding kitchens and bathrooms.

Units with more than 1.5 persons per room are considered severely overcrowded.

Table C-13 below compares overcrowding data for Folsom with data for Sacramento

County and California. ln 2018, only 1.3 percent of housing units (360 units) in Folsom

were considered overcrowded and 0.2 percent (45 units) were severely overcrowded.

Although overcrowding has increased slightly since 2010, when less than one percent

of Folsom's occupied housing units were overcrowded, these statistics show that
overcrowding continues to be less of a problem in Folsom than in Sacramento County

where 4.9 percent of all households had more than 1.0 persons per room, and in

California where 8.2 percent of households were considered overcrowded.

Source: lJ.S. Census Bureau, 2074-2078 American Community Survey 5-yedr Estimotes, Table 825014.

Overcrowding is typically more of a problem in rental units than owner-occupied units.

When broken out by tenure, approximately 63 percent of the overcrowded households in

Folsom were renter households. ln 2018, only 0.8 percent (148) of Folsom's owner

households had 1.01 or more persons per room, while approximately 3.2 percent (257) of

the renter households had 1,01 or more persons per room. ln Sacramento County, 2.5

percent of owner households and 8 percent of renter households were overcrowded.

Statewide, overcrowding was much greater with 4.0 percent of owner households and

13.3 percent of renter households having greater than 1.0 persons per room.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Households Percent Households Percent Households Percent

OWNER.OCCUPIED

97.5% 6,803,363 96.O/o1.00 or less 18,961 99.2% 292,590

1.01 to 1.50 t48 o.8% 5,692 r.9% 209,7L7 3.O%

1.51 or more 0 0.0% 1,800 o.6% 72,355 t.o%

Total 19,109 100.0% 300,082 100.0% 7,085,435 LOo.O%

RENTER.OCCUPIED

5,097,042 86.7%1.00 or less 7,9r9 96.9% 2r7,r35 92.O%

1.01 to 1.50 2r2 2.6% L3,423 s.7% 480,486 8.2%

1.51 or more 45 o.6% 5,389 23% 302,472 5.r%

100.0% 235,947 too.o% 5,ggo,ooo 100.0%Total 8,176

TOTAL OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS

1.00 or less 26,880 98.5o/o 509,725 9s.r% 11,900,405 9t.8%

1.01 to 1.50 360 1.3% 19,11s 3.6% 590,203 5.3o/"

0.2% 7,t89 L.3% 374,827 2.9%1.51 or more 45

100.0% t2,965,435 too.o%Total 27,285 LOO.O% 536,029

TABTE C-13: OVERCROWDING, 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-15Page 480

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@r-s@ad
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6

Source: lJ.S. Census Bureou, 2014-2078 Americon Community Survey S-Yeor Estimotes, Tables 52501, 51101, ond DP04,

Household Size
Table C-14 shows average household size by tenure for Folsom, Sacramento County, and

California in 2018. As shown in the table, Folsom's average household size in 2018 was 2.62

persont lower than the county average of 2.77 persons and the state average of 2.95 persons.

ln 2018, Folsom had an average household size for renter households of 2.27 persons

compared to 2.77 persons per owner household.

Folsom had a lower proportion of large households (five or more members) than

Sacramento County in 2018 (8.4 percent compared to 12.1 percent). Folsom also had a

slightly similar proportion of one- and two-person households as the county in 2018

(58.2 percent and 57.9 percent respectively).

Table C-15 shows the number of bedrooms by tenure in Folsom, Sacramento County,

and California in 2018. As shown in the table, owner-occupied units tend to be larger in

Folsom than in Sacramento County or statewide. ln 2018, 50.8 percent of owner-

occupied units in Folsom contained four or more bedrooms, compared to 36.2 percent

in Sacramento County. Renter-occupied units tend to have a smaller number of

CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Percent Households Percent Households PercentHouseholds

OWNER OCCUPIED

66,241 22.I% 1,399,383 19.8%1 Person 3,4LL 17.9%

6,887 36.Oo/o to4,240 34.7% 2,379,039 33.6%2 Persons

L63% 1,202,o25 17.o%3 Persons 3,346 t7s% 49,025

3,703 19.4% 44,369 L4.8% 2,r04,988 29.7%4 Persons (4+ for statewide)

L2.T%5 Persons or more r,762 9.2% 36,207

19,109 100.0% 300,082 100.0% 7,085,435 100.0%Total

Persons per Household 2.77 2.82 3.01

RENTER OCCUPIED

28.7o/o1 Person 3,777 38.9% 74,546 3t.6% 1,685,150

29.7% 55,136 27.6% 1,555,486 265%2 Persons 2,425

L63%3 Persons t,134 t3.9% 36,687 75.5% 959,771

1,r.2% 30,669 13.o% t,679,593 28.6%4 Persons (4+ for statewide) 916

5 Persons or more 524 6.4% 28,909 123%

235,947 LOO.O% 5,ggo,ooo too.o%Total I,176 LOO.O%

2.27 2.70 2.90Persons per Household

Att HOUSEHOTDS

6,s88 24j% r40,787 263% 3,084,533 23.8%1 Person

t69,376 3L.6% 3,934,525 3O.3o/o2 Persons 9,3L2 34.7%

4,480 L6.4% 85,712 t6.o% 2,r6t,796 16.7%3 Persons

L4.O% 3,784,587 29.2%4 Persons 4,6t9 L6.9% 75,038

2,286 8.4% 65,116 12.t%5 Persons or more

too.o% 12,965,435 100.0%Total 27,285 r00.0% 535,029

2.77 2.96Persons per Household 2.62

TABLE C-14: HOUSEHOLD SIZE BY TENURE, 2018

Page2-16 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 481

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



bedrooms than owner-occupied units. This was the case in Folsom in 2018, where only

9.8 percent of renter-occupied units had four or more bedrooms, but 25.1 percent of

renter-occupied units had only one bedroom compared to 0.8 percent of owner-

occupied units.

Source: |J.5. Census Bureou, 2014-2078 American Community Survey s-Year Estimates, Toble 825042.

Based on the information regarding housing unit and household sizes, Folsom has a

much lower need for large housing units than the county and state, Folsom has a smaller

average household size, larger housing units, and lower overcrowding rates than the

county and state.

Housing Affordability

Housing Cost Burdens

High housing costs can cause households to spend a disproportionate percentage of

their income on housing. Overpayment is defined as households paying more than 30

percent of theirgross income on housing related expenses, including rent or mortgage

payments and utilities. These households are considered "cost burdened." A "severe

cost burden" is defined as gross housing costs exceeding 50 percent of gross income.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Housing Units Percent Housing Units PercentHousing Units Percent

OWNER OCCUPIED

03% 46,883 o.7%No bedroom 25 o.L% 1,,037

1 bedroom 1s3 o.8% 3,629 I.2% L74,260 2.5%

2 bedrooms 1,859 9.7% 42,O84 L4.O% r,289,!52 18.2%

3 bedrooms 7,352 38.s% t44,723 48.2% 3,158,8L0 44.7%

4 bedrooms 7,59L 39.7% 89,080 29.7% 1,903,525 26.9%

2,729 n.L% 19,529 6.5% 502,805 7.L%5 or more bedrooms

Total 19,109 LOO.O% 300,082 too.o% 7,085,435 LOO.O%

RENIER OCCUPIED

No bedroom 247 3.Oo/o 9,776 4.7% 4s8,846 7.a%

55,559 23.5% r,52L,623 25.9%1 bedroom 2,055 25.t%

2 bedrooms 3,078 37.6% 89,797 38.r% 2,235,086 38.0%

24.4% L275763 20.7/o3 bedrooms 1,998 24.4% 57,527

4 bedrooms 749 9.2% L9,879 8,4% 376,478 6.4%

3,415 L.4% 72204 t.2%5 or more bedrooms 49 O.6/o

Total 8,176 too.o% 235,947 100.0% s,880,000 100.0%

ALt HOUSEHOTDS

No bedroom 272 7.O% 10,813 2.O% 505,729 3.9%

l" bedroom 2,208 8.1% 59,188 Lt.o% 1,695,883 73.L%

4,937 78.L% 13L,875 24.60/o 3,s24,238 27.2%2 bedrooms

3 bedrooms 9,350 343% 202,250 37.7% 4,384,573 33.8/o

30.6% 108,959 20.3% 2,280,003 17.6%4 bedrooms 8,340

5 or more bedrooms 2,778 8.0% 22,944 43% 575,009 4.4%

27,285 LOO.O% 536,029 100.0% 12,965,435 LOO.O%Total

TABLE C-15: NUMBER OF BEDROOMS BY TENURE, 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-L7Page 482

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOI-SOI\f,
2035

GENERAL PLAN FTE6
As shown in Table C-L6, 29.2 percent of all households in Folsom had a housing cost

burden greater than 30 percent in 2015. This rate is less than that of Sacramento County

(39.4 percent) and California (42 percent). Only 12.1 percent of all households in Folsom

had a housing cost burden greater than 50 percent in 2015 compared to 18.9 percent

and 20.4 percent for Sacramento County and California, respectively.

As would be expected, housing cost burdens were more severe for households with

lower incomes. Among lower-income households (incomes less than or equal to 80

percent of the area median family income (MFl)), 73.9 percent of households in Folsom

had a housing cost burden greater than 30 percent in 2015 compared to 16.7 percent

of non-lower-income households. This rate of housing cost burden for lower-income

households is higher in Folsom than in both Sacramento County (58.9 percent) and

California (69.3 percent).

Rates of housing cost burden were generally greater among low-income renter

households than among low-income owner households. However, for non-lower-

income renter households, rates of housing cost burden were lower than those of
owner-occupied households. This trend was common across the city, county, and the

state. ln Folsom, 84.2 percent of low-income renter households paid 30 percent or more

of their monthly incomes for housing costs in 2015, compared to 55.7 percent of low-

income owner households. However, rates of housing cost burden greater than 50

percent for low-income households were more similar between owners (44.6 percent)

and renters (50.3 percent). Among non-low-income households, the percentage of

owner households with housing cost burdens was higher than renter households (17.3

percent compared to 15.4 percent).

Page 2-18 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 483

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



69.3%

2,38s,340

47.2%

18,433,30s

1,328,430

7.2%

213390

!.2o/o

72,717,800

5,740,230

42.O%

2,598,730

20.4%

Total

s,787,470

4,011,800

3,640,700

2701625

74.2%

1,572,055

43.2%

7,427,730

315,6s0

4.2%

24025

o.3%

5,808,52s

3,Or7,275

5r.9%

1,596,080

27s%

Renters

California

Owners

2,146,770

t,3ro,170

67.0%

813,285

37.9Yo

4,762,405

7,072,77s

27.3%

189360

4.O%

6,909,175

2,322,945

33.6%

7,OO2,645

14.5%

Total

238,O75

764,O45

68.9%

93,720

39.4%

284,520

4I,7sO

74.7%

5,280

t.9%

522,595

205,795

39.4%

99,000

7A.9%

Renters

150,735

7LL,O70

73.7%

62,760

4t.6%

82,255

8,090

9.8Yo

495

o.6%

232,990

Ltg,t60

s7.L%

63,255

27.1%

Sacramento County

Owners

87,340

52,975

60.7%

30,960

35.4Yo

217,80s

33,660

L5.5%

4,785

2.2%

289,60s

86,635

29.9%

35,745

12.3%

Total

5,640

4,770

73.9%

2,660

47.2%

20,240

3,390

16.7%

475

23%

25,880

7,560

29.2%

3,135

L2.7%

Renters

2,525

2,r25

84.2%

7,270

50.3%

5,615

865

75.4%

40

o.7%

8,t40

2,990

36.7%

1,310

16.7o/o

1,390

M.6%

74,625

2,525

17.3%

435

3.0%

17,740

4,570

25.8%

7,825

to3%

Folsom

Owners

3,115

2,O45

65.7%

Percent w/ cost burden > 30%

Number w/ cost burden > 50%

Percent w/ cost burden > 50%

TOTAL HOUSEHOTDS

Total Households

Number w/ cost burden > 30%

Percent w/ cost burden > 30%

Number w/ cost burden > 50%

Percent w/ cost burden > 50%

LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS (HOUSEHOI"D INCOME <= 8096 MFI)

Total Households

Number w/ cost burden > 30%

Percent w/ cost burden > 30%

Number w/ cost burden > 50%

Percent w/ cost burden > 50%

NON-IOW-TNCOME HOUSEHOTDS (HOUSEHOTD TNCOME > 8095 MFt)

Total Households

Number w/ cost burden > 30%

TABIE C-16: HOUSING COST BURDEN BY HOUSEHOLD INCOME CLASSIFICAT|ON, 2015

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT

Source: HUD, Comprehensive Housing Alfordability Strotegy (CHAS) database, 2077-2015

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-19Page 484

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOl!{
2Q35

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Ability to Pay for Housing

Housing is considered "affordable" if households pay no more than 30 percent of

income for rent (including utilities) or monthly homeownership costs (including

mortgage payments, taxes, and insurance). HCD calculates incomes limits to determine

eligibility for affordable housing programs. According to HCD, the area median income

for a four-person household in Sacramento County was 586,300 in2020. Table C-17

shows the upper income limits by income category and household size.

Notes: AMI = Areo medion income
Source: Calilornio Deportment of Housing ond Community Development, 2020
https://www.hcd.co.gov/grants-funding/income-limits/stote-and-federal-income-
I i m its /d o c sl n co m e- Li m its- 20 20. p df

Table C-18 shows maximum affordable monthly rents and maximum affordable

purchase prices for homes. For example, a three-person household was classified as

low-income (80 percent of median) with an annual income of up to 562,150 in 2020. A

household with this income could afford to pay a monthly gross rent (including utilities)

of up to 51,554 or could afford to purchase a house priced at or below 5266,431,

Income limits by Persons per Household
lncome Categories t 2 3 4 5

Extremely Low-lncome
(<30% AMr) S18,150 s2o,7so $23,3s0 $26,2Oo s3o,68o

Very Low-lncome
(31-s0% AMr)

s30,2s0 534,ss0 s38,8s0 s43,1s0 s46,6so

$48,3s0 sss,2so s62,1so s6s,oso s74,6oo
Low-lncome
(s1-80% AMr)

s6o,40o s69,0s0 577,6s0 $86,300 s93,2oo
Median-lncome
(1oo% AMr)

Moderate-lncome
(81-120% AMr) S72,5oo s82,8so s93,2oo s1o3,sso s111,8s0

TABLE C-17: STATE AND FEDERAL INCOME LIMITS FOR

SACRAMENTO COUNTY, 2O2O

Page2-2O Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 485

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Studio lBR 2BR 3BR 4BR 5BR

EXTREMETY TOW{NCOME HOUSEHOTDS AT 3096 OF 2O2O MEDIAN FAMITY INCOME

Number of Persons t 2 3 4 5 6

s23,3so s26,200 s3o,68o s3s,160lncome Level s18,1so s2o,7so

Max. Monthly Gross Rent 1 S4s4 ssls ss84 s6ss $767 s87s

Max. Purchase Price 2 s77,8O7 s88,ss3 sr.00,099 5]-12,3t7 5r3t,s22 i]-so,727

VERY LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOTDS AT 50% OF 2O2O MEDIAN FAMITY INCOME

Number of Persons 7 2 3 4 5 6

s43,1so s46,6so sso,loolncome Level s3o,2so s34,sso s38,8so

Max. Monthly Gross Rent 1 Szse s864 s971 s1,o7s s1,166 s1,2s3

Max. Purchase Price 2 s729,679 51.48,tr2 s166,s46 $184,980 s199,984 $2r4,774

IOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS AT 80% OF 2O2O MEDIAN FAMITY INCOME

4 5 5Number of Persons 1 2 3

lncome Level s48,3so sss,2s0 s52,r.so 569,0s0 574,600 580,100

Max. Monthly Gross Rent 1 s1,2os s1,381 s1,ss4 5L,726 s1,86s s2,oo3

Max. Purchase Price 2 5207,272 s236,8s1 s266,43L s296,011 s319,803 s343,381

MEDIAN-INCOME HOUSEHOTDS AT 1OO% OF 2O2O MEDIAN FAMILY INCOME

L 2 3 4 5 6Number of Persons

lncome Level S6o,4oo s6e,oso s77,6so s86,3oo ss3,2oo $1oo,1oo

Max. Monthly Gross Rent 1 sL,sr.0 51.,726 s1,s41 S2,1s8 s2,330 s2,so3

Max. Purchase Price 2 s2s8,929 s296,011 s332,878 s369,s60 5399,s3e s42s,LLg

MODERATE-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS AT 120% OF2O2O MEDIAN FAMITY INCOME

Number of Persons I 2 3 4 5 5

lncome Level S72,soo s82,8s0 s93,2oo s103,ss0 s111,8s0 5120,100

Max. Monthly Gross Rent 1 s2,11s $2,476 s2,7t8 S3,o2o s3,262 s3,so3

5466,rze ss17,893 sss9,40s s600,655Max. Purchase Price 2 s362,600 s414,36s

TABIE C-18: ABILITY TO PAY FOR HOUSING BASED ON HUD INCOME LlMlTS, SACRAMENTO PMSA, 2020

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Notes: lncomes based on the Socramento primary metropolitdn statistical area (PMSA) (El Dorodo, Placer and Sacromento
Counties); FY 2020 Median Family lncome: 586,goo; HUD FY 202o lncome Limits
1 Assumes thot 30 percent (35 percent for moderote) of income is available for either: monthly rent, including utilities; or
mortgage payment, taxes, mortgage insurance, and homeowner's insuronce.
2 Assumes 96.5 percent loon at 4 percent annual interest rote ond 3o-yeor term; assumes taxes, mortgage insuronce, ond
homeowners' insurance occount for 27 percent of totol monthly poyments.

Source: U.S. Department of Housing ond Urban Development (HUD) 2020; and Ascent Environmental 2020.

Housing Values

Figure C-7 shows the median sales prices for homes in Folsom between March 2010 and

February 202O.The median sales price initially decreased from 2010 lo2012 but has

since increased significantly. Between February 2OI2 and February 2020, the median

sales price almost doubled, increasing by nearly 95 percent, from 5287,000 to 5559,100.

The February 2020 median sales price was out of reach for both lower- and moderate-

income families.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-2LPage 486

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOT{
203s

GENERAL PLAN HFT=ru
FIGURE C-7: MEDIAN SALES PRICE, CITY OF FOLSOM, MARCH 2010 -

FEBRUARY 202O

Fob 2020 - tulsom t559K

3587K

g77R

i356K

1256K

2011 2012 2013 zA1.4- 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Source: Zillow.com, 2O2O.

Table C-19 shows the approximate range of sales prices for new residential

developments in Folsom as of March 2020. As shown in the table, prices range from

about 5500,000 to 5730,000 depending on the number of bedrooms. starting prices for

new homes currently available are not affordable for low- or moderate-income

households.

Note: Prices vary depending on number of upgrades.
Source: New Home Source, March 19, 2020.

Table C-20 shows approximate rents for various market rate apartments in Folsom as of

March 2020. As shown, rents vary widely based on the number of bedrooms. One-

bedroom units range from about 51,400 to 52,200; two-bedroom units range from

51,400-53,000; and 3-bedroom units range from 51,900 to 53,200. Most ofthese rents

are affordable to moderate-income households. According to data from Yardi Matrix,

the average rent in Folsom was 51,944 in 2O2L; a 4 percent increase from 2020 when

the average rent was S1,858.

Name of Development
Number of Bedrooms/

Bathrooms Steel Canyon at
Russell Ranch

The Ridge at
Willow Creek

Waterstone at
Folsom Ranch

3 Bedrooms/ 2-3 Baths s497,9s0-ss2s,514 ss98,s82-s637,137 s648,ooo-s711,702

4Bedroom/ 2-3 Baths S513,950-S571,511 So43,ooo-S68s,G38

s675,000 s6s7,00-s731,seo5 Bedroom/ 3-4 Baths

TABLE C-19: TYPICAL SALES PRICES FOR NEW HOMES, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Page2-22 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 487

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Name of Rental Property 1 Bedroom 2 Bedrooms 3 Bedrooms

Canyon Terrace $r,47O - 52,L45 s1,600-s2,2ss

s1,sos s1,44s-s1,820
The Cottages at Folsom

Apartments

s1,754-s1,900Fairmont at Willow Creek s1,453-s1,808

Falls at Willow Creek s1,s4o-s1,63s s1,810-s1,92s 51,99s-S2,440

Hub Apartments s1,7ss-s1,e80 s2,070-s2,530 s2,ss0-s2,sss

s1,s11-s2,s30 52,s78-54,864lron Point Apartments sr,67t-52,177

s2,r25-s2,42sOverlook at Blue Ravine 51,470-St,77O sL,674-s2,OO

Talavera Apartments s1,7os-s2,o1s s2,1eo-s2,sso

The Pique Apartments 52,395-S2,92s s3,1ss

TABLE C.2O: TYPICAL RENTAL RATES FOR MARKET RATE APARTMENTS, CITY OF

FOLSOM, 2020

Note: Rentol rates are dpproximate
Sources: Forrent.com, March 2020.

Affordable Housing by Income/Occupation

Table C-21is an abbreviated list of occupations and annual incomesfor Folsom residents

such as fire fighters and police officers, employees of the Folsom Cordova Unified School

District, and minimum wage earners. A fire fighter earning an annual income of $80,302

could be considered median income depending on the household size and could afford

to purchase a home for 53 44,247. A nurse earning 558,427 could afford to pay 5250,472

for a home. With the median sales price of a home in Folsom at 5559,100 in March 2020,

all of the wage earners shown on the table would be priced out of the market unless

there are at least two wage earners in the household.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-23Page 488

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F''ON,SONfl
o5s --GENERAL PLAN nm=ru

Category Average lncome Affordable Rentl Affordable House Price2

6ENERAt OCCUPATIONS3

sro8,722 s2,718 $466,079Computer Software Engineer, Systems Software

Civil Engineer s116,750 s2,s1s ss00,497

Judicial Law Clerks 567,662 s1,6s2 s290,062

Construction Laborers s48,069 51,2O2 s206,066

5s8,427 s1,461 szso,472Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN)

CITYOF FOI.SOM

Fire Fighter s80,3o2 s2,008 s344,247

Police Officer 576,790 s1,s2o s329,191

Account Clerk 544,s6s 5r,124 5192,778

S1,so7 s2s8,342Li braria n s60,263

FOTSOM CORDOVA UNIFIED SCHOOT DISTRICT

Preschool Teacher, Step 1 (Teacher Permit) s3e,2o8 Sgeo s168,081

545,637 S1,166 s199,e28Teacher, Step 1 (Credential with Bachelors)

Teacher, with MA, Step 8 s61,837 s1,s46 s26s,089

TWO WAGE EARNERS

Civil Engineer and Paralegal/Legal Assistant sr84,472 s4,610 s79o,ss6

Firefighter and Librarian s144,10s s3,603 56L7,764

MINIMUM WAGE EARNERS

Single Wage Earner 527,04O 5676 s11s,918

Two Wage Earners ss4,o8o s1,3s2 s231,836

ssr (AGED OR DTSABLEDI

One-person household with SSI only s11,32s s283 s48,s4e

Couple with SSI only s18,986 s47s s81,391

TABLE C-21: AFFORDABTE RENTS AND HOUSING PRICES BY INCOME AND OCCUPATION,

SACRAMENTO PMSA,2O2O

Notes: lAssumes 30 percent of income devoted to monthly rent, including utilities
2Assumes 30 percent of income devoted to mortgqge payment and taxes, 96.5 percent loon ot 4 percent interest rote, 30-yeqr term; assumes

toxes, mortgoge insurance, and homeowners' insuronce occount for 2L percent of totol monthly payments.
3General Occupotion incomes bosed on the Socramento primory metropoliton stotisticol area (PMSA) and City of Folsom 2078 Solary
Schedule, Step D.

SSI = Supplemental Security lncome
Sources: Ascent Environmental, 2020; City of Folsom Salary Schedule, 2018; Folsom-Cordovo Unified School District,2019; Colifornia
Employment Development Deportment, 2020.

2.2 Special Housing Needs
Within the general population of Folsom there are several groups of people who have

special housing needs. These needs can make it difficult for members of these groups

to locate suitable housing. The following subsections discuss the special housing needs

of six groups identified in State housing element law (Government Code, Section

65583(aX7)): seniors; persons with disabilities, including a developmental disability;

large families; farmworkers; families with female heads of households; and families and

persons in need of emergency shelter.

Page2-24 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 489

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

2.2.1 SENIORHOUSEHOLDS
Seniors are defined as persons 55 years and older, and senior households are those

households headed by a person 65 years and older. Seniors often face unique housing

problems. While many may own their homes outright, fixed retirement incomes may

not always be adequate to cover rising utility rates and insurance. Also, many elderly

homeowners do not have sufficient savings to finance necessary repairs.

Table C-22 shows information on the number of seniors, the number of senior

households, and senior households by tenure in Folsom, Sacramento County, and

California in 2018. The share of seniors increased in Folsom, Sacramento County, and

California from 2010 to 2018. ln 2018, seniors represented 13 percent of the population

and 21.3 percent of all households in Folsom. Senior households have a high

homeownership rate; 79.4 percent of senior households in Folsom owned their homes

in 2018, compared to 70 percent of all households in the city.

Source: U.S. Census Buredu, 2014-2018 American Community SuNey s-year estimates, Table 825007 ond 50101.

ln general, most senior households consist of a single elderly person living alone, or a

couple. While some seniors may prefer to live in single family detached homes, others

desire smaller, more affordable homes with less upkeep, such as condos, townhouses,

apartments, or mobile homes, Many seniors seek single-story homes that will allow

them to age in place. Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are another potential source of

housing for seniors.

Some seniors have the physical and financial ability to continue driving well into their
retiremen! however, those who cannot or chose not to drive must rely on alternative

forms of transportation. This includes not only bus routes, rail lines, and ride sharing

programs, but also safe, walkable neighborhoods.

Folsom Sacramento County California

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

POPUtANON

Total Population 77,OO7 100.0% t,54O,975 100.0% 39,L48,760 100.0%

Number of Persons 55 years and older 9,973 73.0% 217,444 14.t% 5,375,457 L3.6%

Male 4,344 43.60/o 93,987 43.2% 2,357,611, 44.4%

Female 5,529 56.4% t23,457 56.8Yo 2,957,846 s5.6%

HOUSEHOTDS

Total Households 27,285 100.0% 536,029 too.o% 12,965,435 700.o%

Owner L9,109 7O.Oo/o 300,082 56.O% 7,085,435 54.6%

Renter 8,r76 3O.Oo/o 235,947 44.O% 5,880,000 45.4%

Senior Headed-Households 5,819 100.0% 117,954 100.0% 3,023,958 100.0%

Owner 4,623 79.4% 86,r42 73.0% 2,206,405 73.0%

Renter t,t96 20.6% 37,8I2 27.0% 817,553 27.0%

Seniors as percent of all Households 2t.3% 22.Oo/o 23.3%

Percent of Owner households
headed by a senior

24.2% 28.7% 3I.to/o

Percent of Renter households
headed by a senior

14.60/o t3.5% 73.9%

TABLE C-22: SENIOR POPUTATIONS AND HOUSEHOLDS, 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-25Page 490

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSONI
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
Table C-23 shows the proportion of individuals living below the poverty level in Folsom

and Sacramento County. Although the proportion of the total population living below

poverty level in Folsom (5.4 percent) is much lower than in Sacramento County (15.8

percent), the table shows that Folsom seniors were more likely to experience poverty

(5.6 percent) than the City's total population.

Source: U.S. Census Bureou, 2074-2078 American Community Survey S-year estimotes, Table

s1707.

Supplemental Security lncome (SSl) is a needs-based program that pays monthly

benefits to persons who are 65 or older, blind, or have a disability. Seniors who have

never worked or have insufficient work credits to qualifo for Social Security disability

often receive 5Sl benefits. ln fact, SSI is the only source of income for a number of low-

income seniors. Recently the SSI program has undergone funding cuts, lowering the

maximum monthly benefit to 5943 in 2020. SSI recipients that are solely dependent on

this source of income have difficulty finding housing.

The City has two affordable senior housing developments. ln 2003, USA Properties

Fund, lnc. developed Vintage Willow Creek-a 184-unit housing development for low-

and very low-income persons of 55 years or older. Creek View Manor, built by Mercy

Housing in 2OO7, is a 138-unit affordable senior housing project located adjacent to
Mercy Hospital in Folsom. The housing project offers cottage and apartment-style units,

as well as a community center, for low- and very low-income persons who are 55 years

or older.

These affordable senior housing projects meet some of the need for senior housing.

Some of Folsom's low-income seniors also live at Mercy Village and Folsom Gardens,

two affordable housing developments in Folsom that each have long waiting lists. ln

addition, the mobile home parks continue to serve as the primary source of affordable

housing for Folsom seniors.

Other housing types that are increasingly meeting the needs of seniors are accessory

dwelling units (ADUs) and multi-generational housing units. An ADU, often referred to
as a granny flat, is an additional self-contained living unit, either attached to or detached

from the primary residential unit on a single lot. ADUs are smaller, more affordable units

that can provide housing for elderly residents. They can also provide supplemental

income for homeowners, allowing the elderly to remain in their homes. Multi-
generational units are single-family homes that are built with a separate, attached living

space, or suite, that allows elderly family members to reside in the same home. The

Housing Element contains policies and programs to encourage new ADUs and

multigenerational housing units to be built in Folsom.

Folsom Sacramento County

Total PercentageTotal Percentage

Total Population 77,0O7 too.o% 1,510,023 100.0%

Below Poverty Level 4,158 5.AYo 238,584 75.8Yo

Population over 55 9,539 LOO.O% 199,r43 700.o%

1O.3YoBelow Poverty Level 632 6.6% 20,591

TABLE C-23: POPULATION OVER 65 BELOW POVERTY RATE, 2018

Page2-26 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 491

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The City also has a program to assist senior homeowners, who often face the problem

of maintaining their homes. Folsom's Seniors Helping Seniors program is designed to

assist those seniors who do not have the financial resources to make necessary home

repairs related to health and safety. Examples of the types of repairs made include

repairing leaky faucets, installing grab bars, and replacing broken windows.

2.2.2 PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES, INCLUDING DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITIES

According to the 2014-2018 American Community Survey five-year estimate, there are

5,859 people, or 8.2 percent of the civilian non-institutionalized population age 5 or

older, in Folsom that have a disability. As shown in Table C-24,5 percent (2,144 persons)

of Folsom residents aged 18 to64 143,224 persons) in 2018 had a disability, which was

less than Sacramento County (10 percent) and California (8 percent). Ambulatory and

cognitive disabilities were the most common types of disabilities in Folsom.

Source: lJ.S. Census Bureau, 2014-2078 Americon Community Survey 9-year estimates, Toble 51810.

Table C-25 shows the employment levels of persons with disabilities age 18 to 64 in

Folsom, Sacramento County, and California in 2018. The majority of persons with

disabilities in Folsom are not in the labor force (62.7 percent).

Source: lJ,S, Census Buredu, 2074-2018 American Community Survey S-yeor estimotes, Table C18120.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Folsom Sacramento County California

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

too.o%
24,374,52

I 700.Oo/oTotal Persons 43,224 IOO.O%o 934,L90

5.O% 93,440 LO.O% 1,97r,987 8.0%Total Persons with a disability 2,r44

407 18.7% 16,310 t7.5% 36s,440 t8.5%Hearing Difficulty

173% 378,t42 L9.2%Vision Difficulty 453 2L1% L6,t43

42,983 46.0% 848,097 43.0%Cognitive Difficulty 1,003 46.8%

9s4 445% 43,066 46.L% 910,528 46.2%Ambulatory Difficulty

Self-care Difficulty 394 L8.4% 18,391 79.7Yo 377,584 79.L%

742,808 37.7%lndependent Living Difficulty 823 38.4% 37,910 40.6%

TABLE C-24: DISABILITY STATUS & TYPES OF DISABILITIES FOR ClVltlAN
NONINSTITUTIONALIZED POPULATION AGE 18 TO 64 YEARS,2018

CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

93,440 700.o% t,97I,98I 700.o%Total Persons with Disability 2,L44 L00.o%

32.O% 696,709 353%Employed with Disability 764 3s.6% 29,9t0

7r5,207 s.8%Unemployed with Disability 36 r.7% 6,034 6.5/o

7,344 62.7% 57,496 61,.5% 1,160,065 58.8%Not in Labor Force with Disability

TABLE C-25: EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF NONINSTITUTIONALIZED POPULATION WITH DISABILITIES, AGE

18 TO 64 YEARS, 2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-27Page 492

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOr-SOlW
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
Developmentat Disabi lities
State housing element law requires an evaluation of the special housing needs of

persons with developmental disabilities. A "developmental disability" is defined as a

disability that originates before an individual becomes 18 years old, continues or can be

expected to continue indefinitely, and constitutes a substantial disability for that

individual. This includes mental retardation, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, and autism.

As shown in Table C-24, the 2OL4-2OI8 American Community Survey estimates that

1,003 Folsom residents have a cognitive difficulty, which comprises 46.8 percent of

disabilities in the city. According to the California Department of Developmental

Services, as of June 2020, 582 Folsom residents received services for developmental

disabilities.l Of those receiving services, approximately 96 percent live in the home of a

parent, family, or guardian, while only approximately 4 percent reside in

independent/supported living. Many developmentally disabled persons are able to live

and work. However, more severely disabled individuals require a group living

environment with supervision, or an institutional environment with medical attention

and physical therapy.

The California Department of Development Services reports that as of June 2O20, in

Folsom, 60.7 percent of those receiving services were aged 17 years or younger and

39.3 percent were aged 18 or older. Because developmental disabilities exist before

adulthood, the first housing issue for the developmentally disabled is the transition

from living with a parent/guardian as a child to an appropriate level of independence as

an adult.

Housing Needs
Persons with disabilities in Folsom have different housing needs depending on the

nature and severity of the disability. Physically-disabled persons generally require

modifications to their housing units such as wheelchair ramps, elevators or lifts, wide

doorways, accessible cabinetry, and modified fixtures and appliances. lf a disability

prevents a person from operating a vehicle, then proximity to services and access to
public transportation are particularly important. lf a disability prevents an individual

from working or limits income, then the cost of housing and the costs of modifications

are likely to be even more challenging. Those with severe physical or mental disabilities

may also require supportive housing, nursing facilities, or care facilities. ln addition,

many persons with disabilities rely solely on Social Security lncome, which is insufficient

for market rate housing.

While there are no special affordable housing projects designed exclusively for persons

with disabilities in Folsom, the City adopted a Reasonable Accommodation Ordinance

in 2011 to facilitate equal access to housing for persons with disabilities and remove

barriers for people with disabilities to live in the community. ln addition, the City has

adopted the 2019 CALGreen Code and 2019 California Building Code including Title 24

regulations dealing with accessibility for persons with disabilities. Thus, newer multi-

family housing will at least meet minimum standards for disabled access.

1 Based on residents in the 95630 zip code which currently covers all of the occupied areas of Folsom.

Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 2-28 Page 493

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

2.2.3 LARGE FAMILIES/HOUSEHOLDS

HUD defines a large household or family as one with five or more members. Table C-

25 below shows the number and share of large households in Folsom, Sacramento

County, and California in 2018. As shown in the table, in 2018, 8.4 percent of all

households in Folsom had five or more persons. Of these large households,7,762

were owner households and 524 were renter households. The proportion of large

households in Folsom was less than that of both Sacramento County (12.1 percent)

and California (14 percent).

Large families may have specific needs that differ from other families due to income and

housing stock constraints. The most critical housing need of large families is access to
larger housing units with more bedrooms than a standard three-bedroom dwelling.

Multifamily rental housing units typically provide one or two bedrooms and not the

three or more bedrooms that are required by large families. As a result, large families

that are unable to rent single family houses may be overcrowded in smaller units.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2074-2018 American Community Survey s-yeor estimotes, Toble 825009 and 825010.

2.2.4 SINGLE.HEADED HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN

According to the U.S, Census Bureau, a single-headed household contains a household

head and at least one dependent, which could include a child, an elderly parent, or non-

related child. As shown in Table C-27, there were 2,132 single-headed households with

children, comprising 7.8 percent of total households, at the time of the 2014-2018

American Community Survey. Approximately two-thirds of these households are single-

female households, which make up 5.2 percent of all households in Folsom. Single male-

headed households make up approximately 33 percent of all single-headed households,

and 2.6 percent of all households in the city. The percentage of single-headed

households, both male- and female-headed, is low compared to the county and state.

Folsom Sacramento County California

Households Percent Households Percent Households Percent

OWNER-OCCUPIED

L7,347 90.8% 263,875 87.9o/o 6,r20,370 86.4%Less than 5 persons

36,207 12.t% 965,065 t3.6%5+ persons t,762 9.2o/o

Total 19,109 LOO.O% 300,082 100.0% 7,095,435 too.o%

Persons per household 2.77 2.82 3.01

RENTER-OCCUPIED

Less than 5 persons 7,652 93.60/o 207,038 87,7% s,034,903 85.6%

5+ persons 524 6.4% 28,909 12.3o/o 845,097 14.4%

Total I,ll6 100.0% 2?5,947 100.o% 5,880,000 too.o%

Persons per household 2.27 2.70 2.90

ALt HOUSEHOTDS

470,9t3 87.9% 17,L55,273 86.0%Less than 5 persons 24,999 91.6%

5+ persons 2,286 8.4o/o 6s,116 12.1% 7,gt0,162 14.0%

Total 27,285 100.o% 535,029 100.0% 12,965,435 100.0%

Persons per household 2.62 2.77 2.96

TABTE C-26: TARGE HOUSEHOLDS,2018

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-29Page 494

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()T{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
CaliforniaFolsom Sacramento County

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

27,285 tOO.O/o 536,029 700.0% 12,965,435 roo.a%Total Households

5.2% 44,898 8,4% t,006,277 7.8%Single female households with children r,429

Single male households with children 703 2.6% L6,360 3.7o/o 410,505 3.2Yo

Total single-headed households with
children

2,t32 7.8% 6L,2s8 LL.4% L,416,782 t0.9%

TABLE C-27: SINGLE-PARENT HOUSEHOLDS, 2018

Source: U,S. Census Bureau, 2074-2A78 Americdn Community Survey Table 57107.

Because they generally have only one potential wage earner, single-headed households

often have more difficulty finding adequate, affordable housing than families with two

adults. Also, single-headed households with small children may need to pay for

childcare, which further reduces disposable income. This special needs group will

benefit generally from expanded affordable housing opportunities. More specifically,

the need for dependent care also makes it important that housing for single-headed

families be located near childcare facilities, schools, youth services, medical facilities, or

senior services.

2.2.5 FARMWORKERS
The city of Folsom is not an agricultural community. The 20L4-2018 American

Community Survey reported that 122 individuals were employed in the agricultural,

forestry, fishing, and hunting industry. However, the survey did not report specifically

on whether these individuals were seasonal laborers, farm or ranch owner-operators,

or "hobby" farmers. Since there are no large agricultural operations nearby that would

attract a substantial seasonal farmworkers population, there is no identifiable need for
farmworker housing in Folsom.

However, it should be noted that agriculture is prevalent in other areas of Sacramento

County. According to data from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, in 2017 there were 349

farms in the county employing 4,759 agricultural workers. There are 26 employee housing

facilities in the county housing 974 employees, Most of the farmland is within the southern

portion of the county, near Sloughouse, Rancho Murrieta, and in the Delta region.

2.2.6 HOMELESS PERSONS

Sacramento Steps Forward is the lead agency for the HUD Continuum of Care (CoC)

program in Sacramento County. Sacramento Steps Forward provides point-in-time

counts of sheltered and unsheltered homeless persons every two years. The most

recent point-in-time count from January 2019 identified 17 unsheltered homeless

individuals in Folsom and 5,570 individuals throughout Sacramento County. However,

the true size of the homeless population in Folsom is difficult to estimate because there

are a limited number of formal homeless shelters or other facilities such as daytime

drop-in service centers where homeless persons would be attracted and their numbers

could be more easily counted. The Folsom Police Department has tracked

approximately 50 individuals experiencing homelessness in Folsom. Service providers in

Folsom say the homeless population in the city fluctuates, but they estimate it is closer

to 70 individuals.

Page 2-30 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 495

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Folsom Service Providers
There are several homeless population service providers in Folsom including Twin Lakes

Food Bank, St. Vincent de Paul, HART of Folsom (HART), and Powerhouse Ministries.

Twin Lakes Food Bank provides on-site grocery distribution, grocery delivery for seniors,

and holiday food drives. St. Vincent de Paul (Helping Hands) provides clothing and

linens. HART and Powerhouse Ministries offer shelters, housing, mentorship programs,

and other services for homeless.

HART of Folsom

ln September 2016, the Folsom Police Department collaborated with various faith

communities to propose a Folsom Faith and Homeless lnitiative. Through this effort,

HART was officially founded in July 2017. Also, during this time, the City entered into a

contract with Sacramento Self Help Housing (SSHH) to provide a new homeless

specialist (Navigator) for the city. HART works closely with the SSHH Navigator, the

Folsom Police Department, and other organizations to provide resources and services

to the homeless population.

HART provides emergency and transitional housing as well as mentoring and resource

connections for homeless individuals. HART currently has a four-bedroom house and

trailer with capacity to provide transitional housing for up to 8 individuals. HART primarily

serves single adults and is not equipped to take in families with children. HART continues

to seek opportunities to expand transitional housing services through master lease

agreements with the Sacramento Self-Help Housing. ln addition, HART coordinates with

host churches to provide emergency shelter to individuals during the winter months

(generally December through March). As required by the City's Municipal Code,

emergency shelters accessory to religious facilities are limited to 20 beds. ln 2020, HART

provided emergency shelter from December L5,2O19, through March 7, 2020, with an

average of 11 guests per night and the highest number of guests at 19. During the

2019/2020 winter, HART provided emergency shelter services to a total of 68 individuals

over 84 nights. Most individuals spent between 2 and 14 nights at the shelter. Of the

individuals served during Ihe 20L912020 winter shelter, 3 individuals moved into

transitional housing and 2 individuals moved into permanent housing.

Powerhouse Ministries

ln 2004 Powerhouse Ministries, a local faith-based organization, opened Powerhouse

Transition Center (now known as the Powerhouse Transformation Center), Folsom's

first transitional housing for homeless individuals. The Transformation Center, which

was relocated to the organization's Wales Drive location, is currently (December 2020)

being expanded to accommodate up to 40 women and children at a time and offers

lodging, showers, and three daily meals. The Transformation Center provides a low-

barrier, emergency shelter as well as transitional housing to women over the age of 18

and to single mothers with up to four children. Emergency shelter services are provided

up to five months, at which time individuals have the option of applying to the

transitional housing program. The transitional housing program is approximately 18

months in duration. Clients attend counseling and classes, and a case manager is

assigned to each individual to help them transition to independent living. Both the

emergency shelter and transitional housing programs are housed at the Transformation

Center. As of December 2O2O, the center is being expanded to provide 20 shelter beds

and 20 transitional housing beds anticipated for completion in Spring 2021.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-31Page 496

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"OLSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
ln addition, Powerhouse Ministries Community Care Center, located at the Market

Street drop-in center, provides other additional services, including utility assistance,

rent and mortgage assistance, assistance locating affordable housing, medical services

and grants for prescriptions, drug and alcohol recovery, legal assistance, and many

other social services.

The organization currently serves a total 2,150 individuals experiencing or at-risk of

homelessness through its variety of programs. Powerhouse Ministries estimates,

approximately 120 of the individuals served are experiencing or at risk of homelessness

and 4 are currently in transient housing. Although the number of people living on the

streets has increased, more often, homeless individuals are crowding into housing, and

living house-to-house.

Need for Emergency Shelters
Assembly Bill 139, passed in 2019, requires that housing elements address the need for
emergency shelters. The City's housing element must assess the need for emergency

shelter based on the capacity necessary to accommodate the most recent homeless

point-in-time count, the number of shelter beds available on a year-round and seasonal

basis, the number of beds that go unused on an average monthly basis, and the
percentage of those in emergency shelters that move to permanent housing. The most

recent homeless point-in-time count (2019) identified 17 unsheltered individuals

residing in Folsom, 0.4 percent of the County's unsheltered population. ln addition, to

the unsheltered individuals included in the point-in-time count, approximately 30

individuals were in emergency shelters on the night of the latest point-in-time count.

As discussed above, Powerhouse Ministries is expanding its facility to provide 20

emergency shelter beds. ln addition, HART of Folsom, facilitates overnight emergency

shelter services accommodating a maximum of 20 beds from mid-December through

March. Based on the most recent point-in-time count and the approximate number of

sheltered individuals on the night of the point-in-time count, a minimum of 47

emergency shelter beds would be required to meet the needs of the City's unsheltered

population. However, HART, as well as other service providers, estimates that the City's

unsheltered population is approximately 70 individuals, much higher than the current

point-in-time count indicates. The need for emergency shelter beds likely exceeds the

need indicated by the point-in-time count. The City recognizes the need for additional

emergency shelter facilities and encourages, through the Zoning Ordinance

amendment, the development of emergency shelters. Section 3.3, "Resource

lnventory" describes the vacant sites that are zoned to allow emergency shelters by-

right. As demonstrated in that analysis, the City's capacity to accommodate emergency

shelters exceeds the need described above.

Service Needs of People Experiencing Homelessness
The circumstances of people in need of assistance can vary widely. There is a need for
many different types of shelter solutions for the homeless and those at risk of becoming

homeless. Historically, many social service organizations and resources have been

located in other parts of Sacramento County, particularly in the City of Sacramento.

Page2-32 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 497

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



According to homeless service providers, a number of homeless persons face drug

addiction and mental health conditions and need services to overcome these

challenges. Although drug and mental health services are available to homeless persons

in the County, these services are not located in Folsom and individuals have to commute

long distances, often via bus or light rail, to access support services. Service providers

also expressed a need for job and career services. Homeless individuals are able to
access computers at the Folsom Public Library, but no careerfob centers are available

in Folsom to assist persons with job applications and hiring processes. lncreasing

transportation to services within the county and/or bringing satellite services into

Folsom could assist homeless persons in accessing such services. ln addition, an increase

in CDBG, HOME, or other funding sources could be used by the City to support

partnerships with nonprofits or other service providers.

ln addition to services, one of the greatest challenges faced by homeless persons is the

lack of affordable housing available in Folsom. Many homeless persons are long-time

Folsom residents and want to remain in Folsom near family, friends, and other support

groups. lncreasing the availability of affordable housing in Folsom would help to bring

homeless persons into permanent housing.

2.2.7 EXTREMELY LOW.INCOME HOUSEHOLDS

Extremely low-income households are defined as households with incomes under 30

percent of the county's median income. Extremely low-income households typically

consist of minimum wage workers, seniors on fixed incomes, and persons with

disabilities. This income group is likely to live in overcrowded and substandard housing

conditions. ln Folsom, a household of three with an income of 523,350 in 2020 would

qualify as an extremely low-income household.

Table C-28 below shows the number of extremely low-income households and their

housing cost burden in Folsom, Sacramento County, and California in 2016. The data

shows that while Folsom had a much smaller share of extremely low-income households

(5.8 percent) than the county (16.3 percent) and state (16.2 percent), a slightly higher

percentage of the city's extremely low-income households had a severe cost burden

compared to the county and state.

The City of Folsom has programs in place that serve extremely low-income households.

The City has partnered with Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) to

issue Housing Choice Vouchers, which provide rental assistance to extremely low-

income households. The City operates the Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repair

Program, which provides grants to lower-income homeowners for mobile home and

single family home repairs. This program supports seniors on fixed incomes and is an

important program for maintaining the existing supply of affordable housing. The City's

Housing Fund also allows the City to grant funds to projects for extremely low-income

households. The City's Housing Funds were recently used to fund 18 extremely low-

income units included in the Talavera Ridge, Bidwell Place, and Parkway Apartments

projects. As described in the constraints analysis, the City's zoning code allows single-

room occupancy (SRO) housing by-right in the C-2 zone and with a CUP in the C-3 zone

and R-4 zone. SROs are a potential source of housing for extremely low-income

households.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-33Page 498

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN mffiE6
Folsom Sacramento County California

Owners Renters Total Ownerc Renters Total Owners Renters Total

20,505 55,345 85,950 555,350 L,520,405 2,075,765
Number of Extremely
Low-lncome Households

540 890 1,530

t6.2%
Percent of Total
Households

2.4% 3.4% s.8% 3.9% 12.4% t6.3% 43% 7L.9%

Number w/ cost burden
>30%

485 740 1,275 L5,445 53,605 59,040 406,695 7,233,725 L,640,420

Percent w/ cost burden
> 30%

75.8/o 83.r% 79.4% 75.O% 82.O% 80.3% 73.2% 8L,L% 79.0%

695 1,130 72,955 46,620 59,570 334,O20 1,047,760 1,381,780
Number w/ cost burden
> 50%

440

73.9% 62.9% 7L3% 69.3% 60.L% 68.90/o 66.6%
Percent w/ cost burden
>50%

68.8% 78.L%

TABLE C-28: HOUSING COST BURDEN OF EXTREMELY LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS, 2016

Source: HUD, Comprehensive Housing Affordobility Strotegy (CHAS) Dotobose,2006-2016.

2.3 Fair Housing
Assembly Bill 685, signed in 2018, requires each city or county to take actions to

overcome patterns of segregation, address disparities in housing needs and access to
opportunity, and foster inclusive communities. Housing elements must now include an

assessment of fair housing practices, examine the relationship of available sites to areas

of high opportunity, identify and prioritize contributing factors to fair housing issues,

and include actions to affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH).

2.3.1 ASSESSMENT OF FAIR HOUSING ISSUES

This section examines existing conditions and demographic patterns in Folsom including

integration and segregation, concentrated areas of poverty, areas of low and high

opportunity, and disproportionate housing needs. The analysis is provided at both a

local and regional level, describing settlement patterns across the region, as well as local

data and knowledge, and other relevant factors. This analysis is used to identify and

prioritize contributing factors that inhibit fair housing in Folsom.

The information in this section is partly from the Analysis of lmpediments to Fair

Housing Choice (Al) report, prepared for the Sacramento Valley Fair Housing

Collaborative in February 2020. The Al assessed fair housing in cities and

unincorporated jurisdictions of Placer, Sacramento, and Yolo counties, including the City

of Folsom. Folsom is a CBDG non-entitlement jurisdiction; therefore, HUD does not

report data specific to Folsom, and results in the Al specific to Folsom are limited.

Folsom specific data from the American Community Survey and the HCD AFFH Data and

Mapping Resources Tool has also been included where available.

Fair Housing Enforcement and Outreach
Fair housing complaints can be used as an indicator to identify characteristics of

households experiencing discrimination in housing. Pursuant to the California Fair

Employment and Housing Act [Government Code Section L292t (all, the opportunity to

PaEe2-34 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 499

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



seek, obtain, and hold housing cannot be determined by an individual's "race, color,

religion, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, marital

status, national origin, ancestry, familial status, source of income, disability, veteran or

military status, genetic information, or any other basis prohibited by Section 51 of the

Civil Code."

Fair housing issues that may arise in any jurisdiction include but are not limited to:

o housing design that makes a dwelling unit inaccessible to an individual with a

disability;
o discrimination against an individual based on race, national origin, familial status,

disability, religion, or sex when renting or selling a housing unit; and

o disproportionate housing needs including cost burden, overcrowding, substandard

housing, and risk of displacement.

The City primarily works with the County of Sacramento to conduct outreach related to

fair housing. The following resources are available to Folsom residents.

. The Renters Helpline: A telephone hotline that provides telephone counseling and

mediation services for residents of Sacramento County to help resolve a housing

crisis or dispute. The program counselors deal directly with concerns regarding

landlord-tenant disputes and help refer fair housing issues to the appropriate

agency. Data from the Renter's Helpline shows a total of eight calls received

between April 2020 and February 202! from Folsom residents. These calls were

primarily from extremely low income non-Hispanic White tenants (7 individuals)

with the remaining individuals identifying as White and Hispanic (1 individual),

Sixty-three percent of the calls (or 5 calls) were related to complaints regarding a

person with a disability and a reasonable accommodation request. Other calls were

related to extending time to stay in unit due to COVID-19 and preferential

treatments based on familial status.
o Website Outreach: The City provides fair housing resources on the City website and

directs residents to appropriate agencies and resources for fair housing assistance.

. Fair Housing Seminar: The City hosted an Essentials of Fair Housing Seminar in June

2019 to help rental owners and property managers understand and comply with

state and federal fair housing laws that prevent housing discrimination.
o Code Enforcement: Historically, code enforcement does not receive or process

specific fair housing complaints in regard to the type of housing offered or not

offered; however, the Code Enforcement Division will receive some rental housing

complaints regarding the general lack of maintenance or dilapidation. On average,

this would be less than 5 percent of the City's annual case load and all cases are

investigated and brought into compliance. The goal of code enforcement is to help

the community improve the quality of life and ensure the health and safety of all

Folsom residents.

Housing Element Community Out reach

As discussed in Section 1,5, Public Participation, the City implemented a number of

methods to receive input on housing needs and strategies. The City conducted targeted

outreach to various stakeholders, including representatives of people with disabilities

and the homeless, affordable housing developers, and advocates. The City also solicited

input from the broader community though a community survey. Survey results

generally pointed to concerns about building more housing, particularly multifamily and

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-35Page 500

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSO1r{
203s

GENERAL PLAN nm=6
lower-income housing. ln addition to outreach conducted for the Housing Element, the

Sacramento Valley Fair Housing Collaborative conducted targeted outreach through

focus groups and a community survey as part of research for the Regional Al. The City

also supported this outreach by promoting the survey on the City's website.

lntegration and Segregation Patterns and Trends

Overview of Racial and Ethnic Characteristics

The Sacramento Valley region has become more diverse in recent decades and has

higher shares of Hispanic and Asian residents than the national average. ln 2017, non-

Hispanic White residents made up 55.7 percent of the population within the region,

compared to 73 percent in 1990. Figure C-8 shows the racial and ethnic distribution in

the Sacramento Region as of 2010.

Page 2-36 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 501

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-8: SACRAMENTO RACIAL AND ETHNIC DISTRIBUTION

L
sLrnERco.

'll-v.'' l

:.. jt^{tlll

\.1.'ri

Folrm City Limih

Sacramento County

L€gend - DemogLraphics 2010

1 Dd=75

ffiwnite, Non-Hiopanrc

ffileu*, Noa-Hispanic

ffi xispanic

,.r(#til'i,.

ELDQ O'CO.

YOLO CO.

ci
(J
q
oo

=

SoLANO CO.

Source: HUD Data Exchange AFFH Map Tool

-,i F"?.
r'-'t'-.{:::
'i i ' SANJOAQU/N CO.

@

ffi ttctiue American, Non-Hispanic

ffi &iarveacinc lrlcnder, Non-Hispanic

19010177.01 GRX 001

i,'..:

...., 
t, t

-l t14
sAqRAM.ErVrO co.

ll'

(
/. 

,$

,.'. l^ll',HtlL

Public Draft | Revised August 202L Page2-37Page 502

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'(Dr-g{}hd
203s

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru
Folsom and several other suburbs east of Sacramento are less diverse than the region

as a whole; however, the diversity in Folsom has grown in the past decade (see Figure

C-9). ln 2010, residents who identified as a race or ethnicity other than non-Hispanic

White comprised 25.8 percent of the Folsom population (not including persons in

correctional facilities). ln 2Ot9, they comprised 33.6 percent of the total population (see

Table C-29 below). Specifically, the Asian American community made the largest

demographic gains over the past decade rising from 12.9 percent of the population in

2010 to 17,3 percent in 2019, However, Folsom's Black community has decreased from

1.9 percent of the population in 2010 to 0.9 percent in 2019. This data suggests that the

city lost about half of the it's Black residents over the past decade,

Furthermore, the Sacramento Valley Al found a higher share of the Folsom population

is foreign-born than the regional average, at 16 percent. There are a large number of

Spanish, Chinese, and Hindi speakers in Folsom. No Hispanic majority or non-majority

census tracts are located within Folsom, with the exception of Folsom State Prison.

However, according to census data, several pockets of the city have higher Asian

populations (20 percent or greater) and lower Non-Hispanic White populations (60

percent or lower) than Folsom as a whole.

Notes: llncludes "other" raciol cotegory ond "two or more races"
Source: lJ.S. Census Bureou, 2006-2010 ond 2015-2019 American Community Survey S-Year Estimotes, Tables

8110028 - 8110021, ond DP05.

2010 Total
Population

2010 (Not
Including Persons
in Group Homes)

2019 Total
Population

2019 {Not
lncluding Persons
in Group Homes)

RaciaUEthnic
Category

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

48,328 6L.8% 49,540 66.4%White (non-Hispanic) 46,O47 66.7% 45,098 74.2To

s,o22 73% t,L46 L.9% 2,565 3.3% 68s o.9%Black

American lndian and
Alaska Native

298 o.4% 189 o3% 26L 03% 295 o.4%

Asian 8,22L 71.9% 7,826 72.9% 13,198 76.9o/o L2,904 t7.3%

3L4 o.5% 358 O.So/o 225 o3%Native Hawaiian and
Other Pacific lslander

377 o.s%

Otherl \,202 L8% r,873 3.t% 3,913 5.0To 3,901 5.2%

Hispanic (of any race) 7,90L IT.4% 4,370 7.2% 9,526 12.2% 7,L13 9s%

100.0% 74,663 100.0%Total 69,068 LOO.O% 60,815 100.0% 78,159

TABTE C-29: FOLSOM POPULATION BY RACE AND ETHNICITY,2OLO-2079

Page 2-38 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 503

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEM€NT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-9: RACIAL DEMOGMPHICS, Clry OF FoLSoM, 2010 AND 2018

Racial Demographics in Folsom 2010 Racial Demographics in Folsom 2fi8

t-

II

I

Fercst d Total Non-White Population

szw
I 21-4096

f 4t -5096

- 

61-80*
I '8tx

- . - Cdntyune

[]i roomcityumits

0 Z90O s.Eo0 /t*S

---F€t 
q9/

1S10r7.01GtS 0r9

Sou@: U.5. Cecs gucaq 201t2019 ArneriGn CommunitySuq s-Fr estima. &lifomia Depanment of HoGing and bmmunity helcpment AFFH Dab and Mappiry T@L

Plblic Draft | Revised Augu* 2021 Page 2-39

Page 504

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Persons with a Disability

ln 2019, Folsom had fewer residents with disabilities (7.6 percent) compared to
Sacramento County (11.8 percent) and California (10.6 percent). Figure C-10 shows the
population of persons with a disability by census tract in the city using American

Community Survey data from 2075-2019. The map shows the northwestern area of the

city has the greatest proportion of persons with a disability than any other area of the

city, which correlates with a larger population of older residents and lower income

households residing in the area, as discussed later in this section.

Population by Familial Stafus

As shown earlier in Table C-5, The proportion of family households in Folsom (71.5

percent) is larger than the proportion of family households in Sacramento County (66.3

percent) and California (68.8 percent) (see Figure C-11).

Compared to the rest of the Sacramento region, Folsom has a lower proportion of single

parent households (13 percent), particularly fewer single mothers (see Figure C-12). As

discussed in Section 2.2.4, Single-Headed Households with Children, single headed

households typically only have one potential wage earner and often have more difficulty

finding adequate affordable housing than families with more than one source of
income. Although the low proportion of single female-headed households does not

indicate a distinct fair housing issue, this trend could be a result of the limited supply of
housing in Folsom that is affordable for single-headed, one-income households with

children.

Distribution of Population by lncome Level

Figure C-13 below shows the geographic distribution of median household income by

block groups in Folsom. Within the city, households with higher incomes live in the

eastern areas specifically along Empire Ranch Road and in the Broadstone

neighborhood. Lower-income households are generally located along the northern
portion of the East Bidwell corridor, Folsom Auburn Road, and Greenback Lane.

Compared to the region, there is a higher proportion of wealthier households in Folsom.

As discussed in Section 2.1.1, Household lncome, 54.5 percent of Folsom households in

2018 earned more than 5100,000 per year compared to 30.1 percent in the county and

35.5 percent in the state. Although there are some areas of the city with lower income

levels, the city is generally more affluent than the region.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-4LPage 505

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-10: POPULATION WITH A DISABILIW BY CENSUS TRACT, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2015-2019

Ll&.i\rdldF

Fercent of Population with a Disability
per Cenus Tract (ACS 201 5-20'1 9)

FOLSOIr{
20s5

GENERAL PLAN

r r I Countyline

t : Folsom Citv Limits

m=ru

I
I

I

?

- 50*
-lofr
. 30*
- 2096
l016

40
30
20
t0
0. 0 2,900 5,8m n\

F-

19010177.01 GrS 014

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2015-2019 American Community Survey 5-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development
AFFH Data and Mapping Tool.

tblslu,tn lake

ffi

PaEe 2-42 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 506

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-11: PERCENT OF CHILDREN lN MARRIED-COUPLE HOUSEHOLDS, SACRAMENTO REGION,2015-2019

Percent of Children in Manied-Couple Households

< 20% I 60% - 80%

20%-40% I ' a0%

40%-60%

r r r Sactamentocounty

l-.. j Folsom City Limits

r,--+--.lrurrres 
@

19010177.01 GtS 021

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2OL5-2OL9 American Community Survey S-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development
AFFH Data and MappingTool.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-43Page 507

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOT{
203s

GENERAL PLAN HFN=6
Ff GURE C-12: PERCENT OF CHILDREN lN SINGLE-FEMALE HEADED HOUSEHOLDS, SACMMENTO REGION,2015-2019

e- an,t r _

\
I

I

\
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
'a

!

,et/rl''
t_f

a

Ftrcent of Chlldren in Single Female-Headed Households,

No Spouse/Fartner Prcsent Flouseholds

320e6 16096-80%
u 2ffi-4ffi6 I >A000

I4t)96-6096

\rar,

r r r saoamentocounty

l-... j Folsom CityLimits

11427'
t

oA.luires @

tt
li
C

I
I

i

J I

1901012.01 GrS 020

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2015-2019 American Community Survey s-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development
AFFH Data and Mapping Tool.

I
trl

PaEe 2-44 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 508

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-l3: DISTRIBUTION OF MEDIAN INCOME, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2015-2019

L

I

Median lncome per Block
Goup (ACS 2015-2019)

< f50k

P*ds#"€ lsok - s100k

I ltook-ltsok
I $tsok-f2ook

I >tzook

r r - COUntyUne

l:;j Fobomcityumits

0 2,900 s,800 ,iIA

--- 190101f7.01 Gts 0t5

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2OL5-2O19 American Community Survey s-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development AFFH

Data and Mapping Tool.

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 Page2-45Page 509

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



][lOLSON{t'2035
GENERAL PLAN m=ru

a

o

Racially or Ethnically Concentrated Areas of Poverty
Racially or Ethnically Concentrated Areas of Poverty (R/ECAP) are neighborhoods in

which there are both racial concentrations and high poverty rates. HUD defines R/ECAPs

as census tracts with:

a non-White population of 50 percent or more (majority-minority) or, for non-

urban areas, 20 percent, AND a poverty rate of 40 percent or more; OR

a non-White population of 50 percent or more (majority-minority) AND the poverty

rate is three times the average poverty rate for the county, whichever is lower.

As shown in Figure C-14, HUD identifies 22 R/ECAPs in the Sacramento Valley region.

The majority of these areas are located in the cities of Sacramento, Rancho Cordova,

and Davis. No R/ECAPs were identified within the city of Folsom.

FIGURE C-14: R/ECAPS lN THE SACRAMENTO REGION

Source: HUD Data Exchange AFFH Map Tool and Root Policy Research

Racially Concentrated Areas of Affluence

Racially or Ethnically Concentrated Areas of Affluence (RCAAs) are neighborhoods in

which there are both racial concentrations and high household income rates. According

to The Declining Significance of Roce: Blacks and Chonging Americon lnstitutions by

William Wilson (1980), RCAAs can be defined as census tracts where 1) 80 percent or

more of the population is non-Hispanic White and 2) the median household income is

S125,000 or greater (sliehtly more than double the national median household income

in 2016). However, most median household incomes for communities in California are

significantly higher than the national median income. Therefore, the median household

income threshold of 5125,000 or greater is not appropriate for communities in

California. Using data from the 2Ot5-2O79 American Community Survey, zero census

tracts in Folsom meet RCAA criterion established in The Declining Significonce of Roce:

Blocks and Chonging Americqn lnstitution. The closest areas identified as RCAAs under

this criterion were in neighboring Granite Bay and El Dorado Hills.

Elk

B,y

Garnrln NGA Dale created 6'1212019

tsseld

b
R/ECAP

b

-sffi+

is

NPSi'1r--l r] r * r*r-ooo, r E.,i

iliilflii':'€i,1 vu"evp

PaEe2-46 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 510

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Comparing the city to the surrounding region, Folsom has a greater presence of higher

income levels and lower diversity than adjacent incorporated cities in the region.

Additionally, the median household income in most census blocks on the eastern side of
the city is over $15Q000. The median household income of one census block, located in

the Broadstone district, is over 5200,000. The median household income of these census

blocks is significantly higher than the 2020 Sacramento area median income ($85,300) and

the 2020 State Median lncome (587,100). As shown in Table C-4, non-Hispanic Whites

make up 62 percent of the city's total population, significantly more than in Sacramento

County (45 percent) and in California (38 percent). The predominately White racial

composition of Folsom neighborhoods in comparison to the region, as well as significantly

higher incomes in the eastern portion of the city indicate a local RCAA.

Access to Opportunity
Across the nation, the distribution of affordable housing has been disproportionately

developed in minority neighborhoods with poor environmental conditions and high

poverty rates, thereby reinforcing poverty concentration and racial segregation in low

opportunity and low resource areas.

Several agencies have developed "opportunity indices" to assess and measure

geographic access to opportunity, including HUD; the University of California at Davis,

Center for Regional Change; and HCD in coordination with the California Tax Credit

Allocation Committee (TCAC).

HUD provides several "opportunity indices" to assess and measure access to opportunity
in a variety of areas, including education, poverty, transportation, and employment.

Folsom neighborhoods (census tracts) scored significantly higher than the Sacramento

Valley region on HUD opportunity indices related to poverty, school proficiency, and labor

market engagement. Opportunities related to job proximity, transit trips, and low-cost

transportation in Folsom were similar to the Sacramento Valley region as a whole. There

is no clear pattern of disparity associated with race or ethnicity and the locations of
opportunity within the cityj however, assessing access to opportunity in comparison to

the region shows greater opportunity for Folsom residents.

HCD and TCAC prepare opportunity maps to determine areas with the highest and lowest

resources. The TCAC/HCD Opportunity Maps are intended to display the areas, according

to research, that offer low-income children and adults the best chance at economic

advancement, high educational attainment, and good physical and mental health. Each

census tract or block group is given a score for each indicator (i.e., education, economic,

and environmental) ranging from 0 (lowest opportunity) to 1 (highest opportunity). The

primary function of TCAC is to oversee the Low lncome Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC)

Program, which provides funding to developers of affordable rental housing. The

opportunity maps play a critical role in shaping the future distribution of affordable

housing in areas with the highest opportunity. As shown in Figure C-15, the entire city of

Folsom is considered a high or highest resource area for economic, educational, and

environmental opportunities. Based on these assessments, access to opportunity is widely

spread throughout the entire city with no significant disparities.

However, when assessed from a regional perspective, disparities in access to
opportunity exist throughout the Sacramento Valley region. Sacramento suburbs

located west of Folsom, particularly Rancho Cordova and Citrus Heights, have a

significantly greater proportion of low resource areas.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEe2-47Page 511

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOI-SOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
Educat i ona I Opportun i ty
Educational opportunity is great in Folsom, the entire city has high education scores.

Figure C-16 shows the education scores used in the TCAC/HCD composite opportunity
mapping. As shown in the figure, all census tracts in Folsom have scores exceeding 0.75

indicating the most positive educational outcomes. Only one small area of the
northwestern city has an education score between 0.50 and 0.75 indicating a slightly

less positive educational outcome than the rest of the city. ln comparison to the region,

Folsom ranks similarly to Granite Bay and El Dorado Hills with higher education scores

than Citrus Heights and Rancho Cordova.

Economic Opportunity and Jobs Proximity Index

ln the context of economic opportunity, Folsom scored positively. Most of the city ranks

greater than 0.75 indicating the most positive economic outcomes. The northwestern
quadrant of the city had slightly lower economic scores than the rest of the city
(between 0.50 and 0,75), but still positive. The lowest scoring census tract (shown in

Figure C-17) is the tract with the Folsom State Prison. ln comparison to the region,

economic opportunity in Folsom is higher than in Citrus Heights or Rancho Cordova but
similar to Granite Bay or El Dorado Hills.

The 2O14-2017 HUD job proximity index quantifies the accessibility of a given

neighborhood to all jobs within a core-based statistical area. lndex ratings for Folsom

(see Figure C-18) show the closest proximity to jobs in the southern areas of the city,

and index scores generally decline for census tracts farther north from these

employment clusters. ln fact, there is one census tract on the far eastern end of the city
with a job index S 20, which means that those residents have the furthest proximity to
jobs. ln comparison to the region, Folsom generally has greater job opportunity index

scores than the neighboring cities of Granite Bay and Citrus Heights.

Environmental Health

TCAC and HCD measured environmental opportunity using the exposure, pollution

burden, and environmental effect indicators used in California's Office of Environmental

Health Hazard Assessment CalEnviroScreen 3.0 tool. CalEnviroScreen 3.0 is a statewide

risk assessment tool that measures the cumulative impacts of multiple sources of
pollution. Figure C-19 shows the environmental scores used to identify TCAC/HCD

opportunity areas. Folsom scored relatively well for environmental outcomes. The

southern city was found to have less positive environmental outcomes than the rest of
the city, with a score less than 0.25. The neighborhoods on the west end of East Bidwell

Street and along lron Point Road also had lower environmental scores than other areas

of the city (between 0.25 and 0.50). Environmental scores in Folsom are generally

similar to the scores in the adjacent areas of northern Sacramento County; however,

environmental outcomes are significantly more positive in the northeastern portion of
the city.

Page2-48 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 512

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-15: TCAC/HCD OPPORTUNIW AREA MAP, SACRAMENTO REGION, 2020

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

California Tax Credit
Al location Gomm ittee/Department
of Housing and Communityr
Development Opportunity Map, 2020

I
I
I
I
I
i:l
I

rd.6r ke (tuFdt cMtq)

Ntn Sqqro t tu6

qtlffi

t.:_ I

o 05 r 2

Dai!:11{5-2@0
tu@ CilqtuObdh.&bl@@t,M

i

' -,-
::,.

ejglicr

,{

etlrc:iFirr.r,l

1.._..*.. -..i

';l

rE]rrn:-:r-{fi1

g

7r

r&iI{I3

rlgt;uiEli)

I

I

I

t.

t

I

/

I
!'i

I

I .J\

I

I

I ...';...-?
aligJl-ro
!V

ti.l,rieJ,:: s.9U'J{:V

?."

o 1.!J t

JJ9il-\ro
9Jv'/

Public Draft I Revised August 2O2! Page 2-49Page 513

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOT{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi
FIGURE C-16: TCAC OPPORTUNITY AREAS - EDUCATION SCORE, CIW OF FOLSOM

TCAC Opportunity Areas (202t)
- Education Score - Tract

n <0.25 (Less Positive Education Outcomes)

0.25 - 0.50

ffi 0.50 - 0.7s

I >0.75 (Morc Positive Education Outcomes)
r r - COuntyLine

l:- FolsomcityLimits

(4&rJvdifi'

0 2.900 s,8oo R\
---,==. 

\=
1901012.01 Grs 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Page 2-50 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 514

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-17: TCAC OPPORTUNITY AREAS - ECONOMIC SCORE, CITY OF FOLSOM

SA

lalc.\btde

TCAC Opportunity Areas (2021)

^ Economic Score - Tract

effi <0.25 (Less Positive Economic Outcomes)

0.2s - 0.50

. 0.50 - 0.75

I >0.75 (More Positive Economic outcomes)
r r r COuntyLine

I : Folmm Ciw Limits

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

rY

o 2,900 5,800 aA
---l 

,r=. \-=

19010177.01 Gts 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-51Page 515

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFT=@
FIGURE C-18: JOBS PROXIMITY INDEX, CITY OF FOLSOM

Jobs Proximity lndex (HUD 2014-2017)
- Block Group

I <20 (Furthest Proximity)

I zo-no
40-50

ffi eo-so
I >Bo (Closest Proximity)
r r r CountyLine

l--. j Folsom City Limits

I

o 2,900 5,800 l/lA
---l 

,w. v

19010177.01 GtS 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Page2-52 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 516

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-19: TCAC OPPORTUNITY AREAS - ENVIRONMENTAL SCORE, CIW OF FOLSOM

TCAC OpportuniV Areas (2021)

- Environmental Score - Tract

I

m
I
Itr

<0.25 (Less Fositive Environmental Outcomes)

0.25 - 0.50

0.50 - 0.75

>0.75 (More Positive Environmental Outcom*)
County Line

Folsom City Limits

0 2,900 5,800 /fa
F-

19010177.01 GtS 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-53Page 517

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLS()M
203s

GENERAL PLAN Ft=ru
The Relationship Between Zoning and Access to Opportunity

High opportunity areas throughoutthe Sacramento region, including Folsom, are almost

entirely zoned for single family housing. Exclusive single family zoning does not allow

for more affordable housing types, such as apartments and condominiums, ln addition,

until the passage of the 1958 Fair Housing Act, overt forms of racial discrimination, such

as racially restrictive covenants and biased mortgage lending practices limited the

ability for many minority households to purchase single-family homes in certain

neighborhoods.

While these practices have been outlawed, the resulting wealth gap between White

households that were able to accrue wealth through homeownership and minority

households that were not, has continued to limit access to homeownership in higher

opportunity areas. Housing affordability in combination with single family zoning has made

high opportunity areas unreachable for many minority households, resulting in racial

segregation and a higher concentration of minority residents in low opportunity areas.

Over 70 percent of the housing stock in Folsom consists of single-family detached units,

which is reflective of the City's zoning. While the majority of Folsom remains zoned for

exclusively single-family homes, significantly more land has been designated for multifamily

housing and mixed use development in recent years. With the adoption of the 2035 General

Plan in 2018, the City created the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, allowing for multifamily

housing and mixed use on nearly 1,000 acres of land along East Bidwell Street. The City is

also planning to increase opportunities for transit-oriented development at the light rail

stations through General Plan and zoning amendments. These changes to the General Plan

and Zoning Code create more opportunities for a variety of housing types and income levels.

Disproportionate Housing Needs
Disproportionate housing needs show how access to the housing market differs for

members of different classes. Oftentimes households living in poverty and communities

of color face disproportionately high housing problems compared to the population as

a whole. Housing problems may include housing cost burden, overcrowding, or

substandard housing.

Regional Overview

The Sacramento Valley Fair Housing Collaborative conducted a regional survey to assess

housing problems for the Sacramento Valley Al. The study surveyed 3,388 residents

from across the region. The survey results showed that overall, 44 percent of
households in the region experience any of four housing problems: cost burden greater

than 30 percent, more than one person per room, incomplete kitchen facilities,

and/incomplete plumbing facilities. The survey also found Black (58 percent) and

Hispanic (56 percent) households in the region have the highest rates of experiencing

any of the four housing problems. White, non-Hispanic (39 percent) households are the

least likely to experience housing problems across the region and in each jurisdiction.

Page2-54 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 518

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Overpayment

As previously described, overpayment or cost-burden is defined as households paying

more than 30 percent of their gross income on housing related expenses, including rent

or mortgage payments and utilities. As shown earlier in Table C-15, 29.2 percent of all

households in Folsom were considered overpaying for housing in 2015 which was less

than that of Sacramento County (39.4 percent) and California (42 percent).

Cost burdens were significantly more severe for lower-income households in Folsom.

Table C-16 shows 73.9 percent of lower income households were burdened by housing

costs, compared to just 16.7 percent of non-low-income households. The rate of cost

burdened lower-income households was higher than in the county (68.9 percent) and the

state (59.3 percent). Further analysis shows that rates of housing cost burden were

greater among low-income renter households (84.2 percent) than among low-income

owner households (65.7 percent). As shown in Figure C-20 renter households experienced

higher rates of cost burden throughout the city, including the historic and central

commercial districts, in neighborhoods near Glenn Drive and Blue Ravine Road, and in the

Broadstone and Empire Ranch neighborhoods. Owner-occupied households experienced

lower rates of cost burden in the city overall, but slightly higher rates of cost burden were

evident in the Broadstone and Lexington Drive neighborhoods, along Folsom Auburn

Boulevard, and the southern portion of Natomas Street (see Figure C-21).

Overcrowding

Compared to the rest of Sacramento County and California, overcrowding is less of a

problem in Folsom. As shown earlier in Table C-13, 1.3 percent of housing units (360

units) in Folsom were considered overcrowded in 2018 compared to 4.9 percent in the

county and 8.2 percent in the state. Figure C-22 shows the distribution of overcrowded

households in the city and the proportion of overcrowded households for each census

tract in Folsom is equal to or less than the statewide average. Furthermore, less than

one percent of units in Folsom, 0.2 percent (45 units), were severely overcrowded. ln

contrast, 1.3 percent of units in the county and 2.9 percent in the state were severely

overcrowded. Overall, overcrowding was more prevalent among renter-occupied units

than among owner-occupied units. When broken out by tenure, approximately 53

percent of all overcrowded households in Folsom were renter households.

APPENDIX C HOUSING EIEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-55Page 519

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLS()N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Em=6
FfGURE C-20: OVERPAYMENT BY RENTERS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2015-2019

labl/trtn[

L
I

Percent of Renter Households for whom
Gross Rent is 30% or Mora of Household
lncome per €ensus Tract (ACS 2015-2019)

0- 1096 n 30-40%

tj ', .,,i:::s 10 - 2096 I 40 - 50%

m 20-30% I 50-60%

- . r CoUntyUne

l-.. j Folsom City Limits

0 2,900 5,800 ,i|.nEEE,==. 1-
19010177.0r Grs 017

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 20L5-2O19 American Community Survey s-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development
AFFH Data and MappingTool.

Page 2-56 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 520

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING EIEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-21: OVERPAYMENT BY HOMEOWNERS, CITY OF FOLSOM,2015-2019

,1-l ;'

-.:t

.f

.Jr..

I

Fercent of Omer Hougoholds with Mortgages
Monthly Omer Costs are 30i!S or More of Houschold
lncome per Census Tract(ACS 2015-2019)

L . --l 0-10,6 I30'4096
E t0-2096 I40-s0%
r 20-3096 150-6096

- . - CoUntyune

l=Ti FobomCityLlmits

0 ee00 1800 RN
F-'EE. -:-'

1!t01017.01 Gts 015

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2OL5-2OL9 American Community Survey s-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development
AFFH Data and Mapping Tool.

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 PaEe2-57Page 521

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOTI
2035

GENERAL PLAN HME6
FIGURE C-22: OVERCROWDED HOUSEHOLDS, CITY OF FOLSOM

I

Percent of Overcrowded
Households (CHHS)

t " -: s8.2%(StatewideAverage)

I Bsyx -lz%
I 12.01% - ls%
I 15.0i%-20%
f 'eo*r I - CountyLine

l-.. j Folsom Cig LimiG

o 2,900 s,800 R\EEE.==. v

J

19010177.01 GrS 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Page 2-58 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 522

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Substandard Housing

As previously described in Section 2.1.2, Housing Characteristics and Trends, substandard

housing conditions is a minor issue in Folsom. As shown in Table C-12, over 60 percent of

the housing stock in Folsom was 30 or less years old in 2020. Only 4 percent of participants

from the 2O2l-2O29 Folsom Housing Element Community Survey stated their home

needed one or more major upgrades (i.e., new foundation, plumbing, electrical) indicating

that the majority of the housing stock is in good condition. The City identifies substandard

housing conditions through code enforcement and rehabilitation programs, such as the

Seniors Helping Seniors program. Code enforcement cases are distributed throughout the

city and occur in old and new neighborhoods. The City typically only receives one to two

cases per year related to housing conditions. Most requests received through the Seniors

Helping Seniors program occur within mobile home parks. Since 2016, the City has

received 9 requests for water pipe replacement due to low water pressure through the

Seniors Helping Seniors program. All of the requests occurred in mobile home parks

located in the northern portion of the city. Four requests were in Pinebrook Village, three

in Lake Park Estates and two in Lakeside Village.

Displacement Risk

The rising cost of housing is becoming an increasingly important housing security issue

in the Sacramento region, especially for renters. Gentrification, or the influx of capital

and higher-income residents into working-class neighborhoods, is often associated with

displacement, which occurs when housing costs or neighborhood conditions force

people out and drive rents so high that lower-income people are excluded from moving

in. The UC Berkeley Urban Displacement Project identifies areas within certain

metropolitan regions of California that are susceptible to displacement. The data does

not indicate that any areas of Folsom are vulnerable to displacement, While no sensitive

communities were identified as currently experiencing gentrification or at risk of

displacement in Folsom through the Urban Displacement Project methodology, the

housing market is at risk of excluding lower income households.

Housing costs in Folsom have increased dramatically over the past decade. Folsom is a

highly desirable community with good schools and access to jobs, amenities, and quality

open space. Demand for housing, in part driven by an influx of individuals moving from

the Bay Area into Folsom, has driven the median home sales price to increase by nearly

95 percent, from 5287,00oin2oL2to 5559,100 in2O2O. Consequently, home prices are

out of reach for both lower-and moderate-income families seeking housing in Folsom.

Figure C-23 below shows the Location Affordability lndex in the City of Folsom. First

launched by HUD, the index measures standardized household housing and

transportation cost estimates. Using 2012-2016 ACS data, the index ratings show that the

majority of Folsom has rents greaterthan 52,000 a month. ln neighborhoods along Empire

Ranch, rents are more than 52,500. As was discussed previously, the average rent in

Folsom was 51,944 in 202I. These rents are primarily affordable to moderate-income

households, but out of reach for lower-income households. As shown in the figure, lower

median rents are in the northwestern portion of the city, the historic district and the

central city. While lower median rents may indicate displacement risk, much of the rental

housing in these areas is deed restricted affordable housing that is not at risk of converting

to market rate; therefore, protecting residents from being displaced.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-59Page 523

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()l}{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Ft=ru
FIGURE C-23: LOCATION AFFORDABILITY INDEX, CITY OF FOLSOM

Location Affordability lndex (HUD)

Tract - Median Gross Rent

ffi*ffi{ <$1,000

I t1,ooo-g1,4ee
I l1,soo-g1,99e
I faooo-$2,4eg
I f2,soo-g2,ese
I >$3,ooo

r . r Countyline

l-.. j Folsom City Limits

I

0 2,900 s,800 R\EEEI ,"=. \?
19010177.01 GtS 013

Source: HCD AFFH Data and Mapping Tool, Adapted by Ascent 2021.

Page 2-60 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 524

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Other Relevant Factors

Regional Loan Denial Rates

Throughout the Sacramento Valley region, homeownership rates vary widely by race

and ethnicity. However, all minority groups experience higher rates of loan denial than

non-Hispanic White applicants. ln addition, Hispanic households are more likely than

any other group to receive a subprime loan. Subprime mortgages are a type of housing

loan most often given to individuals that have weak credit history. Subprime mortgages

carry higher interest rates, and thereby are more expensive, because there is a pre-

determined higher risk of default. A concentration of subprime mortgages in areas with

concentrations of minorities is a potential consequence of historically punitive

practices, such as redlining. Despite efforts to reform long-standing practices of

discrimination in the housing credit system, patterns of inequality still exist. The Great

Recession and housing crisis of the early 2000s brought to light the unusually high

concentration of non-White residents with subprime mortgages and property

foreclosures across the country.

ln 2017, there were 89,838 loan applications filed in the Sacramento Valley region for owner-

occupied homes, 4.7 percent of loans were subprime, which is slightly higher than the

national rate of 4 percent. Figure C-24 shows loan denial rates by census tracts within the

region according to federal Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HDMA) data from 2017. Denial

rates varied substantially by census tract. Overall, within the region, the loan denial rate was

17 percent. Census tracts within Folsom generally had denial rates between 9-17 percent.

FIGURE C-24: REGIONAL DENIAL RATES BY CENSUS TRACT, 2017

tlit
no( tlin

' :-6i)

lo!cvlll.

t0

-tF
o'Jt{- ,

Iil!

Danl!l Rlta
Oatt rgt aepgned. llrwt
{rraft ,0 loJn ;99l.it.on{

0a.9i

t8{.t5b!

f ro* o. Lgrcr

fl <*"'yto"*o',.'-
Sl1,d) ju.'sd'.n.ilr,'

Not(
Ro*oonl de.ilil rrlo. I / f(?rl

non(ho Cordm

; (il$ ri$thtt

I
woddrad

I tolaom

ts

Olvir
tr

West Si(.am€

(!i''

fucrirnento

uro'ib,,

,Ll I
U

It t
t 

!.6.

tll 6rovc

01,56

Source: FFIEC HMDA Raw Data,2017; Root Policy Research, 2020

Public Draft | Revised August 2021

^l
Page 2-6LPage 525

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN mm=6
The Al survey also included information on regional loan denial patterns that may be

applicable to Folsom. Low-lncome households and those receiving Section 8 housing

choice vouchers were most likely to be denied housing to rent or buy. African American

(53 percent), Native American (49 percent), and Hispanic survey respondents (42

percent) were more likely than non-Hispanic White (27 percent) or Asian survey

respondents (21 percent) to have experienced denial of housing to rent or buy. Large

families, households that include a member with a disability, and households with

children under age 18 all experienced housing denial at rates higher than the region

overall. Common reasons for being denied housing among survey respondents included

income (including type of income), credit, and eviction history.

Racia I Iy Restrict ive Covenants

Throughout the country, racially restrictive covenants were used to prevent communities

of color from living in or owning property in specific neighborhoods. When a restrictive

covenant existed on a property deed, the owner was legally prohibited from selling to

members of the specific minority group or groups listened. The popular use of racially

restrictive covenants emerged in !917, when the U.5. Supreme Court deemed city

segregation ordinances illegal. Then, the Fair Housing Act of 1968 outlawed racially

restrictive covenants and government-sponsored redlining. Although discriminatory

practices as these are now outlawed, about 8 eight percent ofthe housing stock in Folsom

was built prior to 1970 (see Table 12) and prior to the Fair Housing Act meaning some of

these units could potentially have been built under racially restrictive covenants.

2.3.2 SITES INVENTORY

A primary goal of the assessment is to ensure available sites for lower-income housing are

located equitably across a region and within communities with fair access to opportunities

and resources. Ensuring that sites for housing, particularly lower income units, are in high

resource areas rather than concentrated in areas of high segregation and poverty requires

jurisdictions to plan for housing with regards to the accessibility of various opportunities

including jobs, transportation, good education, and health services.

Figure C-25 shows the location of vacant and underutilized sites in the sites inventory

compared to areas of the city with higher concentrations of low-moderate income

populations. The figure also highlights the location of existing affordable housing,

planned and approved affordable projects, and vacant and underutilized lower-income

sites. As shown in Figure C-25, there is a concentration of existing and planned

affordable housing in the central city along East Bidwell near Wales Drive. Many of the

lower-income sites are also within this area. This area of the city has access to jobs,

services, and transit. The FPASP, in the southern portion of the city, makes up a large

proportion of the sites inventory. The area is just starting to develop with housing, and

does not yet have immediate access to jobs, services, or transit. However, as the area

builds out, new schools, employment centers, and other amenities will be provided,

making this an attractive area for affordable housing.

Page2-62 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 526

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

FIGURE C-25: EXISTING AND PROPOSED AFFORDABLE HOUSING LOCATIONS RELATIVE TO THE PERCENT OF LOW

TO MODERIATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS PER CENSUS TRACT

t

\

I

Fercent of Low to Moderatg lncame
per Cens$Trad (ACS 2015-2019)

0 - 1096

- 

1o-20e6

I 2o-30e6

I3o-,{o%
I "4006

Alfordable

Proposed Afbrdable Housing

Lower-lncome Sites

Moderate-ln@me Sit|s
Abow Moderate-lncome $tes

r r r COUntytjne

l:- Fohmcityumits
o
o

o 2,900 5,800 a.\tr---
'l////Z/zPlannedlApprovedProjects

t!n1017.01 Gts 0t8

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2015-2019 American Community Survey s-year estimates. California Department of Housing and Community Development

AFFH Data and Mapping Tool. City of Folsom,2020. Ascent, 2021.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-53Page 527

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LSOIl{
243 s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
Location of Existing Affordable Housing

The geographic distribution of publicly supported housing is an important factor in

examining fair housing choice and segregation by income and race/ethnicity. The map

below, Figure C-25, shows the location of all affordable and market rate apartments in

the city as of August 2020. There are 10 multifamily developments providing deed-

restricted affordable housing in Folsom, including Talavera Ridge - a 293-unit market

rate project providing six extremely low-income units. Most affordable housing in

Folsom is located in the city center along Wales Drive and East Bidwell Street, which are

areas with access to services, jobs, and bus lines that connect to the Sacramento

Regional Transit light rail system.

ln the next several years, additional affordable housing will become available

throughout Folsom. Parkway Affordable Apartments, currently under construction, will

provide 72 units near Oak Avenue Parkway and Blue Ravine Road. Bidwell Street Studios

(not shown on the map), a construction project that is currently underway to convert

the Folsom Lodge Motel, will provide 24 units of affordable housing. Scholar Way

Affordable Senior Apartments, a proposed 110-unit project located in the College

District along the East Bidwell Corridor, brings affordable units near education and

employment opportunities. Mangini Place, a proposed 152-unit affordable apartment

project, is planned to be built in the FPASP area; a new neighborhood in the southern

portion of the city that will have new schools, a transit corridor, about 1,000 acres of

open space, and thousands of new jobs. ln total, approximately 300 affordable housing

units located throughout the city are approved and in the pipeline.

Potential Effect on Patterns of Segregation

The City's existing affordable housing stock and proposed housing sites inventory were

evaluated to ensure sites planned for future development would not further

segregation patterns and trends. As noted, the City's segregation pattern is low and

therefore this evaluation focused on whether the inventory was spread throughout the

community. As shown in the figures below, existing affordable housing is concentrated

in the city center along Wales Drive and East Bidwell Street. Sites identified in the

Housing Element are distributed throughout the city including new growth areas. The

Housing Element sites inventory identifies vacant land within the FPASP area suitable to

accommodate 1,344 lower income units, accounting for over 30 percent of the city's

lower-income housing capacity. ln addition, the sites inventory also identifies land

within the transit priority areas, in the new development areas along East Bidwell

Street, and along lron Point Road, near employment centers.

Page2-64 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 528

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



91

&1 {[lq Grrir l\i Orerst6vro <dd,ibubE ..d rEGE dE.doo
up(*d: wlla!

x

A

I
II

{

o

t

11' \'

\,

)

II

1,

i

\a, \
2D

I

j

E
?\

ttr1

i

\

t',--i

I

at

A+77

hRA230R&ine

et

6e

A{A55Fbr6rtrod

at Blue Ra\ine 512

haa12?

5heruod

TtPs
4{A

It irl
1.10

Ndc
eftRll Rinte Mred-l.te

l8

lllertct Ratc Apartnenb (MRA)

f Allordable Housin g Apartnsnh {AHAI
Approred Allordable Apadnenis

ABprwcd lhrtct Rrte Aparbrente
lL9,I-,{..9.Y 'App@*d apqrtmrn irdi6t proj€bltBlare mi}ot@Ftei d, or FBtEtirq

00.511.52reMiles

fi0l :'r-t iIi .\i )i,l j-l uli-jt it
i'.rliiiiil

FIGURE C-26: AFFORDABLE AND MARKET RATE APARTMENT LOCATIONS, CITY OF FOLSOM

Source: City of Folsom, 2020.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-55Page 529

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLS(}S{
2435

GENERAL PLAN m=6
Potential Effect on Access to Opportunity

Although the 2020 TCAC/HCD Opportunity Areas identification process (shown in

Figures C-15 through C-19) indicates that all of Folsom is a high resource area, further
growth in the small concentration of existing affordable housing in the Central City could

strain resources in the area and result in limited access to opportunity. While it is

important to disperse affordable housing to provide integrated neighborhoods and

avoid any imbalance in the supply and demand of resources, the existing affordable

housing stock, although concentrated, provides good access to education, employment,

health services, and transit. The Housing Element sites inventory identifies capacity for

124 lower-income units in the Central City. However, this is a small proportion of the

total lower-income capacity (approximately 3 percent), and the majority of lower-

income capacity is identified in other portions of the city, including the FPASP.

Development of the FPASP is underway, and new opportunities, including schools,

employment centers, and medical centers are planned. This addition of new amenities

and resources, as well as a balanced distribution of affordable housing, will ensure that

the access to opportunity and high resource is maintained.

Potential Effect on Disproportionate Housing Needs

As discussed above, overpayment is a housing need challenging lower-income residents in

Folsom. Renters in the Broadstone neighborhood experience the highest rates of cost

burden or overpayment in the city. ln distributing housing capacity throughout the city and

identifoing capacity in new growth areas, such as the FPASP, the Housing Element sites

inventory could potentially ease cost burden in areas of high overpayment. ln addition,

planned affordable housing developments, including Parkway Affordable Apartments, near

Oak Avenue Parkway and Blue Ravine, and Scholar Way Affordable Senior Apartments in the

College District, near Scholar Way and East Bidwell will further distribute affordable housing

and provide residents protection from displacement pressures.

2.3.3 FAIR HOUSING ISSUES, CONTRIBUTING FACTORS, AND
PROPOSED ACTIONS

Folsom is a highly desirable community within the Sacramento region. Fair housing

issues in the city are primarily related to the high cost of housing. High housing costs

and a limited supply of affordable housing have led to the exclusion of lower-income

households from Folsom's neighborhoods. Contributing factors to the City's fair housing

issues include: (1) past zoning and land use regulations that resulted in the dominance

of single-family homes and a limited variety of housing types; (2) limited supply of

affordable housing; and (3) lack of community support for low income and higher

density housing.

Zoning and Land Use Regulations

The predominant land use in Folsom is single-family homes and historically Folsom

neighborhoods were zoned almost exclusively for single-family homes. The City of
Folsom 1992 Housing Element supported a market-based strategy for addressing

housing needs in the community and contributed to the predominance of single-family

homes. At the time of the 1992 Housing Element adoption, the City saw itself as a

facilitator of the private sector and non-profit housing corporations and promoted

voluntary approaches to construction of low-and moderate-income housing. Thus, the

Page 2-56 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 530

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1992 Housing Element did not include mandatory housing programs to facilitate

affordable housing development, such as inclusionary zoning, land dedications for

affordable housing, or contributions to a housing trust fund. Furthermore, residential

developments were not encouraged to achieve the highest allowed density. Rather, the

lowest-allowed density was permitted by right, and any density above that level was

required to provide additional amenities. The 1990s, particularly the late 1990s, was a

period of major growth in employment, retail services, and housing in the City; however,

despite this rapid growth, neither the private sector nor non-profit developers

developed any affordable housing projects in the City from 1992 to 2001. This lack of

affordable housing development and the City's failure to include housing programs to

facilitate affordable housing resulted in a lawsuit (Ronald Hallfeldt v. City of Folsom

et.al) being brought against the City in 2001. The City was found out of compliance with

state law for not providing its fair share of the regional housing needs of lower-income

residents. As a result, the City entered into a Settlement Agreement with Legal Services

of Northern California that, among other things, required the City to rezone 128 acres

of land to Multifamily High Density by December of 2OO2, amend City ordinances to

remove governmental constraints to affordable housing, and adopt a Housing Trust

Fund ordinance and a Fee Waiver/Deferral ordinance to assist the City with increasing

and improving the supply of affordable housing. The City also amended its Zoning Code

to encourage home builders to use multi-family designated land for the highest allowed

density consistent with the requirements of State law.

The City's lnclusionary Housing Ordinance (lHO) has been one component of the City's

efforts to address affordable housing in Folsom; however, in 2011 which was during a

time of a challenging housing market, the City recognized that the IHO was acting as a

constraint to the production of housing, both market rate and affordable. As a result,

and after lengthy deliberation and public input, the City decided to sunset the City's

lHO. This action was met with the Sacramento Housing Alliance filing a lawsuit against

the City. The claim asserted that the City's action sunsetting the IHO was inconsistent

with the 2009 Housing Element in that the City had identified quantified objectives

attributable to the IHO and the City could not achieve the objectives without the lHO.

The court agreed with the Petitioner and as a result it was necessary for the City to
prepare a focused revision to the 2009 Housing Element. The revision to Program 19i

of the 2009 Housing Element Policy Document resulted in the City modifying the IHO by

changing the percentage requirements and adding an in-lieu fee option in order to

reduce constraints on the production of moderate-income and market-rate housing.

Over the past two decades, the City has continued to implement several land use

changes to expand zoning for multifamily housing. Recently, with the adoption of the

2035 General Plan in 2018, the City created the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, allowing

for multifamily housing and mixed use on nearly 1,000 acres of land along East Bidwell

Street. The Housing Element includes several programs to further expand the variety of

housing allowed in the city, which will serve to affirmatively further fair housing.

Program H-2 calls for increasing densities in key areas of the city, including the East

Bidwell corridor, transit priority areas, and the FPASP town center. This will increase

opportunities for multifamifu housing. The Housing Element also includes Programs H-

4 and H-5 to promote ADU tools and resources and to develop an ADU incentive

program to encourage homeowners to develop affordable ADUs and junior ADUs to

encourage more affordable housing types within traditionally single-family

neighborhoods creating mixed-income neighborhoods. The Housing Element also

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page2-67Page 531

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LS(}N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=6
includes Program H-31 directing developers to establish a marketing strategy to attract

renters and buyers of diverse demographic groups into the city, which can help to

overcome some of the historic exclusion associated with exclusive single-family zoning.

Limited Supply of Affordable Housing

Folsom is known for its high quality of life, good schools, rich amenities, and access to
open space. From a regional perspective, the limited supply of affordable housing in

Folsom prevents lower-income households in the region for accessing the amenities.

Many low-income workers in retail and service jobs commute into Folsom from other
areas of the region because they cannot afford housing in Folsom. Any actions to
facilitate more affordable housing in Folsom will serve to affirmatively further fair
housing by providing lower-income households access to the high quality of life in
Folsom.

Changes in State law regarding the RHNA process resulted in a higher allocation of
lower-income units to areas of high opportunity, including Folsom. By addressing the

lower-income RHNA for the 6th cycle the City is helping to address disparities in

regional access to opportunity. Given that the entire city is categorized as a high

resource area, all sites identified to accommodate the lower-income housing need for
the 6th planning cycle are located within high resource areas and thereby affirmatively

furthering fair housing.

The City has seen an increase in affordable housing developments in recent years and

several programs in the Housing Element will continue to support and facilitate

affordable housing. The City's inclusionary housing ordinance has and will continue to
result in the creation of affordable units and funding to support new affordable housing

construction. Housing Element programs that facilitate affordable housing

development include:

o Program H-2 to create additional lower income housing capacity;
. Program H-11 to identify local funding for affordable housing development;
. Program H-12 to provide incentives for affordable housing developmenU
. Program H-14 to facilitate affordable housing developments on larger sites;

. Programs H-15, H-16, H-17 to facilitate affordable housing development on City-

owned land;

. Program H-20 to promote the Housing Choice Voucher Program and distribute

affordable housing throughout the city; and,

. Program H-22 to expand existing affordable housing developments.

Community Attitudes

The City has an obligation under State law to provide opportunities for higher density

and lower-income housing. ln response to the general lack of support for higher

density housing and lower income housing displayed in the Housing Element

community survey, the City has included Program H-10 to provide information on the

need for and benefits of affordable housing in the community. As outlined in Program

H-32, the City will also continue to provide and promote fair housing services and

resources to Folsom residents through programs such as the Renter's Helpline should

a dispute or complaint arise.

Page 2-68 Public Draft I Revised August 2021-Page 532

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



2.4 Regional llousing Needs Allocation
ln March 2020, SACOG adopted its final SACOG Regional Housing Needs Plon Cycle 6

(2021-2029). Required by State law, the RHNA is part of a statewide statutory mandate

to address housing issues that are related to future growth. The RHNA allocates to cities

and counties each jurisdiction's "fair share" of the region's projected housing needs by

household income group over the RHNA projection period (June 30, 2O2I, through

August 3t,20291.

The core of the RHNA is a series of tables that indicate for each jurisdiction the

distribution of projected housing needs for each of four household income groups. The

RHNA represents the target number of new housing units that are needed in the

community. The allocations are used by jurisdictions when updating their housing

elements as the basis for assuring that adequate sites and zoning are available to

accommodate at least the number of units allocated.

As shown in Table C-30, SACOG allocated Folsom a total of 6,363 housing units for the

period of 2021.-2029. The allocation is equivalent to a yearly need of approximately 776

housing units. Of the 6,353 housing units,4,396 units are to be affordable to moderate-

income households and below, including 829 moderate-income units, 1,341 low-

income units, and 2,226 verv low-income units. Consistent with Government Code

Section 65583(a)(1) the City presumes that 50 percent of the very low-income

households qualify as extremely low-income households. As such, there is a projected

need for 1,113 extremely low-income housing units.

Note: lBosed on an 8.2-year planning period
Source: Sacramento Ared Council of Governments, Regionol Housing Needs Plon 2021-2029 (Februory 2020).

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Average Yearly
NeedlVery Low Low Moderate

Above
Moderate

Total

t,967 6,363 776RHNA 2,226 L,347 829

30s% L00.0%Percent of Total 35.O% 2L,L% 73.O%

TABLE C-30: REGIONAL HOUSING NEEDS ALLOCATION, CITY OF FOLSOM,

JUNE 30,2021'lO AUGUST 3t,2029

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 2-69Page 533

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSO1r{
203 s

GENERAL PLAN Em=ru
This poge intentionolly left blonk.

Page2-7O Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 534

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3 Resource fnventory
This section analyzes the resources and opportunities available for the development,

rehabilitation, and preservation of housing in the city of Folsom. lncluded is an

evaluation of the availability of land resources and the financial administrative

resources available to support housing activities.

3.1 Residential Sites Inventory
The residential sites inventory identifies and describes the land available for new

housing construction and compares the capacity of available land to the City's RHNA for

the projection period (June 30,2O2L through August 3t,20291. This includes sites that

have an approved residential project that is expected to be built within the RHNA

projection period, vacant land suitable and available for residential development, and

non-vacant underutilized land suitable and available for redevelopment. The sites

inventory also includes a projection of the number of ADUs and multi-generational

housing units expected to be built during the projection period.

3.1 .1 METHODOLOGY AND ASSUMPTIONS

The housing element must identify specific sites or parcels that are appropriate and

available for residential development. Land suitable for residential development

includes:

. vacant sites with zoning that allows for residential development; and

. nonvacant, underutilized sites with zoning that allows for residential development

and are capable of being developed at a higher density or with greater intensity.

Sites that are in the process of being made available (i.e., planned) for residential uses

via rezones or specific plan amendments may be included in the inventory, provided the

housing element includes a program that commits the local government to completing

all necessary administrative and legislative actions early in the planning period.

Relationship Between Density and lncome Categories
Density can be a critical factor in the development of affordable lower-income housing.

Higher density development can lower per-unit land cost and facilitate construction in

an economy of scale. As shown in Table C-31, the following assumptions were used to

determine the inventoried income categories according to the maximum allowed

density for each site:

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

a

a

Lower-lncome Sites. State law (Government Code Section 65583.2(cX3)l

establishes a "default density standard" of 30 units per acre for the City of Folsom.

This is the density that is "deemed appropriate" in State law to accommodate

Folsom's lower-income RHNA. Sites with land use designations that allow for

development at 30 units per acre were included in the inventory as meeting the

lower-income RHNA.

Moderate-lncome Sites. Sites with a land use designation/zoning district that allow

for multi-family development at densities of 7 lo20 units per acre were inventoried

as available for moderate-income residential development.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-1Page 535

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OI-SSR{
2035

GENERAL PLAN ffiE6
. Above Moderate-lncome Sites. Sites with a land use designation/zoning district

that only allows for single-family housing and limited attached housing at densities

of 7 units per acre or lower were inventoried for above moderate-income units.

The sites included in the inventory are classified based on the General Plan land use

designations since the City is currently (2020) in the process of updating the Zoning Code

for consistency with the General Plan. The Zoning Code update is expected to be

completed Fall2o2l.

Source: Ascent Environmental, Inc. 2020.

Realistic Density Assumptions
The inventory uses the following assumptions to determine realistic buildout capacity

for the sites.

Lower-lncome Sites. Lower-income unit capacity was counted at 90 percent of

maximum residential buildout capacity, or 27 units per acre for Multifamily High

Density (MHD), Mixed Use (MU), Historic Folsom Mixed Use (HF), and East Bidwell

Mixed Use Overlay (EBC) sites, unless otherwise noted for specific reasons for

specific parcels. This density assumption is based on a review of recent multifamily

housing developments, including several affordable housing developments.

a

As shown in Table C-32, several recent multifamily residential development

projects were approved or built at densities ranging between 22.8 units per acre

and 35.9 units per acre in the MHD land use designation. The average density of

recent multifamily developments, excluding additional units granted through

density bonus, is 27 units per acre. lt is important to note that recent affordable

developments have been approved and/or built at densities over 30 units per acre

(e.g., Bidwell Place and Bidwell Point). ln addition, the City most recently received

two applications for multifamily development in the FPASP at 30 units per acre

(e.g., ManginiApartments and Mangini Place). Affordable developers have recently

indicated that they consider 27 units per acre an appropriate density for future

affordable housing developments under consideration.

Maximum Density lnventoried lncome LevelGeneral Plan

Single Family 4 units/acre Above moderate-income

Above moderate-incomeSingle Family High Density 7 units/acre

12 units/acre Moderate-incomeMultifamily Low Density

Multifamily Medium Density 20 units/acre Moderate-income

Multifamily High Density 30 units/acre Low-and very-low income

Low- and very-low incomeMixed Use 30 units/acre

30 units/acre Low- and very-low incomeHistoric Folsom Mixed Use

East Bidwell Mixed Use

Overlay

30 units/acre Low- and very-low income

TABLE C-31: RELATION OF DENSITY TO INVENTORIED INCOME LEVELS, CITY OF

FOLSOM, 2021

Page 3-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 536

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Name
land Use

Designation

Maximum
Allowable

Density

Gross

Acreage
Net

Acreage
Number
of Units

Buildout
Density

(units/acre)

Bidwell Place1,2 EBMU 30 3.24 2.O9 75 3s.9

Bidwell Pointe1,2 EBMU 30 4.2 4.2 140 33.3

Parkway Affordable Apartmentsl MHD 30 10.1 3.5 72 20.6

Scholar Way Senior Apartmentsl EBMU 30 4.57 4.2 110 26.2

Talavera Ridge MHD 30 77.48 11,.48 293 25.5

HUB MHD 30 10.1 10.1 230 22.8

Alder Creek Apartments MHD 30 1o.75 L0.75 265 24.7

Mangini Apartments MHD 30 9.3 9.3 278 29.9

Mangini Placel MU 30 5.O2 s.02 t52 30.3

Average Denslty for Proiects (including unlts granted through denrlty bonus) 28

Average Density for Proiects (excluding units granted through density bonus)3 27

TABLE C-32: DENSITIES OF RECENT MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2021

1 Affordable Housing Project
2 Buildout density includes units granted through density bonus
3 For projects gronted density bonus, where the buildout density exceeds the allowoble density, the moximum

allowoble density wos used to calculote average density.
Source: City of Folsom, Ascent, 2027

Moderate-lncome Sites. Moderate-income unit capacity was counted at 80

percent of maximum residential buildout capacity, or 15 units per acre for MMD

and 10 units per acre for MLD sites, unless otherwise noted for specific reasons for

specific parcels. This density assumption is based on a review of recent housing

developments and current market rents. As described in Section 3.2, "Housing

Needs Assessment," multifamily housing developments were generally priced at

rents affordable to moderate-income households.

Above Moderate-lncome Sites. For small, subdivided parcels, it was assumed that

one single family unit would be built per parcel. For larger parcels that have not

been subdivided, above moderate-income unit capacity was counted at 80 percent

of maximum residential buildout capacity, or 6 units per acre for SFHD and 3 units

per acre for SF sites.

Sites in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The capacity on sites located within the

FPASP is based on the allocated units identified in the Specific Plan. The Specific

Plan assumes, on average, that residential sites will be built at approximately 80

percent of maximum residential capacity. The SP-MU zone allows both vertical and

horizontal mixed use.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

a

a

a

Site Size
Per State law, sites smaller than half an acre or larger than 10 acres are not considered

adequate to accommodate lower income housing need unless it can be demonstrated

that sites of equivalent size were successfully developed during the prior planning

period or other evidence is provided that the site can be developed as lower income

housing.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-3Page 537

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN ffi=ru
The lower-income sites inventory only includes sites larger than 0.5 acres, Sites that are

designated for high density residential development (i.e., up to 30 units per acre) but

are less than 0.5 acres in size have been identified as appropriate to accommodate

moderate-income un its.

The lower-income sites inventory includes six sites larger than 10 acres. These sites have

been reviewed closely to determine appropriate residential development assumptions

as described below. ln addition, the Housing Element includes a program to facilitate

affordable housing development on large sites.

The FPASP MU 158 site is an 11.5-acre mixed-use site located in the FPASP Town Center.

The FPASP proposes development of 150 multifamily units on a portion of the site along

with 43,560 square feet of commercial development. The inventory is consistent with

the adopted specific plan and assumes only 150 units would be developed on a portion

of the larger site.

The lower-income sites inventory also includes an 11.5-acre multifamily high density

site located along lron Point Road. The site is steeply sloped, and therefore, would not

be entirely developed. The site is also included in the Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific

Plan (SP 95-1) and is supported by infrastructure implemented as part of the Specific

Plan. Due to slope constraints, the sites inventory conservatively assumes the site would

only be built at 60 percent of the maximum allowable density, resulting in 207 units.

This site is considered appropriate for lower income residential development because

infrastructure is available, the site is proposed for development under a specific plan,

and the number of units has been reduced to account for slope constraints.

The lower-income sites inventory also identifies a portion of the Folsom Lake College

campus for residential development. Although the campus is a large site (151 acres),

only a small portion of the campus is included in the inventory. This portion

encompasses an estimated 5.8-acres of vacant developable land located just north of

the main entrance to the campus and is within the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay.

Because the developable portion is substantially less than 10 acres and only 156 units

are inventoried on the site, this site is appropriate for lower income residential

development. The Housing Element includes a program to work with the College to

facilitate development of the site.

The lower-income sites inventory also includes a large site (37.18 acres), along Cavitt

Drive, bordering East Bidwell Street. The site is designated and zoned commercial but is

within the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay. The site is entirely vacant and is owned by

one landowner. The owner has expressed interest in developing multifamily residential

on a portion of the site and developing commercial uses on the remainder of the site.

To account for the non-residential development potential of the site, only 10 acres of

the site are assumed for residential development. Because no more than 10 acres of the

site are included in the inventory, this site is considered appropriate for lower income

residential development.

The lower-income sites inventory also includes a large site (43.99 acres), consisting of 3

parcels, located along lron Point Road, near the Palladio retail center. The existing Kaiser

Permanente Folsom Ambulatory Surgery Center is located on a portion of the site;

however, the remaining 38 acres are vacant. Because the land use designation and

Page 3-4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 538

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



zoning allow for non-residential uses, the sites inventory only assumes approximately

25 percent ofthe site, or 10 acres, would be developed for residential uses. As such, no

more than 10 acres of the site are included in the inventory and the site is considered

appropriate for lower income residential development.

Lastly, the sites inventory includes a 19.25-acre site located at lron Point Road and

Empire Rach Road in the Empire Ranch Specific Plan area. A specific plan amendment is

proposed, in conjunction with the adoption of the housing element, to expand the

Regional Commercial Center (RCC) land use designation to allow for multifamily

residential as a permitted use. During the housing element update process, City staff

discussed development opportunities with the property owner. The property owner

suggested that the site would be appropriate for mixed-use development including high

density residential development that would be compatible with the surrounding

neighborhood and future planned highway interchange. Based on the developable

acreage of the site and discussions with the property owner, the sites inventory assumes

approximately 8 acres of the site would be developed as residential. Because no more

than 10 acres are included in the inventory, infrastructure is available, and the site is
proposed for development under a specific plan, this site is considered appropriate for

lower income residential development.

Sites ldentified in Previous Housing Elements
Per the statute (Government Code Section 65583.2(c)) a non-vacant site identified in

the previous planning period and a vacant site that has been included in two or more

previous consecutive planning periods cannot be used to accommodate the lower

income RHNA unless the site is subject to a policy in the housing element requiring

rezoning within three years of the beginning of the planning period to allow residential

use by right for housing developments in which at least 20 percent of the units are

affordable to lower income households.

A few of the sites included in the inventory for lower-income housing have been

included in previous housing element planning periods. These sites are identified in

Table C.1-1 (see Attachment C.1). Housing Element Policy H-3.7 commits the City to

allowing residential use by right on these sites for housing developments in which at

least 20 percent of the units are affordable to lower income households. This only

applies to 4 lower-income sites outside the FPASP since sites within the FPASP are

vacant and were only included in one previous housing element.

Potential Constraints
All parcels (or portions of parcels) included in the inventory were reviewed to confirm

vacancy status, ownership, adequacy of public utilities and services, possible

environmental constraints (i.e., wetlands, flood zones, fire risk, and steep slopes), and

other possible constraints to development feasibility. Environmental constraints are

shown on Figure C.1-2 (see Attachment C.1). Any constraints found are noted in Table

C.1-1 (see Attachment C.1).

Most sites in the inventory do not have known constraints. No sites included in the

inventory are constrained by wetlands. Three sites are located within flood zones. Two

sites within the transit priority areas are located within the 500-year flood zone: the

Glenn Station site (APN O7L-OO2O-078) and a small site within the Historic District (APN

070-0051-032). The 500-year flood zone is considerate a moderate to low risk area and

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-5Page 539

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSOII{
2Q3s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
no special development standards are required for development within these zones. A

portion of the site identified at 790 Hana Way (APN 072-0O3I-O24), along the East

Bidwell corridor, is located within the 100-year flood zone (FEMA AE zone). However,

the majority of the site is located outside of the 100-year flood zone. The first habitable

floor of new buildings constructed on the site, adjacent to the 100-year flood zone, must

be elevated to 289 feet above sea level (two feet above the base flood elevation of

approximately 287 feet above sea level).

Several sites identified are located in areas of moderate to high fire risk. However, there

are no constraints to development within these areas. All development would meet the

adopted building code which includes requirements forfire-resistant building materials.

Developments would also be reviewed by the City Fire Department to confirm access

requirements are met.

One site identified in the inventory at 2800 lron Point Road (APN 072-0270-1241 has

steep slopes. Although slopes on the site do not exceed 30 percent, substantial grading

would be required to support housing development. ln order to reflect the realistic

development capacity of the site, the inventory only assumes development at 60

percent of the maximum allowable density. This would allow for grading of the site and

the construction of retaining walls necessary to accommodate housing on the site.

Underutilized Sites
The sites inventory includes a mix of vacant and underutilized sites. The majority of

lower-income sites, 77 percent, are vacant. Although 23 percent of identified sites are

underutilized, the small proportion limits the potential for existing uses to impede

residential development. Underutilized sites included in the inventory for lower-income

housing have been vetted by City staff and have been deemed available for multifamily

development, see additional details in Attachment C.2. The inventory applies

assumptions for redevelopment potential on underutilized sites, based on current

tenant improvements, market trends, and the age and condition of buildings. The City has

recently approved several affordable housing developments on underutilized sites,

including the projects listed below and anticipates further redevelopment of

underutilized sites.

Bidwell Pointe Mixed-Use Project - a 140-unit mixed use project (approved 2018),

with 100-units deed-restricted as affordable at 125 East Bidwell Street, an

underutilized site previously occupied by the Folsom Cordova Unified School

District main district office building.

Bidwell Place Affordable Apartments - a 75-unit deed-restricted affordable

apartment project approved (2020) at 403 East Bidwell Street, an underutilized site

partially developed for parking for the adjacent Bank of America.

Scholar Way Affordable Senior Apartments - a 110-unit senior affordable

apartment project approved (2020) at 89 Scholar Way, an underutilized site

partially developed as The Church ofJesus Christ Latter-day Saints.

Bidwell Studios - a 25-unit affordable apartment project approved (2020) at 501

East Bidwell Street, an underutilized site occupied by the Folsom Lodge Motel. The

project would convert the existing Folsom Lodge Motel into studio apartment units.

a

a

a

Page 3-6

a

Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 540

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Mixed Use Sites
The sites inventory also identifies sites designated for commercial or mixed use land

uses but allow for multifamily residential development. Fifty-eight percent of lower-

income capacity is on sites that are designated for mixed use. Most of the sites

designated as mixed-use are located in the FPASP and within the East Bidwell Mixed Use

Overlay. The FPASP allocates residential units for mixed use and commercial sites, while

also accounting for commercial development on a portion of the sites. Because these

units are planned for in the Specific Plan, it is unlikely that units would not be built.

The East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay allows sites to be built with a mix of residential and

commercial uses, with 100 percent residential, or with 100 percent commercial. Sites

identified in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay have been vetted through property

owner outreach conducted during the housing element update process to identify the

sites with the best opportunity for residential development. The assumed capacity of
the sites inventory reflects the potential for commercial development to also occur

along the corridor.

For larger sites identified in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, the sites inventory only

assumes residential development on a portion of the site, based on property owner

consultation and site conditions. The other portion of each site is expected to be built

with commercial uses. This is reflected in the assumed capacity for the sites.

The smaller sites identified within the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay are those

considered most suitable for residential development, based on site conditions, the

existing uses, and recent residential development trends. ln addition, the inventory

applies assumptions for the potential for residential redevelopment on underutilized

sites. Several recent multifamily affordable housing projects have been approved in the

East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and the City anticipates further development of this

area. For example, Bidwell Pointe, Bidwell Place, Scholar Way Apartments, and Bidwell

Studios (described above) are projects recently approved for affordable housing within

the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay. For these reasons, the mixed use sites included in

the sites inventory are considered appropriate to accommodate lower-income housing.

3.1.2 PLANNED OR APPROVED PROJECTS

There are several residential projects that have either been approved or are in the
planning process and are expected to be built during the RNHA projection period (June

30, 2O2L, through August 3I, 2O29r. Table C-33 shows the inventory of approved

projects and planned projects (application under review) within the city of Folsom. For

each project, the table shows the name of the development, APN(s), location, acreage

of the site, number of units by income, project status, and additional notes. Figure C.1-

1 (see Attachment C.1) shows the city-wide inventory, including all approved and

planned projects.

Only projects with deed-restricted affordable units are counted toward the lower-

income RHNA. Projects that include market-rate multifamily are assumed to meet the

moderate-income RHNA based on the analysis of market rate rents in other recently

built multifamily developments. Projects that include market-rate single-family units

are assumed to meet the above-moderate-income RHNA.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-7Page 541

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()N{
203s

GENERAL PLAN mm=6
As shown in Table C-33, there are a total of 5,359 units in planned and approved projects

including: t29 very low-income units, 216 low-income units, 1,209 moderate-income

units, and 3,815 above moderate-income units.

Page 3-8 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 542

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



l6Gunit independent living community for residents ated 55 and
Jver including 54 two-bedroom uniB,99 onebedrcom units, and 13
itudio uniB. lndependent living units are reponed as housing units to
lhe California Department of Finance.

llcunit senior affordable apartment community proposd by USA

Propenies on the Church ofJesus Christ of Lafter-day Sainb property.

Mixed use development including 30 on+ and two-bedroom loft un'rt!
€nging from 672 quare fed to 1,185 squa.efeet in size.

Mixed use development including 13 loft units ranging from 733
tquare feetto t125 square feet in size.

Mixed use derelopment including 17 loft units rangint from 856
rquare fed to 1,686 square feet in size,

Estimated construction completion 2024

Estimated construction completion 2023; Developed as sinSle family
homes

E$imated conftudion completion 2025

Estimated construction completion 2023; Developed as single family
homes

Estimated construction completion 2024

Estimated con$rudion completion 2023

Esimated construction completion 2026; 1027 total uni6 apprqed

E$imated conttruction completion 2026

Esimated consruction completion 2028

Estimated construction completion 2023; Private, gated residential
neighborhood of 111 sintle-Jamily uni8.

Efiimded completion 2025; Approved 1,225-unit residential
subdivision with 167 attached townhome units and 1,058 single-
lamilV units;8()4 units mapped.

255-unit market cte apartment complex proposed within the FPASP

(Parcels 82S-1 and 151).

154-unit market-rate senior multifamily apartment community
including 93 one-bedroom and 61 ilo-bed.oom units.

A markd-rate 278-unit frultifamily development proposal from Van
Daele Homes for FPASP Parcel 138-

l{ot€s

Expansion ofan existing apartment complex including 10 ded
re$rided low-incohe units as required perthe development
atrcement.

75-unit deed restricted affordable aFrtment projed proposed by 5t.
Anton Communities (includes 4 extremely low-income untu - 30% of
the area median income).

\pproved on November 1& 2020

\pp.oved on June 6, 2007

\pproved on lune 5, 2007

qpproved on lune 6,2007

{pproved on June 25, 2015

qpproved on May 26, 2020

Approved on February 13,201E

qpproved on July 14, 2020

Approved on March 2Z 2019

qpproved on June 28, 2016

Approved on June 2& 2016

qpproved on June 28, 2016

Approved on July 11, 2017

qpp.oved on Ndember 8, 2015

qpproved on March 10, 2020

{pproved on February 23, 2021

qpproved on lune 15,2020

Apprcwd on May 5, 2021

Status as ofJune:10, 2021

Approved on Julv9, 2019

Approred on Mav 6, 2020

Apprcved on Jlne 20, 2018

545

118

39S

74

960

81

407

111

772

Abm
ModeratF

lncome t nhs

24

13

77

337

77

92

265

754

278

Modente-
lncome
Unlts

86

155

6

Low-
ln@me
Unlts

10

67

3476

Very Low-
lncome
Unlts

Total
ltumber of

Untts

96

75

166

110

30

13

17

337

7a

54S

118

395

24

960

81

407

111

804

265

154

274

23.94

97.46

75.77

314.30

10.8

6.89

9.26

Acreage

16.96

3.44

5.O2

4,2

0.48

0.36

0.55

192.04

7.79

53.53

17.18

100.34

5.57

2L4.25

SF

SF;5FHD

MLD

SF; SFHD; MLD

SP-MHD

RCC

MHD

Land Use

D€slgnatlon

MMD

MU

RCC

MHD

HF

HF

HF

SFHD; MLD

MLD

SFHD; MLo

MLD

SF; SFHD

SF; SFHD

5F; SFHD; MLD

Address

1600 Gnyon Tefiace Lane

4O3 E. Bidwell Street

2075 lron Point Road

89 Scholar Way

Sutter Street

825 Leidesdorff Stret

Suter Street

134; 15O; 153; 154

143

A2A; AZB-2: A3t a4

798

2L4; 2r5 A; 2758 ; 275C; 2r7

129

27o{t 2708, 27oC

SF 89A; SF 898

236;237;234

78;794

!67 ; 77O; 7774; 771a; 246

Old Ranch Way

115 HealthyWay

MHD 138

l/adous

Vaaious

Yarious

Yarious

varioug

Various

Various

Various

Various

Verious

Various

072-3670-012;
072-3670.011

072-a27tM6

072-3380-005

Assesor Parel
Number (APNI

213-006G025

071-019G060;
071-019G061

072-268G011

o72-0270-102

070-0052424

070-0052-022

07G0052-026

Scholar Wav Affordable Senior
Apanments

Folsom Station - G6nite House

Folsom Station - Leidesdorff Buildint

Folsom Station - Sutter Row

Mangini Ranch Phase 1

Ceekstone

Mangini Ranch Phase 2

RockcEss

Carr Property

Ru$ell Ranch

Broadstone Esates

Folsom Heights

Enclave at Folsom Ranch

Toll Brothe6 at Folsom Ranch

Alder CreekApartments

Avenida Senior Apartments

Mangini Ranch Apaftments

Name of Dselopment

Canyon Terrace ApartmenB

Bidwell Place Affordable Apartments

Revel Active Adult Apartments

TABLE C-33: PI-ANNED AND APPROVED PROJECTS, CITY OF FOISOM, 2021

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT EACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Pate 3-9

Page 543

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSON{
- 

)^ 1< ____
G€NERAL PLAN

Soutre: City of Folem,2O2l

Em=6
Noteg

A market-Ete l6Gunit rcidential dewlopmeht proposal from Van
Daele Homs for FPASP Parcel 137,

A 152-unitaffordable multifamily prcjectfrom St. Anton Communitis
for FPASP Parcel !18.

Status as of June :lO, 2021

Approved on June 2,2021

Under Eview; Appliation received
Dsember 28,2020

Abow
Mod€hte-

ln@me llnlts

1815

Moderate
lnome
Unlts

160

z

1,2D9

loF
lmm
Unlts

105

216

45

XE

VeryLil-
lncome
Unlts

Total
Number of

Unlts

160

152

5,369

Acrcage

9.46

5.O2

tt7s.t2

Land Use

Deslgna$on

MMD

MU

Addtess

MMD 137

MU 144

Asse$r Parel
ilumb€r (APill

072-338tr027

portion of072-
3370407

Name ot D*elopment

Bungalos

Mandni Place

Total

TABTE C-33: PLANNED AND APPROVED PROJECTS. CITY OF FOLSOM, 2021

Page 3-10 Public DEft | Rsi*d Autust 2021

Page 544

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3.1.3 VACANTAND UNDERUTILIZED SITES

This section describes the vacant and underutilized sites available to meet the RHNA.

The inventory includes sites from several different geographic areas of the city. This

section describes the characteristics of each area, the land suitable to accommodate

residential development and the unit capacity for each income level. All vacant and

underutilized sites identified in the inventory are shown in Table C.1-1 and Figure C.1-1

(see Attachment C.1). Sites identified for multifamily high density housing suitable to
accommodate lower-income housing needs are described in further detail in
Attachment C.2.

East Bidwell Corridor Housing Sites
The General Plan Update, adopted in 2018, created the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

to increase development opportunities along East Bidwell Street between Coloma

Street and U.S. Highway 50, as shown in Figure C-27. The General Plan provides

standards for mixed use development allowing 20 - 30 dwelling units per acre or a floor
area ratio of 0.5 to 1.5. Appropriate uses include multifamily housing, shops,

restaurants, services, and offices. Policy LU 3.1.5 encourages new development along

the corridor including both horizontal and vertical mixed-use with an emphasis on

medium- and higher-density housing.

During the housing element update process, City staff contacted property owners to

assess residential development potential along the corridor. The City was selective in

determining which sites should be included in the inventory. The inventory includes

vacant land and underutilized land.

The following is a description of land available for residential development within each

of the four districts along the East Bidwell corridor: the Central Commercial District, the

Creekside District, the College District, and the Broadstone District.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-L1Page 545

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN mm=ffi
FIGURE C-27: MAP OF EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR SITES

t

s Dr

R
{-t) -{-ll
'-'r -Is

!.r -

i:l ,,Z,
Y]

tt'
,-'f,'

4
,5> r9.,.

,{l

:,)

i)

c

a
f-\

,)
i\

'J
.J

c

a

('^
-.5,

P"

a
\1,

i

i,

c ;ia
<)

50

a

tlr- i

f
)

@o'&#.'e*

FSSSN

(-) East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

t;:= Folsom CitY Limits
Residential Site lnventory

l_: i SF - Single Family

n SFHD - Single Family High Density

- 

MLD - Multifamily Low Density

I MHD - Multifamily High Density

I GC - General Commercial

W cc - community Commercial

- 

RCC - Regional Commmercial Center

MU - Mixed Use

IND - lndustrial/Office Park

PO - Professional/Office

PQP - Public and Quasi-Public Facility

Planned/Approved Projects

Underutilized Site
0 1,500 3,000 aA
---,==. 

\?

ESRI World lmagery
19010177.01 GrS 003

I
I
W
I

PaEe3-L2 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 546

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Central Commercial District

The Central Commercial District stretches from Coloma Street to Blue Ravine Road and

encompasses older commercial establishments. This area is characterized by strip mall

developments, big box retail, services, and gas stations. General Plan Policy LU 3.1.6

encourages mixed-use projects that create a walkable, vibrant district. lt is expected

that this area of East Bidwell Street will continue to be redeveloped and transformed

with new residential and mixed use development, especially as the economic impacts

of the coronavirus pandemic transform the retail sector.

This area has seen a significant increase in redevelopment of underutilized sites with

affordable housing development in recent years, including Bidwell Pointe

(constructed in 2018), Bidwell Place (approved in 2020), and Bidwell Studios, a

planned conversion of the Folsom Lodge Motel to affordable housing (approved in

2020 and currently (2021) under construction). ln addition, the City applied for
funding in 2O2O to construct sidewalks on Riley Street between Sutter Street and

Bidwell Street to improve pedestrian connectivity between the Central Commercial

District and the Historic District.

The sites inventory includes the planned affordable housing development: Bidwell Place

(see Table C-33). The inventory also identifies several underutilized sites appropriate for

residential development. These sites have been vetted to determine suitability for

residential development. One of the sites is owned by the Folsom Cordova Unified

School District (FCUSD). The school district has expressed an intent to sell the property

and would provide first right of refusal to affordable housing developers in accordance

with Government Code Section 54222.There are four other underutilized sites included

in the inventory. These sites were identified based on current tenant improvements,

market trends, and the age and condition of buildings.

Folsom Cordova Unified School District Site

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 Page 3-13Page 547

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSON{
2035

GENERAL PLAN HAI=6
While this area has redevelopment potential, not all of the underutilized sites are

expected to redevelop with housing during the planning period, given that the sites also

allow for commercial development. The inventory assumes that only 25 percent of the

sites would be redeveloped with housing during the planning period, which is essentially

equivalent to one of the four identified sites redeveloping with housing. This is reflected

in the capacity calculation for each site. With the exception of one site, the capacity

analysis for these sites is based on the assumption that the existing uses would be

replaced with new residential development. The East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay allows

for stand-alone residential development and as described above; several recent

affordable housing projects have recently been approved on underutilized sites in this

area. Based on the allowed uses and recent market trends, the inventory assumes 100

percent residential development on the underutilized sites. For the Folsom Lake Bowl

parking lot site, the existing bowling alley and barber shop are anticipated to remain.

The site has been identified because there is additional capacity for infill development

on the undeveloped portion of the site.

Underutilized site in the Central Business District (Source: Google, April 2019)

Sites identified for residential development in the Central Commercial District are

reflected in Figure C-28. The sites inventory identifies 9.5 acres of vacant and

underutilized land in this area, and based on the assumptions described above, assumes

a realistic capacity of 124 lower-income units within the planning period (see Table C-

34). Additional details describing the existing uses on the site are included in

Attachment C.2.

Page 3-14 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 548

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-28: MAP OF EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR - CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Residential Site lnventory

r 5F - Single Family

ffi sFHD - Single Family High Density

I MLD - Multifamily Low Density

- 

MHD - Multifamily High Density

i+'5ii[.{t CC - Community Commercial

I MU - Mixed use

;i:g ri.r:':l PO - Professional/Office

@
05001

Feet

Planned/Approved Projects

ESRI World lmagery
19010177.01 GrS 004

Fl$i\Sl Underutilized Site

O East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

E.'.'--: Folsom City Limits

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-15Page 549

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"(}LSOl\{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Em=6
Creekside District

The Creekside District stretches from Blue Ravine Road to Oak Avenue Parkway and

primarily consists of medical and office professional uses centered around Mercy

Hospital Folsom. General Plan Policy LU 3.1.7 encourages development of medical

offices, housing, and retail and service uses to create a medical and assisted living

district.

The sites inventory includes two vacant sites within the Creekside District. The vacant

site located al I57I Creekside Drive, on the north corner of East Bidwell Street and

Creekside Drive, behind existing retail, is suitable for housing development. The City has

received interest from an affordable housing developer to construct multifamily units

on the Creekside Drive site and anticipates an application in the near future. ln addition,

a vacant site located at 790 Hana Way is also available for multifamily development.

Sites identified for residential development in the Creekside District are reflected in

Figure C-29.

The sites inventory includes 10.1 acres in this area with a realistic capacity for 216 lower-

income units (see Table C-34).

College District

The College District expands from Oak Avenue Parkway to Scholar Way. Folsom Lake

College is a defining feature of the district. General Plan Policy LU 3.1.8 encourages a

vibrant, walkable district with student and faculty housing, retail, and daily service uses

for students, faculty, and staff.

The sites inventory assumes development of the parcels owned by Lakeside Church,

located at 745 Oak Avenue Parkway, northwest of the Folsom Lake College campus, The

parcels consist of vacant land, a parking lot, and overhead powerlines. The inventory

only includes the vacant portions of the site and excludes the areas occupied by the

existing parking lot and overhead powerlines (APN 072-131O-012;a portion of APN 072-

1310-011; and a portion of APN O72-I3!O-O7O). The site would require a lot split and

reconfiguration.

The sites inventory also includes a site on the Folsom Lake College campus (APN 072-

0270-023].. The site includes a portion of the College propertyfronting on East Bidwell

Street included within the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, near the campus entrance,

During the housing element update process, the City contacted Los Rios Community

College District to discuss potential housing opportunities at the site. Although no plans

for housing are currently included in the campus master plan, the District has indicated

interest in continuing conversations with the City about the potential for residential

development on the College property. As outlined in Housing Element Program H-2, the

City will continue to collaborate with property owners, including the community college

district, to pursue housing opportunities.

Sites identified for residential development in the College District are reflected in Figure

C-30. The sites inventory identifies 13.2 acres in this area with a realistic capacity for

355 lower-income units (see Table C-34).

Page 3-16 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 550

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-29: MAP OF EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR - CREEKSIDE DISTRICT

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Residential Site lnventory

I SF - Single Family

i-1...i..t',1 Po - Professional/Oftice

I PQP - Public and Quasi-Public Facility

(.Nl Underutilized Site

(-) East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay
''-__9llg-.4??" @

ESRI World lmagery
19010177.01 GrS 005

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page3-L7Page 551

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Planned/Approved ProjectsResidential Site lnventory

5F - Single Family

I RCC - Regional Commmercial Center

l- -- ll PO - Professional/Qlfice

I PQP - Public and Quasi-Public Facility

'-gl9-..11??" @
ESRI World lmagery

19010177.01 GtS 006

NSS\\I Underutilized Site

(-'l East Bidwell Mixed Use OverlayI MHD - Multifamily High Density

I---'l CC - Communiw Commercial

FOLS()DI
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
FIGURE C-30: MAP OF EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR - COLLEGE DISTRICT

Page 3-18 Public Draft | Revised August 2021-Page 552

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Broodstone District

The Broadstone District stretches from Scholar Way to the U.S. Highway 50 interchange

and encompasses the City's newest shopping and entertainment district, including the

Palladio. General Plan Policy LU 2.t.2 encourages an emphasis on high-density

residential and pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly development to support a vibrant

gathering place for the community.

Several developments have recently occurred in the district, including a 293-unit

apartment complex located on Broadstone Parkway, Talavera Ridge, which includes six

(5) extremely-low income units and was built in 2Ot912020. As shown in Table C-33, a

development proposal for Scholar Way Affordable Senior Apartments, a 110-unit

affordable development, was approved by the City in November 2020.

Although much of the district has been built out in recent years, and most remaining

vacant sites are currently (2020) proposed for development, potential for development

of remaining vacant sites and redevelopment of some areas exists. The inventory

includes the 43.99-acre site located directly west of the Palladio. The site encompasses

three parcels and includes the existing Kaiser Permanente Folsom Ambulatory Surgery

Center as well as the surrounding vacant land. A previous entitlement for hospital

development proposed by Kaiser Permanente on the site has expired and the site

remains vacant and is suitable for residential development. The site is located near daily

services, transit, and employment uses. ln addition, Program H-2 included in the

Housing Element commits the City to ongoing coordination with property owners in the

East Bidwell Corridor, including Kaiser Permanente. Considering site size and the

potential for non-residential development, the inventory assumes approximately 25

percent of the site, or 10 acres, would be developed for lower-income housing within

the planning period.

Vacant land surrounding the Kaiser Permanente Folsom Ambulatory Surgery Center

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-L9Page 553

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"Gg-S01S{f
203s

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
The inventory also includes the 37.18-acre site just north of East Bidwell Street, along

Cavitt Drive. The site is adjacent to the recently constructed Talavera Ridge apartment

complex and is owned by Elliot Homes who has indicated interest in some multifamily

residential development on the site. The inventory assumes 10 acres would be

developed for lower-income housing within the planning period.

Sites identified for residential development in the Broadstone District are reflected in

Figure C-31. ln addition to the planned and approved projects, the inventory assumes

20 acres with a realistic capacity for 540 lower-income units (see Table C-34).

Summary
Table C-34 shows the inventory of housing sites identified along the East Bidwell

corridor. The inventory identifies 52.9 acres with a realistic capacity of 1,236 lower-

income units, Housing Element Program H-2 commits the City to continue coordinating

with property owners in the East Bidwell corridor to identify opportunities for

residential development. ln addition, Housing Element Program H-2 would increase

residential capacity by increasing densities along the East Bidwell corridor.

Page 3-20 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 554

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-31: MAP OF EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR - BROADSTONE DISTRICT

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

RS\l Underutilized Site

O rast Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

o 5oo 1,ooo /i-r\
---1 

,.=. \1;/

ESRI World lmagery
19010177.01 GrS 006

I MHD - Multifamily High Density m PQP - Public and Quasi-Public Facility

I RCC - Regional Commmercial Center

PO - Professional/Office

Planned/Approved Projects

CC - Community Commercial

Residential Site lnventory

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-21Page 555

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSONd
2035

GENERAL PLAN Erffi=6

FCUSD Site; lnventory assumes 100%

build out during planning period, based
on property owner input.

Total area ofAPN 071-0190-048 is 2.04
acres; lnventory only includes vacant
area behind Folsom Lake Bowl and the
entire adjacent parcel (APN O7I-O32O-

026 - existing parking lot); commercial
component would remain. Underutilized
site - inventory assumes 25% build out
during planning period.

Strip Mall between Coloma St and
Rumsey Way - Underutilized site - 25%

build out during planning period

Strip Mall between Rumsey Way and
Market St - Underutilized site - 25% build
out during planning period

Snowline Hospice Thrift Store -
Underutilized site -25o/o build out during
planning period

Notes

17

7

2

3

2

73

2

4

5

71

10

124

Realistic
Capacity for

Lower lncome
Units

79

7

4

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

Expected
Density

27

27

27

Maximum
Units

88

15

32

48

74

31

61

9

19

22

50

42

289

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

30

30

30

Acres

1.06

0.54

7.6

1.O2

0.25

0.45

0.27

7.99

o.29

0.63

0.74

7.66

t.47

9.6

2.94

Zoning
Designation

MU

c-2

c-2

c-2

c-2

Land Use

Designation

MU

CC - EBMU

CC - EBMU

CC - EBMU

CC - EBMU

Address

300 E. Bidwell St.

314 E. Bidwell St-

320 E. Bidwell St.

330 E. Bidwell St.

402 E. Bidwell St.

404 E. Bidwell St.

412 E. Bidwell St.

616 E. Bidwell St.

955 Riley St.

511 E. Bidwell St.

Assessor Parcel

Number (APN)

CENTRAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

071-0190-093*

071-0r"90-048

07t-o320-o26

Subtotol

071-0082-01"6

071-0082-015

07L-0082-OL7

07t-o082-ot2

Subtoul

071-0083-012

071-0083-011

071-0083-010

Subtotal

071-0360-013

Subtotal - Central Commercial District

TABLE C-34: EAST BIDWELI CORRIDOR HOUSING SITES, ClTy OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

Page 3-22 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 556

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Creekside (Cummings) Site; Unit count
based on a potential affordable housing
project proposed by an affordable
housing developer.

500-yr flood zone; AE flood zone

Lakeside Church - inventory only includes
vacant portions of sites excluding areas
constrained by existing parking lot and
overhead powerlines - would require lot
split and reconfiguration. APN 072-131.0-
012 total size is 4.48 acres; APN 072-
1310-011 total size is 4.2 acres; APN 072-
1310-010 total size is 4.79 acres

7.37 of developoble land

Folsom Lake College (151.14-acre parcel)
- The inventory only includes 5.81 acres
of developable land within the EBMU
overlay.

Notes

799

]-57

355

Realistic
Capacity for

Lower Income
Units

150

150

56

2L6

r20

36

43

27

27

27

27

27

Expected
Density

19.5
(see notes)

73

30s

L34

40

47

22L

t74

395

Maximum
Units

84

63

85

232

30

30

30

30

30

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

30

2.43

10.14

7.34

1.58

4.46

7.38

s.81

13.18

Acres

2.79

2.1

2.42

7.77

Zoning
Designation

BP (PD)

BP (PD)

BP (PD)

A-1-A

Land Use

Designation

PO - EBMU

PO - EBMU

PO - EBMU

PQP. EBMU

790 Hana Way

701 Oak Avenue
Pkwy

741- Oak Avenue
Pkwy

731 Oak Avenue
Pkwy

100 Scholar Way

Address

1571 Creekside Dr

1591 Creekside Dr

1575 Creekside Dr

CREEIGIDE DISTRICT

071-0040-161

07t-oo40-762

071-0040-163

Subtotal

072-OO3I-O24

Subtotal - Creekside District

COIIEGE DISTRICT

072-13!O-OL2

portion of 072-
1310-011

portion of 072-
1310-010

subtotal

portion of 072-
o270-023

Subtotal - College District

Assessor Parcel

Number {APN)

TABLE C-34: EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR HOUSING SITES, CITY OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-23Page 557

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



]trQ)LSONfl
anzc
LV J J

GENERAL PLAN HFT=ru

Iotal parcel size is 37.18 acres; vacant
site; assumed 10 acres of residential
development.

Kaiser Site (43.99-acre site) - 38.05 acres
of the site are vacanq assumed 10 acres
of residential development. APN 072-
1190-128 total size is23.73 acres; APN
072-7190-129 total size is 7.9 acres; APN
072-1190-1-30 total size is 12.36 acres.

Notes

Realistic
Capacity for

Lower lncome
Units

270

270

270

s40

t,236

Expected
Density

27

27

Maximum
Units

300

300

300

500

1,589

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

30

30

Acres

10

10.00

10.00

20.00

52.93

Zoning
Designation

c-2

c-3 (PD)

Land Use

Designation

CC - EBMU

RCC - EMBU

Address

Broadstone Pkwy

2376 lron Point Rd

285 Palladio Pkwy

1565 Cavitt Drive072-0270-155

072-Lt90-r28

072-t790-729

072-t190-t30

Subtotal

Assessor Parcel
Number (APN)

BROADSTONE DISTRICT

Subtotal - Broadstone District

Total East Bidwell Corridor Sites

TABIE C-34: EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR HOUSING SITES, CITY OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

percent affordoble units by-right.
Source: Ascenl 2020; City of Folsom, 2020

Page 3-24 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 558

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ti'ansit Priority Area Opportunity Sites
The Folsom 2035 General Plan Update highlighted the SACOG Transit Priority Areas

within one-half mile of the City's three light rail stations, consistent with the SACOG

Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy prepared in2OI5.
The General Plan outlines several land use policies to encourage transit-oriented
development and a variety of housing around transit stations, including Policies LU 4.1.1

and LU 4.1.2.

The sites inventory assumes residential development on several sites located within the

SACOG Transit Priority Areas. Most of these are smaller, single-family designated sites

within the City's Historic District, which are included in the inventory of moderate- and

above-moderate income sites. Two multifamily high density sites appropriate for lower-

income housing are located in close proximity to the light rail stations. The light rail

parking lot at the Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station (2.73 acres) is a City-owned lot

suitable for high density transit-oriented development. The City, in coordination with

SACOG, analyzed the development potential of the site in the Transit-Oriented

Development Action Plan prepared by SACOG. Housing Element Program H-15 calls for
the City to pursue opportunities to support an affordable developer in constructing

lower-income housing on the site. ln addition, the Leidesdorff site consists of three

vacant parcels located on Leidesdorff Street in the Historic District (2.54 acres) suitable

for lower-income housing.

The sites inventory identifies a realistic capacity of 145 lower-income units within the

SACOG Transit Priority Areas. Lower-income housing opportunity sites within the Transit

Priority Areas are identified in Table C-35 and Figure C-32.

Existing parking lot at Glenn/Robert G Holderness Station

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-25Page 559

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"@F-S@n6
203s

GENERAL PLAN Em=ru
Realistic

Capacity for
Lower lncome

Units

77

19

35

74

145

Expected
Density

27

27

27

27

!9

27

39

82

151

Maximum
Units

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

30

30

30

30

Acres

0.6s

0.70

!.29

2.73

s.37

Zoning
Designation

HD

HD

HD

sP s3-2 (R-4)

Land Use

Designation

HF

HF

HF

MHD

Address

1118 Sutter St

1108 Sutter St

Leidesdorff St

1025 Glenn Dr

Assessor Parcel
Number (APN)

070-oo42-oo2

070-0046-024

070-0045-026

071-0020-078

Site Name

Leidesdorff Site*

Glenn Station Site*

Total Transit Priority Area Lower-lncome Sites

TABLE C-35: TRANSIT PRIORITY AREA LOWER-INCOME HOUSING SITES, CITY OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

percent offordable units by-right.
Source: Ascent, 2O2O; City of Folsom,2020

Page 3-26 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 560

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE C-32: MAP OF SACOG TRANSIT PRIORITY AREAS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Residential Site lnventory

r SF - Single Family

ffi SFHD - Single Family High Density

I MLD - Multifamily Low Density

I MHD - Multifamily High Density

[:L]::-="il CC - Community Commercial

I MU - Mixed use

:-'I;:l Po - Professional/oftice

Planned/Approved Projects

Underutilized Site

SACOG Transit Priority Areas

Light Rail Station

Light Rail Line

Folsom City Limits

N
O

R

0 1,s00 3,000 /i=rt
F-

ESRI World lmagery
19010177.01 GtS 008

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page3-27Page 561

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"(}LS01t{
2Q35

GENERAL PLAN Hffi=ru
Although no residential units located within the lron Point Station Transit Priority Area

are identified in the sites inventory for the planning period, the City has initiated

discussions with the owner of the Folsom Premium Outlets regarding the potential for

housing at the outlets. While there are no foreseeable plans for housing at this time,

representatives from the ownership group expressed interest in continuing to explore

the potential for future housing development at the Folsom Premium Outlets. As

outlined in Housing Element Program H-2, the City will coordinate with property owners

in transit priority areas, including the Folsom Premium Outlets to support transit-

oriented multifamily housing development. This site could be added to the inventory in

the future should an opportunity for housing be identified.

Additionally, Housing Element Program H-2 commits the City to identirying appropriate

sites to increase residential densities in Transit Priority Areas. As part of the City's

comprehensive zoning code update, the City will develop and adopt appropriate

development standards for transit-oriented development, as outlined in Housing

Element Program H-3. This program will provide additional capacity for lower-income

housing units at opportunity sites, such as the existing light rail parking lot site at Glenn

Station.

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Housing Sites
The FPASP is a 3,51O-acre comprehensively planned community that creates new

community development patterns based on the principles of Smart Growth and Transit

Oriented Development. The FPASP was approved in 2011, and development is

underway in the area. Tentative subdivision maps have been approved for the following

projects, as of October 2020:

. Folsom Heights: A 530-unit residential project, located along the eastern boundary

of the plan area, approved on July II,2OI7. The 407 single family and single family

high density units have been mapped. The remaining 123 multifamily low density

units have not been mapped. The project is anticipated for completion in 2028.

r White Rock Springs Ranch: A 139-acre residential project approved on March 22,

2016 consisting of 395 single family units. All units have been mapped and are

estimated for completion in 2024.

. Carr Property: A 28-unit single family residential project, approved on June 28,

2016. All units have been mapped and construction is underway. Building permits

for 4 units have been pulled prior to the projection period and the remaining 24

units are anticipated for completion in 2023.

o Russell Ranchl A 1,027-unit residential project on 437.6 acres in the eastern portion

of the plan area, approved on March 13, 2018. 852 single-family units have been

mapped and construction is underway. Building permits for 67 units have been

pulled prior to the projection period. The remaining 960 units are anticipated for

completion in2O26.
. Broadstone Estates: A 81-unit single family subdivision along the northern

boundary ofthe plan, approved on June 28,20t6. All units have been mapped and

are estimated for completion in 2026.

. Mangini Ranch Phase 1: A 1,815-unit residential project consisting of single family,

multifamily, and mixed use housing, approved on June 25, 2Ot5. Of the single-

family units, 24 included a multi-generational suite (see further detail on multi-
generational housing under Accessory Dwelling Units below). 872 single family and

Page 3-28 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 562

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



multifamily units have been mapped and building permits for 535 units have been

pulled. The remaining 337 units are estimated for completionin2024.
. Creekstone: A 71-unit single family development, located within Mangini Ranch

Phase 1, was approved and mapped on May 26,2020. The project is estimated for

completion in 2023.
. Mangini Ranch Phase 2: A 901-unit residential project consisting of single family

and multifamily housing, approved on February 13, 2018. 545 units have been

mapped. The project is anticipated for completion in 2025.

o Rockcress: A 118-unit single family development, located within Mangini Ranch

Phase 2, was approved and mapped on July L4,2020. The project is estimated for

completion in 2023.
o The Enclave at Folsom Ranch: A private, gated residential neighborhood of 111 single-family

units approved on November 8,2OL6. All units are mapped, and site improvements are

undenvay. The project is anticipated for completion in 2023.

. Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch: A 1,225-unit residential subdivision including both

active adult and traditional housing, approved on March 10,2O2O. The majority

of the project is single family (1,058 units). Two multifamily low density sites,

located within the project, will be constructed with 167 attached townhouse

units. Of the 1,225 total units, 804 units have been mapped and are estimated

for completion in 2026.

Although the majority of approved development to-date has consisted of single-family

homes, several multifamily projects are in the planning stages and are anticipated to be

developed during the planning period. The City has recently approved an application for

Alder Creek Apartments, a 265-unit market rate apartment complex and has received

two applications for an additional 278-unit apartment complex and a 160-unit bungalow

development from Van Daele Homes. The City also recently received an application for

a 152-unit affordable housing development from St. Anton (see Table C-33).

The backbone infrastructure for the FPASP area was completed in 2018, as described in

the "Adequacy of Public Facilities and lnfrastructure" section below, and several of the

recently approved residential developments have already been completed or are

currently under construction. Development of the FPASP will depend on market demand,

but the FPASP development group expects the completion of an average of 600 single

family units per year, during the planning period. Although buildout of the plan may

extend beyond the planning period, the sites are anticipated to be available within the

planning period. This is particularly true of multifami[ high density sites which are located

along major arterials where infrastructure would be available.

Based on the specific plan allocations by zone, the sites inventory identifies vacant land

available for 1,344 lower-income units, 2,615 moderate-income units, and 2,190 above-

moderate income units within the FPASP. Table C-36 and Figure C-33 show the

inventory of housing sites identified for residential development in the FPASP.

Additional details of sites identified in the FPASP are shown in Table C.1-1 (see

Attachment C.1).

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-29Page 563

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



,lr'() l,${)}\'l K,ffim=6,rt) i'j
ai t: N l:r t{ A 1.. F l. l\ i\i

FIGURE C-33: MAP OF FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN

27gC

Residential Site lnventory

SF - Single Family

SFHD - Single Family High Density

MLD - Multifarnily Low Density

MMD - Multifamily Medium Density

::,::.r,,.: MHD Multifarnily High Density

I GC - General Comnrercial

RCC - Regiorral Commmercial Center

MU - Mixed Use

Ejl--: Folsom City Limits

0 000 @Feet

E5Rl Wodd lnraqery
19010177.0i GtS 009

Page 3-30 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 564

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Notes

Per MAM approved 3177/2O2O- 8.2ac and
221 dwelling units of MHD housing; 5.1ac
and 722 units of MMD housing

Per MAM approved 3/!7 l2O2O - 7.5ac and
156 dwelling units of MHD Housing;9.9ac
and 198 units of MMD housing; 25.0ac
and 198 units of MLD

Above
Moderate-

lncome
Units

833

'J,,357

2,L902,6L5

Moderate-
lncome
Units

r,657

440

722

396

131

L,3M

Lower
lncome
Units

835

22!

1s6

20

30

Various - see

notes

Various - see

notes

30

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

4

7

12

21.48

805.96

Acres

252.43

234.94

782.75

23.44

34.22

14.30

42.40

#of
Sites

11

11

15

4

5

1

1

2

sP-RCC

SP-MU

Zoning
Designation

SP-SF

SP-SFHD

SP-MLD

SP-MMD

SP-MHD

SP-GC

MU - Mixed Use

Total Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Sites

Land Use Designation

SF - Single Family

SFHD - Single Family High Density

MLD - Multifamily Low Density

MMD - Multifamily Medium Density

MHD - Multifamily High Density

GC-General Commercial

RCC - Regional Commercial Center

TABLE C-36: FOLSOM PIAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN VACANT HOUSING SITES, CITY OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Source: Ascent,2020; City of Folsom, 2020

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-31Page 565

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSON{
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFNEru
Additional Housing Sites
The sites inventory includes several other housing sites distributed throughout the city,

Sites appropriate to accommodate the lower-income housing need include multifamily

high-density sites along lron Point Road, Folsom Auburn Road, and Riley Street. Table

C-37 shows the additional housing sites identified to meet the lower-income RHNA.

Other sites identified in the inventory consist of vacant subdivided single-family lots and

small infill mixed use and multifamily sites, which are included in Table C.1-1 (see

Attachment C.1).

The sites inventory identifies an additional t72.2acres that can accommodate a realistic

capacity of 491 lower-income housing units, 7 moderate-income housing units, and 337

above moderate-income housing units.

Page 3-32 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 566

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City-owned Site

Notes

Choi Property - Water infrastructure
is not currently available; however,
the City has planned infrastructure
improvements to construct a water
supply main in2O2t.

Elliot Homes lron Point Site. Steeply
sloped, large site - lnventory
assumes buildout at 60% of max.

density consistent with 5th cycle
inventory.

Total site size is 19.25 acres, of which
11.5 acres are developable. Proposed
specific plan amendment to expand
the Regional Commercial Center
(RCC) land use designation to allow
for multifamily residential as a

permitted use, in conjunction with
housing element adoption. Based on
property owner input, we assume
that 70 percent of the developable
portion or 8 acres of the site would
be developed as multifamily
residential.

16

491

Total
Lower-
lncome
Units

51

207

2]-7

18

27

27

Expected
Density

27

t7

765

Maximum
Units

57

346

345

30

30

30

30

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Density

2s.49

1.89

11.52

11.5

0.s8

Acres

R-4

5P 92-3

R-3

Zoning
Designation

R-1-ML

MHD

land Use

Designation

MHD

MHD

RCC

Riley St

Address

7071 Folsom Auburn
Rd

2800 lron Point Rd

lron Point Rd

071-0190-075

Total Additional Sites

Assessor Parcel

Number (APN)

213-0071-005*

072-0270-124

o72-rt70-tr3

TABLE C-37: ADDITIONAL LOWER-INCOME HOUSING SITES, CITY OF FOLSOM, JUNE 2021

APPENDlX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

20 percent offordoble units by-right.
Source: Ascent,2O2O; City of Folsom, 2O20

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-33Page 567

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
Summary of Vacant and Underutilized Sites
As shown in Table C-38, vacant and underutilized sites provide capacity for 3,215 lower-

income units (i.e., low- and very low-), 2,556 moderate-income, and 2,537 above-

moderate-income units on vacant and underutilized sites.

Source: City of Folsom, and Ascent, 2020.

3.1.4 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS

An ADU is an additional self-contained living unit, either attached to or detached from

the primary residential unit on a single lot. lt has cooking, eating, sleeping, and full

sanitation facilities. ADUs can be an important source of affordable housing since they

can be constructed relatively cheaply and have no associated land costs. ADUs can also

provide supplemental income to the homeowner, allowing the elderlyto remain in their

homes or moderate-income families to afford houses.

Government Code Section 55583.1 states that a city or county may identify sites for

ADUs based on the number of ADUs developed in the prior housing element planning

period, whether or not the units are permitted by right, the need for ADUs in the

community, the resources or incentives available for their development, and any other

relevant factors.

From January 2013 through December 2017, the City of Folsom issued an average of

approximately 5 ADU permits per year. ln response to changes in State law that went

into effect in 2018 making it easier and cheaper to build ADUs, the production of ADUs

has increased in recent years, and in 2O2O the City issued permits for 15 ADUs.

It is anticipated that the production of ADUs will continue to increase. The City Council

adopted an update to the City's ADU ordinance in July 2020 to comply with recent

changes in State law. Requirements of the new ADU ordinance are described in detail

under the discussion on Land Available for a Variety of Housing Types, below. Based on

these changes and previous ADU production trends, it is assumed that the production

of ADUs will increase five-fold resulting in an average production of 24 ADUs per year

during the planning period. This is equal to 194 ADUS during the projection period.

ln order to determine assumptions of ADU affordability in the Sacramento region,

SACOG conducted a survey of existing ADU rents throughout the region in January and

February 2020. SACOG concluded that 56 percent of ADUs were affordable to lower-

income households, as shown in Table C-39. These affordability assumptions have been

pre-approved by HCD for use in the Housing Element. Based on these assumptions, it is

Lower-lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome Units

Above Moderate-
lncome Units

Total
Units

Acreage

0 0 r,236East Bidwell Corridor Sites 52.93 1,236

10 199Transit Priority Area Sites 8.38 14s 44

2,675 2,790 6,149Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Sites

805.96 L,344

7 337 835Additional Housing Sites L72.!S 49L

3,216 2,666 2,5?7 8,419Total 1,039.42

TABLE C-38: SUMMARY OF VACANT AND UNDERUTILIZED SITES, JUNE 2021

Page 3-34 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 568

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lncome Level Percent of Affordable ADUs

Extremely Low t5%

6%Very Low

35%Low

Moderate 43%

Above Moderate t%

TABLE C-39: AFFORDABILITY OF ACCESSORY DWEILING UNITS lN SACRAMENTO,

PLACER, AND EL DORADO COUN]TES

anticipated that of the total 194 ADUs anticipated in the projection period, 109 are

assumed affordable to lower-income households, 83 to moderate-income households;

and 2 to above moderate-income households.

Source: SACOG 2020.

Multi-Generational Housing in the FPASP

Several recent residential developments in the Sacramento region have constructed

single-family housing products with attached multi-generational suites. These multi-

generational houses are single-family homes that have a second separate living space,

or suite, that is complete with, at minimum, a private entrance (in addition to a shared

door with the main house), a bedroom, and a kitchen or kitchenette.

Home builders in the FPASP have produced multi-generational houses in recent

developments constructed in 2019 and 2O2O, including construction of 24 units with

multi-generational suites by Lennar and construction of over 35 units with multi-

generational suites by Taylor Morrison in the Mangini Ranch development. ln addition,

172 units with multi-generational suites are proposed by Toll Brothers in the approved

Regency at Folsom Ranch development and 34 units with multi-generational suites are

proposed by Lennar in the approved White Rock Springs development. These products

provide an alternative to traditional ADUs and allow secondary units to be constructed

on small lots.

The City has not tracked these multi-generational units in the same way that it has

tracked traditional ADUs. However, new City permitting procedures require multi-

generational suites to be tracked as separate units and reported to DOF' Based on

discussions with developers and home builders in the FPASP, the City anticipates that

the production of multi-generational units would increase during the planning period.

A study conducted by The Gregory Group in June 2020 predicts that 50 percent of

residential development projects proposed by home builders in the FPASP would offer

multi-generational housing products as an option for new homebuyers to select. This

was based on the success of currently selling projects that offer multi-generational

housing products, the aging of the population, and the demand and desire for parents

and children to reside in the same house, the increasing need for affordable housing,

and the desire from developers to encourage and incentivize builders that provide

multi-generation housing products that diversify the community and housing price

points. ln addition, the study found that of 19 residential development projects in the

Sacramento Region that offer floor plans with multi-generational suites, 23.1 percent of

new home sales included a multi-generational housing unit.

APPENDIX C HOUSING EIEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-35Page 569

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"OLS(}M
2Q35

GENERAL PLAN Ft=6
According to the study provided by The Gregory Group, it is estimated that 500 single

family units would be built per year in the FPASP based on current market trends. This

would result in the construction of 4,800 single-family units during the eight-year

planning period. As such, 50 percent or 2,4o0 units of the 4,800 single-family units

anticipated to be developed in the FPASP during the planning period would be within

residential development projects that would offer multi-generational housing products,

Based on new home sales of multigenerational housing products in the Sacramento

Region, 23.1 percent of the 2,400 units are anticipated to be multi-generational housing

units. Therefore, it is anticipated that 554 multi-generational housing units would be

produced within the FPASP.

A recent survey conducted by the City, in coordination with SACOG, on multi-

generational units within the region, conveyed that 53 percent of units were used to

house famifu members over the age of 65 and 20 percent of units were used to house

other family members, such as college-aged individuals. The remaining units surveyed

were used as a home office, guest room, or extra space. Survey respondents who used

or planned to use multigenerational units for housing did not intend to charge rent. This

reflects similar studies finding that multigenerational units are often offered free of rent

to house older individuals or young adults (typically college students) on fixed incomes,

Multi-generational units provide housing to these individuals that would otherwise

require housing outside of the family home, thereby meeting housing needs for

extremely low-income residents. Based on this analysis, the inventory assumes 70

percent, or 387 units, of the anticipated multigenerational housing units would serve

lower-income individuals. The remaining 30 percent of anticipated multigenerational

housing units are not included in the inventory to account for units that would be used

as a home office or guest room.

As shown in Table C-4O, a total of 581 ADUs/multi-generational units are projected to
be become available within the planning period: 495 lower-income units,83 moderate-

income units, and 2 above moderate-income units.

Source: City of Folsom,2020; The Gregory Group,2020.

Lower-
lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome
Units

Above
Moderate-

lncome Units

Total
Units

Unit Type

194Accessory Dwelling Units 109 83 2

0 0 387
Multicenerational Units in

the FPASP
387

496 83 2 581Total

TABLE C-40: ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND

MULTI-GEN ERATIONAT UNITS

Page 3-36 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 570

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3.1.5 TOTAL RESIDENTIAL HOLDING CAPACITY VS. PROJECTED
NEEDS BY HOUSING TYPE AND INCOME GROUP

Table C-41 below provides a summary of residential holding capacity in the city of
Folsom compared to its share of the regional housing need as assigned in the RHNA.

Folsom has a total residential capacity (14,369) in excess of its RHNA for all units (5,363),

including the residential capacity to meet the RHNA for each income category. The City

has a surplus capacity of 4,387 units for above moderate-income households and a

surplus capacity of 3,129 units for moderate-income households. Folsom also has a

surplus capacity of 490 units for lower-income households (i.e., low- and very low-).

Source: City of Folsom, and Ascent,2020.

3.2 Adequacy of Public Facilities and
Infrastructure

This section addresses the adequacy of public facilities, services, and infrastructure to
accommodate planned residential growth through the end of the housing element

planning period (2029). The following information regarding the adequacy of public

facilities and infrastructure is based largely on information from the 2015 Urban Water

Management Plan, the 2016 Water Master Plan Update, the 2011 Folsom Specific Plan

Area Water Supply Assessment, the 2014 City of Folsom Plan Area Wastewater Master

Plan Update, and the 2019 Sewer System Management Plan. The City has determined

that water, sewer and dry utility service is or will be made available to all properties

identified in the sites inventory within the timeframe of the housing element.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Very Low-
lncome
Units

low-
lncome
Units

Moderate-
lncome Units

Above
Moderate-

lncome Units
Total Units

2,226 7.,341

1,567
429 1,,967 6,363RHNA

216 7,209 3,815 5,369Planned and Approved Projects t29

Estimated Residential Capacity on Vacant and
Underutilized Land

3,2t6 2,666 2,537 8,419

0 0 1,236East Bidwell Mixed Use Corridor Sites t,236

Transit Priority Area Sites L45 44 10 199

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plon Sites 7,344 2,6t5 2,L90 6,L49

7 337 835Additional Housing Sites 49r

Estimated Residential Capacity of Accessory
Dwelling Units and Multi-Generational Units

496 83 2 s81

Residential Capacity 4,O57 3,958 6,354 t4,369

490 3,729 4,387Surplus

TABTE C-41: ESTIMATED RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY COMPARED TO RHNA BY INCOME, CITY OF FOLSOM,

JUNE 30, 2027TO AUGUST 3t,2029

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-37Page 571

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F (}LS()h{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Ft=ru
3.2.1 WATER

There are five separate water service areas in Folsom: the Ashland Area, the Nimbus

Area, Folsom Service Area - East, Folsom Service Area - West, and the Folsom Plan

Area. One of the San Juan Water District's (SJWD) water service areas, the American

River Canyon Area, is also located within the city boundaries. SJWD provides retail

water service to the American River Canyon area. The Ashland Service Area is located

north of the American River. The San luan Water District serves as the water

wholesaler to this Service Area, while the City of Folsom serves as the water retailer,

The Folsom Service Area - East includes the area of the City located south of the

American River roughly bounded by East Bidwell Street and Oak Avenue Parkway to

the west and Highway 50 to the south. The City is the water provider for this area as

well as the remaining Folsom Service Area -West located within the City limits. The

City also provides water service to the Nimbus Service Area located southwest of the

city limits in the unincorporated county, which consists of Aerojet properties and the

proposed developments Easton Place and Glenborough at Easton. This area is
bounded roughly by U.S. 50 to the north, Sunrise Boulevard to the west, White Rock

Road to the south, and Prairie City Road to the east. ln addition, the El Dorado

lrrigation District (ElD) provides water service to the proposed Folsom Heights

development, located in the Folsom Plan Area, as described below.

The sole source of water supply for the city is Folsom Lake. The City has a pre-1914

water right entitlement ol 22,OOO acre-feet annually (AFA) from the American River.

Through a perpetual lease with the Golden State Water Company, the City has acquired

an additional 5,000 AFA, which is also a pre-1914 water right entitlement. ln 1997, the

City acquired an additional Central Valley Project (CVP) water entitlement of 7,000 AFA

from the United States Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) through a subcontract

with the Sacramento County Water Agency (SCWA). ln 202O, the City and Reclamation

converted the CVP water service sub-contract (7,000 AFA) into a repayment contract

through a direct agreement between the City and Reclamation. This repayment contract

supersedes the sub-contract with SCWA and provides for the City to be a direct

contractor to Reclamation. The City's total water right and contract entitlement is

34,000 AFA. ln addition, the San Juan Water District delivers approximately 1,000 AFA

for the Ashland Service Area, and EID is required to provide water supply to meet the

demands of 530 residential dwelling units in the proposed Folsom Heights

development, located in the Folsom Plan Area and within the EID water service area.

The City's water service area extends outside the city limits west along Folsom

Boulevard to the Folsom South Canal (the boundary with the Golden State Water

Company's Arden Cordova District) and includes all of Aerojet. Folsom has a contractual

commitment to sell water to Aerojet General, lntel Corporation, Gekkeikan, and

Kikkoman. Aerojet General Corporation is within the service area but outside of the

current city limits.

The Folsom Plan Area is included in the Folsom Water Service Area. While the Folsom

Plan Area Environmental lmpact Report anticipated that water for the Folsom Plan Area

would be pumped from the Freeport intake, the Folsom Specific Plan Area EIR evaluated

a local water source option. The City has opted for a local water supply solution that is

environmentally superior and less costly. Through conservation and the removal of

leaks in the existing city water distribution lines, the city water supply now has enough

Page 3-38 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 572

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



capacity to serve the buildout of the Folsom Plan Area. The local water supply

agreement supplies 5,600 AFA to the Folsom Plan Area. The projected potable water

demand for the approved specific plan, including amendments through March 2020, is

5,359 AFA.

The Phase 1 Backbone Water lnfrastructure to serve the first approximately 2,500

dwelling units in the Folsom Plan Area was completed in September of 2019. The Phase

1 Water lnfrastructure consists of a 24-inch and 18-inch water main that extends from

an existing 18-inch water main in lron Point Road to the Zone 4/5 water booster pump

station (BPS) on Placerville Road. From the Zone 4/5 BPS water is conveyed to the Zone

5 Reservoir/Zone 6 BPS in the Russell Ranch development. These Phase 1 Backbone

lnfrastructure improvements are currently serving the residential homes being

constructed in the Folsom Plan Area. The design for the Phase 2 Water Backbone

lnfrastructure is currently underway. The Phase 2 Water Backbone lnfrastructure which

will provide adequate water for full buildout of the Folsom Plan Area is anticipated to

be complete in the next 3 to 5 years.

For the portion of the city south of the American River, treated water is supplied

through the Folsom Water Treatment Plant. The plant has a nominal capacity of 50

million gallons per day (mgd) and has been retrofitted to accommodate recycling of up

to 10 percent of plant operations backwash water. For the area north of the American

River, water is diverted through the Sydney N. Peterson Water Treatment Plant, where

it is then pumped or conveyed by gravity to the Ashland and American River Canyon

areas.

The annual water supply for the City's water service areas during normal years, as

indicated in the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, is 38,790 acre-feet. The projected

treated water demand for general plan build-out in 2035 is 31,852 AFA (City of Folsom,

2015 Urban Water Management Plan). The City has adequate water supply to serve

projected demand through the time frame of this housing element (2029).

3.2.2 SEWER

The City of Folsom Environmental and Water Resources Department is responsible for

the sanitary sewer system for the city of Folsom. The City collects sewage within the city

limits, including Folsom Prison, for eventual treatment at the Sacramento Regional

County Sanitation District (Regional San) plant located 25 miles southwest of the city,

on the Sacramento River.

The City's sanitary sewer system is made up of approximately 255 miles of sanitary

sewer pipe, ranging in size from 2 to 33 inches in diameter and pumped throughout the

system by eleven primary pump stations and 6 "can" pump stations located at the City's

Corporation Yard. The City has four major sewer sheds that all discharge to a 54-inch

main interceptor (FE2) on Folsom Boulevard, which is owned, operated, and maintained

by Regional 5an. The 4 major sewer sheds are made up of a 27-inch trunk sewer, a 33-

inch trunk sewer, a shed connected to the main 54-inch interceptor by the new FE3

connector, and a fourth shed (Folsom Plan Area) located south of U.S. Highway 50.

The 27-inch trunk sewer runs north to south along Folsom Boulevard serving the west

side of the City and collects wastewater from the northwest portion of the City,

including the north side of the American River. The 33-inch trunk sewer system runs

east to west along Blue Ravine Road and primarily serves the east area of the City. The

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-39Page 573

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



]F(},T,S()MI
2Q35

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Folsom East lnterceptor Section 3C (FE3C) project, completed October, 2003, transfers

flow off of the City's 33-inch pipeline by taking flow from the County's Folsom East

lnterceptor Section 38 (FE3B) pump station directly to the County's 54-inch FE2

pipeline, via the new FE3C pipeline. All of the flow from the Folsom Plan Area shed

located south of U.S. Highway 50 flows through gravity sewer to the Easton Valley

Parkway (EVP) Pump Station. Flow is pumped from the EVP Pump Station through a

force main and into the FE3B pump station. Flow from the FE3B pump station discharges

into the County's 54-inch FE 2 pipeline, via the FE 3C pipeline. See Figure C-34 showing

the City's wastewater system.

FIGURE C-34: MAP OF FOLSOM WASTEWATER SYSTEM

F{tflr trka

City of Folsorn
WaEtewater System

April,2019

Legend

a f r*Y l,{drlnrng :ttr,
a .ld.rr n.sp tlBlrrqr

lf thnl
?fft.d
Ff l St*:

t_.lrt'rt+"o
. '- FPA FI{

- 

s!- jh6d Lh|q h9e5

- 

?f lh*1 iiJr(. prliri4,

-(t2
- 

fr 3 3!.rM

f]] so.or R--r

'h

CV Onrd Pll -

!?'rHrIRCSPTqn

l

-f

FE5 ttACSOI

'lqrrcrq

The Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant (SRWTP) has a permitted dry-

weather flow design capacity of 181 mgd, which it is not expected to exceed until after

2030. The wastewater treatment plant has a plan for expanding this capacity beyond

projected inflows, ensuring the wastewater from the area of Folsom, south of Highway

50, can be treated.

Around 189 acres in the northeast corner and eastern edge of the area lie within the El

Dorado lrrigation District (ElD), which will handle wastewater treatment for those

properties. The existing EID wastewater conveyance system may need to be expanded

to handle flows from this area of Folsom south of Highway 50. The El Dorado Hills

Wastewater Treatment Plant expanded its dry-weather inflow capacity to 4.0 mgd in

2010 and plans to complete additional improvements to increase capacity to 5.4 mgd

f'

It
I

B0t

lTEHED

806
13- aHEE

Bt7
lf

st.r

Page 3-40 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 574

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



by 2025. However, this expansion was not designed to accommodate the FPASP flows

from the area south of Highway 50, so the treatment plant may need additional

expansion.

The Folsom Plan Area's sanitary sewer system is served by the City of Folsom, with the

exception of a small zone (Folsom Heights Development) in the northeast that is served

by El Dorado lrrigation District. The service area is composed of three major sewer

sheds: the Easton Valley Parkway, Prairie City Road, and Mangini Parkway/Oak Avenue

Parkway. The system is comprised of gravity mains ranging from 6 to 30 inches in

diametertotaling approximately 89,500 feet in length. The system is designed to convey

the FPA buildout design flow, equaling approximately 14.31 mgd.

The Backbone Sanitary Sewer lnfrastructure to serve the Folsom Plan Area was

completed in July of 2018. The Backbone Sanitary Sewer System consists of the EVP

Sewer Lift Station and Forced Main and approximately 4 miles of 24-inch to 3O-inch

Gravity Sewer Trunk Main. The EVP sewer lift station and the gravity trunk main are

sized to serve the full buildout of the Folsom Plan Area. The Forced Mains from the EVP

sewer lift station convey sewage under US Highway 50 to the existing Regional San

Sewer Lift Station on lron Point Road. From the Regional San Sewer Lift Station, sewage

flow from the Folsom Plan Area is conveyed to the Regional San lnterceptor Trunk Sewer

Main in lron Point to Folsom Boulevard. Future development in the Folsom Plan Area

will construct infrastructure improvements to convey sewage to the completed

Backbone Sanitary Sewer I nfrastructu re.

3,2.3 DRY UTILITIES
Electricity is provided to Folsom by the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD)

and gas is provided to Folsom by Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), Telephone, cable and

broadband services are provided to Folsom by a variety of services providers, including

AT&T, Comcast, and Verizon. Access to dry utilities is available to all sites identified

north of US 50. Access to dry utilities in Folsom Plan Area is available and/or planned as

part of the backbone infrastructure improvements, These improvements will be

completed concurrent with development of the Folsom Plan Area and are anticipated

to be available during the planning period. All of the sites identified in the inventory

have existing or planned access to dry utilities, including gas and electric.

3.3 Land Available for aVariety of Housing Types
State housing element law (Government Code Section 65583(c)(1) and 65583.2(c))

requires that local governments analyze the availability of sites that will "facilitate and

encourage the development of a variety of types of housing for all income levels,

including multifamily rental housing, factory-built housing, mobile-homes, housing for

agricultural employees, supportive housing, single-room occupancy units, emergency

shelters, and transitional housing."

This section discusses the availability of sites and relevant regulations that govern the

development of the types of housing listed above and also discusses sites suitable for

redevelopment for residential use (as required by Government Code Section

65583(a)(3)) and second units.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 202L Page 3-41Page 575

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'OLSOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi
3.3.1 MULTIFAMILY RENTAL HOUSING

Folsom's Multifamily Low Density (MLD), Multifamily Medium Density (MMD),

Multifamily High Density (MHD), Mixed Use (MU), and Historic Folsom Mixed Use (HF)

General Plan land use designations allow multifamily housing. The MLD designation allows

housing between 7 and 12 units per acre; the MMD designation allows between 12 and

20 units per acre; the MHD, MU, and HF designations allow between 20 and 30 units per

acre. Folsom's regulations make no distinction between rental and ownership housing.

3,3.2 MANUFACTURED HOUSING

Manufactured housing can serve as an alternative form of affordable housing in low-

density areas where the development of higher-density multifamily residential units is

not allowed.

Manufactured Homes on Lots
Sections 65852.3 and 55852.4 of the California Government Code specify that a

jurisdiction shall allow the installation of manufactured homes on a foundation on all

"lots zoned for conventional single family residential dwellings." Except for architectural

requirements, the jurisdiction is only allowed to "subject the manufactured home and

the lot on which it is placed to the same development standards to which a conventional

single family residential dwelling on the same lot would be subject." The architectural

requirements are limited to roof overhang, roofing material, and siding material.

The only two exceptions that localjurisdiction are allowed to make to the manufactured

home siting provisions are if: 1) there is more than 10 years difference between the date

of manufacture of the manufactured home and the date of the application for the

issuance of an installation permit; or 2) if the site is listed on the National Register of

Historic Places and regulated by a legislative body pursuant to Government Code

Section 37361.

Folsom's Municipal Code is consistent with State law. Manufactured homes that are

placed on permanent foundations are allowed in any zoning district allowing single

family homes.

3.3.3 MOBILE HOME PARKS

Section 65852.7 of the California Government Code specifies that mobile home parks

shall be a permitted use on "all land planned and zoned for residential land use."

However, local jurisdictions are allowed to require use permits for mobile home parks.

The Folsom Zoning Code allows mobile home parks in the residential mobile-home zone

(RMH Zone) and requires a use permit.

The City's Single Family High Density land use designation allows mobile home parks.

The areas designated as Single Family High Density in the land use diagram and the areas

designated as RMH zoning designation are consistent,

The City does not have a mobile home conversion ordinance. Table C-42 identifies the

mobile home parks located in Folsom and the total number of spaces in each park.

Page3-42 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 576

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Property Year Built Number of Spaces

7970 39Cobble Ridge

Folsom Manor Mobile Estates 1969 63

t974 60Folsom Trailer Village

Lake Park Estates Unknown 195

181Lakeside Village Mobile Park L976

Pinebrook Village Unknown 335

875Total

TABLE C-42: MOBILE HOME PARKS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Source: City of Folsom,2020.

3.3.4 HOUSING FOR FARMWORKERS

Caretaker and employee housing (including farmworker housing) is permanent or

temporary housing that is secondary or accessory to the primary use of the property,

Such dwellings are used for housing a caretaker employed on the site of a nonresidential

use where a caretaker is needed for security purposes, or to provide twenty-four-hour

care or monitoring, or where work is located at remote locations.

The provisions of Section I702O (et seq.) of the California Health and Safety Code relating

to employee housing and labor camps supersede any ordinance or regulations enacted by

local governments. Such housing is allowed in alljurisdictions in California pursuant to the

regulations set forth in Section 17020. Section 17021.5(b) states, for example:

'Any employee housing providing accommodations for six or fewer employees

sholl be deemed o single fomily structure with o residentiol lond use designation

for the purposes of this section. For the purpose of dll locol ordinances, employee

housing sholl not be included within the definition of o boording house, rooming

house, hotel, dormitory, or other similar term thot implies thot the employee

housing is d business run for profit or dilfers in ony other woy from a family
dwelling. No conditionol use permit, zoning varionce, or other zoning clearance

shall be required of employee housing thot serves six or fewer employees thdt is

not required of o fomily dwelling of the same type in the some zone."

A single-family unit housing employees in Folsom would be treated like any other single-

family unit. There are no provisions in the City's code to restrict employee housing for

six or fewer employees.

California Health and Safety Code Section 1702L.6, concerning farmworker housing,

states that:

'Any employee housing consisting of no more thon 36 beds in o group quorters or

72 units or spaces designed for use by a single fomily or household, ... shall not be

deemed o use thot implies thot the employee housing is an octivity thot differs in

any other way from dn agriculturol use. No conditional use permil zoning varionce,

or other discretionory zoning cleoronce shall be required of this employee housing

thot is not required of ony other agricukural octivity in the sQme zone."

As stated previously in this report, the city of Folsom is not an agricultural community.

Since there are no large agricultural operations nearby that would attract a substantial

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 202L Page 3-43Page 577

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOT-S(}h4f
2435

GENERAL PLAN Ft=ru
permanent or seasonal farmworker population, there is no identifiable need for

farmworker employee housing.

The only zone in which agricultural uses are allowed in the city is the Agricultural-

Reserve District (A-1-A), which is applied to areas that are planned for urban

development, but where agricultural uses are allowed in the interim. The zone is not

intended for permanent agricultural operations, and currently none of the properties

with A-1-A zoning are used for agriculture. Most A-l-A-zoned sites are developed with

public facilities or single-family housing. California Health and Safety Code Section

|7OZL.6 requires cities and counties to allow farmworker housing wherever agriculture

is allowed. To comply with State law, the Housing Element includes a program to either

amend the A-1-A district to allow for farmworker housing or to rezone A-1-A sites to be

consistent with existing uses and remove the A-1-A district.

3.3.5 EMERGENCY SHELTERS

State housing element law (California Government Code Sections 65582, 65583, and

65589.5) requires local jurisdictions to identify a zone or zones where emergency

shelters are allowed as a permitted use without a conditional use permit. The identified

zone must have sufficient capacity to accommodate at least one emergency shelter and

must be suitable (i.e., contain compatible uses) for an emergency shelter, which is

considered a residential use. The law also requires permit procedures and development

and management standards for emergency shelters to be objective and encourage and

facilitate the development of emergency shelters. Emergency shelters must only be

subject to the same development and management standards that apply to other

residential or commercial uses within the identified zone, with some exceptions.

Assembly Bill 139, passed in 2019, revised State housing element law by requiring that

emergency shelters only be required to provide sufficient parking to accommodate all

staff working in the emergency shelter, provided that the standards do not require more

parking for emergency shelters than other residential or commercial uses within the

same zone. ln addition, Assembly Bill 101, passed in 2019, requires that Low Barrier

Navigation Center development be a use by right in mixed-use zones and nonresidential

zones permitting multifamily uses if it meets specified requirements.

Chapter t7.108 of the Municipal Code contains the City's regulations for emergency

shelters. Emergency shelters are allowed by-right in the R-3 and R-4 zone as either a

standalone use or accessory to a religious facility. Emergency shelters are also permitted

within the city's industrial zoning districts (i.e., M-1: light industrial, M-2: general

industrial, and M-L: limited manufacturing) with approval of a use permit. ln the FPASP,

emergency shelters are permitted by-right in the SP-MLD, SP-MMD, SP-MHD, SP-MU,

SP-GC, and SP-RC zones.

The City also adopted the following development and management standards and

locational restrictions:

A. Facility compliance with applicable state and local standards and

requirements.

1. Federal, state, and local licensing as required for any program

incidental to the emergency shelter.

Page 3-44 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 578

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



B. PhysicalCharacteristics.

l. Compliance with applicable state and local housing, building, and fire

code requirements.

2. The facility shall have on-site security during all hours when the

shelter is open.

3, Facilities shall provide exterior lighting on pedestrian pathways and

parking lot areas on the property. Lighting shall reflect away from

residential areas and public streets.

4. Facilities shall provide secure areas for personal property.

5. lf the emergency shelter is proposed in conjunction with a religious

facility, the area utilized for emergency shelter facilities may not

exceed 50 percent of the total floor area used for the religious facility.

5. Where a day care facility or elementary or middle school is operated

on the same site as an emergency shelter, the day care and school

facilities must be separated from the emergency shelter facilities by

means to prevent access from one facility to the other.

C. Limited Number of Beds per Facility. Emergency shelters accessory to a

religious facility shall not exceed 20 beds. Other emergency shelters located in

the city's residential or industrial zoning districts shall not exceed 40 beds.

D. Limited Terms of Stay. The maximum term of staying at an emergency shelter

is six months in a consecutive twelve-month period.

E. Parking. The emergency shelter shall provide on-site parking at a rate of two

spaces per facility for staff plus one space per six occupants allowed at the

maximum capacity.

F. Emergency Shelter Management. A management plan is required for all

emergency shelters to address management experience, good neighbor issues,

transportation, client supervision, client services, and food services. Such plan

shall be submitted to and approved by the planning, inspections, and

permitting department prior to operation of the emergency shelter. The plan

shall include a floor plan that demonstrates compliance with the physical

standards of this chapter. The operator of each emergency shelter shall

annually submit the management plan to the planning, inspections and

permitting department with updated information for review and approval, The

city council may establish a fee by resolution to cover the administrative cost

of review of the required management plan.

With the exception of the parking standards set forth in the Zoning Code, Folsom's

standards for emergency shelter facilities comply with the allowances made for

standards set forth under Government Code Section 55583(aXaXA). The City will amend

its parking standards for emergency shelters to comply with Assembly Bill 139 in the

City's upcoming comprehensive zoning code update and as outlined by Program H-29

included in this housing element.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-45Page 579

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@F-S@S{
2035

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru
AB 139 requires that the need for emergency shelters be based on the latest point-in-

time count. As discussed in Section 3.2, "Housing Needs Assessment," the latest point-

in-time count (January 2019) recorded 17 unsheltered individuals living in Folsom. ln

addition, to the unsheltered individuals included in the point-in-time count,

approximately 30 individuals were in emergency shelters on the night of the latest

point-in-time count. ln addition, the Folsom Police Department has tracked

approximately 50 individuals experiencing homelessness in Folsom and homeless

service providers have advised that the number of individuals experiencing

homelessness may be much higher, approximately 70 individuals. Based on the

identified unsheltered and sheltered individuals on the night of the latest point-in-time

count, a minimum of 47 emergency shelter beds would be required to meet the needs

of the City's unsheltered population.

Powerhouse Ministries provides a year-round emergency shelter for women and

children experiencing homelessness. Expansion of the Powerhouse Ministries facility is

anticipated to be completed in Spring 2O2t and will increase the emergency shelter

capacity from 10 beds to 20 beds. Additionally, an emergency shelter is facilitated by

HART in winter, in conjunction with religious facilities, at a maximum capacity of 20

individuals. The sites inventory identifies 10 vacant sites with R-3 or R-4 zoning, seven

of which would be appropriate for emergency shelters, totaling 4.4 acres (see Table C-

43). The median site size is about 0.24 acres. All of the sites are served by existing

infrastructure and are located close to transit and other daily services. The City Zoning

Code allows a maximum capacity of 40 beds at emergency shelters located in residential

and industrial zoning districts. Any one of these seven sites would be adequate to
accommodate the remaining 37 emergency shelter beds needed to serve its homeless

population, based on the latest point-in-time count.

Assessor Parcel

Number (APN)
Address

Zoning
Designation

Acreage

805 Bidwell St R-3 o.24071-0190-003

808 Comstock Dr R-3 0.18071-0190-009

R-4 o.21.07001200070000 Sutter St

07001200080000 Sutter St R-4 o.27

07001730020000 Mormon St R-4 o.27

07101900760000 Riley St R-3 0.58

sP 93-2 (R-4) 2.7307r-oo20-o78* 1025 Glenn Drive

6.31Total

Average Site Size 0.7888

Median Site Size 0.2s5

TABLE C-43: SITES ZONED FOR EMERGENCY SHELTERS

Page 3-46 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 580

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

a

The City Zoning Code does not address the new State law requirement related to Low

Barrier Navigation Centers and there are no Low Barrier Navigation Centers currently

(2020) in Folsom. The City will amend its Zoning Code, as part of the comprehensive

update, to allow Low Barrier Navigation Centers to be a use by right in mixed-use zones

and nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses if it meets specified requirements

in compliance with AB 101 (see Housing Element Program H-29).

3.3.6 TRANSITIONALAND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

Government Code Section 65583(cX3) also states that "transitional housing and

supportive housing shall be considered a residential use of property, and shall be

subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same

type in the same zone."

Assembly Bill 2t62, passed in 2018, requires that jurisdictions change their zoning to
provide a "by right" process and expedited review for supportive housing. The approval

of 100 percent affordable developments that include a percentage of supportive

housing units, either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is greater, must be allowed

without a conditional use permit or other discretionary review.

ln compliance with State law, the City Zoning Code defines "transitional housing" and

"supportive housing" as follows:

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

"Transitional housing" shall mean rental housing operated under program

requirements that call for the termination of assistance and recirculation of the

assisted unit to another eligible program recipient at some predetermined future

point in time, which shall be no less than six (5) months, and in no case more than

two years. Transitional housing units are residential uses subject only to those

requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type

in the same zone.

"supportive housing" shall mean housing with no limit on length of stay, that is

occupied by the target population and that is linked to onsite or offsite services that

assist the supportive housing resident in retaining the housing, improving his or her

health status, and maximizing his or her ability to live and, when possible, work in

the community. Supportive housing units are residential uses subject only to those

requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type

in the same zone.

HART currently (2020) provides transitional housing with a maximum capacity of 8
individuals. HART continues to seek additional transitional housing opportunities

through master leasing agreements with Sacramento Self-Help Housing. Powerhouse

Ministries also provides transitional housing to women and children and per the facility

expansion currently underway and anticipated for completion in Spring 2021 will have

a maximum capacity of 20 individuals.

The City Zoning Code is not yet in compliance with recent updates to State law related to by-

right permanent supportive housing outlined in Assembly 8il12162. As described previously,

the City is currently (2020) conducting a comprehensive zoning code update and will amend

its zoning code to allow the approval of 100 percent affordable developments that include

a percentage of supportive housing units, either 25 percent or 12 units, whichever is greater,

without a conditional use permit or other discretionary review. These amendments are

outlined in Program H-29 included in this housing element,

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEeS-47Page 581

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSOlt{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
3.3.7 GROUP HOMES

Consistent with State law, the City Zoning Code allows group homes of up to six persons

by right in allsingle family residential neighborhoods. The Zoning Code also allows group

homes of more than six persons in the R-3 and R-4 districts with a Conditional Use

Permit (CUP). While not explicitly required by State law, the CUP requirement for group

homes of more than six persons could be considered a fair housing issue. The Housing

Element includes a program to review the Zoning Code requirements for larger group

homes and amend the Zoning Code to ensure State law requirements related to fair

housing and group homes are met.

3.3.8 ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS

To encourage establishment of ADUs on existing developed lots, State law requires

cities and counties to either adopt an ordinance based on standards set out in the law

allowing ADUs in residentially-zoned areas, or where no ordinance has been adopted,

to allow ADUs on lots zoned for single family or multifamily use that contain an existing

single family unit subject to ministerial (i.e., staff level) approval ("by right") if they meet

standards set out by law. Local governments are precluded from totally prohibiting

ADUs in residentially-zoned areas unless they make specific findings (Government Code,

Section 65852.2).

Several bills have added further requirements for local governments related to ADU

ordinances (A82299, SB 1059, AB 494, SB 229, AB 68, AB 881, AB 587, SB 13, AB 671,

and AB 570). The 2015 and 2017 updates to State law included changes pertaining to

the allowed size of ADUs, permitting ADUs by-right in at least some areas of a

jurisdiction, and parking requirements related to ADUs. More recent bills reduce the

time to review and approve ADU applications to 50 days and remove lot size

requirements and replacement parking space requirements. AB 68 allows an ADU and

a junior ADU to be built on a single-family lot, if certain conditions are met. The State

has also removed owner-occupancy requirements for ADUs and created a tiered fee

structure that charges ADUs based on their size and location and prohibits fees on units

less than 750 square feet. AB 671 requires local governments to include in housing

elements plans to incentivize and encourage affordable ADU rentals and requires the

State to develop a list of state grants and financial incentives for affordable ADUs. ln

addition, AB 670 makes any governing document, such as a homeowners' association

Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions, void and unenforceable to the extent that it

prohibits, or effectively prohibits, the construction or use of ADUs or junior ADUs.

The City adopted amendments to the ADU ordinance in July 2O2Oto comply with recent

changes in State law. The amended ADU ordinance allows ADUs by right anywhere

residential development is allowed if the ADU meets the following requirements,

consistent with State law:

. 800 square feet or less,

. 16 feet tall or less, and

o side and rear yard setbacks no greater than 4 feet.

ln addition, any junior accessory dwelling unit (JADU) that is 500 square feet or smaller

in size is allowed by-right anywhere residential development is allowed.

Page 3-48 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 582

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



The amended ordinance limits the maximum size of ADUs to 850 square feet for one-

bedroom ADUs and 1,000 square feet for ADUs with two or more bedrooms; requires

one parking space for ADUs that are not in the Historic District, near a transit stop or

not a converted structure; limits height of ADUs in Historic District to height of primary

home, two-stories, or 25 feet, whichever is less; and limits height of ADUs in rest of the

City to height of primary home, two-stories, or 35 feet whichever is less. No City-

imposed impact fees are charged for ADUs less than 750 square feet in size. For ADUs

750 square feet or greater in size, city-imposed impact fees are charged proportionately

in relation to the square footage of the primary dwelling unit. The ordinance requires

the City to issue a permit within sixty days from the date that the city received a

completed application.

To streamline the permitting process for ADUs, the City developed an ADU Design

Workbook that provides illustrated examples of the design standards and styles, as well

as other design ideas to assist property owners, developers, and architects and to

encourage thoughtfu l, context-sensitive design.

3.3.9 SINGLE.ROOM OCCUPANCY UNITS

SRO units are multi-unit housing that provide small units that typically contain a single

room. Tenants of SROs typically share bathrooms, kitchens, and common activity areas.

SROs provide a source of affordable housing for seniors and lower-income residents.

The City Zoning Code allows SROs by-right in the C-2 zone and with a CUP in the C-3

zone and R-4 zone.

3.4 Inventory of Lrocal, State, and Federal Housing
and financing Programs

The City of Folsom uses local, State, and Federal funds to implement its housing

strategy. Because ofthe high cost of new construction, more than one source of public

funds is often required to construct an affordable housing development. The City of

Folsom does not act as a developer in the production of affordable units but relies upon

the private sector to develop new units with the assistance of these various funding

sources.

3.4,1 CITY OF FOLSOM HOUSING PROGMMS

Local Housing Funds
ln 2OO2, the Folsom City Council established the housing trust fund as a source of

revenue for the development of affordable housing. The City Council's objective in

creating the housing trust fund was to foster mixed-income neighborhoods throughout

the city. The housing trust fund is funded by an impact fee on nonresidential

development within the city, referred to as a commercial linkage fee. The fee is

currently (2020) S1.70 per square foot for nonresidential development projects. As of

November 2020, the Housing Trust Fund had an unrestricted cash balance of

5L,t45,724. The housing trust fund is intended to be used with other sources of funding

including, State and Federal tax credits, tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds,

community development block grants, and HOME funds.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-49Page 583

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'OLSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN mE6
The City has another housing fund that includes inclusionary housing in-lieu fees and

some of the previous bond allocations from the former Redevelopment Agency. The

City currently (November 2020) has about S5.7 million in this fund, which is used to fund

a broad range of housing-related activities. About Sz.z million is restricted specifically

for the production of new affordable housing.

Community Development Block Grant
The City of Folsom participates in the Sacramento County Community Development

Block Grant (CDBG) program. The recently executed agreement covers the period from

January 7,202I to December 3L,2023. The City of Folsom receives 5165,000 annually

for CDBG eligible projects related to low- to moderate-income housing rehabilitation.

The money is currently (2020) used for the Seniors Helping Seniors program (described

below) and the City's share of the Renters Helpline.

HOME lnvestment Partnerships Program
Through the HOME consortium with SHRA, the City of Folsom receives HOME funds to

subsidize affordable housing projects. For example, in the past HOME funds were used

to assist with the Forestwood affordable housing project developed by USA Properties'

Funding is available during the 2O2I-2O29 planning period to support additional

affordable housing.

Seniors Helping Seniors Program
The Seniors Helping Seniors Program provides assistance for minor home repairs to

promote health and safety for low-income seniors in Folsom. After confirming eligibility,

the City's Seniors Helping Seniors Program Specialist or a licensed contractor performs

minor repairs, free of charge, to qualifying senior homeowners. The program also covers

the cost of all materials and any permit/inspection fees that may be needed. The

program is funded with CBDG funds and provides a maximum grant amount of 52,500

per property per year for minor repairs and 57,500 per household once in a lifetime for

major repairs. ln 2019, 5139,416 of financial assistance was provided through this

program and 90 eligible senior households were served.

Mobile Home Repair and Replacement Loan Forgiveness Program
ln 2011, the City initiated the Mobile Home Repair and Replacement Loan Forgiveness

Program. The program forgives Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) loans for

improvements to manufactured housing units experiencing economic hardship as

defined by HUD guidelines. Since the program was initiated in2OIl, the City has City

has forgiven 11 Mobile Home Repair and Replacement loans under this program.

3.4.2 SACRAMENTO COUNTY HOUSING PROGRAMS

Mortgage Credit Certificate Program
SHRA administers the Mortgage Credit Certificate (MCC) Program, which is available to

residents in the cities and unincorporated areas of Sacramento County. Residents of a

one- or two-person household earning $100,320 or less or residents of a three- or more-

person household earning 5It7,040 or less are considered eligible. Forty (40) percent

of the MCC allocations are reserved for low-income residents earning 80 percent or less

of the area median income. The MCC assists first-time homebuyers by reducing the

amount of Federal income tax a homebuyer pays by 20 percent ofthe annual mortgage

Page 3-50 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 584

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



interest paid. This tax reduction increases the buyer's available income, allowing them

to qualify for a mortgage loan and afford monthly mortgage payments. The MCC

remains in effect for the life of the mortgage loan. The current (2020) maximum

purchase price for an eligible home is 5496,808 in non-target areas such as Folsom and

5607 ,2O9 in target areas. Since L99O,79 Folsom households have been issued an MCC.

Housing Choice Vouchers Program
The Housing Choice Voucher Program (formerly Section 8) provides assistance to help

low-income residents of Sacramento County afford safe, decent, and sanitary rental

housing. HUD provides funds to SHRA to administer the program. According to 5HRA,

as of February 2020,83 Folsom households receive rental assistance from this program.

The waiting list is currently (March 2020) closed and there are over 4,000 applicants

currently waiting on the county waitlist.

3.4.3 STATE AND FEDERAL HOUSING PROGRA,I S

ln addition to the funding programs available through the City and County, there are

several State and Federal funding programs that assist first-time homebuyers, build

affordable housing, and help special needs groups, such as seniors and large

households. ln most cases other entities, including for-profit and non-profit developers,

apply for funds or other program benefits. For example, developers apply directly to

USDA for Section 515 loans, to HUD for Section 2O2 and Section 811 loans, or to TCAC

for low-income housing tax credits.

Table C-44 summarizes several of the State and Federal funding programs that are

available to fund affordable housing opportunities.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-51Page 585

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN HME6
Program Name Program Description

FEDERATPROGRAMS

Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG)

Provides grants and a variety of resources to ensure decent affordable housing, provide services

to the most vulnerable in our communities, and to create jobs through the expansion and

retention of businesses. Resources are available for acquisition, rehabilitation, home buyer

assistance, economic development, homeless assistance, and public service.

Continuum of Care (CoC) Provides funding for efforts by nonprofit providers, and State and local governments to quickly

rehouse homeless individuals and families. lnitiated by the Homeless Emergency Assistance and

Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009, the CoC program consolidates the Supportive

Housing Program, the Shelter Plus Care Program, and the Moderate Rehabilitation/Single Room

Occupancy Program into a single grant program.

HOME lnvestment Partnership
Program (HOME)

Provides formula grants to jurisdictions to fund a wide range of activities including building,
buying, and/or rehabilitating affordable housing for rent or homeownership or providing direct
rental assistance to low-income people. HOME is the largest Federal block grant to state and

local governments designed exclusively to create affordable housing for low-income
households.

Home Ownership for People

Everywhere (HOPE)

HOPE program provides grants to low income people to achieve homeownership. The programs

are:
HOPE l-Public Housing Homeownership Program

HOPE ll-Homeownership of Multifamily Units Program
HOPE lll-Homeownership for Single-family Homes

HOPE lV - Hope for Elderly lndependence

Housing Opportunities for Persons

with AIDS (HoPwA)
Funds are made available countywide for supportive social services, affordable housing

development, and rental assistance to persons living with HIV/AIDS,

Low lncome Housing Tax Credits
(LTHTC)

Provides Federal and state income tax credits to persons and corporations that invest in low-
income rental housing projects.

Mortgage Credit Certificate (MCC)

Program
Provides income tax credits to first-time homebuyers to buy new or existing homes.

Provides grants to jurisdictions to implement a broad range of activities that serve the
homeless. Eligible activities include shelter construction, shelter operation, social services, and

homeless prevention.

Federal Emergency Shelter Grant
Program (FESG)

Provides financial assistance to public housing agencies to fund rental assistance payments to
owners of private market-rate units on behalf of very low-income, elderly, or disabled tenants.

Housing Choice Voucher Program

Section 202 Supportive Housing for
the Elderly Program

Provides an interest-free capital advance to cover the costs of construction, rehabilitation, or
acquisition of very low-income senior housing. The sponsor does not have to repay the capital

advance as long as the project serves the target population for 40 years. Rental assistance funds

are provided for three years, and are renewable based on the availability of funds. The program

is available to private, non-profit sponsors. Public sponsors are not eligible for the program,

Provides an interest-free capital advance to cover the costs of construction, rehabilitation, or
acquisition of housing for persons with disabilities. The sponsor does not have to repay the
capital advance as long as the project serves the target population for 40 years. Rental

assistance funds are provided for three years, and are renewable based on the availability of
funds, The program is available to private, non-profit sponsors. Public sponsors are not eligible

for the program.

Section 811 Supportive Housing for
Persons with Disabilities

Provides below market-rate loans and grants for new construction or rehabilitation of
farmworker rental housing,

U.S. Department of Agriculture
(USDA) Housing Programs (Section

s1.4lsr6l

TABLE C-44: FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR HOUSING, 2020

Page 3-52 Public Draft | Revised August 202LPage 586

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Program Name Program Description

SfATE PROGRAMS

Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities Program
(AHSC)

Funds land use, housing, transportation, and land preservation projects that support infill and

compact development and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Loans and/or grants are provided

for Transit Oriented Development Project Areas and lntegrated Connectivity Project Areas.

CaIHOME Provides grants to local governments and non-profit agencies to assist first-time homebuyers

become or remain homeowners through deferred-payment loans. Funds can also be used to
assist in the development of multiple-ownership projects.

Provides grant funds to assist persons experiencing or at-risk of homelessness.California Emergency Solutions and

Housing (CESH)

California Self-Help Housing
Program (CSHHP)

Provides grants for sponsor organizations that provide technical assistance for low- and

moderate-income families to build their homes with their own labor.

Emergency Solutions Grants
Program (ESG)

Provides grants to fund projects that serve homeless individuals and families with supportive

services, emergency shelter, and transitional housing; assist persons at risk of becoming

homeless with homelessness prevention assistance; and provide permanent housing to the
homeless. ESG funds can be used for supportive services, emergency shelter/transitional
housing, homelessness prevention assistance, and providing permanent housing. Funds are

available in California communities that do not receive ESG funding directly from the U.S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Provides a flexible source of capital for the development and preservation of affordable housing
properties, Developers can access acquisition financing for rental housing and homeownership

opportunities at favorable terms for urban and rural projects statewide. Nonprofit and for-profit
developers, cities, counties, and other public agencies within California are all eligible for GSAF

financing. HCD seeded GSAF with S23 million from its Affordable Housing lnnovation Fund.

These funds are leveraged with additional capitalfrom a consortium of seven community
development financial institutions.

Golden State Acquisition Fund
(GSAF)

Provides grants to municipalities that do not receive HOME funds from HUD for the
rehabilitation, new construction, and acquisition and rehabilitation of single family and

multifamily housing projects; first-time homebuyer mortgage assistance; owner-occupied

rehabilitation; and tenant-based rental assistance programs.

HOME lnvestment Partnerships
Program (HOME)

Provides funding to deliver supportive housing opportunities to developers using the federal
National Housing Trust Funds (NHTF) allocations for operating reserve grants and capital loans.

The program creates supportive housing for individuals who are recipients of or eligible for
health care provided through the California Department of Health Care Services, Medi-Cal
program,

Housing for a Healthy California

Housing-Related Parks Program Provides grants for the creation of new parks or the rehabilitation and improvement of existing
parks and recreational facilities.

lnfill lnfrastructure Grant Program
(ilG)

Provides grants to assist in the new construction and rehabilitation of infrastructure that
supports higher-density affordable and mixed-income housing in locations designated as infill.

Joe Serna, Jr. Farmworker Housing
Grant Program

Provides matching grants and loans for the acquisition, development, and financing of
ownership and rental housing for farmworkers.

Assists cities and counties to plan for housing through providing over-the-counter, non-

competitive planning grants.
Local Early Action Planning (LEAP)

Grants

Local HousingTrust Fund Program
(LHTF)

Provides matching funds (dollar-for-dollar) to local housing trust funds that are funded on an

ongoing basis from private contributions or public sources (that are not otherwise restricted)
The grants may be used to provide loans for construction of rental housing that is deed-

restricted for at least 55 years to very low-income households, and for down-payment
assistance to qualified first-time homebuyers.

TABLE C-44: FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR HOUSING, 2020

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-53Page 587

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN mE6
Program Name Program Description

Mobile Home Park Resident

Ownership Program (MPROP)
Provides loans to mobile home park resident organizations, non-profit entities, and local public

agencies to finance the preservation of affordable mobile home parks by conversion to
ownership control.

Multifamily Housing Program
(MHP)

Provides low-interest, long-term, deferred-payment loans for the new construction,

rehabilitation, and preservation of rental housing, supportive housing, and housing for homeless
youth,

Provides funding to invest in the development of permanent supportive housing for persons

who are in need of mental health services and are experiencing homelessness, chronic

homelessness, or who are at risk of chronic homelessness.

No Place Like Home Program

Provides grants to local government agencies that contract with HCD to operate OMS centers

located throughout the state for the construction, rehabilitation, maintenance, and operation of
seasonal rental housing for migrant farmworkers.

Office of Migrant Services (OMS)

Provides a permanent source of funding for the predevelopment, development, acquisition,

rehabilitation, and preservation of affordable housing, including multifamily, residential live-

work, and Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).

Permanent Local Housing
Allocation (PLHA)

Predevelopment Loan Program
(PDLP)

Provides short-term predevelopment loans to finance the continued preservation, construction,

rehabilitation, or conversion of assisted housing primarily for low-income households.

Regional Early Action Planning
(REAP) Grants

Provides funding for council of governments (COGs) and other regional entities to collaborate

on projects that have a broader regional impact on housing. Grant funding is intended to help

regional governments and entities facilitate local housing production that will assist local

governments in meeting their Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA).

Senate Bill (SB) 2 Planning Grants
Program

Provides one-time non-competitive/over the counter funding and technical assistance to all

eligible local governments in California to adopt and implement plans and process

improvements that streamline housing approvals and accelerate housing production. The 5B 2

Planning Grants allocates a total of 55,625,000 to SACOG jurisdictions for planning activities that
have a nexus to accelerating housing production. The City of Folsom was allocated S310,000
under this grant program.

State Community Development
Block Grant Program
(cDBG)

Provides grants to fund housing activities, public works, community facilities, public service
projects, planning and evaluation studies, and economic assistance to local businesses and low-

income microenterprise owners serving lower-income people in small, typically rural
communities.

Supportive Housing Multifamily
Housing Program (SH MHP)

Provides low-interest loans to developers of permanent affordable rental housing that contain

supportive housing units. Loans have a 55-year term at three percent simple annual interest.
Loans may be used for new construction or rehabilitation of a multifamily rental housing

development, or conversion of a nonresidential structure to a multifamily rental housing

development.

TOD Housing Program Provides low-interest grants and/or loans for the development and construction of mixed-use

and rental housing development projects, homeownership mortgage assistance, and

infrastructure necessary for the development of housing near transit stations.

Veterans Housing and
Homelessness Prevention Program
(VHHP)

Provides long-term loans for development or preservation of rental housing for very low- and

low-income veterans and their families.

PRIVATE RESOURCES

California Community
Reinvestment Corporation (CCRC)

Non-profit mortgage banking consortium that provides long-term debt financing for multifamily
affordable rental housing, CCRC specializes in programs for families, seniors, citizens with
special needs, and mixed-use developments. Both non-profit and for-profit developers are

eligible.

TABLE C-44: FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR HOUSING, 2020

Page 3-54 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 588

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Program Name Program Description

Provides direct subsidies to non-profit and for-profit developers, and public agencies for the
construction of affordable low-income ownership and rental projects. Many projects are
designed for seniors, the disabled, homeless families, first-time homeowners, and others with
limited resources or special needs.

Federal Home Loan Bank

Affordable Housing Program

Federal National Mortgage
Association (Fannie Mae)

A shareholder-owned company with a Federal charter that operates in the secondary mortgage
market. Fannie Mae provides a variety of mortgages for single- and multifamily housing, and has

programs specifically designed for affordable housing.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac)

A government-sponsored enterprise that makes homeownership and rental housing more

accessible and affordable Freddie Mac operates in the secondary mortgage market and

purchase mortgage loans from lenders so that they can in turn provide more loans to qualified

borrowers.

TABLE C-44: FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR HOUSING, 2020

Source: Compiled by Ascent, May 2020.

3.4.4 ASSISTED HOUSING PROJECTS IN FOLSOM

ln addition to ongoing housing programs, there are 751 existing affordable housing units

receiving government assistance in Folsom. These units provide affordable housing for

lower income households including seniors and families, as shown in Table C-45.

ln addition, Parkway Affordable Apartments, approved by the City in 2OI7 , is currently

pending construction and will provide 72 very low- and low-income units using tax

credits and City housing funds. Bidwell Place, sponsored by 5t. Anton Partners, is

currently pending plan review and will provide 75 very low- and low-income units using

tax credits and City housing funds.

ln addition to government assisted housing, the City has supported the creation of

affordable units through the City's lnclusionary Housing Ordinance. The ordinance,

discussed later in the chapter, requires that 10 percent of new ownership units be deed-

restricted as affordable housing for a period of at least 20 years. Through this

ordinance, 75 deed-restricted ownership units have been created. The City has also

collected approximately 56.3 million in in-lieu fees through the ordinance lrom 2O14

through October 2020, which are used to provide gap financing for affordable housing

projects,

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 202L Page 3-55Page 589

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLsl()Ntr
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi

Very low-income households

Very low- and low-income
families

Very low- and low-income
families

Very low- and low-income
families

Target lncome Groups

Extremely low-income
families and seniors

Extremely low-income
families and seniors

Very low-income families
and seniors

Very low- and low-income
seniors

Very low- and low-income
sentors

80

100

7SL

Housing
Units

48

47

81

138

184

18

55

Date
Expiration

2044

2047

20391 2055**

2062

2058

2066

2066

2068

20772019

Year Built/
Rehabil:tated

r97O/7997

r97Olt997

1960/1999

2007

2003

20tt

2012

2013

Funding Sources

Section 8

Tax credits, CHFA" CDBG and

Redevelopment funds, County HOME

funds

Tax credits, CHFA, CDBG,

Redevelopment funds, County HOME

funds

Tax credits, CHFA, GDBG and
Redevelopment funds

HUD Section 811, MHP, CHFA, County
HOME funds, City funds

Tax credits, County HOME funds, City
funds

Tax credits, City funds

Tax credits, City funds

Section 8

Mercy Housing

Mercy Housing

Mercy Housing

USA Properties

TLCS and Mercy
Housing

USA Properties

St. Anton Partners

St. Anton Partners

Sponsor

Mercy Housing

Name of Development

Folsom Gardens l*

Folsom Gardens ll*

Mercy Village

Creek View Manor

Vintage Willow Creek

Folsom Oaks Apartments

Forestwood at Folsom

Apartments

Granite City Apartments

Bidwell Pointe

Total

TABLE C-45: PROJECTS RECEIVING GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Notes: *The City does not have affordohility ogreements with Mercy Housing for Folsom Gordens. The HIJD alse Agreements require that Folsom Gardens remoin affordoble for the

Gardens ll.
**7 of the 87 units were deed restricted for 40 years (until 2039). The remaining units are deed restricted until 2055.
Source: City of Folsom 2020; Californio Housing Partnership Preservotion Dotobase, July 2020; Ascent Environmental,\nc.,2020.

Page 3-56 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 590

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3.4.5 PRESERVING AT.RISK UNITS

State law requires that housing elements include an inventory of all publicly assisted

multifamily rental housing projects within the local jurisdiction that are at risk of

conversion to uses other than low-income residential during the next 10 years from the

start of the Housing Element planning period (i.e., May 15, 2021).

California Government Code Section 55863.10 requires that owners of Federally-

assisted properties must provide tenants notice of a scheduled expiration of rental

restrictions within 3 years, 12 months, and 6 months of the expiration of their contract,

opt-outs, or prepayment. Owners must provide notices of intent to public agencies,

including HCD, the local redevelopment agency, the local public housing authority, and

to all impacted tenant households. The six-month notice must include specific

information on the owner's plans, timetables, and reasons for termination. Under

Government Code Section 65863.11, owners of Federally-assisted projects must

provide a Notice of Opportunity to Submit an Offer to Purchase to Qualified Entities,

non-profit or for-profit organizations that agree to preserve the long-term affordability

if they should acquire at-risk projects, at least one year before the sale or expiration of

use restrictions. Qualified Entities have first right of refusal for acquiring at-risk units.

As illustrated in Table C-45, there are currently (2020) no projects at risk of conversion.

The units at Folsom Gardens I and Folsom Gardens ll (built in 1970 and 1973) were

preserved in L997, and the units continue to be affordable with Section 8 assistance

available for all of the units. The income limit for applicants is 30 percent of area median

income. Although not required by law, the fact that the affordability of the Folsom

Gardens units was preserved is especially important because this is one of two rental

housing in Folsom with all units targeted to extremely low-income households. Mercy

Housing manages the project.

ln summary, there are no affordable units in Folsom at risk of conversion to market-rate

uses within the next 10 years; however, if there were units at-risk, there are a variety of

Federal, State, and local programs available for the preservation of these units.

Federal Programs to Preserve At-Risk Units
For below-market properties, Section 8 preservation tools include the Mark-Up-to-

Market program, which provides incentives for for-profit property owners to remain in

the Section 8 program after their contracts expire. The Mark-Up-to-Budget program

allows non-profit owners to increase below-market rents to acquire new property or

make capital repairs while preserving existing Section 8 units. For above-market

properties, Mark-to-Market provides owners with debt restructuring in exchange for

renewal of Section 8 contracts for 30 years.

For Section 236 properties, lnterest Reduction Payment (lRP) Retention/Decoupling

enables properties to retain IRP subsidy when new or additional financing is secured.

Due to the termination of two major federal preservation programs (LIHPRHA and

ELIHPA), and the limitations of existing federal tools such as Mark-to-Market, state and

local actors must assume a greater role in preserving HUD-assisted properties.

Section 515 enables USDA to provide deeply subsidized loans directly to developers of

rural rental housing, Loans have 30 year terms and are amortized over 50 years. The

program gives first priority to individuals living in substandard housing.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-57Page 591

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOT{
203s

GENERAL PLAN HMEru
A range of resources are available for preservation of Section 515 resources. Non-profit

organizations can acquire Section 515 properties and assume the current mortgage or

receive a new mortgage to finance acquisition and rehabilitation of the structures.

Section 538 Rental Housing Loan Guarantees are available for the Section 514 and 516

loans and grants are also available for purchase and rehabilitation of Section 515

properties that are occupied by farmworkers. Section 533 provides a Housing

Preservation Grant Program, which funds rehabilitation, but not acquisition.

State Programs to Preserve At-Risk Units
At the state level, the California Housing Finance Agency offers low interest loans to
preserve long-term affordability for multifamily rental properties through its Taxable,

Tax-Exempt, or CaIHFA funded Permanent Loan programs.

HCD offers the Multifamily Housing Program (MHP), which provides deferred payment

loans for preservation of permanent and transitional rental housing, as well as new

construction and rehabilitation.

The Golden State Acquisition Fund (GSAF) is sponsored by HCD's Affordable Housing

lnnovation Fund and provides loans to developers for acquisition or preservation of
affordable housing.

The Mobile Home Park Rehabilitation and Resident Ownership Program provides short-

and long-term low interest rate loans for the preservation of affordable mobile home

parks for ownership or control by resident organizations, nonprofit housing sponsors,

or local public agencies. MPRROP also makes long-term loans to individuals to ensure

continued affordability.

The HOME lnvestment Partnerships Program provides grants to cities and counties and

low-interest loans to state-certified community housing development organizations to

create and preserve affordable housing for single- and multifamily projects benefitting

lower-income renters or owners.

Qualified Entities
Qualified entities are non-profit or for-profit organizations with the legal and managerial

capacity to acquire and manage at-risk properties that agree to maintain the long-term

affordability of projects. Table C-46 lists the qualified entities for Sacramento County.

Source: Colifornia Deportment of Housing ond Community Development, 2079,

CityOrganlzation

StocktonACLC, lnc.

Affordable Housing Foundation San Francisco

Eskaton Properties, lnc. Carmichael

Laguna BeachHousing Corporation of America

Norwood Family Housing Sacramento

ROEM Development Corporation Santa Clara

West SacramentoRural California Housing Corp.

Sacramento Valley Organizing Community Sacramento

Satellite Housing lnc. Berkeley

SacramentoVolunteers of America National Services

TABLE C-46: QUALIFIED ENTITIES, 2019

Page 3-58 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 592

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



3.5 Energy Conservation Opportunities
State housing element law requires an analysis of the opportunities for energy

conservation in residential development, Energy efficiency has direct application to

affordable housing because the more money spent on energy, the less available for rent

or mortgage payments. High energy costs have particularly detrimental effects on low-

income households that do not have enough income or cash reserves to absorb cost

increases and at times must choose between basic needs such as shelter, food, and

energy. ln addition, energy price increases have led to a renewed interest in energy

conservation.

All new buildings in California must meet the standards contained in Title 24, Part 6, of the

California Code of Regulations (Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Residential and

Nonresidential Buildings). These regulations respond to California's energy crisis and need

to reduce energy bills, increase energy delivery system reliability, and contribute to an

improved economic condition for the state. They were established by the California

Energy Commission in 1978 and are updated every three years to allow consideration and

possible incorporation of new energy efficiency technologies and methods. The 2019

California Energy Code, which was adopted by California Energy Commission on May 9,

2018, will applyto projects constructed afterJanuary t,2O2O. The newest update enables

homes to reduce electricity demands through solar photovoltaic systems and other

measures, helping to reduce energy bills and the carbon footprint. The California Energy

Commission estimates a 53-percent reduction in energy use and an expected savings of

519,000 over a 30-year mortgage from the previous energy code.

The City of Folsom enforces energy efficiency requirements through the building permit

process. The City adopted the 2019 California Building Code (including Title 24, Part 6,

described above) on January L4,2020, see Chapter 14.02 of the City's Municipal Code'

All new construction must comply with the standards in effect on the date a building-

permit application is made,

The California Building Code includes green building regulations, referred to as

CALGreen, to encourage more sustainable and environmentally friendly building

practices, require low pollution emitting substances that can cause harm to the

environment, conserve natural resources, and promote the use of energy efficient

materials and equipment. The City of Folsom adopted the California Green Building

Standards Code, 2019 Edition, in 2O20, see Chapter 14.20 of the City's Municipal Code.

CALGreen Requirements for new buildings include:

o Separate water meters for nonresidential buildings' indoor and outdoor water use;

o lnstall water conserving plumbing fixtures and fittings to reduce indoor-water

consumption;
o Water-efficient landscaping and moisture-sensing irrigation systems for larger

landscape projects;

o Divert 65 percent of construction waste from landfills;
. lnstall low pollutant-emitting materials;
o lnstallation of solar photovoltaics;

. Domestic hot water solar preheat requirement of 20-30 percent; and

. Home Energy Rating System testing for kitchen exhaust hood ventilation,

insulation, and heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-59Page 593

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSON{
2035

GENERAL PL/\N m=6
ln accordance with the provisions of the California Subdivision Map Act, Section

16.32.090 of Folsom's Municipal Code states that the City may require a subdivider to

dedicate easements to ensure that each parcel has access to sunlight for solar energy

systems. The Code also states that solar access easements shall not result in reducing

allowable densities or lot coverage.

The City supports several Property Accessed Clean Energy (PACE) programs. These

programs encourage investing in energy efficiency by providing special assessment

financing for energy efficiency and renewable energy projects. Loans are repaid through

property taxes.

SMUD provides electricity services and PG&E provides gas services for the City of

Folsom. Both utilities offer a variety of programs to increase energy conservation and

reduce monthly energy costs for lower-income households.

SMUD offers rebates, special promotions, and home-improvement loans to assist

residential customers with energy efficiency upgrades and improvements. SMUD's

Home Performance Program helps residents reduce energy use by evaluating a home's

current energy use and recommending home improvements.

ln addition, SMUD offers reduced electricity rates through the Energy Assistance Program

Rate (EAPR) for customers that qualify as low-income. The reduction is based on income

levels compared to the Federal Poverty Level (FPL). EAPR customers with a household

income at or below the FPL would receive the largest monthly discounts (up to S50 per

month in 2020). EAPR customers with a household income between 100 percent and 200

percent of the FPL would receive smaller discounts (up to S20 per month in 2020). SMUD

also offers reduced electricity rates for customers that require electrically powered

medical equipment. The reduction is equal to S15 off each monthly bill.

PG&E offers the following financial and energy-related assistance programs for its low-

income customers in Folsom:

California Alternate Rates for Energy (CARE). PG&E offers this rate reduction

program for low-income households. PG&E determines qualified households by a

sliding income scale based on the number of household members. The CARE

program provides a discount of 20 percent or more on monthly energy bills.

Energy Savings Assistance Program. PG&E's Energy Savings Assistance program

offers free weatherization measures and energy-efficient appliances to qualified

low-income households. PG&E determines qualified households through the same

sliding income scale used for CARE. The program includes measures such as attic

insulation, weather stripping, caulking, and minor home repairs. Some customers

qualify for replacement of appliances including refrigerators, air conditioners, and

evaporative coolers.

REACH (Relief for Energy Assistance through Community Help). The REACH

program is sponsored by PG&E and administered through a non-profit

organization. PG&E customers can enroll to give monthly donations to the REACH

program. Through the REACH program, qualified low-income customers who have

experienced uncontrollable or unforeseen hardships, that prohibit them from

paying their utility bills may receive an energy credit. REACH assistance is available

once per 12-month period, with exceptions for seniors and mentally- and physically

a

a

Page 3-60 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 594

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

a

disabled persons. Eligibility is determined by a sliding income scale based on the

number of household members. To qualify for the program, the applicant's income

cannot exceed 200 percent of the Federal poverty guidelines.

Energy Efficiency for Multifamily Properties. The Energy Efficiency for Multifamily

Properties program is available to owners and managers of existing multifamily

residential dwellings containing five or more units. The program encourages energy

efficiency by providing rebates for the installation of certain energy-saving

products.

Medical Baseline Allowance. The Medical Baseline Allowance program is available

to households where a California-licensed physician has certified that a full-time

resident is either dependent on life-support equipment while at home; a

paraplegic, hemiplegic, quadriplegic, or multiple sclerosis patient with special

heating and/or cooling needs; a scleroderma patient with special heating needs;

suffering from a life-threatening illness or compromised immune system with

special heating and/or cooling requirements to sustain the patient's life or prevent

deterioration of the patient's medical condition; or suffering from asthma and/or

sleep apnea. The program allows customers to get additional quantities of energy

at the lowest or baseline price for residential customers.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

ln addition to the local programs described above, the California Department of

Community Services and Development (CSD) administers the Federally funded Low-

lncome Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). This program provides two types of

assistance: Home Energy Assistance and Energy Crisis lntervention. The first type of

assistance is a direct payment to utility bills for qualified low-income households. The

second type of assistance is available to low-income households that are in a crisis

situation. CSD also offers free weatherization assistance, such as attic insulation,

caulking, water heater blankets, and heating and cooling system repairs to low-income

households,

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 3-61Page 595

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()N{
2035

GENERAL PLAN EME6
This page intentionally left blank.

Page 3-62 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 596

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



4 Potential Housing Gonstraints
State housing element law requires localjurisdictions to review both governmental and

non-governmental constraints to the maintenance and production of housing for all

income levels. Since local governmental actions can restrict the development and

increase the cost of housing, State law requires the housing element to "address and,

where appropriate and legally possible, remove governmental and nongovernmental

constraints to the maintenance, improvement, and development of housing"

(Government Code Section 65583(cX3)). The housing element must also analyze

potential and actual constraints upon the development, maintenance, and

improvement of housing for persons with disabilities.

4.1 Potential Governmental Gonstraints
City of Folsom policies and regulations that affect residential development and housing

affordability include land use controls, permit processing procedures and fees,

development impact fees, on- and off-site infrastructure improvement requirements, and

building codes and enforcement. This section describes these standards and assesses

whether they constrain housing development,

4,1.1 LAND USE CONTROLS - GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING
The Folsom General Plan establishes land use designations for all land within the city

limits. These land use designations specify the type of development that the City will

allow. The General Plan land use designations include seven designations that permit a

range of residential development types (see Table C-47) up to densities of 30 units per

acre: Single Family (SF), Single Family High Density (SFHD), Multifamily Low Density

(MLD), Multifamily Medium Density (MMD), Multifamily High Density (MHD), Historic

Folsom Mixed Use (HF), and Mixed Use (MU). ln addition, the City's recent General Plan

Update, adopted in 2018, created the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay which extends

along East Bidwell Street from Riley Street, in the Central Business District, to Highway

50. This overlay designation allows for multifamily housing at 20 to 30 units per acre as

well as shops, restaurants, services, offices, and other compatible commercial uses.

These uses are in addition to those allowed by the underlying General Plan land use

designation.

The General Plan also identified half-mile areas around light rail stations where SACOG

has designated "Transit Priority Areas" and commits the City to assisting with the

development of new housing and employment uses in these areas. The City is currently

updating the Zoning Code to create new standards for transit-oriented development.

The City Zoning Code is adopted as Title 17 of the Folsom Municipal Code. The City is

currently (2020) undergoing a comprehensive zoning code update which will review and

revise existing development standards and will outline new development standards for
the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay and transit priority areas. The following is a

description ofthe adopted Zoning Code, as ofAugust 2020, The Zoning Code is available

on the City website.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-1Page 597

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"0r-9(}n/[
203s

GENERAL PLAN nm=6
Maximum
Residential

Density

Consistent
Zoning

Districts
LU Designation Code Description

R-1.1, R-1-MLSingle Family SF Single family detached homes at low to medium densities. 4 units/acre

Single Family High

Density
SFHD

Single family homes at high densities. Duplexes, halfplexes,
mobile home parks, zero-lot line homes, and attached homes
may be included

7 units/acre
R-1-M, R-2,

RMH

MLD

Multifamily low density residential developments. Small-lot
singe family detached, zero-lot line homes, duplexes,
halfplexes, townhouses, condominiums, and apartments may
be included.

12 units/acre R-M, R-2
Multifamily Low
Density

20 units/acre R-M, R-3
Multifamily Medium
Density

MMD
M ultifamily medium density residential, including
townhouses, condominiums, and apartments.

30 units/acre R-M, R.4
Multifamily High

Density
MHD

Multifamily high density residential units in apartment
buildings.

MU
A mixture of commercial and residential uses, including
multifamily housings, shops, restaurants, services, offices,
hospitality, and other compatible uses.

30 units/acre
MU, MU.TCOZ,

MU-EDOZ, SP.

MU
Mixed Use

HD
Historic Folsom

Mixed Use
HF

A mixture of commercial and residential uses designed to
preserve and enhance the historic character of Folsom's old
town center.

30 units/acre

30 units/acre vanous
East Bidwell Mixed
Use Overlay

EBC

Provides flexibility for a mixture of commercial and residential

uses along East Bidwell Street. Allows for multifamily housing,

shops, restaurants, services, and offices.

TABIE C-47: RESIDENTIAL AND MIXED USE GENERAT PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATIONS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Source: City of Folsom 2035 Generol Plon.

The current zoning code includes eight residential and three mixed use zoning districts.

Table C-48 lists and describes the eight residential and three mixed use zoning districts

in the currently (2020) adopted zoning code. Similar to zoning ordinances in other
jurisdictions, the Folsom Municipal Code does not explicitly state the permitted

maximum residential density for most zoning districts, but instead specifies minimum

lot areas. ln the case of the R-1-1, R-1-ML, and R-1-M districts, only one primary single

family dwelling is allowed per lot (ADUs are also permitted). The R-2 district allows two

primary units per lot.

As shown in Table C-48, the R-3 zone allows up to a four-unit structure per lot. This has

the implication that lot splits may be required to develop larger parcels at higher

densities. Also, setback, access, and parking requirements can reduce the actual realistic

development density below the maximum density listed in the table depending on the

lot size. However, the City is conducting a zoning code update and the revised zoning

code will allow for a broader range of housing types, including apartments, and will not

limit the R-3 zone to a maximum four-unit structure per lot.

PaEe 4-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 598

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Maximum
Density (based

on Minimum lot
Size)

Zoning Designation Code Allowed Resldentlal Uses Minimum lot Size

Residential Single Family,

Large Lot District
R-1-L Single family dwellings 14,500 sq. ft. 3.0 units/acre

Residential Single Family,

Medium Lot District
R-1-ML Single family dwellings 10,000 sq. ft. 4.4 units/acre

5,000 sq. ft. (7,500 sq. ft. for
corner lots)

7.3 units/acre (5.8

units/acre for
corner lots)

Residential Single Family,

Small Lot District
R-1-M Single family dwellings

5,000 sq. ft. (7,500 sq. ft. for
corner lots)

14.5 units/acre
(11.6 units/acre for
corner lots)

Two-Family Residential
District

R-2 Single family dwellings, duplexes

6,000 sq. ft. (7,500 sq. ft. for
corner lots)

29.0 units/acre
(23.2 units/acre for
corner lots)

Neighborhood Apa rtment
District

R-3

Single family attached dwellings,
duplexes, 3- and 4-family
dwellings/ apartments, emergency
shelters

6,000 sq. ft. (7,500 sq. ft. for
corner lots), minimum lot
area per dwelling unit or
guestroom is 3,500 sq. ft.
(1,700 sq. ft. may be allowed
with a use permit)

12.4 units/acre
(25.6 units/acre
with use permit)

Residential, Multifamily
Dwelling District

R.M

Single family zero lot dwellings,
duplexes, multifamily dwellings or
group dwellings, apartment houses

6,000 sq. ft. (7,500 sq ft. for
corner lots)

30 units/acre
(based on MHD
General Plan

designation)

General Apartment District R-4

Single family attached dwellings,
duplexes, 3- and 4-family
dwellings/ apartments, emergency
shelters

General Mixed Use overlay
Zone

MU
Retail, dining, personal service,
professional office, and residential

uses, including live/work studios.
0.5 acres 30 units/acre

Mixed Use Town Center
Overlay Zone

MU-
TCOZ

Retail, dining, personal service,
professional office, and residential
uses, including live/work studios.

0.5 acres 30 units/acre

Mixed Use Entertainment
District Overlay Zone

MU.
EDOZ

Retail, dining, personal service,
professional office, and residential
uses, including live/work studios.

0.5 acres 30 units/acre

Residential Mobile Home
Zone

RMH
Mobile-homes and mobile-home
parks

nla
Maximum average
of 7 mobile homes
per gross acre.

TABLE C-48: RESIDENTIAL AND MIXED USE ZONING DISTRICTS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Source: City of Folsom Title 77 Zoning Code.

The City Zoning Code establishes requirements for the planned development district.

The PD district is a "combining district" that is intended to be combined with a "base"

underlying zoning district. The same uses in the underlying zone are allowed with a PD

overlay. The PD district can also be applied to Specific Plan areas and to allow for greater

flexibility in site design and may permit variances in height, setback, lot area and

coverage, parking, and other provisions in the regulations of the underlying zone.

However, changes to the allowed density or use of the property require a general plan

amendment and/or rezoning of the property. Planned Development Permits are not

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-3Page 599

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()M
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=6

Source: Folsom Area Specific P\on,2011,

required for development of multi-family projects but are an option should additional

flexibility or deviation from traditional development standards be warranted.

The FPASP, adopted June 28, 2011, includes five residential and one mixed use zoning

districts for the area south of Highway 50. Table C-49 shows the zoning districts

contained in the FPASP. Consistent with the requirements of the Folsom Municipal

Code, the entire Plan Area was zoned SP-Specific Plan and assigned a number to

distinguish the Plan Area from all other specific plan areas in the city.

The setback, lot coverage, and maximum height requirements for residential zones are

shown below in Table C-50 and for residential zones within the FPASP in Table C-51 on

the following page. The requirements are similar to those of other communities

throughout the state and are not considered a constraint to the development of

affordable housing. The requirements in the FPASP allow smaller setbacks and more lot

coverage than the rest of the City, providing more flexibility in development standards.

However, as noted earlier, the City is undertaking a comprehensive zoning code update,

which will modify development standards.

Zoning
Designation

Code Allowed Residential Uses Minimum lot Size

Allowed Density

{based on Minimum
Lot Sizel

Specific Plan-

Single Family
SP-SF

Single family detached
homes

6,000 sq. ft. 1-4 units/acre

Single family and two family
attached and detached
dwellings

4,000 sq. ft. 4-7 units/acre
Specific Plan-

Single Family
High Density

SP-SFHD

Single family, two family,
and multifamily dwellings

Single Familyfiwo Family:3,000 sq. ft.
Townhouses: 1,000 sq. ft. per dwelling unit
Condominiums, Garden Apartments,
Apartments: 1 acre

7-12 units/acre
Specific Plan-

Multifamily Low
Density

SP.MLD

Townhouses: 1,000 sq. ft. per dwelling unit
Condominiums, Garden Apartments,
Apartments: 1 acre

12-20 units/acre
Specific Plan-

Multifamily
Medium Density

SP-MMD

Multiple family dwellings
including townhomes,
apartments, and

condominiums

0.5 acre 20-30 units/acre
Specific Plan-

Multifamily High

Density
SP.MHD

Multiple family dwellings
including townhomes,
apartments, and

condominiums

0.5 acre 9-30 units/acre
Specific Plan-

Mixed Use

District
SP-MU

Multiple family dwellings
including townhouses,
condominiums, apartments,
and live/work studios

TABLE C-49: FOLSOM AREA SPECIFIC PLAN RESIDENTIAI AND

MIXED USE ZONING DISTRICTS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2O2O

PaEe 4-4 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 600

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Zone Front Setback
Minimum Side

Setback
Rear Setback

Maximum lot
Coverage

Maximum
Height

35 ft. 5ft one side, 11 ft. other
side

20 percent of lot depth, 15

ft. min.
30 percent 2 stories,

3s ft.
R-1-L

20 percent of lot depth, 10

ft. min.
35 percent 2 L/2 stories,

3s ft.
R-1-ML 20ft. 5ft one side, 11 ft. other

side

20 percent of lot depth, 10
ft. min.

35 percent 2 L/2 stories,
3s ft.

R-1-M 20 ft. 5ft one side, 11 ft. other
side

R-2 20 ft 5ft one side, L0 ft. other
side

20 percent of lot depth, 10
ft. min.

40 percent 2Ll2stories,
3s ft.

R-3 20 ft. 5ft one side, 10 ft. other
side

20 percent of lot depth, 10

ft. min.
50 percent 2 stories,

3s ft.

5ft one side, 11 ft. other
side (except street side

of corner lot: 16 ft.)

20 percent of lot depth, 10

ft. min.
60 percent 4 stories,

s0 ft.
R-M 20ft.

20 percent of lot depth, 10
ft. min.

60 percent 4 stories,
s0 ft.

R-4 20 ft. 5ft one side, 10 ft. other
side

nla so ft. (1s ft.
accessory

structure)

MU, MU-TCOZ,

MU-EDOZ

0ft. 0 ft. (3 ft. accessory
structures)

0ft.

RMHl n/a n/a nla n/a n/a

TABLE C-50: SETBACK, LOT COVERAGE, AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS lN RESIDENTIAL AND

MIXED USE ZONES, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2O2O

Note: lDifferent development standords opply to the RMH (Residentiol Mobile Home) district
Source: City of Folsom Title 77 Zoning Code.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-5Page 601

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FC)]tS@N4I
2035

GENERAL PLAN Erm=ru

nla

n/a

n/a

nla

0 feetT

0 feetT

nla

0 feet3

0 feet

n/a

n/a

3 feet

SP-MU

Major/Minor
Arterial: 40 feet
Collector/Local
Street: 10 feet

Major/Minor
Arterial: 40 feet
Collector/Local
Street: 10 feet

20 feet6

10 feet

Major/Minor
Arterial: 40 feet
Collector/Local
Street: l-0 feet

n/a

n/a

5 feet

SP-MHD

n/a

nla

n/a

n/a

Condominiums/
Apartments

n/a

n/a

nla

n/a

20 feets

20 feets

20 feet

10 feet

2 story: 15 feet
3 story: 20 feet

n/a

n/a

5 feet

12.5 feet

15 feet

20 feet

n/a

2 story: 15 feet
3 story: 20 feet

18 feet

n/a

3 feet

SP-MMD

Townhouses

n/a

nla

n/a

nla

Condominiums/
Apartments

n/a

nla

nla

n/a

30 feets

30 feets

30 feets

10 feet

2 story: 15 feet
3 story: 20 feet

nla

n/a

5 feet

Townhouses

22feel

37 feet

nla

n/a

12.5 feet

15 feet

20 feet

^/a
2 story: 15 feet
3 story: 20 feet

18 feet

n/a

3 feet

SP-MtD

Single Family
and Two
Family

30/60 feet

35/55 feet

n/a

n/a

12.5 feet

15 feet

20 feet

5 feet'

12.5 feet

20 feet

n/a

3 feet

15 feet

20 feet

5 feet3

15 feet

20 feet

5 feet

5 feet

sP-

SFHD

40 feet

45 feet

35 feet

40 feet

12.5 feet

SP-SF

60 feet

75 feet

45 feet

60 feet

15 feet2

15 feet2

20 feet

5 feet3

15 feet

20 feet

5 feet

5 feet

wlDTH (MEASURED AT FRONT YARD SETEACKI

lnterior Lot

Corner Lot

Cul-de-sac

Flag Lotl

FRONTYARD SETBACKS (MEASURED ATTHE BACK OF S|DEWALK)

CourVard/Porch (from
foundation line)

Primary Structure

Garage

stDE YARD SETBACKS (MEASURED AT THE EACK OF S|DEWAIK)

lnterior Side Yard

Street Side Yard (corner
lot)

Garage Facing Side
Street (corner lot)

Second Dwelling Unitl

Accessory Structures
(interior lot lines)

TABLE C.51: FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFlC PIAN SETBACK, LOT COVERAGE, AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS IN RESIDENTIAL AND MIXED USE zoNEs, 2O2o

Page 4-5 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 602

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SP-MU

0 feetT

nla

0 feet

n/a

50 feet

n/a

nla

15 feet

SP.MHD

15 feet

n/a

5 feet

0 feet

50 feet

15 feet6

n/a

15 feet

n/a

5 feet

n/a

5O feet

18 feet5

n/a

15 feet

Condominiums/
Apartments

10 feet

SP.MMD

Townhouses

10 feet

nla

5 feet

5 feet

35 feet

18 feet6

n/a

15 feet

Condominiums/
Apartments

10 feet

n/a

5 feet

n/a

50 feet

18 feet

nla

15 feet

10 feet

n/a

5 feet

5 feet

35 feet

18 feet

nla

15 feet

Townhouses

SP-MtD

Single Family
and Two
Family

10 feet

n/a

5 feet

5 feet

35 feet

18 feet

n/a

15 feet

sP-

SFHD

15 feet

5 feet

5 feet

5 feet

35 feet

18 feet

18 feet

15 feet

SP-SF

20 feet

5 feet

5 feet

5 feet

35 feet

18 feet

18 feet

15 feet

REAR YARD SETBACIG (MEASURED AT THE BACK OF S|DEWATKI

Main Building

Second Dwelling Unitl

Accessory Structure

Detached Garage

BUITDING HEIGHT

Main Building

Detached Garage

Second Dwelling Unitl

Accessory Building

TABIE C-51: FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN SETBACK, LOT COVERAGE, AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS IN RESIDENTIAL AND MIXED USE ZONES, 2O2O

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

to 73 feet.
2 50% frontage; 20 feet minimum remoinder
3 70 feet minimum between buildings
a For zero-lot-line dwelling units: 0 feet side yard setback for one side; 70 feet side yard setbock for the other side.
s 0 feet within Town Center
6 Goroge/Carports
7 CourUard/Porch/Plozo: Setbacks moy vory bosed on Design Review approvdl by the City. Refer to tmplementotion Section 73.2.4.
Source: Folsom Plon Areo Specific Plan, 2077.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-7Page 603

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LS(}lS[
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFi=ru
4.1,2 FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN MAXIMUM UNIT COUNT

Since the adoption of the FPASP in 2011, the Folsom City Council has approved a number

of amendments to the specific plan that have resulted in shifts in land uses and changes

to the total residential unit count. Per the amendment approved in March 2018, the

maximum residential unit capacity for the FPASP is 11,451 units. As stated in Policy 4.7

of the FPASP, the transfer of dwelling units is permitted between parcels, as long as the

total number of dwelling units in the FPASP does not exceed t1-,45t. Since the March

2018 amendment, several land use changes and density transfers have been approved

for projects in the FPASP, However, these amendments have not resulted in an increase

in the maximum unit count.

As a result of the FPASP policy limiting the total number of units, projects proposing an

increase in density can only be approved if density is decreased elsewhere in the Plan,

and a specific plan amendment is approved. Specific plan amendments increase time

and effort for project approval, thereby reducing flexibility for housing development.

Housing Element Program H-2 directs the City Council to consider a specific plan

amendment that would allow for increases in the maximum unit count for the FPASP in

order to maintain adequate housing sites to accommodate the RHNA.

4.1.3 BUILDING CODES AND ENFORCEMENT

Building Codes mandated by the State of California and their enforcement are necessary

to ensure safe housing conditions but can result in increased housing costs and impact

the feasibility of rehabilitating older properties. The City has adopted the 2019

California Building Standards Codes (CBSC), which is the most recent version of the

CBSC. The City has adopted only minor administrative amendments to the building

code. The City's building codes are consistent with the codes applied in other local

jurisdictions in California and do not negatively impact the construction of affordable

housing.

As with most jurisdictions, the City responds to code enforcement problems largely on

a complaint basis. The usual process is to conduct a field investigation after a complaint

has been submitted through the Code Enforcement Hotline, or some other means. lf

the complaint is found to be valid, the immediacy and severity of the problem is

assessed. The City's philosophy is to effectively mitigate serious health or safety

problems, while allowing the property owner a reasonable amount of time and

flexibility to comply.

4.1.4 PERMIT PROCESSING PROCEDURES

Permit processing procedures and timelines are often cited by the development

community as a primary contributor to housing costs. However, the City has taken

several steps to streamline the approval process.

The City's Planning Division processes planning permit and entitlement applications

including design review, use permits, variances, rezones, and general plan amendments,

The City requires that project applications with the required construction drawings be

submitted to the Community Development Department for plan review. Plans are

reviewed to ensure that the project meets City requirements outlined in the Folsom

Municipal Code and the California Building Code. lf such requirements are not met, City

staff notifies the applicant of the necessary revisions and the applicant must re-submit

Page 4-8 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 604

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



for review. Once all requirements are met, the applicant must pay all remaining fees,

upon which the City issues a building permit and construction can begin.

ln April 2020, the City launched its electronic plan review process allowing applicants to
submit plans, drawings, and supporting documents to the City for review electronically,

eliminating the need to provide printed copies of plans. This electronic program

streamlines the plan review cycle, reduces costs associated with obtaining building

permits and development entitlements, and supports Folsom's sustainability efforts.

Design Review
The City of Folsom requires a design review process subject to either City staff or

Planning Commission review. City staff has approval authority for smaller-scale projects,

including custom single family homes, master residential building plans, and multifamily
projects containing no more than two units. The Planning Commission is the review

authority for multifamily projects containing more than two units and projects that are

part of a planned development or a tentative subdivision map. Developments within

the Historic District are subject to design review and approval by the Historic District

Commission.

Title 17 of the City's Municipal Code (Design Review) requires that City staff and/or

Planning Commission make findings based on adopted city-wide design guidelines and

determine compatibility with surrounding development and consistency with the
general design theme of the neighborhood. Currently (2020) new multifamily

residential developments in Folsom must adhere to the City's Design Guidelines for
M ultifamily Development.

The State Legislature has enacted several bills that require jurisdictions to adopt

objective design standards. First, under the Housing Accountability Act, a housing

development may only be denied or reduced in density if it is inconsistent with objective

standards. Senate Bill 330, Housing Crisis Act of 2Ot9, prohibits cities and counties from

adopting standards that reduce residential development capacity and imposing or

enforcing new design standards established on or after January t,2O2O, that are not

objective design standards. Finally, Senate Bill 35, passed in 2O!7, requires jurisdictions

that have failed to approve housing projects sufficient to meet their State-mandated

RHNA to provide streamlined, ministerial entitlement process for housing

developments that incorporate affordable housing, Per Senate Bill 35, review and

approval of proposed project's with at least 50 percent affordability must be based on

objective standards and cannot be based on subjective design guidelines.

The City Zoning Code and Design Guidelines currently (2O2Ol include subjective

language. The City is in the process of amending the Zoning Code to incorporate

objective design standards, which will replace the Design Guidelines for Multifamily

Development. The Zoning Code update is expected to be completed Fall 202I. ln

addition, Housing Element Program H-8 calls for the City to rescind the Design

Guidelines for Multifamily Development in conjunction with Housing Element adoption.

Typical Processing Times
Permit processing times vary largely by project type and depend on the project size,

complexity of the project, and the number of approvals needed to complete the process. As

shown in Table C-52 below, processing times range from 2 weeks to 12 months for projects

requiring major actions, such as a rezone or general plan amendment. Actions requiring

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEe 4-9Page 605

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSON{
203 5

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
approval from the Planning Commission or City Council typically have the longest processing

times. However, actions are often completed concurrently with other actions and thereby

reduce the total time needed to process a project application. Simultaneous review of the

various actions and/or permits saves the City and the developer time and money.

Source: City of Folsom, 2020; Folsom Municipal Code
130 days from a completed opplicotion; excludes CEQA 7st1.*.
2 Typically involves environmentol review and multiple entitlements such as Planned

Development Permit, Design Review, ond Tentotive Subdivision Map

For most discretionary approvals, such as tentative subdivision maps, an average

timeline from submission of a complete application to consideration by the Planning

Commission is 12 weeks. An additional three weeks is then required for consideration

by the City Council. Once a tentative subdivision map is approved, the plan check turn-

around timeline is approximately 20 working days for the first plan check and 10

working days for all subsequent plan checks. This same timeline applies to the building

permit/construction drawing process. ln an effort to further streamline the process, the

City allows planned development permits to be processed in conjunction with other

entitlements, and if processed alone, are issued by the Planning Commission.

Table C-53 shows the typical approval requirements by project type and estimated total
processing times for each. The simultaneous processing of various approval

requirements allows the total processing times to be reduced. Less complex projects,

such as a single fami[ unit, can be completed at staff level review and only take 2-4

weeks for approval. However, projects that require Planning Commission and/or City

Council approval take longer to process. Subdivisions and multifamily developments

typically take a total of 5 months processing time to complete all approval

requirements.

Type of Approval or Permit Typical Processing Time
Approval

Body

Site Design Review 2 - 4 weeks Staff

StaffDesign Review 4 weeksl

2 - 3 months PCIHDCMinor Use Permit

2 - 3 months PCIHDCConditional Use Permit

Planned Development Permit 3- 6 months PClHDC

PCIHDCVariance Review 2 - 3 months

5 - 12 months ccRezone*

General Plan Amendment* 6 - 12 months cc

Specific Plan Amendment* 5 - 12 months cc

PCIHDCParcel Map Review 2 - 3 months

6 months ccSubdivision Map Review

TABLE C-52: TIMELINES FOR PERMIT PROCEDURES

Page 4-10 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 606

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Project Type
Typical Approval

Requirements
Estimated Total Processing

Time

Single Family Unit
Site Plan Review
Design Review

2-4 weeks {Staff level review)
2-3 months (Planning

Commission/Historic Design

Commission review)

Subdivision

Site Plan Review
Design Review

Environmental Review
Tentative Map

Final Map

6 months

Multifamily Units
Site Plan Review
Design Review

Environmental Review

6 months

TABLE C-53: TYPICAL PROCESSING PROCEDURES BY PROJECT TYPE

Source: City ol Folsom,2020

Senate Bill 35 Approvals
As stated earlier, Senate Bill 35 requires jurisdictions that have failed to meet their
RHNA to provide streamlined, ministerial entitlement process for housing

developments that incorporate affordable housing. Because Folsom has met its RHNA

for above moderate income housing in the Fifth Cycle (2013-2021) Housing Element but

has not met its RHNA for lower income housing, projects providing at least 50 percent

lower-income housing that meet all objective standards are eligible for ministerial (i.e.,

staff-level) approval under Senate Bill 35. However, to be eligible, projects must also

meet a long list of other criteria, including prevailing wage requirements for projects

over 10 units. As of August 2020, the City has not received any applications for Senate

Bill 35 approval. The City will establish a process for Senate Bill 35 streamlining through

the upcoming comprehensive zoning code update, scheduled for adoption in Fall 2021.

Senate Bitl 330 Processing Procedures
Senate Bill 330, the Housing Crisis Act of 2OL9, established specific requirements and

limitations on development application procedures. The bill allows a housing developer

to submit a "preliminary application" to a local agency for a housing development

project. Submittal of a preliminary application allows a developer to provide a specific

subset of information on the proposed housing development before providing the full

amount of information required by the local government for a housing development

application. Submittal of the preliminary application secures the applicable

development standards and fees adopted at that time. The project is considered vested

and all fees and standards are frozen, unless the project changes substantially (by 20

percent or more of the residential unit count or square footage) or the applicant fails to
timely submit a complete application as required by the Permit Streamlining Act.

Each jurisdiction may develop their own preliminary application form or may use the

application form developed by HCD. ln addition, the bill limits the application review

process to 30 days, for projects less than 150 units, and 50 days, for projects greater

than 150 units, and no more than 5 total public hearings, including Planning

Commission, design review, and City Council.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEe 4-1LPage 607

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSOnf,
2Q35

GENERAL PLAN Erm=6
Senate Bill 330 also prohibits cities and counties from enacting a development policy,

standard, or condition that would have the effect of: (A) changing the land use

designation or zoning to a less intensive use or reducing the intensity of land use within

an existing zoning district below what was allowed on January t,2Ot8; (B) imposing or

enforcing a moratorium on housing development; (C) imposing or enforcing new design

standards established on or after January I, 2O2O, that are not objective design

standards; or (D) establishing or implementing certain limits on the number of permits

issued or the population of the city or county.

ln compliance with Senate Bill 330, the City accepts the use of the preliminary application form

provided by HCD. ln addition, the City is currently (2020) undergoing a comprehensive zoning

code update which will include objective standards that will provide more clarity and certainty

for residential developments.

Conclusion
Processing and permit procedures do not constitute a development constraint in

Folsom. The City has made several efforts to streamline the approval process and

provide flexibility for development standards. Additionally, the City's electronic plan

review process further streamlines review and allows for simultaneous review of

va rious approval req uirements.

4.1.5 DEVELOPMENT FEES AND OTHER EXACTIONS

Table C-54 below shows typical planning and application fees, City impact fees, and

other agency fees for a 2,250 square foot single family unit and an 850 square foot

multifamily unit development in the city. The City's application fees and impact fees are

estimated at just over 535,000 for a single family home and just over $20,000 per unit

in a multi-family development. Adding in other agency fees, including school district

fees, the total estimated fees for a single-family unit are 555,285, and the total

estimated fees for a typical multifamily project are 530,711 per unit or approximately

S1,535,550 for a 50-unit development.

Table C-55 below shows typical planning and application fees, city impact fees, and other

agency fees for a 2,25O square foot single family unit and an 850 square foot multifami[

unit in the FPASP area. The FPASP identifies development fees by zoning district. As shown

in the table, the total fees for a typical 2,250 square foot home in the single-fami[ zoning

district of the FPASP area would be 551,401, including other agency fees. The fees for the

same home in a single-fami[ high-density zoning district would be 559,303. For a

multifamily project in a multifamily high-density zoning district, the total fees would be

528,198 per unit, based on an 850 square foot unit; therefore, a SO-unit multifamily

development would pay approximately 51,409,900 in total fees.

Page 4-72 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 608

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Single Family Unit Multifamily Unit

PIANNING & APPtlCATlOtrl FEES

Building Permit s2,L34 591o

Plan Check s1s0 slso
State Revolving Fee Srs Ss

s.M.t 5+o $14

Business License Fee Szg $2e

Planning & Application Fee Subtotal 52,366 $t,t08
CIW IMPACT FEES

Transportation lmprovement Fee s8,168 ss,7L7

Light Rail Fee s724 s498

Transportation Management Sgs s2s

Water Connection s3,361 s2,18s

Water lmpact Sges ss3o

Water Meter S3o1 s3o1

Drainage s1,037 s1,037

Sewer Connection Fees s1,073 s83e

S1,ss6General Capital s1,ss6

s1,osoFire Capital Sr,ose

Police Capital s601 s681

Humbug/Willow Creek Mitigation $276 5r74

School Admin Fee s4s Sas

Citywide Park Fee s7,037 $4,67s

General Park Equipment se4 Sga

Solid Waste Capital S363 s363

Waste Management Fee izt 5so

lnclusionary Housingl, 2 s6,oo8 nla

City lmpact Fees Subtotal $32,811 S19,8Go

OTHER AGENCY FEES

Se30County Measure A Transportation Mitigation s1,32s

52,707County Regional Sanitation3 s3,602

s16,178 56,tL2School lmpact Fees4

Other Agency Fees Subtotal S2t,109 59,749

Total Ss6,285 S3o,71t

TABLE C-54: TYPICAL DEVELOPMENT FEES, CITY OF FOTSOM

Notes: Single fomily fees bosed on a 2,250 squore loot (living oreo) single family, single-story
detoched entry level home with three bedrooms, two full baths, ond on attoched two-cor
gorage (450 square feet). Multifamily fee based on 850 square foot unit.
1 lnclusionary Housing Fee is only applicable to for-sale units.
2 Bosed on median list price per squore foot of 5267 (Zillow.com, July 2020);5600,750 list price

for 2,250 square foot single fomily home.
3 Bosed on the County Regionol Sanitotion fee for infill development. The County Regionol

Sanitation fee for new development is 56,479.
a $7.79 per squore foot (FCIJSD, April 2020).
Sources: City ol Folsom 2079; County of Socromento; Sacromento Regionol Sonitotion District,

July 2019; Folsom Cordovo Unified School District, April 2020.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-L3Page 609

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
Single Family Unit Multifamily UnitPlanning & Application Fees

$910Building Permit $2,134

Plan Check s1s0 s1s0

Srg SsState Revolving Fee

$14s.M.t. Sqo

Business License Fee Szs $2e

$2,356 s1,108Planning & Application Fee Subtotal

Single Family Unit Multifamily Unit

SFHD MtD MMD MHD
City lmpact Fees

SF

sL,047FPASP General Capital 57,273 sL,273 s7,047 51,o47

s322 s322 $213 S213 s213FPASP Library Capital

ssss s38e s38s $ssgFPASP Municipal Center Capital $sss

5437FPASP Police Capital s387 s387 5437 s437

s1,089 s1,o8s s1,054 51,0s4 s1,054FPASP Fire Capital

58,27s Ss,4sB $s,4e8 ss,498FPASP Parks Capital s8,27s

S1,087FPASP Trails Capital $L,637 s1,637 s1,087 s1,087

Ssrs s51s Ssqz s342 SsazFPASP Solid Waste

s830 s4se Szsg s180FPASP Corp Yard s1,36s

ss84FPASP Transit sL,444 s1,313 s1,182 s1,0s1

s1,398 5L,272 $1,14s S1,018 $gs+FPASP Highway 50 lmprovement

S2,s86 $2,326 s2,067 s1,s4oFPASP Highway 50 lnterchange s2,84s

S4,oo9FPASP Sac County Transportation Development ss,88o ss,344 s4,810 54,27s

s1,306 $erg ss09 s42L S3ssFPASP Water Treatment Plant Expansion

s200 s18o s160 s1s0Off-Site Roadway Szzo

izsTransportation Management Fee s3s Sss $zs Szs

$g+ Sga Sg+ Ss+ Sg+General Park Equipment

Sas 54s S+sSchool Admin Fee Sas s4s

s301 s3o1 s301 s3o1 s3o1Water Meter

s21 Szt ss0 Sso $soWaste Management Plan Fee

s6,008 n/a nla n/alnclusionary Housingl, 2 S6,oo8

$3s,049 s32,951 92t,23t $rs,srs $1s,199City lmpact Fees Subtotal

Multifamily UnitOther Agency Fees Single Family Unit

Sacramento County Transportation Mitigation Fees sL,329 Ssao

s6,47s s4,8seCounty Regional Sanitation3

s6,112School lmpact Fees4 $L6,L78

Other Acency Fees Subtotal $23,986 $11,901

s51,401 s59,303 $34,242 Sg2,B2z s2&1s8Total

TABLE C-55: FPASP DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES, CITY OF FOLSOM - 2O2O

Notes: Single family fees based on o 2,250 square foot (living areo) single family, single-story detached entry level home with three
bedrooms, two lull baths, ond an ottoched two-car garoge (450 squore feet). Permit lnspection Fee and Plan Check Fee not included.

Multifomily fee based on 850 square foot unit.
1 lnclusionary Housing Fee is only opplicoble to for-sole units.
2 Bosed on median list price per square foot of $267 (Zillow.com, luly 2020); $600,750 list price Ior 2,250 square foot single fomily home.
3 Bosed on the County Regiona! Sanitotion fee for infill development. The County Regionol Sonitation fee for new development is 56,479.
4 57.79 per squore foot (FCUSD, April 2020).
Sources: City of Folsom 2019; County oI Souamento; Sacromento Regionol Sonitotion District, July 2019; Folsom Cordovo Unilied School

District, April 2020.

Page 4-L4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 610

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



llrlffi,

:{i&

tFd!

!

SACOG reviewed development impact fees of various jurisdictions in the Sacramento

region in 2020. As shown in Figure C-35, SACOG found that the City's fees for single

family and multifamily homes were in the middle of the range: Sacramento, Roseville

and portions of the unincorporated County were lower; Rocklin, Rancho Cordova, Davis,

and the unincorporated communities of Antelope and Florin Vineyard were higher.

FIGURE C-35: DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES BY JURISDICTION lN THE

SACRAMENTO REGION

Slngle Famlly and Mulii Frmilv U.rll Fee Totals Char8ed by cities and Countlet

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

r 3Fp.t OUt . Mt pd Dt t

:ol0 l0ll t0rl

Certain residential projects require General Plan amendments, zoning amendments, or

other planning fees in addition to those listed above, Table C-56 lists other planning fees.

Source: City of Folsom, Mdster Fee Schedule, luly 1, 2020.

,,rriltlilllll
€ieH€itEg?eigEs3Eii:5E.E,sr'

igE E j -oFp

Ejg * g ,ssi
E9{ . a i"Xri; s:r oLVJJi,e 3
o

r r rt.,llllll--,,, rrr
BEtE?E;;iE$3;;iEEI!E
:i:iEi;:E;Eii€i:ii;g
E>u>So6u iroSi€ .}i-;J 5;:: -E:';

58" Eri 5;".
-"E
>o

g

I

Fee Type Fee

$4,073 (less than 5 acres)

58,146 (more than 5 acres)
General Plan Amendment

Rezoning
$z,zgz (less than 5 acres)

55,575 (more than 5 acres)

Specific Plan Amendment 56,s74

Tentative Subdivision Map Review ss,30s

Site Design Review s28o

Site Design Review - Planning Commission s4,4ss

Design Review - Multifamily s2,0s4

SseDesign Review - Single family

s2,683Minor Conditional Use Permit Application Fee

ss,s28Major conditional Use Permit Application Fee

s1,s67Variance Review (deposit)

Planned Development Fee
Sg,szs + $426 per acre

(includes the Site Design)

TABLE C-56: OTHER PLANNING FEES, CITY OF FOLSOM, EFFECTIVE )ULY L,2O2O

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-15Page 611

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLS(D1\{
203s

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
The City offers fee deferrals to affordable housing developers. ln addition, certain

administrative processing fees may be waived for qualified projects. These helpfultools

are described in Chapter 16.60 of the Folsom Municipal Code. The City also offers the

two-for-one studio fee rate program, which charges only one set of impact fees for
every two studio units developed, as described in Chapter t6.7O of the Folsom

Municipal Code.

ln compliance with Assembly Bill 1483, the City's fees are posted on the City's website.

4.1.6 ON/OFF S|TE IMPROVEMENT REQUTREMENTS

The City has residential development requirements for landscaping, street lighting,

fences and walls, solar energy use, and parking. The City adopted these standards to
ensure that minimum levels of design and construction quality are maintained, and

adequate levels of street and facility improvements are provided. While the City's

development standards are similar to those in other jurisdictions, there may be some

standards that exceed the level necessary to ensure adequate circulation and parking,

drainage, environmental protection, and protection from visual nuisances. The City's

standards are summarized below. The standards included in this summary are those

which typically have a potential to affect housing costs but are necessary to provide a

minimum level of design and construction quality in the city's neighborhoods.

Fences and Walls: Materials should be a textured solid surface compatible with the

architecture of the building. Property owner(s) should be responsible for maintenance

of perimeter fences and walls.

landscaping: Street trees (minimum 15 gallon size) are required. One or two trees per

lot frontage should be used in residential areas. Existing significant trees should be

preserved,

Residential Streets: All major/primary driveway aisles shall be a continuous width of 27

feet to allow Fire Department and other emergency vehicular access. Emergency vehicle

access roads shall have a continuous width of at least 24 feet in subdivisions comprised

of Group R-3 occupancies, and not less than 20 feet in all other developments (Folsom

Municipal Code, Chapter 8.35). Street width reductions may be considered on private

streets where adequate access for emergency vehicles and off-street parking can be

shown. Greenbelts or landscaped setbacks maintained by homeowners associations are

encouraged.

To the extent feasible, Folsom allows modifications of development standards for
affordable housing units. Modifications include, but are not limited to, reduced parking

requirements, modified minimum lot size and lot coverage, and modified locational

requirements for duplexes and accessory dwellings.

Parking
Folsom's off-street parking standards for residential uses north of Highway 50 are

summarized in Table C-57. The parking standards contained in the Zoning Code differ

from the standards in the Design Guidelines for Multifamily Development. The Design

Guidelines establish more specific parking standards for multifamily housing. However,

Housing Element Program H-8 calls for the City to rescind the Design Guidelines for
Multifamily Development in conjunction with Housing Element adoption. The City is

Page 4-L6 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 612

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



reviewing all parking standards as part of the Zoning Code update, scheduled for
completion in Fall 2O2L, to ensure parking standards do not constrain development.

Program H-29 specifically commits to reviewing parking standards for emergency

shelters and residential care homes.

Source: Folsom Municipal Code, Title 77 Porking Requirements City of Folsom, Design

G uid e lines for M ultifo m i ly Deve lopment.

Table C-58 summarizes parking standards for residential uses south of Highway 50,

which are contained in the Specific Plan.

Source: Folsom Plan Areo Specific Plon, 2011.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Parking RequirementsResidential Use

Single family dwelling 2 spaces per unit

Two-family dwelling 2 spaces per unit

Residential condominiums, townhouses,
and planned developments with private

streets

3 spaces per unit (one of which shall be used as

guest parking)

1.5 spaces per unit (Municipal Code)Multiple-family structures and complexes

1 bedroom 1.5 spaces/unit (From Design Guidelines for
Multifamily Development)

2 bedroom 1.75 spaces/unit (From Design Guidelines for
Multifamily Development)

2 spaces/unit (From Design Guidelines for
Multifamily Development)

3 bedroom

Guest Parking 1 space/S units (From Design Guidelines for
Multifamily Development)

Residential care homes 1 space/3 persons receiving care, in addition to
the spaces required for the residence

2 spaces per unit, and 1 guest parking space for
each 4 mobile-home spaces

Mobile homes in mobile home parks

TABLE C-57: PARKING STANDARDS, CITY OF FOLSOM -
NORTH OF HIGHWAY 50,2O2O

Residential Use Parking Requirements

Single family dwelling 2 covered spaces per unit

2 covered spaces per unitTwo-family dwelling

Residential condominiums, town houses,

and apartments
1 Bedroom or less: 1 covered and 0.5
uncovered guest spaces per unit
2 Bedrooms or more: 2 covered and 0.5
uncovered guest spaces per unit

Second Dwelling Unit 1 off-street space per unit (FMC 17.105)

Home Occupations Off-street parking required for each commercial
vehicle associated with the home occupation,
where up to 3 are allowed (FMC 17.61)

Live/Work Studios 1 uncovered space per unit

TABLE C-58: PARKING STANDARDS, CITY OF FOLSOM -
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-17Page 613

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
203s

GENERAL PLAN Em=ru
The City grants parking standard reductions to developers of affordable and senior

housing on a case-by-case basis. For senior residential projects, the City has allowed for

a reduction in parking requirements (to one space per unit) where it was shown that

the development would have a reduced demand for parking. The covered parking

requirement for development in the area south of Highway 50 could potentially cost

more than uncovered parking. However, recent affordable housing projects in Folsom

have provided covered parking. The City works with affordable housing developers to

resolve any issues related to parking requirements by examining each project and

adjusting parking requirements for affordable projects on a case-by-case basis. As

described earlier, the City uses the planned development permit process to provide

more flexibility in development standards and to ensure that standards, such as the

covered parking requirement, do not create a hardship for a particular project,

4,1,7 OPEN SPACE AND PARK REQUIREMENTS

Open space and park requirements can decrease the affordability of housing by

decreasing the amount of land available on a proposed site for constructing units.

Folsom follows Quimby Act requirements (Government Code Section 664477 et. Seq.)

for park land dedications in new subdivisions. The City requires new subdivisions to

dedicate land and/or pay an in-lieu fee to fund the development of neighborhood and

community parks. The land dedication is calculated based on the general plan

requirement of five acres per 1,000 persons. lf land is not available for dedication, the

developer must pay a fee in lieu of land dedication. The fee is based upon the fair market

value of the amount of land that would otherwise be required for dedication.

ln addition to the park land dedication and in-lieu fee required of new subdivisions, new

development must pay a park improvement fee. Currently (June 2020), the parkfee is

57,O37 per single family residential unit, $4,675per multifamily residential unit, and

SO.+ZS per square foot of commercial or industrial space. The FPASP for the area south

of Highway 50 proposes to satisfy the park land dedication requirement by a

combination of land dedication and park improvement fees. Open space and parks are

considered beneficial to a well-balanced affordable housing development. Recognizing

that open space requirements can add to the cost of a project, the City allows flexibility

in the open space requirement for housing projects that provide very low- and low-

income units.

4.1,8 DENSITY BONUS

A density bonus is the allocation of development rights that allows a parcel to

accommodate additional square footage or additional residential units beyond the

maximum for which the parcel is zoned. The legislature has made frequent changes to

State density bonus law over the years, including AB 1763, which significantly increased

density bonus provisions for 100 percent affordable projects. As of 2020, statewide

density bonus law requires local jurisdictions to provide a density bonus and other

incentives or concessions to residential developments that meet at least one of the

following criteria:

o At least 5 percent of the housing units are restricted to very low income residents.
. At least 10 percent of the housing units are restricted to lower income residents.
. At least 10 percent of the housing units in a for-sale common interest development

are restricted to moderate income residents.

Page 4-18 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 614

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



. 100 percent of the housing units (other than manager's units) are restricted to very

low, lower, and moderate-income residents (with a maximum of 20 percent

moderate).
o At least 10 percent of the housing units are for transitional foster youth, disabled

veterans, or homeless persons, with rents restricted at the very low-income level.
. At least 20 percent of the housing units are for low income college students in

housing dedicated for full-time students at accredited colleges.

e The project donates at least one acre of land to the city or county for very low-

income units, and the land has the appropriate general plan designation, zoning,

permits and approvals, and access to public facilities needed for such housing.

. The project is a senior citizen housing development (no affordable units required).
o The project is a mobile home park age-restricted to senior citizens (no affordable

units required).

The density bonus a project can receive is based on a sliding scale that varies based on

the type of housing and the percentage of affordable units. The maximum density bonus

is generally 35 percent, except recent changes to state law increased the maximum

density bonus to 80 percent for projects that provide 100 percent affordable units.

ln addition to the density bonus, local jurisdictions are required to provide at least one

of the following regulatory concessions andlor incentives to projects that qualify for a

density bonus, except market-rate senior citizen projects with no affordable units and

land donated for very low income housing:

. Reduction in site development standards or modification of zoning code

requirements (e.g., setback reduction),
. Approval of mixed-use zoning, or
o Other regulatory incentives or concessions that result in identifiable and actual cost

reductions.

Projects are eligible for up to three incentives/concessions on a sliding scale based on

the percentage of affordable units provided, except projects that provide 100 percent

affordable units, which are eligible for up to four incentives/concessions.

Projects qualifying for a density bonus also receive a waiver or reduction of

development standards that would otherwise prevent the project from being built at

the increased density as well as reduced parking requirements, shown in Table C-59. ln

addition, parking requirements for projects located within a half mile of an accessible

major transit stop or bus route are further reduced or eliminated depending on the type

of affordable project.

Source: Colifornia Government Code Section 65975

APPENDIX C HOUSING EIEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Number of Bedrooms Number of On-Site Parking Spaces

0 to 1 bedroom 1

2 to 3 bedrooms 2

4 or more bedrooms 2%

TABLE C-59: STATEWIDE PARKING STANDARDS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING,

CALIFORNIA, 2O2O

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-19Page 615

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOM
2Q3 5

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
The City's density bonus law is outlined in Section t7.LO2 of Folsom's Municipal Code.

This code section was last updated in 2011 and does not reflect the recent changes in

state law including density bonus for housing projects for transitional foster youth,

disabled veterans, homeless persons, college students, or 100 percent affordable

projects. Additionally, density bonus parking standard reductions for projects near

transit are not reflected in the code. As described in Housing Element Program H-13,

the City is currently (2020) conducting a comprehensive update to its Zoning Code,

which will include an updated density bonus ordinance to be consistent with State law

requirements.

4,1.9 INCLUSIONARY HOUSING

The City's lnclusionary Housing Ordinance (Chapter t7.L04 of Zoning Code), adopted in

2OO2 and amended in 2OL3, is a major part of the City's affordable housing strategy;

however, because inclusionary ordinances have the potential to act as a constraint to

the production of market rate housing, State law requires an analysis in the housing

element.

Currently (August 2020), the City's lnclusionary Housing Ordinance requires all for-sale

projects consisting of 10 or more units, including condominium conversion projects, to

include affordable housing units equal to 10 percent of the total number of units in the

project, excluding density bonus units. The 10 percent must consist of 3 percent very

low income units and 7 percent low income units.

The ordinance provides alternative methods to the on-site construction of inclusionary

housing requirement, including:

. Construction of inclusionary housing units at an off-site location within the city;
o Dedication of sufficient land within the city to construct at least the same number

of inclusionary housing units and supporting infrastructure;
. Acquisition, rehabilitation, and conversion of existing market rate units in the city

that are at or above existing affordable rents, which require repair, rehabilitation,

modernization, or other work, and convert those units to affordable for-sale

housing units;
. Conversion of existing market rate units in the city that do not requ ire rehabilitation

and are at or above existing affordable rents to affordable for-sale housing units by

way of deed restrictions;
. Payment of an in-lieu fee which equals one percent of the lowest priced for-sale

residential unit in the proposed subdivision multiplied by the total number of for-

sale residential units in the proposed subdivision;
. Use of inclusionary housing credits; or
o A combination of the above methods or other alternatives to meet the inclusionary

housing requirement.

No affordable for-sale units were built during the 2013-2021 planning period through

the inclusionary ordinance. Most developers opted to pay the in-lieu fee, which has

generated over 56.3 million since 2014. These fees are used by the City to provide gap

fi na nci ng for afforda b le m u ltifa mi ly projects.

Paze 4-2Q Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 616

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



As shown in Table C-60, jurisdictions throughout the Sacramento region have

implemented various forms of inclusionary housing or affordable housing

requirements. Out of the 10 jurisdictions surveyed, 7 have an adopted affordable

housing requirement in the form of an inclusionary housing ordinance or affordable

housing impact fee. Folsom's in-lieu fee of one percent of the lowest priced for-sale

residential unit typically ranges between $5,000 and 57,000, under current (2020)

market conditions. This fee structure allows the fee to adjust up or down as the market

adjusts. The fee is within the range of other jurisdictions in the Sacramento region.

The City's inclusionary housing ordinance is comparable to other affordable housing

programs in the region. The in-lieu fee provides developers with an alternative to
constructing affordable units while providing the City with funds to financially subsidize

affordable developments in Folsom. The City continues to monitor the effects of the

inclusionary housing requirement and provides funds to support affordable housing in

the City. ln addition, the City is currently (2020) conducting an lnclusionary Housing ln-

Lieu Fee Study to identify the financing gap or subsidy required to produce affordable

units in Folsom and confirm that the current in-lieu fee is appropriate.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-2LPage 617

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'0r-s01w
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

West
Sacramento

Yes. 10%

affordable units
(5% very low and

5% low for rental
projects; 10%

low for
ownership)

S5,640/unit

Sacramento
County

No. lmpact fee
only.

Yes - 52.92l sq.

ft.

Sacramento

No. lmpact fee
only.

Yes - S2.78l sq.

ft.

No formal fee.
Case-by-case

basis

Roseville

No, but 10%

affordable
housing goal

applies to all
projects with 4
or more units

Rocklin

oc
oz

Rancho

Cordova

ocoz

Folsom

Yes. 10%

affordable units
for ownership
housing3 {3% very
low,7% low)

1% of lowest sales
price

Yes -

s4,628lSF
unit or
52,6ss/MF
unit

Elk Grove

No. lmpact
fee only.

El Dorado
County

qJ
E
o2

Davis

Yes. Up to 35%

affordable units
for rental and

ownership
housingl

s75,000/ unit2

Jurisdiction

lnclusionary Housing
Ordinance

lnclusionary Housing
ln-Lieu Fee

Affordable Housing
lmpact Fee

TABLE C-60r COMPARISON OF INCLUSIONARY HOUSING REQUIREMENTS FOR JURISDICTIONS lN THE SACRAMENTO REGtON, 2020

Notes: SF = single fomily; MF = multi-family; sq. ft. = square feet

- 15% affordoble units required; for for-sole ottoched units - 70% affordoble units required.
2ln-Lieu Fees ore only ollowed in certoin coses ond only for a portion of the proposed project
3lnclusionory housing requirements only opply to rental housing developments receiving finoncial assistance.
Source: EPS,2020.

Page 4-22 Public Draft | Revised August 2O2tPage 618

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

4.1.10 STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ARTICLE 34
Article 34 of the State Constitution requires local jurisdictions to obtain voter approval

for specified "low rent" housing projects that involve certain types of public agency

participation. Generally, a project is subject to Article 34 if more than 49 percent of its

units will be rented to low-income persons. lf a project is subject to Article 34, it will
require an approval from the local electorate. This can constrain the production of

affordable housing, since the process to seek ballot approval for affordable housing

projects can be costly and time consuming, with no guarantee of success.

Localjurisdictions typically place a measure or referendum on the local ballot that seeks

authority to develop a certain number of units during a given period of time. The City of
Folsom has not held an Article 34 election since it does not directly build affordable

housing. Although the City provides funding to affordable housing developers, this does

not trigger Article 34 unless the City itself builds the public housing. Article 34

authorization has not been a barrier to the production of affordable housing.

4.1.1 1 DEVELOPMENI MATNTENANCE, AND TMPROVEMENT OF
HOUSING FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

ln accordance with Senate Bill 520 (Chapter 671, Statutes of 2001), the City has analyzed

the potential and actual governmental constraints on the development of housing for
persons with disabilities. The City has reviewed its zoning laws, policies, and practices

to ensure compliance with fair housing laws. The City has adopted the 2019 California

Building Code, including Title 24 regulations of the code concerning accessibility for
persons with disabilities.

The City amended the Zoning Code in 2011 to ensure the definition of "family" is in

compliance with fair housing laws and does not discriminate based on household type

or number of individuals. The definition is as follows:

oFomily" shall meon one person living alone or two or more persons living

together in o dwelling unit with common occess to, and common use of, all

living, kitchen, and eoting oreos within the dwelling unit.

ln 2011 the City also adopted a Reasonable Accommodation Ordinance into the

Municipal Code (Chapter 17.7751. The procedure for reasonable accommodation allows

persons with disabilities or their representatives to submit an application form or a

letter to the Community Development Director requesting the necessary modification.

The procedure is handled ministerially at the staff level, unless the project for which the
request is made requires some other discretionary approval, in which case the request

is handled concurrently with the application for discretionary approval, and is reviewed

by the Planning Commission or the Historic District Commission.

The decision to grant or deny a request for reasonable accommodation is based on

consideration of the following factors:

A. Whether the housing in the request will be used by a person with a disability

under the Federal Fair Housing Act and the California Fair Employment and

Housing Act ("Acts");

B. Whether the request for reasonable accommodation is necessary to make

specific housing available to a person with a disability under the Acts;

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-23Page 619

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LSOh{
2035

GENERAL PLAN EFT=ru
C. Whether the requested reasonable accommodation would impose an undue

financial, administrative or enforcement burden on the City;

D. Whether the requested reasonable accommodation would require a

fundamental alteration in the nature of a City program or law, including but

not limited to land use and zoning;

E. Potential impact on surrounding uses;

F. Physical attributes ofthe property and structures; and

G. Other reasonable accommodations that may provide an equivalent level of
benefit.

Findings E and G could be considered a constraint on housing for persons with

disabilities. Program H-29 of the Housing Element directs the City to review and update

findings for the Reasonable Accommodation Ordinance to remove any constraints to

housing for persons with disabilities.

4.2 Potential Non-Governmental Gonstraints
The availability and cost of housing is strongly influenced by market forces over which

local governments have little or no control. Nonetheless, State law requires that the

housing element contain a general assessment of these constraints, which can serve as

the basis for actions to offset their effects. The primary non-governmental constraints

to the development of new housing in Folsom can be broken into the following

categories: cost of real property acquisition, availability of financing, development and

construction costs, environmental constraints, and community attitudes about housing.

4.2.1 AVAILABILIW OF FINANCING
The availability of financing is a critical factor that can influence the cost and supply of

housing. Housing developments require capital used by developers for initial site

preparation and construction and capital used by homeowners and investors to finance

the purchase of units. Financing is largely impacted by interest rates. Small fluctuations

in interest rates can dramatically influence the ability to qualify for a loan.

Mortgage interest rates have remained at historically low levels and are currently (2020)

around 3.5 percent. Mortgage rates are expected to remain low in the coming years.

While interest rates for development and construction are generally higher than

interest rates for home purchase (i.e., mortgages), financing for new construction is

generally available at reasonable rates. However, the economic uncertainty resulting

from the coronavirus pandemic may have lasting effects on financing throughout the
planning period. Lenders may scrutinize applicants more closely than in the past,

reducing the availability for financing despite affordable rates.

4.2,2 LAND AND SITE IMPROVEMENT COSTS

Land costs are a major factor in the cost to build housing in Folsom. Land costs vary

depending on lot size, zoning, location, access to services, and existing improvements.

According to August 2020 online listings on Zillow.com, the average land cost per acre is

around 5750,000. Lot sizes of land listed for sale range fromQ.27 acre to 2.16 acres and

the median for-sale lot size is 0.35 acres. The average lot sales price is around 5300,000.

PaEe 4-24 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 620

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Recent land acquisition costs for affordable multifami[ developments in the City ranged

between about 5520,000 to 51 million per acre, with a median land cost per acre of
about 5650,000.

Upon securing raw land, developers have to make certain site improvements to Tinish"

the lot before homes can be built. These improvements typically include utility
connections, rough grading, installation of water and sewer lines, and construction of

streets, curbs, gutters, and sidewalks. Site improvement costs for single family and

multifamily homes in Folsom range depending on the type of improvements and parcel

constraints. Site improvement costs for a single family home are estimated to be

approximately 567,500 per unit. Site improvement costs for a multifamily development

are estimated to be approximately S16,000 per unit.

4.2.3 CONSTRUCTTON COSTS

According to estimates from local developers, construction costs vary widely based on

the square footage of the home, product type (attached versus detached), and

specification level. Construction costs for a detached single-family home are estimated

to be approximately S80 to S90 per square foot. Therefore, construction costs for a

typical 2,250 square foot home with a 45O-square foot attached garage are estimated

to be between 5216,000 and $243,000. Construction costs for attached multifamily

development are higher than typical single family developments, ranging between S185

to 5Z6S per square foot, based on recent affordable multifamily development.

Construction costs for a typical 85O-square foot multifamily unit are estimated to be

between S157,250 and 5225,250.

High construction costs limit the rate of return investors can receive from financing

development. High rent or sales prices are required to cover land and construction

costs, pushing multifamily developments toward building luxury apartments with a high

rate of return.

Total Housing Development Costs
As shown in Table C-61, the total of all housing development costs discussed above for

a typical single family home (2,250 square feet) are approximately S535,000, including

land costs, site improvements, construction costs, fees and permits. The total of all

housing development costs for a typical multifami[ unit (850 square feet) are

approximately $272,OO0. This figure does not include developer profit, marketing, or

financing costs.

Note: Single family unit costs ore bosed on o typical 2,250-square loot unit with o 450-squore foot garage on o 0.25-
acre porcel. Multilomily unit costs ore based on a typicol &S0-squore foot unit built ot o density of 27 units per ocre.

Site improvement costs for multifamily units are bosed on the overage cost per unit for the following recent projects:

Bidwell Pointe, Bidwell Ploce, Gronite City, ond Talavero Ridge.
*lncludes building permit fees
Source: CiW of Folsom,2020.

Type of Cost Single Family Unit Multifamily Unit

s7s0,ooo / s187,soo s6so,ooo / s24,oooLand Costs (cost per acre / cost per unit)

s67,s00 s15,oooSite lmprovement Costs (average cost per unit)

s22s,000 s200,000Total Construction Cost

S55,ooo S32,oooTotal Development lmpact Fees*

$535,000 5272,00OTotal Estimated Housing Development Costs

TABLE C-61: ESTIMATED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COSTS, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2020

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 4-25Page 621

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@tr-S@Nfl
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
The specifications for the hypothetical house used for analysis here were chosen to
define it as an entry-level family home. As noted in earlier in Section 3.1, Housing Needs

Assessment, the median sales price for homes in Folsom is 5559,100 in (February 2020).

Recent sales prices for new single family detached homes in Folsom varied from

Sqgz,sso to S731,990 in 2020.

4.2.4 REQUESTS FOR HOUSTNG DEVELOPMENTSAT REDUCED DENSITIES

State law requires the housing element to include an analysis of requests to develop

housing at densities below those anticipated in the sites inventory. The sites inventory

prepared for the 2013 Housing Element conservatively assumed buildout at 50 percent of

the maximum allowed density on multifamily high density sites (18 dwelling units per

acre). Since that time, nearly all multifamif high density sites that have been approved or

proposed for development at much higher densities than assumed in the 2013 Housing

Element. This is especially true for affordable projects, which in some cases have used the

density bonus to exceed the maximum allowable density (Bidwell Pointe and Bidwell

Place). Recent multifamily developments (including both market-rate and affordable

projects) have been constructed or proposed at densities averaging 27 units per acre.

Affordable multifamily developments have been constructed or proposed at densities

averaging 30 units per acre. There was only one instance during the last planning period

where neighborhood opposition led to a reduced density than assumed in the 2013

Housing Element. City staff also continues to work with developers to identify

opportunities to increase unit counts in proposed multifamily developments. For this

reason, the City is increasing the assumed density on high density sites for the 2021

Housing Element to reflect a more realistic capacity for multifamily housing.

Single family housing has often been developed at lower densities than anticipated,

specifically within the FPASP. Developers have built single family housing on land

designated for multifamily low density development. This has resulted in single family

homes on small lots and fewer units than what was anticipated in the Specific Plan.

4.2.5 LENGTH OF TIME BETWEEN PROJECT APPROVAL AND
APPLICATIONS FOR BUILDING PERMITS

State law requires an analysis of the length of time between receiving approval for
housing development and submittal of an application for building permit. On average

approximately 6 month passes between the approval of a housing development

application and submittal of an application for building permits. Time passed between

project approval and applications for building permits for recent multifamily project are

shown in Table C-62.

Multifamily Project Date of Approval
Date of Building Permit
Application Submittal

Time lapsed

Pique Apartments May 18, 2016 December 23,2OL6 7 months, 5 days

The HUB September 27, 2016 December 27, 2016 3 months

Talavera Ridge December 15,z0ts July 15, 2016 7 months

June27,2O77Bidwell Pointe November 14,2OI7 4 months, 24 days

TABLE C-62: LENGTH OF TIME BETWEEN PROJEcT APPROVAL AND BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION

SUBMITTAI, CITY OF FOLSOM, 2O2O

Page 4-26

Source: City of Folsom, 2020

Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 622

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

4.2.6 LOCAL EFFORTS TO REMOVE NON.GOVERNMENTAL
CONSTRAINTS

The City has little ability to control non-governmental constraints, such as the price of

land and environmental constraints. However, the City is working to streamline the

development application process to reduce time and money spent. As mentioned

above, the City has programs to subsidize affordable housing and provides fee deferrals

to encourage development.

ln addition, the City works to educate the public to reduce opposition to new

development. The City provides materials on its website informing residents of
affordable housing needs in the City and relates housing costs to typical incomes of
Folsom residents.

The City also partners with the development community to identify and promote

potential housing development opportunities in Folsom. ln addition, Attachment C.2 of

this housing element provides capacity profiles of high density residential sites and

evaluates sites based on financing criteria for affordable developments.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 PaEe 4-27Page 623

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSONI
203s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
This page intentionally left blank.

Page 4-28 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 624

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



o

5 Evaluation
This chapter evaluates the accomplishments under the City's 2013 Housing Element to
determine the effectiveness of the previous housing element, the City's progress in

implementing the 2013 Housing Element, and the appropriateness of the housing goals,

objectives, and policies.

5.f 20rc-2021 HousingA"ccomplishments

5.1.1 MAJORACCOMPLISHMENTS
The following are some of the major accomplishments and important steps the City has

undertaken to provide greater housing opportunities during the 2Ot3-2O21 Housing

Element planning period.

a Adopted a comprehensive General Plan Update that established the East Bidwell

Mixed Use Overlay, creating new opportunities for multifamily housing and mixed-

use development along East Bidwell Street. The General Plan also identified SACOG

Transit Priority Areas for transit-oriented development around the light rail

stations.

lnitiated a comprehensive zoning code update to implement the General Plan,

incorporate objective design standards for multifamily development, and

streamline the development approval process.

Adopted an amendment to the City's ADU Ordinance allowing ADUs by right
anywhere residential development is allowed, if the ADU meets certain criteria.
lmplemented a gradual phase-in inflationary adjustment to the current Housing

Trust Fund Fee to increase funds for the development of affordable housing.

Added an Energy Efficiency section to the City's website that contains useful energy

efficiency information and identifies numerous energy efficiency resources.

Approved and provided a grant in the amount of 5780,000 to the Talavera Ridge

(Broadstone) Apartment project for the purpose of developing six (5) extremely
low-income housing units.

Approved and provided financial assistance, including an affordable housing loan

in the amount of 55,300,000 and 100 sewer fee credits for the Bidwell Pointe,

mixed-use, affordable housing project developed by 5t. Anton Partners in 2018. The

project includes 14 very low-income units and 86 low-income units.

Approved the Parkway Apartment project, along with gap funding in the amount of

54,800,000 and 75 sewer fee credits in 2OL7 . The 72-unit affordable housing project

includes 8 extremely low-, 34 very low- and 29 low-income units and is currently
(October 2020) pending construction.

Approved the Bidwell Place Apartment project, along with a $4,150,000 affordable

housing loan and 50 sewer fee credits in Spring 2020. The 75-unit, 100 percent

affordable housing project includes 4 extremely low-, 4 very low-, and 55 low-

income units.

Approved the Scholar Way Senior Apartments project in November 2020 and

approved a 54,500,000 affordable housing loan for the project in January 2O2t.The
project, proposed by USA Properties, includes 3 extremely low-, 73 very low-

income units and 33 low-income units.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-1Page 625

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOr-goR{
2035

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru

Source: City of Folsom, 2020.

5.1.2 PROGRESS TOWARD MEETING THE RHNA
Table C-63 summarizes the number of building permits issued each year for new

housing units by income category during the previous RHNA planning period as of the

end of 2019. Development occurred at varied rates within the planning period with
recent increases as development began to occur in the FPASP, south of Highway 50. An

annual average of 431 units were issued permits from 2013 through 2019. The majority

of units constructed during the planning period met the needs of moderate and above-

moderate income households. Only 6 extremely low- and 14 very low-income units

were constructed during the planning period, meeting only 1.6 percent of the extremely

low- and very low-income RHNA. 86 low-income units were constructed, meeting 10

percent of the RHNA for low-income households. The City met 94 percent of its
moderate income RHNA and 124 percent of its above-moderate RHNA.

5.1.3 EFFORTS TO ADDRESS SPECIAL HOUSING NEEDS

Government Code Section 65588 requires that local governments review the

effectiveness of the housing element goals, policies, and related actions to meet the
community's special housing needs. As shown in Table C-64, the 2013 Housing Element

included Programs H-5.A, through H-5.E. addressing senior housing needs, emergency

shelters, childcare centers, and reasonable accommodations for persons with

disabilities.

The City has shown continual dedication to meeting the needs of seniors. The City has

supported low-income senior homeowners through the Seniors Helping Seniors

program. The program is funded with CBDG funds and provides a maximum grant

amount of 52,500 per property per year for minor repairs and 57,500 per household

once in a lifetime for major repairs. From 2013 through 2019, 5940,194 of financial

assistance was provided through this program and 514 eligible senior households were

served,

The City has also shown its commitment to addressing the needs of homeless residents.

ln September 2016, the Folsom Police Department collaborated with various faith

communities to propose a Folsom Faith and Homeless lnitiative. Through this effort,
HART of Folsom was officially founded in July 2017. HART partners with organizations

and the City to provide resources and services to the homeless population. A

lncome
Category

20L3 2014 2015 2016 20L7 2018 2019 Total
20L3-202t

RHNA

Percentage of
RHNA met

Extremely Low-
lncome/ Very Low-
lncome

6 T4 20 t,278 L.6%

Low-lncome 86 86 854 10%

Moderate lncome 28 68 54 74 358 221 4 807 862 94%

Above Moderate
lncome

302 205 180 99 138 449 729 2,L02 L,699 124%

TOTAL 330 273 234 173 502 770 73C 3,015 4,633

TABLE C-53: BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED FOR NEW UNITS BY INCOME CATEGORY,

clTY oF FOLSOM, 2013-20t9

Page 5-2 Public Draft I Revised August 202LPage 626

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Sacramento Self Help Housing Homeless Outreach Navigator has been appointed by the

City to assist HART. The City continues to support HART and Powerhouse Ministries, a

local faith-based organization, to provide emergency and supportive transitional

housing to both the homeless and residents at risk of becoming homeless. Powerhouse

Ministries provides a low-barrier emergency shelter and transitional housing for women

and children at its Transformation Center. An expansion of the Powerhouse Ministries

Transformation Center is currently (2020) underway and is anticipated for completion

in Spring 2021. The approved expansion replaces temporary buildings with a permanent

dormitory, counseling office, conference room, and child play area. The expanded

center will result in an increase of the total number of women and children housed from

20 lo 4O, providing 20 emergency shelter beds and 20 transitional housing beds.

The City continues to work with local organizations and homeless service providers to

support emergency shelter facility development. The 2013 Housing Element did not

include any programs for actions related to homeless persons beyond Program H-5.C.

Emergency Shelter Facility Development. New and expanded programs are needed to
address emergency shelter facilities in the city and the needs of homeless persons.

The Folsom Municipal Code was amended in 2015 establishing a streamlined process

for permitting and regulating the operation of Large Family Day Care Homes in single-

family residential zones. ln addition, the City continues to make information available

in written form and on the City's website on reasonable accommodation for persons

with disabilities and provides an expedient process for individuals with disabilities to
make requests for exemptions from, or modification of, the various land use, zoning, or

building laws, rules, policies, practices and/or procedures of the city.

5.2 Review of Existing (2013) Housing Element
Table C-64 provides an evaluation of the 2013-2021 Housing Element implementation
programs and reviews the results and effectiveness of each program.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-3Page 627

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F Or-s0ec
203s

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru
Recommendations for Updated

Housing Element

Maintain program.

Maintain program.

Continue program

Maintain program. The City shall
continue to review its
development impact and permit
fees.

Evaluation

The City continues to update the residential vacant land
inventory. The 2019 Vacant Land lnventory is currently
available on the Ci!/s website and includes a list of both
active and proposed residential housing projects.

The City continues to work with affordable housing
developers and property owners in order to assist the
development of housing affordable to lower income
households. ln 2Ot7, two multi-family affordable
apartment projects (Parkway Apartments and Bidwell
Pointe) received project approval and loan commitments
from the City. ln 2020, an additional multi-family
affordable apartment project (Bidwell Place Apartments)
received project approval and a loan commitment from
the City.

The City is currently conducting a zoning code update.
This program will be addressed as part ofthe zoning code
update, which is planned for completion in Fall 2021

The City continues to review its development impact fees.
ln 2015 the City completed a Nexus Study for residential
impact fees associated with the Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan. Currently, the City does not charge impact fees to
second units. ln addition, the City allows a 50% reduction
in City impact fees for multi-family project studio
apartment units.

Status

Completed/
Ongoing

Completed/
Ongoing

ln Progress

Completed/
Ongoing

lmplementation Program

Adequate Sites Monitoring
The City shall annually update its vacant land inventory, including an
updated inventory of potential infill sites (smaller vacant and
underutilized parcels) and make the updated inventory available on
the City website. The City shall also conduct an annual review of the
composition of the housing stock, the types of dwellings units under
construction or expected to be under construction during the following
year, and the anticipated mix, based on development proposals
approved or under review by the City, of the housing to be developed
during the remainder ofthe period covered by the Housing Element.

Facilitate Appropriate Sites for Affordable Housing
The City shall encourage property owners and affordable housing
developers to target and market the availability of sites with the best
potential for development by facilitating meetings between willing
property owners of large sites and willing affordable housing
developers, when sufficient housing subsidy resources are available. To
assist the development of housing for lower income households on
larger sites (e.g., more than 10 acres), the City shall strive to streamline
the approval process for land divisions, lot line adjustments, and/or
specific plans resulting in parcel sizes that enable affordable housing
development, and process fee deferrals related to the subdivision for
projects affordable to lower income households.

Residential Mobile Home Zone
The City shall amend the boundaries of the Residential Mobile Home
(RMH) zones to be consistent with areas designated as Single-Family
High Density/Mobile Home Park (SFHD) in the General Plan Land Use
Diagram. Additionally, the City shall amend the language in the Zoning
Code to remove references to the 'Trailer and Trailer Parks" Zone.

Development lmpact and Permit Fees

The City shall undertake a review of its development impact and
permit fees related to multi-family development, second units, and
other affordable housing to reconfirm the relationship between
required services and fees paid. As part of this study, the City shall
review the financial needs of affordable housing projects, determine
whether or not City fees can be reduced to facilitate affordable
housing development, and identify options for the City to offset the
foregone revenues from other sources.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

Page 5-4 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 628

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Delete program. Program planned
for implementation prior to
adoption ofthe updated housing
element.

Recommendations for Updated
Housing Elem€nt

Delete program. The EDTCB

program ends December 3!,2O2O.

Delete program. Program planned

for implementation prior to
adoption ofthe updated housing
element.

Evaluation

The City continues to use EDTCB sewer credits to reduce
the cost for SRCSD connection fees and continues to
reserve a portion of these credits for housing projects
affordable to low-, very low-and extremely low-income
households. On June 1-3,2077, the City Council approved
Resolution No. 9947 authorizing 90 sewer credits for the
100% affordable Parkway Apartment project. On
September 26, 2O77,the City Council approved
Resolution No. 10005 authorizing 75 sewer credits for the
Bidwell Pointe mixed-use, mixed income project. And, on
April 14, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution No.
10410 authorizing 75 sewer credits for the 100%

affordable Bidwell Place Apartment project.

The City is currently conducting a zoning code update.
This program will be addressed as part of the zoning code
update, which is planned for completion in Spring 2021.

The City is currently conducting a zoning code update.
This program will be addressed as part ofthe zoning code
update, which is planned for completion in Spring 2021.

Completed/
ongoing

ln progress

ln progress

Status

Development Standards
Following adoption of the updated General Plan, the City shall review
and revise, as appropriate, its infrastructure and other development
standards to ensure that they are consistent with the General Plan and

allow for a full variety of housing types, and do not unfairly burden
residential developers while maintaining appropriate fire, health, and
safety standards.

Review and Update Guidelines for Multifamily Housing
Following adoption of the 2035 General Plan, the City shall review and
update the Design Guidelines for Multifamily Development to ensure
consistency between the policies in the General Plan and development
standards in the Municipal Code and those in the Design Guidelines.
Additionally, the City shall create a single document that consolidates
all of the development and design standards for multi-family housing.

lmplementation Program

Economic Development Treatment Capacity Bank
The City shall continue to make use of the Economic Development
Treatment Capacity Bank (EDTCB) established by the Sacramento
Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD), which allocates excess

wastewater treatment capacity connection fee credits among
jurisdictions in the district to reduce the costs for SRCSD sewer
connection fees. The City shall reserve a portion of the credits for
housing projects affordable to low-, very low-, and extremely low-
income households.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION oF EXISTING (2013) HoUslNG ELEMENT PRoGRAMS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-5Page 629

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



lF@n-s@ee
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=6
Recommendations for Updated

Housing Element

Replace program with a program
to conduct an inclusionary housing
in-lieu fee study.

Expand program to include
informational campaign on
homeless needs.

Evaluation

The City continues to monitor the impact of the
lnclusionary Housing Ordinance (lHO) on the feasibility of
market-rate housing and its ability to assist in the
development of affordable units. ln 2015, the City
reassessed the IHO as it pertains to accessory dwelling
units and their effectiveness in providing affordable
housing to low and very low income households and it
was determined that although accessory dwelling units
are important in providing affordable housing to
moderate and low-income households, their
effectiveness as an inclusionary housing alternative is

limited due to lack of affordability requirement,
enforcement, and monitoring concerns. Hence on
September 28, 2015 the City Council adopted Ordinance
No. 1243 to remove accessory dwelling units as an
alternative to on-site construction of inclusionary
housing.

As ofJuly 2020, the Folsom Housing Fund had an
unrestricted cash balance of 52,516,263 with
S5,356,641of that amount provided through the
collection of IHO in-lieu fees. lt is important to note that a

portion of these funds are reserved for the construction
or substantial rehabilitation of affordable multi-family
residential units.

The City continues to include affordable housing
educational material on the City's website and
participates in affordable housing workshops. The City is
currently participating in the Sac Valley Fair Housing
Collaborative, which is preparing a regional Analysis of
lmpediments (Al).

Completed/
Ongoing

Ongoing

Status

Educate the Community About Affordable Housing
The City shall conduct an educational campaign to educate the
community about the needs, realities, and benefits of affordable
housing, and provide outreach to attract and support non-profit
affordable housing developers in the city. The City shall prepare
educational materials and participate in workshops on the issue of
affordable housing. The City shall encourage participation by non-profit
and for-profit affordable housing developers and local housing
advocates. The City shall publicize events to neighborhood groups,
community organizations, and other civic groups.

lmplementation Program

Monitor lnclusionary Housing Ordinance
The City shall monitor the impact of the lnclusionary Housing
Ordinance on the feasibility of market-rate housing its ability to assist
in the development of affordable units, and whether or not the
program acts as a constraint on the development of all housing types.
The City shall meet with local housing developers to discuss the
impacts ofthe inclusionary housing ordinance and the effectiveness in
providing for affordable housing units. As necessary the City shall
update its findings to the City Council in conjunction with the annual
report to HCD (see Program H-8.C). The City may revise, amend, or
repeal the Ordinance if it finds the lnclusionary Housing Ordinance is a

constraint on all housing types or is not meeting its desired objectives
(see Program H-3.E).

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING {2013} HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

Page 5-6 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 630

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Recommendations for Updated
Housing Element

Replace program with program to
include development of zoning
code standards for transit-
oriented development.

Delete program. The PD process is

not a constraint on multi-family
development. lt is an option that is
available to allow for more
flexibility in the application of
development sta ndards.

Maintain program

Delete program. Program was
successfully implemented.

Replace program with a policy to
continue implementing an
inflationary adjustment to the
Housing Trust Fund Fee.

Delete program.

Evaluation

To date, the City has not received any projects eligible for
CEQA streaming under the provisions of SB 375.

The City removed the requirement that all multi-family
housing go through the PD permit process. The process

still applies to several specific plan areas but does not
apply citywide.

The City will continue to use the Housing Trust Fund
toward the development of affordable housing units for
low-, very-low, and extremely low households. As of July
2020, the HousingTrust Fund had an unrestricted cash
balance of 5433,949.00 which may be allocated to a

future affordable housing project.

On December 73,20t6 Folsom City Council approved
Resolution No. 9807 to provide a Housing Trust Fund
Grant in the amount of $78Q000 to the Broadstone
Apartment project for the purpose of providing 6
extremely low-income household units.

On May 14,2073, the City Council approved Resolution
No. 9146 to adjust the Housing Trust Fund Fee to 51.35
per gross square foo! effective January L,2014, and then
to 51.50 per gross square foo! effective Janua ry t, 2Ot5.
On July 1-4, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No.
9599 to enact the annual inflationary adjustment for City
lmpact Fees, includingthe HousingTrust Fund Fee. On
January L,2O!9, the adjusted (for inflation) HousingTrust
Fund fee increased to 51.55 per gross square foot.

The City continues to act as the Successor Agency to carry
out the responsibilities and obligations of the former
redevelopment agency. Effective May 3, 2018, the City
reports to the Sacramento Countywide Oversight Board.

Completed

Ongoing

Completed

Completed

Completed

Status

Ongoing

Local Funding for Affordable Housing Development
As available, the City shall allocate funds from the Housing Trust Fund
toward the development of affordable housing units for low-, very low-
, and extremely low-income households. The City shall also encourage
qualified housing developers to pursue new construction and
acquisition/rehabilitation of affordable housing in the city.

City Grant for Very Low lncome Project
The City shall make a grant(s) available until May I,2018, in the total
amount of 515,000, to a developer or developers for the production of
multi-family rental units affordable to very low-income households in
Folsom and deed restricted for a period not less than 30 years.

Non-Residential Affordable Housing lmpact Fee Study
The City shall gradually phase-in an inflationary adjustment from the
current Housing Trust Fund Fee to 51.35 per gross square foot,
effective January I,2Ot4, and then to 51.50 per gross square foot,
effective January t,2OI5. The funds generated by the increase shall be
used for the development of affordable multifamily rental housing.

Act as Successor Agency for Redevelopment Agency
The City shall act as the Successor Agency and carry out the
responsibilities and obligations of the former redevelopment agenry
until July 2016 when all oversight boards within the county will be
replaced by one consolidated oversight board.

lmplementation Program

Exemptions of Transit Priority Projects from Environmental Review
The City shall implement the provisions of SB 375 streamlining the
CEQA process for Transit Priority Projects and projects which conform
to the Sustainable Communities Strategy and meet specific criteria set
forth in 58 375.

Monitor and Evaluate the PD Permit Process

The City shall monitor the Planned Development (PD) process to track
the impacts of the PD process on the costs, timing, and certainty of
residential development and ensure that the process does not act as a

constraint on the production of multi-family housing. The City shall
work with the development community to conduct an evaluation of
the PD permit process.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PRoGRAMS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-7Page 631

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@r-s{}ha
2035

GENERAL PLAN 6=6
Recommendations for Updated

Housing Element

Modify program. There are no
plans to repeal the inclusionary
housing program during the
Housing Element planning period.

Delete program.

Modifo program to reflect
additional uses of CDBG funds
received.

Maintain program.

Maintain program.

Evaluation

The City continues to implement the lnclusionary Housing
Ordinance.

ln September 2015, the Governor signed into law Senate
Bill 107, which authorizes the City's housing successor
agency to designate the use oi and commit 100% of bond
proceeds that were issued for affordable housing
purposes prior to June 28,2OII.

The City continues to maintain a close working
relationship with SHRA and currently participates in the
CDBG and HOME Programs with SHRA. The CDBG funds
are utilized to subsidize minor and major grants for the
City of Folsom's Senior Helping Senior Program.

The City continues to participate with SHRA for
administration of Housing Choice Vouchers. ln 2019,
Folsom had 83 families using vouchers.

The City continues to participate in the Mortgage Credit
Certificate (MCC) Program administered by SHRA. Since
L99O,79 Folsom households have been issued an MCC.

Status

Ongoing

Completed

Completed/
Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

lmplementation Program

Inclusionary Housing Ordinance
The City shall continue to implement the lnclusionary Housing
Ordinance, but may revise, amend, or repeal the Ordinance based on
the ongoing monitoring program (see Program H-2.E).

Tax-Exempt Bond Financing
The City shall continue to petition for the authority to issue tax-exempt
bonds for affordable housing by lobbying the legislature to pass

legislation (such as AB 981) to allow the City to designate the use of,
and commit, indebtedness obligation proceeds that were issued for
affordable housing projects prior to June 28,2Ot1.

Participate in Sacramento County CDBG Program
The City shall continue to coordinate with the Sacramento Housing and

Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) to receive Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) to support housing rehabilitation programs. The
City shall consider participating in other programs through SHRA. The
City shall consider contracting with SHRA, or another entity, for
technical assistance in carrying out certain functions, such as

monitoring the number of affordable units that have been produced

and will be produced in the City.

Housing Choice Vouchers
The City shall continue to participate in the Housing Choice Voucher
Program, administered by the Sacramento Housing and
Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), with a goal of providing rental
assistance to lower-income residents. The City shall work with SHRA to
maintain, or if possible, increase the current number of vouchers for
Folsom residents.

Mortgage Credit Certificate Program
The City shall continue to participate in the Mortgage Credit Certificate
Program, administered by the Sacramento Housing and
Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), to assist low-income first-time
homebuyers purchase a home, subject to availability of Program funds.
The City shall publicize the program on the City website and prepare
written materials.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

Page 5-8 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 632

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Recommendations for Updated
Housing Element

Modifo program to reflect new
available funding sources.

Delete program.

Delete program. The City
continues to participate in the
CDBG program through the
County.

Fold into H-5.8. Seniors Helping
Seniors Program

City staff continues to meet with for-profit and non-profit
housing developers and housing advocates to review
current housing programs.

The City has not received any requests from 2013 to
present for rental rehabilitation funding or for assistance
applying to other resources for funding.

The City utilizes CDBG funds to provide grants under the
Seniors Helping Seniors Program to assist with mobile
home rehabilitation. ln 2019, the City provided one major
grant in the amount of $7,450.00 to a mobile home
owner for a new furnace.

Evaluation

The City, particularly the Community Development
Department continues to work to secure additional
funding from state and federal sources that can be used
to increase the supply of affordable housing in the City of
Folsom. Furthermore, the City continues to explore new
opportunities of funding sources, including the California
Strategic Growth Council's Affordable Housing &
Sustainable Communities Grant.

Ongoing

Ongoing

Status

Ongoing

Ongoing

lmplementation Program

Additiona! State, Federal, and Regional Funding
The City shall work to secure additional funding from State, Federal,
and regional sources that can be used to help increase the supply of
affordable housing in Folsom. Such programs may include, but are not
limited to:
. The Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Loan Fund, currently

(2013) being developed by the Sacramento Housing and
Redevelopment Agency;

. The HOME program that has local funds distributed by the
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA); and

. The state Multifamily Housing Program (MHP), sponsored by the
Department of Housing and Community Development {HCD).

Additionally, the City shall lobby to seek legislative changes to make
State and Federal affordable housing programs more effective and
support a state permanent funding source for affordable housing.

Housing Program Workshops
The City shall conduct annual workshop(s) with for-profit and non-
profit housing developers, local and regional funding agencies, and
other organizations interested in affordable housing to review
currently available programs, including housing rehabilitation
programs, Seniors Helping Seniors, and the First Time Homebuyer
Program. The City shall advertise the workshops by mailing fliers,
sending emails, and phone calls to local housing stakeholders.

Rehabilitation of Substandard Units
The City shall apply annually, or as frequently as is needed based on
housing rehabilitation demand, for funding under the Community
Development Block Grant Program the California Housing
Rehabilitation Program, and other State and Federal funding programs.
ln addition, the City shall provide information to, and assist owners of,
rental properties in applying for funding under available state and
federal housing rehabilitation funding programs.

Mobile Home Rehabilitation Program
The City shall continue to assist low-income mobile home owners with
mobile home repairs by providing grants to fund health, safety, and
emergency repairs of mobile homes, subject to availability of grant
funds.

TABLE C-54: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-9Page 633

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"@Lg@h4
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Recommendations for Updated

Houslnt Element

Maintain program.

Delete program.

Delete program

Delete program. Historic
preservation is adequately
addressed in the Natural and
Cultural Resources Element of the
General Plan. Therefore, this
program is not needed in the
Housing Element.

Maintain program

Evaluation

Since the program's inception in 2011, the City has
forgiven 11 Mobile Home Repair and Replacement loans
due to financial hardship.

The City has developed a windshield survey and is in the
process of using this survey to prepare a housing
conditions database.

The City continues to monitor the affordability status of
publicly assisted housing developments in the City.

With an active and vibrant Historic District and a Historic
District Commission, the City remains committed to
preserving historical residences within the City.

The City continues to encourage rehabilitation of
substandard residential properties in the City of Folsom.

Ongoing

Ongoing

Status

Ongoing

ln progress

Ongoing

Preseryation of Historic Residences
The City shall preserve historically and architecturally significant
buildings by undertaking the following actions:

t. Evaluate the potential impact of proposed development projects

or rehabilitation activities on historic properties;

2. Continue to designate certain areas as historic districts and consider
adopting guidelines for historic structures; and

3. Exempt property owners from specific historic preservation

requirements, to the extent that it has the authority to do so, if
such requirements would conflict with access for persons with
disabilities, energy conservation, seismic safety retrofitting, or if
the strict application of requirements would impose an
unreasonable hardship on the property owner.

Code Enforcement
The City shall continue to encourage the rehabilitation of substandard
residential properties by homeowners and landlords, using the Code
Enforcement program when necessary to improve overall housing
quality and conditions in the city.

lmplementation Program

Mobile Home Repair and Replacement Loan Forgiveness Program
The City shall continue to provide forgiveness on Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) loans for improvements to
manufactured housing units experiencing economic hardship, as

defined by, and subject to, HUD guidelines.

Housing Conditions Database
The City shall maintain current information on the condition of
dwelling units by preparing and periodically updating a housing
conditions database. The City shall develop a standard survey
instrument (e.g., windshield survey). Additionally, the City shall

consider expanding the survey area outside the current limits of the
Historic District Area.

Monitoring Assisted Housing Developments
The City shall continue to monitor the affordability status of all
publicly-assisted housing developments in Folsom to ensure that
qualifying moderate- or lower-income households occupy assisted

units.

TABLE C-54: EVATUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

Page 5-10 Public Draft | Revised August 2021Page 634

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Recommendations for Updated
Housing Element

Delete program.

Maintain program,

Maintain program

Delete program.

Delete program. This is standard
city practice and does not require
an implementation action.

Evaluation

The City contacted the Folsom Cordova Unified School
District (FCUSD) in March of 2015 to explore reductions in
school impact fees for senior housing and was informed
that a policy for fee reductions is already in place
whereby senior citizen housing developments (as

described in Section 51.3 of the California Civil Code) are
charged the FCUSD commercial development impact fee,
as opposed to the much higher FCUSD.

The City continues to provide financial assistance for
minor home repairs to low-income seniors through the
Seniors Helping Seniors Program. From 2013 through
2019, S940,194 of financial assistance was provided
through this program and 614 eligible senior households
were served.

The City continues to provide technical assistance to local
organizations and community groups to help develop
emergency shelter facilities in Folsom.

On March 24,2Ot5, the City Council passed Ordinance
No. 1219 to amend the Folsom Municipal Code by adding
a separate chapter (Chapter 5.100) to the code that
established a streamlined process for permitting and
regulating the operation of Large Family Day Care Homes
in single-family residential zones in the City. The result of
Ordinance No. 1219 is that it established an expedient
and cost effective administrative process.

The City continues to make information available in

written form and on the City's website on reasonable
accommodation for persons with disabilities. The City
Clerk is designated as the ADA Coordinator and provides
information and research.

Ongoing

Completed

Ongoing

Status

Continued

Ongoing

Child Care Services to Assist Single Parents with Children
The City shall review its Zoning Code to ensure that City requirements
do not overly restrict the location of child care services.

Public lnformation for Reasonable Accommodation
The City shall continue to make information available in written form
and on the City's website on reasonable accommodation for persons
with disabilities. The City shall continue to designate an ADA
Coordinator and contract with an outside consultant to provide
information and research if necessary.

lmplementation Program

Fee Reductions for Senior Housing
The City shall coordinate with the Folsom Cordova Unified School
District to explore reductions in school impact fees for senior housing.

Seniors Helping Seniors Program
The City shall continue to provide flnancial assistance for minor home
repairs to low-income seniors through the Seniors Helping Seniors
Program, subject to availability of Program funds. The City shall send a
qualified senior tradesman to perform minor repairs, free of charge, to
qualifoing senior homeowners.

Emergency Shelter Facility Development
The City shall continue to encourage and provide technical assistance
to local organizations and community groups to help develop
emergency shelter facilities in Folsom. The City shall facilitate the
public outreach necessary to help in the removal of any neighborhood
barriers for any applications for an emergency shelter.

TABLE C-54: EVALUATION OF EXISTING {2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 Page 5-11Page 635

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FSr-g@h{
2035

GENERAL PLAN Erm=6
Recommendations for Updated

Housint Element

Modifo program to reflect new
procedures for addressing fair
housing complaints.

Delete program from the Housing
Element. The main mechanism for
implementing this program is the
Seniors Helping Seniors program,

which is already included as a

program in the Housing Element.
The General Plan already
addresses the PACE program and

other energy efficiency programs.

Delete program. Program was
successful ly implemented.

Weatherization improvements, including such activities
as higher efficiency window replacements and HVAC

replacements, are primarily completed through the City's
Seniors Helping Seniors Program. The City's website
provides information to homeowners about the PACE

Programs that operate in Folsom, as well as providing
links to PG&E and SMUD programs.

ln August ol 2O14, the City added an Energy Efficiency
section to the City's website that contains useful energy
efficiency information and identifies numerous energy
efficiency resources. ln addition, the City periodically
sends out handbills in utility billing statements to the
public regarding both water and energy efficiency
measures.

Evaluation

The City continues to make information regarding fair
housing available on its website, as well as continues to
assist individuals with complaints in contacting the
appropriate agency. City staff refers individuals with
complaints to the Sacramento Renters Helpline and other
appropriate agencies. ln addition, a portion of the Cit/s
CDBG allocation is used to subsidize the Renters Helpline
fair housing activities, including landlord/tenant
mediation and complaint investigation.

Completed

Status

Ongoing

Ongoing

lmplementation Program

Fair Housing Program
The City shall continue to make information regarding State and
Federal fair housing requirements available at a designated office in
City Hall. ln addition, the City shall make copies of the information
available for the public on the City's website and at the Folsom Public
Library. The City will also assist individuals with complaints in

contacting either the Code Enforcement Division or one of the
following appropriate agencies to file a complaint:

. SacramentoHousingand RedevelopmentAgency;

. State of California's Landlordfenant Dispute line or Mobile home
Park Ombudsman;

. Sacramento Regional Human Rights/Fair Housing Commission;

. Sacramento County Health Department; and

. California Department of Fair Housing and Employment.

Energy Conservation Assistance
The City shall continue to include weatherization and energy
conservation as eligible activities under CDBG programs that it
administers. ln addition, the City shall seek new resources to assist

homeowners increase energy efficiency (e.9., upgrading older
ductwork, HVAC systems, windows, and insulation). The City shall
provide information and refer eligible propefi owners to other
available programs, such as those available through PG&E and SMUD.

Public Education on Energy Efficiency
The City shall prepare and distribute handouts to the public and post

information on the City's website on ways to improve energy efficiency
in existing homes and in new construction.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (2013) HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRAMS

Page 5-12 Public Draft | Revised August 2021
Page 636

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Recommendations for Updated
Housing Element

Delete program. Program was
successfully implemented.

Modifo program to establish
development standards for TOD in
the comprehensive zoning code
update.

Delete program.

Maintain as a policy rather than a

program since no action is

required.

Maintain as a poliry rather than a

program.

Evaluation

On December 10,2Ot3, the City Council approved
Resolution No. 9248 to establish a Community Facilities
District to finance the acquisition, installation, and
improvement of energy efficiency, urater conservation
and renewable energy improvements to existing
residential and commercial buildings. The first PACE

program, mPOWER, was implemented on March 17,
2014. Since 2014, several additional PACE providers have
been approved for Folsom.

As part ofthe recently adopted General Plan, the City
identified SACOG Transit Priority Areas in the City and
established transit oriented land use goals. As part ofthe
zoning code update, the City will consider zoning code
amendments that facilitate mixed-use and high density
residential TOD opportunities. The comprehensive zoning
code update is planned to be completed in Spring 2021.

The City has not yet found it possible to document the
sales price and rental rates for existing residential units;
however, the City currently documents the sales price of
new for-sale single-family residential units in
developments subject to an lnclusionary Housing
Agreement with the City and all rental rates of multi-
family residential developments that are deed restricted.

The City continues to designate Community Development
Department staff to coordinate housing-related programs
and policy initiatives in the City.

The City continues to review and report annually to the
City Council and to the Department of Housing and
Community Development (HCD) on the implementation
of Housing Element programs and the City's effectiveness
in meeting the programs' objectives.

Status

Completed

ln progress

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

lmplementation Program

Study Feasibility of a Local Assessment Dlstrict
The City shall conduct a study on the feasibility of creating a local
assessment district or other financing mechanism to fund voluntary
actions by homeowners (and owners of commercial/mixed-use
properties) during new construction or retrofit to undertake energy
efficiency measures, install solar rooftop panels, install "cool" roofs,
and take other measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Facilitate Transit-Oriented Development
The City shall identify opportunities for transit-oriented development
(TOD) in the city, consider Zoning Code amendments to facilitate
mixed-use and high-density residential TOD opportunities, and explore
f unding opportunities.

Affordability Monitoring
The City shall explore the possibility of documenting the sales price and
rental rates for all residential units within the city for the purpose of
evaluating potential assistance for affordable housing.

Housing Program Staff
The City shall continue to designate staff responsibilities to coordinate
housing-related programs and policy initiatives in the City and act as the
centralized information/referral source for residents requiring housing
assistance. The City shall strive to ensure that adequate resources are
available to continue improving housing program coordination. The
designated staff person shall be responsible for the annual monitoring of
housing programs and producing the Housing Element Annual Progress
Report to the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD), as well as the HousingTrust Fund Annual Report.

Annual lmplementation Reporting
The City shall review and report annually to the City Council and to the
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) on the
implementation of Housing Element programs and the City's
effectiveness in meeting the programs' objectives.

TABLE C-64: EVALUATION OF EXISTING (20L3) HOUSING ELEMENT PRoGRAMS

APPENDIX C HOUSING ELEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 5-13Page 637

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSOl\[
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=6
This poge intentionolly lefi blonk.

Page 5-14 Public Draft | Revised August 2021
Page 638

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



6 Bibliography

6.f .f,gencies, Organizations, and Persons
Gontacted

WestLand Landowners Group - May 2020
. Bill Bunce, President, WestLand Capital Partners

r Mike McDougall, President, MJM Properties, LLC.

o Rob Aragon, Principal, Aragon Solutions, lnc.

o Rick Jordan, President, Terreno Land Consulting
o Charles Torrence, Principal, Torrence Planning & Design

o Jim Ray, Principal/President, MacKay & Somps

o Jim Galovan, Partner, PCCP LLC

r Tim Taron, Attorney, Public lnfrastructure and Services Financing, Hefner Law

. Clay Loomis, Project Manager, Folsom Heights, LLC - May 27,2O2O.

Tim Kihm, President, TK Consulting, lnc. -June 23,2O2O

Price Walker, Vice President, Project Development, Elliott Homes - April 30, 2020.

Christopher Teng, Senior Land Use Manager, Kaiser Permanente National Facilities

Services - May 28,2O2O

Cole Partners Development Company - May 28, 2020
r DanielCole,Chairman/co-founder
o Rob Cole, President/co-founder
o Mike lsherwood, Chief Financial officer/Legal Counsel

o Mark Fisher, President, The Grupe Company

Mike Klockenbrink, Business Administration/HR Pastor, Lakeside Church -June2,2O2O.
Augustine Chavez, Vice President of Administration, Folsom Lake College - June 17,

2020.

Simon Properties (Folsom Premium Outlets) - June 18, 2020
o John Dionis, Vice President of Development
. Jamal Porter, Regional Vice President
. Brenda Smith, General Manager, Folsom Premium Outlets

Folsom Cordova School District-July 23,2O2O

r Rhonda Crawford, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

. Matt Washburn, Chief Operations Officer

. JoAnne McCarthy, Facilities Planner

o Geri Wickham, Planning/Project Manager

Ed Kelley, President, HART of Folsom, April 20, 2020.

Nancy Atchley, Executive Director, Powerhouse Ministries, June 15, 2020.

Aaron Zelaya, Sergeant, Community Crimes Suppression Unit, Folsom Police

Department - August 7,2O2O

Pete Piccardo, Code Enforcement Supervisor, City of Folsom - June 5, 2020,

Danielle M. Mazzella, Preservation & Data Manager, California Housing Partnership -
July 2Q,2O2O

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 6-1Page 639

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F OLSoI{
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
6.2 Websites
Alta California Regional Center. www.altaregional.org.

California Department of Community Services and Development. www.csd.ca.gov.

California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation. http://www.cdcr,ca,gov.

California Department of Development Services. www.dds.ca.gov.

California Department of Education. www.cde.ca.gov.

California Department of Finance. http ://www.dof.ca.gov.

California Department of Housing and Community Development.

http ://www. hcd,ca.gov,

California Employment Development Department. http://edd.ca.gov.

California Tax Credit Allocation Committee. TCAC/HCD Opportunity Area Maps.

https://belonging.berkeley.edu/tcac-opportunity-map-2020.

Federal Emergency Ma nagement Agency. www.fema.gov.

For Rent.com. https://www.forrent.com/,

Metrolist MLS TrendVision. www. metrolistmls.com.

New Home Source. https://www.newhomesource,com/.

United States Census Bureau. http://www.census.gov.

United States Social Security Administration, http://www.ssa.gov.

Pacific Gas and Electric Company. www.pge.com.

Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG). www.sacog.org.

Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency. www.shra.org.

Sacramento Municipal Utility District. www.smud.org.

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District. www.srcsd.com

Trulia. www.trulia.com.

University of California Berkley Urban Displacement Project.

https ://www. u rba nd isplacement.org/.

University of California Davis C.enter for Regional Change Regional Opportunity lndex.

https:/lnteract.regionalchange.ucdavis.edu/roi/webmap/webmap.html.

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Comprehensive Housing

Affordability Strategy (CHAS) database. www.huduser.org

Zillow. www.zillow.com.

6.3 Reports/Documents
California Housing and Community Development Department. Finonciol Assistance

Progrom Directory. June 2012.

City of Folsom Department of Housing ond Community Development Annuol Housing

E I e m e nt P ro g ress Re port. 2O!8.

City of Folsom Deportment of Housing ond Community Development Annuol Housing

Ele me nt Prog ress Re port. 2OI9.

City of Folsom Salary Schedule. July 1,2018.

City of Folsom 2075 Urbon Woter Monagement Plon. June 14, 2016.

City of Folsom Design Guidelines for Multifamily Housing. May 25, 1998.

City of Folsom Municipal Code. 2020

City of Folsom. Folsom Plon Areo Specific P/on. Approved June 28, 20t1, Amended

March 13, 2018.

Page 5-2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 640

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom. Folsom Plan Areo Specific Plan Minor Administrative Modification

associated with the Parcels 61,77,78, and 85A (PN 20-003). March 77,2Q20.

City of Folsom. Multi-Generotionol Housing Affordobility and Accessory Dwelling Unit

Asse ssm e nt. May 14, 2020.

City of Folsom. Seniors Helping Seniors Home Repoir Program Guidelines. Approved

April2OtT, revised February 2018.

City of Folsom. 2076 Water Master Plon Updote. January 2018.

City of Folsom. 2019 Sewer System Monagement Plon. July 2019.

Federal Emergency Management Agency FIRM Maps, October 2020.

Folsom Cordova Unified School Districl2079-2020 Certified Salary Schedule. Approved

June 6, 2019.

Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG). Housing Policy Toolkit June 25,

2020.

Sacramento Regional Transit. Regional Tronsit-Oriented Development Action Plon. June

2020.

Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant. 2020 Moster Plon. May 2008.

Sacramento Valley Fair Housing Collaborative. Analysis of lmpediments to Fair Housing

Choice. February 27, 2020.

APPENDIX C HOUSING ETEMENT BACKGROUND REPORT

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 Page 6-3Page 641

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LS()1l{
203 s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
This poge intentionally left blank.

Page 6-4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021Page 642

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



VnCaNT ANo U NDERUTILIZED

RTSIDENTIAL Lnru o I TvENTORY

Page 643

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



I'olsom lake

I

.a

PTACER
Residential Site lnventory

SF - Single Family

ru SFHD - Single Family High Density

I MLD - Multifamily Low Density

I MHD - Multifamily High Density

f CC - General Commercial

mffi CC - CommunityCommercial

I RCC - Regional Commmercial Center

- 

MU - Mixed Use

I HF - Historic Folsom Mixed Use

I IND - lndustrial,/Office Park

lf:wf, PO - Profussional/Office

I PQP - Public and Quasi-Public Facility

f.---l Planned/Approved Projects

(lJ East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

O sAcoc Transit PriorityAreas

fllj fotsom City Umits

n Light Rail Station

---- ughrRailLine

-. - CountyLine

sacneu€rut<i

I

EL DORADO HILLS

a

ff-
f t-^?-i*

1oooo9oa"t

RANCHO
CORDOVA

o 2.200 4.400 a\
---tFat 

!9,/ 190r0ru.0r Grs

Aftachment C.1: Va€nt and Underutilized Rsidential tand lnventory

FIGURE C.1-l: CIW-WIDE SITES INVENTORY MAP

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 c.1-1

Page 644

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.l: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnrentory

ptACtR
54CRAMTNTO

CANCHO
.ORDOVA

FIGURE C.l-2: ENVIRONMENTAL CONSTRAINTS

Residential Site lnventory

1 00 Year Flood Zone

500 Year Flood Zone

- 

Freshwater Emergent Wetland

r:'.:''^:::' Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

m Freshwater Pond

Fire Severity Hazard Zones

High

Moderate

I Slopegreaterthan30%

lJ-..j rotsom City Limits

-. - Countyline

o z.aoo 4.400 /n
---Feet 

(!,
1901 0t 77 0l

c.1-2 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 645

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Underutilized site. Total area ofAPN 071-0190{48 is 2.04 acres; lnventory only
includesvacant area behind Folsom Lake Bowl and the entire adjacent parcel
(APN 071-0320-026 - existinB parking lot); commercial @mponent would remain.
inventory assumes 25% build out during planning period.

Underutilized site. Strip Mall between Coloma St and RumseyWay. lnventory
assumes 25% build out durinS planning period.

Underutilized site. Strip Mall between RumseyWay and Market St. lnventory
assumes 25% build out during planning period.

Underutilized site. Snowline HospiceThrift Store. lnventory assumes 25% build
out during planning period.

Creekide (Cummings) Site. unit .ount baFd on proforma received from St.
Anton for potential atfordable housing projed.

50Gyrflood zone; AE flood zone

Lakeside Church - inventory only includes vacant poftions ofsites excluding areas
constrained by existint parking lot and overhead powerlines - would require lot
split and reconfiSuration. APN 072-1310{12 total size is 4.48 acres; APN 072-
131GO11 total size is 4.2 ac.es; APN 072-1310{10total size is4.79 acres

Folsom Lake College (151.14-acre parcel) - The inventory only includesthe 5.81
acres ofddelopable land within the EBMU overlay.

Total parcel si2e i5 37.18 acres; vacant site; assumed 10 acres ofresidential
dwelopment.

Kaiser Site {43.99-acre site) - 38.05 acres ofthe site are vacanU assumed 10 acres
of residential ddelopment. APN 072-119&128 total size is 23.73 acres; APN 072-
1190-129 total size is 7.9 acres; APN 072-119G130 tobl size is 12.36 acres.

Notes

Underutilized site. Existing Folsom Cordova Unified School Distrid (FCUSD) offices
on-site.

Abore
ModeratF

lncome
LJnlts

o

o

o

0

0

o

0

Modmte-
lncome
Unlts

0

o

o

0

0

0

0

215

199

r57

356

270

270

Lower
ln@me
Units

79

4

7

11

7

2

3

2

13

4

s

11

10

!24

150

150

66

120

36

43

71

10

t24

150

150

66

216

720

36

43

19!t

L57

356

270

270

Total
Number
ot Unhs

79

4

7

77

7

2

3

2

13

2

4

5

Eeected
Denslty

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

9

19

22

s0

42

289

84

63

85

232

73

:t05

134

40

47

221

774

395

300

300

Maxlmum
lJnhs

E8

16

32

48

31

8

!4
8

67

Maxlmum
Allowed

Residential
Denstty

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

30

1.99

o.29

0.53

o.74

7.66

r.47

9.6

2.79

2.7

2.42

7.77

2.43

10.14

4.46

1.34

1.58

7.38

5.81

13.19

10.00

10-m

Acreate

2.94

0.54

1_06

7.6

7.O2

0.25

0.45

o.27

zonlnt
D6lgnatlon

MU

c-2

c-2

c-2

c-2

BP (PD)

BP (PD)

BP {PD)

A-1-A

c-2

c-3 (PD)

CC - EBMU

PO. EEMU

PO - EEMU

PO. EBMU

PqP. EBMU

CC - EBMU

RCC - EMBU

Land U*
Designation

MU

CC. EBMU

CC. EBMU

CC - EEMU

Address

955 RileyStreet

S11 E- Bidwell Street

300 E. Bidwell Street

314 E- Bidwell Street

320 E- Bidwell street

330 E. Bidwell Street

4O2 E. gidwell Street

404 E. Bidwell Street

412 E. Bidwell Street

516 E. Bidwell Street

1571 Creekide Drive

1591 Creekide Drive

1575 Crekide Drive

790 Hana Way

701 Oak Avenue Parkway

741 Oak Avenue Parkway

731 OakAvenue Parkway

100 scholar way

1565 Cavitt orive

2376 lron Point Rd

285 Palladio Pkwy

Broadstone Pkwy

E 5rsDWEu@iflmRSTES

subtotol

071{082{16

071-OO82-015

077{n,42-0\7

071{082-012

Subtotol

071-0083412

071-0083-011

071{083{10

subtotdl

071-0360-013

slbbbl - Central CofrfieEial Dlstrict

071{040-161

071-0040-162

071-O04G153

Subtotdl

072-0031-024

Slbtotal - Crc€ksidr Distrl.t

072-13 10-012

portion of 072-
1310-011

portion of072-
1310-010

subtotdl

portion of072-
o270-o23

Subtotal - Colleae District

o7z-o270-L55

072-7t9c-L28

072-119G'129

072-119G130

subtotol

Asssor Parcel

Number (APN)

071-019G093*

071{190{48

o714320426

TABTE C.1-1: VACANT ANO UNDERUTILIZED RESIDENTIAL LAND INVENTORY, CITY OF FOTSOM

Attachment C.1: Va€nt and Underutilized Residentiel Land lnventory

Public Draft | Revised August 2021

10.oo 270 270

c.1-3

Page 646

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C-l: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnwntory

500-yearflood zone.

Less than 0.5 acres

Leidesdorff Site.

Less than 0.5 acres

Lessthan O.5 acres

Less than 0.5 acres;500-yearflood zone

Less than 0.5 acres

Less than 0.5 acres

Less than 0.5 acres

Less than 0.5 acres

wesland/carpenter

Hillsborough

Hillsborough

HillsborouSh (amended perToll B.othe6 SPA)

Hillsborough

HillsborouEh

Westland/carpenter

Westland EaSle (amended perToll Brcthers SPA)

Westland/Eagle (amended perToll Brothe6 SPA)

we*land/&Z Property

Notes

46

338

44

140

Above
Mod€rate-

lncome
unlts

o

0

3

1

1

1

L

1

1

I

10

7

79

20

s4

83

Moderate-
lncome
unlts

0

0

1

2

10

4

2

6

6

s

8

44r45

Lower
lncom€
Unlts

g0

1236

74

L7

19

3S

71

4

2

5

1

1

1

r
1

1

6

5

8

199

1

79

20

s4

83

46

338

44

140

13

Total
Number
of Units

540

1236

?4

3

77

19

35

1

2

10

1

Expested
Density

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

27

6

27

10

10

6

5

6

5

6

10

27

27

27

1

5

2

8

1

1

I
1

1

1

7

5

9

223

Maxlmum
Units

600

1589

E2

4

19

2L

39

79

1

2

11

Maxlmum
Allored

Residential
Denslty

30

30

30

30

30

7

30

12

72

7

7

7

7

7

t2

30

30

30

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

0.07

0.38

0.03

0.16

0.16

0.65

0.16

0.17

o-04

0-04

0-16

0-11

o.24

0.18

0.30

8.38

0.50

27.74

5.82

27.62

23.10

72.77

106.95

72.79

37.93

4.32

Acrcage

20.00

52.!t4

2.73

0.12

0.65

0.70

1.29

2.64

0.03

5P.5F

SP-SF

SP.SF

zonlnt
Deslgnation

sP 93-2 (R-4)

R-1.M

HD

HD

HD

R-4

osc

osc

R-1-M

HD

R-2

R-2

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R.M

R-3

R-3

R.M

SP-SF

SP-SF

SP.SF

SP-SF

SP.SF

5P.SF

SP.5F

MLD

MLD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

MLD

MHD

MHD

MHD

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

Land Use

Designation

MHD

HF

HF

HF

HF

HF

HF

HF

SFHD

HF

Addre$

1025 Glenn Drive

SO2 teidesdorff St

1118 Sufter St

1108 Suter St

l"eidesdorff st

River Way

River 5t

Riley St

2()4 Bridge 5t

510 Sufter St

715 Fitueroa St

FiSueroa St

512 Persifer St

Scoft Rd

Decatur St

813 PeBifer St

709 Persifer St

1338 Young Wo Cir

805 Bidwell St

808 Comstock 0r

807 Bidwell St

sF3

sF9

SF 198

sF 20

sF 26

sF 27

sF 58

sF 70

sF 162

sF 2S4

071-0020{78.

070-0020-oo4

070{042{o2*

070{046-024r

070{046-026'

Subtotol

070-004s-023

070-0045-029

070{051{32

o7MO52S7

070-0062-015

070-0106-002*

070{106-010

070-0164-012

o70-01€4417

0704202417

070-0202474

070-0203-015

070-0250{52

071-0190{03

071-0190-009

07 1-0190-092

Total Transit Priodty AE. Shes

FOI9OM PI,AJ{ AREA SPEORC PIA'I ST|ES

07202311400000

07200600900000

07200500980000

07200600980000

07200600930000

07200600930000

07231900370000

07231900330000

07200600770000;
07200601020000;
0723 19003110000

07200600070000

Asse$or Parcel
Number (APNI

Subffi.l - Brddsone Disrid

Total Eart Bidw.ll Coridor Sites

TABLE c.1-1: vAcANT AND UNDERUTILIZED RESIDENTIAL LAND INVENTORY, clTY OF FOTSOM

c.I-4 Public Draft I Revised August 2021

Page 647

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Wesland/Eagle

Toll Brothers - Phase 2 Active Adult SF home5

Hill5borough

we$land/Eagle

Westland/Ea8le (amended perToll Brothers SPA)

westland/Eagle

Mangini Ranch Phase I

Mangini Ranch Phase I

Westland/Eagle (amended per Toll Brothers sPA)

Westland/Eagle

We$land/Eagle

we$land/Ea8le

Westland/Eagle

Arcadian Heights

Folsoft Heigha

Folsom Heithts

we*land/&z Property

Toll Brothers - Phase 2 Townhomes

Hillsborough

westland/Eagle (amended per Toll Brothe.s SPA)

Notes

Wenland/J&Z Property

Hillsborouth

HillsborouSh

Hillsborough

Hillsborough

Hillsborough

westland/Eagle

westland/Eagle

Westland/Eatle {amended perToll 8.othe6 sPA)

westland/Eagle

Above
Moderate-

ln@me
t nlts

90

59

723

141

194

62

56

40

9S

345

15

141

153

70

114

119

104

156

720

57

97

54

233

63

69

s4

119

75

155

t76

109

Moderate-
lncome
unlts

o,657o

Low€r
lncome
t nlts

4330o

1,3570o

L20

s7

97

54

233

63

59

54

119

75

1657

155

776

Total
Numb€r
of Unlts

15

8:t3

747

90

59

r23

141

794

62

56

4
95

346

1 357

153

70

tL4

119

104

txpected
Density

Maxlmum
Unhs

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

a2

72

72

L2

12

12

12

72

72

72

72

12

t2

12

12

72

20

20

20

Maximum
Allowed

Residential
Denslty

4

7

7

7

7

7-U

11.55

13.22

13-39

17.04

1232

5.33

10.75

5.00

24.65

7.27

8-41

6.s0

13.O3

8.20

8.s6

9.72

5.16

Acreage

4.94

24.6r

15.68

10.28

21.40

24.46

35.41

71.44

11.55

6.99

17.42

55.70

16.25

SP.SFHO

SP.SFHD

SP-SFHD

SP-SFHD

SP.SFHD

SP-5FHD

SP-5FHD

SP-SFHD

SP-SFHD

SP-SFHD

5P-MLD

SP-MLD

SP-MLD

SP-MLD

SP-MLD

SP-MTD

SP-MtD

SP-MLD

5P-MLD

SP-MLD

SP.MLD

SP-MLD

SP.MLD

SP-MLD

SP.MLD

SP-MLD

SP-MMD

SP-MMD

SP-MMD

zonlng
Designation

SP-SF

SP-SFHD

MLD

MLD

MLD

MI.D

MTD

MLD

MLD

MLD

MLD

MMD

MMD

MMD

Land Use

Dsignation

SF

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHO

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

MLD

MLD

MI.D

MLD

MLD

MLD

MLD

SFHD 161

SFHD 1654.2

SFHD 1658

SFHD 172A

MLD 24

MLD 63

Mt-D 73

Mt-D 76

MLD 132

MLD 147

MLD 155

MLD 155

MLD 15OB

MLD 166

MtD 173

MtD 211

MLD 234

MrD 235

MLD 256

MLD 172

MMD 11

MMD 68

MMD 1,14

Addres

sF 255

SFHD 12

SFHD 178

SFHD 19A

SFHD 23

sFHD 25

SFHD 71

SFBD 159

07200601000000

07200501000m0

07200600990000;
07200501030000

29.91Subtotol . SFHD

07200600930000;
07200600980000

07231900310000

07231900310000

07231900340@0

07233900030000;
072339001itOOoO

07233800270000

07233700360000

07231900340000

07231900340000

07200501000000

07200600980000;
07200601020000

07200700390000

072346001m(m

07234600140000

07200600070000

07200601030000

Subtetrl - Ma 182.75

072006009 10000

07231900310000

072337001,!0000

As$ssor Parcel
Number (APNI

07200500070000

Slbtotol - SF 252.13

07200600900000;
07200600910000

07200500910000;
07200500980000

07200600980000

07200600930000;
07200500980d)0

07200500930000

07231900330000

07200500770000

07200500770000

TABTE C.1-1: VACANT AND UNDERUTI|IZED RESIDENTIAL LAND INVENTORY, CITY OF FOI,SOM

Attachment C.1: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnventory

Public Draft | Revised August 2021

109 Mangini Ranch Phase I

c.1-5

Page 648

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C-l: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnwntory

Westland Eagle; Per M AM ap$ored3177l2O20 - 7.5ac and 156 dwelling units of
MHD HousinS;9.9ac and 198 units of MMD housing 25.0ac and 198 units of MLD

Wesland Eagle; Per M AM apprcved3177l2O20 - 8.2ac and 221 dwelling units of
MHD housing;6.1ac and 122 units of MMD housing

Westland Eagle

We*land Eagle

Notes

Hillsborough

Westland Eagle

We$land Eagle

Westland Eagle

Westland Eagle

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Above
Moderatts

lncome
Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

7

396

122

2

2

3

ModeEte-
lncome
Units

o013t

Lower
ln6me
Untu

04,'/to

246

192

108

r4s

14S

0o8!t6

156

227

osta37?

57

2,79O2,6157,344

&r5

57

137

o149

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

3

1

1

I

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Total
Number
of Unlts

tuo

246

792

108

145

14S

836

552

343

74

3

6

6

6

6

6

10

10

10

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Exp€cted
Density

1

1

2

2

2

3

3

3

4

6

1

1

2

2

7

3

1

1

Maxlmum
Units

4

4

30

30

30

30

7

7

7

7

7

12

72

72

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Maxlmum
Albred

Residentlal
Denstty

30

10.00

11.48

0.20

0.16

o.27

o.27

o.27

0.21

0.21

0.27

0.98

1.51

o.29

0-32

0-52

0.ra

!.42

o.79

0.19

0.25

Acreage

9.E0

7.70

4.31

5.79

6.62

42.40

14.30

R-4

R.l.L

R-1-L

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1.M1

R.1-M

R-1-M

zoning
Designation

SP-MHD

5P-MHD

SP-MHD

SP-MHD

SP.MHD

SP.RC

SP-GC

SP-MU

SP-MU

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.4

R-4

MU

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

SFHD

MLD

MLD

MtD

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

Land Use

D€signation

MHD

MHD

MHD

MHD

MHD

RC

GC

MU

MHD 15OA

RCC 61

GC 85A

MU 74

MU 158

Leidesdorff St

Leidesdorff St

289 Leidesdorff St

293 Leidesdorff St

297 Leidesdo.ff 5t

Sutter St

Sune. St

Mormon 5t

Mountain View Dr

121 Rugosa Dr

130Abrozo Ct

456Trowbridge Ln

477 Trowbridge Ln

48 Hawk Ct

44STrowbridge Ln

112 Cobb Ct

103 Mc Derby Ct

Addr6s

MHD 16

MHD 60

MHD g

MHD 157

u.22subtptal- MHD

Portion of072-
3190430

0723 19004900O0j
0723 1900500000

Subtpl'l - Rcood 6C s6.m

portion of072-
3190{34

ponioh of072-
3190-034

Subtotql - MU 27,4

Tobl FPASP Sit€r 80s.96

ADOI'IOI{AI. HOUSING SITES

07000200130000

070007002600(x)

07000700300000

07000700310000

07000700320000

0700 1200070000

070012000E0000

07001730020000

07 10(xo1000000r

0710(X01550m0r

0710236030m

07105m300r)00

07 109000310000

07 109000450000

07109100250000

071091002E0000

07110100700000

07110900360000

Asssor Parel
Number (APN)

Subtotol- MMD 234
07200600900000;
07200600910000

portion of072-
3190-031

poftion ofO72-
3190-031

Portion of 072-
3190-034

Portion of072-
3190{34

c.1-5 Public Draft I Revised August 2021

Page 649

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Notes

Above
Modente-

ln@me
Unlts

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I

r
1

1

1

1

1

I

1

L

1

1

1

Moderate-
lncone
Units

Lower
lnome
Unhs

1

Total
Number
ot Units

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Expected
Density

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

2

1

2

1

1

2

1

2

2

1

1

1

2

Milimum
Unfts

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

1

2

1

7

1

1

1

2

2

3

1

2

4

5

4

3

2

1

1

Maxlmum
Allowed

Rsidential
Denslty

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

1.00

0.77

0.39

0.41

0.3s

0.59

0.34

0.30

0.37

0.49

0.33

0.30

0.49

o.47

0.23

o.26

0.23

0.38

Acreage

0-3s

0.2s

o_59

0-53

0.47

0.46

0.41

0.32

o.44

0.35

0.30

0.27

0.35

0.30

0.49

0.60

0.84

0.14

0.51

1.01

1.33

Zoning
Designation

R.1-M

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R.1.1

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1-L

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-L

R-1.M1

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-L

R-1-L

R.1.1

R.1-M

R-l.M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-l-M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1.M1

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

land Use

Designation

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

760 Lorena Ln

772 Lorena Ln

780 Lorena Ln

33 Hawk Ct

37 Hawk Ct

49 Hawk Ct

E Eidwell St

455 Rockport Cir

456 Rockport Cir

464 Rockport Cir

462 Rockport Cit

458 Rockport cir

110 Elack Powder Cir

104 Black Powder Cir

102 Black Gold Ln

Lone Spur Dr

522 Listowe Dr

510|-i$owe 0r

506 Li$owe Dr

498 Lr'stowe Dr

502 Listowe Dr

711 Westchester Ct

729 Heritage Pl

1840 Woodtlen Dr

680 Misty Ridge Cir

735 Misty Ridee Cir

719 Misty Rid8e Cir

559 Misty Ridge Cir

Addres

103 Meu Ct

1505 Gionata Way

814 C.istina Ct

805 Cristina Ct

795 Cristina Ct

787 Cristina Ct

766 Cristina Ct

1514 Gionata Way

777 Cristina Ct

1510 Gionata Way

779 Lorena Ln

07 117700170000

07118300030000

07118300040000

07118300070000

07200320020000

07208200090000

07208300080000

07208300260000

07208300270000

07208300290000

07209m02m000

07209800240000

07209900420@0

0721 1700390frX)

07220500080000

072205001100q)

07220500120m0

07220500/MO000

072205ru50m

o'122L4o0250trl0

0722 1400290000

07221500010000

07221500110000

0722 1500220000

0722 1500250000

07221S00380m

Asss$r Parcel
Number (APl{]

07 11!1O0130000

07 117600020000

07 1176000E0000

07 117600 110000

07117600130m0

07117500150@0

07 1176002 10m0

07117600240000

071 17600280000

07117700010000

07117700030000

07117700120000

07117700150000

Attachment C,1: Vaent and Underutiliz€d Rsidential Land lnyentory

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.7-7

Page 650

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C-l: Vacant and Underutilized R$idential Land lnwntory

Not6

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

Above
Modente-

lnome
Unlts

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Moderate-
lncome
Unlts

Lower
lncome
Unhs

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Total
1{umb€t
ot Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

EIpected
Density

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

2

1

1

2

3

1

2

2

3

3

2

2

3

2

2

1

1

2

2

2

2

1

7

2

2

1

2

1

2

1

2

2

1

Maxlmum
Unhs

2

1

1

2

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Ma:dmum
Allowed

R6idential
DensW

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

0.33

0,51

0.45

0.32

0.31

0.56

0.68

o.29

0.43

0.57

0.65

0.65

0.39

0.44

0.71

0.48

o.44

o.22

o.22

o.22

0.45

0.45

0.37

0.39

o.42

o.29

o.29

0.39

0.40

0.34

0.40

0_33

o.55

0.32

0.59

0.45

Acreage

o.44

o.24

o.27

R.1-M

R.1-M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R.1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

zonlng
Deslgnation

R.1-M

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

Land Us
Designation

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

595 Glen MadyWay

703 Glen Mady way

717 Glen Madyway

721 Glen MadyWay

729 Glen MadyWay

1715 Lake Vis Way

1597 Schillers Ct

1688 Schillers Ct

1723 Lake Vista Way

565 BonleyCt

1794 Woodden Dr

1763 Barrhead Ct

651Glen Mady Way

663 Glen Mady Way

1769 Lake Vista Way

Address

632 Glen Oak Ct

823 EaSle Ridge Cir

811 Eagle Ridge Cir

791 Heritage Pl

868 Eagle Ridge Cir

8il EaBIe Ridge Cir

787 Heritage Pl

783 Heritage Pl

753 Herita8e Pl

749 Heritage Pl

7g Heritage Pl

772 Heribte Pl

778 Heritage Pl

730 Grandview Dr

750 Grandview Dr

760 Grandview Dr

764 Grandvis Dr

780 Grandview Dr

313 carpenter Hill

309 Carpenter Hill

305 Carpenter Hill

758 Glen Mady Way

714 Glen Mady Way

700 Glen Mady Way

072228002E0000

07222E00310000

07222800320000

07222800330000

07222800420000

07222900100000

07222900150000

072229mf000o

0722Z9002AO@O

07223000110000

07223000230000

07223000280000

07223000310000

072230003300@

07221600080000

07221700100d1o

07221700130m0

07221700180000

07221700230000

072217cfJ240co0

0722 1800010000

07221800020m0

07221E00060000

07221800090000

0722 18001s0000

0722 1800170CnO

07221800180000

07221900080000

07221900120000

07221900130000

0722 19001/10000

072219001E0@0

07222400180000

07222400190000

o742240020fl0nn

07222800010000

07222800150000

07222800190000

072228/J0270ffiO

Asssr Parcel
Number (APNI

c.1-8 Public Draft | Rwised August 2021

Page 651

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Notes

Abore
Moderate

Income
unlts

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Mod€rate-
lncome
Unlts

Lower
lncom€
Unlts

Total
Number
of Unlts

1

1

1

7

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

r

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Erpected
Density

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Marimun
Units

1

7

2

2

2

2

7

2

2

2

2

1

2

3

2

3

3

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

1

1

1

2

3

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

1

1

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Maxlmum
Allowed

Residenthl
Denslty

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Acreage

0.30

0.30

0.51

0.39

o.52

0-s2

o.52

0.49

o.39

0.43

0.38

0.35

0.45

0.49

0.65

0.46

0.80

o.77

0.58

0.51

0-45

0.45

0.40

0-40

o.42

o.29

0.29

o.29

o.42

0.63

o.47

0.44

o.47

0.46

o.44

o.u
o.42

0.28

0.28

zoning
Designation

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R.1.M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

Land Use

Designation

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

452 Tobrurry Way

451TobrurryWay

437 Tobrurry Way

425 TobrurryWay

421 Tobrurry way

480 S€rpa Way

488 S€rpa way

494 Serpa Way

4E7 Serpa Way

4E3 Serpa Way

467 Serpa Way

410 Tobrurry Way

394Tobrurry Way

393Tobrurry way

397 TobrurryWay

401TobrurryWay

4O5 Tobrurry Way

4O9TobrurryWay

417Tobrurry Way

426 Serpa Way

433 Serpa Way

459 Serpa Way

Addres

1761 Lake Vi* Way

1757 Lake Vis Way

544 Serpa Way

536 S€rpa Way

539 Serpa way

543 Serpa Way

547 Serpa Way

461TobrurryWay

460 Tobrurry Way

522 Serpa way

510 Serpa Way

1E07 Ruan Ct

1803 Ruan Ct

414Tobrurry Way

428 Tobrurry way

434 Tobrurry Way

448 Tobrurry Way

07227Am1AOono

072274oO220@0

072274o/J240@O

07227400250@iJ

072274,ozAO@O

07227500010m0

07227500030000

07227500060m0

07227500070000

07227500080(m

07227500100000

07227500120000

07227500180000

07227500210m0

07227s00260(n0

Assessor Parcel
Number (APNI

07223000350000

07223000350000

07223100100000

072231m1200m

072231001r$00O

07223100150000

07223100160000

07223100290000

07223100300000

07223200030000

07223200060000

07223200090000

07223200200000

07227400010000

07227400030000

07227400U0000

07227400070000

07227A0008,OOOO

07227400110m0

072274o074oc0o

07227400770000

o722740o20oO0{J

o7227400270c/]D

07227S000!t0000

Attachment C.1: Va6nt and Underutilized Residential Land lnrentory

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.1-9

Page 652

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C-l: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnwntory

Not6

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Abow
Moderate.

lncome
Units

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I

1

1

1

1

Mod€rate-
lncome
Unlts

Lower
lncome
Unlts

Total
Number
of Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Erpected
Denslty

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

Maxlmum
Units

2

2

3

2

7

2

1

1

1

2

3

2

2

1

2

1

2

2

2

2

1

2

1

1

2

1

z

2

1

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Millmum
Albred

Rsidential
Denslty

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

A$eate

0.38

o.57

0.66

0.s6

0.49

o.42

0.33

o.27

0.29

o.44

0.63

o.62

0.59

0.34

0.39

0.27

o.44

0.43

0.41

0.41

0.33

0.41

o.23

o.37

0.38

0-35

0.39

0.38

0.34

o.27

0.34

0.49

0.40

0.34

o-31

o.28

o-27

0.28

0.21

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

Zonlnt
Iteslgnation

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R.l.M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

land Use

Designatlon

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

576 Rusell Dr

650 Sundahl Dr

SS4Sundahl Dr

658 Sundahl Dr

662 Sundahl 0r

666 sundahl Dr

570 Sundahl Dr

709 Sundahl Dr

597 Sundahl Dr

Addres

3S8Tobrurry Way

365Tobrurry Way

369Tobrurry Way

377 Tobrurry Way

385 Tobrurryway

410Serpa Way

381 Serpa Way

399 Serpa Way

415 S€rpa Way

1811 EskerCt

332Tob.urry Way

328 Tobrurry Way

320Tobrurry Way

312 Tobrurry way

264TobrurryWay

1806 Esker Ct

323 TobrurryWay

327 Tobrurry Way

537 Ramos Dr

2000 Swingle Rd

2012 Swingle Rd

538 Ramos Dr

632 Russell Dr

550 Ramos Dr

590 Sundahl Dr

66E Russell Dr

613 Sundahl Dr

609 sundahl Dr

687 Russell Dr

579 Ru$ell Dr

Asgessr Parcel
Number (APt{l

07227500030000

o7227moosom

07227500060000

07227600080000

07227600100000

07227600120000

072276o0770c0o

07227600200mil

o72276o02400nn

07227600270@/]

072277000200nn

072277000300@

072277 00050000

07227700070c0o

0722770or9c{n]o

0722770034oc0'O

072277003500q)

07227700360mo

07230300010000

07230300070000

07230300100000

072303002s00qt

07230300370000

07230300400@0

07230400160000

07230400290000

07232000070(F0

07232000080000

07232000180@0

07232m2mm

07232000250000

07232700120000

07232700130000

07232700r4offiO

07232700150000

07232700160000

o723270o770cn)0

o7232700260m0

o72327m290m

c.1-10 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 653

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Notes

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

7

I

1

Abm
ModeFte

ln@m
Units

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Moderate-
Income
unlts

Lower
lncome
Unhs

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Total
Number
ot Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

ExpecH
Denslty

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

1

1

1

1

0

2

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

l

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

Maximum
units

1

1

1

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

MaIimum
Allowed

Resldential
Denslly

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

0.35

0-31

0-30

0.28

o.24

o.2r

0.05

0.52

o.26

0.30

0.39

0.40

0.06

0.21

0.27

o.23

o.22

0.21

0.19

o.23

o.22

0.18

0.19

0.19

0.21

0.20

0.34

0.28

0.32

0.25

o.24

o.24

o.27

o.23

o.26

0.36

0.45

Acreate

o.29

o.30

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.l.M

R.1.M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R.1-M

zonlng
Iteslmatlon

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R.1-M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

tand U$
Desl8natlon

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

2010 Ritchie St

2006 Ritchie St

2002 Ritchie St

1998 Ritchi€ St

1994 Ritchie St

1990 Ritchie St

1986 Ritchie St

75O Sundahl Dr

7S8 Sundahl Dr

1989 Ritchie St

T0TTownsend Ct

T03Townsend Ct

699Townsend ct

Addres

698 Sundahl Dr

702 Sundahl Dr

706 Sundahl Dr

71O Sundahl Dr

714 Sundahl Dr

709 Oreno Cir

555 Oreno Ct

697 Oreno Cir

773 Oreno Cir

745 Oreho Cir

725 Oreno Cir

750 Oreno Cir

758 Oreno ci.

774 Oreno Cir

757 Sundahl Dr

718 Sundahl Dr

2050 Ritchie St

2045 Ritchie 5t

2042 Ritchie 5t

2038 Ritchie St

2034 Ritchie St

2030 Ritchie St

2025 Ritchie St

2022 Ritchie St

2018 Ritchie 5t

2014 Ritchie 5t

07233200300000

07233200310000

07233200320000

072332m330m

07233200340(m

07233200350000

07233200370000

07233200390000

0723320(X30000

0723320(X40U)O

07233200450@0

07232700300(m

072327003 10000

o723270fl320ffiO

07232700330000

072327003/+0000

072328o00/O0o0

07232800$0m0

072328003000@

072328003100@

07232t00360000

07232800380{m0

07232800450000

07232E00470mO

07232800s40000

07233200010000

07233200110m0

07233200180000

07233200190000

07233200200@0

07233200210m0

07233200220000

07233200230000

07233200240(m

07233200250000

07233200260000

07233200270000

07233200280000

07233200290@0

Asssr Parcel
Nunber (APt{)

TABLE c.1-1: VACANT AND UNoERUTILIZED RESIOENTIAL LAND INVENTORY, clTY OF FOTSOM

Attachment C.1: Vacant and Underutilized Residential Land lnEntory

Public Draft I Revised August 2021 c.1-11

Page 654

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C-1; Vasnt and Und€rutilized Residential Land Inwntory

Notes

1

Abore
Moderate

lncome
Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

7

1

7

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I

1

1

1

7

a

1

Mod€6te-
lncome
Units

[orer
lncome
Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

t

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

Total
Number
of untrs

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Expected
D€nsW

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

1

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

Maxlmum
Untu

2

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

Maximum
Allowed

R$idential
Denslty

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

0.32

0.34

0.26

0.2s

0.24

0.36

o.37

0.41

o.44

0.50

0.51

0.59

0.5E

0.55

0.61

0.66

0.80

o.17

0.35

0.41

0.45

0.51

0.54

0.53

o.47

0.44

0.51

0.51

Acrcage

0.43

0.41

0.39

0.37

0.3s

0.35

0.31

0.29

0.25

0.30

0.39

R-1-M

zonlng
DesiSnation

R-1.M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1.M

R-1-M

R.1-M

R.1.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-M

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

land Use

D6itnation

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

Addreii

704 Tilnsend Ct

708 Townsend Ct

712 Townsend Ct

T16Townsend Ct

720 Tdnsend Ct

T24Townsend Ct

T28Townsend Ct

734 Sundahl Dr

1981 Ritchie St

719 Townsend Ct

715 Townsend Ct

711 Townsend Ct

722 Sundahl Dr

726 Sundahl Dr

730 Sundahl Dr

S9STownsend Ct

691Town9end Ct

687 Townsend Ct

683 Townsend Ct

679 Townsend Ct

675 Townsend Ct

671 Townsend Ct

567 Townsend Ct

663Townsend Ct

659Townsend ct

655Townsend Ct

SSlTownsend Ct

640Townsend Ct

6,4,4 Townsend Ct

64ETownsend Ct

652Townsend Ct

655Townsend Ct

660Townsend Ct

6g Townsend Ct

668 Townsend Ct

672 Townsend Ct

676 Townsend Ct

580 Townsend Ct

70O Twnsend Ct

07233200490000

07233200500m0

072332005100CX)

07233200520m0

07233200530d)O

07233200s50000

07233200570@0

07233200540000

07233200590000

07233200600000

07233200610000

07233200620(m

072332m530(m

07233300020000

07233300030000

07233300MO000

07233300050000

07233300060000

07233300070000

07233300080m0

07233300@0000

07233300100000

072333001 10000

07233300120000

o72333m130m

07233300140000

07233300150000

07233300160000

07233300170000

07233300180000

07233300190000

07233300200000

072333002 10000

07233300220000

07233300230000

072333m2mm

Asssr Parcel
Number (APill

07233200460000

07233200470{nO

0723320(Xa0qto

TABrE C.l-1: VACANT ANO UNDERUTILIZED RESIOENTIAI IAND INVENTORY, CITY OF FOLSOM

c.L-L2 Public Draft I Revised August 2021

Page 655

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



0 units included dueto severe slope and access constraints

Choi Property on Folsom Auburn -Water infrastructure is not curently available;
however, the City has planned infrastructuae improvements to con*rud a water
supply main in 2021.

Notes

1

1

31

r
1

1

1

1

a

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Above
ModeratF

lncome
Unlts

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

Mod€Ete-
lncome
Units

Lower
ln@me
Units

51

1

1

1

1

1

1

f

1

1

!
1

1

31

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Total
Itumber
of Units

1

1

r
1

0

51

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

EAected
Density

3

3

3

3

0

27

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

4

2

I

2

9

2

3

2

2

2

2

1

1

1

39

1

2

1

2

2

4

8

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

Maxlmum
Untts

2

2

2

2

16

57

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Mailmum
Allowed

Resldential
Denstty

4

4

4

4

4

30

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

0.99

o.62

0.31

0.51

2.16

o.47

0.55

0.52

0./r8

0.s9

0.39

o.24

0.28

0.30

9.&

0.34

0.51

0.30

o.47

0.47

0-89

2.01

0.61

0.33

0.30

0.21

0.35

o.2a

0.34

0.26

o.a5

o.26

Acrcage

0-52

0.54

0.52

0_so

3.97

1.89

R-1.M

R.1.M

R.1.M

R-l-M PD

o5c

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-L

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

osc

R-1.M1

osc

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

ZonlnB
Designation

R-1-M

R-l.M

R-1-M

R-1-M

R-1-L

R-4

R-1.M1

R-1-Mt

R-1-L

R.1.ML

R-1-L

R-1-L

R-1-L

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R.l-ML

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

5F

5F

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

land Use

Deslgnation

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

MHD

SF

SF

5F

108 Rainbow Lakes Ct

142 American River Canyon Dr

109 BucknerCt

148 Lost Creek Dr

237 Cascade Falls Dr

209 American River Canyon Dr

340 Canyon Falls Dr

324 Canyon Falls Dr

119 Flat Rock Dr

109 Flat Rock Dr

Addre$

5g Townsend Ct

588 Tilnsend Ct

692 Towns€nd Ct

696Townsend Ct

9549 O.angflale Ave

7071 Folsom Auburn Rd

5775 Folsom Aubum Rd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

Bu.ma Rd

7057 PineView Dr

Folsom-Auburn Rd

Folsom-Auburn Rd

185 Sunrock Dr

6969 Oak Ave

206 Gainsborough Cir

Simmons Way

OakAv Pkwy

Del Norte Vista Way

Del Norte vst Ct

Del Nortevista wav

Prcspector Ct

9520 Oran8wale Ave

River Bend Ct

1121 River Send Ct

9515 Orangsale Ave

9&l8 Mosswood Cir

lnwood Rd

Baldwin Dam Rd

227041003E00@

22704.2000700n{l

227M7mO100m.

22704700220000

07233300270000

072333m2a0m

2 1300600210000.

21300710060000*

2 1302810120tn0r

21302810170m0

21302820480000

21304010020000

213058003110000r

213058003s0000

21306100060000

2 1305500320mO

21308300130@O

213098001900m

21309800230000

2131m00020000

21310000(N0q)0

21310000120000

22300500640m01

22301220530000

22305(E01900@

22305000560000

22305500560000

227020rOO2000o

22702210290000'

2270230f)370000.

22703000060000

22703100030000

22703 100390000

22703300680000

22703700020000

227037003800@

As*sor Par@l

Number (APill

072333m2Sm

07233300250000

TABLE C.1-1: VACANT AND UNDERUTII"IZED RESIDENTIAt LAND INVENTORY, CITY OF FOLSOM

Attachment C.1: Va6nt and Underutiliad Residential Land lnrento.y

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.1-13

Page 656

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment c-l: vacant and Underutilized Residential land lnwntory

Sout@: Ascent, 2020; Aty of Folen, 2020

Elliot - lron Point Site. Steeply Sloped, Largesite - lnventory assumes

d*lopment at 60 percent of maximum allowed density(207 !nits) consistent
with the sth planning cycle.

Total site size is 19.25 acres, ofwhich 11.5 acres are developable. Proposed

specific plan amendmentto expand the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) land
use designation to allow tor multifamily residential as a permifted use, in

conjundion with housing element adoption. Based on propertyowner input, we
assume that 70 percent ofthe developable portion o.8 acr€s ofthe site would be

developed as multifamily residential.

City owned on Riley

Notes

1

1

337

4537

AboYe
Moderate

lncome
Units

1

I

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

4666

Moderate-
lncome
Units

7

207

277

15

491

?2L6

Lower
lncome
Unlts

1

1

1

1

1

1

r
1

1

1

1

1

1

207

277

15

835

&419

Total
Number
of Units

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

27

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

18

27

Eeected
Density

2

3

2

2

2

2

2

3

2

2

3

3

345

345

!7

1,36r

Maxlmum
Units

1

2

1

3

1

2

1

1

1

1

30

Maxlmum
Albred

Rsidential
Denslty

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

30

30

0-36

o.33

0.31

0.41

0.69

0.40

0.43

0.55

0.40

o.44

0.83

0.s7

0.40

0.81

0.66

11.52

11.50

0.58

172.r5

1,039.42

ACreage

0.27

o-53

0.35

0.63

0.32

0.43

0.25

R-3

zonint
Designation

R.l-ML

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1-ML

A-1-A

R-1-ML

R-1.M1

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R-1-ML

R.1.ML

R-1-ML

R-4

sP 92-3

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

MHD

RCC

MHD

land Use

DesBnation

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

Address

122 Flat Rock Dr

126 Flat Rock Dr

107 Valley Falls Pl

116 Obsidian Cliff Ct

145 Kettle Rock Ct

140 Flat Rock Ct

149 Flat Rock Ct

154 Flat Rock Ct

16,4 Temperence River Ct

160Temperence RiverCt

153 Red Ridge Ct

517 Fort Rock Ct

624 Landrise Ct

521 Landrise Ct

617 Landrise Ct

614 Broken Top Ct

90 Gscade Falls Or

667 Avalanche Peak

683 Avalanche Peak

1518 Snowy RanSe Ct

98 Cascade Fal15 Dr

94 Cascade Falls Dr

28@ lron Point Rd

lron Point Road / Empire Ranch

Road

Coloma 5t

227051+00210m0

22705600020000

227056000s0d)o

22705500220000

2270S600280000

22705700020tno

2270570003omo

22705700180000

2270s900110000

22706000060000

22706000110m0

22706000120m0

22706000200000

22706100030000

227051000E00@

22706100120@O

22706100!10000

22706100250000

22706100260000

0720270724ono

072-1770-713

07101900750fl)0

Grand Tffil Va@nt and Underutillad Sttr Capa.lty

As*ssr Parel
ilumber {APill

22704700290c00

227M7m300m

22705100080000

TABLE C,l-1: VACANT AND UNDERUTItIZED RESIDENTIAL LAND INVENTORY, CITY OF FOLSOM

c.1-14 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 657

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



ArrncHMENr C 2O

HIcH DTNSITY RTSIDENTIAL

SIrr CnpnCITY PnOFILES

Page 658

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

Overview
This appendix includes site profiles for each vacant or underutilized site identified in the inventory that is designated for

multifamily high density development or mixed use development allowing residential densities up to 30 units per acre.

A profile is provided for each site indicating the assessor parcel number (APN), address, general plan land use designation,

zoning, allowed density, floor-area-ratio (FAR), size, applicable height limit, and existing use. The profile indicates whether

the site was identified in previous housing elements. ln addition, the profile provides an evaluation of vacant sites based on

the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) funding criteria. A TCAC evaluation was not completed for underutilized

sites or for sites located within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan as the plan area is largely undeveloped at this time. Services,

including parks and schools, are planned for the plan area. The profile also includes a site description, access to utilities or

infrastructure, environmental constraints, and an analysis of realistic unit capacity.

Please note

Vacant sites identified in the 4th and 5th housing element cycles or non-vacant sites identified in the 5th housing element

cycle will allow housing developments including 20 percent or more affordable housing units by-right. The table identifies

these sites with a / (check mark) indicating they were previously identified e1 p x (cross mark) indicating they were not

previously identified.

TCAC evaluation estimate points earned by each site are based on walking distance toward 9 categories of amenity, r' (green

check mark) indicates full credit is given, / (orange check mark) indicates partial credit is given, tn6 r (red cross mark)

indicates no credit is given.

Access to Utilities is proximate availability of water, sewer, storm drain, and dry utilities at each site. (E) indicates there's

existing utility access, (P) indicates there's planned utility development in the 8-year period, and (N) indicates no utility access.

The timeframe for completion of planned utility development is shown in years from the start of the planning period lz0zLl.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-L

Page 659

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

EAST BIDWELL CORRIDOR SITES

Folsom Cordova Unified School District Site

APN(s) 07'l-019-0093 Address: 955 Riley Street

General Plan: Mixed Use / East Bidwell Mixed Use

Overlay

Zoning MU

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5 -'l.s

Site Size: 2.94 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 88 units lnventoried Capacity: 79 units

Existing Use: Underutilized - Folsom Lake High

School

lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

Projects containing a minimum
of 20o/o affordable housing will

be allowed by right. See Housing

Element Policy H-3.7.

TCAC Evaluation: / Grocery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
.z' Medical Clinic/Hospital
/ Pharmacy

/ Transit
/ Public Park
/ Public Library

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The site is owned by Folsom Cordova Unified School District and is located on Riley Street

near existing shopping and employment centers. A SacRT bus stop is located directly in front

of the site on Riley Street and Sutter Middle School is located approximately 500 feet north

of the site. The southeastern portion of the site is currently developed as Folsom Lake High

Schooland the northwestern portion of the site is developed as a parking lot. The school

district has expressed an intent to sell their property and would provide first right of refusal

to affordable housing developers in accordance with Government Code Section 54222.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site has been previously developed, has flat topography, little to moderate fire risk, does

not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

c.2-2 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 660

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

300 E. Bidwell SU 314 E. Bidwell St 320 E. Bidwell St 330 E. Bidwell St

APN(s): 071-0082-017; 071 -0082-016;

071 -0082 -01 5 ; 071-0082-012

Address: 300 E. Bidwell St; 3'14 E. Bidwell St

320 E. Bidwell St; 330 E. Bidwell St

General Plan: Community Commercial / East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

Zoning: c-2

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-'1.s

Site Size: '1.99 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 59 units lnventoried

Capacity

13 units

Existing Use: Single-story strip mall with

parking

lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
* 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is a corner parcel located at the intersection of Coloma St and E Bidwell St. The

closest bus stop is 0.2 miles away, and the nearest grocery store is 0.4 miles away from the

site. lt is located within easy walking distance of Sutter Middle School. lt is currently being used

as a single-story strip mall with approximately 120 parking spaces. The buildings were

constructed between 1952-1959. Approximately 600/o of the site is occupied by buildings. Based

on the age of buildings, market trends, and low improvement values, redevelopment could

occur during the planning period. Redevelopment of the site for multi-family development

would likely require a lot consolidation of the four existing parcels in the same block.

Environmental

Constraints:

The site topography is flat, has little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is

outside of the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-3

Page 661

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

402E. Bidwell St 404 Bidwell St; 412 Bidwell St

APN(s): 071-0083-012; 071-0083-011; 071-0083-

010

Address: 402 E. Bidwell St; 404 E.

Bidwell St; 412 E. Bidwell St

General Plan: Community Commercial / East Bidwell

Mixed Use Overlay

Zoning: c-2

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-1.s

Site Size: 1.66 acres Height Limit 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 49 units lnventoried Capacity 11 units

Existing Use: Single story strip mall and parking lot lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

x 5th Cycle
* 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is located west of Market St and north of E Bidwell St. The closest bus stop and

grocery store are approximately 0.4 miles away from the site. lt is currently being used as a

strip mall with 12 operating businesses, and there are approximately 100 parking space on

site. The majority of the buildings were constructed between 1959-1960, and the restaurant

building was constructed in 1978. Approximately 32o/o of the site is occupied by buildings, and

the land value is slightly higher than the improvement value. Based on the age of buildings,

market trends, and low improvement values, redevelopment could occur during the planning

period. Redevelopment of the site for multi-family development would likely require a lot

consolidation of the three existing parcels in the same block.

Environmental

Constraints:

Any disturbance to protected trees such as street trees, parking lot shading trees or native

oak trees located on site must comply with the City's Tree Preservation Ordinance. The site

topography is flat, has little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of

the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

c.2-4 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 662

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



511 E. Bidwell St

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): 07'l-0190-048 (portion of parcel);

071-0320-026
Address: 5'11 E. Bidwell St

GeneralPlan: Community Commercial / East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay
Zoning: c-2

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-1.s

Site Size: 3.58 acres (developable portion

is 1.6 acres)

Height Limit 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 48 units lnventoried
Capacity

11 units

Existing Use: Vacant land and parking behind
Folsom Lake Bowling

lncluded in Previous * 5th Cycle

Housing Elements? x 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is located west of Glenn Dr and south of E Bidwell St. The closest bus stop and

grocery store are approximately 0.3 miles away from the site. lt is currently being used as

parking lot for bowling alley and barbershop. There are approximately 1.6 acres of vacant

land and parking lot space in two parcels. Based on the market trends and low

improvement values, redevelopment could occur during the planning period.

Environmental
Constraints:

Any disturbance to protected trees such as street trees, parking lot shading trees or native

oak trees located on site must comply with the City's Tree Preservation Ordinance. The site

topography is flat, has little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside

of the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-5

Page 663

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

616 E. Bidwell St

APN(s): 071-0360-013 Address: 616 E. Bidwell St

General Plan: Community Commercial / East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay
Zoning: c-2

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-1.5

Site Size: 1.4'1 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 42 units lnventoried Capacity: 10 units

Existing Use: Thrift Store with large parking

lot
lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is located west of Glenn Dr and north of E Bidwell St. The closest bus stop and

grocery store are approximately 0.15 miles from the site. lt is currently being used as a thrift
store with a large parking lot. The building was constructed in 196'1. Approximately 21o/o of
the site is occupied by buildings. Based on the age of buildings, market trends, and current

tenant improvement values, redevelopment could occur during the planning period.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site topography is flat, has little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is

outside of the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

c.2-6 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 664

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Creekside Sites

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): 07 1 -0040 -161; 07 1 -00 40 -1 62;

071-0040-'163

Address: 1571 Creekside Drive -
1599 Creekside Drive

GeneralPlan: Professional/Offi ce / East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay
Zoning: BP

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 7.71 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four
stories)

Max. Capacity: 231 units lnventoried Capacity 150 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

TCAC Evaluation: / Transit
x Public Park
)( Public Library

,/ Grocery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
/ Medical Clinic/Hospital
/ Pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: This site is located northeast of the intersection of East Bidwell St and Blue Ravine

Rd, near Mercy Hospital of Folsom. The nearest bus stop is located approximately

200 feet east of the site. The site is adjacent to professional offices, and the

closest grocery store and pharmacy are within 0.5 mile from this site. An

affordable housing developer has proposed a 150-unit affordable housing project

on the site. The City is anticipating submittal of the application.

Environmental Constraints: Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree

Preservation Ordinance. Existing dredge tailings, slickens deposits, and high-water

table provide challenges to construction of the site. The site is moderately sloped,

decreasing in elevation from east to west, has moderate to high fire risk, does not

include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year floodplains

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-7

Page 665

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

790 Hana Way

APN(s): 072-0031-024 Address: 790 Hana Way

GeneralPlan: Professional/Office / East Bidwell

Mixed Use Overlay

Zoning: BP

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 2.43 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 72 units lnventoried Capacitlr 66 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

TCAC Evaluation: " Transit
J< Public Park
r public Library

'/ Grccery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

I Special Needs Development
/ Medical Clinic/Hospital
/ Pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (E)Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is located at northeast of the interaction of East Bidwell St and Blue

Ravine Rd, next to Mercy Hospital of Folsom. The nearest bus stop is

approximately 0.5 mile away north of the site. lt's adjacent to professional

offices, various grocery stores and pharmacies are within 1 mile from this site.

Environmental Constraints: Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's

Tree Preservation Ordinance. The site is moderately sloped, decreasing in

elevation from east to west, has little to moderate fire risk, and is inside of the
100- and 500-year floodplains.

c.2-8 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 666

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Oak Avenue Pa Sites

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

a hk tE5

701 Oak Avenue Parkway; 741Oak
Avenue Parkway; 731 Oak Avenue

Parkway

Address:07 2-1310 -012; 07 2-1310-011 (portio n

of parcel);

072-1310-010 (portion of parcel)

APN(s):

Professional/Office / East Bidwel I

Mixed Use Overlay

General

Plan:

Zoning: BP

Density: 20-30 dulac FAR: nla

Total site (three parcels) is 13.47

acres; Developable portion is

estimated to be about 7.38 acres

Site Size: Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max.

Capacity:

221 units lnventoried Capacitlr '199 units

Parking lot for adjacent Lakeside

Church and overhead powerlines.

Existing

Use:

lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

* 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

This site, located within the East Bidwell Corridor, is adjacent to the existing Lakeside Church.

Portions of the parcels include a parking lot and overhead powerlines. Approximately 7 acres of
the site are vacant and are not constrained by overhead powerlines. A SacRT bus stop is

located less than 0.1 mile away from the site, and the nearest major grocery store is

approximately 1 mile away.

Site Description:

Environmental

Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has low fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the

100- and 500-year floodplains.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-9

Page 667

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

100 Scholar Way

APN(s): 072-0270-023 (portion of parcel) Address: 100 Scholar Way

General Plan: Public and Quasi-Public Facilily /
East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

Zoning: A-'I-A

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-1.5

Site Size: Total parcel is 151.14 acres;

Developable portion is estimated to
be about 5.8 acres

Height Limit 30 feet (up to two stories)

Max. Capacity: 174 units lnventoried Capacity 157 units

Existing Use: Vacant Land surrounding Folsom

Lake College

lncluded in Previous Housing

Elements?

x 5th Cycle
* 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site, located within the East Bidwell Corridor, sits at the entrance to Folsom Lake College.

College Parkway, the entrance road to the college, bisects the parcel. The site also contains a

sign and electronic billboard advertising the Harris Center. The site has approximately 6 acres

of developable land to the northwest of College Parkway and the Harris Center signage.

According to conversations with College staff, the College Master Plan currently identifies this

area as potential parking; however, the College is open to discussions of other potential uses

on this site, including housing. A SacRT bus stop is located less than 0.1 mile away from the

site, and the nearest grocery store is approximately 0.5 miles away. There is no existing

infrastructure on the site; however, access to sewer, water, storm drains, and dry utilities are

available along E. Bidwell St.

Environmental

Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, with decreasing elevation from north to south, has moderate to
high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the '100- and 500-year floodplains.

Analysis of
Realistic Unit

Capacity:

Based on the site characteristics, market trends and existing college, the remaining

developable portion of the site, 5.8 acres, is anticipated for residential development at 90

percent of the maximum allowed density, 27 units per acre. Therefore, the realistic capacity of
the site would be'157 units.

c.2-10 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 668

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Cavitt - E Bidwell

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): 072-0270-1ss Address: 1565 Cavitt Drive

General

Plan:

Community Commercial Zoning: c-2 (sP 9s-1)

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 37.18 acres (10 acres included in

inventory)

Height Limit 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max.

Capacity

300 units lnventoried Capacity: 270 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous t 5th

Housing Elements? t 4th

Cycle

Cycle

TCAC

Evaluation:

/ Transit
/ Public Park
x Public Library

/ Grocery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

I Special Needs Development
t< Medical Clinic/Hospital
r' Pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This site is located at E Bidwell street between Broadstone Parkway and lron Point Road. Two

SacRT bus stops are accessible within 7+ mile from the site. Single family residences are

located east of the site, and commercial uses are located south and west of the site. Whole

Foods Market and Bel Air are less than 1/t mile from this site. This is a large site with 37 acres;

however, the propefi owner indicated interest in residential development on a portion of the

site. Multifamily residential development is assumed for 10 acres of the site.

Environmental

Constraints:

Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation

Ordinance. The site is moderately sloped, decreasing in elevation from east to west, has

moderate to high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.z-tL

Page 669

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

285 Palladio Parkway

APN(s): 072-1190-128; 07 2-1190-129; 07 2-1190-

130

Address: Broadstone Pkwy; 237 6 lron
Point Rd;285 Palladio Pkwy

GeneralPlan: Regional Commercial Center / East

Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay

Zoning: C-3 PD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5-1.5

Site Size: Total acreage of three parcels is 43.99

acres (10 acres included in inventory)

Height Limit 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 300 units lnventoried

Capacity:

270 units

Existing Use: Vacant Land next to Kaiser Surgery

Center

lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

* 5th Cycle
x 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E)Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The Kaiser Surgery Center site includes three parcels, of which only a small portion

(approximately 6 acres) has been developed. The remaining 38 acres are vacant. This site is

located at the intersection of Palladio Pkwy and lron Point Rd. There are two bus stops

located 0.'1 mile away from the site, and the closest grocery store is 0.3 miles away from this

site. The Kaiser Surgery Center Building was constructed in 2009 and is expected to remain

on the site. Approxim alely 14o/o of the site is occupied by buildings and parking. Based on the

site characteristics, market trends and existing commercial use, approximately 10 acres of the

site is anticipated for residential development.

Environmental

Constraints:

The site topography is flat, has moderate to high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is

outside of the 100- and 500-year floodplains.

c.2-r2 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 670

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



TRANSIT PRIORITY AREA SITES

Leidesdorff Sites

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): 070-0042-002;
07 0 - 00 46 -024; 07 0 -00 46-026

Address: 1118 Sutter Street;

1108 Sutter Street; Leidesdorff Street

GeneralPlan: Historic Folsom Mixed Use Zoning Historic District, HD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: 0.5 - 2.0 FAR

Site Size: 2.64 acres Height Limit 35 feet for APNs 070-0046-024 and 070-

0046-026;
50 feet for APN 070-0042-002

Max. Capacity: 79 units lnventoried
Capacity:

71 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in

Previous

Housing
Elemenb?

r' 5th Cycle
/ 4th Cycle

Projects containing a minimum ol20o/o

affordable housing will be allowed by
right. See Housing Element Policy H-3.7

TCAC Evaluation: / Transit
/ Public Park
x Public Library

'/ Grccery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
x Medical Clinic/Hospital
x Pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities(E) Sewer

Site Description The Leidesdorff site is in the Historic District on the west side of Folsom Boulevard, near

existing retail and office uses on Sutter Street and within one-quarter mile of the Historic

Folsom Light Rail Station. The City's corporation yard is located directly north of the site. The

site currently consists of four parcels that would be consolidated. The Historic Folsom Mixed

Use designation allows both residential (including stand-alone residential) and commercial

uses. Development would be subject to Historic District Commission Design Review.

Environmental
Constraints:

Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation

Ordinance. The site has moderate to high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside

of the '100- or 500-year floodplain. The site is primarily flat with minimal elevation changes of
'l-3 feet.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-L3

Page 671

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

Glenn Station Site

APN(s): 071-0020-078 Address: '1025 Glenn Drive

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: R-4 - General Apartment

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 2.73 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 81 units lnventoried Capacity: 74 units

Existing Use: Parking Lot lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
r' 4th Cycle

Projects containing a minimum
of 20o/o affordable housing will
be allowed by right. See Housing

Element Policy H-3.7.

TCAC

Evaluation:

/ Transit
x Public Park
x Public Library

'/ Grocery Store/Farmer's market
x Public school
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
x Medical Clinic/Hospital
x Pharmacy

Access to
Utilities:

(E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The site is owned by the City and is currently used as a park & ride for the adjacent Glenn

SacRT Light Rail Station, located on the corner of Glenn Drive and Folsom Boulevard. lt is
adjacent to professional offices, approximately 500 feet from Kikkoman Foods, lnc., and

approximately 1 mile from schools.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site has been previously developed and is currently used as a parking lot. Any disturbance

to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation Ordinance. The

site is flat, has moderate to high fire risk, and does not include wetlands. The site is not located

within a special flood hazard area or 100-year floodplain but the site is within the 500-year

floodplain and presents moderate flood hazards.

c.2-L4 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 672

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



qr

.

)
APN(s): portion of 072-0060-090 Address: Prairie City Rd between White

Rock Rd and Mangini Pkwy

General

Plan:

Multifamily High Density Zoning SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 9.80 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

,/ 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 4-B yrs) Water (P 4-B yrs) Sewer (P 4-8 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 4-8 yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is located in the southwest portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The

surrounding area is currently undeveloped but is planned for a mix of residential and

commercial uses, including two school sites within 0.75 miles. The development for Folsom

Ranch High School is approximately 0.5 miles east of the site, and it's planned to open for the

2025/2026 school year.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of
the 100- and 500-year floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 246 units.

Attachment C.2r High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN SITES

FPASP MHD 16 Site

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-t5

Page 673

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FPASP MHD 60 Site

APN(s): portion of 072-3190-031 Address: North of Alder Creek Parkway between

E. Bidwell St. and Rowberry Rd.

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 7.70 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in

Previous Housing
Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
* 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is located in the northcentral portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The

surrounding area is currently undeveloped but is planned for a mix of residential and

commercial uses.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has moderate to high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and

500-year floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine follows the

eastern boundary before crossing the southeastern portion of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 192 units.

c.2-16 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 674

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FPASP MHD 64 Site

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): portion of 072-3'190-031 Address: North of Alder Creek Parkway

between E. Bidwell St. and

Rowberry Rd.

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 4.31 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
x 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is located in the northcentral portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The

surrounding area is currently undeveloped but is planned for a mix of residential and

commercial uses.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has moderate to high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and

500-year floodplains, There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine crosses the

site from north to south and from east to west on the southern portion of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 108 units.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-77

Page 675

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SFHI)

SFHD

,

APN(s): 072-3380-005 Address: White Rock Road, east of
E. Bidwell St.

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 9.26 acres Height Limit: 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
x 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The site is in the southcentral portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and is included in

Phase 1 of the Mangini Ranch Project. The surrounding area was recently developed as

residential and an elementary school is currently (2020) under construction, approximately 0.4

miles northeast of the site. The City expects to receive an application for market rate housing

in late 2020.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine crosses the southwest

corner of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 243 units.

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FPASP MHD 138 Site

c.2-18 Public Draft I Revised August 2021

Page 676

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FPASP MHD 157 Site

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): Portion of 072-3190-034 Address: Northwest corner of E. Bidwell

Street and Savannah Parkway.

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 5.79 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
r 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is in the central portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The area northeast of
the site, across E. Bidwell Street is currently being developed as commercial and residential,

while all other surrounding areas are still vacant.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is flat, has high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and

500-year floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the adopted Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan, the capacity of the sites would be 145 units.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-79

Page 677

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FPASP MHD 160A Site

SF

APN(s): Portion of 07 2-3190 -03 4 Address: West of E. Bidwell Street and

South of Old Ranch Way.

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: SP-MHD

Density: 20-30 dulac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 5.82 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

/ 5th Cycle
x 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is in the Town Center of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The surrounding areas are

currently undeveloped but are planned for residential, mixed use, and park uses.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine wetland crosses the

northwest corner of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the adopted Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan,

the capacity of the sites would be 145 units.

c.2-20 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 678

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FPASP RC 61 Site

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

APN(s): Portion of 072-3190-030 Address: Southwest of E. Bidwell Street /
U.S, 50 interchange.

General Plan: Regional Center Commercial Zoning SP-RC (Specific Plan - Regional

Commercial)

Density: Various - see below description FAR: n/a

Site Size: '103.3 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous r
Housing Elements? r

5th Cycle

4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is a'103-acre regional commercial parcel in the northcentral portion of the Folsom Plan

Area Specific Plan, near U.S. 50. The surrounding areas are currently undeveloped but are

planned as the Town Center with a mix of residential, commercial, mixed use, and park. The site

is also located along the proposed Alder Creek Parkway transit corridor. The specific plan

requires that 9.2 acres and 223 dwelling units of multifamily high density be developed on this

site. Per the Minor Administrative Modification to the Specific Plan, approved on March 17,

2020,7.5 acres and 156 dwelling units of multifamily high density (20-30 units per acre);9.9

acres and 198 units of multifamily medium density (12-20 units per acre); and 25 acres and 198

units of multifamily low density (7-12 units per acre) would be developed on this site.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine crosses the southeastern

corner of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the MinorAdministrative Modification, approved on March 17,2020, the allotted

number of units and capacity of the site would be 156 multifamily high density units, 198

multifamily medium density units; and '198 multifamily low density units.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-2L

Page 679

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Aftachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FPASP GC 85A Site

SF

APN(s): 072-3190-046 Address: E. Bidwell Street and Alder Creek

Parkway

General Plan: General Commercial Zoning SP-GC (Specific Plan - General

Commercial)

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 6.5 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r 5th Cycle
:c 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E)Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: This parcelis in the northcentralportion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, near U.S.50.

The surrounding areas are currently undeveloped but are planned as the Town Center with a

mix of residential, commercial, mixed use, and park. The site is also located along the
proposed Alder Creek Parkway transit corridor. Per the Minor Administrative Modification to
the Specific Plan, approved on March 17,2020,8.2 acres and 221dwelling units of multifamily

high density (20-30 units per acre) and 6.1 acres and 122 units of multifamily medium density
('12-20 units per acre) would be developed on this site.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of
the 100- and 500-year floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the Minor Administrative Modification, approved on March 17,2020, the allotted

number of units and capacity of the site would be 221 multifamily high density units and 122

multifamily medium density units.

c.2-22 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 680

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FPASP MU 74 Site

Attachment C.2: High Density Residentia! Site Capacity Profiles

SF

APN(s): A portion of 072-3190-034 Address: West of E. Bidwell Street and south
of Alder Creek Parkway

GeneralPlan: Mixed Use Zoning: SP-MU (Specific Plan - Mixed Use)

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: '10 acres Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
* 4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is in the northcentralportion of the Folsom PlanArea Specific Plan, planned forthe
Town Center. The surrounding areas are currently undeveloped but are planned for a mix of
residential, commercial, mixed use, and park. The site is also located along the proposed

Alder Creek Parkway transit corridor.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine wetland crosses the

site diagonally from the northeast corner to the southwest corner.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 132 units.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-23

Page 681

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

FPASP MU 158 Site

SF

APN(s): A portion of 072-3190-034 Address: West of E. Bidwell Street and south

of Alder Creek Parkway

GeneralPlan: Mixed Use Zoning: SP-MU (Specific Plan - Mixed Use)

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 11.48 acres (per approved Toll

Brothers SPA)

Height Limit 50 feet

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous /
Housing Elements? r

5th Cycle

4th Cycle

Access to Utilities: (P 2-4 yrs) Water (P 2-4 yrs) Sewer (P 2-4 yrs) Storm

Drains

(P 2-4yrs) Dry

Utilities

Site Description: The site is in the northcentral portion of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, planned for the

Town Center, The surrounding areas are currently undeveloped but are planned for a mix of
residential, commercial, mixed use, and park. The site is also located along the proposed

Alder Creek Parkway transit corridor.

Environmental
Constraints:

The site is moderately sloped, has high fire risk, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains. There are no protected trees located on the site. A riverine crosses the southeast

corner of the site.

Unit Capacity: Based on the allotted number of units identified in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the

capacity of the sites would be 150 units.

c.2-24 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 682

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

ADDITIONAL HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL SITES

Folsom Auburn (ChoD Site

APN(s): 213-0071-006 Address: 7071 Folsom Auburn Road

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: R4 - General Apartment

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 1.89 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 56 units lnventoried Capacity 51 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous

Housing Elements?

r' 5th Cycle
/ 4th Cycle

Projects containing a minimum of
20o/o affordable housing will be

allowed by right. See Housing

Element Policy H-3.7.

TCAC

Evaluation:

x Transit
x Public Park
x Public Library

I Grocery Store/Farmer's market

" Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
x Medical Clinic/Hospital
r Pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (P) Water (E) Sewer (N) Storm Drains (N) Dry Utilities

Note: The City is installing a water supply main along Folsom Auburn Road as part of a

Capital lmprovement Project, anticipated for construction in 2021. Storm drain and dry utility
improvements would be constructed upon development of the site.

Site Description: The site is located in the northern portion of the City, surrounded by residential uses. The site

is approximately 1 mile from commercial uses and 0.75 miles from Cad Sundahl Elementary

School. The nearest bus stop, American River Canyon Drive and Oak Avenue, is 1.3 miles east

of the site.

Environmental
Constraints:

Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation

Ordinance. The site is moderately sloped decreasing in elevation from north to south, has

little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-25

Page 683

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APN(s): 071-0190-076 Address: n/a (Riley Street)

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: R3 - Neighborhood Apartment

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 0.58 acres Height Limit: 35 feet (up to two stories)

Max. Capacity: 17 units lnventoried Capacityt 16 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous ,
Housing Elements? a

5th Cycle

4th Cycle

TCAC

Evaluation:

/ Transit
/ Public Park

" Public Library

/ Grocery Store/Farmer's market

" Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs

Development
; Medical Clinic/Hospital
/ pharmacy

Access to Utilities: (E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The site is owned by the City and is located on Riley Street, near the Coloma Street

intersection, and is near existing shopping and employment centers. A SacRT bus stop is

located directly in front of the site on Riley Street. Single family residences are located directly

west of the site, commercial uses are located to the south and east, and Folsom Lake High

School is located across Riley Street to the northeast. Additionally, Sutter Middle School is

located approximately 500 feet north of the site.

Environmental
Constraints:

Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation

Ordinance. The site has little to moderate fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside

of the 100- and 500-year floodplains. The site topography is flat.

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

Riley Street Site

c.2-26 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 684

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



2800 lron Point Road

Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

t_,_

I

APN(s): 072-0270-124 Address: 2800 lron Point Road

General Plan: Multifamily High Density Zoning: R4 (SP95-1) - General Apartment

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: 13.22 acres Height Limit: 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 300 units lnventoried Capacity: 207 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous r'
Housing Elemenb? r

5th Cycle

4th Cycle

TCAC

Evaluation:

x Transit
x Public Park
x Public Library

'/ Grocery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

x Special Needs Development
r Medical Clinic/Hospital
/ Pharmacy

Access to
Utilities:

(E) Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site Description: The site is located on the lron Point Road corridor near existing shopping and employment

centers and approximately 1.25 miles from the nearest bus stop. This site is primarily

surrounded by single family residences and the recent Pique at lron Point apartment

development is located across lron Point Road, south of the site. The site is owned by Elliot

Homes. Based on the site characteristics and because the site is steeply sloped, the site is

anticipated for development at 60 percent of the maximum allowed density, 18 units per acre

Environmental
Constraints:

The site has moderate to high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- or
500-year floodplain. The site is steeply sloped, decreasing in elevation from the north to south.

Public Draft | Revised August 2021 c.2-27

Page 685

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment C.2: High Density Residential Site Capacity Profiles

lron Point - Elliot Homes

APN(s): 072-1170-113 Address: lron Point Road

General Plan: Regional Community Center Zoning: c-1 (sP 92-3)

Density: 20-30 du/ac FAR: n/a

Site Size: Total site size is 19.25 acres;

Developable portion is'11.5 acres.

Height Limit 50 feet (up to four stories)

Max. Capacity: 345 units lnventoried
Capacityt:

2'17 units

Existing Use: Vacant lncluded in Previous r
Housing Elements? r

5th Cycle

4th Cycle

TCAC

Evaluation:

x Transit
r Public Park
x Public Library

x Special Needs

Development
x Medical Clinic/Hospital
x Pharmacy

x Grocery Store/Farmer's market
/ Public School
x Senior Developments

Access to
Utilities:

(E)Water (E) Sewer (E) Storm Drains (E) Dry Utilities

Site

Description:
This site is located at southeast of the intersection of Empire Ranch Road and lron Point Road.

The nearest bus stop is approximately 1 mile away. Single family and multifamily high-density

residences are located north and west of the site, Highway 50 is south of the site. Russell Ranch

elementary school is approximately 0.5 mile from this site. Based on discussions with the

property owner, Elliot Homes, a specific plan amendment has been proposed to expand the

Regional Commercial Center (RCC) designation to allow for multifamily residential as a permitted

use, in conjunction with the adoption of the Housing Element. Based on the site characteristics,

market trends, and property owner input, the site is anticipated for 70 percent or 8 acres of
residential development.

Environmental
Constraints:

Any disturbance to the on-site native oak trees must comply with the City's Tree Preservation

Ordinance. The site is moderately sloped, decreasing in elevation from west to east, has

moderate to high fire risk, does not include wetlands, and is outside of the 100- and 500-year

floodplains

c.2-28 Public Draft | Revised August 2021

Page 686

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



ATTnCH M ENT c.3
PuBLIC OuTnEACH

Page 687

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



m@
r{l;-{e:Y

FOLSOM HOUSING ELEMENT
SUMMARY OF FOCUS GROUP DISCUSSIONS 2020

Overview
The City of Folsom is currently conducting its 6th Cycle Housing Element Update for the 2021- 2029

Planning Period. As part of the community engagement effort, City staff and the consulting team, Ascent,

hosted three virtual focus group sessions to gather input from various stakeholders, including developers,

home builders, non-profit organizations, advocacy groups, and public agencies on key housing issues. The

virtual focus group sessions were held using Microsoft Teams on the following topics:

Affordable Housing Strategies - Tuesday, June 2,2020;

Missing Middle and Multi-Generational Housing Strategies - Wednesday, June 3, 2020; and,

Homelessness and Special Needs Housing - Tuesday, June 9, 2020.

Each focus group session began with a brief presentation providing background on the housing element

process and housing-related information for Folsom. The consultant team then facilitated a discussion asking

participants for input on each discussion topic. As follow up to each focus group discussion, a questionnaire

was sent to all invitees asking for any additional input or comments related to each topic. The feedback

received from the discussion sessions and follow-up questionnaire is included in this summary.

The feedback received from each focus group will be incorporated into the Housing Element Update.

lnformation will be included in the housing needs assessment and will be used to guide new policies and

programs for housing in Folsom. Participants have been added to the project interest list and will be included

on publicity efforts and project updates.

Focus Group #1: Affordable Housing Strategies
The Focus Group Discussion on Affordable Housing Strategies was intended to gather feedback from

advocacy groups, non-profit organizations, and affordable housing developers on strategies to increase the

production of affordable housing in Folsom. Representatives from Sacramento Housing Alliance, Mutual

Housing Sacramento, Legal Services of Northern California, Grupe Company, USA Properties, and Mercy

Housing attended the focus group meeting and provided feedback on their needs, experiences, and

suggestions for improvement.

After a brief overview of the housing element and presentation of existing affordable housing resources in

Folsom. Participants were asked the following questions to facilitate a discussion:

1. What can the City do to encourage more affordable housing development?

2. What are some best practices in affordable housing development that other communities are doing?

3. Are there certain site characteristics or factors that you consider more beneficial for affordable

housing developments?

4. Are there opportunities to expand existing affordable housing developments (e.9., Mercy Housing or

Creekview Manor)?

a

2

Page 688

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



.H@
Feedback Summary

The following is a summary of the feedback provided by participants:

Site size. Participants voiced the importance of identifying affordable housing sites that are large enough to

provide a feasible number of units. Affordable housing projects typically include about 100 units. Sites that

are too small (allowing for fewer than 60 units) are generally not feasible for affordable housing

development.

Location Factors. Participants stressed the importance of the location of sites and their relation to funding

criteria, specifically California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (TCAC) funding criteria. Participants stated the

City could support affordable development by assisting developers in locating sites that are qualified for

funding. lt was suggested that the Housing Element identifiT low-income housing sites that facilitate a

competitive advantage for TCAC funding programs by ranking sites and showing them in relation to location

factors such as schools, grocery stores, and parks.

Funding and Fees. Generally, developers and housing advocates both agreed that early collaboration with

the City on the use of funds for affordable housing development would be beneficial for both the affordable

housing developers and the City. With regards to funding, participants suggested that the City look into

additional funding sources, such as HCD's Local Housing Trust Fund and that the City should consider

utilizing funds for land acquisition. Participants also suggested that the City reduce or eliminate impact fees

for affordable housing development.

Housing on Commercially-zoned Land. As a result of recent events related to the coronavirus pandemic,

participants expect that a change to the retail environment could offer opportunities for low-cost commercial

land. Allowing for housing to be built on commercially zoned land would create more opportunities for

affordable housing development. A clear and expeditious rezone process from commercial to residential for

multifamily housing would be beneficial.

Community Education. Suggestions also included increasing community outreach to notify the public that a

range of housing types may be developed on low-income housing sites, including both market rate and

affordable multifamily housing. Community outreach efforts should ensure the public is aware of sites where

multifamily housing is allowed, so that the public is prepared and not caught off guard when affordable

housing is developed.

Zoning Changes. Participants also provided the following suggestions for City policies and zoning

ordinances to support affordable housing development:

Consider allowing stand-alone residential in all, or portions ol the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay.

Limit the amount of required commercial space for mixed use projects to ensure that housing is

feasible for mixed use sites. lnstead of requiring major commercial components (e.9. 30,000 square

foot grocery store or other anchor commercial building) that would likely make the housing project

infeasible, mixed use requirements should allow for smaller commercial components (e.9. 2,000 sf

coffee shop) that still provide for feasible housing opportunities.

Consider zoning specific sites where housing is allowed by-right to streamline housing development.

a

a

3

Page 689

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



@
I(Ll,'.,i.lliY

Create accessory dwelling unit (ADU) policies that encourage the production of ADUs and ensure

ADU affordability.

Review parking requirements, specifically covered parking requirements, in collaboration with the

development community to reduce barriers to housing.

Expand lnclusionary Housing. Housing advocates recommended the City consider expanding the

lnclusionary Housing Ordinance to apply to new rental housing in addition to ownership housing.

Review Policies and Zoning. Housing advocates advised that the City get stakeholder input on the previous

housing element policies and programs as well as the City's zoning ordinance to understand how the City's

requirements are working for the development community and how they can be improved.

Analyze lmpact of Coronavirus. Suggestions were also made in regard to the impacts of the coronavirus

pandemic and including an assessment and discussion in the Housing Element on fair housing practices

related to the coronavirus.

Focus Group #2: Missing Middte and Mutti-Generational Housing Strategies
The Focus Group Discussion on Missing Middle and Multi-Generational Housing Strategies was intended to

gather feedback from developers and home builders on strategies to encourage various housing types in

Folsom for a variety of income levels, specifically moderate- or middle-income levels, as these are often

overlooked. Representatives from Folsom Heights, Taylor Morrison, Signature Homes, Elliot Homes, Van

Daele Homes, Lennar Homes, and Sacramento Housing Alliance attended the focus group and provided

feedback on their needs, experiences, and suggestions for improvement.

A presentation providing a brief overview of the housing element and missing middle and multi-generational

housing was provided. Missing middle housing encompasses housing types such as duplexes, triplexes,

fourplexes, courtyard apartments, bungalows, and townhouses, that provide housing for a range of income

levels. Examples of multi-generational housing such as junior accessory dwelling units or Lennar's NextGen

homes were also presented. City staff also provided an overview of ADUs and proposed changes to the City's

ADU ordinance. After the presentation, participants were asked the following discussion questions:

1. What are the barriers to building missing middle housing types?

2. What can the City do to encourage the development of missing middle housing?

3. Are there other product types beyond ADUs, multigenerational, duplexes that should be considered

for missing middle housing?

4. Where do you see a potential for this type of housing in Folsom?

Feedback Summary

The following is a summary of the feedback provided by participants:

Financial Barriers. Participants advised that finances were the key barrier to developing ADUs and Multi-

Generational Units. Building these housing product types is more expensive than standard single-family

homes and therefore have higher sales prices.

a

a

4

Page 690

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



@
tstrt,tso.\t

Lower Demand in Folsom. Homebuilders have seen higher demand for multi-generational product types in

other jurisdictions (Elk Grove, El Dorado Hills, Roseville and Woodland). The lower demand and increased

difficulty of selling multi-generation product types in Folsom could be a result of the pricing, specific product

lineup offered in Folsom, or the fact that multi-generational homes were not modeled.

Homebuilder Experience. Homebuilders generally specialize in detached single-family homes, as opposed

to duplex/triplexes or small apartments, because of their familiarity with this product type and the high

market demand for detached homes. However, some homebuilders have included different product types to

meet a variety of income levels. These product types include Van Daele's "condo pods", consisting of three

units: two detached units plus a separate building with three garages and a unit above, sold in Lathrop and

other places in California. Taylor Morrison met their inclusionary housing requirement for the Caselman

Ranch project in Sacramento County using a small detached product. Lennar also provides a small T-court

product and an alley loaded product at lower-price points but does not provide an attached product.

Policy Suggestions. Some suggestions for increasing middle income housing included using Community

Development Block Grant funds, or another funding source, to create a loan program for homeowners to

help finance the construction of ADUs. The program could also include loan forgiveness for those units

rented to lower-income households. Other suggestions also included removing parking requirements,

increasing ministerial or by-right approvals and shortening application review timeline. Allowing housing in

commercial zones, fourplexes on all residential land, and removing lot coverage, floor-area-ratio, and

setback restrictions was also suggested. Participants also suggested upzoning to increase densities near

public transit.

Focus Group #3: Homelessness and Special Needs Housing
The Focus Group Discussion on Homelessness and Special Needs Housing was intended to gather feedback

from homeless services providers and special needs advocates on strategies to provide housing for homeless

and special needs population groups in Folsom. Representatives from Folsom Police Department, Dignity

Health, HART of Folsom, Habitat for Humanity, Lofgren Company, Sacramento Self Help Housing, and

Powerhouse Ministries attended the focus group and provided feedback on their needs, experiences, and

suggestions for improvement.

After a brief overview of the housing element and presentation of homelessness and special needs groups

and services available to them, participants were asked the following discussion questions related to

homelessness and special needs:

'1. Are there any other data sources we should use to estimate the number people experiencing or at

risk of homelessness?

2. What are the leading causes of homelessness experienced in Folsom?

3. What resources (including both housing and services) are available for people experiencing or at risk

of homelessness?

4. Are there any planned efforts to expand services for people experiencing or at risk of homelessness?

5. What can the City do in the context of the Housing Element to meet the needs of people

experienci ng homelessness?

6. What special housing needs exist in Folsom?

5

Page 691

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



H @
7. What housing challenges do people with disabilities face in Folsom?

8. What resources (including both housing and services) are available for people with disabilities in

Folsom?

9. What can the City do in the context of the Housing Element to meet the needs of people with

special housing needs?

Feedback Summary

The following is a summary of the feedback provided by participants:

Homeless Population Estimate. Focus group participants advised that the most recent point-in-time count

of 17 unsheltered individuals is much less than the current actual count. The point-in-time count is generally

well-represented in the City of Sacramento but is under-represented in the rest of the County. HART advised

that they had 15 people in the winter shelter on the night of the latest point-in-time count and that these

individuals were not included in the count. HART, as well as several other service providers, advised that the

homeless population is estimated to be 70 or more individuals and that many of these individuals are from

Folsom and want to remain in the Folsom community. Both Folsom Police Department and the City's

Homeless Navigator, Laura Basquez, at Sacramento Self Help Housing, advised they keep updated lists of

homeless individuals and can share the most recent information on the City's homeless population.

Participants also advised that HART, Powerhouse Ministries, and Twin Lakes Food Bank each have data on

the homeless population.

Homeless Service Needs. Homeless service providers advised that the biggest challenge for homeless

individuals is drug and/or alcohol addiction but that mental health issues are also common. Other causes of

homelessness include housing costs, job loss, divorce, eviction, rent increases, and early release from jail or

prison. There are no resources for drug and/or alcohol addiction or mental health in Folsom. Most County

services are located in the city of Sacramento. ln addition, many homeless are on a fixed income and do not

have the resources for career and job development. There are no job centers or career resource centers in

Folsom. Many homeless individuals use the Folsom Public Library for computer and internet access, but the

library does not offer all the services needed to support individuals for success. Overall, providing mental

health, drug/alcohol addiction, and career services in Folsom would be a major step in addressing the needs

of homeless individuals. Most of these services are located in Sacramento but most homeless individuals do

not have transportation (no car or money for public transit) and are unable to access these services. ln

addition, most homeless in Folsom have lived in Folsom for a long time and don't want to leave Folsom.

Homeless individuals are generally insured through Medi-Cal and struggle to find health and mental health

services in Folsom, as most providers in Folsom only accept private insurance. The City could reach out to the

County Department of Human Assistance or other service providers to bring satellite services to Folsom. The

City should also consider collaborating with HOPE Cooperative, which may provide some services in Folsom.

CurrentlyAvailable Homeless Services. Although drug and alcoholaddiction, mental health, and career

services are limited in Folsom, some immediate services such as laundry, food, and clothing are provided by

local homeless service providers. Powerhouse Ministries provides emergency assistance, a medical clinic,

laundry vouchers, blankets, community meals and a food closet; Twin Lakes Food Bank provides meals and

6

Page 692

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



m @
ts(rl,Boll

food. Helping Hands (St. Vincent de Paul) provides clothing and linens. HART provides toiletries to Folsom

Lake College students, assist homeless individuals in connecting to resources, and one on one mentoring.

Lack of Affordable Housing. The leading cause of keeping people homeless is the lack of affordable

housing in Folsom. Many individuals are Social Security and Disability lnsurance recipients and have fixed

incomes of approximately $1,000 per month.

Powerhouse Ministries Expansion Project. Powerhouse Ministries is currently expanding their 20-bed

residential recovery center to accommodate 40 beds. The recovery center is no cost 2-year program for

homeless female individuals (with or without children). Most individuals leave the program with a job.

However, individuals that complete the program still can't find housing in Folsom.

Barriers to Tiny Homes. HART is working with the City to try to find a place in Folsom for tiny homes to

house homeless individuals. However, this use is not clearly outlined in the City's Zoning Ordinance and the

process to allow such housing has been difficult to determine.

Strategies for Housing the Homeless. Some participants also suggested that the City work with developers

to secure units not only for low-income households, but also secure a portion of units for homeless

individuals within the city (similar to a recent effort in Elk Grove). This could help homeless individuals that

are long-time Folsom residents stay in Folsom near their family, friends, and support groups. Other

participants also suggested using funding to purchase transitional housing. For example, the City of Elk

Grove purchased housing that is rented by Elk Grove HART to provide housing for homeless individuals in Elk

Grove. lncome-base rent was also suggested as a strategy to house homeless individuals and extremely low-

income households. lncome-base rent has been used in both the City of Sacramento and the City of

Roseville. The City should consider using income-base rent as a strategy to meet housing needs in Folsom.

Participants also suggested that the City research and compare its homeless services to other jurisdictions.

Public Outreach Campaign. A suggestion was made to conduct a public relations effort to educate the

entire Folsom community on homelessness and to help bring unity on this often contentious issue.

Powerhouse Ministries advised that they would be willing to support the City on a public relations effort to

provide understanding on who the homeless are and provide a platform to share success stories.

Note on Special Needs. None of the feedback received was specific to special needs groups and/or those

with disabilities. However, these individuals often experience or at-risk of homeless and would benefit from

similar services.

7

Page 693

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



CITY OF

FOLSOIr{

Folsom Housing Element Workshop
Sunrey

Ql. Are you a Folsom resident? (Choose one)

Answered: 4!0 Slipped: 0

Yeg

No

Vh l0% W" 3VA 40ffr Sff/o 6V/n 1Vh Wo 90fli 100%

#
Yes

No

RESPOI{SES

97.E60/,

2.t4%

4il

I

TOTAL 420

Page 694

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q2. Which of the following best describes your household? (Choose one)
Auwered: 420 Skipped: 0

Ore pusol
liring aloae

S@!4no
childrea

Cordesirtr'
clildren ud.-,

Siules:re*
with shl{R-.-

Coodes
riryle puen.-.

Unrelated
irdividurls-.^

Multiple
f:uilis liv...

Othr (pleare
spxiil)

I

Grudpumt(r)
ruEE..-

U/" lO% Xflo W &h iV/. ffiA Mi Sf,l 9f/o 100%

BESPONSES

0ne puson livrag done

Couple with m chiidrs

Couple vith child:a uder 18 yeus old

i 
@ with childrea urder 18 yearr old

i Couple c siagle pueut with children ovu l8 yeur old

Grudperut(: ) rrisirg grandc hild(ren)

Uuelrted irfividuelg living togeller

ll ultiple f amrlieg living togethc

l3- lOYr

25.009i

34.76%

5.95%

t5.67%

0.48%

0.95%

0.95%

2.14%

55

105

t{6

25

70

2

4

4

IOiher -(p!e-$-e--'-p-es-'fy)

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

One person with no pennanent address

Couple with 2 children over l8 and I under

Couple with 2 children 19 & 16

Couple with 3 grown children

Multigenerational family

Couple and Aged Parent

Couple with children over 18 years old

Grandparent with adult daughter and $andchild in the house

Grandparents with no children or grandchildren in the home

Page 695

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q3. Do you currently rent or own your home? (Choose one)
Answered: 430 Stipped: 0

L ent

0wn

OtLer (pleare
rpecifl')

094 l0% ?#'n fff/t 4trn Jtrt 6U'/o 7tr4 800,1; 9V/t l00'/o

ansgiEB-sorcf,s RESPOr{SES

Rert

Om

Other (pleese rpeci!')

17 _62."/,

81.19-o/r

l_t9%

341 i

I

74

TOTAL 120

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

No permanent address - have a storage unit and mailbox

I own a home and rent an apartment

Neither

Multiple families in one home, one family owns it

I own my mobile home but pay rent for the space

Page 696

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q4. What type of housing do you live in? (Choose one)
Angwered: 4X0 Stipped; 0

$;rgle
Home

Duple:</trrpletr
fourplel

*"lffiJil
i

nurr,-*"1
i

Secoqh

uaitlguesthouqb
:

i

I
Unlrt*cnel

I
i

I

Other fuleas1
specdrJ

l

0p.,i l0% 2tr/" 3V/t 40p,4 J096 W" ?0+6 $V/o 90pi 100%

AlrsgiEa_cErufEs RESPOI|SES

Siagle Fr.aity Hoae

Dup lexJ hip lex,,'f ourplex

Condonininn sr Towr.houee

rlprrtnent

Secold udt/guerthcure

U"nhtlelntnc,

Other (pleese specify)

86-679,1

0.95%

3.8t%

7.62%

0 -24e/.

0.48%

0.1,4%

361

4

l6

32

I

I

I

TOTAT 420

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

Stay in client's homes and couch surfwith friends

Page 697

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



l8 -rr

15 -.31

35 -49

50 -64

65 rd rbove

Q5. lVhat is yoru age? (Choose one)

Aarsmd:420 Slcipped: 0

09( l0% W{ \Ft 4W J0i6 frfA WA frnt 90rlr 100?6

l-51V.It-24 t

ll-67o/.x5 -31 49

lfE35 - ,19 40.0091

3l-{SaA l3x50-64

15.x49665 end rbove 54

Page 698

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q6. Prior to the coronavin:s outbreak, had you experienced any of the
following housing issues within the last 5 years? (Choose all that apply)

AnEwued: 420 Stipped: 0

Stnggle to
pey rent or.--

Lzrt fuding
to nake-.-

Sigil6cut
real iaseue

fiousing
dircriminetion

Tm ray
people l!{p".-

Adult child
Lir.iry df,o-.-

Noar afthe
ebole

3V/. 4W. 5096 ilf't 7VA Wo 90?6 100%

AIHgtr,f,-CEOrcE,S RESPOITSES

Stoggle to pay rent or aortgrge

Leck fnuding to rake nece!srry hone repeire

Signific oot rent increrse

Eousilg discrinin etion

Too nany people liviug in one hon"e (overcrouding)

lduh child liviag at houe dre to inrbilily to rlford housing

None sf the ebove

9.05%

9 -7604'

8.10%

I A3%

l.8l%

8-S't%

?d-2914

38

.tI

t1

6

t6

36

3lI

Totd Rerpoadeatr: 420

Page 699

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q7. Have you experienced any of the following housing issues since the
coronavirus outbreak? (Choose all that apply)

Ancwered:420 Stipped:0

Stmggle to
lEl. re.t or...

Lrrt fudirg
to neh--

Significut
reul iaseroe

flouiag
dir crimiretioa

Tmmy
people lisiL.

rldult child
Iiving d ho..-

Nm ofite
rbore

v./. llvt t@t 3u/o 4va 509n tra Iv/o 8{P,6 90./ 100./"

AITSIEB_CEff(E,.S nEsPoLsEs

I

Struggle to pay rent oc rnortglge

Leck fuuding to uake lecelrrry hone reprirs

Sigrificilt rent increse

Eousiag digcrinbetion

Too nery people [ving ia oae hone (ovemmwdmg)

Aduh child lit'iag at home due to iarbilhy to rfrold bousing

Noue of the rbol'e

8.10%

'7.86%

0"11%

2.t4%

2.86%

'7 -620/n

80-00%

31

33

3

I

t2

aa

336

4XO

Page 700

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q8. How would you rate the physical condition of your home or apartment?
(Choose one)

Arrys€* rl20 Skipped: 0

Enellent
coaditioa

SLs:ia of
minor {g{gr&..

Nedg ru or
*"lodesf--.

Needg m or
ffi. lDiE-_

k rot srfe
frr bahj$etr...

vA l0% wh 3u/t {ffA 5w; ffih 1va gwo wt t00./o

AlEIIf,f,.-CEfiCES nEsPolrsEs

Excellent condition

$hows sign: of uiror defered uriutenrace (i-e" peelirg paht, chipping rtucco)

Needg one f, more mode:t rehebilitrtion inproveaents {i-e, rew uf-ues, wood sidiag, new pa.a! rrirdow reprirs)

Needg one or ruore urjor upgreder [.e. ner fouudriioa, lew pluubirg, uew eleetrical)

Ig d--g.efefor hrbitrtioa b itg curreat conditioo S.e. etnrcturelly u.usound, gevere nold growfh)

54-05%

?4-?6-.4

t7.t1%

3.81%

0.24V.

2X7

104

72

l6

I

TOTAT 420

Page 701

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q9, What do you feel is the most significant housing problem facing Folsom
residents? (Choose one)

Angs'ered:420 Skipped:0

fot enough

homs on the--.

Not enough
housing for...

Housing is not
efiordeble

ftrouring size

Ssql4ll meet.".

Ilousing is aot
locaied il t.."

Houing
conditiong e-".

Otlu (pleare
:pxifl)

I
I

WL l0% 2V/. 3trA 4V./" 5tr6 6ff/i ?f/o 8{P"t 90p/i 100%

I
I
I

ANSWERCHOICES RESPONSES

Not enough homes on the market ll.l9o/o 47

Not enough housing for rent 2.620/o 11

Housing is not affordable 46.19% t94

Housing size doesn't meet family needs 3.81%% T6

Housing is not located in the right places 2.38% 10

Housing conditions are poor .48% 2

TOTAL 66.67o/o 280

oTHER (PLEASE SPECtrY)

Too Many Homes/Overcrowding/Traflic/Water 13.8o/o 58

Too Many Apartments and Low-Income Units 6.2% 26

More Special Needs Housing Homeless, Seniors and Disabled 2.4% t0

No Issues 3.6% 15

Too small of lots 38% 16

Other 2.4o/o 10

Too Expensive r.2% 5

TOT,4.L 33.4V" r40

Page 702

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ql0. What types of housingare mostneeded inFolsom? (Choose r:p
to three.)

Ancwend: 4?0 Skipped: 0

Si"gle Fanily
llomes m Lu-.-

$fugle F:eily
Homu on $43".-

Cordos.i TstuolslA
eg

lDertmeatg

Accesrory
Dudlirs Uai...

f dtiEererrtb!
,d Eonriag

Ilouri.,g for
Seniorr ald-..

Supportive
Housi4frr...

OtLu (pleere
!F*ifl')

W. l0'/. Zffit 3t/. 4Vn 5e6 ffi'ln 1Wo 80ti 9V/. lOiy.

ANSWERCHOICES RESPONSES

Single Family Homes on Large Lots 42.62% 179

Single Family Homes on Small Lots 30.00% 126

Condos/Townhomes 26.t9% ll0
Apartments 9.76% 4t

Accessory Dwelling Units (Granny Flats) 20.95% 88

Multigeneration Housing t5.71% 66

Housing for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities 27.38% 115

Supportive Housing for the Homeless 24.05 101

OrHER(PLEASE SPECTF9

NoneA.{o More Housing 23 5.5o/o

Affordable l0 2.4%

Active Senior Communities 3 0.7%

Tiny Homes 3 0.7%

Mixed-Use/lVlissing Middle (Duplex, Condo) 4 l%

Single Story Homes 2 0.5o/o

Shelters/Transitional Housing 2 0.5%

Other 5 t.2%

TOTAL 52 12%

Page 703

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Qll. Please indicate how important the following housing priorities are for
the Folsom community.

Ansrvered: 420 Stipped: 0

VERY
IMPORTANT

SOMEWHAT
IMPORTANT

NOT
IMPORTANT

DON'T
KNOW TOTAI,

Ensuing that children who grew up in Folsom can afford to live in
Folsom.

1.900/o

8

420

Create mixed-use (commercial /office and residential) or transit-
oriented development in the community that encourages walkable
neighborhoods and reduce dependency on automobiles.

2.380/o 420

Ensuring that the housing market in Folsom provides a diverse range
of housing types, including single family homes, townhouses,
duplexes and apartments, to meet the varied needs and income levels
oflocal residents.

1.670/o

7
420

Integrate affordable housing throughout the community to create
mixed-income neighborhoods and avoid the concentrations of low-
income housing in certain neighborhoods.

4.76%
20

420

Establish special needs housing for seniors, large families and persons
with disabilities.

9.05%
38

420

Provide shelters and transitional housing for the homeless, along with
services to help move individuals into permanent housing.

s.u% 420

Encourage energy conservation through site and building design. t.43%
6

420

Encourage the rehabilitation of existing housing stock in older
neighborhoods.

6.90%
29

420

Help at risk homeowners and renters keep their homes, including
mortgage loan and rental assistance programs.

5.48o/o

23
420

Page 704

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q12. State law requires that cities and counties identify enough land to
accommodate housing needs. Under this housing element cycle, the City

is obligaled to identify sites to accommodate 6,363 new housing units
during the 2O2l-2O29 planning period, of which 3,567 hrritr are to be

affordable to very low-income and low-income households. The City is
working to identify strategies to meet this obligation. Please indicate your

support for the following proposed housing strategies.

.'\.usn'ered: 4)0 Skrpped: 0

SUPPORT NEUTRAL
NO

SUPPORT TOTAL
Encourage mixed use developments (i.e. developments with both
commercial and residential uses) alone the East Bidwell Conidor.

23.10%
97

31.670/o

133
420

Increase multifamily developments near transit stations (light rail) 30.24%
t27

29.29%
123

420

Increase housing densities in the Folsom Plan Area (South of 50) 24.52%
103

34.760/o

t46
420

Increase housing near employment centers 29.05o/o
122

18.81%
79

420

Increase production ofaccessory dwelling units (granny flats) 38.81%
l6?

20.24%
85

420

Replace a commercial zoning with residential zoning to allow for housing 30.00%
126

31.670/"

133

420

ARE TIIERE AI\Y OTIIER STRATEGIES YOU SUGGEST THE CITY TO CONSIDER TO CREATE MORE HOUSINC
OPPORTUNITIES?

NoneA.lo More Housing 40 9.5o/o

Mixed Use 10 2.4Vo

Build High Density - Urban Village 4 t%

Keep Growth South of 50 l1 2.6%

Tiny Homes 6 1A5%

Focus on Nature and Trail Connections 4 0.9%

Housing and Support Services for Homeless 5 1.2%

Not Sure 16 3.8%

Missing Middle 5 1.2%

TOTAL l0l 23.05%

Page 705

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Q.13 Do you have any addrtional housing related comments that are not
listed above and should be considered in the Housing Element update

process?

Aacwered:196 Skipped:2?4

COMMENTS/CONCERNS RESPONSES

Folsom has enough apartments, especially along East Bidwell Street and Creekside Drive. Primary
concems include traffic, increased crime and neighborhood compatibility.

53 12.6Vr

Responded "no" or response/comment was uffelated to the question. 46 11%

Folsom already has enough housing and the community needs to be concerned about increased traffic
(especially on East Bidwell Street), water availability and school overcrowding.

27 6.4%

Concentrate new housing in the Folsom Plan Area. All new low-income apartments should be built
South of Highway 50.

20 4.8%

Folsom needs to address the homeless issue. Parks and the Central Business District do not feel safe.
Folsom needs a permanent shelter and social services to get individuals offthe sheet.

l7 4%

Folsom needs more moderately priced homes that first time home buyers can afford. 13 3.1%

Cookie-cutter homes in the new developments have no character. They all look the same and the lots
are too small.

8 l.9o/o

Focus on connecting new developments to recreation hails and ensuring that neighborhoods are
walkable in order to reduce the reliance on cars.

6 1.4%

Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) need to be designed in the architectural style of the neighborhood.
The ministerial process needs to be replaced by a discretionary approval. Allow tiny homes to be used
for ADUs

6 1.4%

TOTAL 196 46.6

*Unique Responses Below (Appendix A)

Page 706

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

Appendix A

Q.13 Do yott have any additional housing related comments that are not
listed above and should be considered in the Housing Element update

process?

It might make sense to repurpose some older or unused commercial areas into low income housing with the
way the economy and business is changing. There are also tiny house communities in the country that have

excellent models for 1-3 person dwellings with centralized facilities and work opportunities.

Pick a street to allow for RV homeless campers instead of building more low-income housing. The street
Out of Bounds brewing is on would be a good place for that.

I would encourage investigating design standards for communities that have done a great job with housing
developments and mixed use (Portland, Boulder, many others). Too much of Folsom's growth is beige and
un-interesting architecfure. Having pride over attractive mix use and low-income housing creates a more
interesting and welcoming community. Architecture and development should reflect the diversity of the
region. I would also look at how we can ensure bike lanes all the way to light rail (there are currently gaps

along existing paths with minimal protected bike lanes or no bike lanes).

Creating the right mix of housing to meet the needs of all will help meet the requirements in other areas,

such s the need for workers at various skill levels. When everyone's needs are being reasonable met,
everyone is healthier and happier. The only caveat is that homeless housing must be accompanied by social
workers helping these people deal with their issues and lead them back to self-sufficiency. The only other
thing that should be considered is some form of family entertainment such as an amusement park. Finally,
we have enough restaurants, the food industry is ballooning in this area nd mabe unsustainable.

a

a

a

Focus on light rail stops to accommodate nodes of housing.

Small Folsom is already fragmented and the fragmentation is growing. East Bidwell is very different from
Folsom Blvd, which is very different from the Central business areas, which total contrasts with Sutter
Street. We need residential mixed-use in all of these areas so its easier to move around without requiring
use of cars. We need a second hospital here in Folsom and fewer drive-thru restaurants.

Veteran preference or special assistance for those who serve the community

a

a

I believe upgrading the lower-income, older neighborhoods in Folsom would be an important step to take.

Homes for seniors in gated communities like in Cameron Park and Heritage Park in Natomas. Would have
community building and gym and pool. Would need a developer to build. No more apartments.

a

Page 707

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

Appendix A - Continued

Development and growth is necessary but Folsom needs a second police station or sub-station for the south
of 50 growth. As well as another hospital and schools to support the growing community.

Rent control and transportation to school since only ONE bus to school on the mornings.

The city seems to have "lower" income housing concentrated in certain areas. This has a negative impact
on our schools and perception of neighborhoods. For example, Empire Ranch does not have enough diverse
housing options and so lower income families are not living in this area. For future developments, it would
be nice to see homes of all sizes scattered in the development. Not all lower income families want to live
in attached housing.

I heard that the state identified the prison land as an option for new housing-that seems like a bad idea.

Widen your roads. You already have the density. Your volume over capacity ration is high.

It seems we need a variety of homes. My son has special needs and will always live with us-
multigenerational housing would be ideal. Our daughter will go to college and I can't think of anywhere
in Folsom where she would want to come back to as a young professional. On another note, I think Folsom
needs to do more to attract large corporations that provide stock options and bonuses. Thanks!

I believe in addition to the housing increase we need to coordinate all the other important city support
structure to meet the needs, education, transportation, public safety, etc. This coordination is, to me, more
important because the housing supply is forced on us and we need to build the structure around it so the
city stays a great place to live.

Add smaller houses in new subdivision rather than these 3,000-4,000 sq monolithic homes that only very
wealth can afford. Developing smaller senior only communities does not cut it. Healthy neighborhoods
have a mix of unit types and a mix of people living in them. Folsom also needs to provide more support to
build very affordable apartments through subsidized loans, fee waivers and density bonuses.

Put multiple use at the corner of Blue Ravine and Oak. Too many low-income in one area as is. No fair to
the homeowners in the area.

Open up some units at the already build complexes and or establish low income contracts with established
complexes, for example, the new complex only has 6 units out of 200 why not a lot more? 25-30

We need more multi-generational houses (i.e Ranch) - fix the toad and water issues BEFORE building new
housing units. Reduce the number of houses built on the hillside so that we don't look any look any more
like Conka Costa County. Folsom is starting to look over-crowded.

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

Page 708

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

a

a

a

a

a

Appendix A - Continued

Areas that have put cheaper to rent or buy duplexes on most corners have developed into nice heterogenous
neighborhoods. Folsom is insanely nimby. I have lived here for almost 38 years now and have watched
this yuppified, we are better than you, attitude prevail. It is sad.

Have City Attorney meet with City Attorneys from all California Cities. Prepare and present arguments to
State of Califomia to resist unreasonable unrealistic affordable housing requirements.

Do not rely on ADU's in lieu of rezoning to meet RHNA.

Higher density housing should be distributed evenly throughout the city, ideally, near shopping and
employment centers to reduce traffic. Proximity to public transit only benefits seniors who cannot drive
and those experiencing homelessness - lower income households in Folsom already own cars and can drive
to transit stations as necessary.

We need another hospital to accommodate our growing population.

Increase focus on water reclamation and energy efficiency

Build apartments closer to Public Transportation and Shopping, use residents to refer problems to the
manager, monthly meeting or newsletter monthly.

Make new housing and apartments accessible for people with disabilities and the elderly. Many apartments
in Folsom don't have elevators and hardly any houses have ramps or no stairs to enter. People with
disabilities should not be forced to live only in specific segregated housing units for the simple reason that
nothing else is accessible. We have the ability to do better in Folsom, so let's do better. Thank you.

Senior apartments based on income are needed as the population ages. Whole communities of these types
of residences would add value to our area.

a

a

a

Page 709

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



W
2021 - 202C

HOUSIN G
ELEMENT

t.!ll:;1.(.?r.l lJ P D A T E

GUIDE THE FUTURE

OF HOUSING IN

FOLSOM !

FOLSOM 2021 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE SURVEY
The City of Folsom wants to hear your thoughts and ideas on housing needs in Folsom.. The City is conducting a

community survey to gather information on the housing needs and priorities of Folsom residents in order to form
strategies to meet the City's housing needs. A presentation on the City's Housing Element Update is available

online at www.folsomhousingelement.com.

Please help guide the future of housing in Folsom by responding to the survey online at

www.folsomhousingelement.com/get-involved OR

You may contact Senior Planner, Stephanie Henry at 916.461.6208 or shenry@folsom.ca.us and request that the
survey be mailed to you.

The survey will be available from June 1, 2020, through July 31, 2020.

GUIDE THE FUTURE

OF HOUSING IN

FOLSOM !

FOLSOM 2021 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE SURVEY
TheCityofFolsomwantstohearyourthoughtsandideasonhousingneedsinFolsom.. TheCityisconductinga
community survey to gather information on the housing needs and priorities of Folsom residents in order to form
strategies to meet the City's housing needs. A presentation on the City's Housing Element Update is available

online at www.folsomhousingelement.com.

Please help guide the future of housing in Folsom by responding to the survey online at

www,folsomhousingelement.com/get-involved oR

You may contact Senior Planner, Stephanie Henry at 916.461.6208 or shenry@folsom.ca.us and request that the

survey be mailed to you.

The survey will be available from June 1, 2020, through July 31, 2020.

GUIDE THE FUTURE

OF HOUSING IN

FOLSOM !

FOLSOM 2021 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE SURVEY
The City of Folsom wants to hear your thoughts and ideas on housing needs in Folsom.. The City is conducting a

community survey to gather information on the housing needs and priorities of Folsom residents in order to form
strategies to meet the City's housing needs. A presentation on the City's Housing Element Update is available

online at www.folsomhousingelement.com.

Please help guide the future of housing in Folsom by responding to the survey online at
www.folsomhousingelement.com/get-involved OR

You may contact Senior Plannel Stephanie Henry at 916.461.6208 or shenry@folsom.ca.us and request that the
survey be mailed to you.

The survey will be available from June L,2O2O, through July 31, 2020.

W
2A2t - 2025

HOUSIN G
ELEMENT

t..(lf:,.1.(.fr.f U P D A T E

2021 - 2029

HOUSING
ELEMENT

f.(ll:.'I.(.fLl U P D A T E

Page 710

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT C

Land Use Element Update

Page 711

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



' ' 
rrl' 

,-l'i'i

.Lt. t t l,l, ' , i 1: 1, , r

LAND USE I 2

Adopted August 28, 2018, llr',rt';irr I Attilrt';l .l(),' 2-1

Page 712

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LFIOM
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN nffi=6

This page is intentionally left blanh.

Au gu st 28, 201 q_Bevtsed i!g!s!2021

Page 713

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Land Use Diagrarn and
Standards

LAND USE I 2

The Land Use Diagram depicts proposed land usesfor Fotsom through the year

2035 and beyond. The land uses are represented using designations-districts
that specifr the type and intensity of a[towed land uses. The boundary tines

between land use designations are delineated as specifically as possible, in

most cases following parcel lines.

The fottowing sections describe the land use designations appearing on the
Land Use Diagram (figure LU-1), and standards of residentiat density and

buitding intensity for the land use designations.

Development Standards
These are legaI standards of density for residential uses and standards of
building intensity for nonresidentiatand mixed use. Specific ptans, such as the
Folsom Plan Area Specific ptan (fpnSp), must match the tand use development

intensities and standards outlined in the Folsom General Ptan. The fottowing

exptains how these standards operate.

Density. Standards of buitding intensity for residential uses are stated as a

range (i.e., minimum and maximum) of attowabte number of dwetting units per

gross acre. The diagram below shows various buitding configurations
representing different density ranges. Standards of poputation density can be

determined based on an assumption of persons per household.

123x"ilHp" 16 m*Hp," 20slitllst?"84

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-3

Page 714

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"(DLS(}lld
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN HFT=6

FloorArea-Ratio (rnn). standards of buitd ing intensity for nonresidential uses,

such as mixed-use, commerciat, and industriat development, are stated as a

range (i.e., minimum and maximum) of FARs. ln the case of mixed-use

developments that include residential uses, the FAR inctudes residential
buitding square footage, and the development must meet both FAR and

residentiaI density standards.

An FAR is the gross buitding area on a site, exctuding structured parking, to the
net devetopable area ofthe site. The net developable area is the total area of
a site exctuding portions that cannot be developed (e.g., right-of-way, pubtic
parks). A site includes atl contiguous parcels that witt share parking or access.

For example, on a lot with 25,000 square feet of land area, a FAR of 0.50 witt
atlow 12,500 square feet of useable buitding floor area to be built, regardless

of the number of stories in the buitding (e.g., 6,250 square feet per floor on

two floors or 12,500 square feet on one ftoor). On the same 25,000-square-foot
lot, a FAR of 1.00 would a[[ow 25,000 square feet of useable floor area, and a
FAR of 2.00 would a[[ow 50,000 square feet of useable floor area. The diagram

below shows various buitding configurations representing FARs of 0.50, 1.00,

and 2.00.

White FAR provides for the overall development size and intensity, it does not
specifo the form or character of the buitding. Different interpretations of the
same FAR can result in buildings of very different character.

2-4 Ado pted August 28, 201R; Revised August 2021

Page 715

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



LAND USE I 2

Irand Use Designations
Table LU-t Residential tteignations

Singte ramity (Sr)

This designation provides for singte-famity detached homes.

Singte Famity High Density (sruo)

This designation provides for singte-famity detached homes and single-
famity attached homes that incIude duplexes, hatfplexes, and zero-tot-[ine
homes. This designation atso provides for mobile home parks.

Density/lntensity Range

2-4 Dwetting Units per Acre

4-7 Dwelling Units per Acre

7-12 Dwetting Units per

Acre

12-20 Dwetting Units per
Acre

20-30 Dwetting Units per

Acre

Multifamily tow oensity (t{to)

This designation provides for singte-famity and muttifamity residentiaI units,

inctuding sma[[-lot SF detached, zero-[ot-[ine homes, duplexes, hatfplexes,

townhouses, condominiu ms, and apartments.

Muttifamily Medium Density (MMD)

This designation provides for multifamily residentiaI units, inctuding
town houses, condominiums, and apartments.

Multifamity High Density (MHD)

This designation provides for multifamity residentiat units in apartment
bu itdings.

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-5

Page 716

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F0f,-sond
o35 

-
G€NERAL PLAN HFT=6

General commercial (GC)

This designation provides for a wide range of retai[, office, lodging, and

service uses. Typically, general commercial parcels accommodate power

centers, lifestyle centers, and freestanding stores or offices.

Regional Commercial center (Rcc)

This designation provides for highway-oriented, large-scale regional retai[,

entertainment, business, todging, and public uses. Uses in this district witt

serve the entire region.

Auto-oriented commercial (Aoc)

This designation provides for vehicular sates and service.

Table LU-2: c.omrcrcial Dsignations

community commercial (CC)

This designation provides for community-based retail and service uses

intended to serve residentiaI neighborhoods within the city.

Tabte !U-3: ilhed Use oesignations

ocnsity/lntensity nange

FAR: 0.2-0.5

FAR:0.2-0.5

FAR:0.2-1.0

FAR: 0.1-0.3

DeEityrhteBity Range

20-30 Dwetting Units per

Acre

FAR:0.5-1.5

20-30 Dwelling Units per

Acre

FAR:0.5-2.0

Irlixed Use (MU)

This designation provides for a mixture of commercial and residential uses

that are mutually compatible by encouraging high-quatity, innovative site

design. This designation allows for muttifamily housing as we[[ as shops,

restaurants, services, offices, hospitality, and other compatible uses,

Historic Fobom t{ixed Use (xr)

This designation provides for a mixture of commercial and residential uses

designed to preserve and enhance the historic character of Fotsom's old

town center.

2-6 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Aueust 2021

Page 717

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



LAND USE I 2

lndustriaUO'fiice Pa* (lilD)

This designation provides for office, research and development, wholesale,
light industriat and simitar uses. Uses that support the primary uses, such as

restaurants, are also a[[owed.

T.ble LU-tr E nploynentrlndudrial Designations

erofessional Office (eO)

This designation provides for [ow-intensity business and professional

offices that are compatibte with higherintensity residentiaI uses.

Iabte LU-5: Public D€cignations

Table tU-6r Oveday Oesignations

oensity/mensity narEe

FAR:0.2-1.2

FAR: 0.2-0.5

Donsity/lntensity Range

FAR:0.2-1.0

FAR: 0.0-0.1

FAR:0.0-0.1

Density/lntensity Range

20-30 Dwelling Units per

Acre

FAR:0.5-1.5

Public and Quasi-Public Facility (PQP)

This designation supports the needs of the community by providing for
governmentat, civic, culturat, heatth, education, and infrastructure uses.

Parks (P)

The Parks land use designation provides for active and passive recreational
opportunities in Fotsom.

open space (oS)

The Open Space land use designation encompasses the preserved natural
open space areas of Folsom.

East Bidwell Conidor (gsc) overlay

This overlay designation gives property owners along the East Bidwell
Corridor the flexibitity to develop sites as mixed use. lt provides for a mixture
of commercial and residential uses that are mutualty compatible atong East

Bidwe[[ Street. This designation balances existing commerciaI uses with
future mixed-use development. This designation allows for multifamily
housing as wetl as shops, restaurants, services, offices, and other compatible
uses-

,+Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021

Page 718

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LFI()Id nm=635 

-
General Plan Planning Alea
The Planning Area is the geographic area for which the General Plan establishes policies about future urban growth,

long-term agricultural activity, and natural resource conservation. State law requires each city to include in its
General Plan a[[ territory within the boundaries ofthe incorporated area as wetl as "any land outside its boundaries
which in the planning agency's judgment bears retation to iG planning" (California Government Code Section
65300). The P[anning Area for the Folsom 2035 General Plan includes the entire city limits and approximatety 5,600

acres of unincorporated [and outside the city timits, as shown in Figure LU-1.

The Planning Area includes two projects that have been approved by Sacramento County: Glenborough and Easton

Place. Glen borough at Easton is a 1,208-acre mixed-use community providing a variety of land uses, transportation
options, emptoyment opportunities, housing diversity, and active and passive recreational uses. The project has

been approved by the County for 3,239 housing units, 699,500 square feet of commercial and office space, and 513

acres of parks and open space, The 2.6-mile, 270-acre Alder Creek open space area offers habitat for many riparian
plant and animal species, as wel as wildlife and trail connections to the American River Parkway system.

Easton Place consists of 183 acres centered on the existing HazeI Avenue tight rait station on Folsom Boulevard.
The majority of Easton Place is located within a half-mite radius of the tight raiI station, which will atso serve as a

center for [oca[ and regional bus transit service. Easton Place is a mixed-use, transit-oriented community close to
Highway 50, Hazel Avenue, and Folsom Boutevard. The project has been approved by the County for 1,644 housing
units, 3,527,900 square feet of commercial and office uses, and 7.5 acres of parks and open space.

Combined, Easton Ptace and Gtenborough at Easton represent 1,391 acres,4,883 housing units, and over 4,2 million
square feet of commercial and office space. Approximately 37 percent of the combined acreage (521 acres) is

devoted to parks and open space and, in addition to the Alder Creek corridor, inctudes 165 acres ofadditional open
space, 60 acres of parks, a 26-acre community resource area, and over nine miles oftraits. Three schools, two fire
stations, one public safety center, and a [ibrary are also included, as is parallel road capacity to Highway 50.

The projects are fulty entitled, including the certification of the EIR; the 404 permit has been obtained; the water
suppty is established and witl be provided by the City of Folsom; school mitigation and park development
agreements have been approved; Phase 1 improvement plans have been prepared; and the structures for CFD

financing districts have been approved.

The area south of White Rock Road within the General Plan PlanningArea is outside the city limits and Sphere of
lnfluence, and within unincorporated Sacramento County. The area largely consists of grazing [and, but also
includes gravel quarries and a section of the Prairie City State Vehicular Recreation Area. The City is exploring
potentiatty relocating the City Corporation Yard within this area. The Sacramento County 2030 General Plan

designates this area as ceneral Agricutture. However, the 2050 Sacramento Regional Blueprint identifies this area

as "vacant urban designated land." Given the location adjacent to Fo]som City limits, the potential impacts oftruck
traffic from the quarries, and the proposed location of the City corporation yard, it is important that the City stay
abreast of activities within this area for potentia[ impact on the City of Folsom.

Since 1996, the City of Folsom has been in a Memorandum of Understanding (trlou) with the Local Agency Formation
Commission and Sacramento County. The MoU guarantees that the City witl be notified of any land use changes in

the Area of Concern adjacent to the southern edge of the current Sphere of lnfluence, as any land use changes or
other governmental actions taken by Sacramento County wil[ impact the City of Folsom.

2-8 Adopted August 28,2018: Revised Auqust 202'1

Page 719

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Figure LU-l: Iard Use Diagrram

LAitD usE I 2

E
eqo-!

Ue Dialrn - F4rc lu.l
( lHdAqd:orr)

. ot*s
{o$ tu

*1"'

.t r'

u
IIa

Adopted August 28,2018; lcvjs€d iugusl2Qzl 2-9

Page 720

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI()M
GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi
This page is intentionolly left blonh,

Ausust 28. 201& Revised Ausust 2021

Page 721

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



LAND USE I 2

Growth and Ghange
Folsom has grown considerably since its founding in the 1800s and
incorporation in 1946. Throughout its history Folsom's growth has led to
prosperity, and policies in this section aim to continue that legacy. Some
policies are continuations of successfu[ [ong-standing City policies, white
others are new and reflect contemporary planning practices and anticipate
futu re cha[[enges and opportunities.

GoalLU l.l
Retain and enhance Fotsom's quatity of [ife, unique identity, and sense of
community while continuing to grow and change.

LU 1.1.1 Zoning Ordinance

Ensure that the Folsom Zoning Ordinance is consistent with
the poticies and programs of the General Ptan. FEE

LU 1.1.2 Land Use Cooperation

Coordinate with Sacramento, Placer, and E[ Dorado Counties,
as wetl as the Sacramento Area Council of GovernmenG
(SACOG) and Sacramento LocalAgency Formation Commission
(mrco), on land use decisions that may impact robom. lGd

LU 1.1.3 Annexation and Services

Require appticants apptying for annexation of [ands to the city
to demonstrate the financiat benefit to the City. FEEI

LU 1.1.4 Sphere of lnfluence for Corporation Yard

Coordinate with LAFCO to revise the Sphere of lnftuence to
permit the new corporation yard. IEQ

LU 1.1.5 Specific Ptans

Require the adoption of specific plans for new growth areas.

@
LU 1.1.6 Compact Development Patterns

Encourage compact devetopment patterns that support walking
bicycting, transit usage, and more efficient use of land. @

LU1.1.7 ConcentratedDevelopment

Altow project appticants to concentrate the proposed

devetopment on a portion of the site through the ctustering of
buitdings to encourage the preservation ofopen spaces, cuttural
resources, and naturatfeatures ofthe landscape. FEE

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-11

Page 722

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLS()nf,
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Ft=ru

tU 1.1.8 Preserve NaturalAssets

LU 1.1.9

tu 1.1.10

LU 1.1.11

LU 1.1.12

Maintain the existing natural vegetation, landscape features,
open space, and viewsheds in the design of new

developments. EE
Preserve Historic Resources

Recognize the importance of history in the City of Fotsom, and
preserve historic and culturat resources throughout the city,
to the extent feasibte. FEE

Network ofOpen Space

Ensure designated open space is connected wheneverfeasible
with the larger community and regional network of natural
systems, recreational assets, and viewsheds. FO

Vacant and Underutilized Sites

Monitor residential and non-residentiat development and
make adjustments as necessary to the amount of land
designated for various uses and the rate of project approvals
to promote a reasonable citywide balance between new
employment-generating devetopment and housing

development [!![
lnfi[[ Development

Coordinate with the reaI estate development community to
encourage infitt devetopment in key parcels north of U.S.

Highway 50. lnfitt development shoutd foltow these guidelines:

1. Respectthe local context. New devetopment should
improve the character and connectivity of the
neighborhoods in which it occurs. Physicat design
should respond to the scale and features ofthe
su rround i ng com m u nity, wh ite im proving criticat
elements such as transparency and permeabitity.

2. Worh with neighbors. lnfitt development requires
neighborhood consuttation to understand the
concerns, goats, and needs ofexisting
neighborhoods. Ensure the ptanning and design
process provides proper avenues for neighborhood
input white futfitting the community's larger goals for
watkability and compact devetopment. @

2-12 opted August 28, 2018;_Eeyjscd_Augus!2021

Page 723

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



LAND USE I 2

Sustainable Building Practices Q

Promote and, where appropriate, require sustainable building
practices that incorporate a "whole system" approach to
designing and constructing buitdings that consume less

energy, water and other resources; facilitate natural
ventilation; use daytight effectively; and, are healthy, safe,

comfortable, and durabte. FDE

Promote Resiliency @

Continue to collaborate with nonprofit organizations,
neighborhoods groups, and other community organizations,
as we[[ as upstream, neighboring, and regional groups to
effectivety partner on and promote the issues relating to air
quality, renewable energy systems, sustainable land use,

adaptation, and the reduction of greenhouse gas (CHc)

emissions. @
SACOG Blueprint Principles

Strive to adhere to the Sacramento Regional Btueprint Growth

Principtes (see Appendix a). [!
Community Engagement in the Planning Process

Engage the community in the planning process. Ensure the
pubtic has access to accurate and timely information and has

convenient and meaningfulways to contribute ideas. lE0

LU 1.1.13

tu 1.1.14

LU 1.1.15

LU 1.1.16

Adopted August 28, 2018; fcvue_d iugus!2U 2-13

Page 724

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLEI()M
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hm=@

Urban Genters
ln 2015, Fotsom is a city with two distinct urban centers. Historic Fotsom, the
tong-time heart of the city, is the first urban center. The Broadstone District,

with the Patladio at the center, is a newer urban town center. Between now

and 2035 the South of Highway 50 Town center witt begin construction. Folsom

has other important centers of activity; the three identified here serve large,
geographicatty-distinct areas and offer a wide range of amenities.

With three distinct centers, Fotsom witt have gathering ptaces near every

Fotsom resident. Residents can attend an event, shop, and dine within a short
walk, bike ride, or drive from their homes. Policies in this section consider this
overall city structure and support and enhance urban centers. This focus on

creating and enhancing urban centers reflects the broader goal ofthe General

Ptan, which is that people, and not the automobile, are at the center of
Folsom's planning today.

Ilistoric folsom

Historic Folsom has been a center for the city since Catifornia's Gotd Rush and

its compact, interconnected streets are an example of 'old urbanism.'ln recent
years the City has undertaken several projects to rejuvenate the district The

City buitt a new parking garage and refurbished a historic railroad turntabte.
ln 2011 the City worked with area merchants to revitatize historic Sutter Street
Historic Folsom is atso the finat stop on the Gotd Line tight rait that takes
passengers as far as Downtown Sacramento.

2- AUgrlg!?8, 2014 Revised August 2021

Page 725

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Broadstone District

The Broadstone District is Folsom's newest shopping and entertainment
district. The Paltadio, a "lifestyle center" that arranges shopping, dining, and

entertainment options in a walkable layout, forms the heart of the Broadstone

District. The Patladio is ringed by other new shopping and dining options and

as the District grows, additionat offerings, connections, and housing witt attow

it to mature into a true mixed-use center.

Souttr of Highway S0Ibt rn Center

I.AND USE I 2

This urban center is stitt in the ptanning stages. The Folsom Plan Area Specific

Plan sets the course for devetopment south of Highway 50 and describes the
town center as a place with a mix of retail, high-density housing, and

employment uses. This town center will serve as a community focal point for
the entire new development south of Highway 50.

Adopted August 28,20'lB: Revised August 2021 2-15

Page 726

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



re*s,otr{nm=@
GENERAL PLAil I

tu 2.1.1

LU 2.1.2

LU 2.13

Historic Folsom

Maintain the existing street fabric and pattern and enhance

the tourist-oriented, historic commercial uses in the Historic
Fotsom commercial areas to preserve the unique character of
Fotsom's historic center and support tocal business. @
Broadstone District

Encourage a mix of uses, including an emphasis on high-
density residentia[, and pedestrian- and bicycte-friendty
street patterns in the Broadstone District to increase its
functionality as a vibrant gathering ptace for the community.

@
South of50 Town Center

Encourage the estabtishment of a town center south of
Highway 50 that serves as a community gathering place. The

town center shoutd be easily accessible by all modes of
transportation and have a fine-grained mix of uses, inctuding
retail, service, residentiat, public, entertainment, and

recreation uses that creates a watkabte environment. @$

2-1 August 28, 201R' Revised Aueust 2021

Page 727

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Mixed-Use Districts
Policies in this section support the devetopment of mixed-use districts in
appropriate areas, particutarly along East Bidwelt Street. Mixed-use districts
consist of three or more different uses, including office, retai[, entertainment,
civic, and housing. They are nodes of activity that support walkabte, urban

lifestyles. Mixed-use districts provide a diversity of housing types, the kind

that often attracts young, educated workers, a demographic critical to the

continued economic vitality of Folsom. Empty nesters, who want to stay in
their community but no [onger want the maintenance or costs associated with

a detached home, are attracted to mixed-use districts. Mixed-use designations
give property owners additionat ftexibitity. lf they choose to redevelop their
property, they can choose a range of uses to meet existing or growing market

needs. or they can maintain the existing site uses untitthe market demands a

more diverse and intense land use.

God IrU 3.1
Encourage mixed-use development projects that create vibrant, watkable

districts.

LU 3.1.1 Mixed-Use Nodes O

LAND USE I 2

Encourage mixed-use devetopment in nodes located at major
intersections that include housing, open space, and offices.

This development pattern should reflect best practices in

mixed-use development, in contrast to strip retail
devetopmenG along corridors. FDFI

oistricts and Corridors

Encourage development of diverse mixed-use districts and

corridors that address different community needs and market

sectors, provide a variety of housing opportunities, and create

distinct and unique areas of the city. EEEI

Mixed-Use Design

Encourage mixed-use devetopments to timit the number of
access driveways, minimize buitding setbacks, and require

active edges on ground ftoor spaces adjacent to sidewatks.

@
Compatibitity with ndjoining Uses

Enco u rage developme nt and redevelo pment of h ighe r-de nsity

mixed-use development within districts and along corridors to

be compatibte with adjacent [and uses, particularly residential

uses. FEEI

LU 3.1.2

ru 3.1.3

LU 3.1.4

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-17

Page 728

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI()M
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hm=6

LU 3.1.5

tu 3.1.6

tu 3.1.7

LU 3.1.8

East Bidwelt Street O

Encourage new devetopment atong East Bidwetl Street by

creating a stronger mixed-use devetopment pattern, both
horizontal and vertica[, with an emphasis on medium- and

higher-density housing, while atso addressing locaI and

citywide demand for retaiI and services. [!$
Central Commercial District O

Encourage development of mixed-use projects that create a

walkabte, vibrant district atong East Bidwett Street between

Coloma Street and Blue Ravine noad. EEEI

Creekside District

Encourage development of a medical and assisted tiving
district centered around Mercy Hospital Folsom and East

Bidwett Street that includes a mix of uses, inctuding medicat

offices, housing, and related retait and service uses. FEE

College District

Encourage development of a vibrant, watkabte district
centered around Folsom Lake Cottege and East Bidwelt Street
that inctudes student and facutty housing, retail, and daily
service uses for students, facutty, and staff. FEEI

SLrccesshr I collegc clistricts
provitlc hotrsirrg, shoppirrg,

ciining, ancl scrviccs uses that
cater to college stuclcnts,

2 Auqust 28, 201& Revised August 2021

Page 729

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Transit-Oriented
Development

LAND USE I 2

Transit-oriented devetopment (roo) is development that combines street
patterns, parking management strategies, and buitding density to take

advantage of nearby transit service. Typicatty, TOD works best with high-

frequency transit lines such as tight rait and frequent bus service. Folsom is

served by RegionalTransit's Gold Line tight rait that connects Historic Folsom

to the Sacramento Valley Station in downtown Sacramento. There are three

Gotd Line stations in Folsom, each with a different amount of existing

surrounding development and commuter parking nearby.

Every four years the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SnCOC)

prepares a Metropotitan Transportation Ptan/Sustainable Communities

Strategy (MTP/SCS) for the Sacramento Region. The 2016 MTP/SCS identifies
Transit Priority Areas (TPAs), which are areas within one-half mite of major

transit stops or high-quatity transit corridors. The MTP/SCS identifies three
TPAs: one around each of the three tight railstations. With the passage of SB

375 in 2008, there are a variety of CEQA streamlining benefits available to
projects that are consistent with the MTP/Scs, particularty projects within
TPAs.

Historic Folsom Station
Historic Folsom station is at the west end of Sutter Street, the spine of the

historic district. The City's corporation yard is within a quarter mile of the

station, and the City is ptanning on vacating the site by 2035. The site south of
Leidesdorff Street and north of Sutter Street is vacant. Both sites could be

appropriate for transit-oriented development. The Historic District differs

from the rest of Fotsom, and while the policies in this section appty to allthe
stations, development that is appropriate at the Glenn Station or lron Point

Station might not be appropriate around the Historic Folsom Station.

Glenn Station
Gtenn Station is at the intersection of Folsom Boulevard and Glenn Drive. A

park-and-ride tot and the Kikkoman Foods facility surround the east side of
the station, making it a useful station for people commuting in and out of
town. The State Department of Parks and Recreation and the United States

Bureau of Rectamation manage the tand to the west of Folsom Boulevard,

includingthe dredge taitings that cover most of the site. The American River

Bike Trail runs on the west side of the site. Any changes in this area woutd

require close coordination with the State Department of Parks and Recreation.

Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021 2-19

Page 730

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@H.gORd
O35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hffi=6

Iron Point Station
The Fotsom Premium Outlets anchor the lron Point Station. Other retait

options, inctuding a hotetand movie theater, hetp create a shopping and retait

hub. On the northwest side of Folsom Boutevard, the American River Bike Trail

weaves through the Witlow Creek Recreation Area. New transit-oriented
deveLopment, particularty mixed-use development, would [ikely occur onty if
existing retail sites were redevetoped.

Fotsom may also be served by new transit lines and stations in the future. A

frequent bus line may be buitt in the area south of Highway 50. ln addition, the

Gotd Line may be expanded to serve other areas in Folsom. Folsom has

development opportunities around existing stations and possible

development opportu n ities arou nd futu re stations.

The existing transit-oriented devetopment focus areas are shown on the Land

Use Diagram as circtes with a quarter-mile radius around the station. A

quarter-mile is rough ty the distance a person woutd be witting to walk to reach

a transit station. The focus area boundaries are not absotute and sites just

outside the boundaries on the map may be suitabte for transit-oriented
devetopment. Poticies in this section aim to encourage successfut, dense

transit-o riented develo pm e nt near transit stations.

GodtU4.l
Estabtish transit-supported mixed-use districts near rapid transit stations that
support the needs of commuters, residents, employees, business-owners, and

patrons.

LU 4.1.1

LU 4.1.2

Pubtic/ Private Partnerships

Coordinate with other public agencies and members of the

business and real estate communities when supporting

transit-oriented development in Folsom @!!!|
Mix of Uses Near Station @

Encourage new development around transit stations that mix

retail with a variety of housing and employment options to
transform Folsom stations into destinations that take

advantage of pubtic investment in transit. FEE

2-20 pted August 28, 201R; Revised Aueust 2027

Page 731

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Environmental documents are not required to
reference, describe or discuss: 1) growth-i nducing
impacts, 2) impacts on transportation or climate
change of increased car and truck VMT induced by
project 3) reduced-density alternative to project.

Mixed Use
Residemial

. At least75% oftotal buildingsquare footage for residential
use

. Consistent with the use designation, density, building
intensity, and applicable policies ofthe SACOG MTP/SCS

OR

o ATransit Priority Projectas defined below

BenefiG described above PLUS option to review under
a "Sustainable Commu nities Environmental
Assessment"
. An lnitial Study is prepared identif,ing significant or

potentiatty signifi cant impacts.
. Where the lead agency determines that cumulative

impacts have been addressed and mitigated in the
MTP/SCs, they witl not be "considerable."

. Off-site alternatives do not need to be addressed.

. Deferential review standard - the burden of proof
for [ega[ challenge is on the petitioner/plaintiff.

o Traffic controUmitigation may be covered by the
MTP/SCS.

Transh Priority
Proiect

. At least 50% of total building square footage for residential
use OR

o lf 26-50% of totat buitding square footage is non-residentiat,
a minimum FAR of 0.75

o Minimum net density of20 du/acre
o Within 0.5 mites of major transit stop or high-quality transit

corridor included in the regionat transportation ptan (No
parcel more than 25% further, and less than 10% of units or
no more than 100 units further than 0.5 miles)

. Consistent with the use designation, density, building
intensity, and applicable policies ofthe sAcoc MTP/scs

Everything for Transit Priority Project PLUS:

o Served by existing utitities
. Does not contain wetlands or riparian areas

. Does not have significant value as a witdlife habitat and
does not harm any protected species

. NotontheCorteseList
o Not on developed open space
. No impacts to historic resources

. No risks from hazardous substances

o No wildfire, seismic, flood, public health risk

. 15% more energy-efficient than CA requirements and 25%

more water-efficient than average for community

. No more than 8 acres

. No more than 200 units
o No building greater than 75,000 square feet
. No net loss of affordable housing

. Compatibte with surrounding industrial uses

o Within 1/2-mite of raiUferry or 1/4-mite of high quality bus
line

. Meets minimum affordable housing requirements as
prescribed in SB 375 OR in-lieu fee paid OR 5 acres of open
space per 1,000 residents provided

Exemptfrom CEQASustainable
Communities
Project

The CEQA benefits provided by SB 375 appty to three types of projects. Betow is a summary of the types of development projects etigible for
these CEQA benefits, specific quatifications for each proiect, and the types of CEQA streamtining available to each type of project.

CEQA BENEFITS PROVIDED BY SB 375

Streamlining BenefitsProject Type Qualifications

LAND USE ] 2

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-21

Page 732

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLSIOnf,
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN mm=ru

LU 4.13

tu 4.1.4

LU 4.1.5

LU 4.1.6

LU 4.1.7

Maximize ToD-Related CEQA Streamtining eenefits @

Assist property owners and developers interested in buitding
high-density housing and employment within SACOG Transit

Priority Areas (i.e., one-hatf mite of tight rail stations) to
maximize CEQA streamtining benefits avaitable through

SACoG's MTP/scs. Fm
Restrict Auto-Oriented Uses Around Transit Stations

Restrict new auto-oriented uses (e.g., automobile repair, gas

station, car wash, drive through restaurants, mini
facitities)within one-quarter mite of tight raiI stations.

Connections Between Modes

storage

@

Encourage transit transfer points to be located at rapid transit
stops to facititate connections between transit modes. ln
addition, the City shoutd require stations to be pedestrian-

and bicycte-friendty. [Q
Parking Management

Devetop long-term parking management approaches that
decrease the amount of land dedicated to surface parking

white maintaining parking capacity. Solutions may inctude

parking structures or shuttles to nearby parking. [$
Corporation Yard Special Study

Prepare a study of the existing Folsom corporation yard site to
determine the best use for the site when Folsom moves its

corporation yard. ilEEE

2 opted August 28, 20lR Revised August 2021

Page 733

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



River District
The riverfront areas of Fotsom are great assets that are currently
underutitized. While they offer recreational opportunities for Folsom

residents, access to the river is limited. Fotsom has the opportunity to make

the river a more integral part of the community fabric by turning its attention
to the river and increasing access. The Generat Plan poticies in this section call
for the preparation of a River District Master Plan. Much of the land

surrounding the river is controtled by the Catifornia State Parks Department,

so increasing access to the river witt require ctose coordination with the State.

Policies in the Parks and Recreation Etement provide further guidance on the

enhancement of riverfront areas and increased access for recreation.

IAND USE I 2

FOLSOM RIVER DISTRICT
STUDY AREA

LightRail Stations

Historic District

Folsom River District StudyArea

{i;

Ef
m

- 

PlanningArea

m ligfif f,5il

I
I

I

j

(

s
c

ENTOACRAM
OUNTY

'-.-1
',1

Ado pted August 28, 201 Sl8cuscd-Augus 2-23

Page 734

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LgOnd
o35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

GoaI IrU 5.1
Support the appropriate enhancement of Folsom's riverfront areas for current

and future residents in order to increase pubtic access, recreationat

opportunities, and economic development in consultation with federal, state,

and regional pubtic land management agencies.

LU 5.1.1 Vision for the River District

Engage the community, stakeholders, and federat, state, and

regional land management agencies in establishing a vision
for Folsom's River District [!![

tU 5.1.2 River District Master Plan

Consider the preparation of a River District Master Plan for
Folsom's riverfront area, that is based on widespread

community engagement as wetl as coordination with the U.s.

Bureau of Reclamation, California Department of Parks and

Recreation, and Sacramento County Regiona[ Parks

DepartmenL nEEq

tU 5.1.3 Enhance Lake Natoma with Compatible Recreation Uses

Enhance the rote of Lake Natoma as a place to recreate and an

amenity for Fotsom residents, and elevate Lake Natoma's role

in supporting [oca[ and regional business and commerce,

inctuding tourism, recreation and leisure, while maintaining

compatibitity with the Folsom Lake State Recreation Area

General Plan. lnvest in strategicalty-located sites along the
tength of Lake Natoma for a diverse mix of passive and active

recreation and tourism activities that are compatible with
nearby land uses, historicalty and culturally important sites,

significant habitat areas, restoration sites, and native fish and

witdtife usage. FEEH

tU 5.1.4 Honor Folsom's Heritage

The River District Master Plan should include a means of
honoring and interpreting Folsom's heritage within the
Historic District. ilffi

2 August 28, 201q Revised August 2021

Page 735

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Residential
Neighborhoods

LAND UsE I 2

Successfu I and stab [e neigh borhoods are key to Fotsom's lo ng-term prosperity

and quality of life. Folsom's historic neighborhoods fan out in a grid south of
Sutter Street. Most of Fotsom's neighborhoods outside of the historic district
were designed and devetoped as part of a master plan, planned unit
development, or specific plan. Policies in this section provide for the
protection, maintenance, and enhancement of Folsom's residentiat

neighborhoods.

Goal I'U 6.1
Attow for a variety of housing types and mix of uses that provide choices for
Fotsom residents, create comptete and tivabte neighborhoods, and encourage

watking and biking.

LU 6.1.1 Complete Neighborhoods

Encourage the establishment of "complete neighborhoods"
that integrate schools, childcare centers, parks, shopping and

employment centers, and other amenities. FEE

tU 6.1.2 Historic Fotsom Residential Areas

Preserve and protect the residential character of Historic

Folsom's residentiat areas. FEE

LU 6.13 Efficiency Through Density

Support an overat[ increase in average residential densities in

identified urban centers and mixed-use districts. Encourage

new housing types to shift from lower-density, large-lot
developments to higher-density, smalt-lot and muttifamity
devetopments, as a means to increase energy efficiency,

conserve water, reduce waste, as well as increase access to
services and amenities (e.g., open space) through an emphasis

of mixed uses in these higher-density developments. FEE

LU 6.1.4 Open Space in Residential Developments

Require open space in each residential development except

the following: devetopments located within a Specific Ptan

Area that has already dedicated open space, on multifamily
parcels of less than 10 acres and, or parcels of less than 20

acres for single famity uses surrounded by existing

development. Open space includes parklands, common areas,

landscaped areas, paths and traits, and plazas. Open space

does not include areas devoted to vehic[e parking, streets, and

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-25

Page 736

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI()M
O35 

-
GENERAL PLAN mm=ffi

tu 6.1.5

tu 6.1.6

LU 6.1.7

LU 6.1.8

landscaped streetscapes. To achieve the open space

guidelines, a devetoper may be altowed to group the homes at
sma[er lot sizes around shared open space features, as long
as the average gross density does not increase. FEE

Off-street Parking

Require sufficient off-street parking for residents be inctuded
in the design of a[[ residentiat projects. Off-street parking for
guests shalt be included in the design of a[[ multifamity
projects. The City shatt attow for reduced parking

requirements for high-density residentiat and mixed-use

developments near transit stations. FEEI

Senior and Convatescent Housing

Encourage the devetopment of independent living, assisted

tiving and convatescent housing facilities that provide heatth

care for seniors. Proposed facitities shatl be evaluated based

on the location and impacts on services and neighboring
properties, and not on a density basis. lndependent living
facitities should be located in watkable environments to
improve the heatth and access ofresidents. EEE

Residentiat Densities in Area Plans and Specific Plans

A[[ow residential densities within an area plan or specific plan

to vary, provided that the overatt dwetting unit buildout within
the plan area shall not exceed that authorized by the General
ptan. EEE

Home-Based Businesses

With issuance of a home occupation permit, a[[ow home

offices and home-based businesses that are compatibte with
the character of the residential unit and do not significantly
impact the neighborhood. FEEI

August 28, 201tL_BcMsc_d,Aug!s!2!2-1

Page 737

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Religious lnstitutions

Require retigious institutions in residential neighborhoods be

designed to be compatibte with the residential character of
the neighborhood and include:

1. Access to the property via an arterial or collector
street;

2. The screening of parking with landscaping and/or
materials that witt btend with surrounding natural

and constructed features ofthe neighborhood; and

3. The shietding of adjacent residential properties from

direct light and gtare from the property. FEE

Enhanced Walking and Biking

Where volume-to-capacity analysis demonstrates that bike

lanes and pedestrian improvements can be included in the
pubtic right-of-way, encourage opportunities to promote

watking and biking in existing suburban neighborhoods

through improvements such as:

. introducing new pedestrian and bicycte connections;

. adding bike lanes and designating and signing bike

routes;

. narrowing streets where they are overly wide;

. introducing ptanting strips and street trees between

the curb and sidewalk; or

r introducing appropriate traffic-calming
improvementt.[@ E

ru 6.1.9

LU 6.1.10

LAND USE I 2

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-27

Page 738

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"OLFlOnd
O35 

-
GENERAL PLAN mm=ffi

Comrnercial Centers
Commercial centers consist of office, retait, service, and entertainment uses.

Fotsom's commercial centers meet the needs of residents and attract
shoppers from the entire region. CommerciaI centers create jobs for Fotsom's

workforce and provide critical sates tax revenue to fund the City's efforts to
ensure a high quatity of tife for residents. Poticies in this section support
Folsom's commercial centers and ensure their long-term success.

GoaI IrU Z.l
Provide for a commercial base of the cityto encourage a strong tax base, more
jobs within the city, a greater variety of goods and services, and businesses

compatible with Fotsom's quatity of tife.

LU 7.1.1 Standards for Commercial Uses

Require new commercial uses to be subject to design and
parking standards for:

1. The number and location of allowed curb cuts;

2. Landscaping or parking areas;

3. The location, size, number, and construction of signs;

4. The configuration and design of commercial
buitdings.

5. Provision of designated, defined bicycte routes from
pubtic right-of-way to bicycte parking/pedestrian

corridors. EEE

LU7.1.2 Enhance Vitatity of Commercial Areas

Encourage devetopment of underutilized and vacant parcels

in commercialzones to improve the aesthetic appearance and

enhance the vitatity of commerciat areas. FEE

LU 7.1.3 Commercial Expansion

Support the expansion of Fotsom's commerciatsector to meet

the needs of Fotsom residents, employees, and visitors. FDE

2-28 Adopted August 28,201Q Revised August 2021

Page 739

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



LU7.1.4

tu 7.1.5

tu 7.1.6

LU7.1.7

"Strip" Commercial Uses

Prohibit new "strip" center devetopment patterns along
arterialstreets. Strip centers are characterized by low-density
commerciatfrontage with parking in front of the buitding and

muttipte access driveways. EDE

Open Space

Require a[[ commerciaI development and commercial portions
of mixed-use development to contain at least 10 percent of
land area in natural, improved, or functional open space,

exclusive of roadways and parking lots. Developments in

mixed-use designations in the FPASP sha[[ provide at leastfive
percent of land area in naturat, improved, or functional open

space, exclusive of roadways and parking lots. FEE

RegionaI Commercial Centers

Require regional commercial centers to be tocated close and

accessible to U.S. Highway 50, preferabty near an interchange.

@
Hotels

Encourage the development of hote[s and related convention
facitities within commercial and mixed-use districts, with an

emphasis on high-quatity devetopm.n,. @EEEB

LAND USE I 2

Employment/Indu strial
Uses
Fotsom's exceltent quatity of tife depends on a strong local economy with good

paying jobs that are stable for both the existing and future economy.

Supportive land use poticies can help attract and retain employers. Poticies in

this section create a land use poticy framework aimed at retaining and

attracting new employers while mitigating any negative impacts of
emptoyment uses on the rest of the community.

GodLU 8.1
Encourage, facilitate, and support the location of office, creative industry,
technotogy, and industriat uses and retention of existing industry in

appropriate locations.

tU 8.1.1 lndustrial Expansion

Promote and assist in the maintenance and expansion of
Folsom's employment sector in areas where services are

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Augus[ 2021 2-29

Page 740

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLFlOM
O35 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

LU 8.1.2

LU 8.1.3

LU 8.1.4

tu 8.1.5

LU 8.1.6

readity available, including: adequate water, wastewater, and

storm drainage facitities as we[[ as easy access to muttiple
modes of transportation. EEE

Small-Scale lndustrial

Ensure the Zoning Ordinance allows opportunities for smalt-
scale industriatand service commercia[ uses (e.g., auto repair)
white considering impacts on nearby residential
neighborhoods. @
Clusters

Encourage complementary businesses and businesses from
the same industry to locate in Folsom. These business ctusters

witl benefit from shared resources, a pool of skitted

employees, secondary support industries, and concentrated
marketing efforts. Flil,^illm

Adjacent Uses and Access

Discourage industrial development in locations where access

confticts with neighboring land uses. EEFI

Transit

Encourage new employment uses to locate where they can be

easily served by pubtic transit. Transit centers shoutd be

incorporated into the project, when appropriate. FEIIR{

lnternal Circulation

Require industriaUoffice parks be designed with internal
circulation and incorporate buffering and landscaped

setbacks to minimize potential adverse impacts on adjacent
tand uses. FEEI

August 28, 201Rj Revised August 2021

Page 741

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Comrnunity Design

IAND USE I 2

Folsom has a strong tradition of high-quatity design that establishes a unique

identity. Policies in this section further sotidifu and advance Folsom's overatl
community look and feet. The poticies buitd on Fotsom's design heritage and

continue to push the boundaries of good community design.

God IrU 9.1
Encourage community design that results in a distinctive, high-quatity buitt
environmentwith a characterthat creates memorabte ptaces and enrichesthe
quatity of tife of Fotsom's residents.

tU 9.1.1 Combine Driveways

Encourage property owners in retail corridors to reduce the
number of driveways along arteriaI roads. When possible,

property owners should cooperate through reciprocal access

and parking or similar agreements linking parking lots to
minimize traffic congestion on the arteriat road. FEEI

LU 9.1.2 Retail Development Design Standards

Develop, maintain, and implement design standards for retail
development to ensure retail districts have well-developed
[andscape buffers, decorative treatments to buitding facades,

and a variety of buitding heights and roof tines. EEE @l
tU 9.1.3 Eliminate Large Blocks

Encourage the insertion of new streets or pedestrian ways in

large "super blocks" that do not have public streets bisecting
them. These large blocks are common in retail corridors and

can reduce pedestrian and bicycle connections to these areas.

@
tU 9.1.4 Gateways

Continue to establish key gateways to Folsom through
landscape design, appropriatety-scated signage, buitding
form, and historic themes to create a unique sense of ptace.

@
tU9.1.5 Pedestrian-FriendlyEntrances

Encou rage automobile-oriented b usiness districts to provide

ctear and tegibte entry features, connected by pedestrian-

friendty watkways. FEE

These two strip matls in

another community have four
driveways nearly adjacent to
each other. This creates an

unsafe and unpleasant
environment for pedestrians

and drivers.

Q

.rr, r!

Some communities use arches

or highty visible signage to
signifiT a community gateway.

The Johnny Cash Bridge serves
as a gateway into Folsom.

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 2-31

Page 742

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLFIOM
o3s 

-
GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

LU 9.1.6

tu 9.1.7

tu 9.1.8

LU 9.1.9

Community Beautifi cation

Encourage the landscaping of pubtic rights-of-way and
ptanting of street trees to beautiflr Folsom consistent with
water-wise poticies. g [!$
oistrict ldentity

Encourage efforts to establish and promote district identities
(e.g., urban centers, East Bidwett Street) through the use of
signage, wayfinding signage, streetscape and buitding design

standards, advertising, and site-specific historic themes. FEE

Cool Paving

ldentifiT opportunities to use coot paving materials and

consider the use of permeable pavement for streets and traits,
where feasibt..E [[$
Passive Solar Access

Ensure, to the extent feasible, that sites, subdivisions,
landscaping, and buitdings are configured and designed to
maximize passive sotar access. FEEI

Delet€d: <S>Renewable and Alternative Energy
Generation Systems Otl
Require the use of sotar, wind, or other on-site renewable
energy generation systems as part ofthe design of new

ptanned developments. I

2-32 Ado pted August 28,2011 Revised August 2021

Page 743

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT D

Safety and Noise Element Update
and

Appendix D: Climate Adaptation and Resilience Report

Page 744

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SAFETV AND NOISE I 9

Adopted August 28, 2018; llqvLse d Au.qll!l'-2021 9-1
Page 745

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFIOn[
203s

GENERAL PLAN HAIE@
This page is intentionally left blanh.

9-2 Ad o pted Au gust 28, 201 8; Scvjscd_Augu$2o2lPage 746

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Emergency Preparedness
SAFETYAND NOISE I9

A communitywith a plan of action in case of emergency can better respond to
disasters and more quickty recover from them. Folsom faces potential hazards

in the form of earthquakes, [iquefaction, flooding, wildfires, hazardous

materiats, and noise. Po[icies in this section ensure that Folsom is adequately
prepared for any type offoreseeable hazard or emergency.

God SN l.l
Maintain an effective response to emergencies, provide support and aid in a
crisis, and repair and rebuild after a crisis.

SN 1.1.1 Emergency Operations Plan

Devetop, maintain, and implement an Emergency Operations

Plan that addresses life and safety protection, medicaI care,

incident stabitization, property conservation, evacuation,

escape routes (inctuding back-up escape routes), mutual aid

agreements, temporary housing, and communications. EEEE

SN 1.1.2 Evacuation Route Assessment

Periodicatly analyze the capacity, safety. and viability of the
City's evacuation routes under a range of emergency scenarios

during updates to the City's Evacuation Plan included in the
City's Emergency Operations Ptan. I

SN 1.1.3 Access Roads

Require devetopment to provide additional access roads

where feasible to provide for safe access of emergency

equipment and civitian evacuation concurrently. The width,
surface, grade, radius- turnarounds, turnouts. bridge

construction. and [engths offire apparatus access roads sha[[

meet the requirements of the State and existing City

'."qr'temenm. E
S+l-+.*Sll-!.1.+-Community Emergency Response Team

Support the Community Emergency Response Team program

to train and prepare residents to mobitize in the event of a
disaster. EFEH

S+{-1#5N-!,11_Cooperatio n

Coordinate with emergency response agencies, schooI

districts, utitities, relevant nonprofits, and business interests

to ensure a coordinated response to and recovery from a

disaster. s! tr

Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised August 2021 9-3Page 747

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFl()M
203s

GENERAL PLAN HMT!ru
s+S-{#S N1.1.6-Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

Maintain on-going hazard assessment as part of the
Sacramento County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Ptan within the
city. EFE

SN 1.1.7 Climate Change Response Capacity Assessment

Maintain the City's capacity to respond to hazards by

assessing future increases in the severity and frequency of
these events and increase capacity as needed to adequately

respond to future hazard impacts. 

=I

9-4 Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021
Page 748

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Geologic and Seismic
Hazards
California is a geologic and seismicatty active state. No major faults cross

Folsom, but nearby faults could create hazardous conditions for Fotsom

residents. lf not adequatety prepared, buitdings, roads, bridges, utility lines,

and other infrastructure could be damaged or destroyed. Poticies in this
section require Folsom to prepare for geotogic and seismic hazards and their
impacts.

God SN 2.1
Reduce risks and minimize impacts to the community from earthquakes and

geotogic hazards.

SN 2.1.1 Requirements

Deve[op, maintain, and imptement land use ptanning, buitding
construction, and retrofitting requirements consistent with
State standards to reduce risk associated with geotogic and

seismic hazards. [!!!|
SN 2.1.2 Roads, Bridges, and Utility Lines

Ensure that the design and engineering of new roads, bridges,

and utility [ines can withstand movement or ground faiture
associated with the seismic risk in Folsom consistent with

State standards. Eq
SN 2.1.3 Asbestos

Require new development projects in areas containing
natu rally-occu rri ng asbestos to mi+igate-redusc-the hazards

associated with asbestos consistent with State taw. DEEE

SN 2.1.4 Dredge Tailings

Require new devetopment on dredge taitings to conform to
the guidetines and regulations of the California Geotogicat

survey. FDE

SAFETYAND NOISE I9

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 9-5
Page 749

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F @H,gond
2055 ----_

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
flood Hazards
Folsom is bisected by the American River, as wel[ as sma[[er streams. The city
also shares borders with Lake Natoma and Fotsom Lake. These bodies of water
create an environment where ftooding is a possibitity, particutarty in the small

streams that wind through Fotsom. Policies in this section seek to prepare

Fo[som for flooding and minimize the risk to residents and property.

GodSM.l
Minimize the risk of flooding hazards to people, property, and the
environment.

SN 3.1.1 200-Year Floodway

Regulate new development or construction within the 200-

year floodway to assure that the water flows upstream and

downstream from the new devetopment or construction witl
not be attered from existing levets. FDE

SN 3.1.2 Development within the lnundation Boundary

Coordinate with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in

developing standards for development within the inundation
boundary resutting from a faiture of Fotsom Dam or the dikes
retaining Folsom t-ake. lE0

SN 3.1.3 Public Facilities

Require that new critical facitities (e.g., hospitals, emergency
command centers, communication facilities, fire stations,
police stations) are [ocated outside of 100- and 200-year

floodplains, or where such location is not feasible; design the
facilities to mitigate potential flood risk to ensure functional
operation during a ftood event. [!l

SN 3.1.4 Flood Control Costs

Minimize new development in the 200-year ftoodway to
reduce the long-term public costs of buitding and maintaining

flood control improvements, as required by FEMA and State

raw. FEEI

SN 3.1.5 Agency Coordination

Coordinate with loca[, regional, State, and FederaI agencies

with responsibitity for f[ood management to minimize flood
hazards and improve safety. IGB

9-6 Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised August 2021
Page 750

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SN 3.1.6 Climate Change {nformed Flood Standards

Update and maintain the City's design standards retated to
stormwater and ftood management based on the best

availabte data regardingthe increased intensity. duration. and

frequency offuture ftood events. !

SAFEWAND NOISE I9

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 9-7Page 751

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F{Dr.gOnd
203s

GENERAL PLAN HME6
Wildfire Hazards
Significant parts of Folsom fatt within moderate or high witdfire risk areas,

particular[y along the American River and near the Folsom-El Dorado Hi[[s

border. The region's hot, dry summers create an annual witdfire threat.
Poticies in this section aim at minimizing the risk of wildfires and preparing

Folsom for wildfires.

God Sw4.l
Minimize the adverse impacts resutting from wildfires.

sN 4.1.1 Defensible Space

Require development in the urban-witd[and interface to use

"defensible space" design and maintenance to protect lives

and property from the risk associated with witdfires.

Defensibte space techniques include ptanting tessfeluc-r

flammable species around buitdings, such as fire resistant

native and adapted species, and the use of mulch to prevent

erosion on bare soil EEE

CoordinationsN 4.1.2

sN 4.1.3

sN 4.1.4

Coordinate with fire protection and emergency service

providers to assess wildfire hazards before and after witdfire
events. Providers should coordinate efforts to effectively
address any witdfire threat. fEB

Community Wildfi re Preparedness Plan

Maintain the City of Folsom Community Witdfire Preparedness
ptan (Cwpp) to hetp reduce the risk of catastrophic witdfires in

the community. EEE

Wildtand Fire Risk Reduction

To reduce the risk of witdtand fire, continue to implement
Witd tand-U rban I nterface Bui td i ng Stan da rds, vegetative fu els

management, evacuation planning, and public education.
Ensure that there is adequate water ftow to combat structuraI
and wildland fires to protect existing and future devetopment.

@@E

9-B Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 752

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SN 4.1.5 Wildfire Smoke Education

Educate the City's population about the heatth impacts from
poor air qualityfrom wildfire smoke through education and

outreach, focusing on protection of vulnerable poputations

inctuding youth and seniors. !

SAFETYAND NOISE I9

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 9-9Page 753

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOr.SOnd
2035

GENERAL PLAN mm=ru
Hazardous Materials
Hazardous materials include a wide variety of substances found in homes as

well as in industry. Used motor oi[, paint, solvents, gasotine, and refrigerants

are only a sma[[ tist of the substances considered potentialty hazardous to
humans and the environment. Policies in this section support Fotsom's

hazardous materials programs to minimize the risk of hazardous materials.

Goal SIY 5,1
Protect the health and welfare of the residents of Folsom through the
management and regutation of hazardous materiats in a manner that focuses

on preventing probtems.

sN 5.1.1

sN 5.1.2

sN 5.1.3

sN s.1.4

Hazardous Materials Management System

Coordinate with industry, community groups, and government

agencies to maintain and implement an effective, workable,

and fair hazardous materiats management system. @! E
Hazardous Materials Education

Educate the general pubtic and interested parties on the
technical and administrative devetopments in the fietd of
hazardous materiats management. [!
Workplace Safety

Encourage the effective implementation of workplace safety

regulations and assure that hazardous materiaI information is

available to users and employees. FDE

Transport of Hazardous Materiah

Strive to protect residents and sensitive facilities from
avoidable incidents in the transportation of hazardous

materiats in the county. EEEE

9-10 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 754

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Noise
Unwanted noise can be a nuisance that impacts quatity of tife. ln extreme

cases excessive noise can cause heatth problems. Vehicle traffic on freeways

and major roadways, aircraft fly-overs, industriaI activities, and outdoor
recreation venues are sources of noise that affect the city. Policies in this
section propose mitigation measures to address the harmfuI effects of noise.

GodSM.l
Protect the citizens of Folsom from the harmfut effects of exposure to
excessive noise and to protectthe economic base of Fotsom by preventingthe

encroachment of incompatibte land uses within areas affected by existing

noise-producing uses.

SAFEWAND NOISE I 9

Noise Mitigation Strategies

Develop, maintain, and implement strategies to abate and

avoid excessive noise exposure in the city by requiring that
effective noise mitigation measures be incorporated into the
design of new noise-generating and new noise-sensitive [and

uses. EFEEI

Noise Mitigation Measures

Require effective noise mitigation for new devetopment of
residential or other noise sensitive land uses to reduce noise

[evels as fottows:

1. For noise due to traffic on pubtic roadways, railroad
line operations, and aircraf[ achieve comptiance with
the performance standards within Tabte 5N-*5N:1.

2. For non-transportation-related noise sources:

achieve compliance with the performance standards

contained within Tabte sl*-15N:2.

}*lf comptiance with the adopted standards and

poticies of the Safety and Noise Etement wit[ not be

achieved even with feasible mitigation measures, a

statement of overriding considerations for the
project must be provided. EEFI

sN 6.1.1

sN 6.1.2

Adopted August 28, 20"18: Revised August 2021 9-11Page 755

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFIOM
2055

GETTIERAL PLAN Hm=@
sN 6.1.3

sN 6.1.4

sN 6.1.5

sN 6.1.6

sN 6.1.7

Acoustical Analysis

Require an Acoustical. Anatysis prior to approval of proposed

development of residentiaI or other noise-sensitive tand uses

in a noise-impacted area. FEE

Noise and Proiect Review

Develop, maintain, and imptement procedures to ensure that
requirements imposed pursuant to the findings of an

acoustical analysis are implemented as part of the project
review and buitding permit processes. The appropriate time
for requiring an acousticaI anatysis wou[d be as early in the
project review process as possible so that noise mitigation
may be an integral part of the project design. FEE

Automobile Noise

Encourage the enforcement of the existing section of the
California Vehicle Code retating to adequate vehicle muffters

and modified exhaust systems. EEE

Aircraft Noise

Strive to reduce noise from aircraft travel over robom. Ed
Noise Barriers

lf noise barriers are required to achieve the noise level

standards contained within this Element, the City shatt
encourage the use ofthese standards:

1. Noise barriers exceeding six feet in height relative to
the roadway should incorporate an earth berm so

that the totat height of the solid portion of the
barrier (such as masonry or concrete) does not
exceed six feet.

2. The total height of a noise barrier above roadway
elevation should normalty be timited to 12 feet.

3. The noise barriers should be designed so that their
appearance is consistent with other noise barriers in

the project vicinity. FbFl

Vibration Standards

Require construction projects and new devetopment
anticipated to generate a significant amount of vibration to
ensure acceptable interior vibration levels at nearby noise-
se nsitive uses based on FederaI Transit Ad m in istration criteria

9-12

sN 6.1.8

Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021
Page 756

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Table Stl-t ltloise Compatibility Sundards

Land Use

Residential (tow oensity
Residentia[, Du ptex, Mobite

Homes)

Residentia[ (mutti ramity)

Transient Lodging
(wtoteb/notets)

M ixed-Use Devetopments

Schools, Libraries, Ch u rches,

Hospitals, N ursing Homes,

Museums

Theaters, Auditoriums

Playgrou nds, Neigh borhood Parks

Golf Courses, Riding Stables,

Water Recreation, Cemeteries

lnterior Noise Level

Standard

L"q, dBb

N/A

NiA

N/A

N/A

N/A

SAFETYAND NOISE I9

as shown in Table SN-3 (Groundborne Vibration lmpact

Criteria for General Assessment). [!!|

35

N/A

N/A

Offi ce Buitdings, Busi ness

Com merciaI and ProfessionaI

lndustria[, Man ufacturi ng, and

Utitities

Where a proposed use is not specifically lixed on this toble, the use shall comply with the noise exposure

standards for the neorest similar use as determined by the Community Development Department"

a) Outdoor activity areas for residentiol developments ore considered to be the bach yord

patios or dechs of single-family residential uni*, and the patios or common oreas where

people generolly congregate for multifamily development, Outdoor activity areas for
nonresidential developments are considered to be those common areos where people

45

45

Exterior ltloise

Level Standard
for Outdoor
Activity Areas"

Lon/cNEL,

dB

Lu"/CNEL, dB

4560.

65d 45

65d 45

70 45

70 45

N/A70

N/A70

N/A75

N/A70

75 N/A

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 9-13Page 757

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LSOn[
2035

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru
generally congregate, including outdoor seoting arcos. Where the location of outdoor

octivity oreas is unhnown, the exterior noise standard shall be applied to the property

line of the receiving lond use.

b) As determined for a typicol worst-case hour during periods of use.

c) where it is not possible to reduce noise in outdoor octivity oreas to 60 dB, La,/cNEL or

less using a practical application of the best-available noise reduction meosures, on

exterior level of up to 65 dB, La,/CNEL may be allowed provided that ovailoble exterior

noise level reduction measures hove been implemented and interior noise levels are in

compliance with this table.

d) Where it is not possible to reduce noise in outdoor octivity areas to 65 dB, La'/CNEL or

less using o proctical application of the best-avoiloble noise reduction measures, on

exterior level of up to 70 dB, LdnlcNEL may be allowed provided that availoble exterior

noise level reduction measures hove been implemented ond interior noise levels are in

compliance with this table.

Table SIrl-2: l{oise Level Standards ftom Stationary Sources

Noise Level Descriptor Nighttime
(ro:oo P.M. to
7:00 A.M.)

Hourty L"q, dB

Maximum levet, dB 65

Noise levels ore measured at the property line of the norse-sensitive use.

45

Daytime (z:oo

A"M. to 10:00

P.M.)

55

70

9-14 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021Page 758

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Frequent
Events"

Occasional
Eventsb

65d 65d

7572

7875

Tabte SIrl-3: Groundborne Vlbration lmpact Criteria for General Assessment

Land Use Category tmpact Levels (VdB)

Infrequent
Events'

Category 1: Buitdings where
vibration woutd interfere
with interior operations

Category 2: Residences and

buildings where people

normalty sleep

Category 3: lnstitutional [and

uses with primarity daytime
uses

Source: Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise lmpact and Vibrotion Assessment, Moy 2006.

Vibration levels are meosured in or neor the vibration-sensitive use.

a) "Frequent Events" is defined as more thon 70 vibration events ofthe same source per doy.

b) "occasionol Events" is defined as between 30 and 70 vibration events ofthe same source

per day.

c) "tnfrequent Events" is defined os fewer than 30 vibrotion events ofthe some source per

day.

d) This criterion limit is bosed on levels thot are acceptable for most moderately-sensitive

eguipment such os optical miuoscopes. Vibration-sensitive manufacturing or research

will require detailed evaluotion to define the acceptable vibrotion levels.

65d

80

SAFEWAND NOISE I9

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Aueust 2021 9-15Page 759

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F Ol,g()hfl
--- 2035 _--

GENERAL PLAN

9-16 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Auqust 2021

HFT=ru
Extreme Heat
Extreme heat events are oroiected to become more intense and frequent.
Vulnerable populations inctuding youth. seniors. and individuals with existing

cardiovascular and respiratory health conditions are particutarly vutnerable

to heat waves events. The increased frequency and severity of extreme heat

events are also projected to degrade the lifespan of important infrastructure
such as roadways as we[[ as increase energy demand for cooling, placing

increased stress on the electricity grid.

God SIII 7.1
Protect the City's critica[ infrastructure and citizens from the most severe

effects of extreme heat events with an increased focus on protecting

vulnerabte poputations including youth, seniors, and individuals with

undertying heatth conditions.

SN z.t.t Upgrading Heat Sensitive lnfrastructure

Upgrade existing heat-sensitive infrastructure and design new

infrastructure to withstand the future intensity and frequency

ofextreme heat events. !
SN 7.1.2 Comprehensive Cool City Strategy

Develop and implement a CooI City Strategy, in coordination
with the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management

District, to reduce the impacts of the Urban Heat lsland effect
through various measures including increasing the urban tree

canopy and use of cool roofs and cool pavements as we[[ as

increasing green space in the city. 

=tSN7.1.3 Heat-sensitivePopulations

Educate the community to hetp protect vulnerable
populations from the increasing intensity of extreme heat

events. !
SN 7.1.4 Climate-Smart Electricity Grid

Work with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) to
promote and help educate residents about SMUD's time-of-
day energy rates and the cost benefits of reducing etectricity
use during peak demand periods. IfI

Page 760

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



AppendixD:
Climate .Edaptation and Resilience Report

for Gity of Folsom

Prepared For:

City of Folsom
50 Natoma St,

Folsom, CA 95630

Prepared By:

Ascent Erwironmental
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814
Contact: Chelsey Payne

June 2OZl

Page 761

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

Table of Contents

Regulatory Setting and Guidance Documents....

1

1

4

5

7

9

Vu lnerability Assessment

Adaptive Capacity

Vulnerability Scoring..........

Conclusion

References

Figures

Figure D-1: City of Folsom Fire Threat Zones

Figure D-2: Critical Facilities and Flood Zones in the City of Folsom

Figure D-3: Change in Annual Extreme Heat Days through 2099 - High-Emissions Scenario 13

Tables

Table L: Historic Monthly Temperatures in the City of Folsom .....................8

Table 2: Changes in Average Annual Temperature in the City of Folsom ........................11

Table 3: Changes in Average Annual Precipitation in the City of Folsom

Exposure.......

Sensitivity and Potential lmpacts

Table 4: Changes in Annual Average Area Burned in the Sacramento Valley Region

Table 5: Changes in Extreme Heat Events in the City of Folsom

Table 6: Regional Annual Precipitation Changes (Historic to 2099)

Table 7: Potential lmpact Scoring....

Table 8: Potential lmpact Summary

Table 9: Adaptive Capacity Scoring .

Table 10: Adaptive Capacity Summary

Table 12: Vulnerability Scoring Summary

15

2!

25

25

27

t7

T2

13

15

2t

2t

24

25

City of Folsom

26

Page 762

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LslOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN HMT!6
This page intentionally left blank

City of Fotsom

Page 763

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

Introduction

The effects of ctimate change are atready occurring at gtobat and regional scales and witt continue to worsen

existing hazards in the City of Fotsom (hereafter referred to as "city"). The primary effects of ctimate change

inctude increased temperatures and changes in precipitation patterns. These impacts are expected to heighten

and exacerbate risks posed by secondary climate efFects, inctuding extreme heat events, wildfire, drought,

ftooding, and large storms. White many of these hazards have existed historicalty in the city, the frequency and

intensity of many of these hazards is projected to increase because of gtobat ctimate change.

This Ctimate Adaptation and Resitience Report (report) serves as a climate change vutnerability assessment,

which is intended to inform the devetopment of adaptation strategies by analyzing the city's exposure to

existing hazards, sensitivity to these hazards, potentia[ climate-retated impacts from these hazards, and the

City of Folsom government's (City) existing capacity to prepare and adapt for these impacts, known as adaptive

capacity. This report is intended to accompany a set of adaptation strategies that witt be incorporated into the

Safety Element of the City of Folsom 2035 Generat Ptan. Both the vulnerability assessment and the adaptation

strategies are intended to hetp the City prepare for the impacts of ctimate change and remain consistent with

Government Code Section 65302, as amended by Senate Bitt (SB) 379, which requires jurisdictions in California

to assess and prepare for climate change as part oftheir next Safety Etement update.

Climate Change Background

Greenhouse gas (CHe) emissions are responsible for causing climate change. The largest source of GHG

emissions from human activities is the burning fossiI fuels for etectricity, heat, and transportation. The

combustion of fossit fuets, among other human activities, since the lndustrial Revolution in the 19th century has

introduced GHGs into the atmosphere at an increasingty accelerated pace, intensifiTing the greenhouse effect and

teading to a trend of unnatural warming of the Earth's climate, known as gtobal climate change or global warming.

Ctimate change has more recently become a priority issue on an internationa[, nationat, and locat scale as recent

climate data reveal more extreme weather patterns, increased average globat temperatures, and the rapid

metting of the Earth's Artic and Antarctic poles and gtaciers.

The gtobat average temperature is expected to increase by 3.7 degrees Cetsius ('C) (0.2 to 8.6 degrees Fahrenheit

[.F]) by the end of the century unless additionat efforts to reduce GHG emissions are made (tpCC zOt+).

Depending on future GHG emissions, average annual maximum daity temperatures in Catifornia are proiected

to increase between 4.4 and 5.8'F by 2050 and by 5.6 to 8.8'F by 2100 (OPR, CEC, and CNRA2018a). The state and

the city have atready begun to experience extreme weather effects, the frequency and intensity of which have

been worsened by ctimate change (OPR, CEC, and CNRA 2018a). Extreme weather effects such as votatitity in
precipitation, increased average temperatures, and increased frequency of extreme heat events have led to

increases in the frequency and intensity of human heatth and safety hazards such as wildfires, droughts, and

changes in the availabte water suppty.

negulatory Sefting and Guidance Doctrnents

This section provides a summary of the relevant regutations and guidance documents and resources that were

used to hetp devetop the vulnerability assessment and adaptation strategies included in this report.

City of Fol.som

Page 764

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()Lsl()nd
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
SENATE BILL 379
According to SB 379, general ptan safety elements must address climate change vulnerability, adaptation

strategies, and emergency response strategy. Upon adoption of SB 379, Government Code Section 65302 was

updated to include the following additions:

Section 6$02 (g) (+)Upon the next revision of a locat hazard mitigation plan, adopted in accordance with

the federat Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (Pubtic Law 106-390), on or after January 1,2017, or, if a local
jurisdiction has not adopted a locaI hazard mitigation ptan, beginning on or before January 1,2022,the

safety element shatt be reviewed and updated as necessary to address ctimate adaptation and resitiency

strategies appticable to the city or county. This review shall consider advice provided in the Office of
Ptanning and Research's General Ptan Guidelines and shal[ include all of the following:

(A) (i) A vutnerabitity assessment that identifies the risks that climate change poses to the local jurisdiction

and the geographic areas at risk from climate change impacts, inctuding but not timited to, an assessment

of how ctimate change may afFect the risks addressed pursuant to paragraphs (Z) and (S).

(ii) lnformation that may be available from federal, state, regional, and [oca[ agencies that witt assist in

developing the vutnerabitity assessment and the adaptation policies and strategies required pursuant to

subparagraph (B), inctuding but not limited to, all of the fotlowing:

(t) tnformation from the internet-based Cat-Adapt too[.

(tt) tnformation from the most recent version of the Catifornia Adaptation Planning Guide.

(ttt) tnformation from [oca[ agencies on the types of assets, resources, and populations that witt be

sensitive to various climate change exposures.

(tV) lnformation from tocal agencies on their current abitity to deal with the impacts of climate change.

(V) Historical data on natural events and hazards, inctuding loca[[y prepared maps of areas subject to
previous risk, areas that are vulnerabte, and sites that have been repeatedly damaged.

(Vt) existing and planned development in identified at-risk areas, inctuding structures, roads, utilities, and

essential pu btic facitities.

(vtt) federat, state, regional, and tocal agencies with responsibitity for the protection of public health and

safety and the environment, inctuding special districts and [oca[ offices of emergency services.

(a) R set of adaptation and resitience goals, policies, and objectives based on the information specified in

subparagraph (A) for the protection of the community.

(C) n set of feasibte implementation measures designed to carry out the goals, policies, and objectives

identified pursuant to subparagraph (B) inctuding but not timited to, a[[ of the following:

(i) Feasibte methods to avoid or minimize ctimate change impacts associated with new uses of [and.

(ii) The location, when feasible, of new essentiaI pubtic facitities outside of at-risk areas, including, but not

timited to, hospitats and health care facitities, emergency shetters, emergency command centers, and

emergency communications facilities, or identifiing construction methods or other methods to minimize

damage if these facitities are located in at-risk areas.

(iii) The designation of adequate and feasibte infrastructure located in an at-risk area.

(iv) Cuidetines for working cooperatively with relevant [oca[, regiona[, state, and federal agencies.

2 City of FoLsom

Page 765

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPETTIDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESITIENCE REPORT

(v) fhe identification of naturaI infrastructure that may be used in adaptation projects, where feasible.

Where feasibte, the plan shall use existing naturatfeatures and ecosystem processes, orthe restoration

of natural features and ecosystem processes, when devetoping alternatives for consideration. For

purposes ofthis clause, "natural infrastructure" means using natural ecological systems or processes

to reduce vutnerabitity to climate change related hazards, or other related climate change effects, while

increasing the [ong-term adaptive capacity of coastaI and intand areas by perpetuating or restoring

ecosystem services. This inctudes, but is not limited to, the conservation, preservation, or sustainable

management of any form of aquatic or terrestrial vegetated open space, such as beaches, dunes, tidal
marshes, reefs, seagrass, parks, rain gardens, and urban tree canopies. lt also inctudes systems and

practices that use or mimic natural processes, such as permeable pavements, bioswales, and other

engineered systems, such as levees that are combined with restored naturat systems, to provide ctean

water, conserve ecosystem values and functions, and provide a wide array of benefits to people and

witdtife.

(O) (i) tf a city or county has adopted the local hazard mitigation plan, or other ctimate adaptation plan or

document that futfitts commensurate goals and objectives and contains the information required

pursuant to this paragraph, separate from the general plan, an attachment of, or reference to, the [oca[

hazard mitigation plan or other climate adaptation ptan or document.

(ii) Cities or counties that have an adopted hazard mitigation plan, or other ctimate adaptation plan or

document that substantiatty complies with this section, or have substantiatly equivatent provisions to this

subdivision in their generat ptans, may use that information in the safety etement to comply with this

subdivision, and sha[[ summarize and incorporate by reference into the safety etement the other general

plan provisions, climate adaptation ptan or document, specifically showing how each requirement of this

subdivision has been met.

Vutnerabitity assessments must identiflr the risks that ctimate change poses to the local jurisdiction and the
geographic areas at risk from ctimate change impacts, utitizing federal, state, regionat, and [oca[ ctimate

vutnerabitity documentation. Adaptation policies, goals, and objectives are to be devetoped based on findings

from the vutnerabitity assessment. Additionatly, jurisdictions are required to create a set of feasible

implementation measures to reduce climate change impacts on new or proposed [and uses. Lastly, jurisdictions

that have adopted a climate adaptation ptan (Cnp) separate from the General Plan may reference that document

to comply with SB 379 requirements.

CALIFORNIA ADAPTATION PLANNING GUIDE

The Catifornia Office of Emergency Services (CatOES) and Catifornia Natural Resource Agency (Cruna) prepared

the first Adaptation Ptanning Cuide (RpC), most recently updated in June 2020, to provide communities with

vutnerabitity assessment and adaptation planning guidance. The APG includes a step-by-step process that
communities may use to hetp ptan for the impacts of climate change. The APG provides a framework for
communities to identifu potentia[ climate change effects and important physicat, sociat, and naturaI assets;

create adaptation strategies to address climate change impacts; and develop a monitoring and implementation

framework for ctimate change adaptation. The APG served as the formal guidance document for preparation of
this report (catoEs zozo).

CALIFORNIA'S FOURTH CLIMATE CHANGE ASSESSMENT AND SACRAMENTO VALLEY REGION REPORT

CNRA, Governor's Office of Ptanning and Research (OPR), and California Energy Commission (CfC) prepared

California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment (Ctimate Assessment) in 2018 (OPR, CEC, and CNRA 2018a). The

Ctimate Assessment was designed to address critical information gaps that decisionmakers at the state,

regiona[, and [oca[ levels need to ctose to protect and build the resilience of people, infrastructure, and natural

systems to climate change-related hazards. The Ctimate Assessment is referenced throughout this report to

City of Fotsom 3

Page 766

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFIOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hffi=6
provide background information and evidence of regional climate change impacts. The Climate Assessment

includes regional reports that provide information on the climate change impacts that wi[[ affect specific regions

throughout the state. lnformation from California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment Report: Sacramento

Valley Region Report (Sacramento Vattey Report) is included throughout the report and was used to assess the

various potentiat climate change effects that are projected to impact the city and Sacramento County (county)

(oPR, CtC, and CNRA 2018b).

CITY OF FOLSOM AND REGIONAL PLANNING EFFORTS

ln addition to State adaptation efforts, the City and supporting agencies have devetoped planning documents

focused on locaI and regionat adaptation to climate change hazards. These planning documents analyze existing

hazards and include strategies or guidelines to mitigate their severity. Resources considered in the

development of this vulnerability assessment include:

. the County's Local Hazard Mitigation Ptan (LHMP) (Sacramento County 2017a),

. the City's Annex to the LHMP (city LHMP Annex) (sacramento county 2017b),

. the City's General Ptan and supporting documents,

. the city's Emergency operations Plan (rop) (city of Folsom 2020a),

o the City's Evacuation Plan (City of Folsom 2020b),

. the City's Community Witdfire Protection Plan (CWPP) (city of Fotsom 2011),

. the City's Urban Water Management Ptan (city of Fotsom 2015), and

o the Sacramento County Draft Ctimate Action Ptan (Sacramento County 2021).

Vulnerability Assessment

This section provides a comprehensive assessment of the city's vulnerabitities to climate change. lt identifies and

characterizes the climate change effects and other related hazards that are anticipated to impact the city. The

vutnerabitity assessment follows the process outtined in the APG and is composed of the fotlowing four steps:

1. Exposure: The purpose of this step is to understand existing hazards within the city and how changes

in ctimate variables (e.g., average temperature, precipitation) are projected to affect these hazards.

Existing hazards that can be worsened by the effects of ctimate change are identified and described,

based on historica[ data from sources such as the LHMP. Ctimate projection data is used to devetop
projections for how existing hazards are expected to change by near-term (zOz't-zoso), midterm (zOSs-

2064), and [ong-term (zoto-zogg) timescates.

2. Sensitivity and Potential lmpacts: This step compiles a list of population groups and community

assets that are sensitive to locatized climate change effects. Climate-related hazards (e.g., flooding,

witdfire) are generalty projected to increase in severity, with the potentia[ for ctimate change to
generate new impacts that communities have not experienced historicatty. Using historical data,

research from regional and statewide reports on climate impacts, this step seeks to understand how

sensitive populations and assets may be affected by climate change.

3. Adaptive Capacity: The City, partner agencies, and organizations within the County have already taken

steps to buitd resitience and protect sensitive populations and assets from existing hazards. The

purpose of this step is to characterize the City's and involved stakeho[ders' current abitity to address

future climate impacts, referred to as adaptive capacity. The abitity of the City to adapt to each of the

identified ctimate impacts is determined through a review of existing ptans, policies, and programs.

+ CitY of Fotsom

Page 767

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIIIATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

4. Vulnerability Scoring: Lastly, this step determines the City's priority climate vulnerabilities through a

vutnerabitity scoring process. Vutnerabitity scores are based on severaI factors, including: the severity of
projected climate exposures, the sensitivity of certain population groups and assets to the anticipated

ctimate effects, and whether sufficient adaptive capacity exists to manage future ctimate impacts.

The vulnerabitity assessment helps the City understand which ctimate vutnerabilities are most urgent and

shoutd be prioritized during the adaptation strategy development phase, outtined in Section 3, "Adaptation

Framework and Strategies," as wetl as during strategy implementation.

Bcposule

This section includes the exposure anatysis, relying primarity on existing planning documents and resources to

understand the City's current hazard and uses ctimate modeling data to identifiT how these hazards wilt change

in the future.

The city is tocated in Sacramento County approximatety 25 mites east of the City of Sacramento. U.S. Highway

50 runs east-west through the city and serves as the main regionat connector roadway for residents and visitors.

The city includes three RegionaI Transit Authority tight rait stations, connecting it to downtown Sacramento with

connections to other areas in the Sacramento region. The city is located directty south of Folsom Lake, which is

created by the Folsom Dam. Folsom Dam was buitt in 1955 by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and is operated

by U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. The city's etevation is approximatety 350 feet above sea level.

The city's climate consists of mitd winters and Mediterranean summers simitar to other areas of Sacramento

County. The average daity temperatures in the city range from 37 to 600F degrees in the winter months to

between 53 and 94o F in the summer and fatl months. Annual average rainfall in the city is 23 inches, which occurs

primarily in November through March.

EXISTING HAZARDS

The City's LHMP Annex and the City's General Ptan provide a comprehensive understanding of natural and

manmade hazards that historicatty have threatened the city, includingthose that may be exacerbated by climate

change. These ptans evaluate several hazards that are influenced by climate, inctuding wildfire, extreme

weather, flooding, and drought. The following sections discuss these existing hazards as evaluated by the

County, drawing from other reports and documents as needed.

Wildfire
Witdfire behavior is dependent on several factors that, when identified and assessed, can hetp determine future

witdfire characteristics. The three factors listed betow contribute significantly to witdfire behavior and can be

used to identifiT witdfire hazard areas:

. Topography: An area's terrain and [and slopes affect its susceptibitity to wi]dfire spread. Both fire

intensity and rate of spread increase as slope increases because heat from a fire tends to rise through

convection. The arrangement of vegetation throughout a hittside can also contribute to increased fire
activity on slopes.

e Fuek Fuet is the material that feeds a fire and is a key factor in witdfire behavior. Fuel is generally

classified by type and by volume. Fue[ sources are diverse and can include dead tree leaves, twigs, and

branches of dead, standing trees; live trees; brush; and cured grasses. Buitdings and other structures, such

as homes and other associated combustibles, are also considered a fue[ source.

o Weather: Components such as temperature, retative humidity, wind, and occurrence of tightning affect the
potentiat for witdfire. High temperatures and low relative humidity dry out fuels that feed wildfires,

creating a situation where fuet wil[ ignite more readity and burn more intensely. Thus, during periods of

City of Folsom 5

Page 768

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()Lsl()M
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFT=@
drought, the threat of witdfire increases. Wind is one of the most significant weather factors in the spread

of witdfires. The greater a wind, the faster a fire will spread and the more intense it witt be.

The Catifornia Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (Cnl f tnf) maps areas of significant fire hazards based

on fuels, terrain, weather, and other retevant factors. These zones, referred to as Fire Hazard Severity Zones

(fHSZ), are represented as Very High, High, or Moderate. The ctassification of a zone as a Moderate, High, or Very

High FHSZ is based on a combination of how a fire would behave and the probabitity that flames and embers

woutd threaten buitdings. Witdfire risk is atso determined by severaI factors, such as wind speeds, drought

conditions, avaitabte wildfire fuet (i.e., dry vegetation), past wildfire suppression activity, and expanding

witdtand-urban interface (WUt) (i.e., places in and around forests, grasstands, shrub [ands, and other natural

areas) (Westerting 2018). tmpacts from grass and brushfires in the City could result in evacuations of portions

of the City as well as loss of property and impacts to critical facitities.

Based on data inctuded in the CWPPand the City's LHMPAnnexshown in Figure D-1,the majorityof the city is

located in areas designated as moderate to high fire threat. Given the city's location and urban setting, there is

retativety tow risk of impacts from wildfires retative to areas northeast of the city in Et Dorado County; however, the

city is at increased threat of grass and brushfires. Atthough the majority of the city's developed areas are at lower

fire risk, the city does inctude a few key areas classified as high or very high fire threat specifically in the American

River and Lake Natoma Recreation areas, which are managed by the State of California Parks and Recreation

Department (Catifornia State Parks). As a recreation area, there are timited roadways within these areas, making fire

equipment access difficutt. Other areas with increased risk of impacts in the WUI along the American River inctude

Wittow Creek and Fotsom Powerhouse recreation areas, as wetl as the Negro Bar Recreation area. While threatened

by fire risk atong the American River and in southeastern portions of the city, residents are also at risk from health

impacts from poor air quatity associated with witdfire smoke. Poor air quatity can be generated in the city from

witdfires occurring throughout northern California as has been experienced in recent years.

6 City of Fotsom

Page 769

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE D-1: CITY OF FOLSOM FIRE THREAT ZONES

0

Source: Sacramento County 2017b

APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

zs 5lD6

vlf,t (ncR.tue ruro,-'-\JcoUNTY

7

FIRE THREAT CLASSES

l----l Little or No Threat

I Moderate

I Hign

I VeryHigh

LEGEND

- 
Highways

- 
lnterstates

Local Roads

+- Railroads

- 
Rivers

! Lakes

lffilCities
flf Counties

City of FoLsom

Page 770

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFl()M
2055

GENERAL PLAN Hm=6
Extreme Heat
Extreme heat days and heat waves are the most lethal type of weather-related event in the United states. The

warmest months in the city typicatty occur in the summer months from June through August. Using data from Ca[-

Adapt and for the purposes of this report, the extreme heat threshotd for the city is 104o F, meaning 98 percent of
a[[ recorded temperatures in this period (tSOt-tSSO) were below 104"F. Historically, the city has experienced an

average offour extreme heat days per year. Heat wave events are characterized as periods ofsustained extreme

heat and are defined by Cat-Adapt as four or more consecutive extreme heat days. Historically, there has been

less than one heat wave event in the city per year with only, on average, two consecutive days per year above

104"F. Tabte 1 includes historic monthly temperatures at the closest weather station to the city. Atthough not

tocated directty in the city, new record daity high temperatures were set at the Sacramento Executive Airport, the

weather station nearest to the city, in August (ttz" f) and September (tog'f) 2020 (NOAA 2020). The previous record

for August (ttO'f) was set in 1996, and the previous record for September (tOe" f) was set in 1950 (NOAA 2020).

Note: Temperatures recorded at Western Regional Climate Center, Federal Aviation Administration Sacramento Executive Airport Station.

Source: Sacramento County 2017, NOAA 2020

Flooding
The city is traversed by several smaller waterways which generally run northeast to southwest through the city.

Larger waterways include the American River, which runs through the northern portion of the city and along the

southwest boundary of the city, as well as Humbug Creek and Witlow Creek, which run into the American River

at the southwest boundary of the city. These waterways are at risk from both riverine ftooding and locatized

stormwater flood events. As shown in Figure D-2, the areas immediatety surrounding Humbug Creek, Wiltow

Creek, and the American River are located in the Federal Emergency Management Agency 100- or 500-year

ftoodptain. Historicatly, the Sacramento region has been subjectto severaI large flooding events including more

recent events in 1995 and 2O1612017. According to analysis conducted in the City's LHMP Annex, there is a total
poputation of 216 residents with dwetting units located in the 100-year floodplain and 198 residents located in

the 500-year floodptain. Criticat facitities that provide critical services during emergency events such as fire

stations, potice stations, and governmentfacilities as wellthe location of vulnerable poputations such as day

care centers, schools, and elderty care facitities are all identified in the City's LHMP annex. The city does not

have any criticat facitities located in the 1O0-year floodplain and inctudes 5 critical facitities located in the 500-

year ftoodptain. These facitities inctude the Chitdren's Creative Learning Center, the lnn at Lake Natoma, the

Folsom Crescent Schoot, the Glenn Regional Transit Light Rait Stop, and the Folsom Sierra Endoscopy Center.

Located adjacent to the Folsom Dam, the city is atso at risk to impacts from dam inundation. Approximately

40,000 residents are at risk from dam inundation, in which mass evacuations of targer portions woutd be

required. The City, in conjunction with FEMA, has recently compteted updated hydrotogy and hydrautic analysis

as we[[ as updated flood mapping for Humbug Creek, Wittow Creek, Hinkte Creek and Alder Creek and are

expected to be pubtished in Fatt of2021. However, as ofthe pubtishing ofthis report, these maps have not been

pubtished.

A CitY of Folsom

Month Temperature Date16onth Temperature Date

11121200e Juty 114"F 711311972January 74"F

211911964 August 112"F 811612020February 76"F

e1612020880 F 312611e88 September 1090 FMarch

1040 F 1010212001Aprit 950 F 4l30l1ee6 October

November 870 F 11 I 01 11960May 1050 F s12811984

611s11961 December 72"F 1212811967June 1150 F

Table 1: Historic Monthly Temperatures in the City of Folsom

Page 771

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FIGURE D-2: CRITICAL FACILITIES AND FLOOD ZONES lN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

APPENDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

5lr,16
hit t*.,/
Morrisorr

SncRnuENTo
-+--' c c1 u N : /

Source: Sacramento County 2017b

Drought
As noted in the City's LHMP Annex, drought is unique in its characteristics compared to other naturaI hazards in

that it is not a distinct event and more characteristica[ty has a slow onset and can last for several years. The City

relies primarily on Folsom Lake, [ocated directty north of city, for its potable water supply. Fotsom Lake receives

and controts water supplies within the American River watershed, an area of approximately 1,875 square miles to
the north and east of the reservoir. White the city does not typicatty use their totaI apportioned annuat water

suppty, drought scenarios, when they do occur, can affect both the city and the larger Sacramento region. From

2012to 2015, the city experienced a protonged drought period alongwith majority of communities in California.

During this period, Folsom Lake reached historic low water levels. As noted in the City's LHMP Annex, the City has

achieved significant reductions in water consumption in recent years due to State conservation mandates, more

efficient ptumbing standards, water system optimization improvements inctuding repairs, improvements and

replacements of existing water transmission and distribution facitities. As the city's poputation continues to grow,

water demand wi[[ increase and coutd exacerbate future drought conditions when they do occur.

9

PLACER

]}

DFIRM FLOOD ZONES

1ol" Annual Chance

I Zone,q

I ZoneAE

{Si,$ Zone Ao

0.2olo Annual Chance

f,{Sl 0.2o,,o Annual Chance

Other Areas

f-- l Zone X

Folsom LaRe

I

ql
.rl

I

Folsom

i-tt 
t 

'lr
.l

J EL DORADO

l.

fr

.rJh
ll

a
ttf.

I

Lrr(e

j4

II

I
I

:
I
a

(a.

tl
I

I
LEGEND

_ Highways

- 
lnterstates

I ocal Roads

+ Railroads

- 
Rivers

Delta

Wm Lakes

[_-l Citics

[-] Counties

CRITICAL FACILITY CATEGORY

r Essential Services

I At Risk Populotion

- Hazardous illaterials

City of FoLsom

Page 772

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSI()M
2055

GENERAL PLAN HFTE6
CLIMATE CHANGE EFFECTS

Ctimate change eflects are categorized as primary (direct) and secondary (indirect). Primary effects are those

that are caused by the initiat impacts of increased GHG emissions, from which secondary effects result. The

primary climate change effects analyzed for the city include changes in average annual temperature and

precipitation. The secondary effects, which can occur because of individualchanges or a combination of changes

in the primary effects, include witdfire, extreme heat, extreme precipitation and flooding, and drought regimes,

as wet[ as reduced snowpack.

Though the precise extent of future climate change effects is uncertain, historical ctimate data and forecasted

GHG emissions can be used to project climate change effects through near-term (zOz't-zOSo), midterm (zOgs-

2064), and long-term (zoto-zogg) timescales. The time periods are established as 3O-year time intervals to
gather accurate data on average changes in the climate, which is typicalty measured over 30-year time periods

or longer. This results in overlap among some time periods. Due to annuaI fluctuations in climate variabtes,

climate data on shorter time periods may be less accurate and not reflect long-term averages (ruOnn 2018). To

assess potential effects from climate change, the APG recommends using Cat-Adapt, a tool developed by the

CEC and the University of Catifornia, Berketey GeospatiaI lnnovation Facitity that uses gtobat ctimate simutation

modeI data to identifiT how ctimate change might affect various geographies in Catifornia. Cal-Adapt addresses

the uncertainty in future GHG emissions by using Representative Concentration Pathways (nCes) devetoped by

the lntergovernmental Panel on Ctimate Change (tpCC). These RCPs depict two different future emissions

scenarios. RCP 4.5 represents a lower emissions scenario in which GHG emissions continue to rise through 2040

and then decrease to below 1990 levels by the end of the century. RCP 8.5 represents a high emissions scenario,

or business-as-usua[ (gAU) scenario, where GHG emissions continue to increase through the end of the century.

As recommended by the APG, this vutnerability assessment evaluates near-term and midterm climate change

effects and their associated impacts under the high emissions scenario, as this takes a conservative approach

and assumes worst-case scenario. Additionatty, changes in climate variables duringthese timescales are similar

under both the low and high emissions scenarios. Because long-term gtobat GHG emissions trends are less

certain and ctimate impacts vary more considerably between scenarios, a discussion of both the low and high

emissions scenarios is inctuded for the long-term timescate (OpR, CEC, and CNRA 2018a).

Cat-Adapt downscales gtobat climate models to locaI and regional resolutions using the Locatized Constructed

Anatogs statistical technique. Four of the models included have been selected by Catifornia's Climate Action

Team Research Working Group as priority modets for research contributing to the Climate Assessment. To

anatyze climate projections for the city, the average of the downscated data provided by these four models was

used. The boundaries of the study area for this anatysis are the geographic boundaries of the city.

Primary Climate Change Effects

lncreased T empe ratures

According to Cat-Adapt, the historic (tSOt-tSSo) average annual maximum temperature for the city is 74.2'F, and

the historic average annual minimum temperature is 49.1o F. As shown in Table 2, both are projected to increase

throughout the century. The average annual maximum temperature in the city is projected to increase to 78.4" F

in the near-term and 79.3"F in the midterm under the high emissions scenario. The average annual maximum

temperature is projected to increase to 79.5oF and 82.9oF in the [ong-term underthe low and high emissions

scenarios, respectively. The average annua[ minimum temperature in the city is projected to increase to 52.9o F

in the near-term and 53.7oF in the midterm underthe high emissions scenario, and the long-term average annual

minimum temperature is projected to increase to 53.8oF and 53.8"F under the low and high emissions scenarios,

respectivety (CfC ZOZ1a). lncreased temperatures in the city witt influence secondary climate effects, including
extreme heat events and witdfire risk.

10 City of Folsom

Page 773

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Long-Term
(zoto-zogglMidterm

(zors-zoor) Low
Emissions

High
Emissions

Average Annual
Temperature (oF)

Historic Average
Annual Temperature

(rgor-rggo)

Near-Term
(zozr-zoso)

74.2 78.4 79.3 80.3 83.3Maximum Temperature

53.7 54.4 57.8Minimum Temperature 49.1 52.9

Table 2: Changes in Average AnnualTemperature in the City of Folsom

APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

Notes: oF 
= egrees Fahrenheit.

Source: CEC 2021a.

Changes in Precipitotion Patterns

As shown in Tabte 3, the historic average annua[ precipitation in the city is 23.4 inches. The average annual
precipitation in the city is projected increase to 25.3 inches in the near-term and 25.6 inches in the midterm

under the high emissions scenario. Average annuaI precipitation is projected to be 25.1 inches under the low

emissions scenario and27.1inches underthe high emissions scenario in the long-term (CtC 2021a).

Average Annual
Precipitation

Long-Term
(zoto-zoggl

High
Emissions

Average Annual
Precipitation (inches)

Source: CEC 2021a.

White average annuaI precipitation in the city is projected to trend upward in future years, the keyfindingfor
this climate effect is that precipitation patterns are expected to become more votatile, with more intense storm

events with increased precipitation over short periods. As noted in the Fourth Climate Change Assessment

Sacramento Vattey Report, atthough annual precipitation is anticipated to increase in the region, California's

climate oscitlates between extremely dry and extremely wet periods with annual precipitation varying widety

from year to year. Climate change is anticipated to exacerbate these seasonal extremes with dry periods

becoming dryer and wet periods becoming wetter (OPR, CEC, and CNRA 2018a). As a resutt, the frequency and

severity of large storm events are anticipated to increase as wel[. These osciltations between extremely dry and

extremely wet periods, which have occurred historicatty in the state, are anticipated to become more severe

with rapid shifts from dry to wet periods known as "whiplash events" (Swain et at. 2016). Precipitation patterns

wit[ affect secondary ctimate effects inctuding drought, extreme precipitation and flooding, and wildfire.

Secondary Climate Change Effects

lncreased Wildfire Rfsk fn the Sacramento Valley

Witdfire risk is determined by severa[ factors, such as wind speeds, drought conditions, availabte wildfire fuel
(i.e., dry vegetation), past witdfire suppression activity, and expanding witdtand-urban interface (wut) (i.e., the
zone of transition between unoccupied tand and human devetopment) (Westerting 2018). Climate change effects,

including increased temperatures and changes to precipitation patterns, wil[ exacerbate many of the factors

that contribute to witdfire risk. lncreased variabitity in precipitation may lead to wetter winters and increased

vegetative growth in the spring, and [onger and hotter summer periods witt tead to the drying of vegetative
growth and ultimatety resutt in a greater amount of fuel for fires. This has already been seen across the state in
recent years, with the area burned by witdfires increasing in paraltelwith rising air temperatures (OEttHR zotg).

27.1

Near-Term High
Emissions

(zozr-zoso)

Midterm High
Emissions

(zors-zoe+) Low
Emissions

HistoricAverage
Annual Rrecipitation

(rsor-rggo)

25.6 25.123.4 25.3

Table 3: Changes in Average Annual Precipitation in the City of Folsom

City of Fotsom 11

Page 774

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLel()M
203s

GENERAL PLAN

Average Annual
Area Burned

Hm=6
These factors, combined with intense wind conditions, cause fires to spread rapidty and irregularty, making it
difficutt to predict fires' paths and effectivety deptoy fire suppression forces.

Relative humidity is also an important fire-related weather factor; as humidity levels drop, the dry air causes

vegetation moisture levels to decrease, which consequentty increases the tiketihood that plant materiat witl

ignite and burn. With an increase in hotter and drier landscapes, humidity levels may continue to drop and

result in higher fuel [eve[s, increasing the risk of wildfire (Schwartz et at., 2015).

Cat-Adapt provides projections for future annual mean hectares burned within the Sacramento Valtey region,

as defined in the Catifornia Fourth Assessment Report, when wildfires do occur. Because the city is not directly

threatened by large-scate witdfires but is tikely to be impacted by regional effects such as witdfire smoke, this

anatysis focuses on the Sacramento Vattey region. As shown in Tabte 4, the totaI area burned annua[[y by witdfire

within the Sacramento Vattey region is expected increase from the historic (tgOt-tSSo) annual average of 20,956

hectares Io23,942 hectares in the near-term and increase further in the midte(m1o28,759 hectares. ln the long-

term, average annual area burned in the region is projected to increase to 31,670 hectares and to 41,784 hectares

under the low and high emissions scenarios, respectively (CEC 2o21b).

Long-Term (zoto-zoggl

High
Emissions

Average Annual Area
Burned (hectares)

41,784

average annual area burned data was not Cat-Adapt; the modeled cal average annua area

burned data under the low emissions scenario was avaitable and used as proxy data.

Source: CEC 2021b.

lncreased Frequency of Extreme Heat Events

The Cat-Adapt tool provides estimates of future instances of extreme heat events. Extreme heat events include

extreme heat days and heat waves. Cat-Adapt defines an extreme heat day as a day when the daily maximum

temperature exceeds the 98th historical percentite of daity maximum temperatures based on observed data

from1961-1990 between Aprit and October. Heat wave events are characterized as periods of sustained extreme

heat and are defined by Cat-Adapt as four or more consecutive extreme heat days.

The extreme heat threshotd for the city is 104.1oF, meaning 98 percent of a[[ recorded temperatures in this

period were below 104.1oF. Historically (tgOt-tggo), the city experienced an average of four extreme heat days

per year. As a result of rising temperatures from ctimate change, the city is projected to experience up to 21

extreme heats days annua[[y in the near-term and 30 extreme heat days annuatty in the midterm under the high

emissions scenario. ln the tong-term, the city is projected to experience up to 33 extreme heat days annually

under the low emissions scenario and 52 extreme heat days annuatty under the high emissions scenario (CEC

z121c).As shown in Tabte 5 and Figure D-3, the number of extreme heat days is atready increasing from historic

averages and witt continue to increase through the [ong-term.

Low
Emissions

Historic Modeledl Average
AnnualArea Burned

(rgor-rggo)

l{ear-Term
(zozr-zoso)

Midterm
(zoas-zooe)

23,942 28,759 31,67020,956

Table 4: Changes in AnnualAverage Area Burned in the Sacramento Valley Region

12 City of Fotsom

Page 775

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



AnnualAverages

I 960

'l
I
' tl

lr I r r r

i " ,,

APPENDIX D CLTMATE ADAPTATION AND RESITIENCE REPORT

Long-Term (zoto-zoggl

High
Emissions

17.4

Number of Extreme Heat Days 52

Number of Heat Waves 9.2

Number of Days in Longest Stretch of
Consecutive EKreme Heat Days

Notes: Extreme Heat Day = Annual maximum temperature above 104.1'F, Heat Wave = Four or more consecutive Extreme Heat Days.

Source: CEC 2021c.

FIGURE D-3: CHANGE lN ANNUAL EXTREME HEAT DAYS THROUGH 2099 - HIGH-EMISSIONS SCENARIO

104.1-1093"F r 109.3.114.6'F r 1146-1198"F I 119.8-125.0"F

Ocl

sep

Aug

tI

t.

lril
ll
I

t

i'.r'l
l.

: I trI I .i .ll,.l' I'rr, ' L lr,l, t,': I ltrrilt ll|':,Ilil ll
r ! ' '. l" II I tt | ' l!.t '1. r. I Ir I l'. l'l' rl

I . . I . I r tl rrr, I I | :" r.l I. ll r rr l.lll I
t. t. lilrt I I'l r.r. rllrl
: tr lr I . ll. l. | .rt r.
r,l l. t l.t lr I .'.1 I .'l

'' .rll l: ,ll'a' r. .lrt t'. tr.rr rlllll
' ., lr ' 'lrrl .' llll r

| 'l' ll. I llr r L llll r'I rl ll'tl'rlr. ll',I ..t .. . r trrr.:lr .

' r | | . " I a..l ' r' I l.
.l .Ir I . Irr'l.rr | ..i rl il r.rl I rl r,

It rrr l'l ll I tl I
. . r I I I rl 'lr r r

r|I Il'' , lt'l
lrr . l. r' ' | .rr rl' r I r rl I r'. r'..
| .'tt|'ll'

rlIllI
. I rr I r llI ll . I I' t.

I

i
I tr I . 'lr
, I rtl

l' ' ! ' I

. .. rl I
I,t

t. I

.ttr,t,
I
I
I

t

Jul l'
't

.l

' .t.t'

:l ,t'. Il,' r

,i
I,rl

Juf,

May

2000 2040

Yeat

Source: CEC 2021c.

White heat waves have historicatty been infrequent in the city, with a historicaI average of less than one heat

wave annua[ty, ctimate change is expected to increase the frequency of heat waves within the city. Under the

high emissions scenario, the city is projected to experience an average of three heat waves per year in the near-

term and 3.6 heatwaves per year in the midterm. The city is projected to experience approximately 5 heatwaves

per year and t heat waves per year in the tong-term under the low and high emissions scenarios, respectivety.

City of Fotsom 13

Near-Term
High

Emissions
(zozr-zoso)

Midterm
High

Emissions
(zogs-zoor.)

Low
Emissions

Historic
Annual

Averages
(rser-rggo)

334 21 30

4.6 5.'l0.2 3

10.32.2 7.8 9.9

Table 5: Changes in Extreme Heat Events in the City of Folsom

Page 776

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLFI()nf,
2055

GENERAL PLAN NFilEru
The average number of days in the longest stretch of consecutive extreme heat days per year is also projected

to increase substantiatly. Historicatty, the [ongest stretch of consecutive extreme heat days lasted for an average

duration of approximately two-and-a-hatf days. The longest stretch of consecutive extreme heat days is

projected to increase to an average of 7.8 days in the near-term and 9.9 days in the midterm underthe high

emissions scenario. ln the [ong-term, the duration is projected to increase to an average of 10.3 days underthe
low emissions scenario and17.4 days underthe high emissions scenario (cfc zoztc). The timing of extreme days

between Aprit and October is atso projected to shift with extreme heat days occurring earlier and later in this
period rather than concentrated in tate summer and earty fatl period. Figure D-3 disptays the changes in timing

of extreme heat days through 2099 under the high emissions scenario.

As temperatures continue to rise from climate change, the frequency, intensity, and duration of extreme heat

days and heat waves will increase in the Sacramento Va[[ey, which witt increase risks to pubtic health and safety.

The heatth impacts associated with extreme heat, inctuding heat stroke, heat exhaustion, and dehydration, as

wetl as imptications from cardiovascular and respiratory diseases, are particutarty tikety to be exacerbated by

climate change (OpR, CEC, and CNRA 2018b; Sheridan et at. 2012).

Changes in Extreme Precipitation Events (100-year Storm Event)

Based on California's location next to the Pacific Ocean, the state is exposed to the atmospheric river (RR)

phenomenon, a narrow corridor of concentrated moisture in the atmosphere. California is subject to
precipitation from an AR that transports water vapor from as far south as Hawaii to the state. The presence of
the AR contributes to the frequency of "wet years" in the state, when there is an above-average number of AR

storms and above-average annual precipitation. White research indicates that the frequency of large storms

events does increase in these wet years, the most severe ftooding from ARs may not be in wet years (Swain et

at. 2018). The targest ftooding impacts are caused by persistent storm sequences on sub-seasonal timescales
(i.e., short time periods, typicalty 2 weeks to 3 months), which bring a significant fraction of annuaI average

precipitation over a brief period. These are storms events tike the Great Flood events of 1861-1862 which caused

widespread damage throughout northern Catifornia (Swain et at. 2016). Based on current ctimate modeling, the

frequency of these large storm sequences over short timeframes is projected to increase noticeably under the

RCP 8.5 scenario. lt is estimated that a storm similar in magnitude to the Great Ftood events is more tikety than

notto occur at least once between 2018 and 2060 (Swain et at.2018). A storm of this size would likety compromise

large portions of the ftood control systems in the Sacramento and the Centrat Vatleys (Swain et al. 2018).

As discussed in the Sacramento Vattey Report, changes in precipitation patterns in northern California are

anticipated to affect the Sacramento Vattey region as we[[ as adjacent regionat watersheds which affect the

Sacramento Valley (OpR et at. 2018b). Projected shifts inctude increases in the intensity of targe storms events,

which coutd compromise the performance of the Sacramento Valtey and Central Vattey flood management

systems (pierce et at. 2018). Given the city's proximity to the American River, it is important to understand how

precipitation changes in regions affecting the American River and its tributaries may affect the city including

Folsom Lake and Folsom Dam. The regionaI exposure analysis provides a snapshot of projected changes in

precipitation in two key lntegrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) regions, regional boundaries

estabtished by the Catifornia Department of Water Resources (OWR), that affect the American River. The two
IRWM regions included in the analysis are listed in Tabte 6. Major waterways in these two IRWM regions include

the Yuba River, Bear River, American River, and the Cosumnes River, as we[[ as portions of their tributaries.

As shown in Tabte 6, under the low emissions scenario, annual precipitation in the two IRWM regions increases

between 8 and 12 percent in the near-term period. During the midterm and long-term periods, the change in

annuaI precipitation remain retatively the same with a 9 to 10 percent increase between the historic baseline

and 2099 under the low emissions scenario. Under the high emissions scenario, annual precipitation in the two
IRWM regions increases between 9 and 10 percent in the midterm period and continues to increase through the

14 City of Fotsom

Page 777

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

long-term period, resul.ting in an approximately 19 percent increase over historic levels by the end of the

century. tt is important to note that because the projected precipitation changes under the low and high

emissions scenarios are relativety the same through the midterm period at the regional [eve[, these changes

wi[[ occur with a higher degree of tiketihood, regardtess of whattrends occur in gtobat emissions reductions by

the end ofthe near-term period (zo+o).

Change in Annua[ Mean Precipitation (lnchesl

IRWM Region
Percent
Change

(ttistoricto
20eel

Cosumnes,

American, Bear,

Yuba, Sacramento

American

Notes: IRWM = lntegrated Regional Water Management.

Source: CEC 2021a

Droughts ond Water Supply

The city and larger Sacramento region are expected to experience slight overall increases in average annual

precipitation in the [ong-term. However, projections show the Sacramento region wilt experience increased

variabitity and volatility in precipitation events, such as droughts. Catifornia has a highty variable climate that

is susceptibte to protonged periods of drought, and recent research suggests that extended drought occurrence

(a "mega-drought") could become more pervasive in future decades (cec zoztO).

Cat-Adapt uses data to model an extended drought scenario for all of California from 2051 to 2070. For this

analysis, the enended drought scenario is based on the average annual precipitation over 20 years under a

high emissions scenario. This anatysis includes an extended drought scenario for EI Dorado County rather than

just the boundaries of the City. As the City's primary water suppty, Folsom Lake reties on precipitation and

snowpack runoff from tributaries in the watersheds surrounding Folsom Lake inctuding tributaries in E[ Dorado

County (i.e., the north fork and south fork of the American River). E[ Dorado County's observed historicat (1961-

1990) average annuaI rainfatt accumulation is 43.6 inches. Under the anticipated drought scenario between 2051

and 2070, Et Dorado County's average annual rainfatt accumulation would decrease to 37.9 inches (CfC zoztO).

The city and the Sacramento region are predicted to experience extended drought periods due to climate

change, which may result in stress on retiabte [oca[ water suppty. This effect will not only resutt in water

shortages for the city, but also for other jurisdictions across the state that rely on water supply from the region.

The city's primary water suppty consists of surface water from Folsom Lake that originates as rainfatl and runoff

from snowpack in the northern Sierra Nevada mountains and the surrounding foothitts. Due to increases in

climate variabitity and rising temperatures, the state has already seen signs of decreased snowmelt in Northern

Catifornia. AnnuaI snowpack in the Sierra Nevada is expected to decline by as much as 33 percent by mid-century

and 66 percent bythe end of the century, retativeto historic baseline snowpack(OPR, CEC, and CRNA2018b).

Further, rising temperatures have caused snowpack to melt faster and earlier in the year. These changes in

snowmelt timing and streamflow avaitabitity witt chaltenge loca[ and regionat water suppty avaitabitity (OPn,

CEC, and CRNA 2018a). lnadequate rainfa[[ and reduced snowpack witt result in decreased runoff to the reservoirs

that suppty water to the city, which witt lead to less available water and more frequent water shortages.

9%

'l9%o

10%

'19/o

Percent
Change

(Historic to
2oso)

Midterm
(zo+o-
2070)

Percent
Change

(ttistoric to
2070)

Long
Term

(zozo-
20eel

Historic
(rgor-
19e0)

Emissio
n

Scenari
o

ilearTerm
(zozo-
2050)

56.0s6.3 8% s6.2 9%LoW

7% 56.2 9% 61.2
51.5

High 55.s

22.723.3 12% 22.7 10%LoW

22.6 10% 24.6
20.6

High 22.s 8%

Table 6: Regional Annual Precipitation Changes (Historic to 2099)

City of Folsom 15

Page 778

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFl()nI
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFT=ffi
Sensitivity and Potential ImpacG

The varying effects of climate change witt im pact the city and its residents d ifferently, such that some popu lation
groups and physical assets witt be affected more severety than others. Key poputations and assets identified in

the city are organized into the following overarching categories: populations, built environment, and community

functions. These categories are described in more detail below.

The ctimate change effects analyzed in this section inctude increased temperatures and extreme heat, increased

witdfire risk, increased extreme precipitation events and flooding, drought, water supply, and reduced

snowpack. Ctimate change effects at the locaI scale are inherently uncertain, but the potentiaI ways in which

climate change could impact specific populations and community assets within the city are identified and

discussed (Catrmn and CNRA 2012:Bl.

POPULATIONS
White alt persons in the city are anticipated to experience impacts of ctimate change at some levet, some

populations are more vulnerable to climate impacts due to a variety of factors. Vulnerable poputations are

those that are more tikety to be affected or impacted more severety to climate-retated hazards when they do

occur due to factors such as heatth cha[[enges or disabitities, location, tiving or working conditions, income

level, historicat and/or current marginatization, and timited access to resources. These factors, among others,

can lead to increased susceptibitity to and disproportionate harm from climate change impacts and can impact

the abitity to recover from impacts.

Vulnerable populations in the city inctude individuals experiencing homelessness, individuats with disabilities,

senior citizens, youth, [ow-income households, and residents experiencing [inguistic isotation (i.e., non-English-

speaking peopte). Though certain vulnerable poputations represent only a sma[[ percentage of the city's total
population, it is important to plan for a[[ groups that, for one reason or another, lack available resources or

capacity to react or adapt to climate change impacts themselves.

BUILT ENVIRONMENT

The buitt environment in the city consists of a set of buitdings and infrastructure that are essential to the heatth

and welfare of residents and visitors and are especially important during and proceeding climate-related hazard

events. This inctudes residentiatand commerciat buitdings;criticatfacitities (i.e., hospitats and medicalfacitities,

fire departments, emergency shetters, schools, senior centers); transportation infrastructure (i.e., roadways,

bridges, rait lines); and utitity infrastructure (i.e., energy, communications, and water and wastewater). Many of
these assets are considered high-potential loss facitities and infrastructure, where damage would have large

environmenta[, economic, or public safety consequences.

The resitience of the city's built environment to ctimate change is criticatly important to overa[[ community

resilience and we[[-being, as we[[ as preventing cascading impacts from disasters. Coupted with increased use

and aging infrastructure, infrastructure assets may be highty sensitive to climate-retated hazards inctuding

extreme heat, wildfire, and extreme storms. These hazards may adversely affect the reliabitity, accessibility, and

tifespan and maintenance costs of roads, facitities, utilities, and equipment. Maintaining and adapting

infrastructure to reduce risks to ctimate-related impacts is cruciaI to emergency response and safety during

hazard events.

COMMUNITY FUNCTIONS

Community functions are the resources and assets, operations, economic sectors, and services that are created

or influenced by the interaction between populations and the built environment and altow day-to-day activities

to continue in the city. the priority community functions that have been identified include tourism and

recreation; transportation and mobitity; ecotogica[ function; pubtic heatth and emergency services; and energy

16 City of Fotsom

Page 779

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CTIMATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

detivery and other utitity operations. lncreases in the frequency and/or severity of ctimate-related hazards will
cause environmental, economic, and social impacts across these community functions, which are crucial to the

integrity and resilience of the city.

INCREASED TEMPERATURES AND EXTREME HEAT

Under the high emissions scenario, the average annual maximum temperature in the city is projected to rise

approximatety 49F in the near-term and 59F in the midterm. ln the long-term, the average annual maximum

temperature is projected to increase by approximately 59F or 79F under the low and high emissions scenarios,

respectivety. lncreased temperatures witt tead to secondary ctimate change impacts inctuding increases in the

frequency, intensity, and duration of extreme heat events and wildfires in the city. Rs discussed in the climate

change effects exposure analysis, the average number of extreme heat days and heat waves are projected to

increase substantiatty in the midterm and in the [ong-term, and the projected average annual area burned by

witdfire is expected to increase in the near-term and continue to rise through the end of the centu ry (CtCzoZtc;

cEc 2021b).

Populations
Higher frequency of extreme heat conditions can cause serious pubtic heatth impacts, such as heat stroke and

dehydration, as we[[ as indirect effects such as worsened air quality from increased ozone formation and

particutate matter generation (CatfmR and CNRA 2012:31.

As aging impairs muscle strength, coordination, cognitive abitity, the immune system, and the regulation of body

temperature, peopte aged 65 and older are especially vulnerable to the health-related impacts of extreme heat

and are more tikety to experience respiratory and/or cardiovascular heatth complications than younger

individuats (OPR, CEC, and CNRA 2018a). The median age of city residents is over 40 years old, 11 years older than

the statewide average, and approximatety 10 percent of residents are over 65 years otd (U.S. Census Bureau

2019a1. Extreme heat events may also tead to stress on etectricity transmission systems, resulting in system

faiture. Such events could result in additionat heatth hazards for the elderly or other persons with disabitities

who rety on power to sustain medicat equipment/assistive technotogy use. Approximatety 4 percent of
individuats betow the age of 65 in the city have a disabitity (U.S. Census Bureau 2019b). Similarly, children are

atso at etevated risk to heat-related ctimate hazards, particutarly the risks posed by reduced air quatity.

tndividuats experiencing homelessness in the city are particularly vulnerable to extreme heat due to a lack of
adequate protection from the sun and access to air conditioning. lncreased exposure to extreme heat may

exacerbate the risks of heat-related hazards described above.

Built Environment
Rising temperatures and extended periods of extreme heat witl result in impacts to buildings and facitities

throughout the city. lncreases in nighttime temperatures (i.e., average minimum temperatures) can have a large

eftect on facitity cooting needs because buildings and houses are not able to cool down after high daytime

temperatures. High temperatures atso decrease the efficiency of power transmission lines, while demand for
electricity simultaneousty goes up as operation of air conditioners and cooling equipment increases. One of the

major effects of climate change on the city's transportation system from extreme heat is the reduction in the

overall tifespan of transportation infrastructure. lncreased average temperatures and extreme heat on roadways

and trails can result in the degradation of pavement. These effects can increase roadway hazards, such as pothotes

and roadway cracks, and tower the overatl tifespan of roadway infrastructure (OPR, CEC, and CNRA 2018b).

Community Functions
As temperatures increase and heat waves occur more frequentty, the city is tikety to experience potentia[ public

heatth impacts and demand for emergency services. lmpacts on the City's roadway network and degradation of
roadways could resutt in increased traffic congestion and secondary impacts on the City inctuding loss of
productivity and potentiat impacts on businesses in the city. Heat wave events in the city wi[[ resutt in increased

City of Fotsom 17

Page 780

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



r.()LFIOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN MMTT6
stress on the electricity grid which may lead to the increased frequency of brownouts or blackouts, causing

disruptions to norma[ city functions and economic impacts on businesses. Extreme heat days and heat wave

events may also timit opportunities for recreation opportunities at Folsom Lake and recreation areas with the

city, resutting in secondary impacts on tourism-supporting businesses in the community. Finalty, protonged heat

waves can atso prevent barriers for individuats working outdoors, inctuding construction workers, to comptete

work. The increased prevatence of heat wave events cou[d result in impacts on timing and costs for large-scale

infrastructure projects as we[[ residentiaI and nonresidential buitding construction.

INCREASED WILDFIRE RISK

lncreased temperatures and changes in precipitation patterns associated with climate change wit[ lead to

reduced moisture content in vegetation and soils during dry years. These conditions are expected to increase

the amount of area burned by wildfires that witt occur predominantly outside of the city boundaries but may

have secondary impacts on the city from witdfire smoke, disruptions to transportation behavior, or the

increased prevatence of Pubtic Safety Power Shutofts (pspS).

Populations
Atthough the city is not at risk from the direct impacts of witdfires, the city's location within the Sacramento

Vattey makes it susceptibte to impacts of smoke from wildfires in the Sierra Nevada mountains and the coastal

mountain ranges of northern California. Community pubtic heatth factors that can increase the impacts of
witdfire smoke include the prevalence of asthma in children and adults; chronic obstructive pulmonary disease;

hypertension; diabetes; obesity; and percent of population 65 years of age and older. Additionally,

socioeconomic characteristics such as poverty rates, educational achievement, and unemployment rates have

all been tinked to the increased prevalence of underlying heatth conditions inctuding depression, obesity,

hypertension, and diabetes, making poputations in the city with these characteristics more vulnerable to
witdfire smoke impacts (Kivimaki et at. 2020). Exposure to wildfire smoke, particutarty exposure by vulnerabte

populations, can result in worsening of respiratory symptoms, increased rates of cardiorespiratory emergency

visits, hospitalizations, and even death (Rappotd et aI.2O17).lncreased annual average temperatures and the

subsequent increase in the frequency and severity of wildfires in northern California are anticipated to result

in impacts from witdfire smoke on the city's poputation and vutnerabte poputations in particutar (OPR, CEC, and

cNRA 2018b).

Specific poputations inctuding tinguisticatty isolated households, senior citizens, and individuats with

disabitities or those experiencing homelessness are particularly vutnerable during evacuation events, if witdfire

evacuations were to occur in the city. lmpacts affecting these populations include inabitity to access or receive

and/or understand warning messages and evacuation notices, timited abitityto evacuate due to lack of mobility,

timited situationat understanding from cognitive conditions, and retiance on medication or treatment devices.

Witdfires in the larger Sacramento region can also result in secondary impacts affecting populations. A major

consequence of wildfires is post-fire ftooding and debris flow. The risk of floods and debris flows after fires

increases due to vegetation loss and soiI exposur These flows are a risk to life because they can occur with tittte

warning and can exert great force on obiects in their path.

Built Environment
Regionat witdfires threaten energy generation and transmission infrastructure and have the capacity to damage

facitities, create maintenance costs, and reduce transmission [ine efficiency (Cnl FIRE 2020). Grid-supptied as

welt as tocatty generated electricity, which is the primary source of power for residences in the city, is provided

by the Sacramento Municipat Utitities District (SMUD). RegionaI communications infrastructure can also be

affected by witdfires, which is often located in remote locations, such as mountaintops, resulting in significant

threat from witdfire. Regionat witdfires may atso generate impacts on transportation behavior in the city during

emergency evacuation events. This coutd inctude potential route diversion and increases in traffic congestion

1B City of Folsom

Page 781

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESITIENCE REPORT

due to road closures from wildfire impacts or post-wildfire runoff or landslide affected roadways. White fire

causes retativety insignificant direct impact on roads and highways, cracking and degradation of pavement is

not uncommon.

Community Functions
Due to a number of recent large-scate wildfires in Northern Catifornia caused by etectricity infrastructure

exposed to extreme heat and high-winds, utilities have begun to implement PSPS to avoid witdfire risk. PSPS

events can result in communities experiencing no electricity for multipte days and prevent individuals from

using prescribed medications and treatments that rely on electricity or refrigeration. PSPS events can also result
in impacts to commerce and economic losses, particularly for businesses that rety on refrigeration such as

grocery stores. Hazards such as landstides, wildfires, and flooding can also affect underground natural gas

pipelines, exposing and/or damaging these pipetines. The damage resulting from climate change-retated

hazards on etectricity and natural gas infrastructure can have a greater impact on disadvantaged poputations,

particutarty communities that are [ow-income or individuats who have timited mobitity or lack the financial
means to make repairs to their property.

Major witdfires often resutt in the damage to transportation infrastructure and/or closure of roadways.

Combined with reduced visibitity from witdfire smoke, this leads to a disruption in normaI transportation
networks and accessibitity. Congestion that starts during a mass evacuation can tead to additional traffic
management problems, which can result in detays to emergency response, evacuation, and togistical support.

INCREASED EXTREME PRECIPITATION AND FLOODING

The average number of annual extreme precipitation events in the city and in the Sacramento Valtey region are

projected to increase. Additionatty, variability and votatility in severe storms are expected to increase as a result

of primary climate change effects (i.e., changes in temperature and precipitation regimes). lncreases in the
frequency and severity of flooding events when they do occur coutd have serious ramifications as the

Sacramento Valtey region is already relatively vulnerabte to [arge-scale flooding events.

Populations
lncreases in the magnitudes and frequency of flood events wi[[ adversely afFect populations in the city through

both direct impacts and several secondary hazards. E[ectrical equipment impacted by ftood waters can result
in fires, creating further threats to public safety. Hazardous materials can atso get into floodways, causing heatth

concerns and pottuted water supplies. Atthough all residents and visitors of the city witt be sensitive to severe

storms and flooding, vulnerable poputation groups wilt tikety face disproportionate negative impacts. ln

addition to tacking adequate shetter and protection form storm events, individuats experiencing hometessness

may have timited access to warning messages and other pertinent information from the City or Sacramento

County. Senior citizens and individuals with disabitities may face these cha[[enges and are [ikely to have limited

mobitity and abitity to react to and prepare for these events.

Built Environment
lncreases in the magnitude and frequency of ftood events pose significant riskto the city's buildings, critical
facitities, transportation infrastructure, utility infrastructure, and essential services. Electrical infrastructure

may be inundated, disrupting service to residences and criticat facitities as we[[ as further chatlenging pubtic

safety infrastructure such as traffic signals. Additionatty, underground electrical infrastructure is considered

more vulnerabte to flooding as protonged periods of inundations inhibit repairs.

Damage to transportation infrastructure from severe floods is tikety to occur as wett. Ftood conditions, such as

those cause by increased magnitude of peak stream ftows in winter, may damage roads near perennial streams.

Roads, bridges, and culverts are susceptibte to increased runoff during storm events, especially following a

City of Fotsom 19

Page 782

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI()M
2055

GENERAL PLAN HFX=ru
wildfire, causing failures due to washouts, ptugging, overtopping, stream diversion, and scour. Transportation

infrastructure near streams and floodplains wi[[ be especialty vulnerabte.

Community Functions
Flooding may have economic impacts on businesses and pubtic agency budgets in other ways. lncreased direct
and indirect costs associated with flood mitigation services, ctean-up operations, and maintenance and

reptacement of damaged structures and infrastructure could put considerabte strain on local and regional
government budgets. lf floods cause sustained closures of major roadways, access to major tourism and

recreation destinations and activities in the city could be timited. Events such as these would interrupt business

cycles and cause revenue loss for businesses and the City, affecting the City's abitity to provide basic services

to residents and visitors.

The potential for ftoods to damage roads creates considerable risk to emergency services. The need for
emergency response may be required during or immediately after a significantflooding event, and this response

coutd be inhibited by damaged roads. However, these impacts can also persist, especially if funding for
maintenance and repair is limited. This risk may be exacerbated if ftoods resutt in electric power outages or

other impacts to energy resources.

DROUGHT AND WATER SUPPLY

lncreased average temperatures and a compressed rate of snowmett in the northern Sierra Nevada region, atong

with inadequate precipitation during the typicatty rainy season, have previously affected surface water suppties

for Folsom Lake and have had secondary impacts on the region and city's water supp[y. With high volatitity in

annuaI precipitation and snowpack projected to decline over50 percent bythe end of the century, the American

River Basin is tikety to experience less annual runoff into Fotsom Reservoir.

Populations
ln the event of a severe and sustained drought tasting muttipte years, Folsom Lake's water supply could be

severely affected and result in the need for increased water conservation efforts to be implemented by
jurisdictions in the Sacramento region. City residents may be encouraged to reduce househotd water demand,

which may [imit certain activities such as [andscape irrigation. Actions taken by the City in drought scenarios

are inctuded in the City's Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and discussed further in Section 1.6.2. A tong-

term drought scenario woutd tikety not result in increased water costs for residents.

Built Environment
While increasingty frequent and prolonged droughts directly threaten residents of the city, the built
environment wi[[ not experience substantial direct impacts associated with this ctimate-related hazard.

However, these conditions have the potentiat to cause secondary impacts. Heavy rainfall or snowfatl during
drought conditions can cause intense flooding, debris ftows, landslides, and mudslides, which pose risks to the
city's built environ ment.

Community Functions
Droughts create cascading effects on community functions that may worsen in the future. The associated risks

include adverse impacts on timber harvesting, reduction in native habitat and overat[ ecologicaI function,
increased forest fuels for witdfire, and economic consequences associated with decreases in tourism and

recreation. More intense future droughts affecting the region could result in decreasing recreation

opportunities on and surrounding Folsom Lake. Decreased recreation could have a direct impact on city

business revenue from pass through visitors. lncreased episodes of drought and increased water demand could

result in water shortages for the region, endangering residents and ecotogical systems (e.g., flood control or

sensitive habitat, recreationaI areas).

20 City of Fotsom

Page 783

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

SUMMARY OF SENSITIVITY AND POTENTIAL IMPACTS

Based on guidance from the APG, potential impacts from each ctimate change effect are rated on a quatitative

scate comprised of Low, Medium, and High ratings. A description of each quatitative rating for potential impacts

is provided in Table 7.

Score Potential lmpact Scoring Description

Low lmpact is untikety based on projected exposure; would resutt in minor consequences to pubtic health, safety, and/or
other metrics of concern.

Medium lmpact is somewhat likety based on projected exposure; would result in some consequences to pubtic health, safety,

and/or other metrics of concern.

Hish lmpact is highty likety based on projected exposure; would result in substantial consequences to public health, safety,

and/or other metrics ofconcern.

Source: CaIOES 2020.

The climate change effects anticipated to impact the city are ranked in Tabte 8 for a potentiaI impact score. This

evaluation is based on the exposure analysis and anatysis of sensitivities and impacls throughout Section 2.2.

€limate Change Effect Potential lmpact Rating

lncreased Temperatures and EKreme Heat Hish

lncreased bdreme Precipitation and Ftooding High

Drought Water Suppty, and Reduced Snowpack Medium

lncreased Witdfire Risk Medium

Source: Ascent Environmental 2021.

Adaptftrc Capacity

The third step in the vulnerability assessment process is to evatuate the adaptive capacity of the poputations,

buitt environment, and community functions to address the impacts of climate change. Adaptive capacity,

analyzed in this section, refers to a community's current and future abitity to address climate-related impacts.

A review of the City's existing poticies, plans, programs, and resources, as we[[as those from retevant regional

and State agencies and organizations, provides an assessment of the City's current abitity to reduce vutnerability
to hazards and adapt to climate change over the long-term. However, these efForts do not comprehensivety

identifu a[[ of strategies and actions that witt need to be implemented by the City and other agencies to
adequatety address the futt scope and magnitude of potential ctimate change impacts. Climate change wilt
increase the frequency and severity of climate-related hazards in the future, requiring updates to emergency

response and [and use planning, new poticies and programs, and new strategic partnerships. The foltowing
section summarizes current State and regional ptanning efforts that address climate-retated hazards.

EXISTING STATE AND REGIONAL PLANNING EFFORTS

California Department of Transportation
The Ctimate Change Branch in the Catifornia Department of Transportation (Cattrans) Division of Transportation

Planning is responsible for overseeing the devetopment, coordination, and implementation of ctimate change

poticies in a[[ aspects of the Department's decision making. ln 2013, Cattrans comp[eted its first report intended

to hetp reduce GHG emissions and adapt the State's transportation system to prepare for the impacts of ctimate

change (Caltrans 2013), which includes a series of strategies to reduce the risk from various climate change

i m pacts, i nctud i n g i ncreasingly i ntense preci pitation eve nts.

Table 7: Potential lmpact Scoring

Table 8: Potential lmpact Summary

City of Folsom 21

Page 784

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSIOM
2055

GENERAL PLAN mm=ru
Strategies outlined in the report include using vegetation to prevent erosion atong roadways, assessing and

resizing cutverts to accommodate increased precipitation, coordinating with locaI jurisdictions regarding route

closures as well as pursing individuat projects included in the Caltrans District Vutnerability Assessments. ln

2019, Caltrans com pleted the District 3 Vutnerabitity Assessment which provides an overview of potentiat climate

impacts to the district's portion of the State Highway System. The District 3 Vutnerability Assessment is part of
a larger adaptation process undertaken by Cattrans to assess risk to Ca[trans assets in the district and prioritize

adaptation strategies from various ctimate impacts. The District 3 Vutnerability Assessment includes projected

climate change exposure from precipitation change, flooding, temperature change, wildfire, storm surge, and

sea levet rise.

Sacramento Area Council of Governments
The Sacramento Area CounciI of Governments (SRCOC) is the Metropolitan Planning Organization (mpO) for the
six-county Sacramento region inctuding lhe 22 cities within EI Dorado, Placer, Sacramento, Sutter, Yolo, and

Yuba Counties. SACOG develops the region's long-range transportation ptan which guides transportation and

land use ptanning in the region. ln 2015, SACOG adopted the Sacromento Region Tronsportation Climate

Adaptation Plan lo address how potential ctimate change impacts affect the region's transportation
infrastructure. The ptan highlights key impacts from climate change that could occur on the Sacramento region's

transportation system in the future as well as a guiding action plan for future adaptation ptanning and

implementation.

Sacramento County and Sacramento Office of Emergency Services

Sacramento County completed a vulnerability assessment in 2015 that assessed the projected changes

associated with ctimate change in the County (inctuding the City of Folsom), including impacts from changes in

precipitation patterns and increased ftooding. The assessment hightighted the unique vutnerabitities of
Sacramento County to ctimate change inctuding projected increases in the frequency, intensity, and duration of
extreme storm events as we[[ as projected regional temperature increases teading to earlier and more rapid

melting of the Sierra Nevada snowpack and subsequent increases in flow rate of surface waters in Sacramento

Co u nty (Sacrame nto Cou nty zo'tt a).

The Sacramento County Office of Emergency Services (Sacramento OES) provides support and resources for
emergency preparedness through its Sacramento Ready Program and operates the county's Emergency Aterts

Notification System. Sacramento, Yolo, and Placer County residents can use the Citizen Opt-ln portal to receive

criticaI and time sensitive aterts regarding ftooding, levee failures, severe weather, disaster events, unexpected

road closures, missing persons, and evacuations of buitdings or neighborhoods in specific geographic locations.

Sacramento OES coordinates with police and fire departments in the incorporated cities in the County for
emergency ptanning and response purposes. Sacramento OES also devetops and updates ptanning documents

inctuding the County's Evacuation Plan, Emergency Operations Plan, Mass Care ond Shelter Plan, and the
County's LHMP. Sacramento County, alongwith the City, is currentty in the process of updatingthe City's Local

Hazard Mitigation Plan. The 2021 Local Hazard Mitigation plan is expected to be comptete by September 2021

and witt include a section specificalty on climate change.

EXISTING LOCAL PLANNING EFFORTS

Emergency Operations Plan and Evacuation Route Plan

The EOP is designed to address the City's ptanned response to significant emergency situations. The EOP

provides an overview of operationaI concepts relating to various emergencies to provide a system for the
effective management of emergency situations through an emergency management organization and define the
overall responsibilities for all agencies and individuals, public and private, having a role in emergency

preparedness, response, recovery, and/or mitigation in the city. lt facititates coordination of planning efforts of
the various emergency stalf and service elements utitizing the National lncident Management System and the

22 City of Fotsom

Page 785

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



a

a

a

a

a

APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

Standardized Emergency Management System. The objective of this plan is to incorporate and coordinate a[[ of
the City's facitities and personnel into an efficient organization capabte of responding to any emergency.

Appendix 1 of the EOP includes the City's Evacuation Plan, adopted in 2020, which provides guidance for the
evacuation and movement of people during any disaster, or any type of major catt/criticat incident, that may be

encountered in the city. As noted in the Evacuation Plan, the overall objectives of evacuation operations are:

Expedite movement of persons from hazardous areas.

ControI evacuation traffic.

Provide transportation for those without vehicles and for those with speciat needs (tanguage barriers,
physica[/ mentat disabitity, etderty, etc.).

Provide perimeter control and security for evacuated areas.

Provide a controlled area from which evacuation witt take place, and prevent entry by unauthorized
persons.

Maintain law and order in the evacuation area.

The Evacuation Plan includes analysis and detailed mapping to identifr designated roadways for evacuation

routes for neighborhoods, titted Evacuation Zones in the ptan, throughout the city as wetl as the tocation and

capacity for evacuation centers and shelters. As part of the EOP, the Evacuation Plan atso includes emergency

operations procedures for City personnel to foltow during emergency evacuation events.

City of Folsom Community Wildfire Protection PIan

The City's CWPP (City of Folsom 2011) was developed in collaboration with the Folsom Fire Department, CAL FIRE,

and U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. The Ptan was developed to hetp the City and partner agencies protect human

life and reduce the loss of property, critical infrastructure, and naturaI resources from the impacts of witdfires.

The Ptan includes an analysis of the wildfire risk experienced by the city and inctudes a priority set of actions

to be taken by the City, residents, and business owners to reduce the severity of wildfire impacts. The main

strategy themes included in the Plan inctude increasing co[[aboration between stakeho[ders and retevant

agencies, reducing wildfire risk in the WUl, creating and maintaining defensible spaces for structures and

properties, and coordinating evacuation protocots to implement when wildfires do occur.

City of Folsom Urban Water lianagement PIan

The City's UWMP, adopted in 2016, provides a framework for water ptanning to minimize the negative effects of
potential water shortages and provides useful information to the pubtic about the City and its water

management programs. The UWMP is also a comprehensive water planning document which describes existing

and future supply reliabitity, forecasts future demands, presents demand management progress, and identifies
[oca[ and regional cooperative efforts to meet projected water use. Chapter 6 of the UWMP includes a Water

Shortage Contingency Plan which includes protocols and strategies to help the City reduce overall water use in

a long-term drought scenario. ln May 2021, the City released the pubtic draft version of the 2020 Urban Water

Management Ptan, which inctudes a new standalone more robust Water Shortage Contingency Plan to address

water use in a [ong-term drought scenario inctuding comptiance and enforcement actions avaitable to
ad minister water demand red uctions.

Adaptive Capacity Scoring

Based on a combination of the adaptation initiatives outlined in these documents and additionaI adaptive

efforts that have been pursued, the City's adaptive capacity for each climate change effect can be rated Low,

Medium, or High. High adaptive capacity indicates that sufficient measures are already in place to address the

a

City of Fotsom 23

Page 786

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LFIOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN HMEffi
points of sensitivity and impacts associated with climate change, while a low rating indicates a community is
unprepared and requires major changes to address hazards (CatrmR and CNRA 2012:261. Adaptive capacity

ratings are described in Table 9.

Score Adaptive Capacity Scoring oescription

Low The community tacls capabitity to manage climate impacq major changes would be required.

Medium The community has some capacity to manage ctimate impact some changes would be required.

High The community has high capacity to manage ctimate impact minimatto no changes are required.

Source: CaIOES 2020.

The foltowing sections, organized by climate change effect, describe the current adaptive efforts that have been

imptemented to address climate-related hazards. These evaluations serve to anatyze and ultimatety score

adaptive capacity related to each climate change effect.

ADAPTIVE CAPACITY BY HAZARD

lncreased Temperatures and Extreme Heat

Adaptive Capacity Ratinq: Low

The City does not generate its own electricity and may not be in a position to protect vulnerable poputations
(aside from opening cooting centers) from the impacts that witt be caused by rising temperatures and a drastic

increase in the number of extreme heat events. As rising temperatures and extreme heat tead to more frequent
electricity outages, the lack of backup power sources for residents and business wit[ expose more residents to
risk of health impacts associated with extreme heat. White the LHMP does inctude extreme heat as a hazard,

relevant information is timited. lmpacts associated with increases in temperatures and extreme heat events are

the largest potential impact for the city. This means that atthough the City may be adequately prepared to
address extreme heat events currently, the vutnerabilities faced by the city inctuding impacts to youth, seniors,

and hometess populations as wetl as impacts on energy demand and services are likety to exceed to City's

current capacity.

For these reasons, the adaptive capacity ranking for increased temperatures and extreme heat is Low.

lncreased Wildfire Risk

Adaptive Capacity Ratine: Hieh

The County, State and regional agencies, and other partners are implementing a diverse array of policies and

programs that address the design of structures, fire safety, community preparedness, and emergency response,

decreasing the city's overall vulnerabi[ity to the threat of witdfire. However, as the threat of wildfire increases

both tocatty and regionally, the City, in coordination with federal, state, and [oca[ agencies, will need to continue

to adapt to projected impacts from wildfire. While the city is at relativety low risk from direct wildfire impacts,

the affects from regionat wildfires on the city through secondary impacts such as witdfire smoke and regional

transportation route disruptions witl continue to affect the city. Because these impacts have been increasing in

intensity and severity in recent years and are somewhat novel, the city wi[[ need to make minimal changes to
expand its capacity to address these types of impacts.

For these reasons, the adaptive capacity associated with wildfire is high.

Table 9: Adaptive Capacity Scoring

24 City of Fol.som

Page 787

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPEIIIDIX D CLIMATEADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

lncreased Extreme Precipitation and Flooding

Adaptive Capacitv Ratine: Medium

The City has adequatety assessed its ftood risk through the LHMP and other planning documents. The City and

stakeholders have devetoped, adopted, and enforced several poticies and programs that will serve to mitigate

impacts from increasingly frequent floods in the future. White the city's populations and assets are not severely

threatened by floods as identified in the LHMP, the City, Sacramento County and other regional and local

agencies can continue to implement policies and programs that reduce the risks associated with significant
ftooding events. As noted in Section 2.1.2,hhe risk of a large-scale storm event similar to the Great Flood events

of 1861-1862 is more tikety than not occu r at least once by 2060. This means that atthough the City is adequately
prepared to address ftooding events currently, an event such as this would result in widescale impacts on the
city and potentially affect Fotsom Dam.

Therefore, the adaptive capacity associated with increased extreme precipitation and flooding is medium.

Drought and Water Supply

Adaptive Capacitv Ratine: Medium

The City understands that a retiable water supply is essential. The City's UWMP wi[[ assist in buitding resitience

to future drought conditions. However, given the city's reliance on Folsom Lake as the primary water supply

increases the vu[nerabitity of regionat drought impacts when they do occur. The city is sti[[ somewhat vulnerable

to these climate-related hazards, particularly in terms of the economic and related impacts (irrigation of
recreation fietds, constraints on future housing development) of generalty dryer conditions, interannual
precipitation variabitity, and reduced snowpack. These ctimate change effects wi[[ pose risks to tourism-related
businesses that rety on pass-by visitors to Folsom Lake and the surrounding recreation areas when [ong-term

droughts do occur.

Based on the reasons stated above, the adaptive capacity ranking for drought, water suppty, and reduced

snowpack is medium.

SUMT,IARY OF ADAPTIVE CAPACITY
Like the sensitivity and potential impacts analysis, the adaptive capacity ratings of each climate change effect
witt hetp the City understand priority areas where there are gaps in preparing for and adapting to climate

change. Table 10 summarizes the City's adaptive capacity regarding each climate change effect.

Ctimate Change Efrect Adaptive Capacity Rating

lncreased Temperatures and Extreme Heat Low

lncreased Wildfire Risk High

lncreased Extreme Precipitation and Flooding Medium

Drought, Water Suppty, and Reduced Snowpack Medium

Source: Ascent Environmental 2021.

VulnerabilityScoring

The finat step in the vulnerability assessment is to characterize the vulnerabitity to each ctimate change effect.

The city's vutnerability to each identified impact is assessed based on the magnitude of risk to and potential
impacts on poputations, the built environment, and community functions white consideringthe current adaptive

capacity in place to mitigate for these impacts. Based on the ratings of potential impacts and adaptive capacity,

Table 10: Adaptive Capacity Summary

City of Fotsom 25

Page 788

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LSI(}M
205s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=@
an overall vulnerability score can be determined for each climate change effect. This scoring can help the City

understand which effects pose the greatest threats and should be prioritized in future ptanning efforts. Table

11 presents the rubric used to determine overatt vulnerability scores based on the ratings for potential impacts
and adaptive capacity.

Vulnerability Score

Adaptive Capacity

Potential lmpacts

Source: CaIOES 2020; adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2021.

Vutnerabitity scoring for each ctimate change effect identified and evaluated in Sections 1.5.4 through 1.5.7 is

included in Tabte 12 betow. The table shows that increased temperatures and extreme heat is assigned a

vulnerability rating of 5 and therefore should be a high priorityforthe City. lmpacts from increased precipitation
and ftooding as wellas water suppty are both assigned a vulnerability score of 3. These climate change effects
are likety to have significant impacts on the city's poputations, built environment, and community functions in

the near-term, and atthough a variety of adaptive efForts related to both climate change effects are in place and

underway, the magnitude of the risks posed by these hazards contributes to high vutnerability in the city.
lncreased witdfire risk is characterized as having a vulnerability rating of 2. This climate change effect witt likety
have lower priority impacts on the city and is currentty being addressed adequatety based on existing
conditions, but additional adaptation and resilience planning witt be required in the future to mitigate impacts
and protectthe city.

Climate Change Efrect
Vulnerability Score

lncreased Temperatures and Extreme Heat

lncreased Extreme Precipitation and Flooding

Drought and Water Suppty

lncreased Witdfire Risk

Source: CaIOES 2020; adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2021.

Conclusion

The City, regional and State agencies, and other stakehotder groups have already implemented a variety of
initiatives to address climate change in the city through existing policies, programs, and actions. As climate
change continues to exacerbate risks and impacts from heat waves, wildfires, flooding, and drought, it is critical
that the City continues to develop and imptement adaptation strategies to ptan for and mitigate these risks.

This inctudes but is not limited to an update to the City's Safety and Noise Element to address and prepare for
the impacts of ctimate change.

5

4

3

High

Vutnerability

2

5

4

3

Tabte 11: Potential lmpact Summary

LoW 3 4

Medium 2 3

High 1 2

Low Medium

Adaptive Capacity Potential lmpact

Low High

Medium High

Medium Medium

High Medium

Table 12: Vulnerability Scoring Summary

26 City of Fotsom

Page 789

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



APPENDIX D CLIMATE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCE REPORT

References

CaIEMA and CNRA. See California Emergency ManagementAgency and Catifornia Natural Resources Management
Agency.

CAL FlRE. See California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.

Catifornia Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. 2020.2020 Strategic Fire Plan. Accessed February 21,2021.

California Department of Transportation. 2013 (february). Addressing Climate Change Adaptation in Regional

Transportation Ptans: A Guide for Catifornia MPOs and RTPAs.

Catifornia Emergency Management Agency and Catifornia Natural Resources Management Agency. 2012.

California Adaptation Planning Guide: Planning for Adaptive Communities.

California Energy Commission. 2021a. Ca[-Adapt AnnuaI Averages Toot. Availabte: https://cat-
ad a pt.o rg/too [s / a n n ua [-ave rages. Accesse d Fe b ru ary 19, 2021.

2021b. Cal-Adapt Witdfire Toot. Avaitable: https://cal-adapt.org/toots/witdfire. Accessed February 19,

202't.

2021c. Cat-Adapt Extreme Heat Too[. Available: https://cat-adapt.org/tools/extreme-heat. Accessed

February 19,2021.

2021d. Cat-Adapt Extended Drought Scenario Tool. Avaitabte: https://ca[-adapt.org/tools/extended-
d rought. Accessed February 20, 2021.

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services. 2020. California Adoptation Planning Guide. Avaitable:

https:/ /www.catoes.ca.gov/ HazardMitigationSite / Docu ments/APG2- FINAL-PR-DRAFTAccessibte.pdf.

Accessed February 12, 2021.

California Governor's Office of Planning and Research, California Energy Commission, and Catifornia Natural
Resources Agency. 2018a. California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment Report: State Summary Report.

2018b. California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment Report: Sacramento Valley Region Report.

California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 2018. lndicators of Ctimate Change in California.

CatOES. See California Governor's Office of Emergency Services.

City of Folsom. 2011. Community Witdfire Protection Plan.

2015. Urban Water Management Plan.

2O20a. Emergency Operations Ptan.

2020b. Emergency Operations Plan Appendix - 1 Evacuation Plan

CNRA. See Catifornia Natural Resources Agency.

FEMA. See Federal Emergency Management Agency.

lntergovernmentaI PaneI on Ctimate Change. 2014. Ctimate Change 2014 Synthesis Report.

IPCC. See lntergovernmental Pane[ on Climate Change.

City of FoLsom 27

Page 790

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI()M
2035

GENERAL PLAN HFTEru
Kivimdki, M., Batty, G. D., Pentti,.l., Shipley, M. J., Sipit6, P. N., Nyberg, S. T., & Vahtera, t.2}20.Association between

socioeconomic status and the devetopment of mental and physicat heatth conditions in adutthood: a

multi-cohort study. The Lancet Public Heatth, 5(3), e140-e149.

Nationat Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. 2018. What's the Difference Between Weather and Climate?

2020. National Weather Service Forecast Office. Sacramento Executive Airport Station. Available

Accessed october 3, 2020.

NOM. See NationaI Ocean and Atmospheric Administration.

OEHHA. See California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment.

OPR. See California Governor's Office of Ptanning and Research.

OPR, CEC, and CNRA. See California Governor's Office of Planning and Research, California Energy Commission,

and California Natural Resources Agency.

Pierce, D., J. F. Kalansky, and D. R. Cayan. 2018. Ctimate, Drought, and Sea Level Rise Scenarios for Catifornia's

Fourth Climate Change Assessment.

Rappold, A. G., J. Reyes, G. Poutiot, W. E. Cascio, and D. Diaz-Sanchez.2017. Community Vutnerabitity to Health

lmpacts of Witdtand Fire Smoke Exposure. Environmentat Science & Technology 51(121:6674-6682.

Sacramento County. 2017a. Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.

2o17b. Annex B: City of Fotsom. ln Socramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.

2021. Sacramento County Draft Ctimate Action Plan.

Schwartz, M. W., N. Butt, C. R. Dolanc, A. Holguin, M. A. Moritz, M. P. North, H. D. Safford, N. L. Stephenson, J. H.

Thorne, and P. J. van Mantgem. 2015. lncreasing elevation of fire in the Sierra Nevada and implications

for forest change. Available: https: / /esajou rnats.onlinetibrary.wiley.com /doi/ pdf/10.1890 / ES15-

00003.1. Accessed February 5,2021.

Sheridan, S.C., Allen, M.J., Lee, C.C., and Kalkstein, L.S. 2012. Future heat vulnerability in California, Part Il:
projecting future heat-related mortality. Avaitabte: httLs:/ /doi.org/10.1007/s10584-012-0437-1. Accessed

January February 6,2021.

Swain, D. 1., D. E. Horton, D. Singh, and N. S. Diffenbaugh. 2016. Trends in Atmospheric Patterns Conducive to
SeasonaI Precipitation and Temperature Extremes in Catifornia. ScienceAdvances 2(4): e1501344.

Swain, D. 1., B. Langenbrunner, J. D. Neelin, and A. Hall. 2018. lncreasing Precipitation Votatility in Twenty-First-

Century California. Nature Climate Change 8:427-433.

U.S. Census Bureau. 2019a.2019: ACS S-Year Demographic and Housing Estimates; DP05. Accessed February 7,

2021.

2019b. City of Folsom, California Profite.

Westerting, A. L. 2018. Wildfire Simulations for the Fourth California Climate Assessrnent Projecting Changes in

Extreme Wildfire Events with a Warming Climate. University of Catifornia, Merced, California's Fourth

Cti mate Cha nge Assessment, Californ ia Energy Com m ission.

28 City of Folsom

Page 791

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT E

Implementation Element Update

Page 792

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I1O

I

L rl i51n$llclt'' ,. I 
-- 

tr,#$M=*ri*;: 

^.-
LiLary.=#l;J

:r io

ft F,'

I
',{{ot il 'l il J

f l -'.r/.,i' tI
lS 'l-r.ry 

,1 ,\[

3wffif&_

f
I

"t$$l
1.f.: 

l'" ''t't).1

tr

,-jatjlffiF,il

Implementation
lf the City's General Ptan is to serve its purpose effectively, it must be reviewed, maintained,

and imptemented in a systematic and consistent manner. This element describes the

General Plan Maintenance and Monitoring procedures and lists the General Plan's

im ptementation programs.

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Augus[ 2021 10-1
Page 793

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LFI()n'[
203s

GENERAL PLAT{ HAIEru
This page is intentionolly lefi blanh.

10-2 Ad o pted Au gust 28, 201 8;Scuscd-Augus!202Page 794

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Maintenance and
Vlonitoring

IMPTEMENTATION I10

The City of Folsom is committed to reviewing its progress in implementing the
goals and poticies of the General Plan at a minimum of every five years. Since

many of the factors and issues that the General Plan addresses change from
year to year, an annual review and reporting of imptementation witt hetp

ensure the City is moving forward to achieve the Plan's vision. This review witl

report on the status of each specific implementation program in the General

Plan and take into account the availabitity of new imptementation toots,

changes in funding sources, and feedback from Ptan monitoring activities.

General Plan Revierr and Update
At least once every 10 years, the City wil[ aim to thoroughly review the General

Plan and revise and update it as necessary. This review and update process

wi[[ encompass the entire Genera[ Plan, inctuding the Background Report and

Policy Document goals, policies, and implementation programs.

General Plan Amendments
As conditions and needs change, the City wil[ need to consider proposed

amendments to the General Plan. Like the adoption of the generat ptan itsetf,

General Plan amendments are subject to environmental review, public notice,

and hearing requirements and must not create inconsistencies with other
parts of the ptan. Some of these witt be policy changes, while many wilt tikety

be changes to the Land Use Diagram. City staff and decision-makers wi[[ need

to carefutty evaluate each of the changes, not only for merit and potential

impact, but a[so for consistency with the rest of the General Plan. State law

requires that the general plan be an integrated and internally consistent set

of goals, policies, standards, programs, and diagrams.

General Plan Gonsistency in
fmplementation
To ensure City staff and decision-makers systematicatty imptement the
poticies and proposals of the general plan, State law since the early 1970s has

increasingty insisted that the actions and decisions of each locaI government

concerning both its own projects and the private projects it approves are

consistent with its adopted general ptan. The courts have supported and

furthered this trend through their interpretations of State taw.

Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised August 202'1 10-3Page 795

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFt()nf,
205s

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru

Gategories of
Implementation
Actions/Tlools
The City of Fotsom wi[[ implement the goats and poticies of the Genera[ Plan

through many actions and tools grouped according to the eight categories

listed below. The two- to four-letter identifiers are used in Part 2 of the
General Plan to indicate how each policy witt be implemented. The identifiers
are also used in the Specific lmplementation Programs section of Part 3 to
indicate the type of specific implementation program:

. Regutation and Devetopment Review FDE

. City Master Plans, Strategies, and Rrograms IEEH

. Financing and Budgeting @
o Ptanning Studies and Reports EEE

. city Services and operations @

. lnter-governmentatcoordination Ed
r Joint Partnerships with the Private Sector E
. Public lnformation [!

The foltowing is a partiat tist of City actions that must be consistent with the
GeneraI Plan:

. Master plans

. Specific plans

. Capitat projects (inctuding indirectly facitity master ptans)

. Developmentagreements

. Subdivision approvals

r Development projects

10-4 Adopted August 28, 2018:xevlscd iugus!202
Page 796

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Regulation and Derrclopment Revieryrr

(RDR)
Many General Plan poticies are implemented through regulations adopted by

the City based on the City's "police power" to protect the pubtic health, safety,

and welfare. City ordinances also create a development review process that
provides for City review of individuaI project proposats and authorizes the City

to approve, deny, or condition projects based on their consistency with the
General Plan. The fotlowing is a list of regulatory plans and ordinances

commonly used to implement the Genera[ Plan:

r Master ptans

. Specific plans

. zoning ordinance

. Subdivisionordinance

. Buitding and other codes

. Habitat conservation plans

. Catifornia Environmentat Quality Act (CEQA)

. Development review

Cify lVlaster Planrs, Strategies, and
Progrrams (l\mSP)
The City has adopted many master plans, strategies, and programs focusing

City attention on various types of City services and facitities, devetopment, or
geographic areas. These are prepared to provide more specific direction for
City decision-makers, staff, and the pubtic on how the GeneraI Plan witl be

implemented. They are not elements or components of the General Ptan. The

following is a tist of master plans, strategies, and programs that the City has

prepared or plans to prepare:

r Parks and Recreation Master Plan

. Pedestrian Master Plan

r Bikeway Master Ptan

r lntettigent Transportation Systems (lTS) Master Ptan

r Arts and Cultural€*ttcre Master Ptan

. Historic District Zoning Ordinance and Design and Devetopment

Guidetines

. Historic Preservation Master Ptan

r Water Master Ptan

IMPTEMENTATION IlO

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-5
Page 797

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFIOM
2035

GENERAL PLAN Fr=ru
. Urban Water Management Plan

r Fire Service Delivery Plan

r Emergency operations Plan

. Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

. Community Witdtife Preparedness Ptan

. Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

. River District Master Plan

. Active Transportation Ptan (ln-Progress 2021)

r Folsom Citv Zoo n.tlrrrv Master Plan

. Open Space Management Plan

. Folsom Plan Area Open Space Management Ptan

o Parks & Recreation Facilities Renovation Master Plan

Specific imptementation programs call for the annual or periodic review of
many of these master ptans, strategies, and programs in addition to adoption

of some new master plans and strategies.

Financing and Budgeting (FB)

The devetopment, maintenance, and operation of public facitities such as

parks and drainage facilities and the provision of City services require

financiaI resources that are derived from various sources. Programming of City

capitat projects and their funding over time is outlined in the City's Capitat

lmprovement Program, which is updated annua[[y. The following is a tist of
revenue sources used by or availabte to the City to support development,

maintenance, or operation of pubtic facitities and services:

r PropertV tax revenue

. Sates tax revenue

. User fees

o Development fees

. Quimby Act (Park) dedications

. Business improvement districts

. Community facitities and special assessment districts

. Municipal bonds

. Special taxes

. county, State, and Federal funding

10-6 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 798

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Planning Studies and Reports @SR)
The City conducts studies and produces reports to collect and evaluate

information related to specific issues. These studies and reports are

undertaken at the direction of the City Council as needed or are prepared

annually to report on the status and imptementation of the General Plan or a

master plan.

City Services and Operations (SO)

The City provides a broad range of services to its residents, businesses, and

visitors, and manages and operates its facitities to meet community needs.

How the City provides services and carries out its operations makes a

significant difference in how effectively the General Plan is imptemented.

Erter-governmental Goordination (IGC)
The City must coordinate with numerous [oca[, regionat, State, and Federat

agencies to implement the General Plan. These agencies provide services,

facitities, or funding and administer regulations that directty or indirectly

affect many issues addressed in the General Plan. The following is a partiat tist

of public agencies that may play a role in implementing the General Plan:

. Local agencies such as Sacramento County; Folsom Cordova Unified

SchooI District; and speciaI districts;

. Regional agencies such as Sacramento Local Agency Formation

Commission (mfCo); Sacramento Area CounciI of Governments
(sAcoc); sacramento Regional Transit (SacRT); and Sacramento

Ptace rvi tte Tra nspo rtatio n Co rri d o r (s PTC-I PA);

o State agencies such as Caltrans, General Services, Catifornia

EnvironmentaI Protection Agency (tpR), catifornia Department of
Parks and Recreation, Catifornia office of Historic Preservation, and

Native American Heritage Commission (ruRnC); and

. Federal agencies such as U.S. Bureau of Rectamation; U.S. Fish and

Witdtife Services (USrwS); U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; and Federal

Emergency Ma nagement Agency (rEnna).

The City recognizes there are unique pubtic and private partnerships. ln those

instances where there are pubtic and private partnerships, it wit[ involve both

inter-governmentaI coordination and joint partnerships with the private

sector as described in more detail below.

IMPLEMENTATION IlO

Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021 10-7Page 799

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F'()LgOn'[
2035

GENERAL PLAN nm=ru

Implementation Prograrns

Joint pafnersttips with the Private Sector (IP)
The City can combine its efforts with private sector efforts to improve pubtic

service delivery, manage pubtic sector assets, or leverage private sector

investment. By expanding the role of the private sector, the City can use its

technical, management, and financial resources in creative ways to achieve

objectives of the General Plan.

hrblic Information (PI)
The City can use a wide range of toots to keep the city's residents informed of
City services or other issues of current interest. Pubtic information can be

distributed through media such as brochures, pamphlets, the City's website,

workshops, seminars, pubtic access television, radio, newspapers, pubtic

hearings, neighborhood and community meetings, and customer service

hotti nes.

Specific imp[ementation programs are listed in the fottowing tables. Simitar to
the policies, each implementation program is foltowed by a set of letters that
identifies a type of action or tool that the City witt use to carry out the
implementation program. Fotlowing each implementation program is a

description of which poticy(ies) the program imptements, which City

department(s) is responsibte for implementation, and which department(s)

witt support the responsible department(s). Finatty, to the right of each

program is a timeline that identifies when the implementation will be

completed.

The implementation program tabtes are organized as foltows:

. Table 9-1: Land Use lmplementation Programs

. Table 9-2: Mobitity lmplementation Programs

. Table 9-3: Economic Prosperity lmplementation Programs

. Table 9-4: Natural and Cuttural Resources lmptementation Programs

. Table 9-5: Pubtic Facilities and Services lmplementation Programs

o Tabte 9-6: Parks and Recreation lmplementation Programs

. Table 9-7: Safety and Noise lmplementation Programs

1 0-8 Ad o pte d Au gu st 28, 201 8;Beyjse-d-Augus!2021Page 800

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION IlO

Table 9-1: Land Use lmplementation Programs

LU-l. Update the zoning Ordinance

Develop a priority list for how sections of the Folsom Zoning Ordinance and applicabte
guidetines witt be updated consistent with the General Ptan. The City shatt review and

update the Fotsom Zoning Ordinance and applicabte guidetines, consistent with the
poticies and diagrams of the GeneraI Plan. The update sha[[ inctude developing

appropriate standards to encourage mixed use within the East Bidwett Overlay area

and transit-oriented devetopment around tight rait stations, including restrictions on

automobile-oriented uses within one-quarter mile of tight rait stations. The City shalt

review and update the Historic District Design and Development Guidelines. EA
E

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

LU-2. Vacant and Underutitized Sites

Develop and maintain a citywide database of vacant and underutitized sites to
monitor the city's growth and change. The City shall prepare an annual report to the

Planning Commission and City Council on the number of vacant sites and

underutilized sites that were devetoped during the previous year. EEE $
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

LU-3. Corporation Yard Special Study

Develop and adopt a study of the current City of Folsom corporation yard to
determine appropriate uses and projects after the City relocates the corporation yard.

@
I mptements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

o1rrq883 p

***Eg
X

LU 1.1.1

Community Devetopment

X

LU 1.1.11

Community Development

X X

lnformation Systems

LU 4.1.6

Community Development

X

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-9
Page 801

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@F-gSnA
2035

GENERAL PLAN mm=ru
Tableg-1: Land Use lmplementation Programs

LU-4. Property Owner Outreach on Overlay Designations

Reach out to property owners within the East Bidwett Mixed Use Overlay and Transit-

Oriented Development Overlay areas to exptain the options avaitabte to property

owners and developers in this area, and provide technicat assistance, as appropriate,
to facititate development within these areas. [[$ E

I mptements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

LU-5. River Oistrict Master Plan

Prepare a River District Master Plan for Fotsom's riverfront area that is based on

widespread community engagement as we[[ as coordination with the Catifornia

Department of Parks and Recreation. IFEH

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

LU-6 Adopt Green Building O

Encourage new residential and non-residential construction projects to adopt and

incorporate green buitding features inctuded in the CALGreen Tier t checktist in

project designs; and, encourage projects to seek LEED rating and certification that
would meet equiva[ent CALGreen Tier 1 standards or better. Consider future
amendments to City code to adopt CALGreen Tier 1 requirements consistent with State

buitding code. For projects subject to CEQA seeking to streamline GHG analysis

consistent with the General Plan, CALGreen Tier 1 compliance wou[d be required.

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

ou.ra883e{,NNC,l .E.=s*R = BRRRES
X

X

LU 3.1.1- 3.1.8, 4.1.1-4.1.3

Community Development

X

LU 5.1.1-5.1.3

Community Development

X X

Parks and Recreation

LU 1.1.13

Community Devetopment

10-10 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021Page 802

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

LU-7 Encourage Zero ttlet Energy

Encourage Zero Net Energy (ZNE) buitding design for new residentiat and non-

residentiat construction projects. Consider future amendments to City code to adopt
ZNE requirements consistent with the State buitding code. For projects subject to
CEQA seeking to streamline GHG analysis consistent with the general plan,

achievement of zNE would be required consistentwith provisions in the State buitding
code under Catifornia Code of Regutations, Title 24, Part 6.

I m ptements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

X

LU 1.1.13

Community Development

Adopted August 28, 2018;Xcyised i_ugu-st 2-021 10-11
Page 803

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@r,gORd
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi
Table 9-2: Mobility lmptementation Programs

M-l. Transportation Demand Management Sl

Adopt a citywide Transportation Demand Management (TDM) program that
encourages residents to reduce the amount of trips taken with single-occupancy

vehicles. The program shatt be designed to achieve an overall 15 percent vehic[e mile

traveled (VMT) reduction over 2014 levels and a 20 percent reduction in City-employee

commute VMT. The City shatl coordinate with employers to develop a menu of
incentives and encourage participation in TDM programt. E!!!|

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

M-2. Intelligent Transportation Systems (lTS) Master Plan

Adopt and periodically update an ITS Master Ptan to prioritize the deployment of
technotogy designed to maximize the efficiency of the City's traffic signal systems.

lmplement the ITS Master Plan that may include the fotlowing:

. lnsta[[ing closed-circuit television (ccw) cameras at designated traffic signals

as defined in the ITS Master Plan.

. Cottaborating with neighboring jurisdictions to devetop ITS standards and

specifications; participate in the Highway 50 Fiberoptic lnterconnection Group

(so-rrc).

. Deploying Dynamic Message Signs (DMS) at major decision points and key

traveler information locations.

o Devetoping and maintain a Traffic Operations Center to facititate the sharing

of traffic information between City staff, the public, and neighboring agencies.

. Creating an ITS Operations and Maintenance Plan, including steps for
re p taci n g tegacy eq u i p m e nt a n d syste ms. F6ttlftf{

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

olrrq883e{,(\r (\r c,l .d .=

***EH

M 1.1.9, NCR 3.1.3

Community Development

X

Public Works

M 1.1.8

Pubtic Works

X

@lnformation Systems

10-12 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 804

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION IlO

Table 9-2: Mobill$ lmptementation Programs

M'3. Electric Vehicle Charge Stations in Public Places O

Develop and imptement a citywide strategy to instal[ electric vehicle charging stations
in pubtic ptaces where peopte shop, dine, recreate, and gather. EFEE

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

M-4. Etectric Vehicle Charge Stations at City Facilities €t

Explore options to instatt electric vehicte quick charge stations at City facitities. @
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

M-5. Pedestrian Master Plan

Review and update its pedestrian master plan every five years to ensure it remains

current and continues to provide sound guidance in creating links between Fotsom's

destinations [!!!|
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

M-6. Bikeway Master Plan

Review and update its bikeway master plan every five years to ensure it remains

current and continues to provide sound guidance in creating links between Folsom's

destinations [!![
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

ornq888 P

***Eg

M 1.1.10

Community Development

X

Public Works

M 1.1.10

PubticWorks@
Parks and Recreation P*btl*Wsrks

X

M2.1.1

Parksand Recreation@

X X

Pubtic Works, Community Development Parks-and
Reereatien

M.2.1.5

Parks and Recreation

X X

Public Works, Community Development

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-13
Page 805

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOr-gqleA
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=6
Table 9-2: mobitity lmplementation Programs

M-7. Bicycte Safety Education

Continue to implement a bicycle-safety education program for cyctists and motorists.

E
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

M-8. Bicycte and Pedestrian lmprovements tJ)

ldentifiT regiona[, State, and FederaI funding sources to support bicycle and

pedestrian facitities and programs to improve roadways and intersections by 2035.

Actions include:

orrle883 ee

***Eg
X

X

Require bicycle and pedestrian improvements as conditions of approval for
new development on roadways and intersections serving the project.

lmprovements may inctude, but are not limited to: on-street bike lanes, traffic
calming improvements such as marked crosswalks, raised intersections,

median istands, tight corner radii, roundabouts, on-street parking, planter

strips with street trees, chicanes, chokers, any other improvement that
focuses on reducing traffic speeds and increasing bicycte and pedestrian

safety. For projects subject to CEQA seehing to streamline GHG analysis

consistent with the General Plan, incorporation of applicable bicycle and
pedestrian improvements into projectdesigns or conditions of approvalwould
be required.

Based on the most recent citywide inventory of roadways and

pedestrian/bicycte facitities, identifu areas of greatest need, to focus

improvements on first. Areas to prioritize include roadways or intersections

with a lack of safety features, street where disruption in sidewalks or bicycte

lanes occurs, areas of highest vehicte traffic near commerciaI centers and

transit facilities, where increased use of pedestrian/bicycte facitities would

be most used. EEE @
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

a

a

M.2.1.9

Parks and Recreation

Pubtic Works, Potice Department

M 1.1.4, M 1.1.6, M 1.1.5, M2.1.2, M 2.1.3, M2.1.4, M 2.1.15

Parks and Recreation. Public Works

Community Devetopment

10-14 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 806

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION IlO

Tabte 9-2: Mobitity tmplementation Programs

M-9. Safe Routes to School

Coordinate with the Folsom Cordova Unified School District to pursue Safe Routes to
SchooI grants to fund programs and projects that ensure Fotsom children can walk or
bike to school safety. lEEl

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

M-l0. Capital Southeast Connector

Coordinate with other members of the Capitat Southeast Connector Joint Powers

Authority 0pn) to ensure the connector is constructed. The City sha[[ continue to
assign a Folsom representative to the Jpn board. EO

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

M-11. Parking Standards r!)

Review and update its parking standards as necessary to reduce the amount of land

devoted to parking and encourage shared parking arrangements, particularty in
m ixed-use and transit-orie nted deveto p me nts. FEE

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

M-12. Commercial Truck Routes

Review and update its commercial truck routes map to ensure it meets the economic

needs of the community and inctudes STAA routes [!![
I mplements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

orrlq883e{,NNal(d.=S*R=E'RRRES
X

X

M 2.1.16

Pubtic Works, Parks and Recreation

Community Development

M 4.1.4

PubticWorks@
Co m m u n ity Deve [op me nt Pcbtie{#orks

M 4.2.1, M 4.2.2, M 4.2.3, M 4.2.4

Community Devetopment

X

M 5.1.3

Pubtic Works

X

Community Development

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-15Page 807

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLEI()M
2035

GENERAL PLAN HMEffi

M-13. Quarry Truck Management Plan

Maintain and imptement a Quarry Truck Management Ptan. Effi
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

M 5.1.5

Pubtic Works

X

Community Development

10-'16 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 808

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPTEMENTATION IlO

Tabte 9-3: Economic Prosperity lmptementation Programs

EP-l. Industry Cluster Analysis

Coordinate with the Fotsom Chamber of Commerce to conduct an analysis of the
industry clusters that exist in Folsom and the emerging or potential clusters in

robom. EEEE

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsibl,e Oepartment(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

EP-2. Customer Service Survey

Develop and implement a customer service survey to better understand the customer

service retationship between the city and business community EEEE|

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pponing Department(s)

EP-3. Folsom Accelerated Small Tenant lmprovement Review (FASTIR)

Continue to maintain and implement a program to help tenants obtain buitding
permits in a timely manner, with a goaI of providing buitding permits within one to
two days. FEEI

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

EP-4. lnventory of Developable Sites

Devetop and maintain an inventory of developabte sites to encourage the
development of key new industries. EEEf,

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte oepartment(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

ornq883 s,
NNQI(!.=e*s=&oootr-L
AII\N<

X

X

EP 2.1.2

City Manager

X

Community Development

EP 3.1.2

City Manager

X

EP 3.1.3

Community Devetopment

EP 3.2.1

Community Development

lnformation Systems

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-11
Page 809

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



r.()LSI()M
203s

GENERAL PLAN HffiTI@

EP-5. Folsom Tourism Bureau

Coordinate with the Fotsom Tourism Bureau on strategies to attract visitors to Folsom.

The City shatl invite representatives from the Folsom Tourism Bureau to regularly brief

the Fotsom City Councit on programs and strategies. E
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

X

EP 6.1.7

City Manager

Community Development, Parks and Recreation

10-18 Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021
Page 810

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Tabte 9-4: Ilatural and Cuttural Resources lmplementation Programs

NCR-1. Urban Forest Plan

Develop and maintain an Urban Forest Ptan. IFEEI

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

NCR-2. Maintain GHG Emissions lnventory

Review and update the City's GHG emissions inventory for municipal and

communitywide GHG emissions every five years at a minimum.

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

NCR-3. Creek Week

Sponsor a citywide volunteer creek ctean-up day during "Creek Week."

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting oepartment(s)

NCR-4. Cultural Resources lnventory

Maintain and imptement a culturat resource inventory to identifi7, evatuate, register,

and protect Folsom's culturat resources. EEEE

I m ptements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporti ng Department(s)

IIICR-S. Historic Preservation Master Plan

Maintain and imptementthe Historic Preservation Master plan. EFEEI

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

or.nq883 p{,

***Eg

X

X

NCR 1.1.8

Community Development

X

NCR 3.2.1, 3.2.2,3.2.5

Community Devetopment

X X

NCR 4.1.4

Parks and Recreation. Public Works

X

NCR 5.1.2

Community Deve[opment

Parks and Recreation

NCR 5.1.1, NCR 5.1.4

Community Development

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-19
Page 811

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LgOI\d
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hffi=ru
Table 9-4: llatural and Cultural Resources lmplementation Programs

NCR 6: Lighting Design Standards

Estabtish consistent tighting standards for outdoor tighting of city development to
reduce high-intensity nighttime tighting and gtare. These standards sha[[ be

consistent with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Ptan Community Design Guidelines.

Additionat standards shalt be considered, inctuding the use of automatic shutoffs or
motion sensors for tighting features to further reduce excess nighttime light.

To reduce impacts associated with light and gtare, the City witl require the following

tighting standards:

. Shield or screen tighting fixtures to direct the tight downward and prevent

tight spill on adjacent properties.

. Place and shietd or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction

activities and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residentiaI areas and

passing motorists.

. For public street, building, parking, and landscape tighting in residential
neighborhoods, prohibit the use of tight fixtures that are of unusua[ty high

intensity or brightness (e.9., harsh mercury vapor, [ow-pressure sodium, or

fluorescent butbs) or that btink or flash. For pubtic parks and sports

facitities, the City wi[[ use the best tight and gtare controt technology

feasible, atong with sensitive site design.

. Use appropriate buitding materials (such as low-gtare glass, low-glare

buitding glaze or finish, neutral, earth-toned colored paint and roofing

materiats), shietded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage in the

office/commercial areas to prevent tight and glare from adversely aflecting

motorists on nearby roadways.

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

or.regEiS ec,

***Eg

NCR 2.1.3.

Community Development

X

Parks and Recreation

10-20 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 812

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Table 9-4: ltaturaland Cultural Resources lmplementation Programs

NCR 7: Management of lnadvertently Discovered Cultural Resources

Devetop a program for the management of inadvertently discovered cultural
resources. The program wi[[ consist of, but wi[[ not necessarily be timited to the

fottowing standards:

The City witl require, through permit or tentative map conditions or contractual

obtigations, that in the event of any inadvertent discovery of archaeological

resources, att such finds witt be subject to PRC 21083.2 and CEQA Guidetines 15064.5.

Procedures for inadvertent discovery are listed below.

ln the event of the inadvertent discovery of previously unknown archaeological sites

during excavation or construction, all construction affecting the site shall cease and

the contractor sha[[ contact the City.

. A[[ work within 100 feet of the find witt be hatted until a professional

archaeologist can evatuate the significance of the find in accordance with

NRHP and CRHR criteria.

r lf any find is determined to be significant by the archaeologist,

representatives of the city witl meet with the archaeologist to determine the

appropriate course of action. lf necessary, a Treatment Ptan witl be prepared

by an archeotogist, outlining recovery of the resource, analysis, and

reporting of the find. The Treatment Plan witt be submitted to the City for
review and approvat prior to resuming construction.

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Su pporti ng Department(s)

NCR 8: Management of Paleontotogical Resources

Develop a program for the management of pateontological resources. The program

wi[[ consist of, but wil[ not necessarily be timited to, the fottowing standards and

requirements: Prior to approvaI of a discretionary project, it shatt be determined

through literature review and records research, the paleontologicat sensitivity of the
geologic units affected by the project. lf pa[eontotogical resources may be present,

conditions witt be added to the project approval to monitor for and salvage

pateontologicaI resources d u ring grou nd-disturbi ng activities.

I m ptements Policy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

orrre883 s,

***Eg

NCR 5.1.4

Community Development

X

Parks and Recreation

NCR s.1.4

Community Development

X

Parks and Recreation

Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised Aueust 2021 10-21
Page 813

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



FOLEl(DIr{
2035

GENERAL PLAN mm=6

Table 9-5: Pubtic Facilities and Services lmplementation Programs

PFS-I. Capital lmprovement Plan

Update the Capitat lmprovement ptan (Ctp) biannualty to ensure the implementation

and adequacy ofthe ptan. ilFEE| @

I mptements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte oepartment(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

PFS-2. Arts and Culture Master Plan

Review and update an Arts and Cuttural€ult*re Master Plan every five years. As part

of the Ptan, prepare guidetines for plaques, signs, and other disptays in public spaces

to increase awareness of such culturaI and historic sites and events. EEEH

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-3. Pubtic Art Guidelines

Review and update every five years guidelines regarding permanent artwork in pubtic

spaces. EEEE

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-4. Water Master Plan

Continue to review and update the City's Water Master Plan at least every five years

consistent with the land use patterns and densities/intensities provided for in the

Genera[ Ptan. EFEH

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

orrq88tg',
***cg

PFS 1.1.1

Pubtic Works, Finance, Parks and Recreation,

Environmenta[ & Water Resources

XX X

A[[ Departments

PFS 1.1.2

Parks and Recreation

X X X

Community Devetopment

XX X

PFS 1.1.3

Parks and Recreation

Community Development

PFS 3.1.1

Environmentat and Water Resources Department

X X

Public Works

10-22 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 814

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Tabte 9-5: Public Facilities and Services lmptementation Programs

PFS-S. Urban Water Management Plan

Review and update the Urban Water Management Ptan at least every five years, as

required by the Urban Water Management Ptanning Act. ilEEn

I m ptements Policy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-6. Water Management Programs

Maintain its water management programs, including its commercial water audits,

large landscape irrigation audits, rebates, and education. EEEH

I mplements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

PFS-7. Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

Review and update Sanitary Sewer Management Plan at least every two years as

required by State Water Resources Control Board's General Waste Discharge

Requ i rement order. IEEE

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-8. Maintenance Permits

Obtain State and Federal permits for maintaining att floodways and detention basins

and keep these facilities free of flood obstructions.

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

orrte88tg',
***cg

X

X

PFS 3.1.2

Environmental and Water Resources Eepartment

X X

Pubtic Works, Parks and Recreation

PFS 3.1.9

EnvironmentaI and Water Resources Eepartment

@Parksand Recreation

PFS 4.1.2

Public Works

X X X

PFS 5.1.1

Pubtic Works

Adopted August 28, 2018; Revised August 2021 10-23
Page 815

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"(DF-g(Dnd
2035

GENERAL PLAN HffiEru
Table 9-5: Public Facilities and Services lmplementation Programs

PFS-9. Fire Service Delivery Plan

Review and update every three years the Fire Service Delivery Plan to define the future

fire protection service needs of the city. EEH

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting oepartment(s)

PF5-10. City Energy Use Procedures

Develop energy use/ptug load procedures for City facitities and engage employees in

the implementation ptoc"ss. EO

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

PFS-ll. Evaluate Automating Energy Use

Systematicatly evaluate effectiveness of existing systems to automate energy use and

implement energy conservation measures such as automatic HVAC system shutdowns,

additionat room [ighting sensors, automatic computer shutdowns, or any other

identifi ed energy reduction opportu nities.@

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

PF5-12. Evatuate Energy Use

Evatuate facitities energy use to identify key areas where energy upgrades are needed

and consider tighting retrofits, buitding weatherization, and mechanicaUHVAC

upgrades. @
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

orrlq883 p

***Eg
X

X

X

X

PFS 7.1.2

Fire Department

PFS 8.1.7

Parks and Recreation P*blieWerks

PFS 8.1.7

Parks and Recreation P*btir=l#erks

PFS 8.1.7

Parks and Recreation Mtk-l#orks

10-24 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 816

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Tabte 9-5: Public Facilities and Services lmplementation Programs

PFS-13. Streetlight Retrofit

Continue to retrofit streettights with tight-emitting diode (lfO) fixtures for energy

efficiency and reduced maintenance. E
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-14. Energy Efficient Fleet $r

Continue purchasing alternative fueUtechnology vehictes when reptacing vehicles in

existing fleet. Use high-performance renewabte dieset in 100 percent of existing (ZOt+)

and future dieset on-road vehictes and convert entire on-road gasotine vehicles to
electric by 203s. @

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-15. Reduce VMT in City Operations

Take actions to reduce vehicle miles traveled retated to city operations. Potential

actions may inctude:

. lnstall timer tocks on att City owned restroom facitities - reducing the vehicle
traveI needed to manua[y tock/untock these facilities.

. Revise City Design Review process so emptoyees onty need to post a notice at
the site once.

a Allow online credit card payments for certain Community Devetopment

Permits - reducing appticant need to drive to City Hatt.

I m ptements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

or.ra88t e

* * * Eg
X

X

X

PFS 8.1.7

Public Works, Parks and Recreath

PFS 8.1.8

Pubtic Works

Parks and Recreation, Community Development,

Environmental and Water Resources

PFS 8.1.8

Pubtic Works

Community Development. Parks and Recreath

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-25
Page 817

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F(}LSOnd
2035

GENERAL PLAN m=ru
Tabte 9-5: Public Facilities and Seruices lmplementation Ptograms

PF5-16. PACE Program

Continue to assist in implementing the Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)

programs to facititate energy conservation financing in Fotsom. ilEEH

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-17. Partnerships for Energy Conservation

Work with regionaI partners and locaI energy utitities (e.g., Sacramento Municipal

Utitity District [sMUD] and Pacific Gas & Etectric Company [PG&E]) to promote,

develop, maintain, and implement energy conservation and efficiency programs.

These coutd inctude residential and commercial programs that provide rebates and

financing for energy efficiency upgrades to existing homes and commercial buildings,

SMUD's Greenergy and carbon off-set program, photovoltaic system retrofits, and

other appticable programs. [!
I m ptements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-18. Neighborhood Cleanup Program (t)

Collect bulky waste (e.g., [umber, furniture, tires) from Folsom residents to maintain

a clean, attractive city. Eg

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

PFS-19. Recycling Containers O

Expand the number of recycting containers at City facitities and properties to capture

more recyclabtes that are currently going to the tandfitt. [Q
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

olrte883e{,
***;g

X

X

PFS 8.1.4, PFS 8.1.5, PFS 8.1.6

Co m m u n ity Deveto p me nt Pcbti e{#erks

X

PFS 8.1.4

Pubtic Works, Community Devetop

Parks and Recreation

PFS 9.1.1

Public Works

PFS 9.1.2, PFS 9.1.3

Pubtic Works

X

10-26 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 818

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Table 9-5: Pubtic Facilities and Services lmptementation Programs

PFS-20. Reduce Waste in City Facilities €l

Reduce waste diverted to the tandfitt by expanding the use of automatic hand dryers

in bathrooms, as we[[ as setting printer defautts to doubte-sided printing. @
I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting oepartment(s)

PFS-21. M.O.W.E.R. Program t$l

Provide education on composting and grasscycling to the pubtic through the
Minimizing organic Waste with Education and Recycting (m.o.w.r.n.) program. [!

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

PFs-22 Renewable Energy in City-Operated Buildings C

Strive to supptement 25 percent of City-owned buitding energy demand through on-

site or off-site renewable energy sources. On-site sources may include sotar panets

or other types of renewabte energy systems on rooftops or parking areas, and on-site
energy storage. Off-site sources coutd include combinations of equivalent renewable

energy generation systems, power purchase agreements, or other off-site programs

offered by energy utitities (e.g., SMUD's Greenergy or SolarShares programs).

I m ptements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

o1rlq8S3ec,
**$Eg

X

X

PFS 9.1.2

Pubtic Works

X

Parks and Recreation

PFS 9.1.4

Pubtic Works

PFS 8.1.3

Parks and Recreation P*btie-l#orks

Public Works

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-27
Page 819

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F@F.g@A4
2055

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ru
Tabte 9-5: Public Facilities and Services lmplementation Programs

PFS-23 H igh-Efficiency or Alternatively-Powered Water Heater Replacement Program $t

Provide educational materiaI and information on the City's website, as we[[ as through

the permit and buitding department, on the various high-efficiency and alternatively-
powered water heat replacement options available to current homeowners

considering water heater reptacement; develop appropriate financial incentives,

working with energy utitities or other partners; and, streamtine the permitting
process. Reptacement water heaters coutd inctude high-efficiency naturaI gas (i.e.,

tankless), or other atternatively-powered water heating systems that reduce or

eliminate natural gas usage such as solar water heating systems, tank[ess or storage

e[ectric water heaters, and electric heat pump systems.

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

PFS-24 Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Retrofits and Programs $l

Strive to increase energy efficiency and renewabte energy use in existing buitdings

through participation in avaitable programs. Actions include:

r Establish a dedicated City program with a ctear intent to provide support
and promote available green building and energy retrofit programs for
existing buitdings.

. lncentivize solar instattation on a[[ existing buitdings that undergo major

remodets or renovations, and provide permit streamtining for solar retrofit
projects.

. Provide rebates or incentives to existing SMUD customers for enrolling in

the existing Greenergy program.

. Provide education to property owners on [ow-interest financing and/or
assist property owners in purchasing so[ar photovo[taics through [ow-

interest loans or property tax assessments.

o continue to work with sMUD and other private sector funding sources to
increase solar leases or power purchase agreements (PPAs).

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporti ng Department(s)

orrtq883 ps,
NN(..,1(o.=**R=&R R R E 5

X

X

PF5 8.1.9

Community Development

Pubtic Works

PFS 8.1.3, PFS 8.1.4, PFS 8.1.5

Community Devetopment

Pubtic Works

10-28 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021
Page 820

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Tabte 9-5: Public faciUties and Services lmplementation Programs

PFS-25 Zero Net Energy Development S)

Adopt an ordinance to require ZNE for a[[ new residentiaI construction by ZOZO and

commercial construction by 2030, in coordination with State actions to phase in ZNE

requirements through future triennial buitding code updates.

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Su pporti ng Department(s)

PFS-26 Renewabte Dieset O

Revise the City of Folsom's Standard Construction Specifications to require that att

construction contractors use high-performance renewable dieselfor both private and

City construction. Phase in targets such that high-perlormance renewable diesel

woutd comprise 50 percent of construction equipment diesel usage for projects

covered under the specifications through 2030, and 100 percent of construction

equipment dieset usage in projects covered under the specifications by 2035.

For projects subject to CEQA seehing to streamline GHG analysis consistent with the

General Plan, the use of high-performance renewable diesel would be required

consistent with the obove targets.

I mplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PFS-27 Reduce Water Consumption in New Development (lr

Encourage water efficiency measures for new residential construction to reduce

indoor and outdoor water use. Actions include: promote the use of higher efficiency

measures, inctuding: use of low-water irrigation systems, and installation of water-

efficient apptiances and ptumbing fixtures. Measures and targets can be borrowed

from the latest version of the Guide to the California Green Buitding Standards Code

(l nternationaI Code Councit)

For projec:ts subjectto CEQA seehing to streamline GHG onalysis consistent with the
general plan, compliance with CALGreen Tier 1 Water Efficiency and Conservation

meosures would be required.

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

orna883 9"NNi\(5,=**R=8,RRR55

X

NCR 3.2.3, LU 9.1.10, LU 1.1.13, LU 1.1.17

Community Development

X X

NCR 3.2.7

Community Development

X

PFS 3.1.3, PFS 3.1.9

Community Development

Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised Aueust 202'1 10-29
Page 821

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F()LFI(}M
205s

GENERAL PLAN ffi=6
Table 9-6: Parla and Recreation Programs

PR-l. Parks and Recreation Master Plan

Review and update everyfive years the Parks and Recreation Master Ptan to carry out
the goals ofthe General Plan and ensure thatthe parktand resources and recreation
programs are sufficientto maintain Folsom's high quatity of tife. EFEE

lmplements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

5u pporting Department(s)

PR-2. Alternative Funding Sources

Examine the feasibitity of estabtishing atternative sources of funding for the
acquisition, devetopment, and renovation of parklands and financing for expanded

recreation programs. @
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PR-3. Governmental Coordination

Coordinate with County, State, Federa[, and regionaI agencies to achieve the goals

and poticies of the Parks and Recreation Etement, including improved public access

to the riverfront area for recreation. lEEl

I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

PR-4. Recreation Activity Guide

Maintain and implement an activity guide for recreation programs, leagues, and

speciat events at a minimum of two times per year. $
I m plements Poticy(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Su pporting Department(s)

elrre
8S3 Ea

**HEg

X

X

PR 1.1.1

Parks and Recreation

X X

PR 1.1.16

Parks and Recreation

X

PR 4.1.1-4.1.5

Parks and Recreation

Community Development

PR 3.1.3

Parks and Recreation

10-30 Adopted August 28,2018: Revised August 2021
Page 822

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Table 9-7: Safety and t{oise lmplementation Programs

SN-l. Adopt a Noise Reduction Program

Adopt a citywide noise reduction program to reduce traffic noise levels along

roadways where significant increases in traffic noise levels are expected to occur.

The program shall inctude, but sha[[ not be timited to, the fottowing specific

elements for noise abatement consideration where reasonable and feasible:

. Noise barrier retrofits;

r Truck usage restrictions;

. Reduction of speed timits;

r Use of quieter paving materials;

. Building faqade sound insutation;

. Traffic catming;

r Additional enforcement of speed timits and exhaust noise taws; and

. Signal timing.

I m ptements Policy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-2. Emergency Operations Plan

Review and update every five years the emergency operations ptan, which

addresses medicaI care, escape routes, mutuaI aid agreements, temporary housing

and commu nications. ilEEH

I m pte ments Poticy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-3. Community Emergency Response Team

Support the Community Emergency Response Team (CEnf) program to prepare

residents in the event ofa disaster [!!!|
I m ple ments Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting oepartment(s)

olrtq888 y,

***Eg

X

sN 6.1.1, SN 6.1.2, SN 6.1.4

Com m u n ity Develop ment Eepartment

X

Public Works, Police Department

sN 1.1.1

Potice Department, Fire Department

At[ Departments

X X

sN 1.1.2

Potice Department, Fire Department

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 1 0-31
Page 823

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F"@LgOnd
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hffi=6
Table 9-7: Safetyand tloise lmplementation Programs

5N-4. Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan

Review and update every five years the on-going hazard assessment as part ofthe
Sacramento County Multi-Hazard Mitigation plan. ilEEFI

lm ple ments Poticy(ies):

Responsibte De partment(s)

Supporting Department(s)

5N-5. Community Wildfire Preparedness Plan

Review and update every five years the Community Witdfire Preparedness Plan

(CWPP) to hetp reduce the risk of catastrophic witdfires in the community. EEEE

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsibte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-6. Hazardous Materials

Maintain a hazardous materiats program that ensures residents and businesses

dispose of hazardous materiats property. The program should attow residents and

businesses to schedule pick up of their hazardous materials by the City and educate

residents on what the City considers hazardous waste. FEEH

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-7. Reduce Aircraft Noise

Continue to collaborate with Sacramento County to reduce noise levels from air
tralfic in Fotsom. lE0

I m plements Policy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-8. Review Evacuation Plan and Routes

ornq883 elt(\ N C,l rd .=t*R=&RRR55
X

X

X

X

sN 1.1.4

Pubtic Works

sN 4.1.3

Fi re De pa rtm e ntPu+tiel#orks

Parks and Recreation

sN 5.1.1, SN 5.1.2, SN 5.1.3

Pubtic Works

sN 6.1.6

Community Devetopment

X

10-32 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised Auqust 2021
Page 824

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION IlO

Table 9-7: Safety and l{oise lmplementation Programs

Analyze the capacity. safety. and viability of the City's evacuation routes under a
range of emergency scenarios annualty, as part of the annuaI review of the City's

Emergency operarrons Pran. I
I mplements Policy(ies);

Responsibte Deoartment(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-9. Update Stormwater and Flood Standards

Review and update, as needed. the City's Design and Procedures Manuals and

lmprovement Standards to address the increased intensity, duration, and frequency

of future flood events. 

==lmptements Poticy(ies):

Responsi bte Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-10. Conduct Outreach on Wildfire Smoke Protection

Conduct outreach to educate a[[ residents including vulnerable populations (e.g.,

youth and seniors) with strategies to protect themselves and their homes from the
increased impacts from witdfire smoke. !

lmplements Poticy(ies):

Responsi ble Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-11. Upgrade Existing Heat Sensitive lnfrastructure

Upgrade existing heat-sensitive infrastructure (e.9.. roadways, bridges) in the city to
withstand the future intensity and frequency of extreme heat events. fI

I m pte ments Poliqr(ies):

Responsi ble Deoartment(s)

Supporting Department(s)

SN-12. Update Design Standards

ornq888 P{,NNC-taU.=&+.b=9^588 E FAt a\t (N <

sN 1.1.2

Community Development

Fotsom Fire Department. Police Department, Public

Works

sN 3.1.6

Community Development

Public Works

X

sN 4.1.5

Folsom Fire Department, Police Department

X

sN 67.1.1

Public Works, EnvironmentaI and Water Resources

Department

X

X

Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021 10-33
Page 825

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



F 0r-Fl0I${
2035

GENERAL PLAN Hm=ffi
Tabte 9-7: Safety and ttloise lmplementation Programs

Dorriarrr rnd rrnrlria rc noar{or{ rolarrrni rlimrto-rol:tod docicn <t:nd:rrlc /o o

o rri I883 e,,

***;g
heating and cooling) and buitding code requirements to ensure development can

withstand future extreme heat events. !
lmolements Policv(ies):

Responsible Deoartment(s)

Supporti n g Department(s)

SN-13. Coordinate with Regional Agencies

Coordinate with regionat service providers inctuding Sacramento Municipal Utility
District and Sacramento RegionaI Transit District to imptement infrastructure
updates for systems outside the City's jurisdiction to prepare for ctimate change

impacts (e.g., extreme heat. larger storm events). f
lmplements Poticy(ies):

Resoonsible Deoartment(s)

Suoporting Deoartment(s)

SN-14. lmplement a Cool City Strategy

Develop and implement a Coo[ City Strategy. in coordination with the Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quatity Management District. to reduce the impacts of the Urban

Heat lsland effect. The strategy sha[[ include various measures including increasing
the urban tree canopy and use of cool roofs and cool pavements as wetl as

increasing green space in the city. If
I m plements Policv(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Supporting Department(s)

5N-15. Conduct Educational Outreach on Extreme Heat Events

lmplement an education and outreach program to retevant businesses and

institutions such as residentiaI care facilities and schools to help protect vulnerable

lm ptements Poticy(ies);

Responsi ble Department(s)

X

sN 75.1.1

Communitv Devetooment. Pu btic Works

sN 67.1.1

Pubtic Works

X

sN 57.1.2

Community Development, Pubtic Works

Parks and Recreation

X

sN 67.1.3

Fotsom Fire Department. Police Department

10-34 Adopted August 28, 2018: Revised August 2021Page 826

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



IMPLEMENTATION I10

Supporting Department(s)

SN-16. Promote Cost Benefits of Reducing Electricity Use

Work with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) to promote and hetp

educate residents about SMUD's time-of-day energy rates and the cost benefits of
reducing etectricity use during peak demand periods. IfI

I m olements Policv(ies):

Responsible Department(s)

Su ooorting Deoartment(s)

sN 67.1.4

Community Devetopment

X

Adopted August 28, 20'18: Revised August 2021 10-35
Page 827

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachmerfi,2

Resolution No. 10690 - A Resolution to Amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to

Expand the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) Land Use Designation to Allow
for Multifamily Residential as a Permitted Use in Conjunction with the Folsom

Housing Element Update

Page 828

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



RESOLUTION NO. 10690

A RESOLUTION TO AMBND THE EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN TO EXPAND
THE REGIONAL COMMERCIAL CENTER (RCC) LAND USB DBSIGNATION TO

ALLOW FOR MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL AS A PERMITTED USE IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLSOM HOUSING ELEMBNT UPDATE

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on July 24,2021, held a public hearing on the
proposed amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan, considered public comments, and

based on the information and analysis provided determined that expanding the Regional
Commercial Center land use designation to allow multifamily residential as a permitted use in
conjunction with the sixth cycle Folsom Housing Element Update will provide additional

residential capacity in the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow for
multifamily housing within the RCC designation at a density range of 15 to 30 units per acre

meets the default density standard for lower-income housing, and will therefore help the City
meet its lower income Regional Housing Needs Analysis (RHNA); and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan is consistent
with the City's General Plan, the Zoning Code of the City, and the Empire Ranch Specific Plan;

and

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law
and City Code; and

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General

Plan Final Environmental Impact Report has been prepared for the Housing Element Update,

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved and adopted said Addendum to the Folsom

2035 General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report for the Housing Element Update, Empire

Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions prior to taking action on the proposed

amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Folsom that the proposed amendment to the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to expand the Regional

Commercial Center land use designation to allow multifamily residential as a permitted use, as

set forth in the Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit attached hereto as Exhibit "A",
is hereby approved with the following findings:

Resolution No. 10690

Page I of3
Page 829

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



A.

B.

GENERAL FINDINGS

NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE.

WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT, THE EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN IS
CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM GENERAL PLAN.

THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN
ON AUGUST 28,2018.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT NONE OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES
DESCRIBED IN PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21166 OR CEQA
GUIDELINES SECTION 15162 GENERALLY REQUIRING THE PREPARATION
OF A SUBSEQUENT EIR EXIST IN THIS CASE.

THE CITY HAS PREPARED AN ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN AND HAS
DETERMINED THAT THE PROJECT CREATES NO NEW IMPACTS AND DOES
NOT REQUIRE ANY NEW MITIGATION MEASURES IN ADDITION TO THOSE
IN THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT.

THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE EMPIRE RANCH
SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL
PLAN, THE ASSOCIATED MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING
PROGRAM, AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE PROJECT.

THE CITY COTINCIL HAS CONSIDERED THE ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM 2035 GENERAL PLAN
BEFORE MAKING A DECISION ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE
EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN.

SPECIFIC PLAN AMBNDMENT FINDINGS

THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN IS IN
THE PUBLIC INTEREST.

THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE
GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN
AND THE FOLSOM GENERAL PLAN.

Resolution No. 10690
Page 2 of3

CEOA FINDINGS

C

D

E

F

G

H

I.

Page 830

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



J

K.

THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET
LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY.

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65352.3, THE CITY
CONTACTED ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES ON THE
CONTACT LIST MAINTAINED BY THE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE
COMMISSION IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT. THE CITY DID NOT
RECEIVE ANY REQUESTS FOR CONSULTATION FROM ANY OF THE NATIVE
AMERICAN TRIBES DURING THE gO-DAY RESPONSE WINDOW.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of August,202l, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10690
Page 3 of3

Page 831

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



EXHIBIT A

EMPIRE RANCH SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT EXHIBIT

The Specific Plan is amended to include the following allowed uses in the Commercial/ Central Business District (C-2

Zone):

Co m m e rcia l/Ce nt ra I B u s in ess D ist r ict (C - 2 Zo n e)

a. Permitted Uses

General retail and related supportive facilities

Antique store.

Appliance store.

Art gallery.

Athletic equipment and sporting goods store.

Auto parts and accessory store.

Bakery-pastry shop.

Bicycle sale, rent, service.

Boat parts and accessories store.

Book, record store.

Butcher and meat market.

Candy store.

Clothing and apparel store.

Coin-operated dispenser.

Costume shop, sale and rent.

Curio, novelty shop.

Delicatessen.

Drive-in dairy, excluding creamery.

Drug store; prescriptions, sund ries.

Electronic equipment store.

Eyeglasses- frames, and contact lens sales and service.

Floor covering; drapery or upholstery store.

Florist.

Food store-supermarket.
Food market ancillary to service station.

Furniture store.

Garage equipment and tool sales- with no outside storage.

Gardening, landscaping supply store.

Gift, card shop.

Gun shop-gunsmith.
Hardware store, with no outside storage.

Hay, seed, and grain store.

Hearing aid sales and service.

Jewelry store.

Liquor store.

M ilitary surplus store.

Page 832

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment Attachment 1

July 9,2021
Page 2

Music store, including instrument repair.

Newspaper, magazine stand.

Novelty, curio-shop.
Office machines and equipment sales.

Paint and wallpaper store.

Pawn shop.

Pet store, no kennel.

Photographic supply, camera store.

Pool table sale and repair service.

Power tool sales.

Record, book store.

Saddlery shop.

Shoe store.

Sporting goods and athletic equipment store.

Stamp, coin store.

Stationary store.

Su permarket-food sto re.

Swimming pool, spa sales, and service.

Television and radio sales.

Tobacco shop.

Toy store.

Trophy, emblem store.

Video store.

Wig sales and service.

Winery sales facility-tasting room.

Commercial services and related supportive facilities

Addressing and mailing service.

Ambulance service.

Amusement arcade.

Appliance repair shop.

Art studio.

Auto: minor service, repair, replacement.

Auto wash, self-service or automatic.
Baggage transfer service.

Bar-tavern.

Bath house: sauna, Turkish, spa, and toning.

Barber shop.

Beauty shop.

Blueprinting, photo stating service.

Bus depot.
Business college.

Cafe-restau rant.

Card room (also refer to Chapter 9.40 of the Folsom Municipal Code requiring City Council approval.

Child care center for more than six.

Clinic, child-family guidance.

Clinic, physical therapy.

Page 833

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment: Attachment 1

luly 9,2021
Page 3

Coffee shop.

Delivery service.

Drafting service, including incidental whiteprint.

Dressmaker-tailor.

Drive-in cafe.

Driving school.

Funeral establ ishment.

Furniture cleaning, refinishing & and reupholster shop.

Furniture rental agency.

Gardening & landscaping-, service yard and workshop.

Grinding & sharpening service.

Grooming service, such as poodle grooming.

Hotel.

Hotel, restaurant equipment sales.

lnterior decorator's service yard and workshop.

Janitor service.

Laboratory: medical, dental, or optical.

Laboratory: materials testing.
Lapidary shop.

Laundromat; self-service.

Laundry or cleaning agency,

Laundry or cleaning pick-up station.

Locksmith: safe repair, key and lock shop.

Motel.
Photography studio, including incidental processing.

Picture framing shop.

Pri nter-l ithog ra pher.

Recreation facility, indoor.
Reducing, body building studio.
Restau rant-cafe.

School: charm, culture, self-defense, judo, boxing, gymnastics, other private

Shoe repair shop.

Shoeshine parlor.

Soda fountain-ice cream parlor.

Stenographic service.

Studio: dance, voice, music, gymnastics.

Studio: radio, television, recording.

Tailor-d ressmaker.

Taxicab service and storage facility.

Taxidermist.

Telegraph office.

Telephone answering service.

Television and radio repair shop.

Ticket agency.

Travel agency.

Tree service.

Veterinary clinic.

Page 834

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment: Attachment 1

luly 9,2021
Page 4

Pu bl iclq uasi-pu blic services a nd related su ppo rtive faci I ities

Church. Hospital.

Labor union temple.
Library.

Lodge-' fraternal hall.

Museum.

Public and government-owned building and facility.

Public and government uses within privately-owned buildings, facilities, and grounds.

Public utility and public service facility.

Sanitarium.

School: college, university.

School, private K-12. School, public K-12. School, trade or vocational.

Social rehabilitation center.

Office and related supportive facilities

Office, business or professional,

Residential a nd related su pportive faci I ities

Apartment- multi-family dwelling in the range of 15-30 units per acre

Apartment hotel

Home occupation
Residence of a caretaker, proprietor, or owner of a permitted Use (Ord 537, S 1,1983)

b. Use Permits Required

General Retail and related supportive facilities

Bookstore, adult
Building material and lumber sales

Concession, temporary
Drive-n food market or stand

Garage equipment and tool sales, with outside storage
Hardware store, with outside storage
Lumber and building materials sales

Nursery, plants

Ornamental rock sales and related storage

Public auction or flea market
Wholesale store

Commercial services and related supportive facilities

Auto service station, primary

Auto service station, secondary

Auto, major
Auto, major repair
Auto, transmission rebuild
Auto, radiator rebuild
Auto, starter-gen rebuilding
Auto, body repair

Page 835

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment:Attachment 1

)uly 9,2021
Page 5

Auto, paint shop
Auto, machine shop
Bed and breakfast inn

Carnival

Circus

Dance hall-bathroom-discotheque
Dancing as an incidental use in a bar or restaurant

Equipment rental agency

Frozen food locker cold storage plant

Live theater
Massage parlor
Motion picture theater
Residential care homes for adults or children, over six persons

Resorts

Stadium
Tattoo shop
Towing service

Veterinary animal hospital, with no outside uses

Pu bl iclquasi -pu bl ic services a nd related su ppo rtive faci lities

Community center-citizens improvement club

Psychiatric facility
Privately-owned uses within public and government-owned

Buildings, facilities and grounds

Recreation facility, outdoor
Traveltrailer park

Office and related supportive facilities

None Listed

Residential and related supportive facilities

@+ng
Residential uses, other

(Ord. 537, 51, 1985)

Page 836

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsom

Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment: Attachment'l
July 9,2021

Page 6

Table 6-1 of the Specific Plan is amended as shown in red strikeout/underlinetext:

Table 6-1 Development Standards

Not applicable
eeurt side te rear-10 ft,, width ef eeurt 24 ft, Rear yards fer dwelling greup may be redueed to net less than 12 ft, Ne building in a greup

Not applicable

Not applicable

MMD - Multi-Family Medium Density Residential

OS - Areas of Recontoured Open Space used as Sloped Transition Zones or Drainage Channels and Ponds, GC - Public Golf Course, NOS

- Natural Open Space, Wetlands, Riparian Corridor, Oak Woodlands, Vernal Pools, Seeps. P - Neighborhood Parks, Mini-parks.

Not applicable Dwelling types with side entry garages may have a 15 ft, setba€k suqe€t te the appreval ef the Cemmunity Develeprnent

Residential dwellinos within the RCC designation are subject to the design standards listed in the Folsom Municipal Code for R-4. General

Apartment District.

Notes

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

(7)

General Plan Desiqnation MMD NC RCC os

Units/Acre 12 - 17.9 -15 - 30

Zoninq District R-M c-1 c-2 osc

Proposed Land Use

Category

MMD(4) c-2 OS

GC('

NOS,P

Minimum Lot Area _(a

Minimum Corner
Lot Area

7,500sf _(a

Front Setback 1sft 0 00)

Side Setback 11/sft 0 00)

Setback Streetside

Corner Lot

16ft 0 0(a

Rear Setback 20 fI 15 fr 12ftgr

Lot Width 60 fr 0 00)

Buildinq Coveraqe 60Vo .40 FAR .40 FARO 10To

Maximum Height s0ft 3sft 50 ft14 40ft

4 stories 2 stories 4 storiesol

Distance Between

Main Buildinqs

10 fte _(4 10ft

Minimum Site

Landscapinq

207o 20To 20o/oQ

Maximum Height
Fences and Walls

6ft _0)

Page 837

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 3

Summary of Revisions made to the Housing Element after February 9,2021

Page 838

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ili'r( D Il ,,-H () i\'fl

ctw oF FoLsoM

SUMMARY OF REVISIONS

Public Hearing Drall2O2L Housing Element Background Report

Public Hearing Draft2O21. Housing Element Policy Document

The redlined version of both documents can be found on the Housing Element webpage:

Documents - City of Folsom | 2O2L-2O29 Housing Element Update (folsomhousingelement.com)

Public Hearing Draft2O2l Housing Element Background Report

Page

No.
Section Description of Change Reason for

Change

Global Changes

Updated the date of document revision to "Revised July

202L" on each page footer
Corrected minor typos in Housing Element Credits

Updated table and figure numbers in the body of the report
and table of contents due to added tables and figures

Made minor non-substantive edits/corrections to text

Updated section sub-heading title numbers because of
added sub-sections

3-5
and
3-33

through
3-37

3.1.1, 3.1.3, and

3.1.5

Modified relevant acreage and number of units based on

current estimates
Revisions by City

staff and the
Consultants July
202L

1 lntroduction

1-3 1.2 General Plan

and Housing
Element
Consistency

Added information on the update of other elements of the
General Plan according to Senate Bill (SB) 1035 and SB 1000

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021

\-4 1.5.1 Project
Website

lncluded translation service availability Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March25,202t

July 2O2tl
Page 839

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.
Sectlon Description of Change Reason for

Change

1-6 1.5.7 December
21,2020: Draft
Houslng Element

Added section addressing when the draft housing element
was made available and how it was advertised and

distributed. lt also stated that the SHA preliminary review
comment letter, other community member and stakeholder
preliminary review comments were considered, and

revisions were made accordinelv

Response to HCD

preliminary

revlew
comments
March 25,2021

1-6 1.5.8 January 20,

2021: Planning
Commission Draft
Housing Element
Hearing

Updated section text after the Planning Commission draft
housing element hearing

Response to
Planning

Commission
draft housing
element hearing
Januarv 20,2027

t-6

2-3

1.5.9 February 9,
2O21: City Council
Draft Housing
Element Hearing

2.t.I
Demographic and

Employment
Characteristics
and Trends: Age

Updated section text after the City Council draft housing
element hearing

Added senior demographic trends

Response to City
Council draft
housing element
hearing February
9,202t

;i.g*{:+J.; i fi :,, ;f{.i.
lid$tlF/.$.id."';ti /{ :lP'
#[.n ; iP. 9+': 1"1.-i i j'
Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021

2-to
through

2-t7

2.1.r
Demographic and

Employment
Characteristics
and Trends:
Employment and
Housing
Proiections

Added figures C-3, C-4, C-5, and C-5 along with a brief
discussion for each that includes data on regional commute
patterns and income level of employees commuting into
and out of Folsom

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,2Q2t

2-27 2.1.2 Housing
Characteristics
and Trends:
Housing
Affordability:
Housinc Values

Added the average rent for Folsom inZO20 and 2021 Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
Match25,2OZI

2-25 2.2.1Senior
Households

Added a discussion on accessory dwelling units and multi-
generational housing units as affordable housing options for
seniors

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March25.202L

July 202t2

Page 840

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Reason forPage

No.

Section Description of Change

March 202t

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments

2-30 2.2.5
Farmworkers

Added text on USDA farmworker data for the County

March 2027

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments

2-30 2.2.5 Homeless
Persons

Updated anticipated completion of Powerhouse Transition
Center expansion

Revised Fair Housing Section throughout to meet
affirmatively furthering fair housing requirements and

address the following comments from HCD:

r More Folsom specific data to be included in addition
to regional analysis.

r Additional map for closer look at Folsom

r lnclude information on risk of displacement.
o Disproportionate housing needs on overcrowding

and overpayment
e Segregation and integration
r Fair housing enforcement and outreach capacity
. .Any local knowledge and other relevant factors?
o Prioritizing the contributing factors that are listed.
r Policies, strategies, and actions surrounding AFFH

Sites inventory map on top of AFFH factors

The full extent of revisions mode in this section can be found
in the redlined version of this document on the City webpage:

https : //w ww.fo I so m h o u si n g e I e m e n t. co m / s/ H o u s i n g -

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

and HCD

comment letter
April 6, 2021

2-34
through

2-68

2.3 Fair Housing

Response to SHA

comment letter
May 24,202L

Response to HCD

meeting
comments on
iune 2021

2-66
and

2-67

2.3.3 Fair Housing
lssues,

Contributing
Factors, and

Proposed Actions:
Zoning and land
Use Regulatlons

Added history of Folsorn's multifamily zoning and

inclusionary housing and related lawsuits

lncluded expected completion of The Zoning Code Update Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

3-2 3.1.1
Methodology and

Assumptions:
Relationship
Between Density
and lncome

July 20213

Page 841

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.

Sectlon Description of Change Reason for
Change

3-2
and

3-3

3.7.L
Methodology and
Assumptions:
Realistic Density
Assumptions

Updated the discussion and Table C-32 to support the
realistic density assumption of 90 percent for lower-income
units

Response to sHA
comment letter
January 20,2027

3-3 3.1.1

Methodology and

Assumptions:
Reallstlc Density
Assumotions

Updated Table C-32 to include average density without
density bonus to support realistic density assumptions

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,2021

3-6 3.1.1
Methodology and

Assumptions:
Underutilized
Sites

Added examples of recently approved affordable projects on

underutilized sites to support the underutilized sites

discussion

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

Response to SHA

comment letter
Januarv 20,aOZL

3-7 3.1.1
Methodology and

Assumptions:
Mixed Use Sites

Expanded the discussion of the he East Bidwell Mixed Use

Overlay and suitable sites for residential development
Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March25,2027

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,2027

3-8
through

3-10

3.1.2 Planned or
Approved
Projects

Updated Table C-33 (Planned and Approved Projects) and

added information regarding changes to the final unit
counts

Revisions by City

staff and the
consultants April
202t

3-19 3.1.3 Vacant and

Underutilized
Sltes: Broadstone
District

Added information on Kaiser site including the likelihood of
housing development and owner interest

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

3-3s
and
3-36

3.1.4 Accessory

Dwelling Units:
Multi-
Generational
Housing in the
FPASP

Expanded discussion of multi-generational housing units
and number of units constructed and proposed. Also
provided clarification that multi-generational suites are

counted and reported as separate units to DOF

Response to HCD

preliminary

revlew
comments
March 25, 2021

34L 3.2.3 Dry Utilltles Added a description for dry utilities to section 3.2 Adequacl
of Public Facilities and lnfrastructure

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March25,202l

July 20274

Page 842

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No,
Sectlon Descrlptlon of Change Reason for

Chanqe

3{3 3.3.4 Housing for
Farmworkers

Added paragraph outlining the program that allows
farmworker housing in areas zoned for agriculture

Response to HCD

preliminary

revlew
comments
March 25, 2021

3-M
through

347

3.3.5 Emergency

Shelters
Updated Emergency Shelters section to include a list of
development and management standards for emergency
shelters and proximity to servlces, ln addition, added

information regarding capacity of sites zoned for emergency
shelters

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021

3-48 3.3.7 Group
Homes

Added discussion regarding Group Homes Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25. 2021

m

3-57

4-L

3.4.5 Preserving

At-Risk Units

4.1.1 Land Use

Controls: General

Plan and Zoning

Revised text to include 3-year notice requirement for
Callfornia Government Section 55863.10

Added text confirming zoning code is available on the City

webslte to meet transparency laws

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 2021

Response to HCD
prellmlnary

revlew
oommentg
March 25. 2021

4-74 4.1.4 Permit
Processing

Procedures:
Design
Prellmlnary
review, Typical

Processinc Times

Revlsed text to rescind multifamily design guidelines with
adoption of the Housing Element instead of with the zoning

code. The design guidelines will be replaced by objective
design standards in the Zoning Code update

Response to HCD

preliminary

revlew
comments
March25,202l

4-!5 4.1.5
Development
Fees and Other
Extractions

Added Table C-55 which includes additional planning fees
for general plan amendment, rezoning, variance preliminary
review, mlnor conditional use permit application, and major

conditional use permit application,

Planning fees are listed in Table C-56 and on city website

Response to HCD

preliminary
revlew
comments
March 25, 2021

and HCD

comment letter
April6, 2021

4-L7 4.1.6 On/Off Site

lmprovement
Requirements:
Parking

Added text stating that parking standards will be reviewed
as part of the zoning Code amendment

Response to HCD
preliminary
revlew
comments
March 25. 2021

July 2021 5

Page 843

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page Sectlon Descrlption of Change Reason for

4-24 4.1.9 lnclusionary
Housing

Added where ln the Zonlng Code one can flnd the Clty's
lnclusionary Housing Ordinance

Revisions by CIW

staff and the
Consultants April
2021

4-23 4.t.Lt
Development,
Maintenance, and

lmprovement of
Houslng for
Persons with
Disablllties

Added deflnition of "family" Response to HCD
preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

+23
through

4-24

4.7.11
Development,
Maintenance, and
lmprovement of
Housing for
Persons with
Disabillties

Added the City's procedures and findings for reasonable
accommodation. ln addition, added that Program H-29 of
the Houslng Element directs the City to revise Reasonable

Accommodation Findings that are considered a constraint

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021

5-1

ments

s.72073-2021
Housing
Accomplishments:
5.1.1Major

Updated the status of the Scholar Way Senlor Apartments
project

Revisions by City
staff and the
Consultants April
2021

Updated the status of the Residential Mobile Home Zone in
the updated Housing Element

2021

Response to HCD
prelimlnary
review
comments

54 5.2 Preliminary
Review of Existing

{2013) Housing
Element

Housing Element Summary of Changes Continued on Next Poge

July 2021 6

Page 844

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.
Section Ilescriptlon of Change Reason for

Updated the date of document revision to "Revised July

202!" oneach footer
Updated Program numbers because ofadded programs

Updated program timeframes based on HCD remarks

4-L4
through

4-27

Programs:

H-1, H-4, H-5, H-6,
H-LL,H-!2,H-14,
H-15, H-15, H-19,
H-zO,H-21,H-22,
H-23,H-27,H-28,
H-29

lncluded "metrics" in relation to affordable housing Response to HCD

comments on

)une 2,202I

5-6 GoalH-3
Facilitating
Affordable
Housing

Revised goal statement to specify the needs of people at all

income levels

To facilitate affordable housing opportunities to serve the
needs of people at all income levels who live and work in
the community. [Source: City of Folsom 201j Housing

Gool

Response to
Folsom Clty

Council
recommendation
February 10,

202r

5-7 Policy H-3.4

Surplus €ity
eumed Publlc
Land

The City shall facilitate the construction of affordable
housing on City-owned surplus land if the property is

determined to be appropriate for residential development
by providing first right of refusal to affordable housing
developers in accordance with Government Code Section

54222. The Clty shall coordinate wlth the State to identify
opportunltles for affordable housing development on
state'owned surplus lands wlthln the Clly. [Source: New

Response to
public comment
received June 25,

20zt

5-8 Policy H-4.6

Notice of Market
Rate Conversion

Updated timeframes for noticing and list of public entities

March 202L

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
cornments

5-t2 Policy H-7.3

Address Urban
Heat lsland Effect

Added and then removed NEW Policy H-7.3 recommended
by SMAQMD and replaced with an Urban Heat lsland Policy
(SN 7.1.2) in the Safety and Noise Element update

Change made by
consultant team
and city planning

staffJune 2021

July 20217

Page 845

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.
Section Descrlptlon of Change Reason for

5-12 Policy H-7.3 Solar
on Multlfamlly
Housing

Removed ORIGINAL Policy H-7.3

TheGity shallenesurats the installatien ef selar panels en

Response to
Folsom City

Council
recommendation
February 10,

202L

s-13 H-2 Create
Additional Lower-
lncome Housing

Capacity

Revised program to affirmatively further fair housing

The City shall create additional opportunities for hlgh-
density housing to ensure the City maintains adequate
capacity to meet the lower-income RHNA throughout the
planning period. The Clty shall increase maximum allowable
densities in the East Bidwell Mixed Use Overlay, SACOG

Transit Priority Areas outside the Historic District, and

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Town Center. ln
lmplementlng this program, the City shall strive to disperse
affordable houslng opportunltles and avold fair houslng
lssues related to overconcentration The City shall

coordinate with property owners along the East Bidwell
Street corridor and within the Transit Priority Areas to
identifo and pursue residential development opportunities.
The City shall review and revise Policy 4.7 of the Folsom

Plan Area Specific Plan to increase the total number of
dwelling units allowed in the Plan Area in order to satisfu

the RHNA, as long as infrastructure needs are met. ln
addition, the City shall coordinate with property owners in
the Folsom Plan Area to mitigate for the loss of lower-
income housing sites to market rate housing. [Source: New

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202L

Response to HCD

preliminary
revlew
comments
March25,2A2L

5-1.4 H-4 Premete
€enet+udi€n€f
Accessory

Dwelling Unlts
Tools and
Resources

Revised program to remove requirement for HOA outreach
and SHA comments regarding AFFH

The City shall develop an ADU Design Workbook that
provides illustrated examples of the design standards and

styles, as well as other design ideas to assist property

owners, developers, and architects and to encourage
thoughtful, context-sensitive design. The City shall promote
ADU tools and resources to homeowners throughout the
city to promote mixed-income neighborhoods. The City
shall target the production of 194 ADUs by 2029. The€ty

Cwellin
ine

with State law" New

Response to
Folsom Planning

Commission and
City Council

recommendation
February 10,

202L

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202L

July 2021 8

Page 846

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Pate
No.

Section Descriptlon of Change Reason for
Chanse

5-14 H-5 Accessory
Dwelling Unit
lncentives

Revised program to provide specificity on incentives and

strengthen program based on SHA comments

The City shall incentivize and encourage the construction of
accessory dwel I ing u nits th rough public€ducetien-and
development fee reductions and/or waivers. Tte Clty shall
pursue the development of pre'approved plans dependent
on available grant funding or opportunities for regional
coordination through SACOG, ln addition, the City shall

reach out to local lenders to encourage them to provide

funding for accessor dwelling units. The City shall target the
productfon of 194 ADUs bv 2o29 [Source: New progrom]

Response to
Folsom Planning

Commission and

Clty Council
recommendation
February 10,

2021

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202t

5-15 H-6 Track and
Monitor
Accessory
Dwelllng Unlts
and Multi-
Generational
Units

Revised program to provide specificity on determining use

and affordability

The City shall track new accessory dwelling units and multi-
generatlon a I s{*ites€s ho usin g u n its a nd shall-m€nit€r+he

conduct a

suryey every two years to eenfirm collect information on
the use and affordability ofthese units. Halfiruay through the
projection period (2025) if determined these units are not
meeting a lower-income housing need, the City shall ensure
other housing sites are available to accommodate the
unmet portion of the lower-income RHNA. The Clty shall
target the productlon of 194 ADUs and 387 multl-
generationaf housing units by 2029. [Source: New program]

Response to
Folsom Planning

Commission and
City Council
recommendation
February 10,

202L

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202t
and April 7,202L

5-15 H-8 Objective
Design Standards
for Multifamily
Housing

Revised program to rescind Design Guidelines with adoptlon
of the Housing Element

The Clty shall resclnd the Deslgn Guldelines for Multifamlly
Development upon of adoption of the Housing element
and {$e€ity shall adopt objectlve design standards for
multifamlly development, as part of the comprehensive
zoning code update.

Sevel€pm€n$ [Source: New Program]

Response to
HCD preliminary

review
comments
March 25,2021

July 20219

Page 847

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page
No.

Section Descrlption of Change Reason for
Chanle

5-16 H-10 Reise

€emmunity
A*a+eaessa'beut
Provide
lnformation on
Affordable
Housing

Revised prograrn to provide more specific actionable items
and remove "raise awareness" language

The City shall create and distribute educational materials,
including a page on the City website, social media posts,
andlot brodrures, to provlde information on €ondc€t-an
informational €amp
abeut the needs and benefits of affordable housing and
available resources in the city. The City shall collaborate
with local homeless service providers to provide
lnformatlon @ on homeless
needslntheclty.@

shall Brepare edseatlenal materlals anC participate ln

eneeurege Bartielpatien by nen prsfft endfer preflt

The €lty shall eellaberate wlth leeal hemeleso eerv{ce

i*+he€itl+t5ource: City of Folsom 2013 Housing Element,
6oalH-2, Prosrom H-2. F. (modified)l

Response to
Folsom Planning
Commission and

City Councll
recommendation
February 10,

202t

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March25,202t

Response to
Folsom Planning
Commission
recommendation
July21,202I

5-16 H-11 Local

Funding for
Affordable
Housing

Development

Added timeframe and priorlties of funding in affordable
housing development

As available, the City shall allocate funds from the City's
Housing Fund toward the development of affordable
housing units for low-, very low-, and extremely low-income
households. The Clty shall explore the posslbllity of
establlshing prlorities for the distrlbution of funds, which
may lnclude crlteria such as-income targeting, housing for
speclal needs lncluding senlors and persons wlth
disabillties, number of bedrooms, amenltles, and support
services, and target geographies that s€rve to affirmatively
fuilher falr housing. The City shall provide funding to
support approximately 580 affordable units by 2029. TSe

@ fSource: City of Folsom 2013
Housinq Element, Goal H-3, Proorcm H-3. A.l

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202L

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

July 2021 1O

Page 848

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.
Sectlon Descrlptlon of Change Reason for

Change

5-16 H-12 lncenfives
for Affordable
Houslng
Development

Added program to address housing for ELl, seniors, and
persons wlth disabllities

The City shall provide lncentives for affordable houslng
development, lncluding density bonus, fee deferrals or
reductions, and reduced fees for studlo unlts (e.9., two-
for-one studio fee rate program described ln Chapter 16.70
of the Folsom Munlclpal Code). The City shall also provide
outreach to attract and support affordable housing
developers ln the clty, including dwelopers of senior
housing, extremely low-income units, and permanent
supportive housing for percons with disabilities and
developmental disabilities. The City shall target production
ol2,150 affordable units by 2029. This will serve to
afflrmatively further falr houslng within the reglon by
providing affordable houslng withln places of hlgh
opportuniW. [Source: New progroml

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March25,202I

5-17 H-16 Facilitate
Affordable
Housing
Development on

City-Owned Land

Expanded program to include City-owned site on Riley St

near Comstock Dr (previously referred to as Coloma Street
Site)

The City shall facilitate the construction of affordable
housing lncluding the possible accessory dwelling units, on
the City-owned sites located at 300 Persifer Street (APN

07O-0L72-048) and on Riley Street near Comstock Drlve
(APN 071-0190-0761. The City shall collaborate with an

interested affordable housing developer to sell or lease

surplus cfi land for the construction of deed-restrlcted
affordable housing conslstent wlth the Surplus Land Act te

. The City shall
target productlon of 16 affordable units on City-owned
sltes by 2029. lSource: New Program]

Response HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March25,2027

Response to
Folsom Planning

Commission
recommendation
July 2!,aOZL

5-18 H-17 Study the
Purchase of Land

for Affordable
Housing

Revised program per City Council recommendation and SHA

comments

The City shall explore the feasibility and approprlateness to
establlsh a program to ef-useint housing trust fund money
or other soulces to purchase land to support the
development of affordable housing dispersed throughout
the clty. lf the Clty flnds the purchase of land to be

lnfeasible, the Clty shall continue to use funds to provide
gap financing for affordable houslng development, [Source:
New progroml

Response to
Folsom Planning
Commission and
City Council
recommendation
February 10,

2021

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,202t
and April T,2O2L

July 2021 11

Page 849

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page
No.

Section Descrlptlon of Change Reason for
Chanre

5-18 H-20 Housing
Choice Vouchers

Revised program to affirmatively further falr houslng

The City shall continue to participate in the Houslng Choice
Voucher Program, administered by the Sacramento Housing
and Redevelopment Agency (SHRA), with a goal of provlding

rental assistance to lower-income residents. The City shall

work with SHRA to promote the Housing Choice Voucher
Landlord lncentive Program offered by the SHRA to
encourage new landlords to accept housing choice

vouchers, with the goal of dlsfflbutlng affordable houslng
throughout the city. The Clty shall target 120 housing
choice voucher recipients per year. The City shall post

information on the City website, through social media, and
in letters to landlords. lSource: City of Folsom 2013 Housing

Element, GoalH-3, Prosram H3.H. (modified)l

Response to
conversation
wlth HCD on

June 2, 2021

5-22 H-30 Zoning Code
Amendments for
Smergen€fanC
SupBe*ive
l.l€seing Special

Needs Housing

Revised to establish a written procedure by a date certain to
implement streamlined ministerial approval

lncluded program for special needs housing, Expanded
program to address group homes, parking for residential
care homes, farmworkers, reasonable accommodation, and
a moblle home zoning district

As part of the City's comprehensive Zoning Code Updatg
the City shall amend the zoning code to ensure compliance
withStatelaw@

@asfollows:
o llow

"low barrier navigation center" developments by
right in mixed-use zones and nonresidential zones
permitting multifamily uses, consistent with
Government Code Section 65562.

r llow for
the approval of 100 percent affordable
developments that include a percentage of
supportive housing units, either 25 percent or 12
units, whichever is greater, to be allowed without a

conditional use permit or other discretionary
review in all zoning districts where multifamily and
mixed-use development is permitted, consistent
with Government Code Section 65551(a).

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021
and HCD

comment letter
April6, 2021

July 2O2Lt2

Page 850

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page

No.
Section Descrlptlon of Change Reason for

Change

5-22 H-30 Zoning Code
Amendments for
fmerg€n+efi'd
Sspp€+tive
l{eusin6 Special
Needs Housing

cont.

r The €lty shall amend therenlng eedet+Establlsh
appropriate parklng standards for resldentlal care
homes and remove exeessiveparking
requirements ang+eScir€+h€+for occupants of
emergencyshelters@

consistent
with Government Code 65583.

r llow
housing for farmworkers in the Agricultural-
Reserve Dlstrlct (A-1-Al or shall amend the zoning
code to remove the A$lcultural reserve Dlstrlct
(A-1-A

safety€ed€+7e+1+
e Tte€ity.shalkRevlew and amend the zoning code,

as necesgar% to ensur€ requirements for group
homes of more than slx persons are conslstent
wlth State law and fair housing requirements.

r The €ity sharl rRevlew and amend the zoning code
to revise findings for reasonable accommodations
to remove constraintg to housing for persons with
dlsabllities and to reduce the burden of the
applicant to determlne other reasonable
accommodataons that provide an equlvalent level
of benefit.

o Establish a mobile home zoning district and
amend the zoning map to apply the mobile home
zonlng distrlct to all exlstlng mobile home parks.

o Amend the zonlng code to establish a written
procedure to lmplement streamlined ministerial
approval in compliance with Senate Blll 35.

[Source: New progmm]

Response to HCD

preliminary

review
comments
March 25, 2021

and HCD

comment letter
April 6,2021

5-23 H-31 Homeless
Services
(Previously H-29)

Removed the program in response to PC and CC comment
but was added back in during HCD review

Added a definitive tirneframe for coordination related to
homeless services

The City shall work wlth Saramento County and local
community-based organizations to explore opportunhles
and form partnerships to bring satelllte service for
lndlvlduals experlencing or at rlsk of experiencing
homelessness (e.9., drug addlction and mental health
services, health cllnlcs, career centers) to Folsom [Source:
New Progroml

Response to
Folsom Planning

Commlssion and
City Council
recommendation
February 10,

202L

Response to HCD

comment letter
Aprll 6, 2021,
and phone

conversation
with HCD July 7,
202L

July 2021 13

Page 851

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Page
No.

Section Description of Change Reason for

s-23 H-32 Fair Housing
P{€gram
lnformation

Revised program to address fair housing

The City shall also continue to use CDBG funds to support
telephone counseling and mediation services provided
througtr the R€nters Helpline. The City shall continue to
make lnformation regarding State and Federal fair housing
requirements as well as the Renterc Helpline available at a

designated office in City Hal@
€{ on the
City's website, and at the Folsom Public Library. The City will
also assist individuals and complaints in contracting the
appropriate agency. The City shall also conduct annual
targeting outreach leducation campaigns, workshops etc.f
to multlfamily rentals to dlstrlbute lnformatlon regardlng
falr houslng and the Renters Helpllne. [Source: City of
Folsom 2073 6ool H-6.

Response to HCD

preliminary
review
comments
March 25, 2021
and HCD

comments on
luly 7,2OZl

s-23 H-33 Affirmative
Marketing Plan

Revised program to include a requirement for affirmative
marketing plans for affordable developments

The Clty shall requlre affordable developers to prepare an
affirmative marketlng plan, as a condition of recelvlng
publlc fu nding and \Alhen{easiblerthe€itfshall +eq$ire
encourage private developers to prepare and affirmative
marketing plan, The afflrmatlve marketlng plan shalltha+
ensures marketing materials for new developments are
deslgned to attract renters and buyers ofdiverse
demographics, including persons of any race, ethnicity, sex,

and familial status New

Response to SHA

comment letter
January 20,2021

s-24 lncreased quantified objectives for rehabilitation based on
H-26 Code Enforcement and H-28 Habitat for Humanity
Home Repalr Program

Added quantified objectives for preservation/conservatlon

based on program H-26 Code Enforcement and the existing
assisted affordable units

Response to HCD
preliminary
revlew
comments
March 25, 2021

Response to HCD

review comment
letter April 5,

202t

July 2O2!t4

Page 852

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 4

HCD Housing Element Comment Letter and Conditional Approval Letter

Page 853

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DIVISION OF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPIUENT
2020 W El Camlno Avenue, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95833
(916)263-2911 / FAX (916) 26U7453
www.hcd.ca.qov

April 6,2021

Pam Johns, Director
Community Development Department
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Pam Johns:

RE: Review of the City of Folsom's 6th Cycle eA21-2029) Draft Housing Element

Thank you for submitting the City of Folsom's (City) draft housing element update received
for review on February 11,2A21, along with revisions received on March 30, 2021. The
California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) also received
revisions on April 5,2021 but did not consider these revisions due to timing in the review
period. Pursuant to Govemment Code section 65585, subdivision (b), HCD is reporting the
results of its review. Our review was facilitated by a conversation on March 25,2021 with
you; Scott Johnson, Planning Manager; Stephanie Henry, Planner; Chelsey Payne,
consultant; Kim Unterrnoser, consultant and Rebecca Pope, consultant. ln addition, HCD
considered comments from Sacramento Housing Alliance and Legal Services of Northern
California pursuant to Government Code section 65585, subdivision (c).

The draft element addresses many statutory requirements; however, the following
revisions will be necessary to comply with State Housing Element Law (Article 10.6 of
the Gov. Code).

1. Affirmatively further fair housing in accodance with Chapter 15 (commencing
with Section 8899.50) of Division 1 of Title 2. The program shall include an
assessment of fair housing... (Gov. Code, $ 65583, subd. (d0 Q6D,

Afiirmatively Furthqrino.Fqir Housirlg: The element includes a variety of
information and analysis related to affirmatively turthering fair housing,
however, additional information is necessary to address this requirement, as
follows:

Fair Housing Enforcement and Capacity: The housing element must include a
summary of fair housing enforcement and outreach capacity. The analysis
must address lawsuits and related enforcement actions, compliance with
existing fair housing laws and regulations and fair housing enforcement and
housing outreach capacity.

Page 854

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Pam Johns, Director
Page 2

Local and RegionalTrends and Pattems: The element describes regional
trends and patterns related to persons by race but must analyze Folsom
relative to the rest of the region regarding persons with disabilities, familial
status, households by income and disproportionate housing needs, including
overpayment, overcrowding and displacement risk. The element must also
address local trends and pattems for fair housing enforcement and outreach,
integration and segregation, racially and ethnically concentrated areas of
poverty, disparities in access to opportunity and disproportionate housing
needs, including displacement risks.

Local Data and Knowledge: The element should complement federal, state
and regional data with local data and knowledge where appropriate to capture
emerging trends and issues, including utilizing knowledge from local and
regional advocates and service providers.

ldentifying and Prioritizing Contributing Factors to Fair Housing lssues; The
element must be revised to evaluate and prioritize contributing factors to fair
housing issues, including based on the outcomes of analysis described
above. HCD will send examples under separate cover.

Siles /nyentory: The element must identify and analpe whether sites are
located throughout the community to affirmatively further fair housing.

Goals and Actions; The element must be revised to add or modify goals and
actions based on the outcomes of analysis described above. Goals and
actions must specifically respond to the analysis and identified and prioritized
contributing factors to fair housing issues and must be significant and
meaningful enough to overcome identified patterns and trends, Actions must
have metrics and milestones as appropriate and must address housing
mobility enhancement, new housing choices and affordability in high
opportunity areas, place-based strategies for community preservation and
revitalization and displacement protection. HCD will send examples under
separate cover.

2. The City must make available on ifs websife a cunent schedule of fees,
exactions, and affordability requiremenfs imposed by that city (Gov. Code g
65e40. t (a) (r ) (A) (i)).

The City must comply with all transparency laws and post allfees on their
website that would apply to a proposed housing development project. While
the City confirmed that zoning requirements are available on the website, the
housing element must also confirm fees are posted to the City's website.

3. A statement of the community's goals, quantified objectives, and policies
relative to the maintenance, preseruation, improvement, and development of
housing (Gov. Code, S 65583, subd. (b)).

Page 855

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Pam Johns, Director
Page 2

While the element includes quantified objectives for new construction and
rehabilitation (page *24'; it must also add quantified objectives for
conservation by income group, including extremely low-income households.
Examples of programs that may be utilized include Programs H-18 and H-19.

4. lnclude a prognm which sets forth a schedule of actions during the planning
period, each with a timeline for implementation, which may recognize that
certain programs are ongoing, such that there will be beneficial impacts of the
programs within the planning period, that the local govemment is undertaking
or intends to undertake to implement the policies and achieve the goals and
objectives of the housing element through the administration of land use and
development controls, the provision of regulatory concessions and incentives,
and the utilization of apprcprtaE federaland state financing and subsidy
programs when available. The program shall include an identification of the
agencies and officials responsible for the implementation of the various
actions. (Gov. Code, S 65583, subd. (c).)

Programs must be added or modified to achieve the goals and objectives of
the housing element, including but not limited to:

Previous Prooram H-29 (Homeless Services): This program to coordinate
with service providers and other entities was eliminated from the revised draft
housing element; however, the element should include programs to
coordinate and partner on a local and regional level to address the needs of
persons experiencing homelessness.

Proonam 29 (Zonino Amendmentsl: This program should be revised to
establish a written procedure by a date certain to implement streamlined
ministerial approval (SB 35, 2017) as noted on page 4-'11.

Residential Mobile Home Zone: The element indicates zoning for mobile
homes will be addressed as part of the zoning code update (page 5-4). As a
result, the element should include a program to amend zoning as appropriate
to facilitate conservation of mobile home parks by a date certain.

5. Assisf in the development of adequate housing to meet the needs of
extremely low, very low, Iow-, and moderate-income households (Gov. Code,

S 65584 subd. (c)(z)).

Water and Sewer Priority: For your information, water and sewer service
providers must establish specific procedures to grant priority water and sewer
service to developments with units affordable to lower-income households.
(Gov. Code, S 65589.7.) lf appropriate, the City must include a program to
establish written procedures.

The element will meet the statutory requirements of State Housing Element Law once it
has been revised to comply with the above requirements.

Page 856

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Pam Johns, Director
Page 2

To remain on an eight-year planning cycle, the City must adopt its housing element
within 120 calendar days from the statutory due date of May 15,2021 for Sacramento
Area Council of Governments (SACOG) localities. lf adopted after this date,
Government Code section 65588, subdivision (eX4), requires the housing element be
revised every four years until adopting at least two consecutive revisions by the
statutory deadline. For more information on housing element adoption requirements,
please visit our website at hfto://www.hcd.ca.oovlcommunitv-develoomenUhousino-
elemenUhousino-element-memos/docs/sb375 final1 0041 3.pdf

Public participation in the development, adoption and implementation of the housing
element is essential to effective housing planning. Throughout the housing element
process, the City must continue to engage the community, including organizations that
represent lower-income and special needs households, by making information regularly
available while considering and incorporating comments where appropriate.

Specifically, HCD accepted revisions to the draft element on March 30,2021, fairly late
in the review period. The City must proactively make these revisions available to the
public, including commenters on this review and diligently consider and address
comments, including revisions to the document where appropriate. Consideration of
comments must not be limited by HCD's findings in this review letter.

Severalfederal, state, and regionalfunding programs consider housing element
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria. For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill
(SB) 1 Sustainable Communities grant; the Strategic Growth Council and HCD's
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities programs; and HCD's Permanent
Local Housing Allocation consider housing element compliance and/or annual reporting
requirements pursuant to Governrnent Code section 65400. With a compliant housing
element, the City meets housing element requirements for these and other funding
sources.

HCD appreciates your hard work and dedication and the efforts and cooperation
Scoft Johnson, Planning Manager; Stephanie Henry, Planner; Chelsey Payne,
consultant; Kim Untermoser, consultrant; and Rebecca Pope, consultant, provided in
preparation of the City's housing element. lf you have any questions or need additional
technical assistance, please contact Hillary Prasad, of our staff, at
H illarv. Prasad@hcd.ca.oov.

Sincerely,

Shannan West
Land Use & Planning Unit Chief

Page 857

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DIVISION OF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT
2020 W. El Camino Avenue, Suite 500
Secramento, CA 96833
(916) 263-2911 / FAX (916) 283-7453
www.hcd.ca.oov

July 16,2021

Pam Johns, Director
Community Development Department
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

Dear Pam Johns:

RE: Review of the Gity of Folsom's 6th Cycle (2021-2029) Draft Housing Element

Thank you for submifting the Ci$ of Folsom's (City) revised draft housing element update
received for review on June 10,2021, along with revisions received on July 7,2021.
Pursuant to Government Code section 65585, subdivision (b), the California Department
of Housing and Community Development (HCD) is reporting the results of its review. Our
review was facilitated by a telephone conversation on June 7,2021with Kim Untermoser
and Chelsey Payne, consultants. ln addition, HCD considered comments from
Sacramento Housing Alliance pursuant to Government Code section 65585, subdivision
(c), which were submitted prior to the review period.

The revised draft element, incorporating the revisions submitted, meets the statutory
requirements of State Housing Element Law described in HCD's April 6,2021 review. The
housing element will comply with State Housing Element Law (Article 10.6 of the Gov.
Code) when it is adopted, submitted to and approved by HCD, in accordance with
Government Code section 65585, subdivision (g).

As a reminder, the City's 6th cycle housing element was due May 15, 2021. As of today,
the City has not completed the housing element process for the 6th cycle. The City's
Sth cycle housing element no longer satisfies statutory requirements. HCD encourages the
City to adopt and submit to HCD to regain housing element compliance.

To remain on an eight-year planning cycle, the City must adopt its housing element within
120 calendar days from the statutory due date of May 15,2021for Sacramento Area
Council of Govemments (SACOG) localities. lf adopted after this date, Government Code
section 65588, subdivision (eX4), requires the housing element be revised every four
years until adopting at least two consecutive revisions by the statutory deadline. For more
information on housing element adoption requirements, please visit our website at:

Page 858

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Pam Johns, Director
Page2

http:l/www,hcd.ca,oov/communitvdeveloomenUhousino-elemenUhousinq-element-
memos/docs/sb37S fi nall 0041 3.odf.

Public participation in the development, adoption and implementation of the housing
element is essential to effective housing planning. Throughout the housing element
process, the City must continue to engage the community, including organizations that
represent lower-income and special needs households, by making information regularly
available while considering and incorporating comments where appropriate.

Purcuant to Government Code section 65583.3, subdivision (b), the City must utilize
standards, forms, and definitions adopted by HCD when preparing the sites inventory.
Please see HCD's housing element webpage at https:/Arvww.hcd.ca.oov/communl&-
develoomenUhousing-elemenUindex.shtmlfulement for a copy of the form and
instructions. The City can reach out to HCD at sitesinventory@hcd.ca.qov for technical
assistance. Please note, upon adoption of the housing element, the City must submit an
electronic version of the sites inventory with its adopted housing element to
sitesi nventorv@hcd. ca. oov.

Severalfederal, state, and regionalfunding programs consider housing element
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria, For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill (SB)
1 Sustainable Communities grant; the Strategic Growth Council and HCD's Affordable
Housing and Sustainable Communities programs; and HCD's Permanent Local Housing
Allocation consider housing element compliance and/or annual reporting requirements
pursuant to Government Code section 65400. With a compliant housing element, the City
meets housing element requirements for these and other funding sources.

HCD appreciates the dedication you; Scott Johnson, Planning Manager; Stephanie Henry,
Planner; Chelsey Payne, consultant; Kim Untermoser, consultant; provided in preparation
of the City's housing element and looks forward to receiving the Ci$'s adopted housing
element. lf you have any questions or need additional technical assistance, please contact
Hillary Prasad, of our staff, at Hlllarv.Prasad@hcd.ca.oov.

Sincerely,

Shannan West
Land Use & Planning Unit Chief

Page 859

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 5

SFIA Housing Element Comment Letters and Responses

Page 860

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SACRAMTNTtl
909 L2th street Suite 114 | Sacrarnento CA 9581"4

P = 915 455.4900

SHA
Eoard of Directors

Cathy cIeswell
Pres ident
At-large

Tyrone Buckley
Vice President
At-large

Paul Ainger
Treas urer
Volunteers of America

Valerie Feldman

Secretary
At-large

LaShawnda Barker
At-large

Stephan Daues

Mercy Housing

Tamie Dramer
Organize Sacramento

Jenn Fleming
Mercy Housing

John Foley
Sacramento Self Help

Housing

Nur l(ausar
At-large

Stanley Keasling
At- I a rge

Michelle Pariset
At - la rge

Alicia Sebastian
California Coalition for
Rural Housing

Rachel Smith
Rural Community
Assista nce Corporation

Holly Wunder-Stiles
Mutual Housing
California

Houslng Allionce

SENT T/IA EMAIL ONLY

January 20,2021

Stephanie Traylor Henry
Senior Planner
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom CA.95630
shenry@folsorn.ca.us

Dear Ms. Henry:

The Sacramento Housing Alliance submits the following comments regarding the
City's draft.2O2l Housing Element (DHE), We appreciate that the City circulated
the draft for public review prior to submitting a draft to the Deparhnent of
Housing and Community Development (HCD) for review. This allows the City
to review our comments, as well as other community members, incorporate
suggestions, when appropriate, prior to finalizing a draft making sure the City has

a legally compliant and effective housing element.

The City has done a good job acknowledging all of the changes in Housing
Element law since the last housing element revision and has attempted to address

each new requirement. Our comments focus on two main areas: l) an inadequate
inventory of sites to accommodate the RHNA, including the projection for multi-
generational units to accommodate a significant portion of the City's lower
income Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA); and,2) the lack of specific
actions in many of the housing element programs. ln addition, we also offer some
suggested changes to the programs, the City's efforts to affirmatively further fair
housing, as well as suggested edits throughout the DHE.

1. Needs Analysis:

As required by Government Code section 65583(a), the housing element must
arta|yze the population, housing stock and special housing needs. The DHE
describes an adequate projection in the number ofjobs to meet the projected
growth in housing during the planning period but also faces an interesting jobs-
housing fit situation. Almost an equal percentage of Folsom residents commute
from Folsom to other areas for work that commute into Folsom to go to work. In
order to address this situation, the housing element should identiff what types of
employees are commuting in to work in Folsom as well as where residents are

likely commuting to go to work. Because of the very limited amount of rental
housing in Folsom, exacerbated by the limited supply of affordable rental units in
Folsom, it appears that many people who work in Folsom in retail or other lower

Page 861

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft Housing Element Comments
January 20,2021
Page2

wage jobs cannot afford to live in Folsom and therefore have to commute from
other areas. In response, the housing element should include programs to increase
the jobs-housing fit and promote the housing types that will allow the people who
work in Folsom to live in Folsom.

As a basis to determine what steps are needed to affirmatively further fair housing
in Folsom, the City reviews the demographics based on race and income in the

City. As detailed below, understanding the demographics is only half of the effort
to further fair housing. The City is much less diverse then the surrounding area;

the region is roughly 55.7% white, non -Hispanic and Folsom is over 62Yowhite,
non-Hispanic and the City's past practices of excluding multi-family housing
result in fewer lower income people living in Folsom. This in turns results in
Folsom's lack of diversity when compared to the region because of the correlation
between income and race. The effort to correct this practice is not only to meet
the current RHNA but make efforts to meet the housing needs of lower income
households that were historically excluded from Folsom. The DHE must include
programs that will result in the production of affordable housing and affirmatively
market those housing opportunities throughout the region.

2, Inventory ofSites

The City's inventory of sites is not adequate to accommodate the RHNA for
lower income households. Folsom's RHNA can be reduced by the number of
units constructed, or potentially only approved for construction, during the
projection period. The SACOG projection period is roughly identical to the
planning period for the 6rh revision and therefore, no units constructed or
approved prior to June 2021 can be credited against, or reduce the RHNAI, thus

the remaining RHNA that the City must accommodate is:

a. Capacity

In order to determine whether the sites included in the City's inventory are
adequate the City had to determine how many units could be accommodated on

each parcel. The City is assuming that each site has a build-out capacity of 90%
of the site. This estimate is not supported by the past recotd of multi-family
development, The City has included projects that used a density bonus - Bidwell
Place and Bidwell Pointe - to determine an average capacity of 90o/o or 27
units/acre. A project that exceeds the 30 units/acre maximum density should not

RHNA Very Low
Income

Low lncome Moderate Income Above-Moderate
Income

2,226urtits 1,341 units 829 units 1,967 units

t SANDAG was in the same situation during the 5th revision.

Page 862

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft Housing Element Comments
January 20,2021
Page 3

be used to calculate the average build out, HCD's Housing Element Site
Inventory Guidebook specifically indicates the application of a density bonus
should not be used in the element's analysis of appropriate zoning/density (page
l4). Although the DHE indicates that developers agreed that a density of 27
units/acre is acceptable, there is no indication that developers agreed that a
capacity calculation should be based on90Yo build out of each multlfamily site.
Using the examples listed in the DHE the capacity calculation should reflect a
capacity of24 units/acre or 80 percent.
Applying this realistic buildout estimate to the inventory automatically reduces
the capacity of the inventory.

b. Underutilized Sites

The DHE lacks any analysis to indicate that the underutilized sites included in the
inventory have a realistic development potential during this planning period.
Government Code section 65583.2(g)(l) requires the City to explain its
methodology for determining whether there is development potential on these
non-vacant sites and includes factors that could be included in the methodology.
The DHE merely states that planning staff have determined that these sites are
feasible. DHE, p. 3-6. The factors that are included in AttachmentC.2 for each
site are conclusory and the DHE contains no examples of underutilized sites,
including the parking lot for existing businesses, developing into residential uses.2

Without an explanation of the City's methodology and evidence that supports the
inclusion of these underutilized sites, these sites should be removed from the
City's inventory of available sites.

c. Multi-generational units

It is unclear from the DHE whether these units are considered as junior accessory
dwelling units (JADU's) and whether these units meet the statutory definition of a
JADU. The current description - a multi-generational unit - is not included in the
statute as an alternative to identiSring adequate sites to accommodate the RHNA.
Prior to completing the DHE, city staff indicated that there would be a shortfall in
the amount of acreage required to accommodate the RHNA and now due to the
inclusion of these projected units, the City estimates a surplus of sites to
accommodate the lower income RHNA.3 These units are described as single-
family homes that have an attached suite with its own enhance as well as a
connecting door to the main home. The suite has a bedroom and kitchen or
kitchenette; the draft does not indicate if a bathroom is provided. From the study
cited in the DHE, these units are often used for older family members or college
aged family members, but are not rented on the open market. The City assumes

2 Where Attachment C.2 indicates a lot division would be required to develop an
underutilized site for residential purposes the housing element should also include a

program to accomplish that action.
3 That surplus is also based on 90% build out on Multi-family sites that should be re-
assessed and relying on underutilized sites that should be removed,

Page 863

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft I-Iousing Element Comments
January 20,202L
Page 4

that any unit that is occupied, as opposed to being used as a home office or guest
room, would meet the needs of an extremely low- income household.
Leaving out units used as home offices, all of these units are guest quarters. If
these units are not rented, fbr example advertised to the general public, only
families and friends would have access to the unit. This means that the lack of
rent is not because the unit is affordable but because the unit is generously made
available at no charge to family and friends.a lncluding units that are not available
to the public has fair housing implications and does not meet the need for
extremely low- income households in Folsom.

In addition, it is unclear in the DHE if the projection for the number of these units
is based on development in Folsom, or other locations. The DHE does mention
these units being included in some recent developments and that past
development history is what should guide the City's projections about future
development potential.

d. Acccssory Dwelling Units

State laws that increase the feasibility of ADU's has led to an almost two- fold
increase in ADU's in Folsom, from 5 units per year to 9 ADU's per year. If the
City includes its current estimate than the DHE should have a program to monitor
ADU construction and commit the City to identifing more sites for affordable
housing if the City's projection falls short.
As mentioned above despite SACOG's endorsement of how to estimate the
affordability of the ADU's projected to be built, we do not concur that the lack of
rent charged translates into a unit available for a lower income household. If
there is evidence, through a survey that units are advertised as rent-free then the
City could include its current projection. But without such evidence, ADU's that
do not charge rent are guest quarters and not available to lower income
households.

3. Constraints

Our review identified several constraints that should be remedied through
a corresponding program. For instance, the DHE states that the processing times
for multi-family housing is much longer than single family applications. That
delay increases costs and the City should include a program to shorten the process
and mitigate the constraint to housing affordable to low and moderate income
households,

Also, the discretionary review required of Multi-family projects of over 2 units is
a constraint on multi-family development. The City, both to facilitate affordable
housing in this planning period, and to fi.rther fair housing should take every step

a This same calculation is why the ADU estimation is incorrect, despite SACOG's
estimations, no charge is not the same as minimal rent.

Page 864

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft Housing Element Comments
January 2A,2021
Page 5

possible to decrease processing times, remove unnecessary delays and uncertainty
created by discretionary hearings at the planning commission or city council, and

allow multi-family projects by-right. We do note that the City plans to rescind its
current multi-family guidelines but does not make a specific commitment through
its revised processing and layers of reviews, to facilitating this type of
development.

ln addition, one of the multlfamily zoned sites in the FRASP is quite remote and

without any planned uses that would allow the eventual developer to compete for
tax credits which is one of the necessary and one of the only available funding
streams for affordable housing.

And lastly, the unit cap in the FRASP, is a constraint. Although the DHE
mentions that there have already been increases in the number of units in some

development that leads to a decrease in another development it is not clear if any
multi-family projects have been afifected by the decreases. Even if it has not
affected the number of projected multi-family units that will be available in the

FRASP, the corresponding program should commit to preserving, and even

increasing, the number of planned multi-family units if the number of overall
units is allowed to increase.

4, Programs

Overall, the programs in the DHE are very comprehensive in their purpose but
many programs include multiple actions without specifics about each included
action. For instance, in program H-7, it is unclear how a determination will be

made of whether fees can be reduced to facilitate affordable housing
development, It is a good goal but without specifics about how it will occur, what
factors will be considered, and whether it will be reported to the City Council, the
progrum is inadequate.

Another example is Program H-I1, the City will encourage housing developers to
pursue new construction ofaffordable housing. But the Program does not detail
how the City will encourage developers, through incentives, education/outreach,
and how often. Perhaps, the City could hold an annual or bi-annual housing
forum as a time to invite developers and encourage new affordable housing
construction while describing City specific incentives and funding resources.

Program H-18 illustrates the specificity that we think needs to be addressed in
other programs. In H-l8, the DHE states what the City will do, encourage
landlords to participate in the HCV program and how, through its website, social
media, and by contacting landlords.

In addition to adding specific information and commitments throughout the
programs, we recornmend the following additional programs as well as a few
edits to programs included in the DHE.

Page 865

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft Housing Element Comments
January 20,2021
Page 6

a. Mobile home conversion ordinance - the City has a large number of
existing mobile homes that are most likely serving the needs of lower
income households. The DHE should include a program for the City
to consider and adopt a mobile home conversion ordinance that at the
very least would include adequate relocation assistance.

b. A program that commits the City to prioritizing the goals of its
available funding resources, through the Housing Trust Fund, or
redevelopment bond proceeds, or in lieu fees. The affordable
developers could design projects that meet these priorities if they seek

funding from the City. The priorities should reflect income targeting,
multiple bedrooms, or the inclusion of certain amenities, like a tot lot,
that address identified affordable housing needs.

c. Expand Program H-I8 to include City provided incentives to get
landlords to participate in order to promote access to housing in high
opportunity areas where new construction might be unlikely to occur.
Also, the City could create a revolving security deposit loan for HCV
participants to encourage the use of HCV in Folsom. This is a low-cost
program that removes a big banier for families who can afford the rent
but do not always have the expensive security deposit funds available.

d. Revise Program H-9 to review the in-lieu fees more regularly, for
example on a three- year schedule rather than once during the eight-
year planning period.

e. If the City continues to reply on multi-generational units to meet a

portion of its lower income housing needs, a program to offer
incentives to owners who agree to rent the unit at an amount affordable
to a household earning 50 percent of the area median income and
commit to annually assessing the rents charged in multi-generational
units since it will take time to identifu additional multi-family sites if
the City's projections fall short.

Thank for you for considering our comments regarding the City's draft housing
element. Please feel free to email us at kendra@sachousingalliance.org with any
questions or to set up a time to meet.

Sincerely,

Page 866

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Draft Housing Element Comments
January 20,202L
PageT

Kendra Lewis, Executive Director
Sacramento Housing Alliance

O,tornelry
Cathy Creswell, Board President
S acramento Housing Alliance

Page 867

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



ilr', I i i ,rr,.l l,il ',,,,:.'.,, 1 1....,'l -i':i,L

, i)l''i" l'rrl{SACRAMTNTt}
Housing Alliqnce

,April7,2O2LL

SENT VU EMAIL ONLY

Stephanie Traylor Henry
Senior Planner
City ofFolsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsorfi, CA.95630
shenrv@folsom.ca.us

RE: DRAFT HOUSING ELEMENT REVISIONS

Dear Ms. Henry:

This letter responds to revisions to the City's draft housing element we received

from the Department of Housing and Community Development (ttCD) on April

1,2021. Many of issues we raised in our previous letter dated January 20,2071

have not been satisfactorily addressed and we incorporate that letter by reference

here. Although we had no notice of when or if revisions would be available for

our review, and had less than a week to review revisions to the housing element

currently underreview by HCD, we have done our best to review and draft

meaningful comments to be considered prior to the end of the cunent review

period.

Site Capacitv

sA.lthough the City does not include the total buildout for developments that

received a density bonus when calculating the realistic capacity of sites identified

to accommodate the lower income RHNA, the City does assume that those

projects would have developed at 100% build out if they had not received a

density bonus. The City then includes those projects with a hypothetical l00Yo

build out to support the capacity calculation of 27 units/acre. In order forthe

capacity calculation to be realistic it has to rely on real, or actual, past

development and should not include assumed density. The element must still

Page 868

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



address the statutory requirement for calculating the appropriate capacity of sites

in the inventory.

Affordabilitv of ADUts and Muld-qonerrtional Units

As stated in our previous letter, the affordability assumptions regarding projected

ADU's and multi-generational units do not meet the statutory requirements. If
units are only affordable to very low and extremely low income households

because they are provided free of charge to family members or friends than their

availability is too constrained to actual meet the lower income housing need.

Similar to college housing that is limited to college students, these units are only

be available to a very limited number of people because of relationships with the

primary dwelling owner and therefore are not available to accommodate the lower

income RHNA.I

Program_g

In our previous letter we noted that the element identifies processing times for

multi-family developments are twice as long as the processing time for single

family approvals yet no program was included to address this constraint. Nor, is

there a program to address the constaint of the unit cap in the FRASP.

The revised draft indicates that the City's reasonable accommodation policy will

be revised to ensure it complies with state law, including fair housing laws. These

changes aro necessary as the current policy includes grounds for denial that are

not found in federal or state law regarding reasonable accommodations, such as

whether the request is an undue enforcement buden and the consideration of the

surrounding uses and physical attibutes of the property.

In addition, the programs continue to use, in some placesn vague language that

does not make a clear commitnent for what specific action the City will take. For

example, in Program H-5 the City will'oexplore a streamlined process" or in

I As we have previously noted, and include in this letter, the constraints on acoessing this
type of housing also implicates fair housing requirements when a significant portion f the
lower income RHNA is intended to are accommodated with this type of housing.

Page 869

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Program H-l7 the City will "explore the feasibility and appropriateness of using

housing trust fund money..." This language does not indicate what the City will

actually do as result of this portion of the program. The program should describe

when the exploration will be completed and a clear commifrnent to appropriate

actions.

We are also disappointed that none ofthe programs we recommended to increase

and preserve affordable housing opportunities have been included, such as'

adopting a mobile home conversion ordinance. As a result, it does not appear the

element adequately addresses this important statutory requirement. Also of

concern, is the change to Program H-31 to encourage affirmative marketing plans

rather than require a.ffirmative marketing of new developments. The City has few

programs to address its duty to affirmatively further fair housing and the City

should strengthen its program commitments to meet this important new

requirement.

Alfirmativelv X'urthering X'air llougine

In addition to the issue raised above Program H-31, the City's reliance on ADU's

and multi-generational units to meet the need for over 500 units affordable to

lower-income households, conflicts with its duty to affrrmatively further fair

housing. According to the SACOG survey regarding the use or planned use of

multigenerational units about 70 percent of the units would be used for family

members with no charge in rent and the City tanslates this survey result to mean

that 70 percent of the multigenerational units will be affordable to lower income

households because there is no rent charged. Whether or not the unit is actually

affordable, the larger issue is who may access these units and the corresponding

fair housing implications.

Page 870

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



If these units are predominantly limited to the family, or possibly friends, of the

people who live in the primary residence the City is relying on housing that has

very limited access points to accommodate its lower income RHNA. This is

contrary to the City's duty to further fair housing which requires expanding

housing opportunities in high opporhrnity areas rather than limiting these

opportunities to the families of the people who already live in the area. The City

should further revise its draft housing element to rely on these units for its

moderate or above-moderate income housing need.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions.

Sincerely,

O,rr4.xu,%
Kendra Lewis, Executive Director
Sacramento Housing Alliance

cc

Cathy Creswell, Board President
Sacramento Housing Alliance

Hillary Prasad, HCD, Hillary.Prasad@hcd.ca.gov
Paul McDougall, HCD, Paul.McDougall@hcd.ca.gov
Valerie FeldmarU Public Interest Law Project, vfeldman@pilpca.org

Page 871

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



OITY O?

IrrOL€l()M

May 4,2021

Kendra Lewis, Executive Director

Cathy Creswell, Board President

Sacramento Housing Alliance

90912th Street Suite 114

Sacramento, CA,95814

$rbject Rerponseb(omlffiit Lstteron Folsom Draft llosfuE Hement

Dear Ms, Lewis and Ms. Creswell,

City of Folsom planning staff appreciate the comment letters provided by SHA regarding the City of

fo[om Draft Housing Enment. City staff have reviewed SHA comments and suggestions and have made

revisions to the DraffHousing Element as described in this letter, The Revised Public Draft Housing

Element has been published on the prgect website and is available here:

wwwJolsomhousi n gelement.com/docurnenls.

Jobs-Housing Fit

ln the commlnt btter dated January 20,2021, SHA stated that the Draft Housing Element should identiff

what types of employees are commuting into Folsom for work and where Folsom residents commute to

work. iHR also advised that the Draft Housing Element should include programs to increase thejobs-

housing fit and promote the housing types that will allow people who work in Folsom to live in Folsom.

ln response, the City has revised the Draft Housing Element to include data on the regional commute

pattems and income level of employees commuting into and out of Folsom. Based on this data, City staff

added a conclusion that additional afbrdabte housing is needed for lower-wage workers commuting into

Folsom, who are likely unable to afford housing in Folsom. Jobs-housing fit was one of the factors included

in SACOG,s RHNA rrthodologV, and Folsom was allocated an additional 389 lower-income units above

the base allocation in order to accqrnt for jobs-housing fit, By providing adequate sites to meet the RHNA

and including several programs to support affordable housing development within the city, the Draft

Housing Element will help the City improve jobs-housing fit.

Credlt for Approved Prqieas

ln the comment letter aatea January 20,2021, SHA sated that no units constructed or approved prior to

June 2021 can be credited against or reduce the RHNA.

Page 872

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Response to sHA Comment Letter

cty of Folsom r*d"ffh!|ll
PaEe2

ln compliance with HCD's Housing Element Site lnventory Guidebook, City staff understands that no units

that have been issued building permits prior to June 30 2021 (i.e., the start of the sixth cycle RHNA period)

can be credited towards the sixth cycle RHNA. However, units that have been approved but not yet issued

building permits can be credited towards the sixth cycle RHNA. This is consistent with HCD guidance' City

staff has been monitoring the approved projects counted in the Draft Housing Element toward the sixth

cycle RHNA, tf any of these projects pull building permits prior to June 30 2021, they will be credited

toward the fifth cycle RHNA and removed from the Sixth Cycle Housing Element.

Site Capacity

ln the comment letter dated January 20,2021, SHA stated that a realistic buildout assumption of 90

percent of maximum density was not appropriate since projects using a density bonus were included in

the calculation of average buildout.

City staff acknowledges that units approved through a density bonus should not be included in the

calculation of average buildout, consistent with the HCD's Housing Element Site lnventory Guidebook, and

in response to SHA comment, City staff updated the analysis of recent multifamily developments. The City

assumed only 100% of the maximum allowable density for projects that received a density bonus. ln

updating the analysis, City staff also added information on recently approved affordable developments

that were approved after the analysis had originally been completed. The City found that, based on

recently built or approved multifamily dwelopments, excluding units approved through a density bonus, a

realistic buildout density of 90 percent of the maximum allowable density, or 27 units per acre, remains

appropriate.

ln the comment letter dated April 7, 2021, SHA acknowledges the change made to the Draft Housing

Element but refers to the assumption of 100% of maximum density as a "hypothetical 100% build out' and

states that the realistic build out assumption should be based on real, or actual, past development and

should not include an assumed density. Since the maximum allowable density represents the density at

which the project would have been developed if the density bonus was not approved, the City considen

this appropriate, The City is unclear on the meaning of SHA's statement that the City included projects with

a hypothetical 100 percent buildout, and the capacity calculation must rely on real, or actual, past

development.

HCD guidance states that the realistic capacity analysis can be based on existing or approved residential

developments. We feel that the approach we have taken is consistent with HCD guidance for calculating

realistic densities. The City will comply with no net loss requirements if sites are built at a lesser densi$ or a

different income level. ln addition, the Draft Housing Element includes a program to increase multifamily

densities beyond 30 units per acre (Program H-2) and would, thereby, allow and encourage development

at densities over 30 units per acre,

Undgrutilized Sites

tn the comment letter dated Janua ry 20,2021, SHA stated that the Draft Housing Element lacks any

analysis to indicate that the underutilized sites included in the residential sites inventory have a reallstic

development potential during the planning period and does not include any examples of residential

development on underutilized sites.

ln response to SHA comment the City revised the Draft Housing Element to include and describe

examples of recently approved residential development, including affordable housing, on underutilized

Page 873

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Response to SHA Comrnent Letter

City of Folsom Houslng Elernent

April2021
Page 3

sites. Further, the City is currently rebranding the Central Commercial District or Central Business District to

the Central District. This rebranding effort would encourage residential redevelopment by acknowledging

the transformation of this area from a commercial hub to a mixed-use corridor. Although additional

underutilized sites exist in the City, the Draft Housing Element only identified sites most suitable for

residential redevelopment within the planning period, based on property owner discussions, current tenant

improvements, age and condition of buildings, and market trends. This additional information was

included in the revised Draft Housing Element.

AffordablliU of ADUs and Multi-generational Units

ln the SHA comment letter dated January 20,2A21, and in the SHA comment letter dated April7,2021,

SHA stated that if accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and multi-generational units are only affordable to very

low- and extremely low-income households because they are provided free of charge to family members

or friends than their availability is too constrained and should not be used to meet the lower-income

housing RHNA.

ln response to SHA comment and HCD revieq the City revised the Draft Housing Element to clarify that

multi-generational units would be tracked and reported to the Califomia Department of Finance as

separate units. The Draft Housing Element relies on the ADU affordability analysis provided by SACOG and

used by jurisdictions throughout the region. ln addition, the City conducted outreach with developers and

other stakeholders regarding ADU and multi-generational housing development, The City feels that ADUs

and multi-generationalhousing units meet an important housing need in the community. Although multi-

generational units may likely be rented free of charge to family members and friends, these units do

provide housing for individuals that would otherwise require affordable housing elsewhere. Multi-

generational units provide lower-income households access to employment opportunities and other

resources available in Folsom. ln addition, multi-generational units can meet the special needs for seniors,

persons with disabilities, or percons at risk of homelessness that often face challenges in finding housing,

The Draft Housing Element also includes an aggressive program to track ADUs and multi-generational

units and conduct a survey every two years to collect information on the use and affordability. lf ADUs and

multigenerationalunits are found to not meet the lower-income housing need as identified in the Housing

Element, the program requires the City to ensure other housing sites are available to accommodate the

lower-income RHNA,

Hguslng Element Programs

Program Larguage
ln the SHA comment letter dated January 20,2021, and in the SHA comment letter dated April7,2A21,

SHA stated that the Draft Housing Element uses, in some places, vague language that does not make a

clear commitment for what specific action the City will take.

ln response to SHA comment the City has revised the Draft Housing Element to strengthen the program

language as follows:

> Program H-5 Accessory Dwelling Unit lncentives - City staff revised the program to state the City shall

pursue development of pre-approved plans dependent on grant funding and opportunities for

regional coordination through SACOG.

> Program H-7 Development lmpact and Permit Fees - The program commits the City to conducting a

study to review development impacts fees for housing and determine if fees can be reduced to

Page 874

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Response to SHA Comment Letter

City of Folsom Housing Element

^'r[:';
facilitate affordable housing. The City will continue to provide fee defenals and consider fue waivers, as

described in Policy H-2.3.

> program H-11 Local Funding for Affordable Housing Development - City staff revised the program by

creating a separate program identifiing incentives for affordable housing dwelopment (Program H-

12), lncluding density bonus, fee deferrals or reductions, and reduced fees for studio units. The neur

program commits the City to conduct outreach annually to attract and support affordable housing

developers in the city.

> Program H-17 Study the Purchase of Land fur Afficrdable Housing - City staff revised the program to

include a conditional statement that if the purchase of land is found to be infeasible, funding shall

continue to be used for affordable housing developments. The City currently uses housing trust money

to provide gap financing for affordable development. lf the City chooses to use these funds to

purchase land, the City will have less money to provide gap financing to affordable developers. ln

order to evaluate the best use of funds, the City must explore the feasibility first before making further

commitments,

> Program H-32 Affirmative Marketing Plan - City staff have revised the program to require affirmative

ma*eting plans for affordable developmentt as a condition of receiving public funds. The City will

encourage private dwelopers to also prepare an affirmative marketing plan, when feasible.

Muhifamily Dwelopment Processing Times

ln the SHA comment letter dated January 2A, 2021, and in the SHA comment letter dated April T, 2021'

SHA stated that the City's processing times for multi-farnily housing are much longer than processing

times for single family housing and are considered a constraint that should be addressed.

ln comparison to an individual single-family unit, which typically only requires a building permit approval,

processing times for multifamily projects are much longer. However, processing times for multifamily

developments are similar to single family subdivisions and have not been identified as a constraint to

multifamily housing development. The City has made major changes to its multifumily processing

procedures since the Fifth Cycle Housing Element, including removing the requirement for a planned

development permit, thereby significantly streamlining permitting procedures for multifamily housing.

Design review is required for multifamily developments; however, the processing time for design review is

largely dependent on CEQA. lf the development is exempt from CEQA, processing times can be less than

one month. lf CEQA is required, processing times may take four to six months, as indicated in the Housing

Element. The City has approved several multifamily development projects, including affordable housing

projects, in recent years and developers have not identified the City's processing times as a constraint to

multifamily housing, ln fact the City has heard developers describe the City's procedures as much more

efficient than other jurisdictions.

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Madmum Unit Count

ln both the January 2A,2021and the April 7, 2021 SHA comment letters, SHA stated that the 'unit cap" in

the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) is a constraint that should be addressed,

The Draft Housing Element acknowledges the FPASP maximum unit count as a potential housing

constraint and includes a provision within Program H-2 to amend dre FPASP to allow for increases in the

maximum unit count. This specific plan amendment would be made specifically to accommodate

Page 875

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Response to SHA Comment Letter

City of Folsom Housing Element

^T';:1
additional multifamily unib through an increase in allowable densities in the FPASP Town Center, as

described in Program H-2.

Mobile Home Connersion Ordinance
ln both the January 20,2121and the April 7, 2021 SHA comment letters, SHA recommended that the City

include a program to consider and adopt a mobile home conversion ordinance that would include

adequate relocation assistance.

ln response to SHA comment, the City has updated the Draft Housing Element to carry forward a program

from the previous Housing Element to establish a mobib home zoning district as part of the City's

comprehensive update to its zoning code, anticipated for adoption in 2A21. This would require

discretionary approval of a zoning amendment for any mobile home park conversion and the City could

require relocation assistance as a condition of approval. The City has not received any requests for mobile

home conversions. ln addition, the City provides programs to preserye mobile homet including the

Seniorc Helping Seniors program and the Mobile Home Loan Forgiveness program.

Prioritize the Goals of Available Funding Sources

ln the SHA comment letter dated January 20,202|SHA suggested the City include a program in the Draft

Housing Element that would prioritize the goals of its available funding sources.

ln response to SHA comment, the City revised the program regarding Local Funding for Affordable

Housing Development (Program H-11) to direct the City to explore establishing priorities for the

distribution of funds, which may include criteria such as income targeting, housing for special needs

including seniors and persons with disabilities, number of bedrooms, amenities, and support services.

lncentives for Housing Choice Voucher Participation

ln the SHA comment letter dated January 20,2021, SHA suggested the City expand the Draft Housing

Element program related to Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs) to provide incentives to get landlords to
participate and to create a revolving security deposit loan for HCV participants.

The Draft Housing Element includes a program to promote the Housing Choice Voucher Landlord

lncentive Program, which is overseen by SHRA. City staff considers HCVs an important tool to affirmatively

further fair housing and provide affordable housing throughout the city.

Afbrdable Housing ln-Lieu Fee

ln the SHA comment letter dated January 20,2021, SHA suggested the City revise the Draft Housing

Element program to review the in-lieu fees for the City's affordable housing ordinance more regularly

during the planning period.

The City's in-lieu fee is a proportional fee that is tied to the sale price of new homes. As housing costs

increase, so will the fee. Because the in-lieu fee would adjust with changes in the housing market

additional review of the in-lieu fee is not needed.

Affi rmativelv Furtherl ng Falr Houslng

ln the comment letter dated January 20,2021and in the comment letter dated April 7, 2021, SHA

recommended that the City strengthen prcrgrams related to affirmatively furthering fair housing.

Additionally, SHA stated that the City's reliance on ADUs and multigenerational units conflicts with fair

housing goals because access to such units would be predominantly limited to friends and family.

Page 876

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



ResPonse to SHA Comment Letter

city of Folsom t*o1otfr 
fi:l

Page 6

The City understands the importance of affirmatively furthering fair housing and is committed to providing

its fair share of regional housing needs. The City finds that, although ADUs and multigenerational uni8

would likely be rented out to family and friends, these units would still meet an important housing need

for residents that would otherwise need to find affordable housing elsewhere in the clty or region' By

providing housing in ADUs and multigenerational units, people that would otherwise be pushed to live

outside of folsom will be able to afford housing in the city. ADUs and multigenerational units only

comprise 12 percent of the City's identified lower-income housing capacity. The Draft Housing Element

identifies several sites available for afbrdable multifamily development. Severalaffordable housing

projects have recently been approved and the City is committed to continue to provide affordable

housing. Because the entire city is identified by the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee as a high or

very high opportunity area, any affiordable housing in the city would affirmatively further fair housing.

ADUs and multigenerational units are one piece of the City's larger efbrt to provide affordable housing

and affirmatively further fair housing in the city'

ln addition, in response to SHA comment and in response to HCD review the City has revised the Draft

Housing Element to include a more detailed fair housing assessment. The City identified the following

programs in the Draft Housing Element as helping to affirmatively further fair housing by facilitating

affordable housing development in Folsom, a predominately high resource community:

> Program H-2 to create additional lower income housing capaclty;

> Program H-11 to identif localfunding for affordable housing development;

> Program H-12 to provide incentives for affordable housing development

> Program H-14 to facilitate affordable housing developments on larger sites;

> programs H-15, H-16, H-17 to facilitate affordable housing dwelopment on City-owned land;and,

> Program H-22toexpand existing affordable housing developments.

ln addition, Program H-10 affirmatively furthers fair housing by addressing community attitudes towards

lower-income housing.

The City appreciates the opportunity to respond to SHA and hopes this letter provides additional

clarification. The City is cunently finalizing revisions to the Draft Housing Element and anticipates adoption

of the Housing Element in July 2021. The revised Housing Element will be made available to the public on

the project website: www.folsomhousingelemqnt,com. lf you have any additional comments or questions,

please contact Stephanie Henry, Senior Planner, at shenry@folsom.ca.us or 916-461-6208.

Johns, Development Director

H i I lary Prasad, H CD, Hillary.Prasad@hcd.ca.gov

Pau I McDougall, H CD, Paul. McDougall @hcd.ca.ggv

Chelsey Payne, Ascent, Chelsey'Payne@AscentEnvironmen:lal.com

cc:

Page 877

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SACRAMTNT(l
909 t2th street Suite 11"4l Sacramento CA 95814

P = 916 455.4900

SHA

Board of Directors

Cathy Creswell
Preside rrt

At-large

Paul Ainger
Treas u rer
Volunteers of America

Valerie Feldman
Secreta ry
At-large

LaShawnda Barker
At-large

Stephan Daues

Mercy Housing

Tamie Dramer
Organize Sacramento

Jenn Fleming
Mercy Housing

John Foley
Sacramento Self Help
Housing

Nur Kausar

At-large

Stanley Keasling
At-large

Alicia Sebastian
California Coalition for
Rural Housing

Rachel Smith
Rural Community
Assistarrce Corporation

Holly Wunder-Stiles
Mutual Housing
Californ ia

Houslng Alllonce

i|vlay 24,2021

VU EMAIL ONLY

Pam Johns
Community Development Director
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA. 95630
piohns@folsom.ca.us

RE: Draft Housing Element Revisions

Dear Ms. Johns:

Thank you for sharing your May 4,2A21letter outlining the City's responses to

our prior comments regarding the City's draft housing element. We have

reviewed the tracked changes to the draft and the letter and several revisions, that

we detail below, are still necessary to comply with state law.

Calculatine Capaciw at the Maximum Permitted Density

Realistic capacity can either be calculated using the minimum density

permitted on the site or if there is no required minimum density then capacity can

be calculated by evaluating the typical densities of existing or approved

developments at similar affirdability levels and the impact of development

standards. First, the City should be using the densities of other affordable

developments to determine the realistic capacity for sites identified for future

affordable housing and the Draft includes market rate developments in its

analysis. Second, although the City acknowledges that developments that

received density bonuses should not be used to determine typical density of

Page 878

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



developments, the draft then uses the assumption that if the projects did not

request a density bonus they would have developed at the maximum permiued

density, 30 units/acre when only one development that did not receive a density

bonus ever developed at the maximum density of 30 units/acre. It seems more

likely that if a development did not request a density bonus it would develop at a

density similar to other developments that did not receive a density bonus, such as

the Parkway Apartments at 20 units/acre or Scholar Way Apartments at 26

units/acre.

Accommodating the Lower Income RIINA

Despite the revisions to Program H-6 and the City explanation in its May

4,2021letter, we still have serious concems about whether the multi-generational

units are actually available to accommodate the lower income RHNA. First, the

City makes a fairly bold assumption that if a multi-generational unit is provided to

a friend or family member that in essence frees up another affordable unit in

Folsom. For example, if the homeowner's parents move into the multi-

generational suite, we do not know that the parents would have otherwise needed

or had the opportunity to occupy an affordable home in Folsom. While an

assumption, that creating multi-generational might othenvise free up a unit, there

is no evidence or analysis that demonsfrates its appropriate to assume an

affordable unit will be made available. As a result, while it is appropriate to

count the creation of a multi-generational unit as a net increase in the overall

housing stock, absent any evidence to the conhary, it should only be uedited

toward the moderate or above-moderate income RHNA.

Page 879

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Second, units that are provided free of charge to people who know the

homeowner are not actually available at an affiordable rent because these units are

not available to the public at large and are not actually offered for rent. Because a

suite provided to a friend or family member at no cost is not actually available

pursuant to the statutory requirements, the changes to Program H-6 do not address

the concerns from our prior comment. While monitoring and conducting

surveys on the affordability and production of inter-generational units and ADUs

is good public policy, as described in the element, it does not address the

fundamental concern that only people known to the homeowner creating the units

have the opportunity to occupy them. Given the City's proclaimed assumption

that units occupied by family and friends for no rent, are in fact affordable and

should be credited toward the lower income RHNA, a monitoring and survey

program does not appear to be designed to evaluate that assumption. As a result,

the City program would never result in the need to identiff additional housing

sites to accommodate the lower income RHNA and significant under-planning for

housing affordable to extremely low, very low, and low income households is

perpetuated.

Third, the goals of affirmatively furthering fair housing are not obtained

through identi$ing hundreds ofunits to accommodate the lower income RHNA

that are only available if the tenant is either related to or a friend of the existing

homeowner. Instead, this is how exclusivity is maintained: only people with

connections to existing homeowners will be able to access these units. This

approach at addressing a significant proportion of the City's affordable housing

Page 880

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



need will likely exacerbate segregation and is constrains the City's ability to

comply with its duty to affirmatively further fair housing.

Affi rrnatively Furthering Fair Hsusing

Section 2.3.3 requires further modification to comply with Government

Code section 65583(c)(10). The City should revise the contributing factors to

identify the City's lack of compliance with housing element law for over 10 year

and its prior refusal to identify sites for multi-family housing. The Draft makes it

appear as if the City had no part in the resulting lack of variety in the housing

stock. The City is primarily zoned for single family homes because the City

refused to zone for other uses, despite state law requirements to the contrary.

The City must also revise Section 2.3.3 because it does not clearly identif

what goals or priorities it will pursue to address the factors identified in its

analysis. It appears that the City's goal is to increase the number of affordable

units in the City but nowhere is that goal clearly stated or the mekics to determine

the fair housing results as required by 65583(cXl0Xiv).

Page 881

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



As stated above, we appreciate the City's sharing their housing element

revisions and considering our comments as they move closer to the adoption date .

We hope that our comments will assist Folsom's efforts to bring the element into

compliance with the law.

cc: Hillary Prasad, HCD
Paul McDougall, HCD
Stephanie Traylor Henry, City of Folsom, Community Development
Department

Sincerely

C/,@{cil%
Kendra Lewis, Executive Director
S acramento Housing Alliance

Cathy Creswell, Board President

Sacramento Housing Alliance

Page 882

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



7t9t2021 Mail - Stephanie Henry - Oullook

<$ Reply alt ff oetete $ lunk Block

FW: Folsom Draft Housing Element Revisions

O Label: 2 Year Delete (2 years) Expires: Sat6/10/2O23 12:22PM

Pam Johns

Ihu 6/10/2021 12:22PM

To: Ejiro@sachousingalliance.org
Cc Stephanie Henry; Scott Johnson; Sari Dierking; Chelsey Payne; Kim Untermoser

PamJohns
Co n tml:.l,rjty D eu elo p nrcnt D ir e ctor

https://outlook.offce365.com/mail/deeplink?popouM=1&version-20210628001.09

o 4 b (9+

SHA Folsom Revised DHE Co...

170 KB

Good morning, Ejirol

City of Folsom planning staff appreciate the comments provided by SHA regarding the City of
Folsom Draft Housing Element. City staff and the consultant team have reviewed SHA

comments and suggestions and have shared these with HCD. ln response to the latest
comment letter received (May 24,2O2Ll.and ongoing discussions with HCD, we revised the
draft Housing Element to include a discussion related to the City's history of multifamily zoning
and inclusionary housing and the related lawsuits. We also made further revisions to the
Housing Element Programs to include metrics and milestones related to AFFH. The revised
draft has been sent to HCD and is published on the project website and is available at the
following li nk: h$@gelement.com/documents

Regarding the density and multi-generational housing assumptions, we've discussed our
assumptions with HCD and are comfortable with the assumptions as drafted. Consistent with
the information we shared on our Zoom call with SHA a few months back, our assumptions are
based on our most recent S-year multifamily development activity and home building trends in
the Folsom Plan Area, as wellas many conversations with market rate and affordable
apartment developers, home builders, and property owners. Our Zoning Code Update is in
process to align with relevant State law and to remove barriers and create incentives for
multifamily and multi-generational housing. Further, SACOG staff has now recommended for
funding approval Folsom's competitive REAP grant to amend the General Plan, Zoning Code

and complete CEQA analysis to increase allowed density in several areas of the City. That
preliminary policy question for density increase has already been vetted with our City Council
as part of this Housing Element Update and received unanimous support.

The Planning Commission Hearing is scheduled for July 21. Originally the hearing was
scheduled next week, June 16, but based on these latest revisions we pushed the hearing out.
The City Council Hearing is scheduled for August 24.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information. Thank you.

Pam

1t1Page 883

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



[Type here]

VIA EMAIL ONLY TO kmullet@folsom.ca.us

July 20,2021

City of h-olsom Planning Commission
50 Natoma Street

Folsorn, CA. 95630

RE: Agenda Item #1 Housing Element Update

Dear Chair Raithel, Vice-Chair Reynolds and Commissioners:

The Sacranrento Housing Alliance is pleased to submit the following comments
regard the City of Folsom's housing element update. We appreciate the effort
staff has made to share the December 2020 draft housing element and all of the

subsequent revisions. Despite incorporating many of our suggestions there still
remain several important areas that must be addressed to comply with the
requirements of state Housing Element law.

Accommodatinq the Lower Income RHNA

The reliance on what is described as "multi-generational units" to
accommodate the lower income RHNA results in several problems that prevent

compliance with state law, including the City's duty to affirmatively further fair
housing. First, the Element makes a fairly bold assumption that if a multi-
generational unit is provided to a friend or family member that it in essence frees

up another affordable unit in Folsom. For example, if the homeowner's parents

move into the multi-generational suite, the element provides no evidence that the

parents would have otherwise needed or had the opportunity to occupy an

affordable home in Folsom. While an assumption that creating multi-
generational might otherwise free up a unit, there is no evidence or analysis that

demonstrates it's appropriate to assume an affordable unit will be made available.
As a result, while it is appropriate to count the creation of a multi-generational
unit as a net increase in the overall housing stock, absent any evidence to the
contrary, it should onl:t be credited toward the moderate or above-moderate
income RHNA.

Second, these units are not described as being available on the rental

market but rather it is expected that many of these units will be provided free of
charge to people who know the homeowner, likely friends or relatives. Thercfore,
the units are not actually available at an affordable rent because these units are

not available to the public at large and are not actually offired for rent pursuant to
the statutory requirements. While the element contains a program to monitor
production of multi-generational units and conduct surveys on the affordability a

Page 884

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsotn Planning Cornrrrissiorr
Agenda ltern #l
Housing Element Update
Page2

of rnulti-generational units and ADLJs, the program does not address the
fundamental concern that only people known to tlre homeowner creating the units
have the oppor-tunity to occupy them. Given the city's proclaimed assumption
that units occupied by faniily and {i'iends for no rent, are in fact affordable and
should be credited toward the lower income RHNA, a monitoring and survey
program will not address the fundamental affirrnative ly furthering fair housing
concerns not provide a vehicle fbr collccting evidence that would support the
assumption.

As a result, of these factors, the city plogram would never result in the need to
identify additional housing sites to accommodate the lower income RHNA and
significant under-planning for housing affordable to extremely low, very low, and
low income households is perpetuated.

Third, the goals of affir'matively furthering fair housing (AFFH) are not
obtained through identiffing hundreds of units to accommodate the lower income
RHNA that are only available if the tenant is either related to or a friend of the
existing homeowner. Instead, this is how exclusivity is maintained: only people
with connections to existing homeowners will be able to access these units. This
approach at addressing a significant proportion of the city's afIordable housing
need will likely exacerbate segregation and is constrains the City's ability to
comply with its duty to affirmatively further fair housing. Indeed, sACoG staff
has communicated to the cities and counties in the region that when it conducted
its affordability analysis it did not consider the jurisdiction's duty to affirmatively
further fair housing and each jurisdiction should evaluate the assumptions within
the context of the state's AFFH guidance. see the May 25 email from Greg chew
of SACOG. l,ocal Government Housing Planners:

"we hope everyone is surviving housing element adoption season! A quick note
on the accessorv dwellins unit affordability analysis sAcoc provided in March
of 2020. while the analysi.s is still accepted by IICD, we wanted to be clear that
the assumptions do not consider the at'firmatively furtherins fair housing
suidance, released by the state in April202l. To the extent feasible, it will be
prudent to review your ADU assumptions in the context of the AFFH guidance if
ADUs represent a significant proportion of your RHNA accommodation. For
example, the element might want to consider the fair housing implications of
assuming no rent ADUs as affordable to extremely low income households as
well as the actual availability of ADtJs for rent in determining the anticipated
number of ADUs in the planning period. Further, as mentioned in the analysis,
while HCD has accepted this methodology, we encourage you to continue to
make a diligent efl'oft to consider and incorporate comments where appropriate.
Another potential policy/program to consider is an ADU affordability monitoring
program to ground truth your housing element ADU assumptions with reality
over the course of the projection period."

Page 885

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



City of Folsorn Planning Commission
Agerrda llern ll l

Housing Elernent Update
Page 3

Foufih, the development of these rnulti-generationaI units is anticipated to
be within the FRASP and will not be distributed tlrroughout the City. It is
inrperative in meeting the City's goals to affirmatively further fair housing that

the element identify sites to accommodate the very low or low income housing
need throughout the City.

And last, multi-generational units are designed to accommodate l-2
people which means that many of the units interrded to accommodate lower
income households would not be large enough to accommodate households with
more than 2 people, including families with children. As stated before, the City
should receive credit for this increase in overall housing but the units should be

only be credited toward moderate or above-moderate income housing.

As a result, the element must identify additional sites and strategies to
accommodate its share of the regional housing need for lower income households
pursuant to Government Code Section 65583 (c) l.

Thank you for your consideration of our comments and please do not
hesitate to reach out ifyou have any questions or we can provide any assistance to
the City in addressing its affordable housing needs.

Sincerely

C^4a'eil

Kendra Lewis, Executive Director

Sacramento Housing Alliance
Cathy Creswell, Board President

Sacramento Housing Alliance

Page 886

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 6

Compilation of Additional Written Comments on the Draft Housing Element

Page 887

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



From:Robert Holderness <RHolderness@ holdernesslaw.com>
Sent:Friday, June 25, 20215:51AM
To:Stephanie Henry <shenry@folsom.ca.us>; Desmond Parrington <dparrington@folsom.ca.us>

Cc:Scott Johnson <sjohnson @folsom.ca.us>
Subject:RE: zoning ccode update

CAUTION:This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Stephanie: I have a suggestion for Folsom's consideration, as follows:
t. That the proposed city policy re: "Surplus City-Owned Land" be expanded to

encompass "Surplus Land Owned by the City, the State, and the Federal

Government."
2. Reasoning is as follows: large swaths of land within the existing city limits of Folsom

[that are located along major thoroughfares] are owned by the state or the federal
government.

3. Much of that land is treated by those governments as "buffer" land. That is, they
are doing nothing with it and have no plans to do anything with it in the future.

4. Unfortunately for the interests of Folsom and its residents, much of that "buffe/'
land is located along major thoroughfares, namely, Folsom Blvd., Greenback Lane,

Folsom-Auburn Road, and Natoma Street. Moreover, in the case of the "buffe/'
lands along Folsom Blvd. they are located adJacent to light rail stations that were
built and opened circal0oi. ln other words, those "buffe/' lands are well situated
for land uses compatible with the major public investments in transportation
infrastructure that have been made by and with the City of Folsom over many, many
years. Reserving those lands for rock piles or weed patches is not among the uses

compatible with such major public sector investments in transportation
infrastructure. By the way, it should be noted that all of those lands were in private
ownership from the middle of the lgthcentury until the 1950s and 50s. Lastly, on
this point, God did not make the rock piles. The Natomas Company did and it never
remediated the land as it should have done under law. lnaction breeds opportunity.

5. ln the case of the "buffer" land along Natoma Street [on the campus of Folsom State
Prison], Gov. Newson issued an executive order back in early 2020 whereby he
designated, among other things, a portion thereof as available for "affordable
housing." Folsom should take that as evidence that the State of California is

prepared to revisit its policy of neglecting those so called buffer lands, so they can

be put to better use. In anticipation thereof, Folsom should prepare the way
through its "housing element."

Bob Holderness

Page 888

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Powering forward. Together.

OsMUU
SentVia E-NIail

February 9,TOZL
GA 21-006

Stephanie Traylor Henry
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
shenry@folsom.ca.us

Subiech Comments on City of Folsom Housing Element 2021-2029 Draft Plan

Dear Ms. Henry:

The Sacramento Municipal Utility District ISMUD) appreciates the opportunity to
provide comments on the City of Folsom's Housing Element 2027-2029 Draft Plan.
SMUD is the primary energy provider for the City of Folsom and the proposed Plan area.
SMUD's vision is to be the trusted partner with our customers and community,
providing innovative solutions to ensure enerry affordability and reliability, improve
the environment, reduce our region's carbon footprint, and enhance the vitality of our
community.

Based on our review of the City's proposed Plan policies and implementation measures,
SMUD offers comments and questions for the City's consideration. Where noted, SMUD

encourages the City to consider additional policies and implementation measures.

ADUs and Multi-Generational Housing (Policies H-1.5, 7..7,2.4,IP H-4)

SMUD supports and encourages the development of additional housing stock at all levels
within the Greater Sacramento region. In the instance of Accessory Dwelling Units [ADUs),
we encourage city staff to inform residents of current design regulations and energy
requirements related to ADU development prior to approval of designs and building
permits. As State law now requires electrical solar solutions to be installed on all new
residential buildings, including ADUs, we encourage the City to direct homebuilders to
SMUD resources, including the fteighborhood Solar Shares program as an option to meet
these new regulations. Secondly, adding either an ADU or Multi-Generational Housing
(MGH) unit to an existing parcel may trigger the need for installation of additional metering
equipment and panel upgrades depending on anticipated electrical loads. Please find the
attached SMUD ADU factsheet, which outlines considerations around electrical service
when designing an ADU.

SMUD HO I 6201 S Street i PO. Box 15830 Sacramento, CA 95852-0830 i 1.888.742.7683 r smud.orgPage 889

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Density & Electrical lnfrastructure Gonsiderations (Policies H-2.1,3,7,4,3,5.1, 6.4)

The addition of new affordable, inclusionary housing options for seniors, persons with
disabilities, and young professionals is crucial for the ongoing success of our region. SMUD
encourages new standards that revisit current density limits on small lots and allow
greater lot coverage while maintaining awareness of current energy requirements for
individual parcels. In the case of by-right housing it is critical that the City educate and
inform applicants of the design standards necessary to appropriately and safely integrate
into SMUDs existing electrical infrastructure prior to the approval of permits and
construction of new units. SMUD is also pleased to see renewed focus on enhanced
permitting and review times, knowing that thorough and expedient project reviews
contribute to our region's ongoing success. We encourage applicants to work with SMUD
early to identify site specific constraints and service options to avoid redesign costs and
project delays.

Electrifi cation (Policies H-4. 1,7 .1, 7 .3, lP H-8)

Using elecfficity to heatthe space, water and to cook produces the Iargest possible drop in
the carbon footprint of a building while reducing costs and providing cleaner air in the
building and the community. SMUD encourages dwelling unit rehabilitation efforts to
include electrification policies that provide safe, environmentally friendly options for low-
income households. The City should also consider adding electrification, for both new
construction and gas to electric conversions, as part of its overall efforts to promote enerry
efficienry and reduction of greenhouse gas emissions of new and existing housing. SMUD
offers a number of programs that can aid in building all-electric and our rebate programs
are increasingly shifting to support such conversions in existing buildings and in new
developmenf,

While SMUD encourages the use of innovative technologies like installation of solar on
multifamily housing, we also encourage consideration of SMUD's Neighborhood
SolarShares program, which supports our local economy through utility-scale solar
installations located in SMUD territory. Inclusion of this program as an option within
design standards for multifamily housing would benefit local builders and developers while
providing clean, environmentally friendly solar energy to the community.

As environmental leadership is a core value of SMUD, we look forward to collaborating
with you on this Housing Element update. We aim to be partners in the efficient and
sustainable delivery of the community enhancements outlined in the proposed Plan.

SMUD HQ I 6201 S Street I P.O. Box 15830 | Sacramento, CA 95852-0830 | 1.888.742,7683 | smud.org
Page 890

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Again, we appreciate the opporhrnityto provide input on the City of Folsom's Housing
Element 202I-2029 Draft Plan. SMUD would like to stay involved and is available to discuss
any ofthe above areas ofinterest and any other potential issues.

If you have any questions regarding these comments, please contact me at
famie.Cutlip@smud.org or (916)732-5308.

Sincerely,
Qarrr.z 9dr;r.
{amiecuttif,
Government Afhirs Representative III
Regional & Local GovernrnentAftirs
Sacramento Municipal Utility District

Cc

Pam fohns, Community Development Director
Scott A. fohnson, AICB Planning Manager

SMUDHO I 6201 SStreet I P.O.Box15830 I Sacramento,CA95852-0830 | 1.88S,742,7683 | smud.org
Page 891

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Accessory Dwelling Units and Electrical Service

lf you're planning to build an Accessory Dwelling Unit
(ADU), reach out to us at SMUD, your community-owned

not-for-profit electrical utility company, for a free

consultation. Whether you're converting a garage or

building a multi-level unit, each ADU has location and

design parameters that pose a unique set of challenges.

Working with SMUD early in the process can help you

understand service options and determine if adjacent

properties are affected. We can also help you avoid

redesign costs and projea delays.

To help plan your ADU project, we prepared the

following tips.

1. Do your homework first. Your application and

review process through the City of Sacramento

doesn't include bringing SMUD electric service to

the new unit. Make sure you understand what the

electric service requirements are and what your

design needs to include.

. Are there any existing overhead power lines that

may conflict with the new unit? See if there are

any lines directly over or adjacent to the footprint
(foundation area)of the building.

. What do you want to build? What is the footprint

of the proposed structure? Will the unit be

attached to your existing home, or detached?

How many stories will it have? Factors like these

determine SMUD's ability to provide electric

service to your,ADU.

Powering forward.
Together. @smuD

Page 892

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



. What type of side or rear yard setback are you

proposing for the new unit, per the City's zoning

code? lf there are setbacks along the back or side

yards that are less than 5 feet, running new

service lines to the unit may be challenging.

. Where willthe new electric panel be located?

A duplex meter installation is usually required for

most ADU situations. This meter panel may need

to be placed on the existing or new structure

depending on your situation.

2. Confirm the design prior to submitting your plan

to the City. There are design elements that may

require coordination between the City and SMUD to

identify the location of additional equipment and to

determine how to deliver electrical service from a
utility pole to your unit.

. Are there public or private trees in {ront of or on

your site? The location of the tree(s) could affect

where poles and service lines can be established.

. Will easements be required from adjacent

property owners? ln some cases, easements from

neighboring properties may be required. This

could add substantial time to your construction

schedule.

State law now requires electrical solar solutions to be

installed on any new residential building, including ADUs.

lf you plan to install rooftop solar panels, additional metering

equipment may be required. We offer a system estimator

tool to help you evaluate your rooftop solar options, and

we anticipate that by September 2020, we'll be offering

the SMUD Neighborhood Solar Shares program to our

customers, This program provides all the benefits of

solar, including environmental benefits and bill savings,

without the need to install a solar system on your roof.

For more information, please go to

smud.orglNeighborhoodSolarShares. To use the

system estimator tool, please sign into My Account.

3. Ask about additional benefits. Don't forget to ask

about incentives or rebates for energy efficiency

upgrades. You may be able to get money back on

energy-efficient appliances, insulation, windows,

toilets and landscaping. lf you're including a home

(primary dwelling unit) renovation, you may get

rebates for both structures. For more information

about rebates for your home, please go to

smud.orglRebates.

4. Plan at least six months in advance. Take the time

to do the necessary research and planning to lessen

your risks. The typical SMUD timeline from

application to building occupancy is four to six

months (SMUD application approval timelines are

separate from the City of Sacramento planning and

building permit approval timelines but can be

processed at the same time). However, the

necessary work for ADUs often exceed this timeline

due to unforeseen challenges.

For more information on the SMUD new construction

process, or to make an appointment to discuss your

ADU project, please go to smud.org/Construction.

OsMUD
Page 893

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SACRAMENTO METROPOTITAN

AIR QUALITY
MANACEMENT DISTRICT

February 2,2021

SENT VIA EMAIL

Ms. Stephanie Traylor Henry
Senior Planner/Housing Coordinator
City of Folsom Community Development Department
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

2021-2029 Houslng Element Update

Dear Ms. Traylor Henry:

Thank you for providing the Sac Metro Air District the opportunity to review the City of
Folsom's 2021-2029 Housing Element Update. The Sac Metro Air District is required by the
Califomia Health and Safety Code to represent the residents of Sacramento County in
influencing the decisions of other agencies whose actions may have an adverse impact on
air quality. ln that spirit, Sac Metro Air District staff offer the following recommendations to
strengthen the air quality and dimate supportive policies in the Housing Element Update.

Along with the City of Folsom, the Sac Metro Air Diskict participated in the 2020 Capital
Region Transportation Sec'tor Urban Heat lsland Mitigation Project (UHl Proiect), producing a
report on urban heat island effect impacts on the Sacramento region, and mitigation
strategies for these impacts. The urban heat island effect already presents a serious
challenge for our region. Urbanized areas in the City of Folsom are 9 degrees Fahrenheit
warmer than the surrounding areas, which results in decreased air quality and associated
public health impacts along with increased energy usage. The City of Folsom has a great
opportunity to incorporate UHI in the Housing Element Update by adding a policy to Goal H-
7, Residential Energy Conservation and Sustainable Development, recognizing UHI and
the need to reduce its impacts.

Policy H-7.X- The City shall require the incorpontion of urban heat island effect
rcduction measures in new and existing development.

Sac Metro Air District encourages the City of Folsom to consider measures from the UHI
Project to support Goal H-7 and the suggested new UHI policy. The following UHI measures
reduce energy use, provide local and regional cooling, and create an envlronment that
encourages walking and bicycling, thereby reducing vehicle miles traveled:

Require new and existing structures to utilize certified cool roofs. The 2019 Califomia
Bulldlno Energy Efficlencv Standards suggests an aged solar reflectance of at least
0.63 for low-sloped roofs and at least 0.20 for steepsloped roofs, and minimum

a

777 lzlh Street, 3rd Floor I Sacramento, CA 9581+1908
916/W4-48OA I 9G/874-4899 lax

vvrruvv.airquaIi$.orgPage 894

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ms. Traylor Henry
2021-2029 Housing Element Update

o

a

February 2,2021

thermal emittiance of 0.75. The Cool Roof Rating Council provides a product directorv
of roofs.
New outdoor pavement has an albedo of at least 0.25-0.5. [Supporfs GeneralPlan
Policy LU 9.1.8, Cool Paving.l
Landscaping plans incorporate new trees to shade new and existing pavements and
structures. A directory of airquality supportive trees is available in the Sacramento
Tree Foundation's Shady Elghty guide, and a more extensive tree list is available on
page 153 of the UHlTechnlcalAnalvsis Reoort. [Supports General Plan Policy NCR
1.1.8, Planting in New Development.l
For parking lots, if cool pavement or tree shading is not feasible, require solar
photovoltaic shade structures to reduce urban heat islands, generate renewable
energy, and provide shading to parked vehicles.

Please refer to page 252 of the UHI Technical Analvsis Report for a focused discussion on
the cooling impacts of these heat island strategies for the City of Folsom, and page 269 of
the same report for a dedicated analysis on the cooling impacts of rooftop versus parking lot
solar photovoltaic installations. Among other benefits, the study found that adopting cool
roofs and cool pavements can help the City of Folsom reduce air temperatures by up to I
degrees Fahrenheit, which can translate into significant health benefits and energy savings.
For solar photovoltaics, the study also found that cool roofs and rooftop solar are
complementary - not conflicting - strategies, and thus combining cool roofs and rooftop solar
can help to increase urban cooling and solar efficiency. However, solar photovoltaic
installations over parking lots provide greater cooling benefits overall compared to rooftop
solar. As solar technology improves in efficiency, the cooling benefits of both rooftop and
groundcover solar are projected to increase.

Additionally, Sac Metro Air District encourages the City of Folsom's rehabilitation efforts of
the existing housing stock undertaken to implement Goal H-4 include energy efficiency
upgrades, and when cost effective, conversion to electric appliances, space and water
heating devices.

Please contact me at khuss@airqualitv.orq or 91&8744881 if you have any questions
regarding these recommendations or would like to discuss them further.

Sincerely,

K"",^ ll'E
Karen Huss
Associate Air Quality Planner/Analyst

cc: Paul Philley, AICP, Sac Metro Air District Program Supervisor
Shelley Jiang, Sac Metro Air District Climate Change Coordinator
Scott Johnson, AICP, City of Folsom Community Development Department

Page 2of 2

Page 895

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1127t2021 Mail - Stephanie Henry - Outlook

Draft Housing Element

Jerry Young <young_ga@msn.com>
Fri ttlS/2021 11:59 AM

To: Stephanie Henry <shenry@folsom.ca.us>

Cc: Steve Krahn <skrahn@folsom.ca.us>

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments

unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Stephanie

I saw in tlre Telegraph today that you are the person to contact in
regards to the Draft Housing Elernettt and I have a couple of questions

1. ln policy H-1.4 states "housing is developed on sites identified in

the lower-income sites inventory" . Can we get a copy of that inventory
list or maps showing the location?

2, ln policy H-3,4 Surplus City-Owned Land: What does the City consider

to be surplus land and are there any maps showing the location of the
land? Are parcels that are or have been shown as open space considered

surplus? and can the City decide to remove land from open sPace to
provide for low income housing etc.?

3. lmplementation Program, H-5 & H-6: These sections appear to encourage

tlre construction of dwelling units through public education and

development fee reductions and/or waivers, and that the City shall

monitor the construction , sale, and/or rental of these units.

Does this mean that the City will rnanage and control the use or rent of
any Accessory Dwelling Unit to be built in a single family back yard?

And does the Subdivision Map Act provide a provision for the Sale of
this dwelling?

ln the City News there is mention of the Zoning Code Update. Would it be

possible to purchase or pick up a copy of the preliminary Zoning Code

Update.

Since tirne is short according to the published dates we would appreciate

your response as soon as possible.

Tha n ks

lerry Young. Resident

hltps://outlook.office365,com/mail/search/id/AAMkAGM3YTl2MiEwLTU0YjMtNGMxNiliYzU0LTk5NmlyNDdhzmYwMgBGAAAAAAB0pVHJw6WTSbaV ,. 111

Page 896

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Summary of Comments on Draft Housing Element Programs
City of Foleom Housing Element Update

Folsom High School Studente

As part of their architecture and civil engineering curriculum, students at Folsom High School took
the opportunity to look over the proposed Housing Element and were tasked with providing
feedback on all of the proposed programs. Where applicable they attempted to find similar
programs or policies in other cities around California. Their findings are attached.

Page 897

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



truv
ltoo

llrIEIqI

€F

ztl

qlql

'tsrFnq auoJul 8r.lt lo 9409 ut{t rnl Io t600 ol *09 ol|r u
'tuaffiiltY

'F
ril ot 'qElpolF!

,t{o 'D9rusad
qql lu!n

8l eql }3qt

9H,pt plro0 uou@G

'nn plq 4ur|.|{nurol il.arlllm luneap lo seurPlp.Fdr.un
F 8ltpNtiuoc €ltrnoq &tuBtilnu utplru.p tqer6 eqt Wr ed@ ol Ftp rFluyto.l n l||un ormpFd,hurfi{nu,Iltr!!p{i!lq

6t4plm3 pu3 fupl'lutgq ut lu.t UF uu lFnu fflr 
'l 

e6ua rqFurp {El{
40{l srrehulplf,oqD wqol llro

.a! lryqun 6uil.6p zt-a
5a!!rmp 4tu3rit0uur l€urtltun !uirri9 !lz{, ! :

alat

lr
li{ e$

,o ,(f. clo ,o, suqd ql ,o e l.qer rql q ls n l,.r'd& tlt &luru q $U l||'rn9

,0

da8
srcp liurr|lln iuterc I !.01 : l

uE{rn

3.lt|l€p

pcrl

Page 898

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



I!_

H7

t{6

H9

mutlgmdEtimd !ulcl lndlvldul hourln0 unlb l! d€tnilcty good ldls. $ 6mpmd lo othgr tllllt ADU! &lve
050,00G1t00,000 to build, whll€ lhe
ollndMdu.l nulll-glnidlond tult!6, lh.

rl!o m0lt

rtodrblr crlalr 00uld But lllh. nddt lot lwcr lngoma mal h wdld bo Bla! to impl.mnl multl-lmlly houln0, likr lw lncoma

to

tt

{t0

Rddng ilmndt tor
nur|b6 s6 dmlne

rllodrbla hourlng lr n@seryd! lhR rF l5l,,|.tE hdlvld!.b rE hond.rr ln lhe lbto otCrllfohl4 Th.n
{ch lhrt lhc, ileEn$a, In iho

Yrlddr
TheE oc75 d.!d

lnoil U8,200 to

T..m (HART)olFolem who Ecruit wlsnbm lo sdwcslr lnrEr$ ln thr rwlhuny.nd lftordabillty or houin!

Hil Ihd !E sma otli! mo6t al-rllk of oovertv. !o eho ollha mdd drdld b6 allodl.d loerrda snlor dtlz.nc lnd .tlordrbh houlno mlds odr.d lo*rrd! lhem-

H12 Qca wllh thl! toal. lt lr l0lrty dr€llhl fory8d. Geomlrdlna slnDly lhql we utdste the dsEiy bonur lfl s I Dirt ottha mal

nil d
hld

Itra

Page 899

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Ht5 lrDdld dlu^ hil FdrM Nldddtu hrr . Eru hl6h omdrbr dldh-

{t6

Hl7

HlE

Ht0

t6

tl'8t@!ldplrysm4orobit!cl!blp6opledru!glhgrm6nd!lly.ddlftlsgo8t,prcgmslllhrl9tharcp@P|rlnth!Ermfitocounty.ln'o:@
dHbffi 

'tdsnfi 
rdtrnlad.rtildffih.dlialab

llh thrs wil br lmton{nt ln thc lutuG lo lrdg pGDlr lhd rnd allord hou8lno, htlprr,lilu,lnvrdopldl&@nilmarmrmoil!tr9}@dhcrtlttrtc.ilp

Houslno ild Commnlty Dddopmanl OlCDl, lh! Prmuml Locd HouCng Aloortlon (PLHA)tund,6ions6d by HCO, Thc T@dl-Oricnlcd OlEhpnlnl OoD) Hiltlng PmgEn, $onsrcd by HCOI rnd

lhhk l! emdlnd. lh. Idt ro tm f .A' cedv Hdho IrMl6 Fund ll r. hs

A2t lll@m thc nunb.r ot .ro.datr untb. lls .h, di.I .'jfr th.l rultld.il lDd lr ddbid.d Ed rqd lr r lm ol raldrild dr*t h .ffiod& lhr al!/l ,ldaul lhE d hdrh6.

122 lhm lioh lh! loff.

H23

H2A

Ihr HoEiog Cordhloru 6umy PrgEm b uEd by lh! clly ot Fdron to $rk fu&rg hEultr lhr Cmmity Dmlopmul Elodr OEnl or dhr tndlng rm! lhty mry fnd. Thb pme r6n wii dafnnaly hlh

mullng ln tir qmt 6ndilon !f,d rsdHnfit Ti! progrm rrys lo lpcclly tpelrl nedl gmup! ach E pccoB rllh dbrbnle .nd homd.s prmnE, vltlch ndcr thb prcgrm helptl tor rnyone

pro{rm ltsll dsloplnt th! cur$t hourlm Endilmr odd nrlly hdD mafly tamllls tund durin! ttd6 D0ndmt

rohlon rumundlnd coda entuMmd h oondrl h Ih.l m.on. hsr lodo lhe!€ lolB or ds lh€ ourlllv olhDEt rnd cven nrhhbdrhood! wtll dc@a d0nill6nllv illhai6 6d6r rE nol lohEld.

Page 900

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



H25 rnd lbrth. CoilrE&rlo b6 nollffod. OwE[. lthlnk lt6 !.6rllv oood ld.r. and th! df lhdld cdtlnu. to omdde thGlrfinrnclallenkE lor !fflm.vEn whrn fu.dr mev nol be rvellrbb-

H26
ilrhouldbc,.trdthlrpfugr.mwould!olWlhalPrct,bm'@thw!thrrvg'rgoa'lordsbbnonlh'$.'1ncnlgiltlnser.mdtoltonlyt62,,ghldllrlflr'
Lhan FoLom'i rwf,!. rllbrdrbla modhlv rortudtcoll

H27

H28

EhulEloulrgocyrhlld,Fldolt,ltrd!€$.t2ultq26tilib.rbrlooarsrbilcalnr{!ddglsrtdrotrlfdalmfttFcCal!luadfrmorprd[h8uloiw,!ndlrllrtsr

ru$ l{pL hm to trlt lf rty. Or Uto o&d h.d thr dlnl l'E rnrydil hr Dd blt4io, Ard Dam mn torL ufio m mrl!rn!, dalir !.Dbrt{y d6t ini a w. thb dr-m ndlt mr.

H20

withln Folsom dlr lo .ftlcr @$r lo
conn.ction! tili mdor drkEholdeD.

Thlr
h6ita ltnlt|lr

.1 bn

ol

AcE, lnfln ar
). lt noy b! difirun

lh! LwJnM! Fao li E8!y (LIFE) p6!Bn TH! progdm sllm
lor Fol$m to lnphnal I ryrtam ol flr lcnrportdlor, hrl thq,rdlt

lwlnconq

H30 rhluorlh! qlty harlic newrto hmdr brenlno sdilon! and cofrDLlds {shldr thly src nort litcNy oDobb of hrndllnd.

{3t

rslly loeta md fnd srvl68 thay rc{drc.

fn.l.d?rMln=ltlldltd 2l ftlri!.6dw.utaSMdr.F6lmm'rtrdstndhddn![rubtloMddneSoEduiErlh.m.

.''32 brind dC odo b!& to lilr-

Page 901

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



112712021 Mail - Stephanie Henry - Outlook

Housing Element

LJ Laurent <ljlaurent@att.net>
Strn 1,r1012021 I l:4li Aful

To: Mike Kozlowski <mkozlowski@folsom.ca.us>; Sarah Aquino <saquino@folsom.ca.us>; Christa Freemantle

<cfreemantle@folsom.ca.us>; Rosario Rodriguez <rrodriguez@folsom.ca.us>; YK Chalamcherla

<ykchalamcherla @folsom.ca.us>; Kerri Howell < khowell@folsom'ca'us >

Cc: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom.ca.us>; Steven Wang <swang@folsom.ca.us>; Pam Johns <pjohns@folsom,ca,us>;

Stephanie Henry <slrenry@folsom.ca.us>; Rick Hillman <rhillman@folsom.ca,us>; Ken Cusano <kcusano@folsotn.ca.us>; Lauren

ono < lono@folsotr.ca,us> ; thehfra@gmail.com <thehfra@gmail'com >

CAUTIONt This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognlre

the sender and know the content is safe'

To: Folsom Mayori Vice Mayo[ council
City Clerk
cc/bcc
from: LJ Laurent
January L0,2021

Re: Cornments for HE "hearings for stakeholders/others"
ERRATA

Re: Housing Element uPdate

problems with access t0 Governing regulations in Ascent documents:
n tt B:lZluurw-"nsO,Ea*g o v / h pcVh-Ausulg e I e m e n t2 /CO N h o m e . p h p-

this link takes one to "HCD PAGE NOT FOUND."

DITTO this link
n$psyZ n gov/hpdlhpusing eIement2/Is-plJbkpartieipslisn*php-

Major Problems:
taik of ENGINEER CERTIFICATIONS Prior to increased construction and housing

densification,

Isn't RAW SEWAGE a concern? Waterworks Engineer Report 20L7
https: //www.folsom.ca.us/Eivicax/filebanklblobdload.asp-x&lgbid=.33203

Aren't residents sick of plastics Ipolyacrylamides] being added to city-treated
Drinking Water?
Aren't citizens concerned about 2,400 F degree Furnace being constructed
ADJACENT to federal forests, and single family homes?

CURRENT example Pending NOW'
Formal RePort to follow this email
fcemetery L I2021 PRA Resps IWlnterwest short letter]

Aren't city elected officials concerned about the abllity of 1,000 gallons of
stored Liquid Propane Gas being stored within 70 feet of Folsom Blvd',
rail tracks, HOMES, American River?

https:l/ouilook.office365.conVmail/deeplink?version=20210125001 04&popottlv2=1 1t3

Page 902

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



1t27t2021 Mail - Stephanie H€nry - Outlook

Aren't new council going to be told secret proposal processing for a
Conditional Use Permit -- to be rapidly/quietly granted by a group of
private citizens with NO LEGAL AUTHORITY?
HDC operations prove deception, failure to obey State Government Code
& Zoning laws. Doesn't this bother elected officials and licensed staff
PAID to USE THEIR LICENSE to protect us and enforce the laws?

How can any elected body of five consider a proper & Legal Housing
Element when the Folsom City Charter and Folsom Municipal Code have
been quietly altered to remove the Duties of a Law Enforcer holding a CA
Engineering License? Nothing this city has done during rapid expansion
has included a City Engineer Signature & Seal of Certification. I know for
sure because I have made dozens of Public Record Act Requests for the
City Engineer Approved/Sealed Zoning changes, Subdivision Actions,
densifications of land usages, invalid "arrangements", and of course, the
key to it all: SECRECY just like the current proposal to build TWO FIVE
HUNDRED LPropane Gas Tanks within INCHES of federal forest,
Yes, Folsom has staff considering, advancing, and paying for Letters from
IWI outside engineers for 2,400F degree furnace right above American
River, and close enough to destroy cars, controls, trains, along Folsom
Blvd. 1,000 gallons of liquid propane is a LOT MORE than what is shown
in this popular LPG propane tank explosion. Debris are missiles shooting
hundreds of feet away. Fires are constant danger to forest, rive4 homes,
streets, trailers, trains, and yes, human lives -- both ours and our First
Responders. FYI, nearest/only fire hydrant is more than 300 feet away
from this incendiary pair of potential Bombs. All that secrecy by city
staff, advance profits to Lakeside Cemetery historic and new owners.
RESEARCH REPORT on Crematorium will follow soon, with data from
Sacramento County records, State law references, and detailed analyses
of Folsom's secrecy and its multiple conflicting/bogus "commissions" and
city staff having innocent/ignorant citizens believing they [as "aesthetic"
suggestion giversl can grant Special Permits, Waivers, and disallowed
Land Usage
"privileges" to all comers. This happens because a true "City Engineer" is
an Independent Law Enforcement Officer -- who oversees the most
critical aspects of our lives, Rights, and Safety.

Propane Tank Explosion
'1,237,655 views ' Mar 1, 2014

figps : //www..yqutube. com /watch?v= Lr1 5 rPH EmeQ

Not one single PRA Requested "Certified" Public Document has been Signed &
Certified by Folsom "City Engineer", nor "Folsom City Surveyor." e.g. Rockcress
Subdivision Financing Agreement scheduled for "approval" January 2A, by council --
but LACKING all Seals/signatures of Licensed enforcers.

Staff with ZERO Engineering credentials/License have rnade huge decisions about
housing -- without respecting FOUR Independent Certified Engineers Reports about
LACK of ADEQUATE Raw Sewage Conveyance pipes. Along & over American River,
all four such studies have certified Folsom has NOT improved nor enlarged SSS
hydraulic capacity -- despite huge population growth, Folsom still has over
EIGHTY ONE Inches Diameter of SSS pipes competing to enter old 6" to 15" pipes

https://outlook,office36S.com/rnailldeeplink?version=202101 25001 .04&popoutv2= 1 2t3

Page 903

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



112712021 Mail - St€phanie Henty - Oullook

immediately adjacent to South Bank of American River. Sewage is backed up all
the way to Old Oak Avenue, In East Folsom, identical problems exist, despite the
FE3 SacSewer pipe.

Housing Survey makes it clear the majority of existing city residents are concerned
with maintaining their interests as private property owners.

Unfortunately the survey FAILED TO IDENTIFY Potential Housing Element
SITES available in South of 5O, FPA. This is a huge OMISSION which
undoubtedly wlll SKEW OUTCOMES'
Or will S50 remain water-guzzling $3/4 million housing? It looks that way now,
with dozens of earth movers lined up for more single family large houses, How HE

conscious is current S50 focus?
Folsom is operating de facto, as if there STILL are more than one city, more than
one planning cornmission, more than one set of Formal Standards.

INFRASTRUCTURE comment: Folsom has not had any Land Usage, Zoning, or
Permitted Uses prepared to us, with CERTIFICATION by City Engineer.

Even the January 20,2A2L Major Subdivision Map/Zoning request DOES NOT HAVE

Signatures and Seals of the Officlals who are required to APPROVE said
Certifications PRIOR to Presentation to city council.
In fact, Folsom law states not only City Engineer must formally seal/approve all
such legislative actions for land usage, but ALSO the "city attorney" must ALSO
CERTIFY these actions as complete, correct, properly estimated for Public
Infrastructure, proper Developrnent Agreement with Financial surety and Standard
Compliance for all infrastructure.

In this vein, Folsom residents were saddled with a $26 Million improvement of
White Rock Road -- because ex post facto -- this section of road improvement was
"labelled part of dead SE Connector project." $26 million is a huge gift to Mangini
LLC and other land owning interests.

https://outlook,office365.conr/mail/deeplink?version=2021 0125001 .04&popoutv2=1 3/3

Page 904

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



AttachmentT

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District Comment Letter on the
Draft Safety and Noise Element Update

Page 905

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN

ArR QUnLTTY
MANACEMENT DISTRICT

luly 2,202I

Stephanie Traylor Henry
Senior Planner

City of Folsom Community Development Department
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95530

Subject: Draft Safety and Noise Element Update (SAC2O0801!1051

Dear Stephanie Traylor Henry:

Thank you for providing the Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District (Sac Metro Air
District) the opportunity to review the City of Folsom's Draft Safety and Noise Element Update. The Sac

Metro Air District is required by the California Health and Safety Code to represent the residents of
Sacramento County in influencing the decisions of other agencies whose actions may have an adverse
impact on air quality. ln that spirit, Sac Metro Air District staff are pleased to provide the following
comments.

Extreme Heat
Sac Metro Air District commends the City for acknowledging the seriousness of extreme heat in new
Goal SN 7.L, and for including policies to address heat sensitive populations and infrastructure.
Specifically, Policy SN 7.L.2, Comgrehensive Cool City Strategy, describes measures the City may
implement to reduce heat related impacts which are supported by the 2020 Capital Region

Transportation Sector Urban Heat lsland Mitigation Project.l Sac Metro Air District staff looks forward to
working with the City to implement Policy SN 7.1.2.

Wlldfire Smoke Education
The addition of Policy SN 4.1.5, Wildfire Smoke Education, is criticalto help protect the public, especially
the most vulnerable, from health impacts resulting from exposure to smoke, lmplementation Program
SN-10, linked to this policy, indicates the City's police and fire agencies will be responsible for the
education effort in the 2026-2040 timeframe. Due to the increases in wildfire events and the severe
health effects that may result from exposure to smoke, the Sac Metro Air District encourages the City to
start this education effort as soon as possible. Sac Metro Air District provides an abundance of resources

on its Wildfire Smoke lnformation website,z including real time air quality data, fire and smoke maps,
health effects information, "what to do" collateral for residents, businesses and schools, social media
links, and websites to other agencies with expertise in wildfire and smoke. Additionally, the U.S. EPA

provides a Smoke Ready Toolbox for Wildfires website.3

1 Urban Heat lsland Mitigation ProJect website: httos://urbanheat-smaqmd.hub"arcsis.com^/
I Wildfire Smoke lnformation website: http://www.airqualiW.orqlAir-Qualitv-Health/Cllmate-Chame/Public-
OutreachlWildflre-Smoke-lnformatlon
3 EPA website; httosr/7www,eoa.sov/srnoke-readv-toolbox-wildfires

777 lzth Street, Ste.300 . Sacramento, CA 95814

Tel: 916-874-4800 . Toll Free: 800-88G9025

AirQuality.org

Page 906

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Safety and Nolse Element Update

Page 2

Asbestos
Sac Metro Air District recommends the City replace the word "mitigate" with "reduce" in Policy SN 2.1.3
regarding naturally occurring asbestos. As noted in the policy, state law requires certain steps be taken
to reduce exposure to asbestos in the soil. The term mitigate has a specific meaning associated with the
California Environmental Quality Act that may appear to allow more flexibility.

lmplementation Programs
Many of the implementation programs in Chapter 10 related to Extreme Heat (SN-l1, SN-12, etc.)
incorrectly reference policies related to Noise and should be updated to reference the correst policies.

Please contact me at khuss@airoualltv.org or 279-2O7-t131 if you have any questions regarding these
comments.

Sincerely,

K""r^ l1*/
Karen Huss

Associate Air Quality Planner/Analyst

cc: Paul Philley, AICP, CEQA and Land Use Program Supervisor
Shelley Jiang, Climate Change Coordinator

Page 907

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Attachment 8

350 Sacramento Comment Letter on the General Plan Environmental Checklist
and Addendum and Ascent Environmental [nc.'s Response Memorandum

Page 908

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



350
li,l( Irl1lr.l"|(.'

July 21,2021

Gity of Folsom Planning Commission
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 9563

Via Emailto Planning Commission Clerk
kmullet@folsom.ca.us

Dear Commissioners,

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE EIR ADDENDUM CHECKLIST: COMMENT

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the City's Environmental Checklist and
Addendum to the Folsom 2035 GeneralPlan ElR. Our comment focus on the City's CEQA
strategy and on Ascent Environmental's June 2021 Checklist, section 4.17, "Transportation". ln

sum, we believe:

. The City's proposed CEQA strategy is inappropriate

. The current project is in-fact subject to current CEQA VMT requirements

' That VMT impacts are now significant is "new information"

' The City's failure to adopt timely VMT thresholds confers no exemption from CEQA
requirements.

We detailthese concerns below:

CEQA STRATEGY IS INAPPROPRIATE

We understand the City intends to satisfy CEQA by characterizing the proposed updates to
the General Plan's (GP) Housing, Noise and Safety, and Land Use Elements, and
lmplementation section as an E|R-Addendum. Per 14 CCR 515164, EIR addenda are
appropriate tor,"ony minortechnicalchanges or additians"; or per $15162, if the project will
not "haye one or mare significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or negative
declaration", or "Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe
than shown in the previous ElR".

We suggest that these criteria do not apply to the present project, as discussed below. We
also note that the City's current CEQA checklist and associated public review are
anomalous, since neither are required for EIR addenda because of their presumed "minor"
character.

THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO VMT.REDUCTION REQUIREMENTS

The checklist asserts that the current project is not subject to 14 CCR 15064.3 requirements re

VMT threshotds of significance because per $15007, " ...amendmenfs lo the guidelines apply

350 SncnnNrruto, Suite 1 16 - BREATHE Bull"DlN6, 909 12th 51., Sacramento

P0 Box 16'167,sacramento, CA 95816 - www 3S0sacramento.org - info@3sosacramento.org

Page 909

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



350 Sacramenlo, July 21,2021
Folsom General Plan Update

Page 2

prospectively onlf'. This is incorrect because the quote, from g15007(b), is non-contextualand
misread. Section 15007 refers to environmental documents in current process, as stipulated in
515007 (c): the lead agency need not respond to regulatory changes put into effect after public
review but before approval of the environmental document. The current GP update is not a
"step" (as referenced subsection $15007(b)) in the GP's long-since completed CEQA process,
as the checklist seems to assert. lt is a new CEQA "project" , subject to current CEQA
requirments.

We note that future project-level ElRs could use the same logic to similarly, and incorrectly,
claim they are "steps" in the GP's CEQA process and thus exempt from VMT requirements
pursuant to $15007.

ln any case, the responsibility of lead agencies to implement regulatory updates timely is
clearly specified in 15007(d): "Public agencies shall comply with new requirements in
amendments to the Guidelines beginnlng with ... The 120th day after the effective date of
the Guideline

THAT VMT IMPACTS ARE SIGNIFICANT IS "NEW INFORMATION"

The checklist asserts lhat,"replacement of lhe IOS standard with VMT does not constitute new
information under CEQA', and is thus not subject to further environmental review. We disagree.
Under currenl CEQA guidelines, which apply to this project as explained above, VMT exceeding
the 15 percent reduction threshold was not, but is now, defined to be a significant impact, a
substantial increase in severity underlhe law. Per Guidelines $15162, subsections (aX1)-(3)
such "increase of severity" requires new analysis. We note that the GP projects a 46 percent
increase of VMT in the City, further emphasizing the need for review under current standards.

FAILURE TO ADOPT TIMELY VMT THRESHOLDS CONFERS NO EXEMPTION

The Checklist re-states the GP's references to establishing VMT thresholds, but notes, "Folsom
has not developed VMT thresholds". Whatever the intent of this observation, the City's failure to
adopt timely VMT thresholds confer no legal exemption under , and does not address the
obligations to address VMT as stated above. Absent City thresholds, SMAQMD's June 2020,
Greenhouse Gas Thresholds For Sacramento County apply, including a 15 percent reduction in
VMT induced by new residentialdevelopments.

Thank you for the opportunity to participate in the City's process. Please let us know if we can
answer any questions or assist in any other way.

Sincerely,

Oscar Balaguer, Co-Chair
350 Sacramento CAP Team

Cc: Stephanie Henry, Senior Planner, shenry@folsom.ca.us

Page 910

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Memo
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300

Sacramento, CA 95814

916.444.7301

ASCENT

Dote: )uly 27,2021

To: Stephanie Henry, City of Folsom

From: Pat Angell and Marianne Lowenthal, Ascent Environmental

Subject: Housing Element Update and Related Actions Environmental Checklist and Addendum -
Vehicle Miles Traveled Analysis

We have reviewed the 350 Sacramento )uly 21,2021 letter regarding the Housing Element Update and

Related Actions Environmental Checklist and Addendum regarding the transportation analysis related to
vehicle miles traveled (VMT). The comments in this letter appear to confuse the requirements of
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for subsequent review of
changes to the General Plan associated with the proposed updates to the Housing Element and Safety and
Noise Element. The environmentaleffects of these elements and the overallGeneral Plan were previously
evaluated in the General Plan EIR (State Clearinghouse No. 2017082054).

Section 15162 of the State CEQA Guidelines describes the conditions under which a subsequent
environmental impact report (ElR) would be prepared involving a previously approved project. ln summary,
when an EIR has been certified for a pro1ect (e.9., General Plan), no subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that
project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in light of the whole record,
one or more of the following:

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous
EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the
severity of previously identified significant effects;

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken
which will require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects;
or

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known with
the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete, shows any of
the following:

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR;

Page 911

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Addendum Memo
)uly 27,2021

Page 2

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the
previous EIR;

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be
feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project but the
project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measures or alternatives;or

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.

Under State CEQA Guidelines Section 15164, an addendum to an EIR is appropriate where a previously

certified EIR has been prepared and some changes or revisions to the project are proposed, or the
circumstances surrounding the project have changed, but none of the changes or revisions would result in

significant new or substantially more severe environmental impacts, consistent with CEQA Section 21166

and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162,15163,15164, and 15168. The Housing Element Update and

Related Actions Environmental Checklist and Addendum (Addendum) provides technical analysis in

compliance with these CEQA requirements. Adoption of these element updates would not constitute a

new project under CEQA.

While VMT requirements of CEQA were not in effect at the time of the preparation of the General Plan ElR,

the General Plan EIR did disclose anticipated changes in VMT from buildout of the General Plan.

Specifically General Plan EIR TablelT-14 identifies that city-wide total VMT would increase from 2,001,884

miles under existing conditions to 2,915,651mi|es at buildout in 2035 (45.6 percent increase). The

transportation analysis in the Addendum (pages 4-32 through 4-34) evaluates whether the updates to the
Housing Element and Safety and Noise Element would result in a substantial increase in VMT at buildout
under the General Plan (2,915,651 miles). The proposed updates to the Housing Element and Safety and

Noise Element would not include land use changes through rezoning or entitle development that would
create changes in land use conditions resulting in a substantial increase in projected city-wide total VMT at

buildout.

The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow to allow residential development as a

permitted use in the regional commercial land use designation (RCC) and commercial/ central business

district (C-2) zoning rather than under a conditional use permit (this site shown in Addendum Figure 2-2).

The potential inclusion of residential development in combination with commercial uses could provide

VMT benefits on this site through the reduction of vehicle trip lengths between residential and retailuses.

The following minor text edits are recommended to the Addendum to ctarify the VMT analysis.

Page 4-32, the following text changes are made to the third paragraph:

As provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15007, "amendments to the guidelines apply prospectively

only," and CEQA documents must meet the "content requirements in effect when the document
was set out for public review" and "shall not need to be revised to conform to any new content
requirements in guideline amendments taking effect before the document is finally approved."
(CEQA Guidelines, Section 15007(c)). An assessment of the change in VMT under existing and 2035

@Page 912

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Addendum Memo
July 27,2021

Page 3

conditions was disclosed as part of the General Plan ElR. This assessment determined that
implementation of the General Plan would result in a net increase in total VMT of approximately
45.6 percent as compared to existing conditions (from 2,001.884 miles to 2,915.651 miles - General
Plan Draft EIR Table 17-14. However, a VMT impact analysis consistent with the requirements of
PRC Section 21099, and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3 was not conducted because it was

not required under CEQA at the time; and thus, no significance conclusion related to VMT was

provided in the General Plan ElR.

Page 4-33, the following text changes are made at the top of the page:

...time. Therefore, the evaluation provided below does not constitute "new information" as defined

in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162. The anahrsis provided below does consider whether the
project could result in a substantial increase in severity of city-wide total VMT anticipated under the
General Plan at buildout (2.915,651 miles).

Page 4-34, the following text changes are made to the third paragraph:

The proposed updates to the Housing Element and SafeV and Noise Element would not include

land use changes throuqh rezonino or entitle develooment that would create chanoes in land use

conditions resulting in a substantial increase in projected cit)t-wide total VMT at buildout identified
in the General Plan ElR. The project would amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to allow
residential development as a permitted use in the regional commercial land use designation (RCC)

and commercial/ central business district (C-2) zoning, rather than under a conditional use permit
(see Figure 2-2). No substantial changes to the type or intensity of development at this site would
occur beyond what was addressed in the General Plan EIR that would substantially alter city-wide
VMT anticipated under the General Plan at buildout (2.915.651 miles). The potential inclusion of
residential development in combination with commercial uses could provide VMT benefits on this
site through the reduction of vehicle trip lengths between residential and retail uses. Development
would be consistent with regulations pertaining to transportation, and impacts would be of similar

type and severity as what could occur under the current zoning district and land use designation.

ASCENT

Page 913

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 914

08/24/2021 Item No.23.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

A

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council discuss City Manager compensation and
make appropriate salary adjustment following a strong and positive performance evaluation.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City Manager was appointed to her position effective July 16, 2018. The City Manager's
contract provides for an annual evaluation of the City Manager's performance.

The City Council met in Closed Sessions on June 22, 2021 , July 1 3, 2021 , and July 27 , 202I
to discuss assessment criteria and evaluate the City Manager's performance over the past year.
Following a favorable evaluation, this item is agendized in open session for the Council to
discuss appropriate compensation adjustment for the City Manager.

POLICY / RULE

The City Manager is appointed by the City Council pursuant to Section 3.01 of the City
Charter. The salary of the City Manager is determined by the City Council commensurate with
the responsibility of the position. Section 3.01(D) of the City Charter.

ANALYSIS

The City Council determined that the City Manager had met the Council's expectations by
performing her duties at a high level over the past year. The City Manager's compensation is
one of the lowest amongst City Managers in the Sacramento region. The City Attorney has

1

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT Resolution No. 10684 - A Resolution of the City Council
Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Amendment to the
Employment Agreement for the City Manager

FROM: City Attorney's Office

Page 915

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



prepared an amendment to the employment agreement to reflect appropriate adjustment to the
City Manager's salary for Council review and consideration.

The attached Resolution and amendment to City Manager's employment agreement provide
for a 5%o salary adjustment to $263,681.25 per year. All other terms in the agreement
pertaining to employment and benefits remain the same. This matter appears in open session
in order for the City Council to authorize the Mayor to execute an amendment to the
employment agreement for the City Manager.

The adoption of this Resolution complies with the regulations of the California Public
Employees' Retirement System and SB 1436 inthat the legislative body (i.e., the City Council)
shall receive oral report on the changes in salaries, salary schedules or compensation paid in
the form of fringe benefits of a oolocal agency executive", as defined in Government Code
Section 3 5 1 1 . I (d). The only 'olocal agency executive" covered by this Resolution is the City
Manager, and the salary schedule for the City Manager, as approved by the City Council in
open session, is $263,681.25 per year as shown in Attachment l. The City Manager's deferred
compensation and all fringe benefits remain the same, and as reported orally in open session,
are shown in Attachment2.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Funding for the City Manager's salary and benefits were included in the Fiscal Year 2021-
2022budget in the General Fund (Fund 010). The increase will be absorbed in the General
Fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the Califomia
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10684 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager

2. Current Employment Agreement for the City Manager, as previously amended

Respectfully submitted,

2

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Page 916

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Attachment 1.

Resolution No. 10684 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing
the Mayor to Execute an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for

the City Manager

Page 917

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



RESOLUTION NO. 10684

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

FOR THE CITY MANAGER

WHEREAS' the City Council is required by the Folsom City Charter to appoint a City
Manager through the mechanism of an employment agreement to serve as the Chief Executive
Officer of the City; and

WHEREAS' the City Council approved an Employment Agreement for the City
Manager ("Agreemenl") at its regular meeting on May 22,2018; and

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Agreement calls for annual performance evaluation of the
City Manager; and

WHEREAS, the City Council met in closed session as authorized by the Brown Act on
June 22,2021, July 13, 2021, and July 27,2021 to discuss assessment criteria and conduct
performance evaluation of the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, following a positive performance evaluation, the City Council desires to
adjust the City Manager's compensation; and

WHEREAS, the City Attorney has prepared an amendment to the City Manager's
Employment Agreement, rttached hereto as Attachment 1, addressing only the updated salary

terms without changing any other provisions of the Agreement.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement for
the City Manager as shown in Attachment I attached to this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this24h day of August,2}2l by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10684
Page I of2

Page 918

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



ATTACHMENT 1

TO
RESOLUTION NO. 10684

AMENDMENT NO.3 TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

FOR THE CITY MANAGER

This Amendment No. 3 to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager (refened to
herein as the "Agreement"), is made and entered into this _ day of August, 2021, as provided
for in Section 17 of the Agreement and for all purposes, including calculation of pay and
benefits, is effective as of July I,2021.

Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby modified to reflect Employee's base salary to be

$263,681.25 peryear.

Except as amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement and any previously
approved amendments thereto not inconsistent with this Amendment shall remain in full force
and effect.

Approved and Authorized:
Michael D. Kozlowski, Mayor
For the City of Folsom - Employer

Accepted and Agreed to:
Elaine Andersen
Employee - City Manager

Approved as to Form:
Steven Wang
City Attorney

Attest:
Christa Freemantle
City Clerk

Resolution No. 10684

Page2 of2

Page 919

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Attachment 2.

Current Employment Agreement for the City Manager, as previously
amended

Page 920

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



CITY OF FOLSOM

OMPI,OYMB,NT AGRNEMENT
FOR THE

CITY MANAGER

Tllls AGITEEMENT, the effbctive clate of which shall be the{lfl day of May,2018, is

by and between the City of Folsom, State of California, a mrnicipal corporation, hereinallter

referred to as "Entployer," and Elaine Andersen, hereinafter called o'Employee."

RACITALS

WHERAAS, Section 3.01 of the F'olsorn City Charter provides that the City Council
sliall appoint a City Manager for an indellnite ternr through the rnechanism of an Employment
Agreement to serve at the pleasure of the City Cloturcil, zurd the City Council r,vishes to retain

Employee in tl:re position of City Manager; and

WIIEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the l;'olsom City Charter ancl Chapter 2.08 of
the Folsom Municipal Code, tlie City Council has determined that Employee shall be the City
Manager of the City of f'olsom; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council tr: establish terms and conditions of
employmenr; establish conrpensation and certain berrefits; provide a procedure to set goals ancl

objectives to be met and the measurement thereof; provide for a review and evaluation of
performance; provide for tennination, if necessal'y; ancl provide fbr other subjects related to the

status of)Employee within this tsmployment Agreement; and

WIIEREAS, the City Cowrcil has determinecl the salary ancl benelits lbr this position as

outlined in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by ref'erence; and

WHERtrAS, it is the desire of the City Council to secure and retain the services of
Hmployee and to provide inclucement filr her to remain in such etnployment atrd to make

possible full work productivity by assuring Ernployee's mi)tale ancl peace of mind with respect to

future security; ancl

WHEROAS, Employee desires to accept c.mploymsnt with the C'ity of l'iolsom in the

position specifi ed above.

NOW' THERBFOI{E, irr consicleration of the mulual covenants herein contained, the

pafiies hereto agree as lbllows:

SectionJ. Dutiqs

City Council heleby agrees to employ Employee as City Manager o{"Ernployel to

perlbrm such legally permissible arrclpmpcr duties and lirnclions as prescribed by the Murricipal
Code ancl/or as the City Council may lawlirlly assign. limployee shall cotnmence her dttties on

July 16,2018, and salary and all accruals provided hereill shall begin rvith conrmencement ol'her
cluties.

-1
Page 921

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Section 2. Termination.l{esignation and Severancc Pnv

A. I'he City Corurcil shall have the riglit to terminate the services of Employee at any

time, subject to tle provisions of the City Clrartcr, Chapter 2.08 of the Folsom lrr{unicipal Code,

and this Agreement. llmployee may resign at any tirne Iiorn her:position with Ernpltlyer sub.iect

to providing sixty (60) days advance written notice to lirnployer, unless the parties hereto

otherwise agree, in writing. to a dif'fbrent notice period.

B. In the event llmployee resigns or is terminated by the City Council, Elnployer

agress to pay Ernployee any accrued and unpaid salary nnd the caslt value ofany accrued annual

leave or administlative leave, all subject to federal and state withholding requirements, Such

amount shall be paid within thirty (30) days of resignation or termination.

Cl. In the event Employee is termirrated by the City Council, Ernployer agrees to pay

Employee a lump sun cash severance payment as set forth on Exhibit n'A," attached hereto. 'l'he

severance payment shall be the equirralent of the cash value of the monthly salary and benefits

provided to the Hmployee with no accrual of annual, vacation, sick or administrative leave

during that time period. Employer agrees to rnake this payment, less withholdirigs, within thirty
(30) days of termination. If Employee is terminated fbr reasons of criminal misconduct whiclt
would amount to a misdemeanor or higher offense under the Penal Codc, acts constituting moral

turpitude, conflicts of interest or incompatibility of oflfice occuruing in the course of employment,

whether charges are filed or not, Employer shall have no obligation to make any payments to

Employee under this sectjon. If Employee is terminated as a result of a conviction of an otTense

amognting to a misdemeanor or higher under the Penal Code, or fbr committing acts constitriting

moral turpitude, conllicts of interest or incompatibility of offioe occuming outside the course of
her employment, Employer shall have no obligation to make any payments to Employee under

this section.

D. In the event Employee is convicted of a crime that involves abuse of her position

or office as defliled in Government Code section 53243.4, Employee must llull.l'reimburse the

Employer for specified funds pursuailt to G<lvernment Code section 53243, et seq., as set forth
below:

1. If Employee is placed on paid adnrinistrativs leave pencling an

investigation by the City ol. any potential abuse ol her position, tsrnployee shall be rerl.tired to

firlly reimburse the City the cost of the paid adrninistrative lcave il she is convioted of a crime

involving an nbuse ol'her position.

2. N<ltwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, if Employee has

Lreen plovided legal crirninal def'ense counsel regarding a cirzrrge involving the abuse of her

position, llmployee must lully reimburse the City fbr the cost olf that counsel if B:trployee is

convictecl of a crime involving an abuse of her position.

3, Notr,vithstanding any other plovision.s of' this Agrecment, ii' this

:\greernent is tcrminated, any cash settlement related to the tsrmination that Hmployee may

receive l'rorn the Lr,mployer shall be fully reimbursed il' lin"rployee is convicted of a crime

involving an abuse of her position.

2

Page 922

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Section 3. Compensatiorl

A. Employee's base salary on the ef{'ective date of this Agreernent shall be payatrle

in installments at tho same time as other employees of Employer are paid in the amount set ibrth
in Exhibit A. Employee's salary is reflective of the salary fbr similar positions in a comparable

employment market, based upon a salary swvey and takes into account the special expertise,

experience and job duties of Employee.

B. The City Couricil shall review Employee's performance annually, and shall
deteunine compensation based upon Employee's perf<rt'mance. Salary determinations shall be

made aller the anrual budget adoption. 1'he City Council shall have no right to decrease the

salary provided to Employee by more than five (5) percent per year? unless voluntarily agreecl to
by Employee.

Section 4. Exnen$e-Allowance

A, Employer's duties reqnire that F)nployee incur expenses that may not be eligible

for reimbursement by the City, but which are nonetheless incumed by Employee in the course of
the perfbrmance of those olificial duties and/or functions. Accordingly, to encourage Employee

to participate, attend or contribute to events, activities or organizations that enhance and promote

the irnage and interests of the City, the City Council hereby provides to Employee an expense

allowance in the fixed amount per month as set fbrth on Exhibit A as part of Employee's total
compensation package.

B. The expense all<lwance is not intended to prevent or prohibit Employee from
seeking reimbursemenl fbr expenses that a.re eligible for reimbursement pursuant to state law
and/or City policy, such as personal lravel,lodging or meal expenses incurred while on official
business.

C. The expense allowance shall be trcated as income and sliall be subject to all

applicable f'ederal and state taxation requirements. I'he expense allowance is nclt contingent on

tlie proof of actual expenses incurred by Ernployee, and Employee shall not be required by the

City to rnaintain any record of non*reimbursable expellses,

Section 5. Auto Allorvance

Empft:yer's duties require that limployee irave transporlation readily available lbr her

unrestricted use during her eilployment rvith limployer, and, to the encl of assuring that

Iimployee has a vehicle available, the City Manager shall be granted an automobile allowance as

set lorth on Exhibit A, pa5'able in monthly instalhnents in the regular payroll process.

Section 6. Performance Svaluation

'I'he City Courcil and Hrnployee sirall meet at least once annually to mutually sstablish
goals ancl perfbrmance obiectives desirecl by the City Courcil to be accomplished during the next
year.

-.1 -

Page 923

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



SectiorlT. Adrninistrative Leave

A. Administrative leave shall be commensurate with required .iob commitments
beyond normal r,vork hours, such as attendance at meetings o['the City Council aud various
boards and commissions. It is recognized that Enrployee has significarit job requirements and

commitments beyond normal work and Emlrloyee shrill be creclited r,vith administrative leave

annually in the amount provicled in Exhibit A tcl this Agrccrnent. Administrative lezrve shall be

credited to Employee on the first day ol'each calendar year in the lhll amount specified in
Exhibit A.

B. Adnrinistrative leave may be used for leave purposes only and has no cash value,

except in the event of termination, Adrninistrative leave shall be capped at 80 horu's and must be

used during the $alendar year. Unused hours shall not roll over to subsequent years.

C. In the event of termination, except termination lbr cause, Employee shall be paid

Itrr any unused Administrative Leave on an hour fi:r hour basis.

Section 8. Annual and Sick Leave

Employee shall accrue annual and sick leave as follows:

A. Employee shall accrue, and have credited annual leave at the rate set forth in
Exhibit A attached to this Agreement, Annual leave sliall be comprised of sick leave, personal

leave and vacation.

B. T'here is an annual leave cap of 320 hours. Employee may accrue the urmsed

portion of any eamed annual leave up to 320 hours of annual leave. If Employee reaches an

Annual Leave balance of 320 hours, Annual Leave will cease to accrue and Employee will begin

accrning Sick Leave until the Annual l,eave ba]ance falls below 320 hours. When Employee is

accruing Sick Leave, it shall accrue at the same rate as Annual Leave (24 hours per month). Sick

Leave would continue to accrue thereafter at the rate of 24 hours per motrth until and unless the

Annual l,eave bank balance is below 320 hor.rrs,

C. Sick leave may only be used by fimployee {br purposes enumerated in the City
Personnel Rules. Accrued sick leave cannot be caslled ot{ and has no cash value, '.lhere is no

maximum on the number of hours of sick leave Employee may accrue. Consistent with PEII"S

law, sick leave may be converted to service credit fur purposes of retirement.

D, A maximum of 40 hours ollaccrued Annual Leave is eligible to be cashed outper
liscal year, except upon termination of employmotrt or rctireinent l'rom the Clity of !olsonr.

E. If llmployee participates iir voluntary contributiotts to a 40lA plan with annual

leave, nothing in this section is intended to affect sucir coutributions provided the contributions
are at n0 cost to the City.

-4-
Page 924

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Section 9. .0thef Benefits

A. Employee shall be entitlcd to rcceive the benefits deiineated belor,v in the amounts

specified in Exhibit A attached to this Agreement. The benefits provided shall be with plans arrd

as provided to other employees in the City. Benefits provicled include:

Health, f)ental and Vision Insurance (payment of premiums)
Life Insurance (payment of premiums)
Short and long-term disability insurance (payment of prcmiums)
Deferred Compensation
Workers' Compensation coverage for on-the-job injuries or illnesses

B. Employer intends to provide Ernployee with bcnefits at least equivalent to those

benefits available to other City employees. To the extent other benefits are gtanted to City
ernployees which ale not included in this Agreement, the City Council shall consider whether to
amend this Agrecment to provide such benefits to Employee,

C. Additional and other benefits may be provided to Employee, at the discretion of
the City Council, and shall be set forth in Exhibit A'

D. Einployer reserves its right tn make char:ges {ioni time to time in the benetits

offered and the cost of such benefits to active or retired employees, both bel.ore and alter
retirement.

Ssction 10. Retirqmcnt

Employer agrees to make einploycr contributions to the Calitornia Public Employees

Retirement System (PERS) for the 2.7Yo at 55 PERS plan on behalliof Employee. Employee

shall have the employee porlion of the PEttS contribution rcgularly deducted f}om her salary by
the City and tbrrvarded to PEI{S, which acoourlt shall accrue to the benefit of Employee.

Employce's retirement shall be calculated based on her highest average annual compensation

during her last consecutive l2-month period ofiemployment with the Ernployer. Enrployee shall

pay 100% of the Employee contribution to the PERS Retircment benefit. If Employer niodifies

the rptirement plan provided to other current non-safety employees- then Employee's plan shall

conform to the rnodified plan.

Section t.1. 0fficial Travel and Pro

Ilmployer shall pay the reasonable travel zurd subsistence, registration and incidental

expenses of Ernployee incurred fbr of licial travel, meetings, and evcnts, and Employer shall pay

for the reasonable expenses related to the profbssional growth and clevelopmeilt, aud/or

pro{bssional certifi cation of Employee,

Section 12. Dueq-and Subscriptions

Hmployer agrees to pay for the reasonable prollessional dues and subscriptions ol'

tirnployee necessary fbr lier continuatio:r and participation in national. regional, state and local

sssociations and organizalir:ns neor:ssary and desirable fbr her continuecl prollessional growth and

knowledge enhancement, :mcl lbr the bcnelit o1'Htnployer'

-5-

I
2
IJ

4
5

Page 925

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Section 13. Team lluildins and Ilxecutive Team l)cvelopmcnt

The City Council and lirnployee acknowledge the impo(ance of team building and

executive team developlnent and the City Council supporls reasonable programs and activities,
as determined by the City Manager, to achieve a cohesive and perfbrmance-oriented
management team.

Sectio,n 14.- Ilefense and lndemnification

To the extent required by state law, Employer shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify
Employee against any tofi, professional liability claim or demarrd or other legal action, whether
gr<lundless or otherrvise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance

of Employee's duties for the position specified in this Agreement. Employer may, in its sole

discretion, compronrise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or
judgment rendered thereon when, in the iudgment of Employer such is the most advisable course

of action, but in any evento will de:lbnd and indemnify Employee. This provision shall survive
any termination or resignation of the Employee or expiration of this Agreetnent. This paragraph

is not intended to provide any rights in excess o1 those rights provided by state law,

Section 15. Notices

A. Notices pul'suant to this Agreement shall be given by first class mail addressed as

follows:

I, EMPI-OYER: City Council
City o1'Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, Cali{brnia 95630

Any Notice to the City Council siiall include a copy to the City 411nt tey at the same address.

2. EMPLOYEE; Elaine Andersen

Folsonr, Califtrlnia 95630

B, Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally

served in the saure mamer as is applicable to civil judicial practice.

Cl. Notice shall be dcernecl given as of the date of personal service or as r:f the clate ol
deposit of sur:h written notice in the {J.S. Postal Senioe.

Section 16. Relationshin rvith City ;\ttorncl

Notwithstanding the power of'the City lr,'lanager to appoint all employees ol the City,
inclr,rding tire City Attorney. Employee hereby acknowledges that pursuant to the Rules of
Prol'essiorral Cloncluct ol' the State llar of Calilbrnia, the City Attornc),'s client is the City.
liimployee {urther acknowledges that the City Attorney is rceluired to advise the City Council if
the City Attorney believes that the City lvlanagor has acted, u: intencls to act irt a rnanner r.vhich is

-6-
Page 926

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



likely to result in damage, injury or liability to the City, or has refused to act to prevent such
damage, injury or liability. Employee shall take no action to prohibit the City Attorney from
{ullilling snclr responsibi lities.

Section 17. General Provision

A. 'Ihe text hereof shall constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and shall
supersede any and all prior agreements and amendments between the parties. No subsequent
alteration, amendment, change or addition to this Agreement shall be binding upon the pzuties

unless reduced to writing and signed by a representativc of the City Council and the Employee.

B. 'lhis Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit ol'the heirs at law and

executors of Employee.

C. If any provision or any portion of the Agreement is held to be unconstitutional,
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affectecl and shall remain
in full lbrce and effect.

D. The Agreement shall become effective immediately upon the execution by both
parties.

SIGNATURO PAGE IMMIIDIATALY TOLLOWS

7-
Page 927

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



IN WITNESS WHEROOF, the Mayor oi the City of Folsom, Cnlifornia. pursuant to

authority gralted to him by the City Charter ancl Folsonr Mruricipal Code, hereby signs this
Agreement on behalf of the City of Folsom as Employer, ancl Elaine Andersen, as Employee,
hereby signs this Agreement, both parties agreeing to the terms and provisions set fbrth herein.

APPROVED AND AUTHORIZED I

Date;
of the City of Folsom

For the of Folsom - Employer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:

Date: 5 7) tfu;-fi*\t

A.TTEST:

API'IIOVtrD AS TO FORM:

Elaine Andersen
Hmployee * City Manager

Christa
City Clerk

Attorney

5 b

ang

I
Page 928

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



EXHIBIT U'A"

CITY MANAGER
TOTAL COMPENSATION

$245,000.00 annuallyIlase Salary:

Benefits:

PERS: 2.7o/o at 55. Employee shall pay her PERS employee contribution,

f)efbrred Comp: 457 plan. Choice o:13 carriers; City pays7.5o/o ol Employee's
salary per month to the plan of Employee's choice with no
rnatching contribution required of Employee.

Auto Allowance:

Expense Allowance

-fech Allowance:

$500 per month.

$200 per month.

$ 100 prlr nronth.

Administrative Leave:80 hours per year.

Administrative leave shall be creclited in.lanuary, Any
unexpended hours shall not "roll over" to the following year and
shall have no casli value upon separation.

Annual [,eave: 24 hours per month.

ilnrployee shall use Annual Leave as follows:

A. Employee may accrue the unused porlion ofauy earned annual leave up to a
maximum ol'320 hours; Employee may not accrue more than 320 hours ol
Annual Leave. If Employee reaches an Annual Leave balance of 32A hours,
Arurual l,eave will cease to a<;clue and employee r.vill begin accruing Sick
l,eave until the Annual Leave balance falls belor.v 320 hours.

R. A maximum of 40 hours of accrued Annual l.eave is eligible to be cashed out
per fiscal year, except upon termination of ernployment or lctirernent {rom the
City of Folsom,

C. il'Employee parlicipates in voluntary contributior:s to a 401A plan (il'
zrvailable) with annual leave, nothing in this section is intended to atTect suoh

contributions provided the contributions are at no cost to the City.

Sick Leave:

A. limtrlloyee shall not accrue Sick Leavc unlcss employee's Annual l,eave

-9-
Page 929

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



balance is in excess of320 hours.

B. When Ernployee is accruing Sick Leave, it shall accrue at the same rate as

Annual Leave (?4) hours per mr:nth). As an example, should Employee have
an Annual Leave bank of 3 1 0 hours and aocrue 24 hours ofleave the
tollowing month, 10 hours would acclue as Annual Leave and i4 would
accrlre as Sick Leave. Sick l,eave would continuc to accrue thereafter at thc
rate o!'24 hours per month until and unless the Annual Leave bank balance is
below 320 hours,

Cl, Sick leave may be r"rsed by Employee for illness or injury as set fbrlh in City
Persomel l{ules,

D, Per the amendment of City's contract with PERS to pennit sick leave to be

converted to service credit for purposes of retirement, Employee may
participate in the program.

E. Accrued sick leave shall not be cashed out and shall have no cash value.

There shall be no maximum on the number ol'hours of'sick leave Employee may acffue.

Ilealth Insurancer City pays the health insurance premium for Employee, Employee
plus 1 or Employee plus family up to the maximum insurance
prenium rate of'fered to other Executive Management employees
of the City. Employee shall provide contributions to liealth
insurance premiums to the same level requirecl of other City
enrployees.

limployee may participate in any adopted Health Savings Account
adopted by the City, at no cost to the City.

Dental Insutartce: City pays 100% of the dental insurance premium licrr llmployee,
Employee plus I or F,mployee plus family fbr dental insurance
coverage oflbred to other employees of the City.

Vision lnsurance City pays 100% of the insurance prernium fbr Employee,
Employee pius I or lirnployee plus lbmiiy fbr vision eye insurance
covelage of{ired to other employees of the City.

l.i1e Insurance City pays 100% oi'the premium l'or a $70,000 lil'e insr.n:ance policy
on policies ofl'ered to other Iixecutive Management employees of
the City. The lif'e insurance may be portable at no additional cost
to the Clity.

City pays 100% of the rlcxrlhly premium lbr both short and long-
temr disability insurance policies on policies ofTerecl to other
employees of the City.

- 10 -

'Disability

Page 930

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



lletiree Medical Employees hired on or betbre May 8, ?007 who retire r,vith rnore
than 5 years ol.'service with the City of F'olsom shall quality fbr a
monthly City retiree health insurance contribution. Subject to the
maximum contribution set lbrth below. the City's retiree health
insurance contribution shall be as follows:

a) Retiree only * an amount equal to the City's contribution
towalds active employee health insurance for the category of

' "employee only."

b) Retiree and one dependenl - an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance fbr the
category of "empl<lyee plus one."

c) Retiree and two or ilrore clependents - An amount equal to thc
City's contribution towards active enrployee health insurance
for the category of "employee plus two or mole" until the
retiree reaches age 55. Thereaiter, the City's contribution
towards a retiree with two or more dependents shall be an
amount equal to the City's contribution towards active
employee health insurance fbr the category of "employee plus
one" plus $ 100.

Eflbctive Janualy 1,2,012, the City's monthly contribution toward
the cost of retiree health insurance shall not exceed the maximun
monthly contribution paid by the City to active employee health
insurance for the categories of employee only (for retiree only),
employee plus one (for retiree plus one dependent), and employee
plus two or more until age 55 and employee plus one plus $100
alter age 55 (lbr retiree plus two or nrore dependents). For: retiree
rnedical coverage, retirees are pooled with regular employees lbr
coverage and rate setting.

The January 1,2012 cap lbr each category shall be adjusted each
January thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%, elepending on
the percenl increase in tlie Consumer Price lndex (CllD, U.S.
f)epartrnent of Labor, lbr Noven'rber * November o1'the previous
year, Index CPI-W, Urban Wage Hnrners ancl Cllerical Workers,
Series #CV/IIR0400SA0, United States. For example: if the cost
of living tbr the specified period increases by 2r%, the cap sliall be

increased by 2%. 11 the cost ol living lor the speci{ied period
increases by 4Vo, the cap shall be increased by 3% (cost ol'living
increases in tJre cap shall be rouncled to the nearest lenth),

Pursuant tcl applicable law, the City nray cstablisl'r a tax exempt
Voluntary Employee Benefit Association (VEBA), Retiree l{ealth
S*vings Account RFfSA) ot'othel rnechturism {or all errployees to
save fcrr additional retiree health insurance ancl provicle a
rlechanism r,vhereby employees may volurrtarily contribute towarcl

- 11-
Page 931

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



Severance:

ltrtule costs of retiree health insurance premiums and related
expenses. Should such a pr'ogrffr be established, Ernployee shall
be eligible to participate.

Retired Employees shall receive vision and dental care in the same

manner as currently provided to other retired employees.

T'welve (12) months' salary and benefits, no accrual of annual or
adrninistrative leave during that time period, during the first year
of this limployment Agreement, and nine (9) rnorrths thereafter
with no accrual of annual or administrative leave during that time
period. If the number of days remaining on the contract upon
discharge is less than the number of'days provided fot severance,
then pursuant to Government Code section 351LI and 53260,
Employee's severance sum shall be equivalent to the number of
days remaining on the contract. Severance benefits shall nr:t
inelude the value of any accrual of annual or administrative leave.

ANDERSEN
I)ated ;l ttl t{

-12-
Page 932

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

F'OR THN
CITY MANAGER

This Amendment No. I to the Employrnent Agreernent for.thc City Manager (retb.rred to

herein as the o'Agreement"), is made and entered inta this fLl*d"ay of July, ?019, as provided for
in Section l? of the Agreenrent and ftir all purposes, inclucling calsulaticn ofpay and lrenefits, is

effective as of July 1,2019,

Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby modified to reflect Employee's base salary to be

$25 1,125.00 per year.

Except as amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement and any previously
approved amendments thereto remain in full force and effect.

Approved and Authorized:

For the City of Folsom - Employer

Accepted and Agreed to:
Elaine Andersen
Employee - City Manager

Approved as to Form:
Steven

Attest: 1 {t
Christa
City Clerk

Page 933

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



AMENDMENT NO.2 TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

FOR THE CITY MANAGER

This Amendmsnt No. 2 to Employment Agreement for the City Marrager datsd _ -*th
September 22,2Al5 (referred to herein as the "Agreenrenf ), is made and entered into thiso{O =
day of November, 2019, as provided for in Section 16 of the Agreement and for all purposes,

including calculation of pay and benefits, and is effective as of July I,2019.

The following provisions in Exhibit A of the Agteement are hereby modified as follows:

1. Dental Insurance in Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

"Dental Insurance: Effective January 1,2020, City pays 80% of the dental insurance
premium for Employee, Employee plus I or Employee plus family for dentai
insurance coverage offered to other ernployees of the City. If Employee elects dental
coverage, Employee will conkibute20o/o of the monthly premium. If Employee does
not elect dental coverage or drops coverage at any time in the future, Employee must
wait2 years to be eligible for dental coverage."

2. Vision Insurance in Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

"Vision Insurance: Effective January 1,2020, City pays 80% of the insurance
premium for Employee, Employee plus 1 or Employee plus family for vision eye
insurance coverage offered to other employees of the City. If Employee elects vision
coverage, Employee will contribute20% of the monthly premium. If Employee does
not elect vision coverage or drops coverage at any time in the future, Employee must
wait2 years to be eligible for vision coverage."

3. Retiree Medical in Exhibit A of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:

"Retiree Medical: The City reserves its right to make changes from time to time in
the health benefits offered and the cost of such insurance coverage to active or retired employees,

both before and after retirement. Employee acknowledges City's right.

A. Employee hired on or prior to May 8,2007 who retirel from City service may
participate in City health insurance plans made available by the City for active
employees until age 65 when they move to a Medicare Advantage Plan per
Section A.ii.b below. The amount of the City's monthly contribution shall be

I "Existing employees" are exclusively permanent and/or probationary employees of the Ciry of Folsom hired on or
before May 8,zAU. "Retire" or "retiree" is defined as any City employee who (1) applies for retirement with the
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) within 90 days after terminating employment with the City, and (2)
receives a PERS retirement beneht.

Page 934

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



determined as set forth below. Any costs that exceed the maximum paid by the
City toward retiree health insurance costs shall be bome by the retiree.

i. Employee who retire with less than 5 years of service2 shall not be eligible to
receive any City contribution toward the cost of retiree health insurance.

ii. Employees who retire with more than 5 years of service shall qualifu for a
monthly City retiree health insurance contribution.

a. Subject to the maximum set forth in A.iii below, the City retiree health
conkibution shall be as follows:

o Retiree only * an amount equal to the City's contribution towards active
employee health insurance for the category of "ernployee only."

r Retiree and one dependent - an amount equal to the City's contribution
towards active employee health insurance for the category of "employee
plus one."

r Retiree and two or more dependents - an amount equal to the City's
contribution towards active employee health insurance for the category of
ooernployee plus two or more" until the retiree reaches age 55. Thereafter,
the City's contribution towards a retiree with two or mors dependents

shall be an amount equal to the City's contribution towards active
employee health insurance for the category of "employee plus one" plus

$100.

b. Retirees and their covered family members who are Medicare eligible
must move to an offered Medicare Advantage Plan option when they
reach Medicare eligibility. These plans require that they enroll and pay

for Medicare parts A and B. Retirees are responsible for showing proof of
Medicare enrollment as required by the carrier. Medicare eligible retirees
will be dropped from the City's non-Medicare plan upon Medicare
eligibility and/or charged any additional costs associated for
noncompliance by the plan carrier.

iii. Effective January I,2Al2, the City's monthly contribution toward the cost of
retiree health insurance shall not exceed the maximum monthly contribution
paid by the City to active employee health insurance for the categories of
employee only (for retiree only), employee plus one (for retiree plus one

dependent), and employee plus fwo or more until age 55, and employee plus
one plus $ 100 after age 55 (for retiree plus two or more dependents). For
retiree medical coverage, retirees are pooled with regular employees for
coverage and rate setting.

2 "Seryice" is defined as full time (or equivalent) continuous permanent and/or probationary employment status wi*r
the City of Folsom.

Page 935

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



a. The January 7,20l2cap for each category shall be adjusted each January
thereafter by an amount not to exceed 3%, depending on the percent

increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI), U.S. Department of Labor,
for November - November of the previous year, Index CPI-W, Urban
Wage Eamers and Clerical Workers, Series #CWUR0400SA0, United
States. (For example, if the cost of living for the specified period
increases by 2o/o, the cap shall be increased by 2%. If the cost of living for
the specified period increases by 4o/o, the cap shall be increased by 3%.
Cost of living increases in the cap shall be rounded to the nearest tenth.)

B. Effective September 1,2A19, ernployees who retire from City service must have
at least 120 months of continuous service as City employee to qualifu for dental
and vision insurance benefits provided to active employees. If Employee elects
this coverage, City shall contribute 5% of the premium per year of City service,
up to an 80% City contribution. If Employee does not elect either vision or dental
coverage or drops coverage at any time in the future, Employee must wait 2 years
in order to be eligible for coverage.

C. Employee under the age of 65 retired from City service and eligible for Retiree
Medical coverage, but lives outside the City's health plan coverage erea, qualifu
for a Health Retirement Account (HRA) that will allow retired Employee to use

the City's contribution toward Employee's health care plan to join any plan
Employee desires in the locality where Employee resides. For details, please

contact the City of Folsom Human Resources Department.

Except as amended herein, all other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

Approved and Authorized:
M,

Forthe City of Folsom - Employer

Accepted and Agreed to
Andersen

Employee - City Manager

(_
Approved as to Form

Attorney

Freemantle

ang

Attest:

City Clerk

Page 936

08/24/2021 Item No.24.



ffi
r'"ttL$tttrI
(,r 6lrldlr.a t'l 5.ltar,tl

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the Council direct the Finance Director to appropriate

$4,187,823 of available American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds in the FY 202ll22budget
for the provision of government services, with the intent to appropriate an additional

$2,093,911 in FY 2022123 and $2,093,911 in FY 2023124 during the regular budget process

for the provision of government services.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The American Rescue Plan Act was signed into law on March 11,202I. ARPA established the
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund. The fi.rnds are intended to provide support
to state, local, and tribal governments in responding to the impact of COVID-l9 on their
communities, residents, and businesses and in their efforts to contain COVID-I9.

The City of Folsom's total allocation from the ARPA Coronavirus State and Local Recovery
Fund is 58,375,645.

POLICY / RULE

Per sections 602(c)(1) and 603(c)(1) of the ARPA, funds may be used:

I

MEETING DATE: 812412021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Consideration of Expenditure of Funds from the American
Rescue Plan Act and Direction to Staff

FROM: Finance Department

Page 937

08/24/2021 Item No.25.



a) To respond to the public health emergency or its negative economic impacts, including
assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or to aid impacted industries
such as tourism, travel, and hospitality.

b) To respond to workers performing essential work during the COVID-l9 public health
emergency by providing premium pay to eligible workers.

c) For the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue due to
the COVID-I9 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the most recent
fuIl fiscal year prior to the emergency; and

d) To make necessary investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure.

ANALYSIS

Within the eligible use categories stated above and outlined in the Fiscal Recovery Funds
provisions of ARPA, state, local, and tribal governments have the flexibility to determine how
best to use payments from the Fiscal Recovery Funds to meet the needs of their communities
and populations.

To provide the most flexibility for use of the allocation, staff recommends appropriating funds
under the allowable use category of Provision of Government Services. To quali$ to use this
category, the City is required to perform a detailed calculation to determine the total reduction
in revenue due to the COVID-I9 public health emergency relative to revenues collected in the
most recent full fiscal year prior to the emergency.

After performing this calculation, it has been determined that the City's total reduction in
revenue exceeds the total ARPA allocation to the City of $8,375,645 and therefore the entire
allocation could be used within this allowable category.

This category allows recipients facing budget shortfalls to use payments to avoid cuts to
government services, allowing the City to make up the difference from where revenue trends
might have been pre-COVID-l9 and where they are now. If it is the Council's desire to use

this category for the expenditure of the ARPA funds, the City would have considerable
flexibility on what government services will be provided or enhanced with the funding. This
would allow for the extensive list of city needs that had to be passed up in the most recent
budget cycle to be reconsidered, along with many new, one-time projects in the future.

One notable restriction on the use of funds under the provision of government services category
is it cannot be used to replenish reserves. The intention is that these funds be spent on current
government services.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

As of July 31,2021, the City has receivedS4,I87,823 of the total $8,375,645 allocation. The
funding already received is available for appropriation and, at the amount approved by the

2
Page 938

08/24/2021 Item No.25.



Conncil, would be added to the FY 2021-22 operating budget in the General Fund and
designated for certain government services. Two additional appropriations in the amount of
$2,093,911 each would be allocated to the FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 operating budgets in
the General Fund.

The entire $8,375,645 allocation must be obligated by December 31, 2024, and fully spent by
December 31,2026.

Submitted,

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO
Office of Management and Budget

)
Page 939

08/24/2021 Item No.25.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 940

08/24/2021 Item No.25.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10691-
A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order DES-01-21 Issued by the
Director of Emergency Services

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The extreme drought conditions, unprecedented heat waves, and heightened fire danger are

currently existing throughout Northern California. Some of the recent large and intense
wildfires that threatened life and property near the Sacramento Region include the 489,287
acre Dixie Fire that prompted evacuation orders in parts of Plumas County as well as parts of
Butte County that were ravaged by the Camp Fire in 2018, the Beckwourth Complex fire that
bumed more than 105,000 acres in the Plumas National Forest and destroyed more than 30
homes in the town of Doyle where fire officials observed and described o'extreme fire
behavior" with difficulty of containment, the River Fire along the Mariposa-Madera county
line that burned more than 9,500 acres, the Tamarack Fire that bumed over 68,000 acres and
threatened the town of Markleeville, and the most recent River Fire in Nevada and Placer
counties that burned over 2,600 acres and destroyed 66 homes and2 commercial buildings.

These significantly dangerous wildfires and the extremely dry local conditions prompted the
City Council to declare existence of a local emergency in the City of Folsom due to extreme
fire danger on July 27,2021.

1

MEETING DATE: 81241202r

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10691 - A Resolution of the City Council
Confirming Emergency Order DES-O1-21 Issued by the Director
of Emergency Services

F'ROM: City Attorney's Office

Page 941

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



POLICY / RULE

Rules and regulations issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services must be

confirmed by the City Council at the earliest practicable time. Folsom Municipal Code

Section 2.28.040(E)(1 ).

ANALYSIS

Once the City Council has declared a local emergency, the City's Director of Emergency
Services (City Manager) is empowered to make and issue rules and regulations on matters
reasonably related to the protection of life, environment and property as affected by such
emergency, and that such emergency rules and regulations must be confirmed by the City
Council at the earliest practicable opportunity.

Following the City Council proclamation of a local emergency and based on the authority in
Section 2.28.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code, the City's Director of Emergency Services
issued Emergency Order DES-01-21 on August 9,2021 for the purpose of protecting the
public's health, life and safety by preventing the start and spread of wildfire in City-owned
open space areas.

Emergency Order DES-01-21 is being presented to the City Council for confirmation
consistent with Section2.28.040(EX1) of the Folsom Municipal Code.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Costs and expenses associated with emergency response actions are budgeted in the City's
General Fund, which may be reimbursable if the State and Federal Governments make
similar emergency proclamations.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10691- A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-01-21 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services

2. Emergency Order DES-01-21

Respectfully submitted,

2

Steven W*g, City Attorney

Page 942

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Attachment l.
Resolution No. 10691- A Resolution of the City Council Confirming
Emergency Order DES-01-21Issued by the Director of Emergency

Services

Page 943

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



RESOLUTION NO. 10691

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL CONFIRMING
EMERGENCY ORDER DES.OI.2l ISSUED BY THE

DIRECTOR OF EMERGENCY SERVICES

WHEREAS, due to extreme drought conditions, unprecedented heat waves, and
heightened fire danger existing throughout Northern California, the City Council on July 27,
2021 adopted Resolution No. 10674 and proclaimed the existence of a local emergency in the
City of Folsom due to extreme fire danger; and

WHEREAS' following the City Council proclamation of a local emergency, and based
on the authority in Section 2.28.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code, the City's Director of
Emergency Services issued Emergency Order DES-01-21 on August 9,2021for the purpose of
protecting the public's health, life and safety by preventing the start and spread of wildfire in
City-owned open space areas; and

WHEREAS' rules and regulations issued by the City's Director of Emergency Services
shall be confirmed by the City Council as early as practicable under the circumstances of the
emergency.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
that Emergency Order DES-01-21 is hereby confirmed, and all actions taken in fuilherance
thereto are hereby ratified and approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of August, 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10691
Page I of 1 Page 944

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Attachm ent 2.

Emergency Order DES-0 l -21

Page 945

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



CI'['Y O}T FOI,SO]\4 I
ir
W//

oFFlcE oF THE CITY MANAGER I 50 NATOMA 9TREET, FOLSOil, CA 95630 | WWW.FOLSOi|.CA.US FOLSIOM

EMERGENCY ORDER
DES-01-21

Pursuant to the Proclamation of the Folsom City Council of a Local Emergency due to extreme
fire danger on July 27,2O2t, Section 2.28.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code, and Government
Code Section 8634, I hereby issue the following Order:

1. Off-trail City-owned open space areas identified in Exhibit A attached hereto are hereby
closed for the purpose of protectlng the public's health, life and safety by preventing the start
and spread of wildflre to surrounding residential homes and structures. Existing City trails and
bicycle paths may remain open for normal use.

2, Combustible materials in the identified off-trail City-owned open space areas such as, for
example, butane canisters, propane, lighter fluid, matches, lighters, charcoal, wood briquettes,
smoking materials, candles, heat lamps, heaters, paper, paper boxes and containers shall be
removed immediately.

3. lndividuals accessing the identified off-trail City-owned open space areas are directed to
vacate immediately.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing abatement of homeless encampments under thls Emergency
order shall follow the City's standard noticing protocol to individuals experiencing homelessness
in the identified areas so that homeless individuals can collect and safeguard thelr personal
belongings, and the items they no longer need or want can be discarded in City-supplied refuse
containers.

Failure of any person to comply with this Order and any order issued by a law enforcement officer
pursuant to this order constitutes an imminent threat to public health.

Pursuant to Section 2.28.O70 of the Folsom Municipal Code and Government Code Sectlon 8665,
any person who violates any of the provisions of thls Order or who refuses or willfully neglects to
obey this Order promulgated and issues hereunder shall be guihy of a misdemeanor and, upon
conviction thereof, shall be punishable by a fine of not to exceed five hundred dollars (5500) or
by imprisonment for not to exceed six months or by both such fine and imprisonment.

This Order is not intended to, and does not, create any rights or benefits, substantive or
procedural, enforceable at law or in equlty, against the City of Folsom, its departments, officers,
employees, or any other person.

FOLSOM, CA _ INCORPORATED 1946

Page 946

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



lf any provision of this Order to the application thereof to any person or circumstances is held to
be invalid, the remainder of the Order, including the application of such part or provision to other
persons or circumstances, shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. To this
end, the provisions of this Order are severable.

This Order shall be filed in the City Clerk's Office and given widespread publicity and notice

!T IS SO ORDERED:

DES-o1-21

Date: August9,202l By:

Elaine Andersen
City Manager
Director of Emergency Services

EXHIBIT A

[sEE ATTACHED]

2ot2

Page 947

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Appendix A

Open Space High HazailI Fire Areas
Map Page Location

1 The Parkway-Overview Map

2
The Parkwav-West Area: Open space between Oak Avenue and

Parkway Drive and Bowen Drive

3
The Parkwav-East Area: Open space between Parkway Drive and

E. Natoma

4
Humbug-Willow Greek/South Area-Open space between Riley St

and E. Bidwell

5
Humbug-Willow Creek/North Area-Open space between E.

Bidwell and Cummings Family Park

6
Folsom Helghts/Enclave-Open space between Sibley Street and

Riley Street (Lembi Community Park/Aquatic Center)

7

Amerlcarr River Canvon North-Open space alons Arterialtrail
from Fort Rock to Temperance River Ct. and area between

Alabaster Point and Flat Rock Ct.

I Pralrlg Oaks Ranch-Open space between Grover Road and Blue Ravine

Road

9
Prairie Oaks Ranch-Open space between Amos P. Catlin Park and

Grover Road

10 Hinkle Creek Nature Area

11
Citv Hall Complex-Open space from City Offices/Police Department to

Lower Rodeo area

Page 948

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



FIRE HAZARD RISK ASSESSMENT CRITERIA

Access
Direct public accessibility from a bike path and/or walking trail
Fire suppression apparatus and personnel

Fuel
Types

o Grass

o Grass - Shrub
o Shrub
o Timber - Understory
o Timber - litter
o Slash

Continuity
o Horizontal (uniform or patchy)
o Vertical (ground fuels, surface frrels, ladder fuels, aerial fuels)

Topography
. Aspect
. Slope
. Shape
. Barriers (natural, man-made)

Wlnd Dlrecdon
. Normal
. "Red-Flagl'

Fire History
. Has there been past fires in the area ?

Threats
Residences

Businesses
Parks

People

WaterAvailabiliW
. Hydrants
. River/Lake/Pond

Overhead Power lines
Cell Tower

Utilities

Page 949

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



l {)l.s(r\t
W

Open Space High Hazard Fire Areas
The Parkway Overview

Open space from Oak Ave to Silberhom/Broder Cir/Parkway Dr/ E. Natomal Welty Ct.

Designated trails, unpaved trails and parks will remain open for normal use

Page 950

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Open Space High Hazard Fire Areas
The Parkway - West Area
Humbug Creek from Oak Ave to Willow Bend Park

Designated trails, unpaved trails and parks will remain open for normal use

aL
., -\.Q/

Page 951

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



tf{tl,s()\t
ml

o"tooonuuo.. -*,,, iisT

{,s
OAK PAR(WAY 

TRAIL

\lt r\i\ l3I\ r', t I I

-\'
...\.

l\\

-"

-\$-

1t'lil l\(

or,

'4i

t ltt \t, ,

iit \ti).,i. 
/

ta:
ti+

tl., tj.tl

,/,.
'-j_l

".;

t il:
i,1

11)'l'.RSt)I t

., 'li
).-

. 
1.:

i''t 
=i

1)
'' i'

't
.,1 ,'l

.,,
"),-|
;1 ..

. f. ....-

{\\}

%,&o^
'XOr'

,?

.!t\

t
,,.

lt

I. I'
.o'1\

..)-
\$r 'lrt

4'
1.t.

i
,' .it'

^t
- !;,< i\*t \

'll,2lq,.-*'-*r1r,r

'44

,1.; l'l;I\'f 
I

('

il

\l
r,vllitt(rW ()REEt(\tft4rr

,.at. 
t t

(\'
Sou rce/), Is ri Max.:r GeoEve. Ear thsra r.G eoq ra phi (s, CN t5/Airl,us D5.

S. rE: rG-N,
,a-.

l:r Ir li I

a nd
,l

tlre Gr5

.t

tJSG AeroG

Ma

Usc Coni TJ]

Open Space High Hazard Fire Areas
The Parkway - East Area
Between Parkway Drive and E. Natoma

Designated trails, unpaved trails and parks will remain open for normal use.

Page 952

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Page 953

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Open Space High Hazard Fire Areas

Designated trails, unpaved trails and parks will remain open for normal use

t

{1

3i&

,,,$

k
iilr*
i'.'t

f,

Humbug / Willow Creek - North
E. Bidwell to Cummings Family Park

I ; i'

Page 954

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



.a Eil

Page 955

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Open Space High Hazard Fire Areas

Designated trails, unpaved trails and parks will remain open for normal use

;$.

l'

.,i

,I

\-

'!

American River Canyon North
Arterial trailfrom Fort Rock to Temperance River Ct

Page 956

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Page 957

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Page 958

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Page 959

08/24/2021 Item No.26.



Page 960

08/24/2021 Item No.26.


	Top
	08/24/2021 Item No.1.	Resolution of Commendation Honoring Jeff and Becky Boone for Their Years of Volunteer Service with the Friends of the Zoo Sanctuary
	08-24 STAFF REPORT BOONE RES OF COMMENDATION

	08/24/2021 Item No.2.	Presentation on the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2
	08-24 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION WATER SYSTEM REHAB PROJECT

	08/24/2021 Item No.3.	Presentation on the City's Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation Stage
	08-24 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION STAGE 3 WATER CONSERVATION

	08/24/2021 Item No.4.	Historic District Parking Solutions Quarterly Update
	08-24 STAFF REPORT HD PARKING SOLUTIONS QUARTERLY UPDATE

	08/24/2021 Item No.5.	Approval of July 13, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	08-24 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF JULY 13, 2021

	08/24/2021 Item No.6.	Approval of July 27, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	08-24 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF JULY 27, 2021

	08/24/2021 Item No.7.	Designation of Primary and Alternate Voting Delegates for the League of California Cities 2021 Annual Conference Business Meeting
	08-24 STAFF REPORT ALTERNATE VOTING DELEGATES FOR LEAGUE OF CA CITIES

	08/24/2021 Item No.8.	Nomination of the Joint Representative for the Cities of Folsom, Isleton, and Galt to the Sacramento Environmental Commission
	08-24 STAFF REPORT NOMINATION OF REP FOR SAC ENV COMMISSION

	08/24/2021 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10675 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the 2018 Contract Between the City of Folsom and the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals for Shelter Services and Appropriation of Funds
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10675 AMEND CONTRACT ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES

	08/24/2021 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10676 PURCHASE OF 6 POLICE VEHICLES

	08/24/2021 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10677 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles for Four Type I Ambulances
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10677 PURCHASE OF 4 AMBULANCES

	08/24/2021 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10678 – A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order DES-07-20 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10678 EMERGENCY ORDER DES-07-20

	08/24/2021 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10679 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order with Sierra National Construction, Inc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project No. PW180 and Appropriation of Funds
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10679 CHANGE ORDER SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT

	08/24/2021 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10680 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with TYMCO, Inc. for the Purchase of a Street Sweeper
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10680 PURCHASE OF STREET SWEEPER

	08/24/2021 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 10681 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design Consulting Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Mangini Ranch Trails Project in the Folsom Plan Area
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10681 DESIGN CONSULTING MANGINI RANCH TRAILS

	08/24/2021 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 10682 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement 000000X28 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288S21 for the Natoma Street Drainage Improvement Project Phase 2, Project No. PW1901, State Project No. 5288(047)
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10682 PROGRAM SUPP AGREEMENT NATOMA STREET DRAINAGE IMP

	08/24/2021 Item No.17.	Resolution No. 10683 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program Supplement Agreement X30 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288S21 for the Iron Point Median Improvement Project, Project No. PW2102, State Project No. 5288(048)
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10683 PROGRAM SUPP AGREEMENT IRON POINT MEDIAN IMP

	08/24/2021 Item No.18.	Resolution No. 10685 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Dokken Engineering, Inc. for the Green Valley Road Permanent Easement Acquisition, Project No.  PW0804
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10685 GREEN VALLEY ROAD EASEMENT ACQUISITION

	08/24/2021 Item No.19.	Resolution No. 10686 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC (now known as Centralsquare Technologies) to Increase the Number of User Licenses, Migrate Additional Project Data to the New Permitting System, and Develop a Custom Land Management Integration
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10686 AMEND 5 NEW PERMITTING SYSTEM

	08/24/2021 Item No.20.	Resolution No. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Master Agreement Administering Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded Projects, Agreement No. 03-5288S21 and any Amendments Thereto with the California Department of Transportation
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10687 MASTER AGREEMENT STATE FUNDED PROJECTS

	08/24/2021 Item No.21.	Resolution No. 10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A), Project No. PW1607, Federal Project No. 5288(046)
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10688 CHANGE ORDER CAPITAL SE CONNECTOR

	08/24/2021 Item No.22.	UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment - Northwest Corner of East Bidwell Street and Street B (PN 21-153)
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC ORD 1316 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT UCD HEALTH SCIENCES CAMPUS

	08/24/2021 Item No.23.	City of Folsom 2021 Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and Related Actions
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10689 AND 10690 HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE

	08/24/2021 Item No.24.	Resolution No. 10684 – A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10684 CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

	08/24/2021 Item No.25.	Consideration of Expenditure of Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act and Direction to Staff
	08-24 STAFF REPORT EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS AMER RESCUE PLAN ACT

	08/24/2021 Item No.26.	Resolution No. 10691 – A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order DES-01-21 Issued by the Director of Emergency Services
	08-24 STAFF REPORT CC RES 10691 EMERGENCY ORDER DES-01-21

	Bottom

